Senate Judiciary Committee Holds Hearing on
Nomination of William P. Barr to be U.S. Attorney
General

LIST OF PANEL MEMBERS AND WITNESSES

GRAHAM:
Thank you all. You're not going to get a good shot of me. So thank you all. So happy new

year. New Congress, and we'll see how this goes. I recognize Senator Grassley.

GRASSLEY:
Okay. I do this with a point of personal privilege, Mr. Chairman, and I appreciate that

courtesy of you and the members. This is the first meeting of the Senate Judiciary
Committee in this 116th Congress. It's also the first time that we convened while my friend,
Lindsey Graham, holds the gavel and will proceed to be chairman. So I'd like to congratulate
the new chairman, thank him for his leadership and say that I look forward to working with
you and other members of this committee as we seek to address some of our nation's most
pressing problems. I have every confidence that you will steer our 200-year-old committee

in the right direction.

GRAHAM:

Well, thank you. I really appreciate that. In my view, nobody looks over 100. So we're

actually--
(LAUGHTER)

We're aging well as a committee. The bottom line is how do you get this job? Your colleagues

have to vote for you. Thank you. You have to get reelected and outlive the person to your
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3/18/2019 cQ
right. So I've been able to do that, and I look forward to working with Senator Feinstein who
is--I have a lot of affection and fondness for. She, to me, represents a seriousness that the
body needs and a--and a demeanor that I think we should all aspire to. To the new
colleagues, Senator Hawley, Blackburn and Ernst, thank you for being part of this
committee. To Senator Blackburn and Ernst, thank you for making history, I think, on our

side.

As to the hopes and dreams for this committee, to get as much done as possible and to fight
when we have to over things that matter to the public and show diff--two different views of
an issue that's important, but do it as respectfully as possible. Sentencing reform. Criminal
justice reform was a very big deal, and this committee delivered for the country. Senator
Durbin, I want to thank you very, very much for working with Senator Lee and Senator
Grassley and Senator Booker. That's a big deal that's going to change lives, I think, in a

positive way.

So this committee has within it the ability to do big things long overdue. I know Senator
Blackburn wants to do something on social media. Senator Klobuchar has got some ideas
about how to make sure if you put an ad up on social media you have to stand by it. We're all
worried about social media platforms being hijacked by terrorists and bad actors throughout
the international world. We're worried about privacy. Do you really know what you're
signing up for when you get on one of these platforms? I'd like this committee working with

commerce to see if we can find some way to tame the Wild West.

Intellectual property, Senator Tillis and Senator Coons have some ideas that I look forward
to--to hearing about. Senator Sasse wants to make sure that we act ethically. You've got a
package of ethic re--ethic reforms, and Ilook forward to working with you there. On this
side, I know there are a lot of ideas that I'm sure that if we sat down and talked we could
embrace, and Ilook forward to solving as many problems as we can and having a contest

over ideas that really matter to the American people.

Senator Hatch, thank you for coming. In terms of my chairmanship, if I can do what you and

Senator Grassley were able to do during your time, I will have done the committee a good

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 2/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0027974


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

3/18/2019 cQ
service. Senator Grassley, thank you very much. Last year was tough, but I think you and
Senator Feinstein did the best you could in the environment in which we live. The times in
which we live are very difficult times. [ don't see them getting better overnight, but I do see

them getting better if we all want them to.

So about me. I want us to do better, and I'll be as measured as possible. The immigration

Lindsey will show up, but the other guy is there, too.
(LAUGHTER)

And I don't like him any more than you do. So the bottom line is we're starting off with
something that would be good for the country. We have a vacancy for the attorney general
spot. We have a chance to fill that vacancy. Mr. Barr, as--you can't hold a job. When you look
at what he's done in his life, it's incredible. So I want to thank the president for nominating
somebody who is worthy of the job, who will understand on day one what the job is about
and can right the ship over there. I think we all have concerns. I know Senator Whitehouse is
passionate about cybersecurity and fort cyber and all of these other ideas that Sheldon has
been pushing. It's just a matter of time before we hit and hit hard if somebody doesn't step

up to the plate with some solutions.

But a little bit about the nominee. He's been attorney general before from '91 to '93 by
voice vote. Those were the days. Deputy attorney general from '90 to '91, unanimous
consent, without a recorded vote. Assistant Attorney General Office of Legal Counsel, voice
vote. That's pretty amazing. I think you're going to have an actual vote this time.
Academically gifted, George Washington Law School, Columbia University undergraduate.
Outside of DOJ he was the general counsel, legislative counsel for the CIA. That's how he
met Bush 41. He's been a law clerk. He's worked in private practice. I'm not going to bore
the committee with all the things he's done. He's been the senior vice president and general

counsel of GTE. He's lived a consequential life--general counsel for Verizon.

You've lived a life that, I think, has been honorable, and noteworthy and accomplished, and
I want to thank you for being willing to take this task on. We've got a lot of problems at the

Department of Justice. I think morale is low, and we need to change that. So I look forward
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to this hearing. You will be challenged. You should be challenged. The memo, there will be a
lot of talk about it, as there should be. But I just want to let you know, Mr. Barr, that we
appreciate you stepping up at a time when the country needs somebody of your background

and your temperament to be in charge of the rule of law.

GRAHAM:

And with that I will turn it over to my colleague, Senator Feinstein.

FEINSTEIN:
Thanks very much, Mr. Chairman and I want you to know I really look forward to working

with you.

GRAHAM:

Me, too.

FEINSTEIN:
And I think we can work productively together. And Senator Grassley I want to thank you for
the time we worked together. It really was a pleasure and I had an opportunity to get to

know you as the fine person that you are. So thank you very much.

I want to say just one word or two or three about women. Twenty five years ago there were
no women on this committee. I'll never forget watching the Anita Hill hearing on a

television in the London airport with a lot of people gathered around.

So I went over to take a look and I saw and I saw this all-male Judiciary Committee and it
took all of these years but here we are and I want to particularly welcome Senator Ernst and
Senator Blackburn. I think it's extraordinarily important that this committee be
representative of our society at large and we are growing that way. And so thank you very

much for being here.
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3/18/2019 cQ
I'd also like to welcome Bill Barr and his family. I know you're proud to be here and you
served as attorney general before from '91 to '93 and I think we all have great respect for

your commitment to public service.

When we met your previous tenure marked a very diff--we talked about a very different time
for our country and today we find ourselves in a unique time with a different administration
and different challenges. And now perhaps more than ever before the country needs
someone who will uphold the rule of law, depend the independence--defend the
independence of the Justice Department and truly understand their job is to serve as the

people's lawyer, not the president's lawyer.

Top of mind for all of us is the ongoing Mueller investigation. Importantly, the attorney
general must be willing to resist political pressure and be committed to protecting this
investigation. I'm pleased that in our private meeting as well as in your written statement
submitted to the committee you stated that it's vitally important and this is a quote that the
special counsel be allowed to complete his investigation end quote and that quote the public

and Congress be informed of the results of the special counsel's work end quote.

However, there are at least two aspects of Mr. Mueller's investigation. First, Russian
interference in the United States election and whether any U.S. persons were involved in
that interference and second, possible obstruction of justice. It's the second component that
you have written on and just five months before you were nominated, I spent the weekend
on your 19-page legal memo to Deputy Attorney General Rod Rosenstein criticizing

Mueller's investigation specifically the investigation into potential obstruction of justice.

In the memo you conclude I be--think that press--Special Counsel Mueller is quote grossly
irresponsible for pursuing an obstruction case against the President and pursuing the
obstruction inquiry is fatally misconceived. So I hope we can straighten that out in this

hearing.

But your memo also shows a large sweeping view of presidential authority, and a
determined effort I thought to undermine Bob Mueller even though you state you have been

friends and are in the dark about many of the facts of the investigation. So it does raise
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3/18/2019 cQ
questions about the willingness to reach conclusions before knowing the facts and whether

you prejudge the Mueller investigation and I hope you'll make that clear today.

It also raises a number of serious questions about your views on executive authority and
whether the president is in fact above the law. For example, you wrote the president and I
quote alone is the executive branch. As such he is the sole repository of all executive powers
conferred by the Constitution. Thus the full measure of law enforcement authority is placed
in the president's hands and no limit is placed on the kinds of cases subject to his control and

supervision. This is in your memo on page 10 and I will ask you about it.

This analysis included cases involving potential misconduct where you concluded and I
quote the president may exercise his supervisory authority over cases dealing with his own
interests and the president transgresses no legal limitation when he does so. That's on page
12. In fact, you went so far as to conclude that quote the framers' plan contemplates that the
president's law enforcement powers extends to all matters including those in which he has a

personal stake.

You also wrote the Constitution itself places no limit on the president's authority to act on

matters which concern him or his own conduct, page 10.

Later you conceded that certain supervisory actions such as the firing of Director Comey
may be unlawful obstruction however this too is qualified. You argue that such a case--in
such a case obstruction of justice occurs only if first, a prosecutor proves that the president

for his aides colluded with Russia.

Specifically, you conclude and I quote the issue of obstruction only becomes ripe after the
alleged conclus--collusion by the president or his campaign is established first end quote. So

that some of the things I hope to ask you about.

And in conclusion, let me just say that some of your past statements on the role of attorney
general and presidential power are concerning. For instance, you have said in the past that

the attorney general is the president's lawyer.
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3/18/2019 cQ
In November 2017, you made comments suggesting it would be permissible for the
president to direct the Justice Department to open an investigation into his political
opponents. And this is notable in light of President Trump's repeated calls for the

investigation of Hillary Clinton and others who disagree with him.

I believe it's important that the next attorney general be able to strongly resist pressure
whether from the administration or Congress to conduct investigations for political
purposes. You must have the integrity, the strength and the fortitude to tell the president no
regardless of the consequences. In short, he must be willing to defend the independence of

the Justice Department.

So my questions will be do you have that strength and commitment to be independent of the
White House pressures you will undoubtedly face? Will you protect the integrity of the

Justice Department above all else? Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Thank you, Senator Feinstein.

GRAHAM:

Senator Hatch. Welcome back. We truly miss you. you are a great chairman and a incredible
member of this body and you're very welcomed to share your thoughts about Mr. Barr with

us today.

HATCH:

Well, thank you so much, Mr. Chairman, Ranking Member Feinstein as well, and members
of the committee. It is my distinct pleasure to be here today to introduce William Barr, the
president's nominee to be attorney general of the United States. I have known and worked

with Bill closely over the years and am glad to call him a friend.
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3/18/2019 cQ
Bill has had a distinguished career in public service and in the private sector. He started his
career at the Central Intelligence Agency. While there, he went to law school part time at
George Washington University. Following graduation, he was selected for a prestigious
clerkship with the federal judge on the DC Circuit before heading to private practice. Later,
he served in the Reagan White House and the Office of Policy Development.

Following another stent in private practice, Bill began his distinguished career at the
Department of Justice under President George H.W. Bush. Bill served as the assistant
attorney general for the Office of Legal Counsel, then as deputy attorney general, and then
finally as attorney general of the United States. As attorney general, Bill oversaw a number
of sensitive criminal investigations, including the investigation into the Pan Am Flight 103
bombing. He prioritized fighting violent crime and became known as the law and order

attorney general.

Throughout his time at the Justice Department, Bill earned a reputation as a fierce advocate
for the rule of law, as a principled and independent decision-maker, and as a lawyer's
lawyer. He has shown his commitment to the Constitution time and time again while
serving our country. That is why he has been confirmed by the Senate unanimously three
times. After completing his service at the DOJ, Bill returned to the private sector working at-
-at law firms and as counsel for some of America's largest companies. I could do--I could go

on at length in describing Bill's distinguished career.

There is no question, none whatsoever, that Bill is well qualified to serve as attorney
general. He has held this position before and won high praise during his tenure for his
fairness, his tenacity, and his work ethic. So instead of droning on about Bill's resume, I
want to tell you about what Bill identifies as the most important achievement of his private
service as attorney general, at least I believe this is what he believes. I believe his answer

tells you much about how he will approach the job and who he is.

When asked what his most important accomplishment was as attorney general, Bill does not
point to one of his many policy successes, he doesn't talk about his role in setting antitrust

merger guidelines, he doesn't say it was his role leading the DOJ's response to the savings
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and loans crisis. No, for him it was something more, it was something more tangible, it was

Talladega.

Three days after Bill was named acting attorney general by President Bush, 121 prisoners
noted and seized control of the Talladega Federal Correctional Institution in Alabama. This
was a very serious matter and they took 10 hostages. Planning at the DOJ began
immediately for how best to resolve the situation and secure the safe release of the
hostages. In such a situation, some would have sought political cover. Not Bill. He was in
charge. He knew the response was his decision to make, his response ability. He maintained

his focus on the safety of the men and women held hostage by the prisoners.

The standoff lasted 10 days. Then, on Bill's order, FBI agents stormed the prison. Three
minutes later it was over. The hostages were safe, the mission was well planned and
executed, the federal agent--the federal agents did not even have to fire a single shot. Bill's

decision-making and judgment help saved lives.

When President Bush nominated Bill to be attorney general in 1991, I noted why he had
been selected. He was not a member of President Bush's political or personal inner circle.
He was not a part of the president's brain trust. He was not a politician or former politician
who--who brought political clout to the position from prior elections or prior elections--
elected office. Bill Barr was a lawyer's lawyer. Talent, merit, and performance. Those were

the reasons President Bush selected him to be the attorney general at that time.

That statement holds true today. Bill Barr, in my opinion, is an outstanding choice for
attorney general. His vast experience, renowned judgment, and reputation as an ardent
defender of the rule of law make him a nominee that the American people, the president,
and this Senate should all be proud of. So I feel very honored to be here today to speak in his
favor and I hope that his nomination will be approved expeditiously. Thank you, Mr.

Chairman.

GRAHAM:
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Thanks, Senator Hatch. I'd like to note at the outset that the rules of the Senate prohibit
outbursts, clapping, or demonstration of any kind. This includes blocking the view of people
around you. Please be mindful of these rules as we conduct this hearing. I will ask that

capital please to remove anyone who violates the rules of this committee.

GRAHAM:

Raise your right hand, please. Do you affirm that the testimony you are about to give to this

committee will be the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

BARR:
Ido.

GRAHAM:

The floor is yours.

BARR:

Before I begin, Mr. Chairman, could I introduce my family?

GRAHAM:
Absolutely.

BARR:

My wife of 46 years, Christine, a retired librarian. My daughter, Margaret, who we call Meg.
She was an assistant United States attorney in the District of Columbia but now has moved
up to Capitol Hill and works for Senator Braun. My middle daughter, Patricia, who's also an
attorney, and she has been counsel to the House Agriculture Committee for how long now,
10? Eleven years. And my daughter Mary, who is a long-time federal prosecutor and is

currently the coordinator for opioid enforcement in the Office of the Deputy Attorney
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3/18/2019 cQ
General. Mary's husband, Mike, who is also an attorney at the Department of Justice in the
national security division. And their son, Mary and Mike's son, Liam, who will someday be

in the Department of Justice.
(LAUGHTER)

Patricia's husband, Pelham, who is a founding partner of a consulting firm, and Meg's
husband, Tyler, who is also an Assistant United States Attorney in the Eastern District of

Virginia. Did I leave anyone out?

GRAHAM:

Think about medical school, Liam.
(LAUGHTER)

Somebody needs to make money in the family.

BARR:
When Meg was starting at Notre Dame, I told her to--I wanted a doctor in the family and I

made her take organic chem. Needless to say, she's now a lawyer.

So, good morning, Mr. Chairman, Ranking Member Feinstein, and members of the
committee. It's a privilege to come before you today, and I'm honored that President Trump

has nominated me for the position of attorney general.

I regret that I come before this committee at a time when much of our government is shut
down. And my thoughts are with the dedicated men and women of the Department of

Justice and other federal workers, many of whom continue to perform their critical jobs.

As you know, if the Senate confirms me, this would be my second time I would have the
honor of holding this office. During the four years I served under President George H.W.
Bush, he nominated me for three successive positions in the department, the assistant
attorney general for the Office of Legal Counsel, the deputy attorney general, and finally the
attorney general, and this committee unanimously approved me for each of those offices.
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3/18/2019 cQ
Twenty-seven years ago at my confirmation hearing, I explained that the Office of Attorney
General is not like any other cabinet post. It is unique and has a critical role to play under our
constitutional system. I said then the attorney general has a very special obligation, unique
obligations. He holds in trust the fair and impartial administration of justice. It is the

attorney general's responsibility to enforce the law evenhandedly and with integrity.

The attorney general must ensure that the administration of justice, the enforcement of the
law, is above and away from politics. Nothing could be more destructive of our system of
government, of the rule of law, or the Department of Justice as an institution, than any
toleration of political interference with the enforcement of the law. I believe this as strongly

today as I did 27 years ago, indeed more strongly.

We live in time when the country is deeply divided. In the current environment, the
American people have to know that there are places in the government where the rule of
law, not politics, holds sway, and where they will be treated fairly based solely on the facts

and the even-handed application of the law. The Department of Justice must be that place.

I did not pursue this position. And when my name was first raised, I was reluctant to be
considered and indeed proposed a number of alternative candidates. I'm 68 years old,
partially retired, and nearing the end of a long legal career. My wife and I were looking
forward to a peaceful and cherished time with our daughters and grandchildren. And I've

had this job before.

But ultimately, I agreed to serve because I believe strongly in public service. I revere the
law. I love the Department of Justice and the dedicated professionals who serve there. And I
believe that I can do a good job leading the department in these times. If confirmed, [ will

serve with the same independence I did in 1991.

At that time, when President George Bush chose me, he sought no promises and asked only
that his attorney general act with professionalism and integrity. Likewise, President Trump
has sought no assurances, promises, or commitments from me of any kind, either express or
implied, and I have not given him any, other than that I would run the department with
professionalism and integrity.
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3/18/2019 cQ
As attorney general, my allegiance will be to the rule of law, the Constitution, and the
American people. That is how it should be. That is how it must be. And if you confirm me,

that is how it will be.

Now let me address a few matters I know are on the minds of some of the members of this
committee. First, [ believe it is vitally important that the special counsel be allowed to
complete his investigation. I have known Bob Mueller for 30 years. We worked closely

together throughout my previous tenure at the Department of Justice.

We've been friends since, and I have the utmost respect for Bob and his distinguished record
of public service. And when he was named special counsel, I said that his selection was good

news and that, knowing him, I had confidence he would handle the matter properly.

And I still have that confidence today. Given his public actions to date, I expect that the
special counsel is well along in his investigation. At the same time, the president has been
steadfast that he was not involved in any collusion with Russian attempts to interfere in the

election.

I believe it is in the best interest of everyone, the president, Congress, and the American
people, that this matter be resolved by allowing the special counsel to complete his work.

The country needs a credible resolution of these issues.

And if confirmed, I will not permit partisan politics, personal interests, or any other
improper consideration to interfere with this or any other investigation. I will follow the
special counsel regulations scrupulously and in good faith. And on my watch, Bob will be

allowed to finish his work.

Second, I also believe it is very important that the public and Congress be informed of the
results of the special counsel's work. My goal will be to provide as much transparency as I
can consistent with the law. I can assure you that, where judgments are to be made, I will
make those judgments based solely on the law and I will not let personal, political, or other

improper interests influence my decision.
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Third, I would like to briefly address the memorandum that I wrote last June. I wrote the
memo as a former attorney general who has often weighed in on legal issues of public
importance, and I distributed it broadly so that other lawyers would have the benefit of my
views. My memo was narrow, explaining my thinking on a specific obstruction of justice
theory under a single statute that I thought, based on media reports, the special counsel

might be considering.

The memo did not address or in any other way question the special counsel's core
investigation into Russian efforts to interfere in the election, nor did it address other
potential obstruction of justice theories or argue, that some have wrongly suggested, that a
president can never obstruct justice. I wrote it myself on my own initiative, without any

assistance, and based solely on public information.

I would like to comment very briefly on my priorities if confirmed as attorney general. First,
we must continue the progress we've made on violent crime while at the same time
recognizing the changes that have occurred since I last served as attorney general. The
recently passed First Step Act, which Iintend to diligently implement if confirmed,
recognizes the progress we have made over the past three decades in fighting violent crime.

As attorney general, I will ensure that we will continue our efforts to combat violent crime.

In the past, I was focused on predatory violence, but today I am also concerned about
another kind of violence. We can only survive and thrive as a nation if we are mutually
tolerant of each other's differences, whether they be differences based on race, ethnicity,
religion, sexual orientation or political thinking and yet, we see some people violently
attacking others simply because of their differences. We must have zero tolerance for such

crimes, and I will make this a priority as attorney general if confirmed.

Next, the department will continue to prioritize enforcing and improving our immigration
laws. As a nation, we have the most liberal and expansive immigration laws in the world.
Legal immigration has historically been a huge benefit to this country. However, as we open
our front door and try to admit people in an orderly way, we cannot allow others to flout our

legal system by crashing in through the back doors. In order to ensure that our immigration
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system works properly, we must secure our nation's borders and we must ensure that our

laws allow us to process, hold, and remove those who unlawfully enter.

Finally, in a democracy like ours, the right to vote is paramount. In a period of great political
division, one of the foundations of our nation is our enduring commitment to the peaceful
transition of power through elections. If confirmed, I will ensure that the full might of our
resources are brought to bear against foreign persons who unlawfully interfere in our
elections. Fostering confidence in the outcome of elections also means ensuring that the

right to vote is fully protected, as well as ensuring the integrity of elections.

Let me conclude by making the point that over the long run, the course of justice in this
country has more to do with the character of the Department of Justice as an enduring
institution than with the tenure of any particular attorney general. Above all else, if
confirmed I will work diligently to protect the professionalism and integrity of the
department as an institution, and I will strive to leave it and the nation a stronger and better

place.

Thank you very much for your time today, and Ilook forward to answering your questions.

GRAHAM:

Thank you, Mr. Barr. We'll try to break around 11:30, I think, to get a quick bite and break
up the day for you. But one thing I want to tell you is that I support the idea that politicians,
no matter what party, should not interfere with criminal investigations. That makes
imminent sense to me. Once you go down that road, then the rule of law collapses. But
there's another side to this equation, if I may say, a two-way street. What about those in
charge of enforcing the law? What about those with the power to bring charges against
American citizens, including people up here? I remember Senator Stevens' case in Alaska.
So we should always be on guard about the politician interfering in a investigation, but we
should also have oversight of how the department works, and those with this tremendous
power use that power. Are you familiar with the January 11 New York Times article about

FBI open inquiry into whether Trump was secretly working on behalf of Russians?
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BARR:

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:
Would you promise me and this committee to look into this and tell us whether or not, in the
appropriate way, a counterintelligence investigation was opened up by somebody at the

FBI/Department of Justice against President Trump?

BARR:
Yes, Mr. Chairman, I think there are a number of investigations, as I understand it, going on

in the department.

GRAHAM:
Have you ever heard of such a thing in all the time you've been associated with the

Department of Justice?

BARR:

I have never heard of that.

GRAHAM:

Are there rules about how you can do counterintelligence investigations?

BARR:

I believe there are, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

So if you want to open up one against the president, are there any checks and balances?
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BARR:
Not outside the FBI.

GRAHAM:

Okay, well we need to look at that. In terms of people who are actually enforcing the law,

don't we want to make sure they don't have an agenda?

BARR:
That's right, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Do you know a Lisa Page or Peter Strzok?

BARR:

I've heard their names.

GRAHAM:

But do you know them personally?

BARR:
No, Idon't.

GRAHAM:

This is a message, August 8, 2016, a text message. Trump's not ever going to become
president, right? Right. Strzok responded, no, no, he's not. We'll stop him. Strzok was in
charge of the Clinton email investigation. Ms. Page worked in the Department of Justice.
August 15,2016, I want to believe the path you threw out for consideration in Andy's office

that there is no way he gets elected, but I'm afraid we can't take that risk. It's like an
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insurance policy in the unlikely event you die before 40. March 4, 2016, Page to Strzok,
God, Trump is a loathsome human being. October 20, 2016, Trump is an f-ing idiot, is
unable to provide a coherent answer. To all those who enforce the law you can have any
opinion of us that you like, but you're supposed to do your job without an agenda. Do you
promise me, as attorney general, if you get this job, to look in to see what happened in

20162

BARR:

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

How do these statements sit with you?

BARR:

I was shocked when I saw them.

GRAHAM:
Okay. Please get to the bottom of it. I promise you we will protect the investigation, but
we're relying upon you to clean this place up. FISA warrants. Are you familiar with the FISA

warrant?

BARR:

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Okay. During the process of obtaining a warrant is there a certification made by the

Department of Justice to the court that the information being provided is reliable?

BARR:
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Yes, sir.

GRAHAM:

Are you familiar with Bruce Ohr?

BARR:

No, I'm not.

GRAHAM:

Bruce Ohr was associate deputy attorney general for organized crime and drug

enforcement. His wife worked at Fusion GPS. Are you familiar with Fusion GPS?

BARR:

I've--yes, I've read about that.

GRAHAM:

Fusion GPS, Mr. Barr, was hired by the Democratic National Committee and the Clinton
campaign to do opposition research against candidate Trump, and maybe other candidates,
but we now know that they hired, Fusion GPS, Michael Steele, who is a former British agent,
to do opposition research and produce the famous dossier. Are you aware that Mr. Ohr's

wife worked for that organization?

BARR:
I've read that.

GRAHAM:
Does that bother you, if he had anything to do with the case?

BARR:
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Yes.

GRAHAM:

Are you aware that on numerous occasions he met with Mr. Steele while his wife worked

with Fusion GPS?

BARR:
I've read that.

GRAHAM:

Okay. The warrant certification against Carter Page, on four different occasions certifies
that the dossier, which was the main source of the warrant, was reliable. Would you look in
to see whether or not that was an accurate statement and hold people accountable if it was

not?

BARR:

Yes, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Mueller. You say you've known Mueller a long time. Would you say you have a close

relationship with Mr. Mueller?

BARR:

I would say we were good friends.

GRAHAM:

Would you say that you understand him to be a fair-minded person?

BARR:
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Absolutely.

GRAHAM:

Do you trust him to be fair to the president and the country as a whole?

BARR:
Yes.

GRAHAM:

When his report comes to you, will you share it with us as much as possible?

BARR:

Consistent with the regulations and the law, yes.

GRAHAM:

Do you believe Mr. Mueller would be involved in a witch-hunt against anybody?

BARR:

I don't--I don't believe Mr. Mueller would--would be involved in a witch-hunt.

GRAHAM:

What are the circumstances that would allow a special counsel to be appointed, generally

speaking?

BARR:

Well, I appointed three, Mr. Chairman, as special counsel. And generally, when something
comes up, an issue comes up that needs to be investigated, and there are good reasons to
have it investigated by a special counsel outside the normal chain at the department,

someone usually of public stature that can provide additional assurance of nonpartisanship.
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GRAHAM:

Do you believe that Attorney General Sessions had a conflict because he worked on the

Trump campaign?

BARR:
I'm not sure of all the facts, but I--I think he probably did the right thing recusing himself.

GRAHAM:
I agree. I think he did the right thing to recuse himself. Do you know Rod Rosenstein?

BARR:
Yes, I do.

GRAHAM:

What's your opinion of him?

BARR:

I have a very high opinion of Rod Rosenstein and his service in the department.

GRAHAM:
Okay. Why did you write the memo?

BARR:

I wrote the memo because starting, I think, in June of 2017, there were many news reports--
and I had no facts, and none of us really outside the department have facts--but I read a lot
of news reports suggesting that there were a number of potential obstruction theories that
were being contemplated, or at least explored. One theory, in particular, that appeared to be

under consideration under a specific statute concerned me because I thought it would
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involve stretching the statute beyond what was intended, and it would do it in a way that
would have serious adverse consequences for all agencies that are involved in the
administration of justice, especially the Department of Justice. And I thought it would have
a chilling effect going forward over time. And my memo is very clear that is the concern that
was driving me. The impact, not the particular case, but its impact of a rule over time. And I
wanted to make sure that before anyone went down this path, if that was in fact being
considered, that the full implications of the theory were carefully thought out. So I wanted
my views to get in front of the people who would be involved and the various lawyers who

would be involved in those discussions.

So I first raised these concerns verbally with Rod Rosenstein when I had lunch with him
early in 2008, and he did not respond and was sphinx-like in his reaction, but I expounded
on my concerns. And then I later attempted to provide a written analysis as follow up. Now I
initially thought of an op-ed, and because of the material it wasn't working out, and I talked
to his staff, and I said you know I want to follow up and send something to Rod in writing,
but is he a one-pager kind of guy, or, you know, how much will he read? And the guy said,

he--he's like you. He doesn't mind waiting into a dense legal INAUDIBLE)--

GRAHAM:

Don't you think President Trump is a one-pager kind of guy?

BARR:

Excuse me?

GRAHAM:

President Trump is a one-pager kind of guy?

BARR:

I suspect he is.
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GRAHAM:

Okay, just remember that. Go ahead.

BARR:
Yeah.

(LAUGHTER)

And so I provided the memo to Rod, and I provided it, distributed it freely among the other
lawyers that I thought would be interested in it. And I think it was entirely proper. It's very
common for me and for other former senior officials to weigh in on matters that they think
may be ill-advised and may have ramifications down the road. For example, just a few
months before that, I had weighed in repeatedly to complain about the idea of prosecuting
Senator Menendez. I think I made three calls. I think it was two to Sessions, to AG Sessions,

and one to Rosenstein.

Now, I didn't know Senator Menendez. I don't represent Senator Menendez. No one was
paying me to do it. And in fact, I don't support Senator Menendez politically. But I carefully
watched this case. My friend, Abbe Lowell, was his defense counsel, and it was very much
like a line of cases that I had been concerned about when I was AG. And so I was watching it,
and I thought the prosecution was based on a fallacious theory that would have bad long-
term consequences. And so I freely weighed in at the department, and I did so because I

care about the rule of law.

And I want to say one final thing on the rule of law because it picks up on something you
said, Mr. Chairman. What is the rule of law? We all use that term. In the area of
enforcement, I think the rule of law is that when you apply a rule to A, it has to be the same
rule and approach you apply to B, C, D, and E and so forth. And that seems, to me, to
suggest two corollaries for an attorney general. The first, that's why we don't like political
interference. Political interference means that the rule being applied to A isn't the rule

ou're applying to every--it's special treatment because someone is in there exertin
y pplying y p g
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political influence. The corollary to that--and this is what you're driving at, Mr. Chairman--is
that when you apply a rule--when a prosecutor is applying a rule to A, you've got to be
careful that it's not torqued specially for that case in a way that couldn't be applied down the
road, or if it is applied will create problems down the road. And I think the attorneys

general's job is both.

It is both to protect against interference, but it's also to provide oversight to make sure that
in each individual case the same rule that would be applied broadly is being applied to the

individual.

GRAHAM:
(OFF-MIC)

FEINSTEIN:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Six quick yes or no questions. Will you commit to no interference

with the scope of the special counsel's investigation?

BARR:

I--I will--the scope of the special counsel's investigation--

FEINSTEIN:
By not limiting--

BARR:
--is--1s set by his charter and--and by the regulations and I will ensure that those are

maintained.

FEINSTEIN:
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Will you commit to providing Mr. Mueller with the resources, funds and time needed to

complete his investigation?

BARR:
Yes.

FEINSTEIN:

Will you commit to ensuring that Special Counsel Mueller is not terminated without good

cause consistent with department regulations?

BARR:

Absolutely. If Special Counsel Mueller makes any request for instance--instance about the
scope of his investigation or resources for his investigation will you commit to notifying

Congress if you deny that request?

BARR:

I think--I think the regulations require notification of Congress if there is a disagreement.

FEINSTEIN:

Thank you. And I have two questions from the chairman of the House Judiciary Committee.
Will you commit to making in the report Mueller produces at the conclusion of his

investigation available to Congress and to the public?

BARR:

As I--as I said in my statement [ am going to make as much information available as I can

consistent with the rules and regulations that are part of the special counsel regulations.

FEINSTEIN:

Will you commit to making any report on the obstruction of justice public?
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BARR:

I--that's the same answer. Yes.

FEINSTEIN:

Thank you. In your June 2, 2018, memo about obstruction of justice to the Mueller
investigation you repeatedly referred to Mueller's quote sweeping and all-encompassing
interpretation of section 1512 which is the st--a statute on obstruction. How do you know

what Mueller's interpretation of 1512 is?

BARR:

Well, as I said [ was--I was speculating. I freely said at the beginning I was writing in the
dark and we're all in the dark. Every lawyer, every talking head, everyone who thinks about

or talks about it doesn't have the facts.

FEINSTEIN:

So I spent my Saturday reading that memorandum--

BARR:
--Yeah.

FEINSTEIN:

So are you saying this is all your speculation? It's a big memo.

BARR:

Well, it--it was informed to the extent that I I thought that that was one of the theories being
considered. And I don't know how seriously whether it was being considered or how
seriously it was being considered. But I, as a shorthand way in the memo of referring to
what [ was speculating might be the theory I referred to it as Mueller's theory rather than go
in every time I mention it say well, this is speculative.
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FEINSTEIN:

But do you know what Mueller's interpretation of 1512 is?

BARR:
No, I don't know what Mueller's interpretation. But and just one point, senator, I think you
said in your opening statement I said he was grossly irresponsible. I think I said if something

happens it would be grossly irresponsible. I was not calling Mueller grossly irresponsible.

FEINSTEIN:
I understand. Thank you.

BARR:
Okay.

FEINSTEIN:

I appreciate that. Has anyone given you nonpublic information about Mueller's

investigation?

BARR:

I don't--I don't recall getting in the confidential information about the investigation.

FEINSTEIN:

Your 2018 mem--in it you stated and I quote the framers' plan contemplates that the
president's law enforcement powers extend to all matters including those in which he had a

personal stake end quote. Please explain what you base this conclusion on.

BARR:
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Y--yes. Here's the Department of Justice right here and within the Department of Justice,
enforcement decisions are being made. The president is over here and I think of it as there

are two categories of potential communications.

One would be on a case that the president wants to communicate about that he has no
personal interest in, no political interest in. Let's say the president is concerned about
Chinese stealing trade secrets and say I want you to go after this company that's being--you
know that may be stealing trade secrets. That's perfectly appropriate for him to do, to

communicate that.

But whether it's bona fide or not the Department of Justice's obligation and the attorney
general's obligation is not to take any action unless we reach--we, the Department of Justice
and the attorney general, reach their own independent conclusion that it is justified under
the law and regardless of the instruction and that's my quote that everyone is saying I am I'm
siccing (SP)--it's okay for the president to direct things. All I said was it's not per se improper
for the president to call on the department for doing something especially if he has no

personal or political interest in it.

The other category of cases and let's pick an easy bad example would be if a member of the
president's family or a business associate or something was under investigation and he tries
to intervene. He--he's the chief law enforcement officer and you could say well, he has the
power but that would be a breach of his obligation under the Constitution to faithfully

execute the laws.

So in my opinion if he attempts--if a president attempts to intervene in a matter that he has a
stake in to--to protect himself that should first be looked at as a breach of his constitutional
duties whether it also violates a statute depending on what statute comes into play and what

all of the facts are.

FEINSTEIN:

Including the emoluments clause of the Constitution?
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BARR:

I--well, I think there's a dispute as to what the emoluments clause relates to. I--I have not
personally research the emoluments clause. I--I can't even tell you what it says at this point.
My--off the top of my head I would have said well, emoluments are essentially a stipend
attached to some office but I don't know if that's correct or not. But I'm sure it's--I think it's

being litigated right now.

FEINSTEIN:
I'm going to--I don't know why there--so I'm going to try and find out. We'll come back

another day--

BARR:
Okay.

FEINSTEIN:

--and maybe discuss it. Your memo stated a fatal flaw in Mueller's interpretation of 1512 (c)
(2), is that while the findings obstruction solely as acting corruptly. Mueller offers no
definition of what corruptly means. My understanding is that there's nothing in the public

record that sheds light on his definition of obstruction. Do you know what his definition is?

BARR:

I--I don't know what his definition is. I--I read a book where people were asking whether
someone I think--I don't know if it was accurate but whether someone the president was
acting with corrupt intent and--and what I say in my memo is actually people don't

understand what the word corruptly means in that statute.

It's an adverb and it's not meant to mean with a state of mind. It's actually meant the way in
which the influence or obstruction is committed. That's its adverbial function in the statute

and what it means is using it in the 19th century sense. It meant to influence in a way that
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changes something that's good and fit to something that's bad and unfit namely the
corruption of evidence or the corruption of a decision maker. That's what the word corruptly
means because once you dissociate it from that it really means very hard to dis--discern

what it means. It means bad. What does bad mean?

FEINSTEIN:

Let me go on because my time is so limited. You argue that the--and I quote the
Constitution's plenary grant of those powers to the president also extends to the unitary
character of the executive branch itself. Specifically, you argue and this is a quote while
Mueller's immediate target is the president's exercise of his discretionary powers, his
obstruction theory reaches all exercises of prosecutorial discretion by the president's

subordinates from the attorney general down to the most junior line prosecutor end quote.

So if the president orders the attorney general to halt a criminal investigation for personal

reasons would that be prohibited under your theory?

BARR:
Prohibited by what?

FEINSTEIN:
By--

BARR:

The Constitution?

FEINSTEIN:

The Constitution.

BARR:
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I think it would be--I think it would be a breach of the president's duties to faithfully execute
the law. It would be an abuse of power. Whether it would violate a statute depends on all of
the facts and what statute I would--someone would cite me to. But I certainly think it would

be an abuse of his power. And--and let me just say that the position--

FEINSTEIN:
Would that be the same thing if an attorney general fired U.S. attorneys for political

reasons?

BARR:

No, because U.S. attorneys are political appointments.

FEINSTEIN:

According to news reports President Trump interviewed you and asked you to be part of the
legal team defending him in the Mueller investigation twice, first, in the spring of '17 when

the investigation was just beginning and again earlier this year. Is that correct?

BARR:

No--no. He--he, I had one conversation with him that related to the--his private
representation and I--I can describe that for you. That was--that was in June 2017. That's
the only time I met him before I talked to him about the job of attorney general which

obviously is not the same as representing him.

FEINSTEIN:

Have you discussed the Mueller investigation with the president or anyone else in the White

House?

BARR:
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I discussed the Mueller investigation but not--not in not in any particular substance. I can go

through my conversations with you if--if you want.

FEINSTEIN:

Well, not--not at this time but I may come back to you--

BARR:
Okay.

FEINSTEIN:

--and ask you about that. I don't want to take any more time. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Senator Grassley.

GRASSLEY:

Before I asked my first question, and I don't want you to respond to this, I just want you to
know what my interest is in the transparency of the Mueller report, when we spend $35, I
don't know whether it's $25 million or $35 million, the taxpayers, that's billions of dollars,
the taxpayers ought to know what their money was spent for. So if you've got some
reservations of the of some part of it not being public, I hope that that's related to traditional
things that--of the public's business that shouldn't be public, like national security, as an
example, not being made public. But beyond that, the only way I know for the taxpayers to
hold anybody that spends the taxpayer's money responsibly is through transparency

because that brings accountability.

My first question in, as you would expect from our conversation in my office, '86 Reagan
signed the False Claims Act. I worked hard to get that passed, especially provisions

empowering whistleblowers to help government identify fraud. More than a decade ago,
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you said the qui tam provisions in the False Claims Act were, your words, an abomination
and were unconstitutional. You said you, in your words, wanted to attack the law but the

Supreme Court upheld the law's constitutionality.

Prosecutors from both sides of the aisle have praised the law as the most effective tool
government has to detect and actually recover public money lost to fraud since 1986. The
law that was fast in 1986 brought in $56 billion into the federal treasury. Most of that is
because patriotic whistleblowers found the fraud and brought the case to the attention of

the government. Is the False Claims Act unconstitutional?

BARR:
No, senator. It's been upheld by the Supreme Court.

GRASSLEY:

Do you consider the False Claims Act to be an abomination?

BARR:
No, Idon't.

GRASSLEY:
Does the False Claims Act benefit the taxpayer, specifically its provisions to empower and

protect whistleblowers?

BARR:

Yes, senator.

GRASSLEY:

If confirmed, do you commit to not take any action to undermine the False Claims Act?
Further, if confirmed, will you continue INAUDIBLE) Justice Department staff and funding
levels to properly support and prosecute False Claims Act cases?
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BARR:
Yes. I'will diligently enforce the False Claims Act.

GRASSLEY:

Now, with all those positive answers, you think I'd be done, wouldn't you, with that? But let

me go on.
(LAUGHTER)

Now, just to show you that there is some forces out there that I'm suspicious about within
the Department of Justice, we have a new department of justice and guidance document out
last year known as the Granston memo, provides a long list of reasons that the department
can use the dismiss False Claims Act cases. Some of them pretty darn vague, such as
preserving, these--these are their words, preserving government resources. Just think of all

the mischief those three words can bring.

Of course, the government can dismiss, obviously, meritless cases. I don't argue with that.
But even when the department declines to participate in False Claims Act cases, the
taxpayer can, in many cases, still recover financially. So it's important to allow
whistleblowers to pursue cases even when the department is unable to be involved. Under
what circumstances can or should the Justice Department move to dismiss false claims

cases?

BARR:

Senator, I haven't reviewed that memorandum, so I'm not familiar with the thinking of the
people in this--I think it's the civil division that did that. But if I'm confirmed, I will review it
and I am--I would be glad to come and sit down with you and discuss it and if there are areas

you're concerned about, I'd be glad to work with you on that.

GRASSLEY:
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Unless you find that my presumption is wrong, that there's reasons to be suspicious, I hope
you'll take into consideration my feeling about how, in various suspicious ways, people that
are faceless bureaucrats can undermine this effort. In circumstances where the government
doesn't intervene in false claims cases, if confirmed, will you commit to ensuring the

department doesn't unnecessarily dismiss false act cases?

BARR:

Yes, senator. I will--I will enforce the law in good faith.

GRASSLEY:

Okay. Now, got an act that the Justice Department just talk, and I can't, obviously, expect
you to respond specifically to their act, but I use it as an example of their un-cooperation
with Department of Congressional Oversight. This uncooperative behavior needs to
change. On December 10 last year, the department confirmed a briefing for your staft
regarding Assets Forfeiture Fund. And to do that, last week, January 8, on January 7,
Department of Justice office of legal, or legislative affairs, informed our staff that they will
no longer provide the briefing because they consider the matter closed as a result of the
change in chairmanship and because you released a public memo, because I released a
public memo, on the Marshall service study, or investigation. It's important to gain your

commitment on how you would handle this as an example.

Let me explain how ridiculous it is to get somebody in this administration saying that they
don't have to answer if you are chairman of the committee. We went through this in January,
the first month this president this was in office when he said, or he put out a memo, we aren't
going to answer any oversight except for chairman of the committee. So you're going to

write off 500 members of Congress not doing oversight.

So we told him all about this and the coast constitutional cases on this, we got them up, they
wrote a memo again two months later that said that they were going to respond to all the

stuff. Now you've got people in the bowels of the bureaucracy that are--they're still saying if
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you want to chairman, you ain't going to get an answer to anything. How ridiculous. It's our

constitutional response ability.

So then Ilaid out, I'll give you an example. I sent the Justice Department a classified letter
regarding information acquired from the Justice Department Inspector General report on
the Clinton investigation. The department ought to answer for what the attorney inspector
general has found, but I haven't heard to heat people, not a peep, on that yet. On December
10, the Justice Department, well, I'm repeating here, so the question is do you understand
that if you are confirmed, you have an obligation to ensure the Justice Department and,
particularly, the FBI as a problem, respond to congressional inquiry, and to do it in a timely

manner?

BARR:

Absolutely, senator.

GRASSLEY:
Do you understand that this obligation applies regardless of whether you're a member of

Congress or a committee chairman?

BARR:

Yes, senator. You know, you and Senator Leahy, I think, are the only members of the
committee now who are were here 27 years ago when [ was first confirmed. But I think you
will recall that we were able to--we were able to establish very cooperative and productive
relationships with all the members and try to respond to their questions and deal with their
concerns and work with them on projects they are interested in and that will be the same

approach that I will bring to the job if you confirm me.

GRASSLEY:
Okay. Then let me be specific on my last question on oversight. You remember when you are

in my office, I gave you as I gave Attorney General Sessions, as I gave Holder a long list of
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things that the department has not answered. And one of these was an October 17,2018
letter. And--and I'd like to have your response to answering that letter and respond all

outstanding and future oversight requests in a timely manner.

And then remember, I said all you cabinet people come up here to tell us yes when we ask
you if you're going to answer our stuff. I said maybe you better say maybe. So if you want to
save maybe now and be really honest, say maybe. Otherwise I hope you'll answer that

October 17 letter once we get you voted into office.

BARR:

Yes, senator.

GRASSLEY:

Throughout your career, you've expressed concerns with congressional attempts to enact
criminal justice reform and, at times, advocated for stricter mandatory minimum sentences.
And '92, under your direction, the DOJ published a report entitled The Case For More
Incarceration. This report declared that the problem with our criminal justice system was

that we were incarcerating too few criminals.

More recently, in 2015, you signed a letter opposing the Sentencing Reform and
Corrections Act of 2015. This letter states quite clearly your opposition to sentencing
reform, particularly the lessening of mandatory minimum sentence as any sort of
retroactivity. The First Step Act was signed by President Trump. As attorney general, it will
be your job to implement the legislation even though you've opposed criminal justice reform

in the past. Will you commit to fully implementing the First Step Act?

BARR:

Yes, Senator. But I--I--you know, in 1992 when I was attorney general, the violent crime
rates were the highest in American history. The sentences were externally short, typically,
in--in many states the time served for--for rape was three years, for murder, time served five
to seven years. It was--the system had broken down and I think, through a series of
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administrations, Reagan, Bush, and Clinton, the laws were changed and we targeted
violent, chronic violent offenders, especially those using guns, and I think the reason the

crime rate is much lower today is because of those policies.

So I don't think comparing the policies that were in effect in 1992 to the situation now is--is
really fair. And I think, and I've said, that right now we have greater regularity in
sentencing, there's broader recognition that chronic violent offenders should be
incarcerated for significant periods of time to get them off the streets, and I think the time
was right to take stock and make changes to our penal system based on current experience.
So I have no problem with the approach of reforming the sentencing structure, and I will

faithfully enforce that law.

GRASSLEY:

Don't take it personally if I raise my voice to you. I'm not mad at you.

(LAUGHTER)

GRAHAM:
If I were you, I'd answer his letters just as INAUDIBLE)--

(LAUGHTER)

--a tip that may help you through your job, if you get it. I'll take the time away from my
second round. I'm very curious about the conversations you had about personal
representation being attorney general. You mentioned it to Senator Feinstein. Can you just

kind of give us a summary of what you were talking about?

BARR:

Yeah, so in June of 2017, middle of June, Ambassador David Friedman, who is the U.S.
ambassador to Israel, who I didn't know--I knew that he was a top-tier lawyer in New York
and apparently a friend of the president's. He reached out to me, and we talked one evening,

and he said that he--well, my understanding was he was--he was interested in finding
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lawyers that could augment the defense team. And failing that, he wanted to identify
Washington lawyers who had exper--you know, broad experience that--whose perspective
might be useful to the president's. And he asked me a number of questions like, you know,
what have you said about the president publicly, do you have any conflicts, and so forth. And
I told him that I didn't think I could take this on, that I had just taken on a big corporate
client that was very important to me and I expected a lot of work. And I said at my point in
life I really didn't want to take on this burden and that [ actually preferred the freedom to
not have any representation of an individual but just say what I thought about anything

without having to worry about that.

And I said that I--my wife and [ were sort of looking forward to a bit of respite and I didn't
want to stick my head into that meat grinder. He asked me if I would nonetheless meet, you
know, just briefly go over the next day to meet with the president. And I said sure, I'll go and
meet with the president, and he brought me over and was squeezing me in. It looked to me
like it was before the morning staff meeting because people were grouping by the door to get
in, and I went in. And he was there, the ambassador was there, sat through the meeting. It
was a very brief meeting where essentially the president wanted to know--he said oh, you
know Bob Mueller. How well do you know Bob Mueller? And I told him how well I knew Bob
Mueller and our--and how, you know, the Barrs and Muellers were good friends and would
be good friends when this is all over, and so forth. And he was interested in that, wanted to
know, you know, what I thought about Mueller's integrity and so forth and so on. And I said
Bob is a--is a straight shooter and should be dealt with as such. And he said something to the
effect like, so are you envisioning some role here? And I said, you know, actually, Mr.
President, right now is--I couldn't do it. You know, I just--my personal and my professional
obligations are such that I'm unable to do it. So he asked me for my phone number. I gave it

to him, and I never heard from him again until--

GRAHAM:
Well, I tried that once.

(LAUGHTER)
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GRAHAM:
You did better than (INAUDIBLE).

BARR:

Well, I didn't hear--hear from him until, you know, later, but about something different,

which was the attorney general position.

GRAHAM:
(OFF-MIC)

LEAHY:

Thank you. Mr. Barr, good to see you again w--As you mentioned Senator Grassley and I

were here at your hearing a number of years ago. Let me go back even before that.

46 years ago I wasn't on the Senate. [ was state's attorney in Vermont and I watched with a
great deal of interest the Elliot Richardson hearings; he had been nominated to be attorney
general amidst of Watergate. He made several commitments to the committee including
appointing a special prosecutor and he promised to protect his independence. And I as one
who had total independence as elected prosecutor in Vermont, I thought how important it

was to have that same independence at the national level.

And Mr. Richardson said it was necessary to create the maximum possible degree of public

confidence in the integrity of the process. I've never forgotten that.

I think the integrity of our institutions is just as much at risk today. President Trump has
made it clear he views the Justice Department as an extension of his political power. He's
called on it to target his opponents. He obsesses over the Russian investigation which looms
over his presidency, may define it. He attacks the special counsel almost daily. He fired both
the previous FBI director and attorney general for not handling the investigation as he
pleased.
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That tells me the rule of law can no longer be taken for granted. So if confirmed the
president is going to expect you to do his bidding. I can almost guarantee you he will cross
the line at some point. That's why the commitments you make here today just like those I

watched Elliot Richardson make years ago matter greatly.

So will you commit if confirmed to both seeking and following the advice of the
Department's career ethics officials on whether you must recuse from the special counsel's

investigation?

BARR:

I--Twill seek the advice of the career ethics personnel but under the regulations, I make the
decision as the head of the agency as to my own recusal. So I--I certainly would consult with
them and at the end of the day,  would make a decision in good faith based on the laws and

the facts that are evident at that time.

LEAHY:

Same thing if you are talking about a conflict of interest?

BARR:

Well, no. Some conflicts as you know are--are mandatory.

LEAHY:

I'm thinking of what Attorney General Sessions when asked a similar question he said he
will seek and follow the advice, seek and follow the advice of the Department of Justice's

designated ethics officials. So let me ask you maybe in a different way.

I know you promise to not interfere with the special counsel. Are there any circumstances
that would cause you to terminate the investigation or any component of it or significantly

restrict its funding?
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BARR:

Under the--under the regulations, Bob Mueller could only be terminated for good cause and
I--frankly it's unimaginable to me that Bob would ever do anything that gave rise to good
cause. But in theory if--if something happened that was good cause for me it would actually
take more than that. It would have to be pretty grave and the public interest would
essentially have to compel it because I believe right now the overarching public interest is to

allow him to finish.

LEAHY:
I--Twould agree with that but I also think over the past 18 months you have rather harshly

prejudged the investigation in some of your writings.

BARR:
Well I--1, you know, I--I don't see that at all, senator. When you strip away a lot of the
rhetoric the two things that have been thrown up as me sort of being antagonistic to the

investigation are two things.

One, a very mild comment I made that gee, I wish the team had been more balanced. I
wasn't criticizing Mueller. I believe that prosecutors and I think he would agree, they can
handle the case professionally whatever their politics are. They--you know, a good
prosecutor can leave their politics at the door and go in and do the job and I think that's what

Justice Department prosecutors do in general.

LEAHY:

But you also are very critical--

BARR:
But--
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LEAHY:

--of the Russian probe and I mean I can't think of anything that would--in your memo for
example that would jump about more for this president because of his commitment to it. I
ask that because some have said on both sides of the aisle that it looked like a job applica--

application and so that's what I want you to refer to.

BARR:
Well, you know that's ludicrous. If I wanted the job and was going after the job there are
many more direct ways of me bringing myself to the president's attention than writing an

18-page legal memorandum--

LEAHY:

Or--or criticize--

BARR:

--sending it to the Department of Justice and routing it to other--

LEAHY:

But also publicly criticizing the Russian probe.

BARR:

How have I criticized the Russian po--probe?

LEAHY:

You don't have any criticism of the Russian probe?

BARR:
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Not at all. I think I--I believe the Russians interfered or attempted to interfere with the

election and I think we have to get to the bottom of it.

LEAHY:

So you would be in favor of releasing the investigative report when it's completed?

BARR:

As I've said I'm in favor of as much transparency as there can be consistent with the rules

and the law.

LEAHY:

Do you see a case where the president could claim executive privilege and say that parts of

the report could not be released?

BARR:

Well, I don't have a clue as to what would be in the report. The report could end up being
you know, not very big. I don't know what's going to be in the report. In theory if--if there
was executive privilege material to which an executive privilege claim could be made it

might ca--you know someone might raise a claim of executive privilege.

LEAHY:
That would be pretty difficult following U.S. versus Nixon when the Supreme Court

unanimously rejected President Nixon's claims of executive privilege over the Watergate
tapes. But I--I ask because the presidents attorney, Mr. Giuliani, said the president should

be able to correct the Mueller report before any public release.

So, in other words, he could take his investigative report, put his own spin on it and correct it

before it's released. Do you commit that would not happen if you are attorney general?

BARR:
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That will not happen.

LEAHY:

Thank you. You had--when you're AG, I remember this well because I was here in the Senate
at the time you encouraged President George H. W. Bush to pardon all six individuals who
were targeted Iran-Contra. The independent prosecutor investigating the matter labeled

that a cover-up.

Now you and I talked about this in my office and I appreciate you coming by. I found the
conversation the two of us had to be well worthwhile. Do you believe a president could

lawfully issue a pardon in exchange for the recipient's promise to not incriminate him?

BARR:

No, that would be a crime.

LEAHY:

Thank you. In 1990 you argue that Congress appropriation power is not an independent
source of congressional power to control the allocation of government resources. Only three
committees in the Senate have a vice chairman, appropriations one of them. Obviously, as

vice chairman I kind of looked at that.

You claim if a president finds no appropriated funds within a given category, he may use
funds from another category as long as both categories are in his constitutional purview.

Now this is vice chairman of Appropriations Committee don't be surprised I disagree.

Congress has power of the purse Article 1 Section 9. I believe Constitution is one of the
fundamental and foundational checks and balances on the Executive Branch. So do you
believe the president can ignore Congress appropriations allocations, conditions and

restrictions in law, just ignore them and take the money and--

BARR:
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Not--not as a general proposition. But I do--that--that was a--

LEAHY:
A general prop--

BARR:

I actually thought that was a good law review article. I gave it as a speech and it was really a
thought piece and what I was really saying was and I say right up front that the more I
thought about the appropriations power, the more confused I got and I was just laying out a-
-a potential template which is this. People frequently say you know the power to spend
money on this division or this missile system is part of the power of the purse and what I was
actually saying was you know actually what right--what the power being exercise there is the
substantive power that the Congress has to raise armies and--and it's not--it doesn't come

from the power of--

LEAHY:
It also has specific appropriations on agriculture or on (INAUDIBLE). I mean, for example,
could a president just build a wall along our southern border because he wanted to and just

take the money whether appropriated or not? What about eminent domain?

BARR:

What about eminent domain?

LEAHY:

Well, if you're going to build a wall you've got to take a whole lot of land away from

landowners--

BARR:
No.

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 47/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028019


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

3/18/2019 cQ

LEAHY:

--in Texas and elsewhere.

BARR:
Well, you know, you'd have to show me what statute is being invoked and also what

appropriations is being used. I--I can't answer that in the abstract.

LEAHY:
So you're saying the president though can have the power to go into money even if the

Congress has appropriated it for a different purpose?

BARR:
No, I-- didn't say that. But some appro--

LEAHY:

Do you mean that?

BARR:
No, I don't mean that. I'm saying that you know there are monies that the president may

have power to shift because of statutory authority.

LEAHY:

But that would have been because Congress gave him that authority.

BARR:
Right.

LEAHY:
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Not because he has it automatically.

BARR:

I'm-- I'm not taking that position because I said my--my law review, it was published as a law
review article and it was a thought piece exploring what limits there might be to the
appropriations power and what--where--where Congress's power comes from in certain

areas.

LEAHY:
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Just a follow up on that, real quick, and I won't take this against Senator Cornyn. Did the
Article 2 powers, the inherent authority of the commander-in-chief, give him the ability to

take appropriated dollars from the Department of Defense and build a wall?

BARR:

I can't an--without looking at the statute, I really couldn't answer that.

GRAHAM:

I'm not talking about a statute. I'm talking about the inherent authority of the president as

commander-in-chief.

BARR:
That's the kind of question I would go OLC to answer.

GRAHAM:
Okay. Get back with us on that. Senator Cornyn.
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CORNYN:

Well, Mr. Chairman, let me congratulate you on your election as chairman of the Judiciary
Committee and tell you we look forward to working with you and supporting this
committee's efforts. Thank you for convening today's hearing. And I want to express my
profound and sincere thanks to the nominee, Mr. Barr, for agreeing to serve a second time
as attorney general. I noted in your statement you said it was 27 years ago that you sat in this
chair and went through your first confirmation hearing. And to me, that says a lot about your
character and your commitment to the rule of law that you would be willing to go through
this process again and serve, once again, as the chief law enforcement officer of the--of the

country. Thank you for doing that.

BARR:

Thank you, senator.

CORNYN:

Thank you to--thank you to your family, as well. To me, the attorney general is one of the
most challenging cabinet offices to hold because, as you point out in your opening
statement, you are committed to the rule of law and enforcing the laws of the land, but you
are also a political appointee of a president. If you are serving another cabinet position,
certainly you're committed to implementing the president's agenda or the agenda of an
administration, but as attorney general that is not an unequivocal commitment because
there may be some things that the administration wants you to do that you cannot do

consistent with the rule of law, correct?

BARR:

That's right, senator. One of the reasons I ultimately decided that I would accept this
position, if it was offered to me, was because I was--I feel that I'm in a position to be
independent. You know, over the years a lot of people have--some politicians have called me

up saying, you know, I'm thinking of going for the attorney general position in this
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administration and so forth, and I say you're crazy because if you view yourself as having a
political future down the road, don't take the job because if you take this job, you have to be
ready, you know, for--to make decisions and spend all your political capital and have no
future because you have to do--you have to have that freedom of action. And--and I feel I'm
in a position in life where I can do the right thing and not really care about the consequences

in the sense that I don't--I can truly be independent.

CORNYN:
Mr. Barr, thinking back about the run up to the 2016 election where the nominee of both
political parties for president of the United States ended up being investigated by the FBI,

can you think of any precedent in American history where that's occurred that you know of?

BARR:

No, I can't, senator.

CORNYN:

And thinking back to James Comey's press conference of July 7, 2016, where he took the
step of talking about the evidence against Mrs. Clinton, talking about the legal standard that
would apply as to whether she might or might not be indicted for committing a crime under
the Espionage Act, have you ever seen a situation where an FBI director would usurp the
authority of the Department of Justice to make that charging decision, and hold a press
conference, and talk about all of the derogatory information that the investigation had
gleaned against a potential defendant, and then say now we're--we're not going to--no
reasonable prosecutor would indict her? Have you ever seen anything like that happen

before?

BARR:

No, I've never seen that, and I thought it was a little bit--more than a little bit--it was weird
at the time, but my initial reaction to it was I think Attorney General Lynch had said
something--you know, she was under pressure to recuse herself, I think because of the so-
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called tarmac meeting, and I think she said something like she was going to defer to the FBI.
So my initial reaction to that whole thing was, well, she must have agreed, or it must have
been the plan that he was going to make the decision and go out and announce his decision,

but--

CORNYN:

Under the normal rules, if the attorney general has a conflict of interest--

BARR:
It would go to the deputy.

CORNYN:
It would go to the deputy.

BARR:

Correct.

CORNYN:

Not to the FBI director to make that decision, correct?

BARR:

Right. So that's why I thought it was very strange, but I think later it became clearer, to the
extent there is anything clear about it, that I don't think Attorney General Lynch had
essentially delegated that authority to the director. And I think Jim Comey is a, as I've said,
is an extremely gifted man who has served the country with distinction in many roles. But I
thought that to the extent he actually announced a decision was wrong. And the other thing
is, if you're not going to indict someone, then you don't stand up there and unload negative

information about the person. That's not the way the Department of Justice does business.
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CORNYN:

I was shocked when Mr. Comey later wrote a letter saying that based on the discovery of
Clinton emails on the Weiner laptop that they were reopening the investigation that he get
already announced closed. And then finally, just days before the general election,
November 6, 2016, said we didn't find anything in the--on the laptop that would change my
conclusions based on the press conference of July 6. Did you likewise find that to be an

extraordinary--I would use the word bizarre--but certainly unprecedented event?

BARR:

Yeah, the whole sequence, though, was very herky-jerky and bizarre. But at that time I was a
little over contrarian in that I basically took the position that once he did what he did in July
and said the thing was over and then found out it wasn't over, he, you know, he had no
choice but to correct the record. So I said that he had no choice but to do what he did. But it
sort of shows you what happens when you start disregarding the normal procedures and

established practice, is that you sort of dig yourself a deeper and deeper hole.

CORNYN:
Why is it that the Department of Justice rules, which also apply to the FBI, make it clear that

our chief law enforcement agencies in this country should not get tangled up in election
politics? Are there policies in place that try to insulate the investigations and the decisions of

the Department of Justice and FBI from getting involved in elections?

BARR:

Yes, senator, there are.

CORNYN:
And why--why is that?

BARR:
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Well, obviously because the incumbent party has their hands on the le--among other
reasons, they have their hands on the levers of the law enforcement apparatus of the

country, and you don't want it used against the opposing political party.

CORNYN:

And that's what happened when the counterintelligence investigation of the Trump
campaign began in late July and continued on through--well, presumably to Director

Comey's firing and beyond.

BARR:

Well, I'm not in a position to, you know, make a judgment about it because I don't know
what the predicate was for it. I--I--I think I said, you know, it's strange to have a
counterintelligence investigation of a president, but I'm not-- you know, I just don't know

what the predicate is, and if I'm confirmed, I assume I'll find out.

CORNYN:
Rod Rosenstein's memo recommending the termination of James Comey as FBI director
was dated May 9, 2017. It's entitled, "Restoring Public Confidence in the FBIL." I take it

you've read the memo, and do you agree with its conclusion?

BARR:

I completely agree with Rod Rosenstein. And I thought the important point he made, from
my standpoint, was not the particular usurpation that occurred, but it was, as I think he says,
that Director Comey just didn't recognize that that was a mistake. And--and so it was going
to potentially be a continuing problem that his appreciation of his role, vis-a-vis the attorney

general.

CORNYN:
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As I said, the title of the memo is, "Restoring Public Confidence in the FBI." Do you agree
that restoration of public confidence in the FBI and Department of Justice as a political or

nonpolitical law enforcement organization is important--

BARR:

It's critical.

CORNYN:

--and needed?

BARR:

It's critical, and that's one of the reasons I'm sitting here. I'd like to help with that process.

CORNYN:
Well, Mr. Barr, I think you're uniquely qualified to do that, and I wish you Godspeed.

BARR:

Thank you, senator.

CORNYN:

It couldn't be more important. Thank you.

BARR:
Thank you.

DURBIN:

Mr. Barr, we've never had a chance to meet, but I welcome you to this committee.

BARR:
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Thank you.

DURBIN:

You seem like a rational person. I'd like to ask you a question. When you consider what Jeff
Sessions went through as the attorney general for President Donald Trump, where he was
subjected to unrelenting criticism, primarily because, as a matter of conscience, he decided
he had a conflict of interest and should remove himself from any decisions by the special
counsel concerning the Russia investigation, when you consider that this president has
lashed out on a personal basis against federal judges who ruled against his administration,
when you consider the criticism which he has leveled at the chief law enforcement
investigative agency of the Department of Justice, the FBI, as well as our intelligence
agencies, when you see the exit lanes glutted of those leaving the White House at every

single level, why do you want this job?

BARR:

Well, because I love the department, I love--and--and all its components, including the FBI.
I think they are critical institutions that are essential to preserving the rule of law, which is
the--the heartbeat of this country. And I'd like to think that--that there was bipartisan
consensus when I was last in this position that I acted with--with independence and
professionalism and integrity and I had very strong and productive relationships across the
aisle, which--which were important, I think, to trying to get some things done. And I feel
that I'm in a position in life where I can provide the leadership necessary to protect the

independence and the reputation of the department and serve in this administration.

DURBIN:

A number of my colleagues on both sides have asked, and I bet you will hear more,
questions along the line of what would be your breaking point, when would you pick up and
leave? When is your Jim Mattis moment when the president has asked you to do something
that you think is inconsistent with your oath? Doesn't that give you some pause as you

embark on this journey?
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BARR:

It might give me pause if [ was 45 or 50 years old, but it doesn't be pause right now because
I--Thad--I had very good life, I have a very good life, I love it, but I also want to help in this
circumstance and I am not going to do anything that I think is wrong and I will not be bullied
into doing anything I think is wrong by anybody, whether it be editorial boards or Congress
or the president. I'm going to do what I think is right.

DURBIN:

You have a very nice family behind you.

BARR:
Thank you.

DURBIN:

I'm glad you introduced them.

BARR:

Thank you, senator.

DURBIN:

And I don't want to give your grandson any career advice. He's received quite a bit this
morning already, but he ought to consider, at least for some balance, being a public

defender.
(LAUGHTER)

One of the things that you alluded to as a major issue of concern is immigration. I'm glad
you said it. Our government is set shut down now over the issues of border security and
immigration, and the attorney general plays a central role, which many people don't know as
they look at the Department of Homeland Security for most of the action on the issue of
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3/18/2019 cQ
immigration. I was surprised at the exit interview by General Kelly when he said, and I'm
paraphrasing, that Attorney General Sessions was responsible for the zero-tolerance policy
that was announced in mid-2018 and that it was because of that policy, that was one of the
reasons why he was being asked to leave. That's the first I'd ever heard. Are you familiar

with the zero-tolerance policy?

BARR:

Generally, senator, yes.

DURBIN:

I can tell you that he was an effort to take escorted children, infants, toddlers, and children,
and forcibly remove them from their parents at the border. This policy by our government
separated up to 2,800 of those children and put them into the system, the same system as
unaccompanied children. The results were horrible. I saw them firsthand. And you have
alluded in your opening statement to stopping people from crashing through the border,
breaking and flouting the laws. Those young children, for the most part, were being brought
to this country by their parents to seek asylum. You can present yourself at America's border

and seek asylum legally, can you not?

BARR:

Yes, senator. You can.

DURBIN:
So separating those children from their parents in an effort, as Attorney General Sessions
explained, to get tough with families presenting themselves at the border, was a policy

decision on his part. Do you agree with that policy decision?

BARR:
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Well, I'm not sure I know all the details because one of the disadvantages I have is I'm not in
the department and--and--and don't really have the same backing I did in terms of
information that I had last time. But my understanding is that DHS makes the decision as to
who they're going to apprehend and hold. Now, you can claim asylum, but that doesn't

mean you can waltz into the country freely.

DURBIN:

No, of course not.

BARR:

Okay. And you have to be processed. And my understanding is a majority of people do not
qualify for asylum. But DHS makes the decision who to hold and--and charge with a crime
of illegal entry and then they refer it to the Department of Justice. And I believe the
department's policy when they say--when the department says a zero tolerance, they're
saying whatever DHS refers to us in the way of illegal entry prosecutions, we'll prosecute.
Now--now what is being done, because I think the administration is has change the policy, is
DHS is not referring for prosecution family units that would lead to the separation of

children from the family unit.

DURBIN:

It is true that the president and the administration abandoned the policy after there was a
public reaction to the separation of these children. I'm concerned, I want to go back to your

University of Virginia Miller Center speech, which is--

BARR:

It's a gem, isn't it?

(LAUGHTER)

DURBIN:
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It's a classic. And it goes back many years, but you described your previous tenure as the
attorney general and you said, "After being appointed, I quickly developed some initiatives
on the immigration issue that would create more border patrols, change immigration rules,
streamline processing. It would furthermore put the Bush campaign ahead of the
Democrats on the immigration issue, which I saw as extremely important in 1992. I felt that
a strong policy on immigration was necessary for the president to carry California, a key

state and the election." That's a pretty revealing statement about a political agenda.

BARR:

Yeah, and there's nothing wrong with that because as--as I've said, you know, the attorney--
and--and I've spoken on this a number of times, there's sort of three roles the attorney
general plays. One is the enforcer of the law, and that, the role of the attorney general, is to

keep the enforcement process sacrosanct from political influence.

The second one is as legal advisor. And that is in the Judiciary Act of 1789, legal advisor to
the president and the cabinet. And there I say the attorney general's role is to provide, you
know, unvarnished, straight from the shoulder legal advice as to what the attorney general
believes is the right answer under the law. And then the third role is the policy role, which is
law enforcement policy, which includes immigration policy, and there you are a political
subordinate of the president. And it's okay to--to propose policies that are politically

advantageous.

DURBIN:
Well--

BARR:
--But I have to say that, you know, that was casual conversation. The point was I was
pursuing a strong immigration policy even when I was deputy long before, you know, the

election was on the horizon. And in traveling around the country, visiting the border, paying
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a lot of visits to California, I saw how important the issue was and I thought the

administration had to be more responsive to it. And yes, there was a political benefit to it.

DURBIN:

Ijust have a short time left. The chairman, our new chairman, congratulations, Graham,
noted 10 years of work by a number of us on this committee on a bipartisan basis to deal
with criminal sentencing and prison reform, and the First Step Act signed by the president
around Christmas, I think, is a significant departure. I learned, as many have, that the
approach, the get tough approach that we imposed with 100 to 1 sentencing disparity

between crack and powder didn't work, did not work.

The number of drugs being sold on the street increased. The price of the drugs went down.
The people being incarcerated went up dramatically and we learned the hard way that was
not the way to deal with the issue, and now we're trying to clean up 10 years later or more,

25 years later from the 100 to 1 disparity.

I voted the one the wrong way on 100 to 1. Now I know, in retrospect. You've made some
hardline statements about this issue in criminal sentencing in the past and many of us

believe, on a bipartisan basis, we've got to look at this anew and not repeat these mistakes
again. So I would like to hear your assurance that you are--you have learned as I have that
there's a better way, could be a more effective way, and that, as attorney general, you will

help us implement the First Step Act and design the second step.

BARR:

Absolutely, senator. From my perspective, the very draconian penalties on crack were put
into place initially because when the crack epidemic first hit it was like nuclear weapons
going off in the inner city. And--and as I think you'll recall, a lot of the community leaders at

that time were saying you've got to, you know, this is killing us. You have to do something.

So the initial reaction of draconian penalties was actually, you know, trying to--trying to

help those communities. And over time and now, the same leaders are saying to us this has

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 61/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028033


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4
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been devastating. You know, generation after generation of--of our people are being
incarcerated--have been incarcerated and lost their lives because of this and--and--and you
have to change the policy. And--and--and I think that that is--we should listen to the same

people we were listening to before.

I--I supported generally strong penalties on drugs because, not just crack, because I felt the
money involved was so high that, you know, you needed something to counteract that. I also
said repeatedly over the years of the drug war that I felt that the head of the snake is outside
the country and the place to fight this aggressively is at the source more than on the street
corner. And I used to say we could, you know, stack of generation after generation of people

in prison and it'll still keep on coming.

And so I always felt that--and--and I support a adjustment to these sentences and the safety
valve and so forth. To me, the corollary is we have to really start thinking and using all our
national forms of power in--in the sense of our diplomacy and our--and our, you know,
economic leverage and so forth to get better results overseas. So for example, now, fentanyl
is sort of the new crack, fentanyl and fentanyl analogues are sort of the new crack and

they're coming in from China. So--

DURBIN:

--Across the Mexican border.

BARR:

Correct.

DURBIN:
At ports of entry, 90 percent.

BARR:
Mm-hmm. So that's a long-winded answer to your question, which is I understand that
things have changed since 1992. I--1, you know, I held on a little bit longer to keeping strong
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sentences, maybe, than others. Part of that was I wasn't involved in the business anymore. I
wasn't at Justice Department looking at up reports and studies learning about different
things in the country. I was, you know, arguing with the FCC about telecommunications

rules. So--

GRAHAM:

--Mr. Barr?

BARR:

Yes?

GRAHAM:

That was a great answer and it was long-winded.

BARR:
Okay.

(LAUGHTER)

GRAHAM:

Senator Lee.

LEE:
Mr. Barr--

GRAHAM:
--After this, we'll break till 12:15 for lunch and kind of a break.

LEE:
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3/18/2019 cQ
Mr. Barr, thank you very much for your willingness to spend time with us today and your

willingness to be considered for this important position yet again.

BARR:
Thank you.

LEE:

Great to have your family here. And I can't help but comment. A lot of people have talked
about Liam today, probably more than any of his other friends or classmates, people of his

age cohort. People are thinking about what he might do for a living.
(LAUGHTER)

Unlike some of my colleagues who have suggested medicine, I want to just sort of suggest
what I've suggested to my three children, which is that I'm not going to push them into any

career choice, which in our family means that you can be any kind of lawyer you want.
(LAUGHTER)

Just keep that in mind with Liam. I'd like to talk to you first about civil asset forfeiture. As
you know, civil forfeiture and criminal forfeiture are two very different things, two very
different species of government taking someone's asset. With criminal forfeiture, of course,
the government's ability to take something away is predicated upon a conviction of a crime.
With civil asset forfeiture that happens even in the absence of a conviction. There are some
serious questions, of course, regarding the legality and the constitutionality of civil asset
forfeiture, and Justice Thomas, for example, has questioned whether some of these
practices are constitutional. I was encouraged to note that in your testimony in 1991 you
identified this as an issue when you testified before this committee. You criticized what you
described as the speed trap mentality of forfeiture. Your point was that, quote, agencies
should not feel that just because they seize money they are going to get the money, close

quote.
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3/18/2019 cQ
Now since 1991, I've seen our government, our law enforcement agencies, actually move
more toward this sort of speed trap mentality rather than away from it, as many of us would
have preferred. Too often, law enforcement agencies have too strong an incentive to use
civil asset forfeiture in a way that lines their own coffers outside of the relevant
appropriations process. So let me just ask you the question, do you--do you think that the
speed trap mentality is a problem? And if so, is that something that you'll work to address

within the Department of Justice if you're confirmed?

BARR:

Yes, I think constant vigilance is necessary because, you know, there are incentives there
that should be of concern in--in--in administering the law. And I understand that there are
some horr--you know, people who are concerned about it, have some horror stories. The
people at the Justice Department have been trying to clamp down. I think Attorney General
Sessions put out some guidelines that were supposed to address that. I haven't gotten into it
myself. I plan to get into it and see exactly, you know, what the horror stories are, where the
problems and potential abuses are, and also how--whether Attorney General Sessions'

guidelines are providing sufficient protection.

At the same time, you know, I think it is a valuable tool in law enforcement, and the state
and local law enforcement officer--are partners. It's very important to them. So I want to
make sure we strike the right balance, and once I have a chance to review it, I'd be glad to

come up and talk to you about that.

LEE:

Thank you. I appreciate that.  understand that it's a tool that many consider valuable, and--
but a tool that can be considered valuable for some of those same reasons. Something that's
considered valuable to the government can, in many instances, jeopardize an individual
right that is protected under the Constitution. We've got to be careful of that. You refer to
the partnership that sometimes takes place between state and federal authorities. This is

sometimes where we see it abused. In the case of a procedure known as equitable sharing,
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3/18/2019 cQ
where sometimes state law might prohibit the use of civil asset forfeiture under certain
circumstances, and in those circumstances those state law enforcement agencies might
work with federal law enforcement for the specific purpose of evading state law that would

otherwise prohibit that. So I hope that's something you'll look into, as well.

BARR:
Yes.

LEE:

Let's talk about antitrust for a minute. Along with Senator Klobuchar I chair the Antitrust
Subcommittee, and as I'm sure you're aware, there are a growing number of people who
take the position, who embrace the viewpoint that we should use antitrust law to address a
whole host of social and economic harms to, among other things, to ensure that company's
respect the First Amendment, or to prevent large companies from becoming too big, or to
shape labor markets, or to conform industries to a particular aesthetic, or achieve some
other broadly-defined social interest. I'd like to know what your view on--is on this. Are you
a believer in the sort of big is bad mentality, or do you gravitate more toward the idea that
our antitrust laws are there to protect consumers and should focus on consumer welfare and

prices that consumers face?

BARR:

Yes, I mean generally that's where I stand, which is the purpose of the antitrust laws,
obviously, is to protect competition. And the competition--it is competition that ultimately
redounds to consumer benefits. At the same time, I'm sort of interested in stepping back
and reassessing, or learning more about how the antitrust division has been functioning and
what their priorities are. I don't think big is necessarily bad, but I think a lot of people
wonder how such huge behemoths that now exist in Silicon Valley have taken shape under
the nose of the antitrust enforcers. And they're--you know, you can win that place in the
market--in the marketplace without violating the antitrust laws. But I--I want to find out

more about that dynamic.
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LEE:

Right. Yeah, and in some circumstances a company that becomes too big ends up behaving
in a way and exerting market dominance in a way that impairs consumer welfare anti-
competitively. In other circumstances consolidation can bring about lower prices and

increased competition. I assume you wouldn't disagree with either of those statements.

BARR:

No, senator.

LEE:

As you know, and as several of my colleagues have mentioned, President Trump signed into
law the First Step Act about a month ago. This is legislation that I applaud and legislation
that I have been working on in one way or another for eight years, and was pleased to team
up with Senator Grassley, Senator Durbin, Senator Booker and others to work on that over
the course of many years. As you know, the attorney general has an important role under the
First Step Act in appointing members to something called the Independent Review
Commission. That Independent Review Commission will make recommendations
concerning which offenders might be eligible for earned credits under this legislation and
which programs will be approved. When we drafted this legislation there were some
members who were concerned that whoever was the attorney general at the time of this
law's passage and implementation might be able to undermine the effectiveness of this law
by appointing members who didn't agree with or believe in the objectives of the bill. So will
you commit to me, Mr. Barr, that you will appoint people to that Independent Review
Commission who are honest brokers to decide which offenders should be eligible and which

programs should be eligible to participate?

BARR:

Yes, senator.
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LEE:

Thank you. Are you familiar with the Ashcroft-Sessions policy, namely the policy requiring

prosecutors to charge the most significant, readily approvable offense?

BARR:

Yes, senator.

LEE:

Tell me how that should best be balanced out with the discretion of a prosecutor, most

frequently, of course, with the discretion of a local U.S. attorney's office?

BARR:

Well, I was going to say I think the best way of balancing it out is to have a supervisor who is
able to approve departures from that policy based on the specific circumstances, and there
are countless different, you know, permutations of facts that might justify a departure from
it. So I think it's best handled by supervisory people. But I also think it has to be looked at
centrally. I'm not saying that each case has to be approved centrally, but there has to be
some monitoring of what's going on because, as you know, one of the things that led to the
sentencing guidelines was, you know, just difference--big differences in the way the laws
were being applied and enforced around the country. And I think we need to try to strive for

as much uniformity as we can.

LEE:

But you intend to continue that policy?

BARR:
Yes.

LEE:
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And--

BARR:

Unless someone tells me a good reason not to.

LEE:
If I'm understanding you correctly, you're saying that if you do follow it, you will defer to the
judgment of the office in question in the case of determining when to not charge the most

serious, readily approvable offense?

BARR:

No, I mean I won't defer to my subor--I mean, I'm not going to say yeah, [ will defer to my
subordinates. I mean usually you do defer to your subordinates, but there might be a case I

disagree with, and I'll assert myself on it.

LEE:

Okay. I see my time has expired. Thank you, sir.

GRAHAM:

Thanks, Senator Lee. We'll take a recess to 12:15 and start with Senator Whitehouse when

we come back.

GRAHAM:

The hearing will come to order and I recognize Senator Whitehouse. Thank you, Mr. Barr.

WHITEHOUSE:

Thank you, chairman. This is my first chance at a committee hearing to congratulate you on

taking the gavel here. We worked well together when you were Chairman of the Crime and
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3/18/2019 cQ
Terrorism Subcommittee and I hope that that will continue here. Mr. Barr, welcome. Did

you make it a condition of taking this job that Rod Rosenstein had to go?

BARR:
No.

WHITEHOUSE:

Just to be clear so we are not bandying words here, did you request or signal or otherwise

communicate in any way that you wanted Rod Rosenstein to go?

BARR:

No. The president said that the decision on--on the deputy was mine. Any--anything I

wanted to do on the deputy was mine.

WHITEHOUSE:

So we will find no William Barr fingerprints on Rosenstein's departure?

BARR:

No. I--Rod and I have been talking, you know, about his plans. He told me that he viewed it
as a two-year stent and would like to use, if I'm confirmed, my coming in as an occasion to
leave. But we talked about the need for a transition and I asked him if he would stay for a
while and he said he would. And--and--and so as of right now, I would say there's no--he has

no concrete plans, I have no concrete plans in terms of his departure. We're going to sort of

play--

WHITEHOUSE:

--And you were not going to--

BARR:
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--It by ear and make see what makes sense.

WHITEHOUSE:

And you have not undertaken to run him out in any way?

BARR:
Absolutely not.

WHITEHOUSE:

That leaves an opening at the DAG position whenever you work this out. Can you tell us,
since attorneys general are very often defined by the immediate appointments around them
at chief of staff, DAG, criminal chief, what are the characteristics and qualifications that you

will seek as you fill, particularly that position, but all three that I mentioned?

BARR:

I'm sorry, the deputy and what was the other one?

WHITEHOUSE:

Deputy chief of staff and criminal chief.

BARR:

There is already a criminal chief.

WHITEHOUSE:

I know, yeah. There's always already a deputy attorney general, but he's leaving.

BARR:

Well, for a deputy, I'd like someone who's a really good manager and who has had good

management experience running government programs and I want a first-rate lawyer and
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someone [--whose judgment I feel comfortable in.

WHITEHOUSE:

Experience in the department?

BARR:

Not necessarily, but--but--but experience in government at--at a high level.

WHITEHOUSE:

When we met, I gave you a letter that you've seen just so none of these questions would be a
surprise, so I hope it is no surprise to you that I'm going through some of them. If you're
confirmed, what will be the department's rule regarding communications between White
House and Department of Justice officials regarding criminal and investigative matters?
Who at DOJ will be allowed to have those conversations with the White House and who at

the White House will you entertain those conversations from a DOJ?

BARR:

So I, you know, I've looked through the existing regime and by instinct is to keep it, maybe
even tighten it up a little bit more. I--I remember when George W. Bush's administration
was coming and my advice was start tight and then, as you realize who has judgment and so

forth, you--you can go back to a--

WHITEHOUSE:

--They went the other way and it was a bad day for Attorney General Gonzales in the
hearing room when that was brought to his attention. What is your understanding right now
of who at the Department of Justice is authorized to have communications with the White

House regarding investigations?

BARR:
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Well, it depends--it depends what it is, but on--on criminal matters, I would just have the AG

and the deputy.

WHITEHOUSE:

And what you think the rule is now in the department?

BARR:
I think that's what it is.

WHITEHOUSE:

Okay. So if the reports are true that, as chief of staff, Mr. Whitaker was involved in
conversations with the White House about bringing criminal investigations against the
president's political enemies, that would not be consistent with your understanding of that

policy?

BARR:
Well, it would depend upon, you know, what--what his understanding is with the attorney

general, I mean the--

WHITEHOUSE:

--Well the attorney general was recused, soit's hard to step into the shoes of a recused

attorney general on that matter, right?

BARR:

Well, I don't know what the communications were related to. I'm not really sure what you're

talking about.

WHITEHOUSE:
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Okay, well I hope you'll become sure when you get there because there is a fair amount of, I
think, questionable behavior that have gone on that does not reflect well on the department
that I hope will get your attention. I also asked you about the special counsel investigation
and to give us a clear exposition of how that memo came to be, who you talk to, when, who
was involved in it, there were number of questions in that letter that at this point you have

not answered.

You have, I gathered, told the chairman the names of some dozen or so people whom you
contacted. As Tunderstand it, once the memo was written, but it's not clear, do you have any
objection to answering the questions that I wrote as questions for the record so that the
committee can understand who you worked with, who you talked with about this idea, who
you work with in preparing the memo, who helped you with things like citations, the people
at your level don't often do yourselves, and where it was circulated and vetted and what

edits were made and so forth?

BARR:

No, I have no objection to that.

WHITEHOUSE:
Great.

BARR:
But I--

WHITEHOUSE:
--We'll let that keep--

BARR:
--Just to--just to be clear, no one else may write the memo and I know how to do legal

citation, which I do.
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WHITEHOUSE:

Yeah, well a lot of people know how but that doesn't mean they always do it.

BARR:
Idoit. Idid.

WHITEHOUSE:
Okay.

BARR:
Okay.

WHITEHOUSE:
You might want to get out of that habit.

(LAUGHTER)

You may have other things to look at.

BARR:

I'd like to have some fun in life.

WHITEHOUSE:

In--if you think citations are fun, you're going to--
(LAUGHTER)

You're not going to have the problem some other nominees have had. My letter to you also
asked about the Bork order that set out a series of protections for the then independent
counsel operation. Do you have any objection to any of those rules or principles applying

and should see those rules and principles, which I gave to you then, as being more or less
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adopted into the statement that you made earlier about your protection of the Mueller

investigation from political interference?

BARR:

You know, I looked at them. I--I think the current regime is--is what I'm happy with. In other
words, I wouldn't--I wouldn't change the current rule that we are--those rules were put in
place at the end of the Clinton administration and--and sort of, I think, reflects the back on
back experience of the Reagan-Bush years and in the Clinton years and then sort of Justice
Department's thinking under the Clinton administration as to how to balance all the

equities. And I think it's working well. So that's--that's--

WHITEHOUSE:

--Well anything that you would disagree with in the so-called work rules, I'd ask you to

explain that in a--in a QFR.

BARR:

In a follow-up?

WHITEHOUSE:

In a follow-up.

BARR:
Okay. Okay.

WHITEHOUSE:

Also in my letter to you, I expressed my concern that Mr. Whitaker was paid $1.2 million
through what I consider to be a front group that has very little reality to it and that the
funding that came to that front group to pay him the million dollars came through another

entity that is essentially an identity laundering operation that has no independent business
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operation. And result of all of this is that somebody out there arranged to get over $1 million
to Mr. Whitaker and we have no idea who that somebody is. And as I mentioned to you in
our conversation, I don't see how the department can do a proper recusal and conflict
analysis for somebody when the player who delivered the million dollars is still hidden

behind the curtain. Is that something that you will help us fix?

BARR:

Well first, you know, I--I don't think there was anything wrong done for at least--

WHITEHOUSE:

--Well, we don't know that yet because we don't know with the facts are.

BARR:

Yeah, well I'm just saying just the facts that you said, you know, doesn't necessarily mean
there was anything wrong done. What you're saying is that if the ultimate financial backers
are behind some entity and the current ethics laws require only the reporting of the entity,
you're not really sure where the--the money is coming from. And that, you know I--I think
that that raises a very interesting point that I think I would like to review with the ethics
people and experts and even OGE to talk about that because I--the more I thought about it,
the more I thought that the trick is going to be deciding what kind of entities and how far

back you go because that can be said of a lot of different kinds of entities.

WHITEHOUSE:
Yeah.

BARR:
And--and--

WHITEHOUSE:
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--I would submit to you that--

BARR:

--Sometimes you have first--

WHITEHOUSE:

--If the department's money laundering folks looked at this operation, they would see it as
almost amateurish and simple and something quite easy to penetrate and it would be quite
easy, simply, to ask Mr. Whitaker what he knew, to ask whoever is at fact if it even has any
existence with Whitaker's departure what they knew, and to ask donor's trust to cough up
the identity of the donor and then you can do your homework. And if they refused to do
that, nothing guarantees anybody a job at the highest levels of government who's not willing

to provide those disclosures.

BARR:

Well as I said, you know, one of my first considerations always is where do you--where do
you draw the line, and also what are the implications for other kinds of entities because, you
know, they're membership groups and first amendment interests and you don't want to

disclose memberships and whose--

WHITEHOUSE:

--Yeah, and my point was I think if your money laundering folks took a look at that, they'd be
able to help show that this is something that looks a little bit different than that. My time has

expired. And I'll see you on the second round. Thank you.

GRASSLEY:

Senator Sasse.

GRAHAM:
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I believe Senator Ernst is filling in for Senator Cruz next.

UNKNOWN:

Thank you, chairman.

UNKNOWN:
Okay with me.

ERNST:

Thank you. Mr. Barr, I want to commend you for stepping forward. Thank you very much.
And I want to say thank you to your family, as well, for being so supportive in this endeavor.
I'm really pleased to have all of you here. So thank you for doing that. Mr. Barr, later this
month I do plan on reintroducing Sarah's Law, which is a bill that would require the
detention of illegal aliens who have been charged with a crime that resulted in the death or
serious injury, bodily injury, of another person. Now that sounds pretty common sense, but
I'll give you a little background. This bill is named after Sarah Root. She was a resident of
Council Bluffs, Iowa, and Sarah was killed by an illegal alien who was driving drunk. And
that alien had a blood alcohol content of more than three times the legal limit, yet he was
allowed to post bond and has not been seen since. It's important to me that Congress act to
close these loopholes in our immigration system and do better to enforce the laws that are

already

existing on the books. And I know that Attorney General Sessions, he had a real passion for
this. And he had a strong record of trying to make sure that we're correcting wrongs in the
system. How do you, as attorney general, plan on making sure that we are restoring the rule

of law in our immigration system?

BARR:

Well, first that sounds like a very commonsensical bill--
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ERNST:
Thank you.

BARR:

--and something that I would certainly be inclined to support. I think one of our major
problems, as the president says, is that the immigration laws just have to be changed and to
provide sensible and commonsense ways of processing immigration and claims of asylum.
Right now--this goes--this goes all the way--this goes back 27 years. We were facing exactly
the same kind of problem, maybe on a smaller scale. But Congress has to--where people are
abusing the asylum system, coming in, they're being coached as to what to say, and then
once they come in we don't have the facilities to keep them, and they're released into the
population. And this was a big abuse, as I say, 27 years ago, and it's getting--and it's gotten
worse. So we need to change the laws to stop that kind of abuse and enable us to run a lawful
immigration system where we process people into the country who are entitled to come into
the country, and we keep out those that are flouting our laws. And it's long overdue. And the

president

is right that until--until we're able to do that, we're just not going to be able to get control

over illegal immigration. And it creates a lot of unsafe conditions for many people.

ERNST:
Absolutely. And I appreciate your thoughts on that. This is a very important issue. I think all

of us understand that immigration is so vital to our country, but it has to be done in the right
manner. And for those that are causing bodily injury and death to those here in the United
States, we want to make sure that they are brought to justice. And in this case, that illegal

undocumented was not brought to justice. And I feel a lot of empathy for that family.

I'll move into another situation that's really important to lowans. According to the U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, after drug dealing, human trafficking is tied
with arms dealing as the second-largest criminal industry in the world. And it generates
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about $32 billion each year. The Department of Justice has said that 83 percent of sex
trafficking victims identified in the United States are U.S. citizens with the average age of a
victim being between 12 and 14 years, 12 and 14 years. Since 2007 there have been over
300 cases of human trafficking in Iowa alone, and Iowa is a very rural state. 300 cases,
that's very concerning to my constituents back home. What do you see as the main
contributor to human trafficking here in the United States? And then how can the DO]J

impact, and combat and prevent those heinous crimes?

BARR:

This is a--this is an area that, frankly, wasn't very much on the radar scope of the
Department of Justice when I was last there. I know it's--and it's an abhorrent area of
criminality, and I know the department and Attorney General Sessions have been focused
on and have put in place various programs and entities within the department to focus on it
and work with state and local law enforcement on it. I'm not sure what the major contributor
toitis. It's an area that I'm going to have to study when I get into the department and see

what are the factors contributing to it.

ERNST:

Okay. I appreciate that. And as I mentioned in my question, as well, drugs and drug
trafficking, that is also a very, very big industry. And in fiscal year 2017, 65 percent of drug-
related prison sentences in lowa were related to methamphetamine. We talk a lot about the
opioid crisis, but in Iowa it still is meth. In 2016 Iowa reported over 1500 founded child
abuse reports relating to methamphetamine being found in the child's body. According to
the DEA, most of the meth available in the United States is being produced in Mexico and
smuggled across our southern border. How do you see the situation at our southern border

contributing to the prevalence of controlled substance use here in the United States?

BARR:
Well, it's been pointed out earlier, it is the major avenue by which drugs come into the

country. Heroin, fentanyl, all the serious drugs are coming across that border. And again, I
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feel it is a critical part of border security that we need to have barriers on the border. We
need a barrier system on the border to get control over the border. And I think obviously
there are some places that more of the traffic comes over than others, but unless you have a
system across the border, you're not going to be able to deal with it because you'll just
displace it. If you build a barrier in one place, you'll just displace it to another. So we need a
barrier system across the border to--part of that is illegal immigration, but a big part of it

also is preventing the influx of drugs.

ERNST:
Absolutely. And you stated earlier that really the head of the snake lies outside of the United

States. Is there a way that DOJ can be working with additional ideas, methodology with
other departments that you might think would help?

BARR:

Yes, you know this is an area, again, because I'm out of the government I don't know how it's
functioning, how the drug war is being coordinated, but I think justice can play a big role in
pushing for partners like the State Department, Defense Department, the intelligence
agencies and so forth, to--to help deal with this. It's not, to me, not just a law enforcement

problem; it's a national security problem.

ERNST:

And you mentioned, as well, the situation on the border where we do need barriers in place
to control the influx of, whether it's drugs, human trafficking, gun trafficking, so forth. Do

you believe that sanctuary cities play a role in harboring some of those activities?

BARR:

Yes, I do. I think there are a number of sort of--you know, of factors that have a hydraulic
affect in that they pull people into the United States, or induce them to make, you know,
take the hazards of coming into the United States, coming up hundreds of miles through
Mexico and so forth. And things like sanctuary cities where they feel that they'll be able to
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come up and hide and be protected is one of those factors that I think is irresponsible
because it attracts the illegal aliens coming in. And obviously, I think that the main problem
with sanctuary cities is that they're not giving us information about criminals that they have
in their custody. This is not chasing after, you know, families or anything like that. This is
going after criminals who the state, local law enforcement have in custody, and not allowing
us to take custody of them and get them out of the country. That's the problem with

sanctuary cities.

ERNST:
Correct, which could be the situation with Edwin Mejia who killed Sarah Root. So we would

love to see that young man brought to justice. Thank you very much for your time.

GRAHAM:

Thank you. Just follow up on that with Senator Klobuchar. Don't count this against her time.

GRAHAM:
So you are saying that you want access to people who have committed crimes or accused of

committing crimes outside of a status violation? Is that what--

BARR:
That--that's right, senator.

GRAHAM:

Senator Klobuchar.

KLOBUCHAR:
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Barr. I take it as a positive that your grandson has gotten out a

pen, a pen and a pad of paper to take notes during my questions.
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(LAUGHTER)

I also impressed by your daughters in that they all chose to go into public service but as you
know employees at the Justice Department now are either furloughed or they are working
without pay and I've talked to a number of them at home and it's an outrage. Very briefly

what do you have to say to them?

BARR:
I--I would--I would like to see a deal reached whereby Congress recognizes that it's
imperative to have border security and that part of that border security as a common-sense

matter needs barriers.

KLOBUCHAR:

And you are aware that in the comprehensive Senate immigration bill that we passed there

was literally billions of dollars for border security back in 2013?

BARR:

I'm generally aware of that.

KLOBUCHAR:

And that also we had an agreement earlier last year which would allow the dreamers to stay

legally that also had money for border security?

BARR:

The point is we need money right now for border security--

KLOBUCHAR:

Yes, but we have--

BARR:
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--including a--including a barriers and walls and slats and other things. Anything that makes

sense in--in different areas of the border.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay, in different areas. That's a good point. So President George H.W. Bush said back in

1980 that he didn't want to see six and eight-year-old kids being made to feel that they are
living outside the law and you were his attorney general. He also said that immigration is not
just a link to America's past but it's a bridge to America's future. Do you agree with those

statements?

BARR:
Yes, I think--I think as I said I think legal immigration has--we have a great system potential.
I think it needs reforming but legal immigration has been good for the United States. It's

been great for the country.

KLOBUCHAR:

And that's why we were trying to work on that comprehensive reform. [ want to just briefly

turn to FBI leadership.

The president has made statements accusing the FBI of making politically-motivated
decisions, many of us up here and in the Senate have confidence in Director Wray and the
leadership at the FBI and believe they can do their jobs without politics getting in the way.
Do you agree with that?

BARR:
I'm--I'm looking if I'm confirmed I'm looking forward to getting to know Chris Wray. From

what I know I think very highly of him.

KLOBUCHAR:
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Okay, thank you. In the memo from back in June the one comment that Senator Grassley
made, he talked about how much the Mueller investigation was costing and actually did a
little googling here and there was a CNBC report that it actually could bring in more money
than it costs because of the wealthy people being prosecuted, that Manafort's assets could
be well over $40 million. I don't know if that includes that ostrich jacket. But do you think

that's possible based on your experience with white-collar crime?

BARR:

I--I don't know enough about it.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay. The--in your memo you talked about the--the Comey decision and you talk about
obstruction of justice and you already went over that which I appreciate. You wrote on page

1 that a president persuading a person to commit perjury would be obstruction. Is that right?

BARR:
That--y--yes.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay.

BARR:

Any--any, well any person who persuades another yeah.

KLOBUCHAR:
You also said that a president or any person convincing a witness to change testimony would

be obstruction. Is that right?

BARR:
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Yes.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay. And on page 2 you said that a president deliberately impairing the integrity or

availability of evidence would be an instruction. Is that correct?

BARR:
Yes.

KLOBUCHAR:

Okay. And so what if a president told a witness not to cooperate with an investigation or

hinted at a pardon?

BARR:

You know I--I'd have to know the specific--I'd have to know the specific facts.

KLOBUCHAR:

Okay, and you wrote on page 1 that if a president knowingly destroys or alters evidence that

would be obstruction.

BARR:
Yes.

KLOBUCHAR:

Okay. So what if a president drafted a misleading statement to conceal the purpose of a

meeting. Would that be obstruction?

BARR:

Again, you, I'd--I'd have to know, I'd have to know the specifics.
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KLOBUCHAR:

All right. You would seek the advice of career ethic--ethics officials in the Department of
Justice for any recusal and I appreciate that. And you said in--in the past that you
commended Attorney General Sessions for following the advice of those ethics lawyers but

you didn't commit today to following that advice. Is that right?

BARR:
No, I did--I didn't, I didn't commend him for following the advice as the agency had--he
makes his--he is the one responsible for making the recusal decision. I don't know why he

said--locked himself into following the advice that's an advocation of his own responsibility.

KLOBUCHAR:
So what did you think about what Acting Attorney General Whitaker did when he rejected

the Justice Department ethics advice to recuse himself out of an abundance of caution?

BARR:
I--I haven't seen the advice he got and I don't know the specific facts but--but abundance of

caus--caution suggests that it could have gone either way.

KLOBUCHAR:

You have committed to recuse yourself from matters involving the law firm where you
currently work. Are you aware of any of your firm's clients who are in any way connected to

the special counsel's investigation?

BARR:
I--I'm not--I'm not aware. You know I--I tell you the truth I am of counsel there and I have
one client which I'm representing and I don't pay very much attention to what else is going

on.
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KLOBUCHAR:
Okay, you can also supplement (INAUDIBLE).

BARR:

Yeah, I--I'll supplement I'll supplement my answer.

KLOBUCHAR:
No problem. Will you commit to make public all of the report's conclusions, the Mueller

report, even if some of the evidence supporting those conclusions can't be made public?

BARR:

You know that certainly is my goal and intent. It's hard for me to conceive of a conclusion

that would you know run afoul of the regs as currently written but that's certainly my intent.

KLOBUCHAR:

Secure elections, you and I have a talk about that in my office. Do you think back-up paper
ballots are a good idea? This is a bill that Senator Lankford and I have introduced and with

the Senator Graham and Senator Harris?

BARR:

Yeah, I--Idon't know what's a good idea, what's a bad idea right now because I haven't

gotten into this area. But--

KLOBUCHAR:
I'll just tell you back up paper ballots is a good idea.

BARR:
Okay.
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KLOBUCHAR:

And we can talk about it later as well--

BARR:
Yeah.

KLOBUCHAR:

--audits. Along the lines of voting state election officials in North Carolina as you know
contacted the Justice Department about the integrity of their elections. The Justice
Department may have failed to take action in a timely manner. What steps would you take

to make sure these failures don't occur again?

BARR:

Not specifically with respect to North Carolina you're talking generally?

KLOBUCHAR:

Um-hmm.

BARR:

Yeah. Well, as I say I want to make one of my priorities the integrity of elections and so this
is not an area I have been involved with deeply before and when I get to the department if
I'm confirmed I'm going to start working with the people and fi--making sure that those kind

of things don't--

KLOBUCHAR:

And part of this, of course, is also how voting rights and our concern about some of the
changes in department policy and I hope you will seriously look at that because the last
thing we should be doing is suppressing voting and that is what we have been seeing under
this current administration.
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My dad was a reporter so I grew up knowing the importance of a free press. We obviously
have the tragic case of a journalist who worked right here at the Washington Post, Jamal
Khashoggi, and it's a particular concern. So want to ask you something I asked Attorney
General Sessions. If you are confirmed will the Justice Department jail reporters for doing

their jobs?

BARR:

I think that you know I know there are guidelines in place and I--I can conceive of situations
where you know as a--as a last resort and--and where a news organization has run through a
red flag or something like that, knows that they are putting out stuff that will hurt the
country there might be a sit--there could be a situation where--where someone would be

held in contempt. But--

KLOBUCHAR:

Attorney General Sessions had said he was going to look at chan--potentially changing those
rules at one point. So I'd like you to maybe respond in writing to this because that was very

concerning.

And last, when you and I were in my office we talked about your work with Time Warner,
with this major merger on appeal from the Justice Department and I just wanted you to
commit today to what you committed to me in the office that you would recuse yourself

from any matters regarding that appeal.

BARR:
Absolutely.

KLOBUCHAR:

Okay. And as you know you were on the board of Time Warner at the time and you signed a
sworn affidavit questioning whether the Justice Department's decision to block the merger

was politically motivated given and this is from the affidavit the president's prior public
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animus towards the merger. Are you talking here about his view on CNN? What did you

mean by prior public animus?

BARR:

I'm sorry. Could you--could you repeat that?

KLOBUCHAR:

Sure. You were on the Board of Time Warner and you signed a sworn affidavit questioning
whether the Justice Department's decision to block the merger was politically motivated
given the president's prior public animus toward the merger. And so what did you mean by

that?

BARR:

I--I mean the affidavit speaks for itself in that at that meeting I was concerned that the
antitrust division was not engaging with some of our arguments and I got concerned that
they weren't taking the merits as seriously as I had hoped they would. But I have, you know I

have no--I'm not sure why they acted the way they did.

KLOBUCHAR:

Okay. Very good. And I'll ask you more on antitrust policy-wise in the second round but and

I appreciated the discussion we had on that. It's very important. Thank you very much.

BARR:
Yep.

GRAHAM:
Thank you. Senator Hawley did a good thing by allowing Senator Ernst to go because she--

no good deed goes unpunished around here but you do have a credit with the--with the

Chairman so I appreciate that. Senator Cruz, you are next.
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CRUZ:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And thank you, Senator Hawley, as well and welcome to the
committee. Welcome to all the new members of the committee and congratulations, Mr.
Chairman. We're looking forward to the Lindsey Graham chairmanship judiciary and I'm

sure, if--

GRAHAM:

--They'll make a movie about it I'm sure.

CRUZ:

I am certain whatever else happens, it will not be boring. Welcome, Mr. Barr.
Congratulations on your nomination yet again, and--and let me say thank you. You and I
have visited before about this but--but the past two years have been a difficult time at the
Department of Justice and--and you and I and many on this committee hold the Justice
Department in very high esteem, indeed I would even say revere the department and its
century long tradition of enforcing the law without regard to party and without regard to
partisanship. And--and I commend you for your willingness to go back--go back and serve
once again. I think that is a good step for the department and on a good step for

strengthening the department.

You know, I would note 27 years ago when you did this previously, when you were last
nominated to be attorney general, and I think you may have been about Liam's age at the
time, it was a different time. Then Chairman of the Judiciary Committee, Joe Biden. said at
the time that he found you to be "Honest" and that you, "Understand and are committed to
the dual responsibility of the office of the attorney general." Chairman Biden also said that,
"This commitment to the public interest above all else is a critical attribute in an attorney

general, and I will vote to confirm Mr. Barr."
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Senator Ted Kennedy likewise noted your dedication to public service. Senator Fritz
Hollings said, "Mr. Barr has a distinguished academic background and impressive
experience in private sector as well as in public service. Most important Bill Barr is a known
quantity. He has done a truly outstanding job as deputy attorney general for the last year
and a half, during which time he has worked with many of us in this body earning our
respect for his professionalism and competence." And Senator Cole said that, "Your
willingness to discuss the issues is a refreshing change in the confirmation process and it

would be wise of future nominees to follow Mr. Barr's example."

At that hearing you are confirmed by this committee unanimously, as you had been twice
previously for senior appointments to the Department of Justice. Now, we all recognize that
was a different time. I think, given the environment we are in now, few you expect this
committee vote to be unanimous, but I would hope those voices from democrats who are

respected by members of this committee will be heard today as well.

One of the questions you were asked, if I might paraphrase, was why on earth would you
take this job. And your answer, if I recall correctly, concerned your commitment both to the-
-to the department, and the rule of law. Would you tell this committee in--in--in your

judgment why the rule of law matters? Why--why is that important?

BARR:

Well, you know the--as--as our framers said in the Federalist Papers, "The art of--of setting
up a government is to have a government that's strong enough to perform the functions that
a government has to perform while, at the same time, not being so strong that it can oppress
its own people. And the rule of law ensures that, precisely, that the government does not

oppress its own people.

And when people are accused of wrongdoing, our system essentially gives them the benefit
of the doubt and--and gives them rights to bring them up essentially to the same level as a
government. And the process we go through is there to ensure that justice is not arbitrary,

but it's done according to a set of rules and the basic protection that we have is that the rule
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that applies to one applies to all. That, at the end of the day, is what keeps us all free. That is

the protection of individual freedom."

And to me, the rule of law is exactly that, that we don't allow special rules to go into effect
for a particular individual. A rule has to be universalized. Anything we do against A has to be
universalized across everyone who's similarly situated. That's our basic protection. And to

me, that's with the rule of law is.

CRUZ:

SoIdon't want to see a Republican Department of Justice or Democratic Department of
Justice. I don't want to see a Republican FBI or a Democratic FBI. What we should see, what
the American people have a right to see and a right to expect is a Department of Justice that
is committed to and faithful to the Constitution and the laws regardless of political party,
and--and a corollary to that is, a department that is willing to hold anyone who commits
criminal conduct accountable, regardless of that individual's political party or whatever

partisan interest there might be. Would--would you agree with that? Characterization?

BARR:

Yes, senator. Yes, senator.

CRUZ:

I would note as well during the previous administration there was concern by many,
including me on this committee, that the previous administration, and in particular the IRS,
had targeted individual citizens and citizen groups for exercising their First Amendment
rights and--and had abused its power in doing so. The current Justice Department--I--I've
been dissatisfied with their--the degree of scrutiny they have--they have given to that
potential abuse of--of power, and I'm going to ask you going forward if you are confirmed, to
examine that conduct and ensure that if--if laws were broken that individuals are held

accountable.
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Let me shift to a different topic. One of the most important safeguards of our liberties is the
Bill of Rights. And the Attorney General has a unique responsibility defending the
Constitution. Can you share for this committee in your view the importance of free speech,
of the protections that the First Amendment provides to Americans to speak and even to

speak on--on unpopular or politically disfavored topics?

BARR:

I--I think free speech is at the--at the core of our system because we believe in the
democratic process and power shifting through the processes of voting by an--an informed
electorate. And free speech is foundational to the ability to have a democratic process. The
framers, I think, believed that the dialectic, the clashing of ideas in the public marketplace is

the way to arrive at the truth. And that is one function.

Another function of free speech is that it's the substitute for other means of settling
differences. In some ways it's a safety valve. People are allowed to speak their mind and
persuade their neighbors of their position. And I think that--that performs a very important
function in keeping the peace within a community. And if speeches speech is suppressed, it

can lead to the building up of pressures within society that sometimes can be explosive.

CRUZ:

How about your views on--on religious liberty and--and would you share your thoughts on
the importance of the religious liberty protections in the First Amendment in terms of

protecting our--our diverse and pluralistic society?

BARR:

Yes. I--1, you know, to--I think--I think the framers believe that the--our system, they said
that our system only works if the people are in a position to control themselves. Our--our
government is an--is an experiment in how much freedom we can allow the people without
tearing ourselves apart, and they believe fewer laws, more self-control and they believe that

part of that self-control, and I know there are many people here who disagree in--in, not
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here, but in our society, who disagree, but they believe part of that self-control ultimately
came from religious values. And I think it's important underpinning of our system that we
permit--I believe in the separation of church and state, but I--I am sometimes concerned
that we not use governmental power to suppress the freedoms of traditional religious

communities in our country.

CRUZ:

Final question. The Department of Justice is charged with defending the United States, but
that doesn't mean that the Department of Justice always must argue for maximum federal
power. There are important restraints on federal power, whether civil liberties protections
in a criminal context, whether the takings clause, or whether the 10th Amendment in
federalism. Can--can you briefly share your thoughts on--on the appropriate balance of

respecting limitations on federal power?

BARR:

There--well, as you--as you say, the Constitution has many different forms of restraint on--
on federal power. Part of it is, in fact, the separation of powers within the federal
government, part of it is the balance between the federal--the federalist system that we have
and--and the central government and respecting the rights of the states and local
communities, and part of it is the Bill of Rights that, on certain topics, constrains the rule

role of the federal government. And those are all important checks on federal power.

And you know, I am concerned about our country becoming just a unitary state that we try
to govern centrally 350 million people. I think a lot of our current tensions in society are
because we are turning our back on the federalist model. There are certain things that have
to be protected by the federal government. There's no ifs, ands, or buts about that. But the
more we can decentralize decision making, the more we can allow people a real diversity in

the country of approaches to things, I think we'll have less of an explosive situation.

CRUZ:
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I very much agree. Thank you, Mr. Barr.

GRAHAM:

The freedom of speech has to be balanced by the freedom to question. Senator Coons.

COONS:

Congratulations, Chairman Graham. Look forward to working with you in this Congress.
And thank you, Mr. Barr, and to you and your family for their service to our country through
federal law enforcement and the Department of Justice. You just faced some questioning
from Senator Cruz about your own confirmation hearing back in 1991, and I'd like to take
us back to a previous confirmation hearing, which was at a more similar time to today than
1991, 1973. Senator Leahy asked you about the confirmation of Elliot Richardson,
President Nixon's nominee to be attorney general. That confirmation took place in the
context of a similarly divided period in American history where there was great concern
over the, at that point, ongoing Watergate investigation. And Elliot Richardson reassured
the country by making some important commitments during his confirmation hearing
before this committee. Then Senator Strom Thurmond asked Richardson if he wanted a

special prosecutor who would, and I quote, shield no one

and prosecute this case regardless of who was affected in any way, shape or form.
Richardson responded, exactly. Do you want special counsel Mueller to shield no one and

prosecute the case regardless of who is affected?

BARR:

I want--I want Special Counsel Mueller to discharge his responsibilities as a federal
prosecutor, and exercise the judgment that he's expected to exercise under the rules and

finish his job.

COONS:
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Senator Kennedy followed up by asking Richardson if the special prosecutor would have the
complete authority and responsibility for determining whom he prosecuted and at what

location. Richardson said simply, yes. Would you give a similar answer?

BARR:

No, Iwould give the answer that's in the current regulations, which is that the special
counsel has, you know, broad discretion, but the acting attorney general in this case, Rod
Rosenstein, can ask him about major decisions. And if they disagree on a major decision,
and if after giving great weight to the special counsel's position the acting attorney general
felt that it was so unwarranted under established policies that it should not be followed, then

that would be reported to this committee. I--you know, I've--I've--

COONS:

Please forgive me. I've only got--I've got seven minutes left.

BARR:
Okay.

COONS:

I have a number of other questions. Let me just make sure I understand you. senators asked
Elliot Richardson what he would do if he disagreed with the special prosecutor. Richardson
testified to the committee the special prosecutor's judgment would prevail. That's not what

you're saying. You're saying--

BARR:
That's not---that's not--

COONS:
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--if you have a difference of opinion with Special Counsel Mueller, you won't necessarily

back his decision; you might overrule it.

BARR:

Under the regulations there is--there is the possibility of that, but this committee would not,

you know, would be aware of it. You know, a lot of water has gone under the dam since--

COONS:
Yes.

BARR:

--since Elliot Richardson. And a lot of different administrations on both parties have

experimented with special counsel arrangements.

COONS:
Well, let me (INAUDIBLE)--

BARR:

And the existing rules, I think, reflect the experience of both Republican and Democratic
administrations and strike the right balance. They are put together in the Clinton

administration after Ken Starr's investigation.

COONS:

That's right. So the current regulations on the books right now prevent the attorney general
from firing without cause the special counsel. They require misconduct, dereliction of duty,

incapacity, conflict. Will you follow that standard?

BARR:

Of course.
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COONS:

What if the president asked you to rescind or change those special counsel regulations?

BARR:

I think those special counsel regulations should stay in place for the duration of this
investigation, and we can do a postmortem then, but I--I have no reason to think they're not

working.

COONS:

So most famously, when directed by President Nixon to fire the special counsel, the
prosecutor investigating Watergate, Richardson refused and resigned instead, as we all well
know. If the president directed you to change those regulations and then fire Mueller, or

simply directly fired Mueller, would you follow Richardson's example and resign instead?

BARR:

Assuming there was no good cause?

COONS:

Assuming no good cause.

BARR:

Yeah, I would not carry out that instruction.

COONS:

Let me bring us forward to your 1991 hearing in front of this committee. You explained at
the time how you would handle the BCCI case, and ironically Robert Mueller, the same
individual, was at that point the head of the criminal division, and you testified that you had

directed Mueller to spare no resources, use whatever resources are necessary and pursue the
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investigation as aggressively as possible and follow the evidence anywhere and everywhere

it leads. Would you give similar direction to Robert Mueller today?

BARR:
I don't think he needs that direction. I think that's what he's doing.

COONS:

You also said at that hearing that Robert Mueller and that investigation had full cooperation,
full support and carte blanche. Could he expect a similar level of support from you as

attorney general?

BARR:

Yeah, he will--as I said, I'm going to carry out those regulations, and I want him to finish this

investigation.

COONS:

I think we all do. And I am encouraged by things you've said about this and just want to
make sure we've had as clear a conversation as we can. Attorney General Richardson also
testified the relationship between the president and the Justice Department should be arm's-
length. You've said similar things about the importance of shielding the department from
political influence. Can you make a similar commitment to us to maintain an arm's-length
relationship between the Justice Department and the president regarding the special

counsel investigation and other investigations?

BARR:

Well, remember I said there are like three different functions, generally, that the attorney
general performs. I think on the enforcement side, especially where matters are of either

personal or political interest to people at the White House, then there would be an arm's--
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there has to be an arm's-length relationship. The White House counsel can play a

constructive role in that as well. So--

COONS:

Let me ask, if the president asked for information that could well be used to interfere with
the special counsel investigation, to misdirect or curtail it in some way, would you give it to

him?

BARR:

No, I think--I mean, there are rules on what kind of information can flow and what kind of
communications can go between the White House. And you know, I would follow those. But
the basic principle is that the integrity of an investigation has to be protected. There are
times where you can share information that wouldn't threaten the integrity of an
investigation like, you know, for example, when I was attorney general and we were
investigating something that related to president--someone who had a relationship with
President Bush--I could just orient them that, you know, there's going to be a story
tomorrow that, you know, says this. But in that particular case there was no chance that it

would affect the investigation. So sometimes judgment calls are necessary.

COONS:
If you learned that the White House, not directly through you, but through other means, was

attempting to interfere with the investigation, would you report that information to the

special counsel and to Congress?

BARR:

Well, there are some conclusions in there about interfering, you know, and--and, you know,
if I thought something improper was being done, then I would deal with it as attorney

general.
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COONS:

Last, in that confirmation hearing back in 1973, then Senator Birch Bayh of Indiana asked

Richardson, suppose the prosecutor determines it's necessary to get the president's affidavit
or to have his testimony personally. Would that be the kind of determination he, the special
prosecutor, could make? Richardson said, yes. Will you give a similar answer today that you

won't interfere with special counsel Mueller seeking testimony from the president?

BARR:

You know, I think, as I say, the regulations currently provide some avenue if there is some
disagreement. I think that in order to overrule Mueller someone would have to de--the
attorney general or the acting attorney general would have to determine, after giving
Mueller's position great weight, that it was unwa--so unwarranted under established policies
that it should not be done. So that's the standard I would apply. But I'm not going to
surrender the res--the regulations give some responsibility to the attorney general to have
this sort of general superv--not day-to-day supervision, but sort of be there in case
something really transcends the established policies. I'm not surrendering that

responsibility. I'm not pledging it away.

COONS:

What gives me pause and sort of led me to this line of questioning, Mr. Barr, was that June
2018 memo you sent to the deputy attorney general, in which at one point you state Mueller
should not be permitted to demand the president submit to interrogation about alleged
obstruction. If the special counsel wants to subpoena the president's testimony to ask
questions about obstruction, and you're supervising the investigation, would you rely on that

theory to block the subpoena?

BARR:

Well, the question for me would be what's the predicate, you know? And I don't know what

the facts are. I don't know what the facts are. And if there was a factual basis for doing it,
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and I couldn't say that it was--it violated established policies, then Iwouldn't interfere. But I

don't know what the facts are.

COONS:

Well, if I might just in closing, Mr. Chairman, we're in this unique situation where you've
known Robert Mueller 30 years. You've said you respect and admire his professionalism, his
conduct. He's been entrusted by you with significant, complex investigations in the past.
There's no reason to imagine, since he is the person who would know the facts, that he
wouldn't be acting in an inappropriate way. So it is my hope, even my expectation, that you
would trust Robert Mueller to make that decision about whether to compel the president to
testify in an appropriate way and that he would not face any interference. Thank you for

your testimony today.

BARR:
Thank you.

COONS:

I look forward to the next round.

GRAHAM:

Senator Sasse.

SASSE:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman and congratulations on your new call laying here. Liam, I have
career advice. [ won't do it on camera. We want to know if you are taking notes for your

cousins about career advice though? We'll--we'll ask you later.

General, congratulations on your nomination and con--thanks for your past service. I had

planned to ask you for some pledges related to the Mueller investigation in private to me. In
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public today I think you've already done that. How should the American people think about

what the M--the Mueller investigation is about?

BARR:

I think--I think that there were allegations made of Russian attempts to interfere in the
election and there were allegations made that some Americans were in cahoots with the
Russians and the word is now being--that's being used is collusion. And as I understand it

Mueller is looking into those--those allegations.

SASSE:

You know a lot of the media summary of the investigation starts with people's views and
who they voted for in the 2016 presidential election and for those of us who spend a lot of
time reading intelligence reports--a handful of us on this committee are about to leave to go
to an intelligence briefing-- what Russia is doing to the U.S. is big and broad and not
constrained to the 2016 election and increasingly it feels like the American people reduce

Russia to just how you thought about the 2016 presidential election.

So since you will have serious supervisory responsibilities over parts of the intelligence

community is Putin a friend or a foe and what are his long-term objectives toward the U.S.?

BARR:

Well, I don't hold myself out as a foreign policy expert but I think that he is--I think the
Russians are a--are a potent rival of our country and his foreign policy objectives are usually
directly contrary to our goals. I think he wants to weaken the American alliances in Europe
and he also wants to become a player in the Middle E--more of a player in the Middle East. A

lot of his foreign policy objectives are--are at odds with ours.

At the same time, I think the primary rival of the United States is China. I think Russia is half
the size it was when we were facing them at the peak of the Cold War. Their economy is

long-term prognosis is nowhere near China's. I also feel that part of what Russia is up to is
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trying to hold on to Ukraine and (INAUDIBLE) Russia in their orbit. But I'm--I'm concerned

that the fixation on Russia not obscure the danger from China.

SASSE:

I want to ask you some China questions as well. I want to ask you about your role on the
president's Intelligence Supervisory Board but sticking with Russia for a minute does
Hooton have any long-term ideological alignment with the U.S. or does he have other

objectives trying to sow discord broadly here?

BARR:

You know I'm not--I'm not a--an expert on this area but I think there are pot--you know I

think there may be some potential areas where our interest could be aligned.

SASSE:
But when he interferes here does he have long-term interest in the success of one or another
political party or does he have specific interest in sowing chaos and discord to make

Americans distrust one another?

And one of the reasons I ask is because I'd love to have you say in public some of what you
said to me about at the end of this investigation what happens next. Are you concerned that

when the Mueller report is received quite a part--

BARR:
Okay.

SASSE:

--the narrowest pieces you know where I'm headed.

BARR:
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So I mean I--I--I think that the basic vulnerability of the United States in the age in which we
live the internet age, you know the globalization of information and so forth is the
vulnerability of--that we are seeing which is people can create doubt, undercut confidence
in our elect--our election process and also torque our public discourse in ways that we find
hard to perceive and this has long-term danger for the United States and the survival of a

democratic society like ours.

And so I hope that whatever the outcome of the Mueller investigation that we view this as a
bigger problem of inter--foreign interference on our elections which is why I said it was one
of my priorities and it's not just the Russians, it's other countries as well and we have to
focus on that. We have to ensure that we are doing all we can and I'm not sure all of that is
defensive either. I mean in terms of law enforcement I think we have to look at all options

including sanctions and other options to deter organized efforts to interfere in our elections.

SASSE:
So you have no reason to doubt any aspect of the intelligence community's composite

assessment about Russian efforts in the 2016 election?

BARR:

I have no reason to doubt that the Russians attempted to interfere in our election.

SASSE:
And Dan Coats, the National Intelligence director, has testified in public and has said in
different media context that Russia is already plotting for the 2020 elections in the U.S. You

have no reason to--to doubt that?

BARR:
I haven't s--you know I--I haven't seen those reports. I--I hadn't reviewed the reports about

the 2016 but I have no reason to doubt it.
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SASSE:

And can you explain what your role is on the president's Intelligence Advisory Board?

BARR:

Yes, I am actually a consultant, I am an advisor on--on sort of legal issues. Obviously, I'm
stepping down from that position if I'm confirmed but I've been just advising. I'm not a
member of the board. I'm on the CIA's external advisory board and--and you know I have

been participating on that as well.

SASSE:

When you talk about the long-term Chinese efforts to also sow different kinds of discord in
the U.S. obviously not crossing any fine classified lines here but long-term interests that
other countries have in strategic rivalry with the U.S. to use gray space and information will
status operations warfare against us how do you see the role of the national security branch
and the FBI more broadly fitting into the larger IC and what responsibilities do you see

would be on your priority list as you arrive at the department?

BARR:

You know I--I've--I've been out of the department for so long you know I'm not really sure
about how that is currently being handled. You know I--I also think that we had our
attention focused on terrorism which we can't let up and--but I want to make sure that and
I'm sure Chris Wray is on top of this and looking forward to talking to him about it, of
making sure that the bureau is playing a central role in--in combating efforts by foreign

countries to engage in those kinds of hostile intelligence activities.

SASSE:
You have unpacked a couple of times today the three different roles or functions of the
attorney general. Can--could you do that one more time in summary? Then I want to ask you

a particular question. What are--what are those three roles as you see them?
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BARR:

I see the three rules in 1789 the first to set up the office. The first role was providing advice
to the president in the cabinet and representing the United States in cases before the
Supreme Court. And I see the three roles as providing advice, sup--being a policy advisor on
legal and law enforcement policy issues and the top law enforcement officer enforcing the

laws.

SASSE:

And so in no way would the job of protecting the president be a subset of any of those three
jobs? The language of protecting the president has been used occasionally in this
administration to refer to the way it was conceived of how Eric Holder did his job. Is there

any sense in which it's the attorney general's job to protect the president?

BARR:

No, that wasn't included in my--in my description of the role of the attorney general.
Obviously as a--in the policy arena the depart--the attorney general is someone who should

be sympathetic to the administration and its policy goals.

SASSE:

But there are circumstances where those three roles could come into some internal conflict
or you could be asked to do things that don't align with them and there's probably a list that
you have. I won't al--ask you to enumerate it here but there's probably a list of issues where
you can imagine needing to resign because of what you were asked to do in the space of so-

called protecting the president?

BARR:
If I--1f I was ever asked to do something that I thought was unlawful and directed to do that I

wouldn't do it and I would resign rather than do it but I think that should be true of every

officer who serves anywhere in government, whatever branch.
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3/18/2019 cQ

SASSE:

I am at time but I had a series of questions related to some of what Senator Ernst did about
Sarah's Law. She and I have jointly been active in that space, the tragic case of the young
woman that she was talking about from Council Bluffs was actually--it occurred in Omaha
and Edwin Mejia, her killer, is still at large and both the last administration and this
administration have not prioritized that enough in--in our understanding and I imagine that

Senator Ernst and I will follow up with a letter to you on that as well. Thank you.

GRAHAM:

Senator Blumenthal.

BLUMENTHAL.:

Thanks, Mr. Chairman. I congratulate you, and I look forward to working with you and
congratulate also the new members of our committee that have joined us. And thank you
very much, Mr. Barr, for being here today, for your past record of public service. And I hope

I am perhaps the last to make reference to your grandson--

(LAUGHTER)

--by saying that if he makes it through this hearing today he can have any job he wants--
(LAUGHTER)

--in this building. Let me say first that as a former United States attorney I share your
allegiance and admiration for the Department of Justice and, equally so, the Federal Bureau
of Investigation. And I know that you respect Mr. Wray, the current director, but I think you
would agree with me that the FBI is probably one of the best, if not the most professional,
accomplished, skilled and dedicated law enforcement agencies in the world. Would you

agree?

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ

Yes, senator.

BLUMENTHAL:

And I hope that the president agrees with you and perhaps shares that view more publicly in
the future. When the FBI begins a counterintelligence investigation, if it is of the president
of the United States for working with a foreign adversary, that decision would be subject to

multiple levels of review within the FBI, correct?

BARR:

I assume. I don't know what rules were in effect at the time.

BLUMENTHAL:

Well, in your experience there would be?

BARR:

Yes, yes.

BLUMENTHAL:

And you have no reason to think that those rules have changed?

BARR:

I don't know what the practice was. There was--

BLUMENTHAL:

And almost certainly in that kind of extraordinary investigation you would agree with me it
would be extraordinary for the FBI to be investigating the president for working with a
determined foreign adversary. There probably would be information shared with the deputy

attorney general or the attorney general, agree?
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

I would--I would hope so. The reason I'm hesitating is because, you know, some of these
texts that we've all read are so weird and beyond my experience with the FBI. I don't know

what was going on.

BLUMENTHAL:

Well, these reports are stomach turning in terms of the absolutely stunning and

unprecedented kind of investigation that they reflect. You'd agree?

BARR:

You mean the texts are stomach turning?

BLUMENTHAL:

The reports of the investigation of the president.

BARR:

I'm not sure what you're talking about when you say the reports of the investigation.

BLUMENTHAL:
The reports that the FBI opened an investigation of the president for working with a foreign

adversary, Russia.

BARR:

And what's stomach turning about that? Which--what is stomach turning, the allegation

against the president or the fact that--

BLUMENTHAL:
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3/18/2019 cQ
(INAUDIBLE) that an allegation would be made and be under investigation. Well let me
move on. I want to talk about transparency. Would you commit--will you commit to this
committee that you will not allow the president or his attorneys to edit or change the special

counsel report before it is submitted to Congress or the public?

BARR:

I already said that I would not permit editing of my report, whatever report I--I or whoever is

the attorney general makes.

BLUMENTHAL:

And will you commit that you will come to Congress and explain any deletions or changes

that are made to that report before it is issued?

BARR:

Okay, so you know there are different reports at work here. Which report are you--there are

two different reports.

BLUMENTHAL:

I'm talking about the special counsel report.

BARR:

Okay, well under the current regulations the special counsel report is confidential.

(INAUDIBLE) The report that goes public would be a report by the attorney general.

BLUMENTHAL:

Will you commit that you will explain to us any changes or deletions that you make to the

special counsel report that's submitted to you in whatever you present to us?

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ
I will commit to providing as much information as I can consistent with the regulations. Are
you saying, for example, that if information is deleted that would be for like classification

purposes I would identify that and things like that?

BLUMENTHAL:
Well, that you will commit to explaining to us what the reasons are for your deleting any
information that the special counsel includes that you are preventing us or the public from

seeing.

BARR:

You know, that would--that would be my intent. I have to say that the rules--I don't know
what kind of report is being prepared. I have no idea, and I have no idea what Acting
Attorney General Rosenstein has discussed with Special Counsel Mueller. If I'm confirmed
I'm going to go in and see what's being contemplated, and what they've agreed to, and what

their interpretation, you know, what game plan they have in mind.

BLUMENTHAL:

Will you permit special counsel--

BARR:

But I'm--but my purpose is to get as much accurate information out as I can consistent with

the regulation.

BLUMENTHAL:

Well, the regulations and rules give you extraordinarily broad discretion, and I'm hoping,
and I'm asking you to commit, that you will explain to us information that you have taken
out of that special counsel report. And I also want to ask you about restrictions on the special
counsel. Will you commit that you will allow the special counsel to exercise his judgment on

subpoenas that are issued and indictments that he may decide should be brought?

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 115/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028087


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

AsIsaid, I will carry out my responsibilities under the regulations. Under the regulations
the, whoever is attorney general, can only overrule the special counsel if the special counsel
does something that is so unwarranted under established practice. I am not going to
surrender the response abilities I have. I would--you would not like it if I made some pledge
to the president that  was going to exercise my responsibilities in a particular way, and I'm
not going to make a pledge to anyone on this committee that I'm going to exercise it in a

particular way or surrender it.

BLUMENTHAL:

Will you allow the special counsel to exercise his judgment as to what resources are

necessary? Will you meet those needs for resources?

BARR:

That would be my expectation. I think, you know, I mean if you believe the media they're

sort of starting to reduce their resources. So I wouldn't expect that would be a problem.

BLUMENTHAL:

Will you allow the special counsel to exercise his judgment as to what the scope should be?
The president has talked about red lines around finances. Will you allow the special counsel
to exercise his judgment about what the scope should be, even if the president says that

there should be red lines?

BARR:

I think the scope of the investigation is determined by his charter from the acting attorney
general. And if he wants to go beyond that charter, I assume he would come back and talk to

whoever the attorney general is about that.

BLUMENTHAL:
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3/18/2019 cQ
Will you impose any restrictions on other prosecutors who are also investigating the
president? As you're well aware, in the Southern District of New York the president has been
named, in effect, as an unindicted co-conspirator. The Eastern District of Virginia has an
investigation that's relevant to the president. Will you impose any restrictions on those

prosecutors?

BARR:
The office of attorney general is in charge of the pros--with the exception of the special
counsel who has special rules applicable to him--is in charge of the work of the Department

of Justice. I'm (INAUDIBLE)--

BLUMENTHAL:

--but you have a responsibility to allow prosecutors to enforce the law.

BARR:
I have the responsibility to use my judgment and discretion that are inherent in the office of
attorney general to supervise, and I'm not going to go around saying well this U.S. attorney

or that U.S. attorney I'm going to defer to. And--and--and (INAUDIBLE) I'm not--

BLUMENTHAL:

You referred earlier to the possibility of firing--

BARR:

Excuse me?

BLUMENTHAL:
--a United States attorney. Would you allow the president to fire a United States attorney

and thereby stop an investigation?
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:
I would not stand by and allow a U.S. attorney to be fired for the purpose of stopping an

investigation. But the president can fire a U.S. attorney. They're a presidential appointment.

BLUMENTHAL:
But the president should have a cause beyond simply stopping an investigation for firing a

United States attorney, even if he or she is (INAUDIBLE).

BARR:
Well, as I said, I would not stand by and allow, you know, an investigation to be stopped if I
thought it was a lawful investigation. I wouldn't stand by for that. But the president is free to

fire his, you know, officials that he's appointed, and--

BLUMENTHAL:

I want to ask a different--a question, a question on a different topic. You said that--and I'm
quoting you--I believe Roe v. Wade should be overruled. You said thatin 1991. Do you still

believe it?

BARR:
I'said in 1991 that I thought as an original matter it had been wrongly decided, and that

was, what, within 18 years of its decision? Now it's been 46 years, and the department has
stopped, under Republican administration, stopped as a routine matter asking that it be

overruled, and I don't see that being turned--you know, I don't see that being resumed.

BLUMENTHAL:
Would you defend Roe v. Wade if it were challenged?

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ
What I defend Roe v. Wade? I mean, usually the way these--this would come up would be a
state regulation of some sort and whether it's permissible under Roe v. Wade, and I would
hope that the AG would make whatever arguments are necessary to address that. I think the
justices have--the recent ones have made clear that they consider Roe v. Wade an

established precedent. It's been on the books 46 years.

BLUMENTHAL:

And you would enforce the Clinic Access Protection Act?

BARR:
Absolutely.

BLUMENTHAL:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

HAWLEY:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, congratulations on your nomination. Thank you for
being here. You were eminently qualified for this position when you were confirmed
unanimously by this committee 27 years ago and you are eminently qualified today. It's a
pleasure to have you here. I wanted to start where Senator Blumenthal started as well with
the reports about the FBI counterintelligence investigation launched against the president,

which I also find to be stomach turning, though perhaps, for different reasons.

The New York Times report indicates that the FBI began the probe in part because they were
concerned about the president's foreign policy stances, comments he made during the 2016
campaign about foreign policy, and the Republican Party's official position on the Ukraine.
In your expense with the FBI, is it strange to have a counterintelligence investigation begun
because members of that bureau disagree with the foreign policy stances of a candidate for

president or a president of the United States?
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:
Yes.

HAWLEY:

Yet, the Supreme Court has been unequivocal that the president and our system of
government, the president possesses, and I'm going to quote now, "The plenary and
exclusive power as the sole organ of the federal government in the field of international
relations, a power which does not require, as its basis--as a basis for its exercise, an act of
Congress." That's the very famous Curtiss-Wright case. To your knowledge, is that still good

law?

BARR:
Yes.

HAWLEY:
And you think that was rightly decided?

BARR:
Yes.

HAWLEY:

Let me ask you this, would it concern you, as attorney general, if FBI agents were making
decisions about when and how to launch an investigation of an elected official if it was in
order to avoid being supervised or directed by their agency leadership? Would that be

concerning to you?

BARR:
Yes.
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3/18/2019 cQ

HAWLEY:

As--asis,  might just add, reported by the New York Times. Let me--let me switch gears and
ask you about another topic that you mentioned a little bit earlier in the field when we were
talking generally about antitrusts. This is something you talk about things that have changed
in the 27 years since you were last here. One of the things that has changed is the
extraordinary concentration of power in our economy in the hands of a few corporations, no
more so than in Silicon Valley, which you referenced earlier today. And I just want to ask you

a little bit about that.

Big tech companies like, for instance, Google and Facebook, who have drawn much
attention of late, pose significant challenges, not just for competition, but also for the larger
issues of privacy and the free flow of ideas. The Justice Department has recently deferred to
the FTC across this range of issues. And while I'm hopeful that Chairman Simons will right
the course here, the FTC has perhaps too often allowed these companies in my view to
violate privacy and maybe antitrust laws without meaningful consequences. Here's my
question, what role do you think the Justice Department has working with the FTC or
independently to address anticompetitive conduct, potential bias, and privacy violations by

these big tech companies?

BARR:

Well, obviously competition is of central concern to the antitrust division and--and you
know, there are, I guess, concourse (SP) dots that had been reached between the FTC and--
and the antitrust division as to who has primary jurisdiction in different areas. But I would
like to weigh into some of these issues. I'd like to have the antitrust support that effort to get
more involved in reviewing the situation from a competition standpoint. I also am interested
in the issue of privacy and the question of who owns this data and, you know, it's not an area
that I've studied closely or become an expert in, but I--I think it's important for the

department to get more involved in these questions.

HAWLEY:
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3/18/2019 cQ
Just on the subject of ownership of data, as you know, Facebook is currently subject to a
2011 consent decree as part of which it did agreed not to release or share or sell personal
user information without the knowledge and consent of its users. Facebook's CEO, Mark
Zuckerberg, has adamantly insisted under oath, as recently of as April 10 of 2018, that on
Facebook, "Users have complete control,” those are his words, "Over everything that they

share."

However, as I'm sure you're aware, recent media reports have indicated that Facebook, in
fact, routinely has shared user information without user's consent or even knowledge. Now,
the Justice Department has the and forward authority to enforce the terms of the 2011

consent decree and potentially to prosecute any violation. Will you consider doing so?

BARR:

Well, because that is something that I might have to get involved with and supervise if I'm

confirmed, I'd rather not, you know, make any comments about it right now.

HAWLEY:

Let me ask you this, these same technology companies also control the flow of information,
or at least influence it, the flow of information to consumers to an unprecedented degree. I
mean, you have to go way back in American history to find any analog, back to the paper
trust, to--to find an analog of a group, a small group of companies that control the
information and influence the news and its flow to Americans to an extent--to the extent

that these companies do.

And there 1s growing evidence that these companies have leveraged their considerable
market power, if not monopoly status, to disfavor certain ideological viewpoints,
particularly conservative and libertarian viewpoints. Do you think the Department of
Justice has authority under the antitrust laws were consumer protection laws or other laws to

address bias by dominant online platforms?

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ
I would just say generally, you know, I wouldn't think it would, you know, I'd have to think
long and hard before I said that it was really the stuff of an antitrust matter. On the other
hand, it could involve issues of disclosure and--and other--and other--implicate other laws

like that.

HAWLEY:

Is there any point, do you think, at which political bias could require a response? And I'm
thinking, for example, Harvard Law Professor Jonathan Zittrain has written how Google or
Facebook, for example, could manipulate their algorithms to significantly swing voter
turnout to favor a candidate of their choice. Would that sort of conduct require a response

from the department?

BARR:

I have to think about that. I--I I'm not sure. You know, I'd like to know more about the--the

phenomena and what laws could be indicated by it.

HAWLEY:

Let me ask you this, the Justice Department's case against AT&T-Time Warner, focused on
how the merged company would control or could control the distribution of information to
discriminate against rival content. And I understand that you, of course, are recusing
yourself from--from that matter, but generally speaking, generally speaking, do you see
similar concerns regarding how dominant Silicon Valley firms could use their market power

and social media or search to discriminate against rival products or services or viewpoints?

BARR:

Yeah. And--and making clear that what I'm saying now has no application to, you know, the

transaction that we just talked about and talking about the other companies, yes.

HAWLEY:
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3/18/2019 cQ
Let me ask you a more broadly about the question of the antitrust and mergers and you--you
gestured towards this earlier in your testimony, I'm increasingly worried that the
department is--is not enforcing visit vigorously the antitrust statutes in many of the sectors
of the economy, not just technology. We see, again, as you alluded to, we see growing
concentration of power in--in various sectors held by just a few firms. And if you look at

recent trends in the department scrutiny of proposed mergers, it's at record lows.

Last year, for instance, the Department of Justice antitrust division scrutinized mergers
through second request for information in less than one percent of all eligible cases. That is,
I believe, the lowest level of merger scrutiny recorded since the FTC started tracking those
statistics backin 1981. And just for comparison purposes, in 1981 that review was five
times higher than it was in 2018. My question is do you think that this record low level of
merger scrutiny is appropriate and, if you're confirmed as attorney general, what might you

do to ensure that the antitrust division faithfully and vigorously enforces the law?

BARR:

Well, I--I--I am for vigorous enforcement of the antitrust laws to preserve competition and,
as I said, this is going to be an area I'm going to want to get into and--and--and work with
Makan Delrahim on if I'm confirmed. I wouldn't necessarily use, you know, the incidence of
merger review as a proxy for failure of competition. At the end of the day, it's competition
we're worried about in different markets. But I--I am interested in exploring those, you

know, those statistics we were just using.

HAWLEY:

And--and do you think it's fair to say, would you agree that the historic levels of
concentration that we are seeing and many parts of the economy, technology in particular,
is--is potentially detrimental to competition? I mean it is, potentially and in general, but it--
it is something that is worth scrutinizing and being concerned about if one is concerned

about free, fair, and open competition.
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

You said the size?

HAWLEY:

Yes. The historic levels of concentration.

BARR:

Yeah, I think what's--the thing I'm concerned about are that the network effects that have
now--that are now a work where there so powerful that particular sectors could essentially
be subsumed--you know, subsumed into these--into these networks. They're just very

powerful network effects because of the size.

HAWLEY:

Yes. I see my time has almost expired. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

HIRONO:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, I welcome the arrival of the immigration Lindsey
Graham of 2013. The other Lindsey Graham, we shall see, as you yourself have
acknowledged. Mr. Barr, I ask these questions, these two questions of every nominee who
comes before any of the committees on which I sit, and these are the questions. Since you
became a legal adult have you ever made unwanted requests for sexual favors or committed

any verbal or physical harassment or assault of a sexual nature?

BARR:
No.

HIRONO:
Have you ever faced discipline or entered into a settlement related to this kind of conduct?
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:
No.

HIRONO:

I have a question relating to recusal. You've been asked a number of times. It is very clear
that the president does not want an attorney general who will recuse himself from the
Mueller investigation. So when he came before us for confirmation in January 2017, Jeft
Sessions wrote on his committee questionnaire that he would, quote, seek and follow the
advice of the Department of Justice's designated agency ethics official if confronted with a
conflict of interest, end quote. And in fact, he did do that. And he was basically pummeled
by the president ever since. So Matthew Whitaker has not come before us for the job of
attorney general, but we know that when it came time to make a decision about recusal, he
didn't want to be the object of Trump's wrath, so he proceeded to listen to and then ignore

the advice of the career ethics officials at the DOJ who recommended recusal.

So your answer to Senator Klobuchar makes it clear that you are going to basically follow the
Whitaker model. Can you understand why that is not terribly reassuring to us? These are not
normal times. This is not 27 years ago. Today the president is Donald Trump, who will do
anything to protect himself. He wants you, who has written a manifesto about why the
president shouldn't be prosecuted, at least for obstruction of justice, who has met with and
consulted with the president's defense attorneys, who has written op-eds defending his
firings of Sally Yates and James Comey to be his attorney general. So in this context, just
asking us to trust you is not enough. Why won't you simply follow Jeff Sessions' lead and
take and follow--the critical portion being follow--the advice of the department's ethics

officials?

BARR:

Because the regulations and the responsibilities of the attorney general as the head of the

agency vests that responsibility in the attorney general And I am not going to surrender the
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3/18/2019 cQ
responsibilities of the attorney general to get the title. I don't need the title. If you don't--if

you don't trust me to--

HIRONO:

Well, you have--excuse me.

BARR:
Yes.

HIRONO:

You have repeated that answer many, many times. However, I think we all acknowledge that
Jeft Sessions possibly didn't want to recuse himself, but he did. And so you have it within
your power to follow the ethics advice of your own department, and you're telling us you're

not going to, so that is the bottom line.

BARR:

No, senator, I think Jeff Sessions recused himself because of a different provision, which

was the political conflict provision.

HIRONO:

I think in the context--

BARR:

He played a role in--he played a role in the campaign.

HIRONO:
--of all of the things that--in the context of all of the things that you have done, basically to

get the attention of President Trump to nominate you, I would say that there is a political

context to what your decision should be also. Let me move on. You have said that you will
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3/18/2019 cQ
allow Mueller to complete his work, although, you know, I do want to ask you very specif--
very specifically because you did write that 19-page memo relating to the obstruction of
justice issue. Would you allow the Mueller investigation with regard to obstruction of justice

to also go forward unimpeded by you?

BARR:

I don't know whether there's an investigation of obstruction of justice.

HIRONO:

Well, definitely obstruction of justice. You read the papers as well as we do, that that is an
element of the Mueller investigation. I don't think you can sit here and tell us that you do not
think that that is a part of the investigation, but let's say that it is. Having written what you
did, would you seek to--to stop that portion of the Mueller investigation, that being the

obstruction of justice portion, assuming that that is, in fact, part of the investigation?

BARR:
Okay, but you have to remember my memo was on a very specific statute and a specific

theory that I was concerned about.

HIRONO:
I understand that.

BARR:

I have no basis for suspecting at this point that that is in play at all.

HIRONO:

You mean that particular provision? So Mueller--

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ

That provision or theory, or theory.

HIRONO:

Well, I did say let's assume that, in fact, obstruction of justice is part of the Mueller

investigation.

BARR:

No, when I say theory I mean--what I was addressing was, you know, whether the removal

of Comey, in and of itself, would be obstruction.

HIRONO:

Of course it's not in and of itself.

BARR:
Under a particular--under a particular INAUDIBLE).

HIRONO:

I hate to be interruptive, but you know, I only have four minutes, so thank you very much.
We--you were asked about the investigations that are going on in the Southern District of
New York, the Eastern District of Virginia, the District of Columbia, and there are various
investigations brought by various U.S. attorneys' offices relating to the activities of Donald
Trump, his campaign, his inauguration, his foundation, his businesses, his families, his
associates. Do you consider these to be lawful investigations because I believe that you
responded to Senator Blumenthal that if these are lawful investigations by the U.S.

attorneys' offices that you do not see yourself interfering with them.

BARR:

I have no reason to think they're not lawful investigations, whatever they are. I--I'm--you

know more--seem to know more than I do about what's under investigation.
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HIRONO:

You're--that's reassuring that your wanting to have the Mueller investigation go forward
extends to all these other U.S. attorneys' investigations. I believe you also said that the
Mueller report will be confidential. It is confidential under the special counsel's, whatever
the criteria are. So what I'm hearing you say that in spite of the fact that you want to be
transparent, neither Congress nor public will get the Mueller report because that's
confidential. So what we will be getting is your report of the Mueller report, subject to

applicable laws limiting disclosure. So is that what you're telling us?

BARR:

I don't know what--what--at the end of the day what will be releasable. I don't know what

Bob Mueller is writing.

HIRONO:

Well, you said that the Mueller report is confidential pursuant to whatever the regulations
are that applies to him, so I'm just trying to get as to what you're going to be transparent

about.

BARR:

The--as the rules stand now, people should be aware that the rules, I think, say that the
independent, the special counsel will prepare a summary report on any prosecutive or
declination decisions and that that shall be confidential and shall be treated as any other
declination or prosecutive material within the department. In addition, the attorney general
is responsible for notifying and reporting certain information upon the conclusion of the
investigation. Now how these are going to fit together and what can be gotten out there, I
have to wait and--I would have to wait. I'd want to talk to Rod Rosenstein and see what he

has discussed with Mueller and what, you know, what

HIRONO:
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3/18/2019 cQ

But you have testified that you'd like to make as much of the original report--

BARR:
Right. And so what--all I can say right now is--

HIRONO:

--open as possible.

BARR:
Yeah. All I can say right now is my goal and intent is to get as much information out as I can-

HIRONO:
Thank you.

BARR:

--consistent with the regulations.

HIRONO:

So in the minute that I have, I'd just like to go over some of the policies that Jeff Sessions has
followed. One is a zero-tolerance policy, which led to the separation of children from their
parents. He refused to defend the Affordable Care Act and argued in the Texas lawsuit that
key parts of the ACA was unconstitutional. He failed to bring a single lawsuit to enforce a
voting rights act to stop voter suppression efforts, and he issued a memo making it harder
for the civil rights division to enter into consent decrees to address systemic police

misconduct. Do you agree with these policies? Do you intend to continue them?

BARR:
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The last one, yes, I agree with that policy. The other ones, I'm not--I'd have to see what the

basis was for those decisions.

HIRONO:

So do you think that as to the last one, which has to do with consent decrees that there isa

role for the Department of Justice in addressing systemic police misconduct?

BARR:
No, there--

HIRONO:

You don't see much of a role in that?

BARR:

No, that's your character--

HIRONO:

Or you see a more limited role?

BARR:

That's your characterization of it. That's not what I understand the policy to be. Of course

the department has a role in pattern and practice violations.

HIRONO:

So the Attorney General Sessions has issued a rule that makes it a lot tougher to enter into

these kinds of decrees.

BARR:
Why do you say it's a lot tougher?
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3/18/2019 cQ

HIRONO:

Because it's not just relying on the career attorneys, that now it goes to the deputy AG or
whoever--there are more political appointees who are going to get involved in that process,

and that makes it much more limited, I would say, in utilization. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:
(INAUDIBLE) Hirono. We'll take a 10-minute comfort break and start with Senator Tillis. If

my math is right, we've got about an hour left on round one, so 10 minutes be okay, Mr.

Barr?

BARR:
Mm-hm.

GRAHAM:
Okay, thank you. Adjourned for 10 minutes.

GRAHAM:

Thank you, Mr. Barr. I think what we have left on our side is Kennedy, Senator Kennedy,
Blackburn, and Tillis, and Senator Booker, Senator Harris. Anybody else? I think that's it in

round one. So, Senator Kennedy?

KENNEDY:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, do you--do you know of any instance in which anybody

has tried to interfere in Mr. Mueller's investigation?

BARR:
No. I mean, I'm not--I'm not in the Department of Justice and I have no--you know, I'm not

privy to that information. But I don't know of any.
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KENNEDY:

I understand you know Mr. Mueller. Do you?

BARR:
Yes, I do.

KENNEDY:

Is he big enough to take care of himself?

BARR:

He's a Marine.

KENNEDY:

Yeah. If someone had tried to interfere with his investigation, based on your knowledge of
Mr. Mueller, would he have something to say about it, including but not limited to in a court

of law?

BARR:

Yes, senator.

KENNEDY:

I--I want to try to cut through some of the innuendo here. Did--did President Trump instruct

or ask you, once you become attorney general, to fire Mr. Mueller?

BARR:
Absolutely not.

KENNEDY:
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Did he ask you to interfere in Mr. Mueller's investigation?

BARR:
Absolutely not.

KENNEDY:
Has anybody in the White House made that suggestion to you?

BARR:
Absolutely not.

KENNEDY:

Has anybody in the Western Hemisphere made that suggestion to you?

BARR:
Absolutely not.

KENNEDY:
Okay.

I want to associate myself--myself with the remarks of Mr. Blumenthal about the FBI being
the premier law enforcement agency in the history of the world, in my opinion, and the high
esteem--esteem in which we all hold the Department of Justice. But I have a question for
you. This counterintelligence investigation that was started by FBI and Justice about--

allegedly about President Trump, how did the New York Times get that information?

BARR:

I don't know, senator.
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3/18/2019 cQ

KENNEDY:

Well, didn't it have to come from the FBI or the Department of Justice?

BARR:

I--I--Ijust can't say. I don't know how they got it and I don't know whether that's an accurate

report.

KENNEDY:
Right. What do you intend to do about the leaks coming out of the FBI and the Department

of Justice?

BARR:
The problem of leaks is a difficult--a difficult one to address. I think the first thing is to--is to

make it clear that there's an expectation that there are no leaks and punish people through
discipline--internal discipline if there are leaks, also keep--you know, exercise more
compartmentalization and discipline and--and make the--the institutions that are
responsible--if you're talking about the FBI, that their leadership is taking aggressive action

to stop the leaks.

KENNEDY:
Okay.

You've had some experience with the enforcement of our immigration laws, is that correct?

BARR:
That's right, senator.

KENNEDY:
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Do you believe it is possible to secure a 1,900 mile border without, in part at least, using

barriers?

BARR:
No, I don't think it's possible.

KENNEDY:
Okay.

BARR:
When I was--when I was attorney general, we--we had the INS as part of the department.
And I remember another part of my kibitzing was trying to persuade George W. Bush's

administration not to break that out.

But in those days, I had some studies done and I was trying, within the budget, to put as--as

much as we could on--

KENNEDY:

--Um-hmm--

BARR:

--Barriers as we could.

KENNEDY:
Okay. Do you believe that ICE should be abolished, as some of my colleagues do?

BARR:

Certainly not.
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KENNEDY:
Okay.

You're Roman Catholic, are you not?

BARR:

Yes, I am.

KENNEDY:

Do you think that disqualifies you from serving in the United States government?

BARR:

I don't think so, no.

KENNEDY:
Okay. Why is that?

BARR:
Why doesn't it disqualify me?

KENNEDY:

Um-hmm. Some of my colleagues think it might.

BARR:

Because you render under Caesar that which is Caesar's and under God that which is God.
And I believe in the separation of church and state. And I--if there was something that was

against my conscience, I wouldn't--I wouldn't impose it on others. I would resign my office.

KENNEDY:
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3/18/2019 cQ

Yeah. I think it's called freedom of religion--

BARR:

--Yes--

KENNEDY:

--As I recall.

BARR:
That's right.

KENNEDY:

If the--if the federal government threatens to withhold federal money from a university if
that university doesn't investigate, prosecute, punish sexual assault in a way prescribed by
the federal government, does that make the state university a state actor--or the--the

university a state actor?

BARR:

It--it may. I--you know, I would have to look at the case--or the cases. I'm not up to speed on

those. But I would think so.

KENNEDY:

Well, if the--if the federal government says to a university, look, if you do not prosecute,
investigate, punish allegations of sexual assault in a way that--that the federal government
says you must, otherwise we're going to take away your federal money, does--does the
accused in one of those sexual assault allegations still have the protection of the Bill of

Rights?

BARR:
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I--Iwould hope so.

KENNEDY:
Should he or her?

BARR:

I--you know, I'd have to look and see exactly the state actor law right now. But--but what
you're getting at is, you know, the--the--the rules that were forced on universities in

handling sexual harassment cases--

KENNEDY:
--Right--

BARR:

--That, you know, I felt did--essentially did away with due process.

KENNEDY:
Yes.

BARR:

And, you know, I think the--the--you know, as a--as a father of three daughters, you know, I
take very seriously any question of sexual harassment. It's a serious problem. And the--the
word of a--of a victim has to be taken very seriously and it has to be pursued, but we can't do

it at the expense of the Bill of Rights or--or basic fairness and due process.

KENNEDY:

Both the accused and the accuser deserve due process, do they not?

BARR:
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That's right.

KENNEDY:
Okay.

Tell me what the legal basis is for a universal injunction.

BARR:

I think universal injunctions are--have no--well, let me say that--that they are a--a recent
vintage. They really started arising in the '60s. And I--I think that they have lost sight of a
limitation on the--on the judicial power of the United States, which is case or controversy.

And it--

KENNEDY:
--It's all--it's all based on a DC Circuit--

BARR:
~-Right--

KENNEDY:
--case. It--the Wirtz case. Is that right?

BARR:
I forgot the name of the case, but I think the DC Circuit case was the first--the first one. I

think that was in the '60s. And people have lost sight of the fact that it's really a question of
who gets the relief in a case. And under the case or controversy, it should be limited to the

parties.

And, you know, when--earlier you could have a--you could have a court in one jurisdiction

decide it, and that would be the rule in that jurisdiction.
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3/18/2019 cQ

KENNEDY:

Um-hmm.

BARR:

But that didn't debar the government from continuing its policies elsewhere. And eventually
you'd get differences and they would work their way up to the Supreme Court. So, I think

that I'd like to see these universal injunctions challenged.

KENNEDY:
Well, it's not--it's not--I don't know how many federal district court judges we have. Let's say
650, six hundred and fifty. As [ understand it, one can enjoin a Congressional statute

nationwide even if the other 624 judges disagree.

BARR:
That's right.

KENNEDY:
Right.

BARR:

And not just a statute, senator. I think what's different, the--what we're seeing is the
willingness of courts to set aside, you know, even the kinds of exercises of national security
power that, you know, 20 years ago would have been unimaginable for a court to challenge.

And yet, a district court judge somewhere can enjoin--

KENNEDY:
--Yeah--
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

--Some action that has a bearing on the safety of the nation, and then the judicial process

can take years and years to get that up to the Supreme Court.

KENNEDY:

I've just got a few seconds left. As I--as I understand your testimony, general, Mr. Mueller
will write a report, submit it to you as attorney general, and you--then you will write a report

based on that report and release your report. Is that right?

BARR:

That's essentially it, but I wouldn't--you know, it could easily be that the report is
communicated to the department--assuming I was confirmed. That could be a month away.

Idon't--

KENNEDY:

--Well--well, let me tell you what I'm getting at. ['ve got six seconds; now four. The
American people deserve to know what the Department of Justice has concluded, and

they're smart enough to figure it out.

I've said this before. The American people don't read Aristotle every day. They--they're too
busy earning a living. But if you give them the facts, they'll figure it out and they'll draw

their own conclusions. It doesn't matter who spins 'em. They'll figure it out for themselves.

And I would strongly encourage you to put this all to rest, to--to--to make a report--a final
report public and let everybody draw their own conclusions so we can move on. If somebody
did something wrong, they should be punished. But if they didn't, let's stop the innuendo

and the rumors and the leaking and let's move on.

BARR:

I agree, senator.
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3/18/2019 cQ
And let me say, you know, earlier I misspoke, because the acting attorney general is Matt
Whitaker, and I--and I referred to Rod as the acting attorney general. But in fact, the report

would go to Matt Whitaker.

KENNEDY:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

BOOKER:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and I would like to remark Mr. Barr that your family is showing a
prestigious level of patience and indefatigable endurance that should be marked for the

record. You are a very lucky man.

You know that about 30+ states have legalized medical marijuana or adult use. You are

aware of that, correct?

BARR:

Yes, yes. In 2018 Attorney General Jeff Sessions rescinded the Cole Memorandum which
provided guidance to U.S. attorneys that the federal marijuana prohibition should not be
enforced in states that have legalized marijuana in one way or the other. Do you believe it

was the right decision to rescind the coal memorandum?

BARR:

My approach to this would be not to upset settled expectations and the reliance interest that
have arisen as a result of the Cole Memorandum and--and investments have been made and
so there have been reliance on it so I don't think it's appropriate to upset those interests.
However, I think the current situation is untenable and really has to be addressed. It's
almost like a backdoor nullification of federal law. To me, it's a binary choice, either we have

a federal law that applies to everybody--

BOOKER:
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3/18/2019 cQ

And--and I'm sorry to interrupt you sir, but how--how would you address that?

BARR:
Well--

BOOKER:

Do you think it's appropriate to use federal resources to target marijuana businesses that are

in compliance with state laws?

BARR:

No, I--I said that's what I said I'm not going to go after companies that have relied on the
Cole Memoranda. We either should have on--a federal law that prohibits marijuana
everywhere which I would support myself because I think it's a mistake to back off on
marijuana. However, if we want a federal approach if we want states to have their own laws

then let's get there and let's get there the right way.

BOOKER:

And if you don't mind, I'm going to just move on it's good to hear at least the first part of
what--what you said. During your previous tenure as attorney general, you literally wrote
the book on mass incarceration or at least wrote this-this--this report the case for more

incarceration. You argue that we as a nation were quote incarcerating too few criminals.

BARR:
In those days.

BOOKER:

And--and that the solution was more incarceration for more people.

BARR:
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Excuse me.

BOOKER:

Please, sir.

BARR:

For chronic violent offenders and gun offenders.

BOOKER:

Well, I mean--I mean that's the challenge, sir, and you argued against the bipartisan

legislation in 2015 quite strenuously.

BARR:
Idid.

BOOKER:

And--and but that's not the--that's not the nature of incarceration in this country. In fiscal
year 2016, only 7.7 percent of the federal prison population was convicted of violent
crimes. Overwhelmingly what was initiated in those times that led to an 800 percent
increase in the federal prison population overwhelmingly that was nonviolent drug

offenders set--right now our federal prison population is overwhelmingly nonviolent.

47.5 percent of the federal prison population are in incarcerated for--for drug offenses and I
guess hearing your arguments then and hearing your arguments against the bipartisan

legislation that we brought out of the committee in 2016--

BARR:
Senator, I think that's wrong what--what you just said. Okay? I think when you have violent

gangs in the city killing people, murder and so forth and so on sometimes the most readily
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3/18/2019 cQ
provable charge is their drug trafficking offenses rather than proving culpability of the whole

gang for murder.

So you can take out--you can take out a gang on drug offenses and it--you could be taking
out a lot of violent offenders. Do you think that the murders in Chicago are--they are related

to gangs--

BOOKER:
And again--

BARR:
--including gangs involved in (INAUDIBLE).

BOOKER:

Sir, and again we can--we can get into the data if you'd like and I'd like to get some more
pointed questioning but this is the sort of--these are sort of the tropes that make people
believe that in inner cities we should have such a profound incarceration rates. And I'd like
to ask you specifically about that data because I think it's language like that that makes me

kind of concerned and worried.

You said you hadn't reviewed, you said earlier in your testimony you hadn't reviewed
criminal justice data about this actual issue of incarceration versus non-incarceration. I just
want to know will you commit to commissioning a study on just the con--concerns that we
are talking about right now, about the efficacy of reducing mass incarceration and publish

those results? Would you be willing to do such a study yourself?

BARR:
Well, as  understand it, I've been told that there's a lot of data to support the First Step Act.

BOOKER:
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3/18/2019 cQ
And--and that First Step Act goes directly towards addressing a lot of the problems we've
had in mass incarceration and--and--and so if you are saying that it is necessary to deal with
violence in communities by over-incarcerating here's a bipartisan group of senators that's
working towards reducing mass incarceration and that's why I think it's very important

which I appreciate you saying you didn't know because you hadn't reviewed the data.

I think it's very important that you review the data and understand the implications for the
language that you are using which brings up this language of race which is often not said
explicitly. But when you talk about Chicago in the way you just did it brings up racial fears or
racial concerns. And you stated that if a black and a white this is quoting you directly are
changed with the same offense generally, they will get the same treatment in the system and
ultimately the same penalty. You previously quoted and I quote you again there's no

statistical evidence that--of racism in the criminal justice system, do you still believe that?

BARR:

No, what I said was that I think that's taken out of a broader quote which is the whole
criminal just--that whole criminal ice system involves both federal but also state local justice
systems and I said there's no doubt that there are places where there's racism still in this
system. But I said overall, I thought that as a system it's working. It does not--it's not

predicated on--

BOOKER:

So can I press you on that? Overall the system treats blacks and whites fairly from my own
experience I've lived in affluent communities, I've gone to the college campuses
(INAUDIBLE). There are certain drug laws applied there that's very different than the inner-

city community in which I live but let's talk stats, let's not talk our personal experiences.

And so I've sat with many of my colleagues and many conservatives who readily admit what
the data shows and so I have a whole bunch of reports which I'll enter into the record from
nonpartisan, bipartisan groups, even conservative leaders talking about the rife nature of

racial bias within the system. For example, the federal government's own data, the U.S.
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3/18/2019 cQ
Sentencing Commission's research shows that federal prosecutors are more likely to charge
blacks with offenses that carry harsh mand--mandatory minimum sentences than similarly
situated for whites. The federal government's own data shows that black defendants were
subject to three-strike sentencing enhancements and a statistically significantly higher rate

which added on average over 10 years to their sentences.

And so with numerous researchers having found funding racial disparities right throughout
our system and in the federal system which you will be the chief law enforcement officer of
and primarily for drug--overwhelmingly for drug laws. For example I don't know if you are
aware or not of the Brookings study that found that blacks are 3.6 times more likely to be
arrested for selling drugs despite the fact that whites are actually more likely to sell drugs in
the United States of America and blacks are 2.5 times more likely to be arrested for
possession of drugs when there is no difference racially in America for the usage and
possession of drugs in the United States. I don't know if you--are you familiar with the

Brookings study?

BARR:

No, I'm not.

BOOKER:

Okay, so just a follow-up. Will you commit to commissioning a study examining racial
disparities and disparate impacts of the policies that you talked about and that--that led to
mass incarceration, the policies that you defended when you criticized the bipartisan 2015
sentencing reform legislation? Will you commit to at least as the--as the most important law
enforcement officer in the land to studying those well-documented racial disparities and the

impacts it has?

BARR:
Of course--of course I'll commit to studying that and I'll have the Bureau of Justice Statistics
pull together everything they have and if there's something lacking, I'll--I'll get that and I'm
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3/18/2019 cQ
interested in the state experience. But when I looked at--I think 1992 was a different time,
senator. The crime rate had quintupled over the preceding 30 years and it peaked in 1992

and it's been coming down since 1992.

BOOKER:

And--and sir I just want to say I was a young black guy in 1990s. I was a 20 something-year-
old and experienced a dramatically different justice system and the treatment that I

received--

BARR:
Okay.

BOOKER:

And the data of racial disparities and what it's done to black--because you literally said this
about black communities and I know that your heart, I know that your heart was in the right
place. You said that hey, I want to help black communities. This is what you're saying the
benefits of incarceration would be enjoyed disproportionately by black Americans living in

inner cities. You also said that quote a failure to incarcerate hurts black Americans most--

BARR:
And I'll tell you what's--

BOOKER:

And I'just want to ask you a yes or no question because I have seconds left. Do you believe
now 30, 40 years of mass incarceration targeted disproportionately towards African-
Americans, harsher sentences, disproportionately represented in the criminal justice system
with American Bar Association talking about once you've been incarcerated for even a low-

level drug crime there are 40,000 collateral consequences that impact your life jobs, Pell
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Grants, loans from banks. Do you think just yes or no that this system of mass incarceration

has disproportionately benefited African-American communities? Yes or no, sir?

BARR:
I think the reduction in crime has over--since 1992 but I think that the--that the heavy drug

penalties, especially on crack and other things, have--have harmed the black community,

the incarceration rates upon the black community.

BOOKER:

And I would just conclude to--to my chairman and partner thank you, sir, on this because
I'm really grateful for this bipartisan group for the Heritage Foundation. I've spoken at the
AEI Conference, just found such great partnership. But I worry about the highest law
enforcement officer in the land and some of the language I still hear you using that goes
against the data and that you're going to be expected to oversee a justice system that you and
I both know needs the faith and confidence of communities that has dramatically lost that

confidence because of implicit racial bias.

And the DOJ and I'll give you a chance to respond, the DOJ itself has said mandated implicit
racial bias training and I hope that's something that you will agree to do but this is the thing
I'll conclude on is that we live in--in on a planet Earth where you can tell the most about a

nation bike who they incarcerate.

In Turkey they incarcerate journalists. Thank God we don't do that here even though
they've been called the enemy of the people. In Russia, they incarcerate political opponents.
I'm glad we don't do that even though with chants of lock her up. But you go into the

American criminal prisons, sir, and you see the most vulnerable people.

You see over stigmatized mentally ill people clogging our system. You see over stigmatized
addicted people clogging our system. You see a system whereas Bryan Stevenson says it

treat you better if you are rich and guilty than if you are poor and innocent. And you see

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 151/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028123


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

3/18/2019 cQ
disproportionately overwhelmingly for drug crimes African-Americans and Latinos being

Incarcerated.

The importance of your job and I'll ask you this last question because you haven't met with
me yet, you've given that courtesy to others, would you please meet with me in my office so
you and I can have a heart to heart on the urgency, the cancer on the soul of our country's
criminal justice system is a disproportionate impact of that system on those vulnerable
communities including women, over 80 percent of whom--the women we incarcerate are
survivors of sexual trauma? Can you and I sit down and have a longer conversation than

these 10 minutes will allow on this issue?

BARR:

I'd--1'd I very much welcome that, senator. You know I--my experience back in 1992 when
I--when sort of blood was running on the streets all over the United States my ideas were
actually first formed when I went to Trenton and the African-American community there
essentially surrounded me and was saying look, we are in our golden years. We are trying to
enjoy our golden years and we can't even go outside our house. We have bars on our house

and so forth. Please, will you--? These gangs are running roughshod.

So I developed this idea called weed and seed and my attitude was look, let's stop arguing
past each other on--let's attack root causes and let's get tough on crime. And I--and I felt that
for--for programs to work like afterschool programs and so forth for housing projects to be
safe we needed strong enforcement in those communities and we needed those other
programs to be brought to bear community by community and it had to be done with the

leadership of the community and that was this idea of the partnership and it caught on.

It was very popular and in fact, it was continued by a lot of the U.S. attorneys in the Clinton
administration after the Bush administration was out. And it is actually a number of
different names has continued. So I'm very conscious of the issues you raise but my goal is
to provide safe, was and my motivation was to provide safety in these neighborhoods for the

people trying to raise their children and for the older people and so forth.
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BOOKER:
And--

BARR:

I think the neighborhoods are--you know, the crime rate has gone down. I make a
distinction between the way we treat these chronic violent offenders and the drug penalties.
The drug penalties as I said very high and draconian and in some cases that might have been

necessary but I supported revisiting the penalty structure.

BOOKER:

And, sir, I-- I'm the only United States senator that lives in an inner-city low-income
community. I've had shootings in my neighborhood, a young man killed last year on my
block with an assault weapon. I know this urgent need for safety and security and I actually
I'm not saying I'm necessarily going to vote for you one way or the other but I believe your
intentions are well. But I think that some of the things you said in the past lead me to believe

that your policies might be misguided.

In the way that Mike Lee and Cornyn and Graham and Grassley have been incredible
partners in changing the American reality I hope that you can be that kind of partner, too,
and I hope that you and I can have a good heart to heart conversation trusting that we both
want the same end for all communities, safety, and security but a justice system that is fair

to all American citizens.

BARR:

I'd welcome that, senator.

BOOKER:

Thank you, sir.
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GRAHAM:

Senator Blackburn.

BLACKBURN:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And we appreciate your time today, Mr. Barr, and that of your
family. I told Liam that Grandpa ought to give him whatever he wants to eat for dinner

tonight.
(LAUGHTER)

He has behaved very well and done a great job. Going back to something that Senator
Kennedy mentioned on leaks, and you said you would address that by
compartmentalization. Talk for just a little bit about your vision for the Department of
Justice as you look at implementing first steps, addressing violent crime, dealing with
opioids, dealing with online sex trafficking, the antitrust issues, the Mueller investigation,
all the things we've talked about, how do you intend to lead that department that is very

different from the DOJ that you led previously?

BARR:

In some ways it's different. In some ways it's not so different. But my basic approach to
things is to get good lieutenants, good subordinates who--running different parts of the
agenda and give them, you know, their marching orders and watch them perform and get
involved to the extent I can to make sure that we're pushing the priorities things--things
ahead. One of the interesting things about the Department of Justice--it's a little different
than many agencies--is one of our--our first priority has to be to enforce all the law. It's not
like we can just come into work and say well, we're just going to pay attention to this, so
we're not going to enforce all these other laws. We have to cover the waterfront. That's
number one. But beyond that, what I tried to do last time, and what I would try to do if you

confirm me this time, would be, you know, to make sure that even though we're enforcing
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things across the board, we have an understood set of priorities, and we put the effort

behind those pri
orities, and we define clearly what we're trying to--what we're trying to achieve.

So for example, in the area of civil rights, when I was attorney general last time, and T had
discussed this with Senator Kennedy, I said you know, we're not doing enough on housing
discrimination. Housing is very important. It determines where you go to school and all--
you know, the safety and so forth. And I set up a program. We hired testers and stuftf like
that, and we had a very clear goal and priority for that. And we launched it. And that's what,
you know, that's what I plan to bring in area after area, defining what we're trying to
accomplish and give the people the tools to get it done, and give them the direction and

motivation to get it done.

BLACKBURN:

You've mentioned the Mueller investigation and your relationship with Mr. Mueller having
him finish the investigation. If we were to ask him about you, do you think he, his
assessment would be that you are a fair and impartial leader, that he can trust--that we can

trust to lead the DOJ?

BARR:
[--I--T hope he would say that, but I'm not going to put--I'm not going to put words in his

mouth.

BLACKBURN:

Words in his mouth. Yeah. We talked about technology and my interest in that area, and
you've had--Mr. Lee and Mr. Hawley have also talked about antitrust and some of the
enforcement there. Big Tech, and Silicon Valley, and the power that is harbored there, they
are gobbling up a lot of their competitors. You've got Facebook and Google that are claiming
to only be platforms for their users. But they are also getting into the content business, and
that is why Facebook bought Instagram and WhatsApp and Google bought YouTube and
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DeepMind for Al technology. So their tentacles are spreading, and they are moving away
from a platform into that content, into artificial intelligence. And their market dominance is
causing some problems. And as we discussed, these companies are violating users' privacy.
They are recklessly sharing their users' personal data with third parties. This is done without
explicit permission. We can't let these companies collude to drive out competitors or to

ignore vital data
privacy protections.

And big Tech operated really without regard to the law. And you and I talked a little bit
about one of the edge provider CEOs who last spring, when he came before a House
committee--he was also here before this committee--there was even reference to how--I
discussed how he subjectively manipulated or asked if he subjectively manipulated
algorithms, and how there was concern that some of these platforms referencing a
statement he had made functioned more like a government than a platform or an
information service. So how do you intend to begin this conversation and begin this work

addressing the antitrust provisions with Big Tech?

BARR:

Yes, you know, as I mentioned, I'm interested in these issues and would like to have them
fully ventilated at the department with the antitrust division and also with, you know,
outside experts so I can have a better understanding. I do want to say, however, that I'm

going to be recusing myself from AT&T because--

BLACKBURN:

Time Warner, yeah.

BARR:

Yeah, because now Time Warner is part of AT&T.

BLACKBURN:
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Right.

BARR:
And I was told that under the rules that will carry over to AT&T. So until I talk to the ethics

advisors of the department, I don't want to get too far ahead of my skis and sort of talking
about the tech area. But as a general policy matter, I want to get into this area because I

think it's on a lot of people's minds and--

BLACKBURN:
Absolutely.

BARR:

--and how the law relates to these, you know, to these developments that we see with these
large companies. And I don't mean to cast aspersions on any particular company or

executive.

BLACKBURN:

Well, and I think for many of us, if you're looking at a merger and they cannot prove the
efficiencies, and they cannot prove that there will be increased competition, then it does
raise some questions as to how those would be evaluated. And let me go to one other issue
that is developing on this privacy front. It is a data privacy problem that I don't think a lot of
people realize, and it is the embedding of hardware and then the geolocation, and
sometimes that information is sold. Now it folds into the encryption issue because law
enforcement has a very difficult time getting the information from devices and from the
services on encryption. But we are now aware that many times bounty hunters will be paid a
few hundred dollars, and then they can go in and find the location of that phone. And some
of these Android operating systems are specific enough that they do the barometric pressure
readings, and they can tell you exactly where in a building that this phone is located. So I

would hope th
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at you are going to look at the legal procedures that surround this kind of data and this kind
of tracking, and the privacy provisions that are going to pertain to consumers as they use

these devices.

BARR:
Yes.

BLACKBURN:

That--good. Thank you. Let me move on. Senator Ernst talked a little bit about the online
sex trafficking. In Tennessee we have followed this issue so closely because our TBI carried
out a--an operation where they apprehended 22 traffickers. 22 men were arrested for sex
trafficking. And much of that work and the work I've done in the House on the online sex
trafficking, working to shut down Backpage.com and to keep our children and keep women
safe from these online traffickers, and you know, we were so pleased that last April the
Justice Department seized Backpage and charged seven defendants for facilitating
prostitution and sex trafficking crimes. And what we know is that when you shut down a site
like Backpage, the big one, then you have a lot of small sites that proliferate. And we know
that it is going to really take a lot of effort to arrest this situation so that you're not constantly
playing whack-a-mole with these. So I would hope that you will be committed to putting an

end to this

kind of violence and online trafficking.

BARR:

Yes, senator. You know, and I know how focused you are on it and the leadership you've
provided over the years on it. I don't know that much about the problem and also about what
resources are currently being devoted to it in the department, but I would like to come by

and--

BLACKBURN:
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Great.

BARR:

--talk to you further about it once I get exposed to it, if I'm confirmed.

BLACKBURN:
Thank you. My time has expired. Mr. Chairman, I yield back. Thank you, Mr. Barr.

HARRIS:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and congratulations. And to you, congratulations on your
nominations and--and thank you for you are not your lifetime of dedication of public

service.

BARR:
Thank you.

HARRIS:

In response to a question that Senator Ernst asked, you mentioned that we need barriers

across the border to deal with drug trafficking. Are you advocating a wall?

BARR:

Well, I--I think I'm advocating a--a--a system, a barrier system. In some places and--and--

and I'd have to find out more about the situation since--since I last visited the border.

HARRIS:

From what you know, do you believe that a wall would address the concern that you have

about drug trafficking?
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BARR:

Well a wall certainly would, but I--in some quick places it may not be necessary to have, you

know, what most people imagine as a wall.

HARRIS:

Are you aware that most of the drugs coming into United States is, in particular through

Mexico, are entering through ports of entry?

BARR:

Yes, but they also come elsewhere and so do illegal immigrants crossing the border and

basically--

HARRIS:

--But particularly on the subject of drug trafficking, are you aware that most of the drugs that

are trafficked into the United States enter through points of entry?

BARR:
Yes.

HARRIS:

Have you recently or ever visited a point of entry--a port of entry for the United States?

BARR:

Not recently. Not recently. I used to spend a lot of time--

HARRIS:

--When was the last time?
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BARR:

Well, when I was attorney general.

HARRIS:

So a couple of decades ago?

BARR:
Almost 30 years.

HARRIS:

Okay, I'd--I'd urge you to visit again if and when you are confirmed. You'll--I think you'll see
that a lot has changed over the years. Given status quo on marijuana and the fact that 10
states, including the District of Columbia, have legalized marijuana, and--and given that the
status quo is what it is and, as you rightly described, we have federal laws and then there are
various states that have different laws, if confirmed, are you intending to use the limited
federal resources at your disposal to enforce federal marijuana laws in the states that have

legalized marijuana?

BARR:
No, I--I--I thought I answered that by saying that--that, you know, to the extent that people
are complying with--with the state laws, you know, in distribution and--and production and

so forth, we're not going to go after that.

HARRIS:
Okay.

BARR:

But, I--I do feel we can't stay in the current situation because I mean, if--you can imagine

any kind of situation. Can an existing administration and an attorney general start cutting
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deals with states to say well, we're not going to apply the federal law, you know, so some gun

law or some other thing and say well, we're not going to apply it in your state.

HARRIS:

I appreciate your point, but--but specifically, and I appreciate you answering the question,
you do not intend to use the limited federal resources at your disposal to enforce federal

marijuana laws in those states or in the District of Columbia that have legalized marijuana?

BARR:
That's right, but I think--

HARRIS:
--Thank you--

BARR:

--The Congress of the United States, it's incumbent on the Congress to--to regularize--you
know, make a decision as to whether we're going to have a federal system or whether it's

going to be, you know, a central federal law because--

HARRIS:
--I--T agree with you, INAUDIBLE)--

BARR:

--This is breeding disrespect for the federal law.

HARRIS:

I agree with you. I--I believe Congress should act. I agree. Earlier today, Senator Leahy
asked whether you would follow the recommendation of career Department of Justice

ethics officials on whether you should recuse yourself from the Mueller investigation. You
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said, "I will seek the advice of the career ethics personnel, but under the regulations, I make

the decisions as the head of the agency as to my own recusal."

You also said to Senator Klobuchar that you do not want to, "Abdicate your duty since
recusal decision would be yours." So my question is, would it be appropriate to go against
the advice of career ethics officials that have recommended recusal, and can you give an
example of under what situation or scenario you would go against their recommendation

that you recuse yourself?

BARR:
Well there--there--there are different kinds of recusal. Some are mandated, for example, if

you have a financial interest, but there are others that are judgment calls.

HARRIS:
Let's imagine it's a judgment call and the judgment by the career ethics officials in the

agency are that you recuse yourself.

BARR:

Then--then in--

HARRIS:

--Under what scenario would you not follow their recommendation?

BARR:
If I disagreed with it.

HARRIS:
And what with the basis of that disagreement be?

BARR:
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I came to a different judgment.

HARRIS:

On what basis?

BARR:
The facts.

HARRIS:

Such as?

BARR:

Such as whatever facts are relevant to the recusal.

HARRIS:

What you imagine the facts would be that are relevant to the recusal?

BARR:
They could be innumerable. I mean, there are a lot of, you know, for example, there's a rule

of necessity, like who else would be handling it, it could be--

HARRIS:

--Do you believe that would be a concern in this situation if you are--if the recommendation
is that you recuse yourself from the Mueller investigation, do you believe that would be a

concern, that there would be no one left to do the job?

BARR:
No, I'm just saying--well, in some contexts, there very well might be because of, you know,

who--who's confirmed for what and--and who's in what position. But apart from that, it's a
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judgment call and the attorney general is the person who makes the judgment. And that's

what the job entails.

HARRIS:

As a general matter, that's true, but specifically on this issue, what--under what scenario
would you imagine that you would not follow the recommendation of the career ethics

officials and the Department of Justice to recuse yourself from the Mueller investigation?

BARR:
If I disagreed with them.

HARRIS:

Okay, will move on. Senator Feinstein previously asked you whether you'd put your June
2018 memo--whether you put together that memo based on nonpublic information. Your
response was that you, "Did not rely on confidential information." Are you creating a

distinction between nonpublic information and confidential information?

BARR:
No.

HARRIS:

Okay. In response to a question from Senator Durbin about harsh sentencing laws, you
stated in response to the crack epidemic that community leaders, back when you were
attorney general previously, asked for these types of sentencing laws. Now, my
understanding is that many of these community leaders at that time, and I was a young
prosecutor during those days, knew and said even then that the crack epidemic was a public
health crisis and that--that was really the chorus coming from community leaders, not that

they wanted drug addicted people to be locked up.
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And similarly now, we can find that, in most of the communities afflicted by the opioid
crisis, they are similarly, these community leaders, asking that it be addressed for the public
health crisis that is. So my question is if and when you are confirmed in this position, would
you agree that, when we talk about the opioid crisis, the crisis in terms of methamphetamine
addiction or any other controlled substance, that we should also acknowledge the public
health ramifications and causes and that there is a role for the chief law enforcement officer
of the United States to play in advocating for public health response and not only a lock

them up response?

BARR:

Well, I--I think the commission that was chaired by Governor Chris Christie came up with a
three-pronged strategy and I think that recognized that part of it was a treatment, an
education, recovery, and prevention. But the third prong of it was enforcement and
interdiction, and that's the job of the Department of Justice. The Department of Justice can't

be all things to all people and--

HARRIS:

--sir, but I would suggest to you that in the intervening almost 30 years since you were last
attorney general, that--that--that there is consensus in the United States that when we look
at the drug epidemic, whatever the narcotic may be, that there is now an understanding that
the war on drugs was an abject failure, that America, frankly, has a crisis of addiction, and
that putting the limited resources of our federal government into locking up people who--
who suffer from a public health crisis is probably not the smartest use of taxpayer dollars. So
if confirmed, I'd ask that you take a look at the more recent perspective on the drug crisis

that is afflicting our country. And I'll move on, today there is $1 billion--

BARR:

--well, excuse me, can I just say something in response to that?

HARRIS:
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Sure.

BARR:
Which is I was just making the observation that the job of the Department of Justice is
enforcement. I recognize there are a lot of dimensions to the problem, and that's what we

have places like HHS. The department can't, you know, can't do the job of everybody.

HARRIS:

Sir, but I would remind you what you said because I agree with it, you said earlier the role of
the attorney general, one, is to enforce the rule of law, two is a legal advisor to the president
and the cabinet, and three is policy. This is a policy issue, so I urge you to emphasize that

role and power that you will have if you're confirmed, and think of it that way.

BARR:

I see, yeah.

HARRIS:

I'd like to talk to you with you about private prisons. There is a billion-dollar private prison
industry that profits off of incarcerating people and, frankly, as many as possible. By one
estimate, the two largest private prison companies in the United States make a total
combined profit of $3.3 billion, that's with a B, dollars a year. In August 2016, the Justice
Department issued a report on the Bureau of Prisons, use of private prisons that concluded,
"Contract prisons incurred more safety and security incidents per capita than comparable
Bureau of Prisons institutions." Given this conclusion that prisons run by for-profit
companies have been found to be less safe than government run prisons, if confirmed, will

you commit to no longer renew private prison contracts?

BARR:
Whose report was this? BOP?
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HARRIS:

This was--yes. From the Justice Department.

BARR:
BOP? Yeah, I'd like to, you know, I would obviously look at that report. Yes.

HARRIS:
Okay, and then--

BARR:

--But I'm not committing--I mean, I'd want to see what the--the report says.

HARRIS:

Sure. And then I'd appreciate a follow-up when you have a chance to read it.

BARR:

Sure.

HARRIS:
Thank you. My time is up.

TILLIS:
Thank you, Mr. Chair. Mr. Barr, thank you for being here. And Liam, your granddaddy's

doing good.

Mr. Barr, I want to go back because it's a long time--I think I'm the last person in the first
round. So, I think we have to go back and maybe have you restate some things that you said
earlier before I get to a few other things that I hope I have time to cover on intellectual

property, Americans with Disability Act, and a GAO report back from 2014.
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3/18/2019 cQ
I'm--I do have to ask a question while Senator Kennedy is here 'cause I don't think he
covered the full landscape. He asked about anybody in government, anyone in Western
Hemisphere, but did you in fact talk to anybody in the Eastern Hemisphere with respect to
the Mueller probe?

BARR:
No, I didn't.

TILLIS:
Okay. Thank you. We got that--we got that--

KENNEDY:
--Ask him about the Milky Way.

TILLIS:
We got that closed out.

You know, the--would you go back again and please describe for me the--first off, I think
we've all--you've made it very clear, in spite of the fact some people thought that you had
coaching and some of the citations in the memo that you wrote, that this was a memo you
wrote on your own. Can you explain to me again the--the motivation behind the memo,

what precisely you were trying to communicate, just for the record?

BARR:

Yes, senator. So, the public commentary and media commentary was sort of dominated by
discussion of obstruction of justice, and everyone was throwing out obstruction theories and
so forth. And the statute that relates to obstructing a proceeding that's not yet in being, that

is some future proceeding, is 1512.
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3/18/2019 cQ
And my view was--of the particular provision, 1512(c), was that it requires--what it covers is
obstruction by means of impairing evidence, that you know some evidence is going to be
needed in a future proceeding and you impair it either by making it not available or by
corrupting it in some way, altering it, destroying it. That's what I thought the scope of that

statute dealt with.

And to my knowledge, the only cases ever brought under it involved the destruction of
evidence. Based on public reports, which may be completely wrong, I thought that the--it
was being--that--that the special counsel may be trying to interpret the statute to say that
any act, not destruction of evidence or anything like--but any act that influences a

proceeding is a crime if it's done with a bad intent.

My concern there is that, unlike something like bribery statute or document destruction
where you prohibit it, that's a bad act. You don't need to be performing that bad act if you're
a government official. But if you say that any act that influences a proceeding is a crime if
you have a bad state of mind, that's what the people at Justice Department do every day of

the week is influence proceedings. That's what they're there for.

And what I was worried about is the impact on the department and other agencies if you say
to someone if you, in--in supervising a case or handling a case, make a decision with a--for a
bad intent, it can be a crime. And I thought that that would essentially paralyze the

government.

So, just to give an example, you know, Eric Holder made some pardon recommendations
during the Clinton administration which were controversial. Incidentally, I supported Eric
Holder for his position. But could someone come along then later and say, well, if you did
that for a political reason to help Hillary Clinton run in New York, that's a crime, and when
he's--when he's exercising his prerogatives, you know, in that situation? And you can just see

how that could paralyze government. And that was--

TILLIS:
--Could you--
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

--My concern.

TILLIS:

You also referred to your concerns with the prosecution of Senator Menendez--

BARR:

--Um-hmm--

TILLIS:

--That weave into that same thought process.

BARR:

Yes, because in that case my concern was that they were basically taking activities that were
not, you know, wrongful acts in themselves. You know, the political contributions were
lawful political contributions. And the--the things with, you know, the travel on his friend's--

that was his friend for 25 years. They were taking a trip together.

And you take those kinds of things and then you couple it with official action, and then the
prosecutor comes along and says, well, we're going to look into your mind and see what your
subjective intent was for performing these two sets of lawful acts, and we're going to say,

you know, that you're corrupt.

TILLIS:
Right.

BARR:

So, I'just think that gives too much power to the prosecutor. And I think if that kind of--and

by the way, you know, they've had cases like this for--you know, I mean, they've been
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3/18/2019 cQ
pursuing things like this, and they've had to be slapped down a few times by the Supreme
Court on these kinds of aggressive things involving, you know, quid pro quos on the Hill. So,

I--

TILLIS:

--Let me--

BARR:
--Yeah--

TILLIS:

--If I can--

BARR:
--Yeah--

TILLIS:
--Thank you. I just thought it was helpful because think you tried to explain a lot of that and

you were cut off. So, I thought I'd use some of my time in the first round to ask you that.

Also, I think somebody tried to characterize you as having somehow been opposed to any
sort of Russia probe or Russia investigations. Have you ever gone on record as opposing any
of the things that we're trying to do to figure out where Russia may have been involved in

election tampering?

BARR:
No. And in fact, in the op-ed piece where I said I thought the president was right in firing
Comey, I said that the investigation was going forward under the supervision of Rod

Rosenstein.
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3/18/2019 cQ

TILLIS:

Yeah. Did you also say more than one time that you felt like the special counsel investigation
should reach a conclusion, that--that Special Counsel Mueller shouldn't be--that he should
be allowed to draw this to a--a conclusion, that he will submit his report and you're going to

do everything that you can to present as much of that information as you can--as you can--

BARR:

--Um-hmm--

TILLIS:

--To the extent that confidential information is not being compromised?

BARR:
Well, to the--yeah, to the extent the regulations permit it. Yeah.

TILLIS:
Did you also say that there is--even a scenario where--you can't imagine a scenario for
cause, but even a scenario for cause where you'd have to--you'd have to take under serious

consideration before you would remove special counsel?

BARR:
That's right.

TILLIS:
Yeah. Okay.

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ
There hasn't been a special counsel removed since Archibald Cox, and that didn't work out

very well.

TILLIS:

Didn't work out too well, right.

And so--and again, did you also say that under--in no circumstances have you had a
discussion with the president with respect to--I think you said you had a discussion about
you had a relationship with Mr. Mueller, but no discussion about the special counsel
investigation and your opinions on it with respect to any discussions you've had with the

president?

BARR:
Right. That was the first meeting I had with the president, and then in November I met with

him about the attorney general job. And there was no discussion of the substance of an--of
the investigation. The president didn't ask me my views about any aspect of the
investigation and he didn't ask me about what I would do about anything in the

investigation.

TILLIS:
Yeah.

With respect to the line of questioning about the states that have legalized marijuana, either
for medicinal purposes or recreational purposes, I think what you were trying to say in a

very, very respectful way is it's not your job to do our job. Is that right?

That if we ultimately want to provide certainty for these business--you've done a good job in
saying that you disagree with the policy of the states but we are where we are, and you would
not want to undermine that given that investments have been made, states have moved
forward. But at the end of the day, we should stop talking about it here and making it your

job. And those members--I don't happen to be one of them--who think that we should take
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3/18/2019 cQ
these federal laws off the books should probably file a bill and try and get it done. Is that a

fair assessment of your opinion?

BARR:
That's--that's generally fair, yes. I--

TILLIS:
--Yeah.

BARR:
Yeah.

TILLIS:

Just a few minor things so that we can get to the next round. There was a report by the
inspector general in 2014 that had to do with accountability in the Department of Justice.
I'm--I don't expect you to be familiar with this report. But there were some very interesting
observations there about a lack of follow through on disciplinary action for a number of--I
think the subtitle of the report was that DO]J could strengthen procedures for disciplining

attorneys.

It's something I would commend to you, and maybe dust off and see if there have been any
actions since this report. I didn't get a satisfactory answer when it was contemporary with a
nominee from the Obama administration for the position you're seeking, which is one of the

reasons why I opposed the nomination.

BARR:
Actually, I--I think very highly of Inspector General Horowitz. And I haven't seen that

report, but that issue is one that I plan to take up--

TILLIS:
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--Yeah--

BARR:
--With him.

TILLIS:

And then just so that I do finish on time versus pretend I'm going to and go two minutes
early--over, one, I want to get your recommendation on intellectual property. I think we
have more work to do to give the Department of Justice tools to go after bad actors, which
are China, Russia, India, a number of other countries, Brazil, that are stealing our

intellectual property.

I also want to talk about what I think is the exploitation of the Americans with Disabilities
Act, particularly around website access. The web didn't exist, and now we have attorneys
filing a number of frivolous lawsuits; would like to get some feedback on that after you get

confirmed.

And finally, I want to make sure that you recognize in the First Step Act that faith-based
organizations that have proven to help reduce recidivism are absolutely in play for the First
Step Act. And hopefully we can make sure the Department of Justice moves forward with

that.

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

BARR:

Thank you, senator.

GRAHAM:
I believe that's the end of the--the first round. Mr. Barr, you're able to go for a little bit

longer?
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

Sure.

GRAHAM:
Okay. So, we'll start. We'll do five minutes. As you can tell, I've been pretty liberal with the

time, but let's try to honor it the best we can. Senator Grassley?

GRASSLEY:
Where he left off on using--working with faith-based institutions you were very positive

about that?

BARR:

Absolutely, senator.

GRASSLEY:

That takes care of my first question. Enforcement of the antitrust laws is extremely
important to ensure that markets are fair and participants don't engage in abusive activity
harming consumers. If've been particularly active in making sure that the Justice
Department of Federal Trade Commission carefully scrutinized mergers as well as looking
out for anti-competitive behaviors and predatory practices in certain sectors of the economy
and particularly in my state of Iowa, the agricultural industry. But I'm also pursuing things

in healthcare.

In particular is because I will be chairman of the Senate Finance Committee, I am interested
in making sure back companies in drug and healthcare industries are playing by the rules.
Everyone's concerned about the high cost of healthcare and especially the skyrocketing
price of prescription drugs. Do you agree that the Justice Department has a very important

role in this area?
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

Yes, senator.

GRASSLEY:

And would you commit to making antitrust enforcement a priority?

BARR:

Yes, it has to be a priority.

GRASSLEY:
Okay, thank you.

GRASSLEY:

Now to a favorite issue of mine, whistleblower protection. Whistleblowers, as I told you in
my office, are very critical to exposing waste, fraud, and abuse. They're our eyes and ears on
the ground. Their courage when they have it and they--most of them do have great courage
or they wouldn't come forward to expose government malfeasance, that's how important
they are. So I hope I can have you have a favorable view towards the opportunity to listen to
whistleblowers, protect them from retaliation and promote a culture that values important

contribution from those patriotic people.

BARR:

Absolutely, senator.

GRASSLEY:

Now to the Foreign Agents Registration Act. I hope you understand there have been very
few prosecutions under the Foreign Agents Registration Act since 1938 and so that law
enforcement I think is good thing obviously even since the Mueller investigation getting a
lot more attention now. But we--we had a hearing on it before the committee and I think it
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3/18/2019 cQ
proves that we should see more transparency and more enforcement against bad actors, not

less.

Do you agree that the Foreign Agents Registration Act is a critical national security and
public accountability tool and if confirmed will you commit to make sure that that actisa

top priority?

BARR:

Yes, senator.

GRASSLEY:

Okay. So then getting back to legislation that I think will improve that 1938 Act I introduced
the Disclosing Foreign Influence Act to improve transparency, accountability, and
enforcement. You haven't probably read that act but I would like to work with you even
though it's not in this committee, it's in Foreign Relations Committee. I would like to have
you work with us so it's something that we can pass and make sure that this law is more

useful than it has been over the last 80 years.

I support the Freedom of Information Act and the public disclosure of government
(INAUDIBLE). Transparency yields accountability. You hear me say that all of the time and

that's true, no matter who's in the White House.

When [ was chairman of the committee, I helped steer FOIA Improvement Act into law
which creates a presumption of openness and that presumption of openness is a very
important standard. The Justice Department oversees the federal government's compliance
with FOIA. So I hope you would agree that FOIA is an important tool for holding
government accountable and if confirmed then would you make sure it's a top priority to
make FOIA and the faithful and timely implementation of the 2016 amendments a top

priority?

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ

Yes, we will work hard on that.

GRASSLEY:

Because you know what really happens in the bowels of the bureaucracy, it just takes them
forever because maybe something's going to embarrass on them so they don't want it out in

the public so you get all sorts of excuses. We've got to do away with those excuses.

One way to make FOIA work better is by reducing the number of requests. This will be my
last question. By--one way to make FOIA work better is by reducing the number of requests
that have to be made in the first place. That's why I'm a strong advocate for improved

proactive disclosure.

If confirmed will you commit to help advocate for more proactive disclosure of gover--
rectors (SP)? Now that's not just by the Justice Department but because your government or

your department's top dog in this particular area in the federal government overall?

BARR:

Yes, senator.

GRASSLEY:
Thank you.

GRAHAM:

Senator Feinstein?

FEINSTEIN:

Mr. Barr, I see you have staying power, but I see it runs in the back family, and particularly

your grandson. I'd like to send a little care package down to him.

(LAUGHTER)
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3/18/2019 cQ

He deserves a medal.

BARR:

Thank you, senator.

FEINSTEIN:

You're welcome.

BARR:

He doesn't have to share it with the rest of the family.

FEINSTEIN:

In 1994, you said that gun control is a dead end. It won't reduce the level of violent crime in
our society. The year you made this comment, I introduced a federal assault weapons ban
and the weapon president signed it into law. A 2016 study shows that, compared with the
10-year period before the ban was enacted, the number of gun massacres between '94 and
'04 fell by 37 percent and the number of people dying from gun massacres fell by 43

percent.

In addition, between 2004 and 2014, there has been 183 percent increase in massacres
and a 239 percent increase in massacre deaths. Do you still believe that prudent controls on

weapons won't reduce violent crime? And if so, what is your basis from this conclusion?

BARR:

I think the--the problem of our time is to get an effective system in place that can keep
dangerous firearms out of the hands of mentally ill people. That is--should be priority
number one and it's going to take some hard work and we need to get on top of the problem,
we need to come up with, agree to standards that are prohibitors of people who are mentally
ill, we have to put the resources in to get the system built up the way we did many years ago

on the--on the felon records and so forth. We--we have to get the system working.
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3/18/2019 cQ
And as I say, it's--it's sort of piecemeal a little bit right now. We need to really get some
energy behind it and get it done. And I think we also need to push along the--the ERPOs so
that we have these red flag laws to--to supplement the use of the background check to find
out if someone has some mental disturbance. This is the single most important thing I think
we can do in--in the gun-control area to stop these massacres from happening in the first

place.

FEINSTEIN:
Well, thank you. I'd like to work with you in that regard.

BARR:
Yes.

FEINSTEIN:

In August 2002, the Justice Department's Office of Legal Counsel issued opinions
authorizing enhanced interrogation methods that included waterboarding and extended
sleep deprivation. These opinions were later withdrawn and the Justice Department's Office
of Professional Responsibility found that they reflected a lack of, this is a quote, "A lack of
thoroughness, objectivity, and candor." In 2015, I worked with Senator McCain to pass
legislation making clear that enhanced interrogation techniques are unlawful and limit--and
limiting authorized interrogation techniques to those listed in the Army Field Manual. And
that is the law today. If confirmed, will you ensure that the Justice Department upholds the

law?

BARR:

Yes, senator. I--I think that that was an important change because I think it gave clarity to

the law and I support--I will support that.

FEINSTEIN:
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3/18/2019 cQ
Thank you. I'm delighted to hear that. Now, a lot of us have asked about the Mueller report
and whether you would probe permit to providing it to Congress. When asked, I thought you
said yes, but when I tried to clarify it, I meant the full report including obstruction of justice.
You again said yes. Then, when Senator Blumenthal asked you about the Mueller report you
seemed to make a distinction and said you were going to provide your own report based on
Muller's report but not the report, this is the way we understood it, not the report he submits

at the end of the investigation.

This is concerning as there is nothing in the regulations that prevent you from providing
Mueller's report to Congress. While the regs refer to a confidential report to be provided to
the attorney general, the regs do not state that confidentiality means the report cannot be
provided to Congress. So here's the question, will you provide Mueller's, excuse me,

Mueller's report to Congress, not your rewrite or a summary?
)

BARR:

Well, the regs do say that Mueller is supposed to do a summary report of his prosecutive and
his declination decisions and that they will be handled as a confidential document, as our
internal documents relating to any federal criminal investigation. Now, I'm not sure--and--

and then, the AG has some flexibility and discretion in terms of the AG's report.

What I am saying is my objective and goal in the goal is to get as much as I can of the
information to Congress and the public. And you know, these are departmental regulations
and I'm going to be talking to Rod Rosenstein and Bob Mueller. I'm sure they had
discussions about this. There's probably existing thinking and the department as to how to
handle this, but all I can say at this stage, because I have no clue as to what's being planned,
is that I am going to try to get the information out there consistent with these regulations.

And to the extent I have discretion, I--I will exercise that discretion to do that.

FEINSTEIN:
Well, I can only speak for this side, and maybe not all the side, but we really appreciate that.

In the degree to which you can get us a prompt report in the fullest possible form would be
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3/18/2019 cQ
really appreciated and I think there has to be a realization to among the administration that
this is an issue of real concern to people and to the Congress and we should be able to see

the informed information that comes out. So--

BARR:

--Iunderstand--

FEINSTEIN:

--I'm very hopeful.

BARR:
Thank you.

FEINSTEIN:

Thank you. Let me ask this question on enhanced--did my time run out?

GRAHAM:
Yeah, but go ahead.

FEINSTEIN:

On enhanced interrogation. During a 2005 panel discussion, you said the following, I think,
about interrogating suspected terrorists. And I quote, "Under the laws of war, absent a
treaty, there is nothing wrong with coercive interrogation applying pain, discomfort, and
other things to make people talk so long as it doesn't cross the line and involve the gratuitous

barbarity involved in torture."

This is a panel discussion civil liberties and security July 18, 2005. Do you believe that

torture is ever lawful?

BARR:
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No.

FEINSTEIN:

Is waterboarding torture?

BARR:

You know, I--I'd have to look at the legal definition. You're talking about under the--right

now is prohibited. So you know, the law has--

FEINSTEIN:
--The technique, yes--

BARR:

--Has definitively dealt with that. I can't even remember what the old law was that defined

torture. I'd have to look at that and then, you know, figure out what's involved in that. But it-

FEINSTEIN:
--What--

BARR:
Sorry.

FEINSTEIN:

Keep going. I didn't mean to interrupt.

BARR:

No, it's okay, senator.
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3/18/2019 cQ

FEINSTEIN:

At what point does interrogation cross the line to the, "Gratuitous barbarity involved in

torture?” That's your quote.

BARR:
Well, I wasn't using--using that as a legal--the gratuitous barbarity, that's--that's what I was--

[ was--1 was saying torture is gratuitous barbarity. So I wasn't saying that gratuitous--

FEINSTEIN:
--Oh, well that's helpful then. That's helpful.

BARR:
Yeah.

FEINSTEIN:

And you define waterboarding, you know, one would think these questions would never be
necessary. I thought that all my life and then I found I was wrong, and they really are. And I
was chairman of intelligence when we did the big torture report and what I found and what I
saw was really indicative of reform. So I think for the attorney general, knowing the position

is really very important. So maybe you could concisely state your position on torture.

BARR:

I--I don't think we should ever use torture and I think that the clarification that your--was it

your legislation of the putting in the Army--

FEINSTEIN:
--It was McCain's bill--
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3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:
--The field--the Field Manual--

FEINSTEIN:
--That's right--

BARR:

--Was an--was important to clarifying where the line is.

FEINSTEIN:
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Senator Cornyn.

CORNYN:

Mr. Barr, I want to talk about guns and I want to talk about China in the five minutes we

have together.

Back in 1992, there was some discussion about your position on Congress's role when it
talks to banning certain types of semi-automatic weapons, sometimes people call those
assault weapons. But in the intervening years, the Supreme Court has now spoken in both
the Heller and McDonald case and recognized that the Second Amendment confers an

individual fundamental right to bear arms.

Could you sort of bring us up to date from your views in 1992 and how they were affected by

Heller and McDonald and what your views now are on the Second Amendment?

BARR:
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3/18/2019 cQ
Sure. I--I think I opposed an assault weapon ban because I felt that that was really sort of the
aesthetics of the gun and but, you know, since that time Heller has been decided. Actually,
before Heller, I did work at OLC on--on this issue and I personally concluded that the
Second Amendment creates a personal amendment right under the Constitution. It's based

on the Lockean notion of the right of self-preservation. It's tied to that.

And I was glad that--to see Heller come out and--and vindicate that initial view that I had
and so there's no question under Heller that the right to have weapons is--firearms is
protected under the Second Amendment and is a personal right. At the same time, there is

room for reasonable regulation.

And you know from my standpoint what I would look for is--in assessing a regulation is
what's the burden of law-abiding people and is it proportionate to whatever benefit in terms
of safety and effectiveness will be conferred? As I said just a moment ago let's get down to
the real problem, we are confronting which is keeping these weapons out of the hands of
people who are mentally ill. And--and I think all of the rest of this stuff is really a sensually

rhetoric until we really get that problem dealt with in terms of--of regulatory approaches.

CORNYN:

Well, as our colleague the senator from Louisiana, Senator Kennedy, likes to say the Bill of
Rights is not an a la carte menu and I--I agree with that and I also agree that this is--there are
many facets to these mass violence incidents. After the shooting at Sutherland Springs we
found out that the background check system, the national instant criminal background
check system, was not being used appropriately by the U.S. government, in that case, the Air
Force and if it had been this individual who killed 20 people, injured 26 more at a Baptist
church right outside of San Antonio would not have been able to legally get his hands on the

firearm by lying.

But certainly the mental health issue that you mentioned we've done work there with--

BARR:
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Fix NICS.

CORNYN:

In the Fix NICS area. We've also done--done expanded pilot programs on assisted
outpatient treatment for people suffering from mental illness recognizing that it is difficult
for any family member to control particularly an adult but that providing an opportunity to
go to court and get basically a civil order that would require them to comply with their
doctor's orders, take their medication and the like. I am thinking of Adam Lanza at the
Sandy Hook shooting whose mother did not know how to control him as he was getting
more and more ill and only to have him take the very--her very weapon and then kill her and

then go murder the innocent children. So--

On China do you agree with me that China represents probably one of the preeminent
economic challenges to America because particularly because of their theft of intellectual
property and their exploitation of gaps in foreign investment that we've tried to address
through improvement of the CFIUS process the committee on foreign investment in the
United States? But talk to me a little bit about what you see the challenge of China both

economically and from a national security standpoint.

BARR:

Well, the--the Chi--I think I think they are the paramount economic and military rival in the
world. I think that they are--they are very formidable because they take the long view. They
have been stealing our technology and they have been gradually building up their military

power and investing in new technologies.

I--I think from a military standpoint it's very disturbing how much progress they are making
largely based on U.S. technology. And I was very please--I really thought that Attorney
General Sessions was right on target in setting up his China Initiative in the department to
start going after the pirating of American technology and other kinds of illegal activities that

Chinese nationals are involved in here in the United States and even abroad.
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CORNYN:

Would you--do you share my skepticism that Chinese telecommunications companies like
Huawei and ZTE in terms of how that once in the hands or in the networks of unsuspecting

countries that that could be used for espionage purposes and theft of intellectual property?

BARR:

Yes, in fact even in my old Verizon days we understood the danger and would not use that
kind of the equipment even though it's economically it would be economically attractive.

Yeah.

GRAHAM:

Before Senator Leahy I would like to on behalf of Senator Feinstein introduce into the
record letters that express opposition or concern from groups like the Leadership
Conference on Civil and Human Rights, Planned Parenthood, People for the American
Way, National Education Association, Alliance for Justice, NARAL, National Urban League,
the National Council of Jewish Women, Center for American Progress and the Human
Rights Campaign and a letter from Representative Raul Grijalva. I hope I didn't--I hope I got

his name right from Arizona.

In support we have letters from the International Association of Chiefs of Police; letter from
the National Fraternal Order of Police; numerous letters signed from 100 former federal
law enforcement national security officials including three former attorney generals; and a
lot of U.S. attorneys and heads of the CIA, FBI and Department of Homeland Security; a
letter from the National Narcotics Officers Association; a letter from the International Union
of Public Police Associations; a letter from Major Cities Chiefs Association; a letter from the
Association of State Criminal Investigative Agencies. Without objection, I would like to

enter all of that into the record.

Senator Leahy.
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LEAHY:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Just when you--you just mentioned being at Verizon during the NSA's metadata program
relative to the PRISM--PRISM upstream. It required telecom internet providers, you know,
to hand over huge amounts of data to the government. And you testified in 2003 that the
law is clear that a person has no fourth amendment rights in these records left in the hands

of third parties, the third party doctrine.

I actually disagreed with you at that time. And I hope you would now, especially as the
Carpenter decision just came down, and written by Chief Justice Roberts, that this is
generally requiring the government to get a warrant to obtain geolocation information

through cell site location information. Does that change the opinion you had back then?

BARR:
Well, it sounds like it--I haven't read that decision, senator. It--it may modify my views. I'd

have to read the decision. I was going on the Miller decision relating to--

LEAHY:
--It actually--

BARR:
--Bank records. But also you mentioned the--you were tying this to the NSA collection,

because--and then tying it to my testimony, because, you know--

LEAHY:
--Well, you had said that no--a person has not fourth amendment rights in these records left

in the hands of third parties, the third party doctrine.
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BARR:
Yeah, that was the--

LEAHY:

--It seems to be undercut by--by Carpenter.

BARR:
Okay. I'm--I'll--I'll take a look at that. But--

LEAHY:
--Well, then would you respond--

BARR:

--I don't want people to have the impression that Verizon was involved in--

LEAHY:
--Would you respond--

BARR:
--Spying--

LEAHY:

--For the record on that question?

BARR:

Yes. Sure. Certainly.

LEAHY:
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And you said back in November of 2017 you saw more basis for investigating the Uranium
One deal than any supposed collusion between President Trump and Russia and, by not
pursuing these matters, the department is abdicating its responsibility. Just about
everybody's debunked the Uranium One controversy. I think probably the nail in the coffin
was President Trump's biggest supporter, Fox News, debunked it. Did I miss something in

here?

BARR:
No. Actually, that--you know, I--you'll notice that there were no quotes around that, and
then the next sentence is plural, matters. And my recollection of that is what--I think it was

relating to the letter and the appointment of Huber in Utah to look into a number of things.

And the point I was trying to make there was that, whatever the standard is for launching an
investigation, it should be dealt with evenhandedly, that whatever that trigger is should be
applied to all. T have no knowledge of the--Uranium One. I didn't particularly think that was
necessarily something that should be pursued aggressively. I was trying to make the point
that there was a lot out there. And I think all that stuff at the time was being looked at by--by

Huber. That's my recollection. I may be wrong on that.

LEAHY:
Well, I think the fact that the investigation has been pretty well debunked, we don't have to
worry about in the future. But we do have one thing that's happening right now. The Trump

shutdown is in its 25th day.

The Justice Department has a hundred and--or has 13,000 FBI agents, 16,000 prison
guards, 3,600 U.S. Marshals, 4,300 Drug Enforcement Agents. They're all working without
pay. The FBI Agents Association, [ realize it's not part of the government, but the

association described the effect of the shutdown as a potential national security issue.

So, let me just ask you. In your years of experience at the department, what impact do you

believe a long term shutdown has on law enforcement?
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BARR:

Well, I think most--most people involved in law enforcement are--I don't know if the--the--
the lingo is still the same. They used to be called essential. I thinkit's been changed to
something else. But I think they're on the job, but obviously we'd like to--people would like

to see the shutdown ended, and that's why people want to see some kind of compromise.

And, you know, you call it the Trump shutdown, but, I mean, it takes two to tango. And I

sort of wonder--

LEAHY:
--Well, I would--

BARR:
--Why can't--

LEAHY:
--Only because he called it that--

BARR:
—-Oh--

LEAHY:

--In his meeting--

BARR:
--Okay--

LEAHY:
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--In the White House. And I said finally I've got something I could agree with him on, and--

because senator--

BARR:
~-Well--

LEAHY:

--Senator Shelby and I had put together appropriations bills that passed almost unanimously
in the Senate at a time when it--that would have kept the government open. That's at a time
when it's hard to get something unanimous saying the sun would rise in the east, and I--so, I

was just agreeing with the president.

But no matter what you call it, isn't it a fact that this does have an effect on law enforcement?

BARR:

Well, not having a wall also has an effect on law enforcement.

LEAHY:

Yeah. Yeah, and not paying our law enforcement people.

We've both had experience in law enforcement, you at the national level, me at the state
level. You don't pay our law enforcement people, I think there's an effect. You have some

very dedicated people, but you have some very distracted people.

Do you believe the voter ID laws and similar restrictions on voting actually promote
democracy by discouraging voters who are not really paying attention to what's going on,

going back to a panel discussion you had a few years ago?

BARR:

Yeah. Yeah, what I said there was that, in that panel discusson, there was a lot of people

complaining about the lack of--that--that many Americans aren't educating themselves
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about the issues and they're passive, and that it was important to--and--and--and the--and

also that the voting participation was dropping.

And I--my position was that the underlying problem is the citizen--you know, the--the--the
citizen who is not paying attention to public events, not educating themselves about the
issues and so forth, and that the nonvoting is a symptom, and I didn't see driving up

participation as addressing the primary underlying problem.

That was my point. And I pointed out that when the Constitution was adopted, the turnout
was about 33 percent, my understanding. So--and then I said, you know, low participation

has been a problem from the very beginning.

But my view is that--that voter turnout shouldn't be artificially driven up without also

addressing the issue of an informed citizen rate, which I think is a problem.

LEAHY:
We--we do have voting laws that guard against discrimination, the arbitrary closing of

voting booths in a predominantly African American area, for example.

BARR:

Um-hmm.

LEAHY:
Would you have any problem in vigorously enforcing our voting rights laws that are on the

books?

BARR:
Of what, vigorously? No, not at all. I--I--I said one of my priorities would--would be that. I
think we have to enforce the voting rights. And I wasn't suggesting that voting should be

suppressed.
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I was just saying that the low turnout is ultimately attributable to sort of the--I--I don't know
what the word to use is, but, you know, that the citizenry doesn't seem to be that engaged,

you know, in--in the public affairs of the country.

LEAHY:

Well, they are in Vermont.

BARR:

Hmm?

LEAHY:

I say they are in Vermont.

BARR:
Yeah. And what--

LEAHY:

--We have one of the highest turnouts in the country.

BARR:
That's good. Yeah, excellent.

GRAHAM:
Thank you.

LEAHY:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:
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Thank you. We're going to have two votes at 4:10. Can you go for a bit longer?

BARR:

Um-hmm.

GRAHAM:

Senator Sasse.

SASSE:

Thank you, chairman. General, I'd like to return to this disturbing topics of human
trafficking and sex trafficking. You've answered a few questions here today. I'd like to look at
the November 28 Miami Herald investigative series that I know that you followed into the
crimes of Jeffrey Epstein and I want to quote from that. Epstein, a wealthy hedge fund
manager, "Assembled the large cult-like network of underage girls with the help of young
female recruiters to coerce into having sex acts behind the walls of his opulent waterfront

mansion as often as three times a day."

The report continues, "He was also suspected of trafficking minor girls, often from overseas,
for sex parties at his other homes in Manhattan, New Mexico, and the Caribbean." The
Herald series continues, "In 2007, despite ample physical evidence and multiple witnesses
corroborating the girl's stories, federal prosecutors and Epstein's lawyers quietly put
together a remarkable deal for Epstein, then age 54. He agreed to plead guilty to two felony
prostitution charges in state court and in exchange, he and his accomplices received

immunity from federal sex trafficking charges that could have sent him to prison for the rest
of his life."

"He served 13 months in a private wing of the Palm Beach County stockade. His alleged co-
conspirators, who helped schedule his sex sessions, were never prosecuted in the deal,
called, again this is the Miami Herald, a federal non-prosecution agreement was sealed so
that no one, not even his victims, could know the full scope of Epstein's crimes and who else
was involved." The fact that federal prosecutors appear to have crafted this secret
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sweetheart deal for a child rapist obviously enrages moms and dads everywhere. On this
particular case, will you commit to making sure that there is a full and thorough

investigation into the way DOJ handled the Epstein case?

BARR:

Senator, I have to recuse myself from Kirkland & Ellis matters I am told, and I think
Kirkland & Ellis was maybe involved in that case. So I need to sort out exactly what--what
my role can be, but, you know, I will say that if--if on confirmed, I'll make sure your

questions are answered on this case.

SASSE:

Thank you. The deputy attorney general obviously there have been immediate reports about
the timing of his potential departure post your confirmation and the DAG, as you all know
from your prior history, has a key responsibility in deconflicting different parts of the
department. Those of us who've been pressing on this matter have found, in different parts
of the department, a lot of anxiety about the way this was handled and yet kind of a hot
potato of a bunch of people thinking they're not responsible.

Right now, right Rod Rosenstein has been helping trying to de-conflict some of that, but I'm
worried if--with your potential recusal if the DAG also departsit's not clear who's going to
actually do conflict this. So I'm grateful for your pledge that the department will be

responsive even if not you, personally.

BARR:
That's right, sir.

SASSE:
More broadly than the miscarriage of justice in this particular Florida case, would you agree
that justice has nothing to do with the size of your bank account or the number of attorneys

you can hire?
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BARR:
Yes.

SASSE:

I agree and I think that a whole bunch of Americans wonder about the Department of Justice
and how we are trying to prioritize or how we should be prioritizing our responsibility to the
victims of sex trafficking who are left afraid and voiceless. In this particular case, many of
the women who were clearly victims, trafficked, rape victims, had no awareness of the fact,
and I think in violation of federal statute statutes of victim notification that this non-
prosecution agreement had been agreed to, and not just that Epstein and his co-conspirators
were not indicted, but the rest of the investigatory matters of the department were also

suspended. It seems truly bizarre.

I think moms and dads watching this hearing would like to know that you will pledge
broadly to attack sex trafficking as a scourge and our society on both the supply side and the
demand side as these dirtbags demand this, but on the supply side as organizations clearly
perpetrate these crimes. Can you pledge to us that this will be one of your priorities at the

department?

BARR:

They can count on it.

SASSE:
Thank you, sir.

GRAHAM:

I want to associate myself with what Senator Sasse said about the Epstein case and the

problem in general. And to the extent you can help us figure this out, please.
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BARR:
Yes.

GRAHAM:

Senator Durbin.

DURBIN:

Thanks, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, thank you for being with us. Mr. Barr, my colleague,
Senator Ernst, ask--ask a question earlier which I'm sure would be asked in virtually every
state we represent, what we are doing to stop the flow of narcotics into the United States.
She asked about meth I believe in particular but about narcotics coming in from Mexico and

your reply was and I quote it is the major avenue of how drugs come into the country.

They come cross that order. I feel it is a critical part of border security and we need barriers

on the border. That was your quote.

I'm troubled by that answer and I--I'd like to clarify it because if we're ever going to have a
rational conversation about border security there ought to be some basics that we agree on.
The DEA which you will supervise if confirmed, in its 2018 report said quote the most
common method employed by the Mexican drug cartels involves transporting illicit drugs
through U.S. ports of entry and passenger vehicles which concealed compartments are co-
mingled with legitimate goods on tractor-trailers. The customs and border protection's own
data shows that customs officers at legal ports of entry seize the vast majority of lethal

narcotics coming into this country.

In fiscal year 2017, last year we have data, 87 percent of the fentanyl which has been
identified as CDC as the most deadly narcotic in America, 87 percent seized in our country

coming in through ports of entry, 13 percent ceased outside of ports of entry.
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So overwhelmingly when we talk about building new walls and barriers to stop narcotics, we
are ignoring the obvious, 80 percent to 90 percent of the drugs are coming in through ports
of entry. I mit--I met with the head of customs and border protection. He said the number
one thing we can do is to put technology in the ports of entry to scan the vehicles coming

through.

Currently, only 17 percent of trucks and cars coming through those ports of entry are being
scanned, 17 percent. That means 83 percent of them are just flowing right on through. They
are bringing narcotics to Iowa and to Illinois. Building a new concrete wall from sea to

shining sea doesn't even address this issue. Technology does.

I want to reach the point where we open the government and have this honest conversation.
Would you reconsider your earlier answer as to the fact that we need to build more barriers

to stop narcotics from coming into the United States?

BARR:

Well, it wasn't tied just to narcotics. It was tied to overall border security which--

DURBIN:

You said a major avenue for how drugs come into this country. It's not.

BARR:

I said was--was across the b--

DURBIN:

Across the border.

BARR:

Wait a minute. I--I--go ahead.
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DURBIN:

The border is the major avenue but your answer was we need barriers on the border.

BARR:

Right, because drug you know we need barriers on the order for border security part of what
we are trying to do is cut down on drugs, it's also illegal aliens, it's also people from other
countries who may wish to do harm in the United States that are coming in. And barriers are

part of the answer and from my experience, the threat is always dynamic.

You put technology at the ports of entry they will shift somewhere else. It's a moving target,

always has been and I think we need a system that covers all of the bases.

DURBIN:

I think the reason we cannot reach an agreement with the Trump administration is
fundamental to our exchange and it's this. I don't disagree with you, with the--with the
notion that barriers from sea to shining sea well at least slow people down. But when it
comes to the next marginal dollar to protect kids in Illinois and children in your home state

it's ports of entry, it's technology to keep these narcotics out of the United States.

And if we can't really start at the same premise based on reports from the president's own
administration, we are never going to reach a point of bipartisan agreement on border
security. So I hope, I think we are close to agreeing and maybe it's semantics, [ hope not. But
I hope that we can agree that if we are going to stop narcotics, technology, and personnel the

experts tell us that, it's not a wall and I hope that we can move from there.

The last question I'll ask you in limited time; they asked me about your statements this
morning, your testimony and I thought they were good responsive in most part. The one
thing I'm stuck on and many are is this report you gave to this administration in June of last

year about the investigation of the President.

BARR:
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You mean my memo?

DURBIN:
Yes.

BARR:

Memo, yeah.

DURBIN:
And you said in there Mueller should not be permitted to demand that the president submit
to interrogation about alleged obstruction. You volunteered that. I'm trying to get around

this.

It sounds like it was an effort on your part to ingratiate yourself with an administration
which is now nominating you for attorney general. I'll give you one last chance. My time is

up. Please respond.

BARR:

Okay. Well, first, what I was saying there was again, based on speculation on my part was
that there has to be an adequate predicate and if he was relying on just the firing of Mueller
or the statement about Flynn in this specific statute, those two things, I didn't think it was an
adequate predicate. [ wasn't saying he--he may have other facts, he may have other theories

that would support it. I was just pinpointing that.

Number two, I can--

DURBIN:
I think you meant the firing of Comey.

BARR:
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I can assure you I was not trying to ingratiate myself with anybody, the furthest thing from
my mind was coming back into government I can assure you that. And if I wanted to

ingratiate myself or signal things a lot more direct ways of doing it than that.

DURBIN:
Ijust for the record I think you meant the firing of Mr. Comey, I think you said Mueller

earlier.

BARR:
Okay, yeah what did I say? Oh, yeah, the firing of Comey, yeah, yeah.

DURBIN:
Thank you very much.

UNKNOWN:
Just trying to help.

GRAHAM:
Thank you. I'll just take a couple of seconds and see if I can help clarify this because I think
it's been a very interesting hearing. So if there was some reason to believe that the president

tried to coach somebody not to testify or testify falsely that could be obstruction of justice?

BARR:

Yes, under that--under an obstruction statute, yes.

GRAHAM:
So if there are some evidence that the president tried to conceal evidence that would be

obstruction of justice potentially, right?
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BARR:
Right.

GRAHAM:

Your--your point is just simply firing somebody which is a personnel decision is problematic

for the system.

BARR:
Right, especially if you--what I'm saying is that doesn't fit under that statute.

GRAHAM:
No, I got you.

BARR:

Show me some other statute but that statute, no.

GRAHAM:
Yeah, okay. Who's next?

UNKNOWN:

Senator Hawley.

GRAHAM:
Senator Hawley. Thank you.

HAWLEY:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, switching gears a little bit, yesterday, a district--federal

district court judge in Pennsylvania struck down the Trump administration's religious and
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moral exemptions to the contraceptive mandate under the Affordable Care Act. As part of
this ruling, the district court issued a nationwide injunction to any enforcement or

application of these rules.

This is a growing trend. We've seen a lot of this in the last two years. We've seen lots and lots
of district courts all across the country in various contexts, in the immigration context, and
other, issue nationwide injunctions. And now, of course, for those listening at home, the--

the court--the entire nation is not within the jurisdiction of these courts.

These courts are district courts. They reach a specific geographic area delineated by law,
and yet, they're issuing, increasingly commonly, these injunctions that reach the entire

country. This is a fairly unusual and fairly recent practice.

In distinction of this, the district court judge in Texas who recently heard a challenge to the
Affordable Care Act case did not issue a nationwide injunction, therefore allowing the
appeals process to take its normal course. And, of course, the ACA remains in full effect

throughout that appeals process because he did not issue a nationwide injunction.

So, my question to you is are you concerned about this growing practice of nationwide

injunctions by federal district courts, and what do you think ought to be done about it?

BARR:
Yes, I'm very concerned by it. Earlier I was talking about this and saying that I think it
mistakes the limitation on judicial power, which is a case or controversy limitation, and tries

to grant relief to people who are not part of the case or controversy that's being decided.

And, as you said, it really started in the sixties, and it's been picking up steam. And the fact
of the matter is there are a lot of district court judges--and you can usually find one who--
somewhere in the country who will agree with you. And so, major democratic decisions can

be held up by one judge nationwide.

I'm also concerned that there's another trend, which is the willingness of some district court

judges to wade into matters of national security, where, in the past, courts would not be
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presumed to be--in joining those kinds of things.

And then, the appeals process takes a lot of time. And so, a lot of damage can be done before
it gets to the Supreme Court and you get a definitive decision. And meanwhile, everything is

stuck.

HAWLEY:

Can you just say more? You're concerned about courts that wade into national security
issues where traditionally they have hesitated to do so. Can you just say more about that?

What do you have in mind?

BARR:

Like the travel ban.

HAWLEY:

And the concern there is?

BARR:
I mean, if the president takes something based on national security, and one--and--and--
and the Constitution vests that kind of judgement for that kind of emergency act or act that

he has the authority to perform to protect the country. He's politically accountable for that.

And yet, a judge with a lifetime appointment, sitting somewhere in the country, who doesn't
have the access to the information has no political accountability can stop a national
security measure, globally, essentially. And it takes a long to get that sorted out. That's

really troublesome to me.

HAWLEY:
Yeah. I--I completely agree with you. Let me ask you about another recent case, this one

from the Southern District of New York today, in which the district courts ruled that the
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attempt to include--the attempt by the Commerce Department to include a citizenship
question on the census is not permissible and has stopped the Commerce Department from

including that on the 2020 census.

The department has argued, of course--and the Department of Justice is defending this
decision--that including a citizenship question, as was done for approximately 100 years, on
the census actually helps identify, with greater accuracy, the residents of the country--who
is and who is not a citizen, and, of course, helps more accurately apportion and draw
Congressional districts and make sure that representation is fair and the Voting Rights Act is

fairly enforced. Do you agree with that position?

BARR:

Well, it's being litigated now. So, I really would prefer not to comment on it.

HAWLEY:
Do you anticipate that the Department of Justice will continue its vigorous defense of the

position the administration has taken?

BARR:

I think, generally--I have no reason to change that position.

HAWLEY:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Senator Whitehouse.

WHITEHOUSE:
Thank you. Mr. Barr, in order to perform its counterintelligence function effectively, what
should the Department of Justice and the FBI know about the business relationships and
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entanglements of senior officials with foreign interests and governments?

BARR:

Well, usually--you know, I guess, usually investigations are started because there is some
act that comes to the attention of the law enforcement agency that suggests someone is

being disloyal to the United States--

WHITEHOUSE:
Except for (INAUDIBLE)

BARR:

--and working for a foreign--excuse me?

WHITEHOUSE:

Except where we require disclosures in order to give the law enforcement folks that
advantage of knowing in advance when a senior official has a business entanglement with a

foreign interest or power.

BARR:
Mm-hm.

WHITEHOUSE:

So what should we know?

BARR:
What official are we talking about?

WHITEHOUSE:
Well, let's start with the president.
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BARR:
Are you suggesting the president go through a background investigation by the FBI?

WHITEHOUSE:
No, I'm suggesting that when there's evidence that he has business relationships with
foreign interests, then that may be a factual determination that would be of some note to

our counterintelligence folks.

BARR:
Well, the financial disclosures that I think are filed by other--I don't even know if members

of Congress file financial disclosures, do they?

WHITEHOUSE:
Yeah.

BARR:
They do?

WHITEHOUSE:
So do many officials in the executive branch. (INAUDIBLE)

BARR:

You know, that's for--that's for financial conflict. I don't think that's for counterintelligence

purposes.

WHITEHOUSE:
Probably because very few people have business relationships with foreign interests, so it

turns up much more often in a conflict INAUDIBLE).
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BARR:
Well, business relationship with a foreign interest is not ordinarily a counterintelligence

concern.

WHITEHOUSE:

Unless, of course, you are--

BARR:

Unless the person is a traitor.

WHITEHOUSE:
Or in a position to make decisions that are biased or influenced by those business

relationships.

BARR:
Well, that--

WHITEHOUSE:

Counterintelligence and treason are not the same thing, are they?

BARR:
Counterintelligence, you're usually trying to counter the intelligence activities of another

country.

WHITEHOUSE:
Correct. And you may want to head off things. You may want to be aware of things. You may
want to--there are a whole lot of things short of treason that are the counterintelligence

function.

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 212/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028184


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

3/18/2019 cQ

BARR:

Right, including, you know--counterintelligence focuses, usually, on foreign intelligence

services and their activities.

WHITEHOUSE:
Trying to (INAUDIBLE) American officials often.

BARR:

I think what we're kind of--I think we're mixing, you know, apples and grapes or whatever

here because financial disclosure INAUDIBLE)--

WHITEHOUSE:

Maybe, or maybe you're just having a hard time answering what ought to be a really easy
question, which is that when a senior government official has business relationships with
foreign interests and powers, we ought to know about it. That ought to be an easy

proposition, and in any other administration it would be.

BARR:

Well, do congressmen go through background investigations to get access to classified

information?

WHITEHOUSE:

We--that's a whole separate question, but yes--

BARR:

No, it's exactly the same question.

WHITEHOUSE:
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--we do a lot of--we do a lot more reporting than we do INAUDIBLE).

BARR:
Well, your financial reporting, with all due respect, is not the same as a background
investigation. You're elected by the people to hold an office, and you know, you don't get a

background investigation to get on the Intelligence Committee.

WHITEHOUSE:

But we do have to do a lot of reporting. Okay, you don't want to answer it. I'll move on. Let's
talk about corruptly in obstruction cases. I'm not sure I heard you correctly, so I want to
make sure you have the chance to explain, but it sounded like you were saying that the word
corruptly, used as you said, adverbially, was a requirement that there be some form of
destruction or interference with evidence. I have always read that term, corruptly, in
obstruction of justice, to impose an intent requirement, which is also what the criminal
resources manual of the Department of Justice says and what I think virtually every
appellate court has said. So it worries me if what you are trying to do here is to redefine the
obstruction statute by narrowing the intent requirement and using the term corruptly to
refer to something very different, which is the actual physical corruption, changing or

(INAUDIBLE)--

BARR:

I think I can allay your concerns, yeah.

WHITEHOUSE:
Could you do that, because obviously INAUDIBLE)?

BARR:
Yeah, because if you read--if you look at the memo, you'll see that my discussion of

corruptly is not up in the plain meaning section. We're talking about how you interpret the
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statute, and my basic argument as to why the statute covers destruction of evidence, and
hiding evidence and stuff like that, is based on the word otherwise, the Supreme Court
decisions in Yates and Begay, also the fact that if you actually read it, otherwise, it swallows

up all--it becomes a one clause--it wipes out everything else.

WHITEHOUSE:
Soif I canjust cut to the INAUDIBLE)--

BARR:

No, so then later on I point out, in my memo, I later point out that that reading is also
supported by the understanding of the word corruptly, which the Poindexter case, DC
Circuit case, I think had the most intelligent discussion of the word corruptly, which is it
does refer to the kind of activity that's necessary, which is perverting a proceeding by

corrupting it.

WHITEHOUSE:

Soin the event that the Mueller investigation has turned up evidence of obstruction of
justice by the president, or people close to him, you would follow the Department of

Justice's existing legal guidance with respect to what that word, corruptly, means?

BARR:

My--my interpretation of the statute was not predicated entirely on the word corruptly. I was

just pointing out--

WHITEHOUSE:

And it is not your intention to change--

BARR:

No, it's not my intention.
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WHITEHOUSE:

--department policy, or department standards, or department definitions, particularly as

they may bear on obstruction by the president or people around him?

BARR:
That's right.

WHITEHOUSE:
Thank you.

GRAHAM:
We're about to vote. Let's do one more. You deserve a break. You've done great. When--
Senator Ernst, then we'll take a break, go vote. I'm going to vote and come back, give you

about 15 minutes, then we'll just plow through until we're done. Senator Tillis.

TILLIS:

I'll be brief. One question, because people have asked--they've grown gone to the wall. It
almost sounds like they're trying to suggest that you believe that the fix for border security is
a 2,300-mile physical barrier from the Pacific to the Gulf. Do you believe that's the best way

to secure the border?

BARR:

I'm not sure what the current thinking is on this, but when I was looking--

TILLIS:
--Have you ever advocated for a wall or some sort of monolithic structure as the plan for

securing the border?
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BARR:
No, but I do believe we need to have a system all the way across. When I was looking at this,

you know, there were certain areas where, you know, a wall didn't make any sense.

TILLIS:

You've used the word barrier. I don't think a 430-foot wall makes sense on a, for example,
1,000-foot cliff or one that's out in the middle of nowhere. Would--would you agree that,
you know, when we get away from this childish everybody saying it's a wall or not, that we
are probably, the president's repeatedly said that we need wall structures, we made steel slat
structures, we may need to reinforce chain-link fences with all-weather roads, we need
aerostat so that we can identify people crossing the border that are otherwise desolate and
not very frequently crossed, we need Border Patrol agents and we need technology that
interdicts all the illicit drugs at all the legal ports of entry, that those are all elements of a
barrier that actually will better prepare us to secure the border, eliminate the poison coming
across the border, and perhaps the amount of human trafficking that's coming through the

legal ports of entry. Is that a better way to characterize your position on barriers--

BARR:

--Yes--

TILLIS:

--Then either our physical, technological, or otherwise?

BARR:

--Yes.

TILLIS:
Thank you. Also, the--I--I can't leave without going back to you were talking about a--a time

when [ was in my early 30s, [ remember vividly just how dangerous things were getting back
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in the early 90s. I was 30 years old in 1990. I remember vividly the news reports and
everything that we were trying to do to get ahead of the murderous environment that we
were in. I think some people are trying to project or at least maybe I've inferred, maybe
incorrectly, but project what you were trying to do or what you are advocating for in the

midst of a crisis, which was not mass incarceration of low-level and nonviolent criminals--

BARR:
--Right--

TILLIS:

--Onto your view of, let's say, the First Step Act and what we are trying to do today. If you,
hypothetical, maybe you can't answer it, but let's say you were attorney general when we
were moving First Step, which I supported, I supported criminal justice reforms in North
Carolina when I was speaker the house. Are you fundamentally opposed to what we're

trying to do with this First Step Act?

BARR:
No, I--I think some of those things make sense. If I was--if  had been at the table, I probably

would have urged a few changes to it. But you know, overall, I don't have a problem with it.

TILLIS:
And you're fully aware the president and folks in the White House are supportive of the act

and--

BARR:

Yes, senator.

TILLIS:
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So you will do everything you can to help us take that intent, the statutory intent, the things
you'll need to do is implement in your--in your role as attorney general, I do believe you're
going to be confirmed, to make sure that we get the full positive effect that we'll get out of

the First Step Act?

BARR:

That's right, senator. And, you know, there were a number of things being lumped together.
My--what I espoused in the 90s when we had the highest crime rates in our history were--
was taking the violent--the chronic violent offenders with long criminal history records of
predatory violence, and especially the ones that use guns in multiple offenses, and getting

them off the streets and into prisons.

TILLIS:

And I think you made the point that in some cases there--there--you were able to more
clearly present evidence where they were involved in drug trafficking, but you knew damn
well that they were a part of what was murdering these communities and making them very

dangerous.

BARR:
Right.

TILLIS:
And the point there was you were using every device possible to get them behind bars and

off the street so that you could make those communities safer.

BARR:
Right, but--

TILLIS:

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4 219/285

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028191


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

3/18/2019 cQ

--Including the communities in Trenton, New Jersey.

BARR:

Right. So--so the other thing were, then there are drug penalties and some of the drug
penalties, yes, were draconian and they were rational reasons for doing that at the time.
And--and sometimes people got drug--and--and we weren't going after people who needed
treatment who were, you know, just because they were addicts, we were going after the

people who were distributing the drugs.

And you know, in the--in the current circumstance, if--I understand there is data to support
what was done in First Step, I understand those changes on--on the drug front. But I--I
would not let up on chronic violent offenders because they committed disproportionate

amounts of the predation in society.

TILLIS:
I hope you don't because they need to go behind bars for a very, very long time. Thank you.

GRAHAM:
All right, thank you, Mr. Barr. What we'll do, we'll come back with Senator Klobuchar.

We're going to take a 15-minute break and hopefully by then both of us can vote and come
back and continue and we're just going to plow through till we get done today. So we'll be in

recess for 15 minutes.

ERNST:

We will go ahead and reconvene the hearing. I'll recognize Senator Klobuchar.

KLOBUCHAR:
Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Barr. Thanks for your grandson for the mint. That

was pretty nice.
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(LAUGHTER)

In your previous confirmation hearing for attorney general, you stated that the attorney
general is the president's lawyer. You have also said that the attorney general's ultimate

allegiance must be to the rule of law, so I'm going to characterize that as the people's lawyer.

And there have been times throughout our history, including during Watergate, when the
personal interests of the president do not align with the interests of the country. In those

critical moments, is the attorney general the people's lawyer or the president's lawyer?

BARR:

Well, it--it--as--the reason he's the--I referred to the attorney general as the president's
lawyer is because in 1789 they said that the attorney general is to provide legal advice to

the--to the--

KLOBUCHAR:

--Um-hmm--

BARR:

--President--

KLOBUCHAR:

--Yes--

BARR:
--And the cabinet, and that's in their official capacity.

And my view on that is that, like any lawyer, you give the best advice as to your view of the
law. But if the president determined that he wanted to do something that you thought was
still a reasonable construction of the law, even though you might not have decided that way

as an Article III judge, just as you support congressional enactments that are--
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KLOBUCHAR:
~-Okay--

BARR:

--Reasonable, you do the same for the president.

KLOBUCHAR:

Um-hmm. But how about in a situation like Watergate?

BARR:

So, you know, I--if the president directs an attorney general to do something that is contrary

to law, then I think the attorney general has to step down.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay.

BARR:
It's that simple.

KLOBUCHAR:
Thank you.

Under the special counsel regs, the special counsel must send a second report to Congress
documenting any instances where the AG prohibited the special counsel from taking an

action. Will you follow those regulations and send the report to Congress?

BARR:
Yes.
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KLOBUCHAR:
Thank you.

And then a few just things that I care a lot about. You had a great discussion with Senator
Booker about the First Step Act and nonviolent drug crimes. Will you support the use of drug
courts? Something--my county, when I was prosecutor, was one of the first to do that in a big

way, and now we have federal drug courts. Will you support them for nonviolent offenders?

BARR:
Yeah, I think--I think they're generally a good idea.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay.

And there's a bill that I have that we're reintroducing on guns and stalking. And it's a pretty
narrow bill. It fills a loophole that's called sometimes the boyfriend loophole. I don't know if
you know what that is, but it's when someone is not married but they're living together, and

then the question is would the gun laws apply.

And we actually had a hearing and a number of the Republican witnesses agreed they

should. So, that's part of it, and then the other involves stalking--

BARR:

--Um-hmm--

KLOBUCHAR:

--And whether or not that could also fall under the prohibitions on guns. So, we had the
meeting on guns at the White House, and the president said he thought the bill was terrific. I

just kind of give--lead you into that.
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BARR:
Okay.

KLOBUCHAR:
But--

BARR:
--It--it's--

KLOBUCHAR:

--And it hasn't passed yet, but I'm just asking you to review it.

BARR:
Absolutely.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay. And I hope we would have your support. It would be nice to get that done.

And then I also have a second bill with Senator Cornyn, the Abby Honold Act. And the bill
would expand the use of evidence-based practices in responding to sex assault crimes, and I
hope you would look at that as well. And it's part right now of the Senate package on the
Violence Against Women Act. And I--my bill aside, I hope that you would support the

reauthorization of that bill.

BARR:

Um-hmm.

KLOBUCHAR:

You would, of the Violence Against Women Act?
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BARR:

Well, I haven't seen it, but I--I--if it's reauthorizing what's in effect now, yes.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay.

And then I just want to end here with a--a second chance, second go round on a question. I--

I decided to leave my antitrust questions for the record--

BARR:
~-Okay--

KLOBUCHAR:

--So I can ask this. I asked earlier today this question because I really meant it as an
opportunity for you to kind of address your troops and not a gotcha question. So,
immigration debates aside, putting aside the differences in this House and in the White
House, and we have now thousands and thousands of extraordinary people devoting
themselves to a good cause, and that is justice at the Department of Justice and the FBI,

including a few of them right behind you in the front row.

And they--many of them right now are either furloughed or they're doing their jobs every
single day without pay. And if you get confirmed, you will be their leader. And do you want

to say anything to them or about them? And I'd appreciate it if you would.

BARR:

Well, thank you, senator, for giving me the opportunity, because one of the reasons I want
to do this, serve as attorney general, is because of the opportunity to work with the
outstanding people at the Department of Justice. And I think the country can be very proud
of them as they're--of their dedication as they stand their post and continue to perform their

mission.
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It's a great sacrifice for many of them with the paychecks not coming in. So, I hope this ends
soon. But one of the reasons the department is such a important institution to me and a big
part of my life is the quality of the people there. And I'm looking forward, hopefully if I'm

confirmed, to joining them again.

KLOBUCHAR:
Okay. Thank you very much.

BARR:
Thank you.

ERNST:
Thank you, Senator Klobuchar.

I love the upward mobility on this committee. This is my first committee hearing, and I get

to chair. So, thank you. I appreciate it very much.

ERNST:

I'll go ahead with my second--second round of questioning. And there has been a lot of
discussion so far about the Mueller investigation, which I do think is--is very appropriate.
And as I understand it, the underlying premise of that investigation was to determine if
there was collusion by an American entity or person with the Russians during the 2016

election cycle. Is--is that accurate?

BARR:

That's my understanding.

ERNST:

Okay. And we do know that there was Russian meddling in our 2016 election cycle. We do
know that. And what can the DOJ do in the future to prevent, whether it's Russia or other
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foreign entities, from interfering with our elections process?

BARR:

Yes, well I adverted it to in my opening statement is obviously the department is a law
enforcement agency, and so we can use our law enforcement tools. And the special counsel
has already brought cases against Russian nationals for--for their activities and the current
leadership of the department is following suit and I'd like to build on that experience to
sharpen our legal tools to go after Russian nationals, but nationals of any country that are

interfering in our elections.

I also think that the--the FBI, as part of the intelligence community, can--can perform, you
know, can--can use all of their intelligence tools to--to counteract the--the threat. And as I
said in my opening statement, I think we have to look at all our national resources, such as
diplomacy, economic sanctions, other kinds of countermeasures, to deter and punish

foreign countries that seek to meddle in our elections.

ERNST:

Absolutely. So a whole of government approach--

BARR:

--Yes--

ERNST:
--As we look at those entities. Thank you very much. I was really pleased to hear Senator
Klobuchar mention the Violence Against Women Act. We had a discussion about that in my

office.

BARR:
Yes.
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ERNST:

So thank you. I did serve as a volunteer at an assault care center while [ was at Iowa State

University just--just a few years ago.
(LAUGHTER)

But the Violence Against Women Act is in desperate need of reauthorization, as Senator
Klobuchar said. In 2016 alone, over 1 million services were provided to victims and their
families through VAWA programs. In the office on Violence Against Women is actually
housed within the DOJ, as you are aware. In fiscal year 2017, my home state of lowa was

awarded $8.7 million from 13 different OVW grant programs.

And these dollars do go towards programs that are in dire need, especially in rural areas like
mine. So what I would like to know from you, sir, is how you will work to further this
engagement and to address violence against women and families through VAWA or through

the--through the office that is located within DOJ.

BARR:
And--and that office is not familiar to me because it didn't exist, obviously, when--when I
was there before. So first, I'm going to familiarize myself with the office, its work, its

programs, and, you know, strongly support that.

ERNST:

Thank you very much. Domestic violence is--is largely a state crime. How can we better

assist between the DOJ and state officials in this area?

BARR:

Again, this is not an area of expertise that I have right now, but I would imagine that
technical support and grants are--are probably the most effective means for the federal

government to assist.
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ERNST:
Okay, very good. Well I appreciate that so much. I've just got a little bit of time left. I do

want to go back to the issue that's been brought up many times over about our border
security. I as well agree that there are many ways that we can use to secure our border,
whether it's through technology, whether it's through a physical barrier, understanding, as
has been rightly pointed out, that a number of the interdictions of drugs crossing the border
are actually done at those ports of entry. However, I think there are a lot of families that are
very concerned about the fentanyl that might be coming across those--those areas that are

not watched.

BARR:
Right.

ERNST:

So families that have lost their loved ones, I think it doesn't matter what percentage is

coming through port of entry or elsewhere, we want to stop it. So your comments?

BARR:
That's right. That's right, senator. And--and the other thing is that the statistics on the port

of entry are where the interdictions, that's the stuff we catch.

ERNST:

Correct.

BARR:

It doesn't necessarily reflect the stuff that's getting across elsewhere that we're not catching.

ERNST:
Absolutely. Thank you very much, Mr. Barr.
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3/18/2019 cQ

GRAHAM:

Senator Hirono.

HIRONO:

Thank you very much. Mr. Barr, you've written and spoken about morality and you're
worried about the destruction of--and I'm quoting you--"any kind of moral consensus in
society." And you wrote quite extensively on this when you were Attorney General. And
you've been described as an institutionalist, someone who cares about the Department of

Justice and the government. That's a good thing.

But, you've agreed to work for someone who relentlessly attacks the press, calling them fake
news and an enemy of the people. The President criticizes the FBI nonstop. He belittles
generals. He calls the Mueller investigation a witch hunt. He believes the claims of Putin
over the judgement of our intelligence community, and it's been objectively verified that he

lies every single day and changes his mind on a regular basis.

So, are you concerned, having written about morality and consensus in our society? Are you
concerned about the way Donald Trump undermines the institutions in our society that help

us to maintain a moral consensus?

BARR:

No, Senator. And I'd like to make a point about the witch hunt, which is we have to
remember that the President is the one that, you know, has--has denied that there was any
collusion and has been steadfast in that. So, presumably, he knows facts, and I don't know

facts. I don't think anyone here knows facts.

But, I think it's understandable that, if someone felt they were falsely accused they would
feel an investigation is something like a witch hunt, where someone like you or me who

doesn't know the facts, you know, might not use that term.
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3/18/2019 cQ

HIRONO:

Well, you--you're certainly coming to his defense. As I said, it's been objectively verified that

he lies on a regular basis.

I have a question about immigration. In your written statement, you wrote that, "We must
secure our nation's borders, and we must ensure that our laws allow us to process, hold, and
remove those who unlawfully enter." And this kind of sounds like Jess Sessions's "Zero
Tolerance" policy. I did ask you that before, whether you would continue to go after people
who are not coming through our regular checkpoints. Would you go after them for

deportation?

BARR:

I thought I said that our "Zero Tolerance" policy is to prosecute people who are referred to

the Department by DHS for illegal entry.

HIRONO:

Well, under a "No Tolerance" policy, everyone who comes in not through the checkpoints

would be deemed, I would say, subject to prosecution. So--.

BARR:

--No. Anyone who comes in--.

HIRONO:

--No--?

BARR:
--Illegally and is going to be referred to us for a violation of the legal entry statute will be
prosecuted. But, DHS is not referring, as I understand it--is not referring families so that

there is no more separation.
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3/18/2019 cQ

HIRONO:

Yes. Instead we have a lot of them in family detention facilities. I visited them.

What about the 11 million or so undocumented immigrants in our country? Because you say
we have to process, hold, and remove those who unlawfully entered. Now, the 11 million or
so undocumented people have unlawfully entered, a number of them because they're just

visa overstays there. So, what do you propose to do with these people who have been here in

our country for a long time, many of whom work and pay taxes?

BARR:
Well, I think it just highlights the need for some--so Congress to address the whole issue of

our immigration laws.

HIRONO:
So, do you support comprehensive immigration reform, an effort that we undertook in the

Senatein 2013?

BARR:
I--1 support--I support addressing some of the problems that are creating the influx of illegal

aliens at this point and also addressing the question of border security.

HIRONO:

Well, what about the 11 million undocumented people who are already here?

BARR:
Well, you know, Congress is the--is able to determine that policy as part of--as part of

immigration legislation.

HIRONO:
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3/18/2019 cQ
So, that is the largest group of undocumented people. They are the largest group of people

who are here illegally. As you say, you would like to--.

BARR:

--Zero--"Zero Tolerance Policy," as I understand it, has to do with people who are coming in

illegally--.

HIRONO:
--Yes, I know that. But, you know that, when I talk about the 11 million people, that they are

undocumented. They live in the shadows. Many of them do pay taxes. And so, that is the
largest group that--that's here. This is why we worked really hard for comprehensive

immigration reform. I hope that you support that kind of effort.

Do you believe birthright citizenship is guaranteed by the 14th amendment?

BARR:

[ haven't looked at that issue.

HIRONO:

It says right there in the 14th amendment that anyone born, basically--born in this country
is a US citizen. And there are those who think that that should be done away with. Are you

one of them?

KENNEDY:

Could you give us a brief answer Mister--?

BARR:

--Yeah, I--as I say,  haven't looked at that issue legally. That's the kind of issue I would ask
(INAUDIBLE) to advise me on as to whether it's something that's appropriate for legislation.
I don't--I don't even know the answer to that--.
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3/18/2019 cQ

HIRONO:

--It's certainly been interpreted for a long time as saying that people who are born in this

country are citizens.

KENNEDY:

I think the chairman would like to finish today, and I think your time's expired.

HIRONO:

Shall I continue, or should I ask for a third round?

KENNEDY:

I'm fine. You can have a third, fourth fifth round. But I'm not chairman.

HIRONO:

Ijust have a few more. But I can wait.

KENNEDY:
Ok, why don't we do that. Thank you, senator. I think I'm next, Mr. Barr.

KENNEDY:

This--we talked about this earlier. I think we can agree, can we not, that hundreds of
thousands, millions of words have been written speculating about what happened at the
Department of Justice and the FBI in the 2016 election with respect to the two party

nominees. Can we agree on that?

BARR:
Yes.
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KENNEDY:

Can we agree that the American people have a right to know what happened at Justice and

the FBI?

BARR:
Yes.

KENNEDY:

Okay. Why don't we just declassify all the documents and show them to the American

people, and let the American people draw their own conclusions?

BARR:

I'm not in a position to say because I don't have access to the documents, and I don't know

what it entails.

KENNEDY:
Well, it entails the truth, does it not?

BARR:
Yes, but presumably if they're classified it--you know, there could be collateral

consequences, and I'm not in a position to make that judgment.

KENNEDY:

Well, I mean, is your mind open on that, Mr. Barr, or--

BARR:
I think generally--
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KENNEDY:
I don't understand why, properly redacted, those documents have not been shown to the

American people. They're smart enough to figure it out.

BARR:
I think ultimately the best policy is to let the light shine. If there have been mistakes made,
the best policy is to allow light to shine in and for people to understand what happened. But

sometimes, you know, you have to determine when the right time to do that is.

KENNEDY:

Iunderstand. I'm asking that you seriously consider that, and I'm talking about the
investigations with respect to Secretary Clinton and President Trump. Clearly the FBI and
the Department of Justice--I'm not saying that they--either was imprudent to do so, but
we've seen bits and pieces, and there's been a lot of speculation and innuendo, and people
have drawn conclusions based on incomplete facts. And it would seem to me that if for no
other reason but the integrity of the FBI and the Justice Department, both of which I hold in
great esteem, we should redact the portions that would endanger somebody and show the

American people the documents. And I wish you would seriously consider that.

BARR:

I will, Senator.

KENNEDY:
And I, having watched you here today, I think you'll--I think you will. I think you'll give it

serious consideration.

BARR:
Yes.
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KENNEDY:

Let me ask your opinion on something else. About 10 years ago we had a problem with our
banking system in America, and we had a lot of bankers who made loans to borrowers when
the bankers and the borrowers knew the money was not going to be paid back. That's called
fraud, and it's illegal. And then some of those same bankers, and other bankers, took those
garbage loans, and they packaged them together, packaged them together into security, and
they sold them to investors without telling the investors that the underlying loans were--
were toxic. That's called securities fraud. And I don't know how many billions of dollars of
this bad paper was sold, but I know a lot of people in the banking industry got rich doing it.
And then--and as a result, the American economy and almost the world economy, almost
melted down. Now the Department of Justice prosecuted virtually no one, no banking
executives over this. Why? I realize they made the banks pay some money, but I saw

banking fraud, and I saw securities fraud. And nobody was prosecuted.

BARR:

I can't answer that, Senator, but I can say that I was in charge of the S&L cleanup after it was

over. It was put under me in the deputy's office, and--

KENNEDY:

You folks prosecuted people.

BARR:

We prosecuted a lot of people and very quickly, and we cleaned it up very quickly. My--how

many did we get?

UNKNOWN:
Over 900.

BARR:
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Over 900 convictions, in very short order.

KENNEDY:

I don't think we had nine this time. I mean, what message does that send to the American
people? I mean, I'll tell you what I think the message it sends is that the people at the top can

cut corners and get away with it.

BARR:

What I can say, Senator, is I think my experience with the S&L shows that I'm not afraid of

going after fraud--

KENNEDY:

I know that.

BARR:

--at the corporate level. And it was one of the most successful, I think, government
responses to that kind of whole sector meltdown that there's been. So I'm very proud of the

job that was done by the department on that.

KENNEDY:

As--you know, as we say in Louisiana, you were mean as a mama wasp.
(LAUGHTER)

And you did the right thing. But I don't think we did the right thing with the banking

meltdown. Senator Coons.

COONS:
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3/18
Thank you, Senator Kennedy. Thank you, Mr. Barr. You have declined, or I'd say refused, to
commit to following the advice of the career ethics officials at DOJ with regards to recusal
from the ongoing special counsel investigation. Will you at least commit to notify this
committee once you receive the ethics officials' guidance, tell us what it was and explain

whether you agreed or disagreed with it?

BARR:
To tell you the truth, Senator, I don't know what the rules are and what the practice is, but

you know, off the top of my head I don't think I would have an objection to that.

COONS:
So you'd be comfortable letting us know that you'd received an ethics opinion and either

declined to follow--

BARR:

Yeah, but I'm not sure what the practice and the rules are. I generally try to follow the rules.

COONS:

You said earlier in this hearing you have an interest in transparency with regards to the final
report of the Mueller investigation. But I didn't hear a concrete commitment about release,
and I think this is a very significant investigation, and you've been very forthcoming about
wanting to protect it. The DOJ has released information about declination memos, about
descriptions of decisions not to prosecute in the past. I'll cite the Michael Brown case, for
example. Would you allow Special Counsel Mueller to release information about

declamation memos in the Russia investigation as he sees fit?

BARR:

I actually don't think Mueller would do that because it would be contrary to the regulations,

but that's one of the reasons I want to talk to Mueller and Rosenstein and figure out, you
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know, what the lay of the land is. I'm trying to--

COONS:
But if appropriate under current regulations, you wouldn't have any hesitation about saying

prosecutorial decisions should be part of that final report?

BARR:

AsIsaid, Iwant to get out as much as I can under the regulations.

COONS:

You also--

BARR:
I think it--that's the reason I say it's vitally important. It's related to my feeling that it's really

important to, you know, let the chips fall where they may and get the information out.

COONS:
You also said, in response to my first round of questions, that the special counsel regulations
shouldn't be rescinded during this investigation. Just to be clear, you would refuse to rescind

them if the president asked, even if that meant you'd have to resign?

BARR:

Well, that came up in the context of wanting to change the rules so Mueller could be fired.

COONS:
Right.

BARR:

That--where there was no good cause.
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COONS:

No good cause, correct.

BARR:
And I said there, yeah,  would not agree to that.

COONS:

There is another ongoing investigation in the Southern District of New York in which I
would argue the president's implicated as individual number one. If the president ordered
you to stop the SDNY investigation in which someone identified as individual one is

implicated, would you do that?

BARR:

Well, that goes back to an earlier answer, explanation I gave, which is every decision within
the department has to be made based on the attorney general's independent conclusion and
assessment that it's in accordance with the law. And so I would not stop a bona fide lawful

investigation.

COONS:

So if the president sought to fire prosecutors in the Southern District of New York to try and
end the investigation into his campaign, would that be a crime? Would that be an unlawful

act?

BARR:

Well, I mean that one--usually firing a person doesn't stop the investigation. That's one of
the things I have a little bit of trouble accepting. The--you know, but to answ--the basic point
is, if someone tried to stop a bona fide lawful investigation to cover up wrongdoing, I would

resign.
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COONS:

Deputy Attorney General Rosenstein has said publicly your memo had no impact on the
special counsel investigation. If you're confirmed and you're supervising the special counsel
investigation, would you order the special counsel's office to accept and follow the reasoning

in your memo?

BARR:
I would probably talk to Bob, Bob Mueller, about it. You know, if I felt there was a difference

of opinion, I would try to--I would try to work it out with Bob Mueller. At the end of the day,
unless something violates the established practice of the department, I would have no

ability to overrule that.

COONS:

You were attorney general when President Bush pardoned six administration officials
charged with crimes arising from the Iran-Contra scandal, and you encouraged the
president to issue those pardons. Is it permissible for a president to pardon a member of his

administration in order to prevent testimony about illegal acts?

BARR:

Is it permissible under what?

COONS:

Would it strike you--would it strike you as obstruction of justice for him to exercise his

presidential pardon power for the purpose of preventing testimony?

BARR:

Yeah, I think that if--if a pardon was a quid pro quo to altering testimony, then that would

definitely implicate an obstruction statute.
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COONS:

And would it be permissible for the president to pardon family members simply because

they're family members?

BARR:

Let me say that--no, I'm sorry. Go ahead.

COONS:

Two last questions, and then we'll be done. Do you think it would be permissible for the
president to pardon a family member simply because they are a family member, and where
the purpose, the motive is unclear? And do you think it would be permissible for a president

to pardon himself?

BARR:

Yeah, so here--the problem is under the Constitution there are powers, but you can abuse a
power. So the answer to your question, in my opinion, would be yes, he does have the power
to pardon a family member, but he would then have to face the fact that he could be held
accountable for abusing his power. Or if it was connected to some act that violates an

obstruction statute, it could be obstruction.

COONS:

How would he be held accountable?

BARR:
Well, in the absence of a violation of a statute, which is--as you know, in order to prosecute
someone they have to violate a statute--in the absence of that, you know, then he'd be

accountable politically.

COONS:
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Thank you for your answers today.

GRAHAM:

Senator Blackburn.

BLACKBURN:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. And Mr. Barr, thank you for your patience and for staying with
us today. A couple of questions. We've talked about border security and immigration law

and that is something that I want to return to.

I appreciated your comments about going after the problem at the source and I think that is
so vitally important when we talk about the immigration issues and we look at what has
happened when you are talking about drug traffickers and human traffickers, the gangs that
are coming across that southern border and I do think that a barrier is there. But one of the
symptoms if you will of an open border policy has been the sanctuary city policy and that

pertains to those that are illegally in the country.

And I tell you what, it is just absolutely heartbreaking to me every time I meet with an angel
mom and I hear these stories and then after Officer Sing(SP) was murdered, hearing that law
enforcement, local law enforcement officer, talk about and talk with specificity about how
sanctuary policies emboldened those that were illegally in the country. And when you look
at this practice of sanctuary city you know if we don't do something consistent in this realm
then what is to say you don't develop sanctuary cities for other--other violations of the law

whether it's tax law or environmental protection law or traffickers or any other--?

So talk to me for just a minute about what your connection will be between dealing with the
sanctuary cities and then dealing with some of these problems at the source. How do you--
you've talked about compartmentalizing and putting lieutenants in charge. And this is an
issue that affects every single community because until we stop some of this, we are going to

have every state a border state and every town a border town.
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BARR:

So you know I just think of it immigration. You have pull factors and push factors. There's--
there are factors down in Latin America that are pushing people up and there are attractions

to the United States that are pulling them up.

And one of the--I think a--a pull factor is things like sanctuary cities, the idea that you can
come in and not be--and--and get away with flouting our laws and coming in and so I think
that's one of the concerns I have about sanctuary cities. The second concern I have is that

the sanctuary city problem is a criminal alien problem.

I think a lot of people are under the impression that sanctuary cities are there to protect you
know the illegal aliens who are quietly living as productive members of society and paying

their taxes as Senator Hirono said. Itisn't.

The problem with sanctuary cities is that it is preventing the federal government from taking
custody of criminal aliens and it's a deliberate policy to frustrate the apprehension of
criminal aliens by the federal government. So I don't think those cities should be getting

federal--.

BLACKBURN:

Do you think it would be v--would it be abided with any other violation of U.S. law?

BARR:

No, I don't and there's a legal issue which is the question of--of, what's the word?
Commandeering. The states argue that for their law enforcement officers to have custody of
a criminal alien to notify the federal government on a timely basis so that they can turn that
fugitive essentially over to the federal government that that's commandeering state
apparatus under the Printz case and therefore it's--you know the federal government
shouldn't have that power. That's--that's the issue and I personally am very skeptical of the

commandeering argument.
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That was adopted where the federal government passed gun-control legislation and
basically, we are ordering the states to set up the whole background check and everything
else. The idea here is simply one law enforcement agency notifying another and holding the
person until they can be pick--picked up. So I'm skeptical that that's commandeering. But

that's the legal issue.

BLACKBURN:

My time is expiring and I know we need to finish this up but I do look forward to talking with
you again about China and the intellectual property violations; the way they go in and re-
engineer, steal from our innovators and of course the way they are forcing fentanyl and
illicit drugs through our ports and through that open porous southern border that we have to

secure. Thank you. Yield back.

GRAHAM:

Senator Blumenthal.

BLUMENTHAL:

Thanks, Mr. Chairman. I want to join and thanking you for your patience. I'm hoping that I
can get through all my questions on this round. I don't know whether the chairman will
exceed to a short third round but let me just try as best I can. On the pardon issue and
accountability, you would agree that the president pardoning someone in return for
changing his or her testimony would be an abuse of the pardon power and the president

should be held accountable?

BARR:

And--well, a quid pro quo to change testimony could potentially be obstruction.

BLUMENTHAL:
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Or for not testifying at all would be obstruction of justice. If the special prosecutor or the
prosecutor anywhere else came to you with proof beyond a reasonable doubt of that kind of
obstruction or any other crime, we're talking proof beyond a reasonable doubt, would you

approve an indictment of the president?

BARR:

I--that's the kind of thing I'm not going to--I'm not going to answer off the top of my head.
But if we take it out of this context and say if someone--if someone were--if a prosecutor
came and--and showed that there was a quid pro quo by which somebody gives something

of value to induce a false testimony or--

BLUMENTHAL:
(INAUDIBLE)

BARR:
Yes.

BLUMENTHAL:

And the question is whether the president could be prosecuted while in office. T happen to
believe that he could be, even if the trial were postponed until he is out of office, but because
the statute of limitations might run for any other number of reasons, a prosecution would be

appropriate. Would you agree?

BARR:

Well--but--you know, for 40 years, the position of the executive branch has been you can't

indict a sitting president.

BLUMENTHAL:
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Well, it's the tradition based on a couple of OLC opinions, but now it is potentially an
eminent, indeed immediate possibility, and I'm asking you for your opinion now, if possible,

but if not now, perhaps at some point.

BARR:
Are you asking me if I--if I would change that--that policy?

BLUMENTHAL:

I'm asking you what your view is right now.

BARR:

I, you know, I--I actually haven't read those opinions in a long time. But I see no reason to--

to change them.

BLUMENTHAL:

Well I'm happy to continue this conversation with more time and another opportunity.

BARR:

Sure.

BLUMENTHAL:

I want to ask you about the Southern District of New York, which I believe is as important as
the special prosecutor. As I mentioned earlier in my question before, the president has been
named their individual number one as an unindicted co-conspirator. If the president fired
the United States attorney, would you support continuing that investigation even under the
civil servants, the career prosecutors who would remain, assuming it is a legitimate

prosecution?

BARR:
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Yeah, and I've--I've tried to say it in a number of different ways, I believe, regardless of who
or what outside the department is trying to influence what's going on, every decision within
the department relating to enforcement, the attorney general has to determine
independently that--that it's a lawful action. And--and if there was a lawful, bona fide

investigation that someone was trying to squelch, I wouldn't tolerate that.

BLUMENTHAL:
Putting it very simply, you would protect that investigation against political interference as

hopefully you would do to the--

BARR:

--With any investigation in the department.

BLUMENTHAL:

Exactly. Let me move on to something unrelated, if I may. In the early 1990s, thousands of
Haitians tried to flee persecution in their own country by coming to the United States by
boat. As you remember, you oversaw, I believe, a program that sent thousands of them,
some of them were HIV-positive, to Guantanamo Bay. These asylum-seekers were kept at
Guantanamo Bay for 18 months area a federal judge in the Eastern District of New York
described the living conditions in Guantanamo Bay by saying that asylum-seekers were
forced to leave and live in camps, "Surrounded by razor barbed wire," and compelled to,

"Tie plastic garbage bags to the sides of the building to keep the rain out."

In an interview in 2001 at the Miller Center, you defended this program. Do you have
regrets about it now and I made correct in saying that these asylum-seekers first started

coming to the United States, it was your position that they should be kept there indefinitely?

BARR:
I really appreciate the opportunity to address this. So in--in 1991, Aristide was overthrown

in Haiti and there was a sort of a mass exodus from Haiti. And up until then, the policy of
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the United States has been force, until that time, administrations had forcibly returned

Haitian asylum-seekers and so forth without any kind of process.

We--it was a humanitarian problem because a lot of these boats were sinking, it was a 600
mile journey, so the Coast Guard--there are two different issues. One issue is the processing
of those who were healthy, and the second issue was the HIV. In a nutshell, the--the
processing we started actually giving them abbreviated asylum hearings on--on the ships.
Eventually, we moved some of that to Guantanamo and we were admitting to the United
States 30 percent, which is the highest it's ever been. I mean, I think before that it was just

minuscule.

Later, when the Clinton administration adopted our policies, it went down to 5 percent I am
told. But in any event, then it became so overwhelming that we forcibly repatriated the
Haitians because we felt that most of them, the conditions were changing, we didn't think
that there was a threat in Haiti, and--and we forcibly--we were just overwhelmed, and we
forcibly sent them back to Haiti. Meanwhile, HIV was--was an exclusion. You could not
admit anyone with HIV, and this was adopted by the Senate and then in the first year of the
Clinton administration and the Clinton administration signed a bill that kept it as exclusion,
you cannot admit someone with HIV except by case-by-case waiver based on extreme

circumstance.

So what we did with the HIV people is we first screened them for asylum because if they
couldn't claim asylum, then they wouldn't be admitted, and then we started a case by case
review. I started admitting them on a case-by-case basis where--where cases could be made
that there was a particular reason for doing it, like pregnant women and people who had not

yet developed full-blown.

So I think there was a slowing down of the processing because people felt that the Clinton
administration, which at the time was attacking these policies, was going to--was going to
be more liberal. And so, people thought will why should we go through this process with

Bush when Clinton is right around the corner? Clinton came in, adopted our policies, and
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defended them in court, continued forced repatriation, continued the exclusion of HIV. As

part of settling the case he brought in three 300--260--

BLUMENTHAL:
--Which didn't necessarily make it right.

BARR:
Well, it was right under the law.

BLUMENTHAL:

Did you favor keeping those Haitians in Guantanamo indefinitely?

BARR:
No.

BLUMENTHAL:

and can I ask you--

BARR:

--We were--I think most of the articles at the time said we recorded sort of in a Catch-22.
We were trying to process the HIV people on a case-by-case basis and--and in fact the
lawyers who--we, by the way, agree to have lawyers come down and represent these people
in the asylum hearings at Guantanamo. And in the book, written by them, they say right out

we were making progress. It stopped on the Clinton administration was elected.

So we were in this Catch-22 on the HIV and I had staff members go down there to
Guantanamo and the did not report, you know, inhumane conditions or anything like that
and--and that is not mentioned, I don't think in the--in the book written by the lawyers who

represented them. So it was a max--mass exodus situation and we did the best we could.
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BLUMENTHAL:

Would you do it again in exactly the same way if you had to do again?

BARR:
I don't--I mean, I don't know depending on the circumstances and also depending on--on

whether we thought this was really a case of persecution.

BLUMENTHAL:

Let me ask you this, would you, again, house asylum-seekers in Guantanamo?

BARR:
Well the Clinton administration did.

BLUMENTHAL:

I'm asking you.

BARR:
In fact, they doubled--they doubled and they started putting other nationalities in there too.

Probably not because of the associations of Guantanamo now.

BLUMENTHAL:

Would you segregate asylum-seekers in some other way, then?

BARR:
Well, I think it's always advantageous--given the abuses of the asylums system right now, I

would always procure prefer to process asylum-seekers outside the United States.

BLUMENTHAL:
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And don't you think we should do a better job with asylum-seekers in this country? In terms

of the kinds of facilities that we provide, particularly for women and children and families?

BARR:

Oh absolutely, yes. I--I think we--if we're going to detain families, I--I think those have to be

facilities that are safe and appropriate for young children.

BLUMENTHAL:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Senator Lee?

LEE:

Thank you very much very much, Mr. Chairman. Thanks again to you, Mr. Barr, for being
willing to answer all these questions today. I want to continue on some of the same theme
that Mr. Blumenthal raised a moment ago. He raised a couple of questions regarding

immigration, regarding our asylum process.

I think it's significant to note here that we have some in our political discourse today who are
suggesting that the enforcement of our immigration laws and the enforcement of our border
is somehow immoral, that it's somehow wrong. We've had people who--in one of the major

political parties, multiple candidates be elected campaigning, among other things, on either

eviscerating ICE's power or abolishing the agency all together.

As--as you noted earlier today, you gave a speech back in 1992 in which you were one of the
first people I remember using the metaphor of, you know, wanting to make sure that our
immigrants come to this country through the front door and not through the back door, or

not through a side window or something to that effect.
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Can you just sort of describe to us why you think it's important that we draw a clear moral
distinction between the enforcement of immigration laws, between legal immigration and
illegal immigration? Is this the functional equivalent, in other words, of the premature

removal of a do not remove tag on a mattress, or is it something more than that?

BARR:

I think it's something more. I mean, you know, we--we have built a great society here in the
United States. And a vast--and I forgot what the statistic is, but a very large majority of the
world lives under our poverty level. And for them, even, you know, being poor in the United

States would be a step up. And we have a lot to be grateful and thankful for here.

And if it was unrestricted, a lot of people would come here, more than we could possibly

accommodate. And people--.

LEE:

--And who would that--who would that harm, first and foremost, if we allowed that to

happen? Would it be the wealthy who would most immediately be harmed by that?

BARR:
No, it wouldn't. Yeah.

And so, it just seems obvious that you have to have a system of rationing. You have to have a
system that makes determinations who can come in when. And it's--Congress is in charge of
that. They can make the laws and determine it. And we--we I think have a very expansive

system.

There are people waiting in line for 10, 15--at least there were when I last looked at it, you
know, in the Philippines, for example, for over a decade, waiting patiently, law-abiding
people who want to come here and have family here and other things like that. And just to

allow people to come crashing in, be told that if you say if this, you'll be treated as an asylum
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and then you don't have to--you don't have to reappear for your EEA hearing or whatever,

it's just an abuse of the system and it's unfair.

I mean, all of us have been standing in lines, long, long lines, and someone just walks up to
the front. That's unjust. That's unjust. I also think that, without control, you have unsafe
conditions and uncontrolled conditions on the border which create, you know, serious

safety problems for everybody on both sides of the border.

So, it creates--uncontrolled access to the country is a national security threat. You know,
there are people around the world that are coming into Latin America for the purpose of
coming up through the border. So, these are--you know, these are the reasons why I think
it's important that we enforce--we have an enforceable system of laws which right now the

laws are sorely lacking.

LEE:

Our desire to enforce our border is not unique to us. In fact, our neighbors on the southern
side of our border in Mexico themselves have pretty strict laws which they enforce. And our-
-our neighbors in Mexico, including the officials in the--in the new Lopez Obrador
administration, with whom I visited recently, are themselves quite concerned about these

uncontrolled waves of migration from Guatemala, from Honduras, from El Salvador.

It occurs to me, and it has occurred to them, that it's important for us to figure out ways to
turn off the--the magnets that are bringing these uncontrolled waves in. If you could wave a
magic wand, is there anything--any change you would make to current asylum law or policy

that you think we ought to consider?

BARR:

I really couldn't say off the top of my head. I--I think--I had some ideas a while back about--
you know, I'm talking decades ago about how we could change it, 'cause this has always
been the problem. But I'd--you know, I'd have to see exactly where the abuses are coming in

and how we could deal with it.
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LEE:

Yeah. Mr. Chairman, I've got one more question. Could I?

GRAHAM:
Sure. Absolutely.

LEE:

With leave of the Chairman, I want to get back very briefly to civil asset forfeiture. I referred
briefly at the end of our previous exchange to a process whereby some state law
enforcement agencies, seeing that they are prohibited from doing that which they would
like to do under state law, will go to a federal law enforcement agency and agree to make the

civil asset forfeiture that they want federal such that it's no longer governed by state law.

Sometimes that happens and the Department of Justice will enter into an equitable sharing
arrangement with that state where the money is sort of--I don't like to use the word
laundered, but it's--it's filtered through the federal system deliberately in an effort to
circumvent state law. Would banning this type of equitable sharing in civil asset forfeiture

be something that you would be willing to do as attorney general?

BARR:

No, I couldn't say I'm willing to do it now 'cause I don't know enough about it. You know, I
come at this, number one, that asset forfeiture is an important tool; number two, that it's
important, you know, how--how we work with our state and local partners. But number
three, as you could tell from my early statement on this matter, I am sensitive to creating a
speed trap problem and also due process issues where amounts are stolen that, for all
intents and purposes, it would be too costly for some individuals to go and try to, you know,
get back. So, I'm open to looking at whether there are abuses, what kind of abuses occur,

and try to redress those.
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LEE:

Okay. Thank you. And--and it's--it's my view that, at least in that circumstance where it's
prohibited by state law, state law enforcement agencies shouldn't be able to make
themselves whole. They shouldn't be able to seek the blessing of government simply by

making it federal.

So, I hope you'll consider that, and appreciate your remarks on due process. This really does
touch on that, and it's right at the surface of a whole lot of constitutional rights. Thank you

very much, sir. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Senator--Senator Harris. I'm sorry, Booker. I apologize.

BOOKER:

Gosh, give a guy a little power as the chairman and he starts to push you around.

GRAHAM:
I tell you what. He's doing better than I am. I'm getting tired.

BOOKER:

I thought we were friends.

GRAHAM:
(INAUDIBLE) We are friends.

BOOKER:
Grateful, sir. Let me jump right in and you wrote an article where you described how the law
was being used and this was your--your opinion and maybe it's changed because this was

over a decade ago where you said the breakdown--the breakdown traditional morality by
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putting on an equal plane conduct that was pre--previously considered immoral. And you
mentioned the homosexual movement is what you described it as one of the movements

causing an erosion of morality in America.

I--I can only gather from this the article I'm quoting unless your opinions have changed that
you believe that gay bisexual trends--being gay or bisexual, lesbian or transgender is

immoral. Do--have your views changed from that?

BARR:
No, but I don't think I said--I think you were paraphrasing there. What did I say about the

homosexual move--

BOOKER:
I'will put it in the record the--

BARR:
Okay.

BOOKER:

The--the article that you and again I'm quoting your actual language.

BARR:

I['ll--T'll tell you my views. If--if--if T had been voting on it at the time my view is that under
the law, under the Constitution as I originally conceived it before it was decided by the
Supreme Court, marriage was to be regulated by the states and if I were and if it was brought

to me, I would have favored marital unions b--single-sex

BOOKER:
I guess I'm more asking do you still believe that homosexuality is a movement or that--that

somehow that's immoral behavior?
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BARR:

What I was getting at is I think there has to be a live and le--in a pluralistic society like ours
there has to be a live and let live attitude and mutual tolerance which has to be a two-way
street. And my concern and the rest of the article addresses this is I am perfectly fine with
the law as it is for example with gay marriage. It's perfectly fine. But I want accommodation

to religion and what I was concerned about--

BOOKER:

But I guess that's not my concern, sir. We live in a country right now where especially

LGBTQ youth are disproportionately bullied at school.

BARR:

Yes. Hate crimes.

BOOKER:

Hate crimes, serious hate crimes. Many report missing school because of fear,
disproportionately homeless. And I guess what I'm more concerned about is do you believe
that laws designed to protect LGBTQ individuals from discrimination contribute to what

you described as a breakdown in traditional morality, the laws--

BARR:
No.

BOOKER:

You do not?

BARR:
No.
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BOOKER:
Okay. Since--

BARR:

But I'd like to say what I--I also believe there has to be accommodation to--to religious

communities.

BOOKER:

You and I both believe in freedom of religion. I guess what I'm talking about again is
discrimination and I know you believe I know you believe, I know you believe--you don't
need to say for me that you believe that firing somebody simply because they're gay is

wrong.

BARR:
Totally wrong.

BOOKER:
I--Tunderstand that you believe that but do you believe the right to not be fired just because

of your sexual orientation should be something that should be protected under civil rights

law?

BARR:
I'm sorry. Your right not to be fired?

BOOKER:

Sir--

BARR:

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028232


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

In other words are you saying that it should be part of Title VII?

BOOKER:
I'm saying that right now in the United States of America and the majority of our state
someone can be fired, they can post their wedding pictures on their Facebook page and be

fired the next day just because they are gay.

BARR:
I think that's wrong.

BOOKER:
You think that's wrong?

BARR:
Yes.

BOOKER:
And--and--and so you would believe that efforts by the Department of Justice to protect
LGBT kids--kids or--or individuals from harassment from hate crimes in efforts to protect

the civil rights of LGBTQ Americans?

BARR:
I support that.

BOOKER:
You support that, okay.

BARR:

That's what I said in the beginning. I--I am very concerned about the increase in hate crime.
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BOOKER:

I was really happy about that and said you recognize that violence based on sexual
orientation is not acceptable and that you will work to combat that. I was really happy to

read that in your written testimony and hear it again.

Will you recognize that then that there's a place for the Department of Justice which is
supposed to protect the civil rights of Americans, vulnerable communities, that there's a
place for the Department of Justice to protect the civil rights of LGBT Americans by banning

discrimination based on sexual orientation or gender identity?

BARR:

If Congress passes such a law. I--I think the litigation going on now in Title VII is what the

1964 Act actually contemplated but personally, I think--

BOOKER:

Please, so I'm sorry you do believe the 1964 Act contemplated protecting individuals from

having being discriminated upon by--

BARR:

No, no. I think it was male-female that they were talking about when they said sex in the '64

Act.

BOOKER:

So protecting someone's basic rights to be free from discrimination because of sexual

harassment is not something that the Department of Justice should be protecting?

BARR:

No. I'm saying Congress passes the law, the Justice Department enforces the law. I think the

'64 Act on its face and this is what's being litigated, what does it cover? I think for like three
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or four decades the LGBT community was trying to amend the law.

BOOKER:

But the Obama administration as you know the Justice Department under the Obama
administration was working to protect LGBTQ kids from discrimination. Are those practices

that you would be--be pursuing as well?

BARR:
I--I don't know what you are referring to. I don't--I'm against discrimination against anyone

because of some status, you know, their gender or their--

BOOKER:
I understand really briefly--

BARR:

--sexual orientation or--or whatever.

BOOKER:

Thank you. With the indulgence of the chair just very briefly the Department of Justice
reversed the federal government's position in BC versus Perry after arguing that almost 6
years that the Texas voter ID law intentionally discriminated against minorities. Even the
Fifth Circuit of Appeal, one of the more conservative circuits, ruled that the Texas law

discriminated against minority voters.

You said very strongly that voting, the right to vote is paramount and I'm wondering if
confirmed will you bring the Department of Justice back into a--to the mode of defending
the right to vote because they've now pulled out of a lot of cases that were--that were

affirming people's access for the right to vote?

BARR:
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I will vigorously enforce the Voting Rights Act.

BOOKER:
Okay. And then I'll--I'll just say Mr. Chairman, I just want to say to you please I hope we get
a chance to talk more. I imagine this is our--our second round and I'm grateful for you today

answering my questions. Thank you, sir.

GRAHAM:

Now Senator Harris.

HARRIS:

Thank you. Sir, you were the Attorney General obviously under President George HW Bush
and in the Reagan White House a senior policy advisor so I'm going to assume that you are
familiar with the Presidential Records Act and my question is in the context of a Washington
Post report that the President took possession of an interpreter's notes documenting the
President's meeting with the Russian President Putin in 2017 and the question is then is

does that violate the Presidential Records Act?

BARR:

Your--your initial assumption I'm afraid was wrong. I--I don't, I'm not familiar with that act.

HARRIS:

You are not familiar at all--?

BARR:

At--at some time I-it's, you know, I--I really don't know what it says.

HARRIS:
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You don't know what it says?

BARR:
No.

HARRIS:
Okay.

BARR:

At some time at some point [ was--.

HARRIS:

It requires the president to keep documents and not destroy them essentially.

BARR:

At one point I knew what it said but I'm not familiar with it right now.

HARRIS:
Okay. In December a Texas jug--judge struck down the Affordable Care Act. If the decision

is upheld the results could include an estimated 17 million Americans losing their health
insurance in the first year alone, protections from pre-existing conditions would be
eliminated and seniors would pay more for prescription drugs and some adults would no

longer be able to stay on their parent's insurance plans until the age of 26.

Attorney General Sessions refused to defend the Affordable Care Act in court. As you know
when there is a change of the Attorney General in the Justice Department there is often a

change of priorities from the previous AG.

Soin the context of also understanding that many lawyers including conservative legal

scholars have criticized the Texas decision including Philip Klein of the Washington
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Examiner. Would you reverse the Justice Department's position and defend the Affordable

Care Act in court?

BARR:

That is a case that I--if I'm confirmed would want--.

HARRIS:

If confirmed.

BARR:

If I'm confirmed I would like to review the department's position on that case.

HARRIS:

Are you open to reconsidering the--the position?

BARR:
Yes.

HARRIS:

The Attorney General Sessions also issued a memo limiting the use of consent decrees. This
came up earlier in your hearing and the limitation was on the use of consent decrees

between the Justice Department and local governments.

I'm asking then within your first 90 days will you commit to provide--if confirmed, providing
this committee with a list of all consent decrees that have been withdrawn since Attorney
General Session issued that policy? We'd like some transparency and information about
what consent decrees have been withdrawn during the Sessions administration of the

Justice Department. Would you commit to doing that?

BARR:
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Yes.

HARRIS:
And if confirmed will you commit to providing this committee with a list of any consent

decrees that you withdraw during your tenure?

BARR:

Throughout the in--tenure?

HARRIS:
Yes.

BARR:
Yes.

HARRIS:
And if confirmed, within 90 days of your confirmation will you commit to convening civil

rights groups to listen to their concerns about this policy and the Department of Justice?

BARR:

[--I will, I'm--I'm very happy to convene that group.

HARRIS:

I'm going to interpret that as a commitment that you will.

BARR:

I'm--I'm not sure of about 90 days. Give me 120.

HARRIS:
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Okay. That's fine. That's--that's the agreement then within 120 days. That's terrific. And

then the Voting Rights Act you are familiar of course with that I'm going to assume, yes?

BARR:
Yes.

HARRIS:

Okay. And under the act, the record of discriminatory voting practices, those states that
have a record of such practices had to obtain federal approval in order to change their voting

laws as you know.

BARR:
Yes.

HARRIS:
And then came the 2013 Shelby decision where the court by a 5-4 vote pretty much gutted

the act ending the federal preapproval requirement. So within weeks of that ruling, you are
probably aware that legislators in North Carolina rushed through a laundry list of voting
requirements. A federal appeals court later held those North Carolina laws to be
intentionally discriminatory against African-American voters targeting them quote with

almost surgical precision.

Do you believe there are currently laws on the books that target African-Americans or have

the effect of discouraging African-Americans from voting in our country?

BARR:

Well, it sounds like those laws do.

HARRIS:

Sure.
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BARR:

SoI'm-

HARRIS:

Do you have any concern about that there may be other laws that have the same effect?

BARR:
I would be concerned if there are other laws and that's why I would vigorously enforce

Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act.

HARRIS:

And would you make it then part of your mission to also in spite of the fact that the Voting
Rights Act has been gutted to make it your mission to also become aware of any
discriminatory laws in any of the states including those that were covered by the Voting
Rights Act because of their history of discrimination and use the resources of the
Department of Justice to ensure that there is not voter suppression happening in our

country?

BARR:
Yes.

HARRIS:
Thank you. My time is up. I appreciate it.

GRAHAM:

It was very efficient. I think that's the end of the two rounds that I promised the committee

we would do. Thanks. Senator Hirono, you have a few more questions.

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000001 20210903-0028241


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5444712?4

HIRONO:
Yes, thank you very much. And I thank Senator Kennedy, as he was sitting in the chair, to

give me permission to go a little bit further. So, I'll be as brief as I can.

Last year, the Justice Department in Zarda v. Altitude Express--it was the second circuit
case--argued that Title VII of the filing amicus brief--it argued that Title VII of the Civil
Rights Act of '64 did not prohibit discrimination on employment on the basis of sexual

orientation.

So, both the second and the seventh circuits have the Department's argument. So, if

confirmed, would you appeal the--this decision to the Supreme Court?

BARR:
I thought--I think--I think it is going up to the Supreme Court.

HIRONO:
So, is the--is the DOJ going to continue to argue that Title VII does not protect--?

BARR:
--Well--.

HIRONO:

--Discrimination--employment discrimination?

BARR:
You know, it's pending litigation, and I haven't--you know, I haven't gotten in to review the--

the Department's litigation position. But, the matter will be decided by the Supreme Court.

HIRONO:
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Well, I take it that--that sounds like a yes to me that the Department will continue to push

the argument status then of--.

BARR:

--Well, it's not just the Department's argument. It's been sort of common understanding for

almost 40 years--.

HIRONO:
--So, employment discrimination on the basis of sex is something that--that--it would be

okay by you if that's something (INAUDIBLE)--.

BARR:

--No, that's not at all what I'm saying. I'm saying the question is the interpretation of a
statute back in 1964. I--as I've already said, I personally, as a matter of, you know, my own
personal feelings, think that there should be laws that prohibit discrimination against gay

people--.

HIRONO:

So, perhaps though, should you be confirmed, that you would review the Department's
position on making the argument, continuing to put for the argument that Title VII does not

prohibit employment discrimination. Would you review?

BARR:

No, because there's a difference between law and policy. The question in law is what was--
what--Iwill enforce the laws as passed by Congress. I'm not going to amend them. I'm not
going to undercut them. I'm not going to try and work my way around them and evade

them.

HIRONO:
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Well, the DOJ also doesn't have to file an amicus brief either.

Let me move on then. Recently, The New York Times reported that the Department of
Health and Human Services wanted to redefine gender for federal anti-discrimination law,
such as Title IX--so now, we're talking about Title IX--as being determined by the biological

features one has at birth.

So, do you believe that transgender people are protected from discrimination by Title IX?

BARR:
I think that matter is being litigated in the Supreme Court too.

HIRONO:

Do you know what the Justice Department's position is on whether--well, if they're going to
go along with what the Department of Health and Human Services wants, then there's--the
Justice Department's position is that Title IX does not protect discrimination on the basis of

transgender.

BARR:

I do not know what the position is.

HIRONO:

This is probably another one that I would ask you to review.

BARR:
Okay.

HIRONO:
Last questions. You've been asked this already. But, after the Shelby County v. Holder

decision, there was some 13 states that passed various kinds of laws that one could--the
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argument could be made that they were intended to suppress voters. In fact, some of them
were intentionally intended--not just the effect of discriminating against, basically, minority

voters.

So, you did say that you would vigorously enforce the Voting Rights Act. So, that's good. The
Washington Post reported last week that officials in North Carolina reported strong
allegations of election fraud related to absentee ballot tampering to the US DO]J. This--we're

talking about election fraud, not voter fraud.

But, the Justice Department did not appear to take any action, and now that Congressional
race 1s still being decided. But, one thing the Department of Justice did manage to do in
North Carolina was to request that North Carolina turn over millions of voting records to
Immigrations and Customs Enforcement, ICE, apparently as part of a needle in a haystack

effort to prosecute voting by non-citizens.

If confirmed, will you continue to put resources into this kind of effort to prosecute voting by
non-citizens--which the evidence is very clear that there is not this kind of voter fraud going,
in spite of the fact that the President said there was some--I don't know--three million
people who were not supposed to vote voting. So, would you continue to expend resources

on requiring turning over millions of voter records to be turned over to ICE?

BARR:

Well, I don't know what the predicate--I don't know what the predicate for looking into that

1s.

HIRONO:

Well, it was to get at voter fraud, which, according to the President, is going on in a massive

way, which it is not.

BARR:
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Well, yeah. But, the predicate--I don't know what information triggered that review. But,
you know, when I go into the Department, I'll be able to discern whether or not that's a bona

fide investigation. And, if it is, I'm not going to stop it.

HIRONO:

What is--what if the trigger was that there's massive voter fraud going on--which is not the
factual--it's not a factual basis. I would hope that, as--as Attorney General, you would make
decisions based on facts, not on some kind of ideological need to go after people. So, that's

all I'm asking. I would just ask you to make sure that--.

BARR:
--You're right--.

HIRONO:

--The predicates are based on--.

BARR:

--Facts--.

HIRONO:
--Some factual basis so that we're not wasting short resources to go after fraud that's not
even--there are plenty of other things that you could be doing to make sure that the people

are able to vote.

BARR:
Right.

HIRONO:
Thank you.
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GRAHAM:

Okay, can you make it a few more minutes?

BARR:

Sure.

GRAHAM:
Okay. I know comfort breaks are necessary. So what I'd like to do--Senator Kennedy has one
question, right? Senator Blumenthal has a couple. Then we're going to wrap it up. If you had

10 minutes to live you would want to live in this committee.
(LAUGHTER)

Because 10 minutes is a long time. Senator Kennedy.

KENNEDY:

In general I'm still confused about one point. Let's assume that Mr. Mueller, at some point,
hopefully soon, writes the report, and that report will be given to you. What happens next

under the protocol, rules and regulations at Justice?

BARR:

Well, under the current rules that report is supposed to be confidential and treated as, you
know, the prosecution and declination documents in an ordinary crim--any other criminal
case. And then the attorney general, as I understand the rules, would report to Congress
about the conclusion of the investigation. And I believe there may be discretion there about

what the attorney general can put in that report.

KENNEDY:

So you would make a report to Congress--
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BARR:
Yes.

KENNEDY:

--based on the report you've received?

BARR:
Yes.

KENNEDY:
Okay, thank you.

GRAHAM:

All right. A couple questions by Senator Blumenthal, and we're going to wrap it up.

BLUMENTHAL:

Thank you for your patience and--

BARR:
(INAUDIBLE)

BLUMENTHAL:

--your perseverance. And I appreciate, let me say, your willingness to come meet with me,
and so I'm going to cut short some of my questions. And also I hope that you will come back
regularly to the committee. Obviously the chairman is the one who determines when and

whether we have witnesses, but the frequency--

GRAHAM:
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He comes every 30 years.

(LAUGHTER)

BARR:
27.

BLUMENTHAL:

27.Youwere asked by Senator Leahy about your statement that the Uranium One deal was
more deserving of investigation than collusion with Russia. You answered that you were not
specifically referring to the--referencing the Uranium One deal, but just generally referring

to matters the U.S. Attorney might be investigating.

BARR:

I--I can't remember the exact context of that. There was a series of questions a reporter was
asking, and then the article sort of put them in a sequence that, you know, didn't necessarily

show my thoughts.

BLUMENTHAL:
Well, the New York Times just published in a tweet the email that you sent them, and you

did reference Uranium One specifically.

BARR:
Okay.

BLUMENTHAL:
I'll ask that it be made part of the record, if--

GRAHAM:
Without objection.
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BLUMENTHAL:
And--

BARR:
So what did I say?

BLUMENTHAL:

The tweet from Peter Baker of the New York Times says questions have been raised about
what Bill Barr told us for a story in 2017. Here is his full email from then responding to our
request for comment. We're grateful he replied and hope this clarifies any confusion. And

the email from you says, and I will take the relevant-

BARR:
Yeah.

BLUMENTHAL:

--part of the sentence. Quote, I have long believed that the predicate for investigated the
Uranium deal, as well as the foundation, is far stronger than any basis for investigating so-

called collusion.

BARR:
What--and came before that?

BLUMENTHAL:

I'll read the full email, with the permission of the chairman.

GRAHAM:

Yes, please.
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BLUMENTHAL:

Peter, got your text. There is nothing inherently wrong about a president calling for an
investigation, although an investigation shouldn't be launched just because a president
wants it. The ultimate question is whether the matter warrants investigation, and I have
long believed that the predicate for investigating the Uranium deal, as well as the
foundation, is far stronger than any basis for investigating so-called collusion. Likewise, the
basis for investigating various national security activities carried out during the election, as
Senator Grassley has been attempting to do. To the extent it is not pursuing these matters,

the department is abdicating its responsibility. Signed Bill Barr.

BARR:

Right. So the abdicating responsibility, I was actually talking about the national security
stuff, and that was my primary concern. I--you know, the Uranium One deal, the sort of pay-
for-play thing, I think at that point--I may be wrong on this, but I think it was included in
Huber's portfolio to review, suggesting that there was something to look at there. But the
point I was really trying to get at was that there was a feeling, I think a strong feeling among
many people, that it appeared, at least on the outside, that there were double standards
being applied. And I thought it was important that the same standard for investigation be
used for all matters. But I have no, you know, specific information about Uranium One that

would say that it has not been handled appropriately.

BLUMENTHAL:

Well, that's really my question. What was the factual basis for your saying that the Uranium

One deal was more deserving of investigation than Russian collusion, given what you have--

BARR:
I think that--

BLUMENTHAL:
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--very articulately described as the potential threat to the national security of the United

States from Russian interference in our election.

BARR:

Yeah, I think at that time there was a lot of articles appearing about it. I think maybe
Congressman Goodlatte had written a letter about it. So there was smoke around the issue,
as there has been smoke around a number of issues that have been investigated. But I was
using it really as an example of the kinds of things that were floating around that some

people felt had to be looked in as well--looked at as well.

BLUMENTHAL:

So the factual basis was whatever that smoke was?

BARR:

Well, the public information that a lot of opinions are being formed.

BLUMENTHAL:
And how about as to the foundation? What was the basis of your claim that the foundation

was more deserving of investigation than Russian collusion?

BARR:

Well, the founda--you know, I didn't necessarily think the foundation was--should be

criminally investigated, but I--

BLUMENTHAL:
Well, you did say that in the email.

BARR:

Idid, criminally?
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BLUMENTHAL:

Well, let me read that part of the sentence again. I have long believed that the predicate for
investigating the Uranium deal, as well as the foundation, is far stronger than any basis for
investigating so-called collusion. You were referring to the criminal investigation, as I read

it.

BARR:

Yeah. Well, the foundation, I always wondered about--it was the kind of thing that I think
should have been looked at from a tax standpoint and whether it was complying with the
foundation rules the way a corporate foundation is. And I thought there were some things
there that, you know, merited some attention. But I wasn't thinking of it in terms of a
criminal investigation of the foundation. I'd like to--you know, Attorney General Mukasey
said something that I agree with. He said, it would be like a Banana Republic putting
political opponents in jail for offenses committed in a political setting. Even if they are
criminal offenses, it's a something we just don't do here. And one of my concerns, frankly,
is, you know, politics degenerating into, you know, this kind of thing about should we
investigate this, investigate that, about political opponents, and that concerns me. So that's

why I said--I think, if not that, some other article. I don't subscribe to this lock her up stuff.

BLUMENTHAL:
But a political or public official, even the President of the United States, has to be held

accountable. No one is above the law. Wouldn't you agree?

BARR:
Oh, yes, absolutely.

BLUMENTHAL:
And just one more question. You referred earlier in response to a question from Senator

Feinstein about the emoluments issue, and I ask this question--in the interest of full
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disclosure I will tell you that I am the lead plaintiff in a litigation called Blumenthal, Nadler
vs. Trump that raises the issue of emoluments and the payments and benefits that have
been going to the President of the United States without the consent of Congress, in
violation of the chief anticorruption clause in United States law, the emoluments clause of
the United States Constitution, so we claim. You said that your understanding of

emoluments was that it was--that it pertained only to stipends.

BARR:
No. Well, first, I--

BLUMENTHAL:
Maybe--

BARR:

I haven't looked at that clause. I've not--you know, I haven't researched it, and I haven't
even looked up the word emolument. But all I said is just colloquially, off the top of my head,

that's what I always thought the word meant.

BLUMENTHAL:
So you're not necessarily disputing the conclusion of at least one district court, perhaps
others, that emoluments relates to payments and benefits much broader than just a stipend?

You were speaking only of your colloquial understanding?

BARR:

Yeah, I mean my colloquial understanding is that emoluments doesn't refer to exchange of

services and stuff like that, commercial transactions.

BLUMENTHAL:

Which is not necessarily the understanding of the founders and framers of the Constitution.
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BARR:
We'll see.

(LAUGHTER)

BLUMENTHAL:
Thank you.

GRAHAM:
Well, that's a good way to end. We'll see. Thank you, Senator Blumenthal.

BLUMENTHAL:
Thank you.

GRAHAM:
Thank you, Mr. Barr. To your family, thank you. You should be proud. This was a very

thorough examination of a very important position in our government. If confirmed, you
will be the chief protector of the rule of law, and I really appreciate your time, attention and
your patience. Any further questions can be submitted for the record by January 21. This

hearing is adjourned to re--to be reconvened tomorrow at 9:30. Thank you.
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Senate Judiciary Committee Holds Hearing on
Nomination of William P. Barr to be U.S. Attorney
General

LIST OF PANEL MEMBERS AND WITNESSES

GRAHAM:

Good morning, everyone. To our witnesses, thank you very much for sharing your testimony
with the committee. We have nine very distinguished people. If you could keep it to five
minutes, we'd appreciate it. We have your written testimony and will certainly look at all of
it. Senator Feinstein, thank you. Yesterday, I thought it was a very good hearing, asked a lot

of good, tough questions that were appropriate.

Nominating an attorney general is no small matter and I thought the committee acquitted
itself well and Mr. Barr, I think, is a unique individual and I'm glad the president nominated
him. Today, the purpose is to hear from people that have concerns and support and we are
honored that you showed up. If you don't mind, I'll mention who's here, then turn it over to

you. Is that okay?

FEINSTEIN:

That's excellent. Thank you.

GRAHAM:
Thank you. Our first witness will be the Honorable Michael Mukasey, former United States

attorney, former U.S. district judge, and former attorney--former everything. Yeah, so--Mr.
Derrick Johnson, President, Chief Executive Officer of the National Association for the

Advancement of Colored People from Baltimore. Welcome. The Honorable Larry
https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5 1/102
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3/18/2019 cQ
Thompson, former United States deputy attorney general. Welcome, Larry. Good to see

you. The Honorable Mark Morel. Is that right, sir?

MORIAL:

Morial.

GRAHAM:

Morial. Sorry. President, chief executive officer of the National Urban League. Mrs. Mary
Kate Cary, former speech writer for President George H.W. Bush and a senior fellow at the

Miller Center at the University of Virginia. Professor Neil Kemp?

KINKOPF:
Kinkopf.

GRAHAM:
Kinkopf. Professor of Law, Georgia State University College of Law, Atlanta, Georgia.

Professor Jonathan Turley, TV star, smart guy. That's enough. Reverend Sharon
Washington Risher from Charleston, South Carolina, Mother Emanuel. God bless you.
Thank you for coming. Mr. Chuck Canterbury, the National President for Fraternal Order of

the Police. I will now turn it over to Senator Feinstein.

FEINSTEIN:
Thanks very much, Mr. Chairman. And I very much enjoyed your leadership yesterday and

look forward to it in the future. So thank you. I'd just like to take thank take a moment to
thank our panelists today and that just a few comments, if I may, on the discussion that we

had yesterday.

Yesterday, many of us from, I think, both sides of the aisle, asked Mr. Barr about his legal
memo and that was allowing the special counsel to complete his work unimpeded and

making the report at the end of the investigation public. His answers were good, he clearly
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3/18/2019 cQ
understands the need for independence and the importance of protecting the department as
well as Mr. Mueller from political interference. I was concerned by his equivocation

regarding the report at the end of the special counsel's investigation.

Mr. Barr was clear that he would notify Congress if he disagrees with Mr. Mueller, which is--
I'm grateful for, but his answers on providing a report to Congress at the end of the special
counsel's investigation were confusing. When I first asked him about the report, he said he
would make it available. However, it seems to me that as the day progressed, he referenced
writing his own report and treating the Mueller Report as confidential. I intend--I'm going to

follow up with him in writing on this.

I think it's essential that Congress and the American people know what is in the Mueller
Report. I first met Bob Mueller when he was U.S. attorney and I was mayor in San Francisco.
And I know his reputation, I know his integrity, and this is a big report and the public needs
to see it and, with exception, a very real national security concerns, I don't even believe
there should be very much redaction. So I am hopeful that that report will be made public,
and my vote depends on that, Mr. Chairman because and attorney general must understand
the importance of this to the nation as a whole, to us as a Congress, as well as to every

American.

I also plan to follow up on questions that Senator Blumenthal asked about Roe and whether
he would defend Roe if it were challenged. This is always been a critically important issue
for me and, I believe, the majority of American women. And I very much regret that I didn't

get to ask follow--follow-up questions.

Mr. Barr's nomination comes at a time when we are very divided on many issues ranging
from immigration and civil rights enforcement to the very independence of the Justice
Department and the witnesses today are going to speak to those key issues. For example,
Professor Kinkopf from Georgia University served in the Justice Department's Office of
Legal Counsel and he can speak today about issues he's focused on, primarily presidential

authority, as [ understand it, and separation of powers.
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3/18/2019 cQ
Sharon Risher is an ordained pastor who lost her mother and cousins to gun violence in the
horrific hate crime that took place at Emmanuel AME Church in Charleston, South
Carolina, and can speak to the importance of enforcing common sense gun laws. We will
also hear from two prominent leaders of the civil rights community who can speak to the
impact of the Justice Department's policies under President Trump. Mr. Marc Morial, where
you Marc? Whose sister has been a colleague of ours and it's great to see you, the president
and chief executive officer of the National Urban League now. And Mr. Derrick Johnson, the
president of the NAACP. So  welcome, on behalf of the side, I welcome everyone here.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Thank you, Senator Feinstein. If it's okay, lead us off, Mukasey. Oh, sorry. I've got to swear
you in first. Could you please stand, all of you? Raise your right hand. Do you solemnly
affirm that the testimony you're about to give this committee is the truth, the whole truth,

and nothing but the truth, so help you God?

MUKASEY:
Ido.

GRAHAM:
Thank you.

All right. General Mukasey.

MUKASEY:

Good morning. Mr. Chairman, Ranking Member Feinstein, members of the committee, it is
a tremendous honor, as well as a great pleasure, to be here to testify on behalf of Bill Barr to
serve as attorney general. I don't know of any nominee who has had his background and his
credentials for this job. Obviously the job is a lot--about a lot more than credentials, but he

has done literally everything that you could possibly do, including serving as attorney
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3/18/2019 cQ
general, to prepare him. Now obviously the Department of Justice is a different place today
from the time that he served. It's different from the time that I served. But he's obviously
well-equipped to deal with whatever problems he faces. He was with the CIA. He headed
the Office of Legal Counsel, which is, I think, the office that attracts, along with the solicitor
general's office, the best legal minds in the department. He headed that office. He was
deputy attorney general, so he knows how the department runs. And of course he was

attorney ge

neral. It's impossible to improve on that, not only what he did, but the way he did it. When
he was acting attorney general he supervised a--the liberation of hostages at a federal prison
in a way that prevented any casualties. And then follow that up by not taking any public

credit for it. That's the kind of person he is, and that's the kind of judgment he has.

And as far as pressure from the White House, I mean, he was asked at one point whether he
could come up with a theory to justify the line item veto, and he did a lot of research and
found that while there was no precedent in our law, there was something that might be
called common law going back to about the 15th century. He said there was a Scottish king
who had done something that looked like a line item veto, but of course that Scottish king,
as it turned out, was suffering from syphilis and was quite out of his mind. And so he would
have to call that the syphilitic prerogative if you did it, Mr. President, and so the president
decided not to assert the power. That's the kind of judgment he has. That's the kind of

human--

GRAHAM:
You learn a lot on this committee. (INAUDIBLE)

MUKASEY:

Yeah, it's--it was a revelation to me, too. It's a terrific story, but it illustrates what he's like.
He doesn't--he's not intimidated by questions or by the source of them. When I--a couple of
months ago, when I--when General Sessions was leaving, I thought to write an article

pointing out all the good things that he had done, and I called up Bill Barr to ask whether he
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3/18/2019 cQ
would join in that article. He didn't hesitate for a nanosecond. He said he would. He said it
was the right thing to do, it was the correct thing to do, and he was glad he had done it. And
that, I think, tells you in--in--in substance what it is this person is about. He's an honorable,
decent, smart man, and I think he would make a superb attorney general Thank you very

much.

JOHNSON:
Good morning, Chairman Graham and (OFF-MIC). Is that better? Great--gr--. Thank you

for allowing me to testify on the nomination of William Barr to be attorney general of the
United States. My name is Derrick Johnson and since October of 2--2017 I have had the
honor of serving as the president, CEO of the NAACP.

Founded in 1909 the NAACP is our nation's oldest, largest and most widely recognized civil
rights organization. The NAACP opposes Mr. Barr's nomination and I urge every member of

this committee to vote against his confirmation.

The Senate considers this nomination in extraordinary times. Under the Trump
administration, we have experienced the worst erosion in civil rights in modern history. We
have seen reversals and rollbacks of long-standing policies and--and positions that have
enjoyed bipartisan support from their creation. We have seen an undermining of both
substantive protections and the tools necessary for civil rights enforcements such as the
desp--desperate impact--the desperate impact method for proving discrimination and the

use of consent decrees to address abuse by police agencies.

The next attorney general of our United States has the opportunity to reverse course and
place the Justice Department back on the track to fulfill this historic role of safeguard--
safeguarding our civil and constitutional rights. The Senate must seize this second chance
for justice and insist upon attorney general--an attorney general capable of independence

and willing to enforce our nation's civil rights laws with vigor and resolve.

After a thorough in--evaluation and review of the record William Barr is not that candidate.

Mr. Barr's record demonstrates a lack of strong commitment to protecting the civil and
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3/18/2019 cQ
human rights of all Americans. The communities served and represented by the NAACP
will have a difficult time placing our trust in the Justice Department and by extension, the
American criminal justice system overall even with the improvements just signed into law

with the First Step Act.

The Justice Department's enforcement of our voting rights laws is a paramount--of
paramount importance but the current department has jettisoned protections for the right
to vote. It has reversed positions in lawsuits to support voter suppression measures and to

purge voters from the rolls.

Because Shelby County versus Holder eliminated safeguards under Section 5 of the Voting
Rights Act litigation under Section 2 of the Act is all very important. But the Justice

Department has filed no Section 2 claims since this administration has been in place.

As the nation experienced rapid voter suppressions throughout the 2018 midterm elections
the Justice Department stood silently as communities of colors across the nations were
denied access to the polls. At a time when the Justice Department has abandoned voting
right protections, the need for federal enforcement has never been greater. The U.S.
Commission on Civil Rights recently supported that voter suppression is at a all-time high
and unanimously called on the department to pursue more voting rights enforcement in

order to address aggressive efforts by state and local officials to suppress the vote.

Mr. Barr's record on criminal justice is abysmal. As attorney general, he championed mass
incarceration and deprived countless persons of color of their liberty and dramatically
limited their future potential. His Justice Department tenure was marked by extraordinary

aggressive policies that harm people of color.

He was a general in the war on the crime on drugs that rooted--that was rooted in racism. He
literally wrote a book on the case for more incarceration which stands in contradict--in
contradiction of the First Chance Act. But William Barr did not and does not recognize

racially discriminatory impact of our criminal justice system policies.
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In 1992, he said I think our system is fair and does not treat people difterently. And just
yesterday he told Senator Booker overall and I quote the system treats black and whites
fairly. That--this statement is singly disqualifying. We need an attorney general who

understands both the history and persistence of racism in our criminal justice system.

The--the--the government-sponsored inhumanity is inconsistent as it relates to this
administration's enforcement of immigration rights. The NAACP we filed a lawsuit as it

relates to DACA. We need an attorney general who respect the rights of individuals.

Finally, and I'm trying to rush through this quickly now. Mr. Barr recent action make his
impartiality on the ongoing investigation into Russia interference in the 2006 election

suspect and for the NAACP we are very clear.

Matters of international questions is not under our purview but any time a foreign nation
used the worst common denomination in this nation's history of racism to suppress African-
American votes to--and in an effort to subvert democracy it is a question of national sec--
security and we need an individual who has the independence to stand up and be fair and

make sure we protect the democracy. Thank you, members of the committee.

THOMPSON:
Good morning, Chairman Graham, Ranking Member Feinstein, members of the
committee. It is my great honor to appear before you this morning in support of Bill Barr's

nomination to serve our country once again as attorney general of the United States.

I have known Bill since 1992. I can attest to the fact that Bill has a deep, deep respect for
and fidelity to the Department of Justice. Bill will go where the law leads him. In fact, as
attorney general, he did not hesitate when required by law to appoint or seek to appoint
various special or independent counsel in high profile matters. He served with great
distinction as attorney general and is highly respected and admired on a bipartisan basis by

the career prosecutors and investigators he oversaw in the department.

Importantly, Bill knows how to develop much needed partnerships with state and local law

enforcement. He was very successful at this during his tenure at attorney general and
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created strong and effective joint task forces across the country to combat white collar and

violent crime.

Bill believes that every citizen, no matter where he or she lives, deserves the full protection

of the law. Bill also understands that federal law enforcement cannot do the job alone.

In 1992, Bill visited my hometown of Atlanta, Georgia and spoke with members of the
Southern Christian Leadership Conference. He said that, when cleaning up crime infested
neighborhoods, and I quote, "It cannot be a Washington bureaucratic project. It must be a
project where the solutions are found in the community itself." He acknowledged to the
Reverend Joseph Lowery that in the past decades the federal government's anticrime efforts

have relied too heavily on prison construction and not enough on crime prevention.

Now, as a former general counsel of a large public company myself, I also appreciate and
admire Bill's approach to his work in the private sector. Bill was very supportive of the
lawyers who worked with him. He was collaborative with his colleagues. He welcomed
input, dialogue, and discussions. He created opportunities for everyone he oversaw to

develop and grow in their careers, including many female lawyers and lawyers of color.

He was also supportive of diversity in the legal profession. In 2002, the company Bill served
as general counsel received the North--Northeast region employer of choice award from the
Minority Corporate Counsel Association for successfully creating a more inclusive work

environment.

Finally, members of the committee, I think the most important point I can share with you is
that Bill Barr is a person of very high integrity. He led the Department of Justice as attorney
general with an unbending respect for the rule of law. As general counsel of a large public

company, he emphasized the importance of complying with all laws, rules, and regulations,

and he stood up for his corporate client a world-class compliance program.

Bill Barr's integrity is rock solid. He will not, and I repeat, will not simply go along to get
along. Last January he resigned from his position as the director of an important public

company board. Bill let his conscience and his integrity guide his decision.
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As a citizen, I thank Bill for his willingness to return to public service. He is needed, and I
look forward to his tenure again in service to our great country as attorney general. Thank

you.

GRAHAM:
Thank you, Mr. Thompson. Mr. Morial?

MORIAL:

Thank you. Chairman Graham, Senator Feinstein and members of this committee, I want to
thank you for the opportunity to testify on the nomination of William Barr to be attorney
general of the United States. I'm Marc Morial and have the pleasure of serving as president
and CEO of the National Urban League. Before doing so, I served eight years as the mayor
of my beloved hometown, New Orleans, president of the national--the United States
Conference of Mayors, a Louisiana state senator, a college professor and a practicing lawyer
involved in one of the most important civil rights and voting rights cases to come before the

Supreme Court in the 1990s.

The National Urban League was founded in 1910. It's a historic civil rights and urban
advocacy organization with a network of 90 community-based affiliates, and we have
affiliates in every town represented by the members of this committee. We have hard--
worked hard and fought for civil rights, justice and equal opportunity, along with fairness,
for our entire existence. My illustrious predecessor, the late Whitney Young, was one of the
big six of civil rights leaders who worked for the 1964 Civil Rights Act, the 1965 Voting
Rights Act and the 1968 Fair Housing Act. One of our prime missions is to ensure that each
of these laws is aggressively, faithfully and consistently executed and enforced by every

president, every Congress and every attorney general. That is why I am here today.

Mr. Chairman, on behalf of our entire Urban League movement across the country, I urge
this committee and the entire Senate, based on a careful examination of this nominee's
record, to soundly reject the nomination of William Barr as the next attorney general of the

United States. Let me tell you why. For the past two years the Justice Department has been
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led by an attorney general intent on restricting civil and human rights at every turn. This
nation needs an attorney general who will dramatically change course and enforce civil
rights laws with vigor and independence. Based on his alarming record, we are convinced
that William Barr will not do so. Indeed, in a recent op-ed Mr. Barr called Jeff Sessions, the
architect of these restrictive civil and human rights policies, an outstanding attorney
general, and offered praise for his anti-civil rights policies. It's clear, based on the record,
that Mr. Barr intends to follow Mr. Sessions down the same regressive, anti-civil rights

roadmap.

The confirmation of William Barr who espouses former Attorney General Sessions' policies,
would enormously exacerbate our nation's current civil rights crisis. When we submitted
comments to the United States Commission on Civil Rights, raising concerns relative to
Sessions' actions on various civil rights issues, they were as follows; overturning a memo
from former Attorney General Eric Holder, aimed at reducing mass incarceration by
avoiding mandatory sentencing, disproportionately subjecting African-Americans and other
minorities to long-term incarceration, abandoning the Justice Department's Smart on Crime
Initiative, ending the community-oriented policing services collaborative reform project, a
Justice Department program that helped build trust between police officers and the
communities that serve, announcing the Justice Department's School Safety Plan that
militarizing schools, offering a sweeping review of consent decrees with law enforcement
agencies related to police conduct, nothing but a subterfuge to undermine a crucial tool in
the Justice Department's efforts to ensure constitutional and accountable policing. Mr. Barr

has a troubling record that tells us that there will be no redress of Sessions' blunders.

Last year, after arduous work done by many members of this committee, we passed the First
Step and the Juvenile Justice Reform Act of 2018, and I want to thank the committee for its
support of that. Mr. Barr's record on criminal justice places these achievements at serious
risk and gives us no confidence that these hard (INAUDIBLE) reforms are going to be
carefully executed. Why? As attorney general, Barr pushed through harsh criminal justice

policies, or rather he pursued them, that escalated mass incarceration and the (INAUDIBLE)
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war on drugs. His 1992 book, The Case for More Incarceration, argued that the country was

incarcerating too few individuals.

Barr led an effort in Virginia to abolish parole, build more prisons and increase prison
sentences by as much as 700 percent. Yesterday, Mr. Barr testified to this committee of his
intent to implement the First Step Act. If that is the case, this committee should ask him for
a commitment to rescind the guidance that Mr. Sessions issued on May 10, 2017,
instructing all United States attorneys to seek the maximum penalty in federal criminal
prosecutions. The attorney general has a duty to vigorously enforce our nation's most
critical laws, to protect the rights and liberties of all Americans, to serve as an essential
independent check on the excesses of an administration. And we feel the evidence is clear
that Mr. Barr is ill-suited to serve as chief enforcer of our civil rights laws. And therefore we
urge this committee, as a part of its deliberations, its duty and its responsibility, to reject Mr.

Barr's nomination as our next attorney general. And [ want to thank you for your time.

GRAHAM:
Thank you, sir.

GRAHAM:
Mr. Cary. Ms. Cary.

CARY:

Mr. Chairman, excuse me, Chairman Graham, Senator Feinstein, and members of
committee, thank you for the invitation to testify today and I'm here to give my enthusiastic
support for the nomination of William P. Barr as our next attorney general. My name is
Mary Kate Cary and I was a White House speechwriter for President George HW Bush from
19891t01992.

In January 1992, I moved to the Justice Department from the White House for the final year

of the Bush 41 administration to serve as deputy director of policy and communications,
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overseeing the speechwriters and the policy shop and serving as one of two spokesmen for
the then new Attorney General, Bill Barr. When I first started working for general bar, I was
28 years old. I got to know him very well, as speechwriters do, and quickly learns the way he

thinks.

I found that Bill Barr has a brilliant legal mind. He knows Mandarin, Chinese, and he plays
the bagpipes. He's got a great sense of humor and an easy laugh. He is a kind and decent
man, a dedicated public servant, and one of the best bosses I've ever had. He is always a

gentleman.

Bill and I flew thousands of miles that year and a four-seater prop plane to towns and cities
all over America where he met with local law enforcement leaders, small-town mayors, city
council members, the victims' rights advocates, criminal justice reform leaders, residents of
public housing, prison wardens, federal prosecutors, religious leaders, really, all kinds of

people from every walk of life.

We were often traveling in support of Bill's visionary initiative, Operation Weed and Seed,
which sought to remove violent criminals and drug gangs from underserved neighborhoods
and then allow grassroots organizations and programs to flourish, bringing hope of a better
life to residents through education, opportunity, and stronger civil rights. As we met with
people in communities all over America, I saw that Bill was a good listener. He was
masterful at drawing out people's concerns and he had a knack for finding the best solutions
on the ground, figuring out what worked in the neighborhood, and then putting the right

policies in place. He made sure politics never entered into it.

Bill Barr treated everyone with the same respect, whether they were an up and coming chief
of police, a receptionist of the at the Department of Justice, or an 80-year-old resident of
public housing. I believe this is why Bill Barr continues to be held in high esteem by the
career, staff, and the civil servants at the Department of Justice and why he was such a
successful attorney general. I also believe that, in addition to being good policy, Bill Barr's
leadership style is why Operation Weed and Seed continued on for many years after he left

office.
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Everywhere we went that year, we were accompanied by rank and file FBI agents and he was
admired by every one of them that I met. More than once I can remember being in very
dangerous situations where the agents were concerned for his physical security. Every time,
he was more concerned about my security. The fact that the attorney general of the United
States was more concerned about the safety of a 28-year-old staffer than his own safety tells

you volumes about him.

Despite his top-notch education and his stunning intellect, Bill Barr is not an ivory tower
kind of guy. He went out of his way to build friendships at the department and across the
United States, checking in when someone was sick, helping people get jobs, just staying in
touch. He and his wife Christine came to my wedding and we have stayed friends for the 27

years since we have worked together.

Like President Bush 41 did, Bill Barr has a devoted and wide collection of friends, each of
whom think of him as a really good friend. I remember when he was attorney general at the
age of 42 and his three daughters were young girls. Despite the long hours he kept, the
tremendous amount of travel, and the time spent away from his family, his daughters
admired his devotion to the law so much that each of them later went to law school in order
to follow in his footsteps. As a mother myself, that too tells me volumes about the way he

has lived his life in the example he has given to young people, especially women.

It is no surprise to me that he's one of the few people in American history to be asked to be
attorney general of the United States twice. It's an honor for me to highly recommend

William P. Barr to you for confirmation. Thank you.

GRAHAM:
Thank you. Prof. Kinkopf.

KINKOPF:
My thanks to the committee for the honor and privilege to appear here today and testify on

the nomination of William Barr to be attorney general. In his testimony yesterday, William
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Barr minimized his 2018 memorandum on obstruction of justice. He characterized it as a

narrow analysis of a particular interpretation of a specific statute.

That's true in a sense, but to answer that very narrow question, he elaborated a
comprehensive and fully theorized vision of the president's constitutional power. He
declared without limit or qualification, and I quote, "Constitutionally, it is wrong to
conceive of the president as is simply the highest officer in the Executive Branch. He alone is
the Executive Branch. As such, he is the sole repository of all executive powers conferred by
the Constitution. Thus, the full measure of law enforcement authority is placed in the

president's hand and no limit is placed on the kinds of cases subject to his control."

That manifesto of an imperial executive has alarming implications for the Mueller
investigation and for the whole of the Executive Branch. First, I wish to highlight two
implications for the Mueller investigation. William Barr gave reassurances late yesterday
regarding what he would or would not do. These assurances are beside the point. Because
on Barr's theory, the power rests with the president. Therefore, the president does not have
to ask bar to do anything. In--in his view, the attorney general and the special counsel are

"Merely the president's hand." Again, a quote.

The president needs only ask the attorney general can I terminate the special counsel's
investigation and Barr's answer to that question will be yes. This is not speculation or
inference drawn from the Barr memo. The Barr memo takes this on very directly. Again,
quoting the memo, "Say an incumbent U.S. attorney launches an investigation of an
incoming president. The new president knows it is bogus, is being conducted by political
opponents, and is damaging his ability to establish his new administration and to address
urgent matters on behalf of the nation. It would be neither corrupt nor a crime for the new

president to terminate the matter."

Well, President Trump has told us that that is exactly how he regards the Mueller
investigation. Next, there was a great deal of discussion around the release of Mueller's
report. First, it is clear that Barr does not mean--that Barr takes the DOJ regulations to mean

that he should release not the Mueller report, but rather his own report. Second, he reads
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DOJ regulations and policy and practice to forbid any discussion of decisions declining to

indict, declination decisions.

In combination with the DOJ view that a sitting president may not be indicted, this suggests
that Barr will take the position that any discussion or release of the Mueller report relating to
the president, who again cannot be indicted, would be improper and prohibited by DO]J

policy and regulations.

I wish to close by noting one consequence of the Barr memo's theory of executive power that
extends outside the Mueller probe. The memo asserts that the president has, and I'm
quoting again, "Illimitable discretion to remove principal officers carrying out his executive
functions." This would mean, for example, that the president may order the chairman of the
Federal Reserve not to raise interest rates and to fire the chairman of the Federal Reserve if
the chairman refuses to follow that order. The independence of the Federal Reserve, the
SEC, the FEC, the FTC, the FCC, the dozens of administrative, of independent

administrative agencies are unconstitutional under Barr's theory of executive power.

This, in spite of the fact that for over 30 years the Supreme Court has consistently upheld
the constitutional validity of the independence of those entities. Mr. Barr's theory of
presidential power is fundamentally inconsistent with our Constitution and deeply

dangerous for our nation.

CORNYN:

Professor Turley.

TURLEY:
Thank you, Senator Cornyn. Also allow me to thank Chairman Graham, Ranking Member

Feinstein, all of the members of the committee for the honor of speaking to you today.

I've known General Barr for many years in my capacity as both an academic and a litigator. I

actually represented him with other former attorneys general during the litigation leading
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up to the Clinton impeachment. I can think of no better person to serve at--in this position

and lead the Justice Department at this critical time.

I come to this as someone that holds difterent views of the Constitution from General Barr. I
am unabashedly a Madisonian scholar and I admit I have always admitted in testimony that
I favor the Legislative Branch in fights with the Executive Branch. I also have been a crit--

critic of the expansion of executive power.

My default is in Article 1. General Barr's default is Article 2. He tends to take a robust view
of executive authority. Despite our different defaults however, I've always admired him. I
have always found him to be one of the most knowledgeable and circumspect leaders in the

United States when it comes to constitutional history and theory.

Now I have already submitted written testimony addressing the 1989 and 2018 memos. I
respectfully disagree with my friend Neil even though I found many of the things he said
very compelling. We disagree on both what General Barr has said and also the implication of
his views. But ultimately this committee has a difficult task regardless of the resume of a

nominee.

You must try to determine what is the person's core identity and values. For me, that
question has always come down to a rather curious and little-known fact about the seal of
the attorney general that sits underneath the attorney general whenever he speaks. It has
the familiar image of a rising eagle with the olive branch and the 13 arrows and talons but
under it is actually a Latin legend that we continue to fight about how that legend was put on

the seal.

What we know is that it appears to be derived from how the attorney general was introduced
to the Queen. The British attorney general was introduced as one who prosecutes for our
Lady the Queen. That phrase was clearly adopted by someone. There's a huge debate about

who or when or even why but they made one change.

It would not do to use that language so they changed the last words to Domina Justitia, our

Lady Justice. It wouldn't do for the attorney general to litigate or appear on behalf of any
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leader. The attorney general appears on behalf of the Constitution, not the president.

I know that Bill Barr understands that distinction. He has said so yesterday. He has
maintained that position through his whole career. He has a record of specific leadership,
not just at the Department of Justice but in this very position. He's only the second person
ever to be nominated to fit--fill that position twice. There are few nominees in history as

General Mukasey said who has the resume that Bill Barr has.

I won't go into depth about the discussion of the memo that Neil was talking about other
than to say this, I--I do go into it in my written testimony. As--as Deputy Attorney General
Ron Rosenstein said it is not uncommon for former justice officials to share their views

about issues that they believe concern the department.

Indeed General Barr wrote to other justice officials about the prosecution of Senator
Menendez. He had no connection with Senator Menendez, no interest in that case. His
interest was the theory of prosecution being used against Senator Menendez, that he was

concerned swept too broadly under the criminal code.

The eight--the 2018 memo is vintage Bill Barr. It is detailed, it is dispassionate. It's the work
of alaw nerd and that's what he is. He's a law nerd, I should know because I'm a law nerd

and I teach with 80 other law nerds.

When people are suspicious why would anyone write a memo this long spontaneously and
send it to anyone that's because you don't know law nerds. Okay? We write these memos so
that we don't follow strangers on the street trying to talk about the unitary executive theory.
Indeed I think the best thing we could do for Christine and the family is to re-incarcerate Bill

on the fifth floor of Main Justice where he can talk about this all day long.

Now the dispute about that obstruction provision is a real one. I'm a little taken aback by the
criticism. From a civil liberties standpoint, I have been critical of the expansion of--of the
obstruction theory. It sweeps too broadly for me and as a criminal defense attorney, I've

been critical of it for a very long time.
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The issue that he was raising is a real one. He raises it from the Article 2 standpoint, some of
us have raised it from the civil liberties standpoint. What he really is arguing is not that the
president can't be prosecuted. He says exactly the opposite. He says the president can be
charged with federal crimes in office. He believes the president can be charged with
obstruction in office. So he says the diametrically opposed thing to what many people are

saying about him.

What he believes is just as Confucius said that, "the--the start of wisdom is to call things by
their proper names." He wants to call this by its proper name. If the president commits a
crime, he wants that crime to be defined. He does not say by the way that that same conduct
cannot be another type of crime. He was only talking about the Residual Clause of 12-

-1512. Those were fair questions about statutory interpretation.

I don't agree with everything in his memo, I've said that publicly. I disagree in some of his

conclusions but I wholeheartedly agree with him that this is a serious problem and it has to
be defined.

Now ultimately, I believe if you read his testimony you will find that he is more measured
than some of my friends have suggested. Even Clinton's own former appointees like James
Clapper said that yesterday he went as far as he could go as attorney general giving

assurances. But this is historic moment for the Justice Department. I hope it doesn't pass.

They need this man and they need it now. I brought my children today Aidan and
Maddie(SP) because I think that they really should be here. I suspect they are here because
they heard that Senator Feinstein was giving out junk food to kids. But I hope that they will
also understand the historic moment for what it is and I thank you for the honor of being

part of this.

GRAHAM:
Thank you. Rev. Risher.

RISHER:
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Good morning, Chairman Graham, Ranking Member Feinstein and members of the Senate
Judiciary Committee. It is my honor to appear before you today to testify on the nomination
of William Barr to be attorney general of the United States. My name is Rev. Sharon Risher,

and I live in Charlotte, North Carolina.

My life, like so many other people's throughout this nation, has been forever changed by gun
violence, gun violence that is preventable with effective enforcement and common sense
safety laws. On Wednesday, June 17, 2015 is the day that my life changed. As a hospital
trauma chaplain I have worked and experienced grief, and tragedy, and pain and loss as I
worked with patients and families to comfort them. But that night I was the one in need of
comforting when I received a telephone call that no American deserves to get. My beloved
mother and two of my cousins had been shot and killed in the church along with six other
parishioners at the Emanuel African Methodist Episcopal Church in Charleston, South

Carolina.

In the Charleston community which I was raised, when the doors of the church was open,
my family was in the pews. That Wednesday was no different. A young white man entered
the church at the beginning of the Bible study. In the spirit of our faith, he was welcomed in
by the congregation and sat near the pastor. After studying the Gospel of Mark, they held
hands, and bowed their heads, and closed their eyes and held hands in prayer. That was the
final moment for many in that church. That day that young man pulled out his gun and

started firing. Some ran, some hid under tables, but they were gunned down.

A house of worship is supposed to be a refuge from the storms of everyday life, but that
young man robbed my family and eight other families of their loved ones. Five people

survived. Five people have to live every day with that tragedy in their hearts.

After the massacre in Charleston I struggled to answer why my loved ones and so many
others had been killed. I was disturbed to learn that the shooting was premeditated and
driven by hate. The shooter targeted parishioners at Emanuel simply because of the color of
their skins. Along with so many Americans, I was baffled at how such a hateful man was able

to get his hands on a gun. We later discovered that a loophole in our gun laws allowed the
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shooter to obtain the gun used to murder my mother and my cousins and the six others in
that church. That loophole allowed hatred to be armed to kill. The person that killed my
family members should have not been able to buy that gun. The National Instant Criminal
Background Check System was designed to keep guns out of the wrong hands, including
criminals, domestic abusers and unlawful users of controlled substances. The Charleston
shooter had previously been arrested for drug possession, something that should have

blocked him from obtaining a gun under our existi
ng laws. Yet he was able to legally purchase one because of a loophole in the federal law.

You see, if the FBI does not finish a background check within three days, the sale can
proceed regardless of whether the check had been completed, and that's exactly how the
man who killed my family exploited a loophole and got his gun. And he is not the only one.
The FBI reported thatin 2017 alone gun dealers sold at least 4864 guns to prohibited
people before the background checks had been completed. Those nearly 5000 sales were
primarily made to felons, domestic abusers or, like the man who killed my family, unlawful
users of controlled substances. A strong background check system is the foundation for
common sense safety laws that keep guns out of the hands of the wrong people. We cannot
stop--we can stop hate from being armed, but we need background checks on all gun sales,

and law enforcement needs enough time to complete the background check.

Each day I wake up motivated to ensure that hate will not win. As a member of the
Everytown Survivor Network, I share my story to put a human face on our nation's gun
violence crisis. Our community of survivor advocates for change to help ensure that no other

family faces the type of tragedy we have experienced.

If he is confirmed as our nation's next attorney general, Mr. Barr will serve as our nation's
top law enforcement officer in a position of great power and influence. I hope he will make it
a priority to prevent gun violence and work with Congress to update our laws and close
loopholes that enable guns to get in the wrong hand, just like that young man, filled with

hate, murdered my family.
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Nine lives were cut short in Charleston. Today I say the names of my mother, and my
cousins, and the six other people to honor them in this most sacred place. My mother, Mrs.
Ethel Lance, my two cousins, Mrs. Susie Jackson and Tywanda Sanders, my childhood
friend, Myra Thompson, the pastor of the church, Rev. Clementa Pinckney, Rev. Daniel
Simmons, Rev. Sharonda Coleman-Singleton, Mrs. Cynthia Hurd, Rev. Depayne
Middleton-Doctor. I pray that whenever you hear their names you feel empowered to help

bring about change.

Thank you for listening, and I will answer any questions that you have.

CANTERBURY:

Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Ranking Member Feinstein, and distinguished members of
the of the Committee on the Judiciary. I am the elected spokesperson of more than 345,000
rank and file police officers, the largest law enforcement organization in the United States.
I'm very pleased to have the opportunity to offer the strong and unequivocal support of the
FOP for the nomination of William P. Barr to be the next attorney general of the United

States.

In my previous appearances before this committee, I've been proud to offer the FOP support
for a number of nominees with the expectation that they would be good leaders, that they
would serve our country honorably and effectively. In this case however, there is no need to
speculate whether or not Mr. Barr would make a good attorney general because he's already
been a good Attorney General in the administration of President George HW Bush. He had
the experience the knowledge and the ability to lead the department then and he certainly

does now.

Mr. Barr's career of public service began as a clerk for a judge on the U.S. Court of Appeals
for the District of Columbia and he served a short tenure in the Reagan White House. He
then joined the Bush administration as assistant attorney general for the Office of Legal
Counsel in 1989. President Bush took note of his leadership, integrity, and commitment to
law enforcement and promoted him to deputy AG in 1990.
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In 1991, he was named acting attorney general and was immediately faced with a public
safety crisis. At the Talladega Federal Prison, more than 100 Cuban inmates awaiting
transportation back to their country staged a riot and took 7 corrections officers and 3
immigration and naturalization employees' hostage. In the first hours of the standoff,
General Barr ordered the FBI to plan a hostage rescue effort. The Cuban inmates demanded

that they be allowed to stay in this country and released one of the hostages.

Over the course of the nine-day siege, it was clear then that negotiations were--were failing.
General Barr ordered the FBI to breach prison and rescue the hostages. They were freed
without any loss of life and the incident was ended because of General Barr's decisive
action. Following the successful resolution of this incident, President Bush nominated him
to be U.S. attorney general. The Committee on the Judiciary reported his nomination

unanimously in the Senate confirmed him as the 77th attorney general.

Through his service and his action, he demonstrated he was the right man for the job. The
FO--FOP believes he is the right man for the job again today. Two years ago, just after his
inauguration, President Bush issued three, excuse me, President Trump issued three
executive orders on law enforcement and public safety. The first directed to the federal
government to develop strategies to enhance the protection and safety of our officers on the

beat.

The others created the task force on crime reduction and public safety and for the
development of the National Strategy to combat transnational criminal organizations
trafficking in human beings, weapons, and illicit drugs. Mr. Chairman, during his tenure as
attorney general, Mr. Barr directed and oversaw a similar transformation at the Justice
Department by re-focusing its resources, by making crimes of violence, particularly gang--

gang violence, a top priority for law enforcement.

I submit to this committee that Mr. Barr is the perfect person to complete the work begun by
General Sessions, with respect to focusing federal resources to fight violent crime because

he's not only done it before, he's done it as the attorney general. President Trump has
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clearly made law enforcement and public safety a top priority. His nomination of William

Barr to be the next attorney general demonstrates that these priorities have not changed.

We know Mr. Barr's record and abilities as well as his prior experience in that office. The
FOP shares his views and we are confident that Mr. Barr will once again be a stellar top cop.
We believe the president made an outstanding choice and for Mr. Barr to return to public
service as the attorney general of the United States will serve this country well. The FOP
proudly offers are full and vigorous support for this nominee and we urge this committee to
favorably--favorably support this nomination just as you did in 1991. Thank you for the

opportunity to testify. I'd be glad to answer any questions.

GRAHAM:
Thank you all very much. [ appreciate your testimony and I'll get it started here quickly.

GRAHAM:

Rev. Risher, thank you for your coming up here and sharing your loss, and your story and
your hurt. Some comfort, I hope, is that Mr. Barr said if he is the attorney general he will
pursue red flag legislation that I'm working on with Mr. Blumenthal and others, that would
allow law enforcement, if they have appropriate information, to go and deny somebody a
gun who is showing dangerous behavior. I think that's a real gap in our law. Most of these
cases people are screaming before they act, and we're just not listening. The guy down in
Florida did everything but take an ad out in the paper, I'm going to kill somebody. It
would've been nice if the police would've had a chance to go in and stop it before it

happened.

As to Dylann Roof, who is facing the death penalty in South Carolina, he applied for a gun in
West Columbia, South Carolina. The system said he had just been arrested. During the
three days of looking into the arrest--he had not been convicted--the FBI agent called the
wrong solicitor's office. There's two counties in Columbia, and they did not find out the fact

that he had admitted to being--possessing and using a substance that would have kept him
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from owning a gun. So we need to reform the laws, but that was sort of a mistake more than

it was a loophole.

Mr. Turley, thank you very much for what you had to say. The special counsel regulation is
28 CFR 600.8. It says at the collusion of the--conclusion of the special counsel's work here
she shall provide the attorney general with a confidential report explaining the prosecution
or declination decisions reached by the special counsel. So you think Barr will take this

report seriously if given to him?

TURLEY:
Absolutely.

GRAHAM:
Okay. It also says the attorney general will have notified the ranking member and chairman

of the Judiciary Committee in both bodies. Do you think he'll do that?

TURLEY:
Absolutely.

GRAHAM:

Okay. It also says to extent--to the extent consistent with applicable law, a description and
an explanation of instances, if any, in which the attorney general concluded that a proposed
action by the special counsel was so inappropriate or unwarranted under established
departmental practices that it should not be pursued. So under this regulation if Mr. Mueller
recommends a course of action and Mr. Barr says I don't think we should do that, he has to

tell us about that event. Do you agree that's what the regulation requires?

TURLEY:
Absolutely.
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GRAHAM:
Do you believe he will do that?

TURLEY:
Absolutely.

GRAHAM:
Okay. It also says the attorney general may determine that public release of these reports
would be in the public interest to the extent that the release would comply with applicable

legal restrictions. Do you think he will be as transparent as possible?

TURLEY:

Yes, and he said that. And I could add one thing to this, Mr. Chairman. The committee
pressed him on what he meant by that. I know that Ranking Member Feinstein also raised
this in her comments. But as James Clapper and other people noted yesterday, there's only
so much that--as far that a nominee can go. You can't ask that he satisfy ethical standards

when asking him to commit, in advance--

GRAHAM:
Right.

TURLEY:

--to release of information that he hasn't seen yet because part of his duty is to protect things
like Rule 6(c) information, grand jury information and the derivative information,
privileged information. He is duty-bound to review that. So the only thing a nominee can
say is that he is going to err on the side of transparency and try to get as much of the report

to Congress as possible.

GRAHAM:
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Based on what you know about Mr. Barr, should we take him at his word?

TURLEY:

Absolutely. I have never known Bill Barr, in all the years that we have known each other, I
have never known him to be anything but honest and straightforward. The last time he
came in front of this committee the chairman of that committee, one of your predecessors,
expre--praised Barr. He said that this is a sort of a throwback to what committee hearings
use to be like where the nominee actually answered questions. He's a very honest person.

And if he said that he is going to err on the side of transparency, you can take it to the bank.

GRAHAM:
Okay. So Mr. Johnson, thank you for coming today. I--I listened to your concerns about Mr.
Barr. I voted for Holder and Lynch. Do you think I made a good decision voting for them to

be attorney general?

JOHNSON:
Ido.

GRAHAM:
Why?

JOHNSON:
I think their presentation before this committee was honest, direct, but more importantly,
they committed to protect our democracy. For African-Americans protecting democracy is

to also (INAUDIBLE) enforce efforts to ensure that all citizens can cast their ballot.

GRAHAM:
Right.
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JOHNSON:
They committed to that, and they demonstrated that while they were in office.

GRAHAM:

Okay, and you believe Mr. Barr will not be committed to that?

JOHNSON:

Well, I have serious reservations and concern.

GRAHAM:
Okay.

JOHNSON:
Those concerns first start with this administration, their lack of enforcing Section 2 of the

Voting Rights Act.

GRAHAM:

How much of it is about this administration versus Mr. Barr?

JOHNSON:

In many ways it's difficult to separate the two.

GRAHAM:

So I just want to suggest something to you. There was a lot of concerns I had about the
Obama administration. I will not bore you with my concerns. But I thought he chose wisely
with Mr. Holder and Ms. Lynch because they have differences on policy than I because I'm a
Republican, but I thought they would be good stewards of the law and they would be fair

arbiters of the--being attorney general. It never crossed my mind that I would vote against
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them because I have policy disagreements. If that's going to be the new standard, none of us

are going to vote for anybody on the other side. So thank you for your input.

JOHNSON:
But if I may, Mr. Chair.

GRAHAM:

Please.

JOHNSON:

Going beyond policy disagreement, this nation has had a long history of discriminatory
practices, particularly in the criminal justice system. And anytime we have a nominee to
come before this committee who truly don't appreciate the disparities in the criminal justice

systems, as he stated yesterday, that goes beyond policy disagreement.

GRAHAM:
(INAUDIBLE)

JOHNSON:

That goes toward whether or not we understand the equal protection of the law should be

afforded to all citizens.

GRAHAM:

Well, I want to make sure you understand what he said because I remember Senator Booker
asked him, and he says yes, the crack cocaine sentences were disproportionate to the
African-American individual, and that's why we changed the disparity between powder
cocaine and crack cocaine. He acknowledged that, but in 1992 he thought the biggest
victim of rampant violent crime were, you know, low-income, mostly minority

communities. So I don't buy what you're saying about him not understanding their
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differences and how one group is affected, particularly in the drug arena. So I think what he

was trying to do is talk about crime.

But here's what's perplexing to me. The NAACP has been in the fight for social and racial
justice for a very long time, and I don't know how we got here, but you do a scorecard every
year. And in 2017 every Democrat got 100 percent. I got 22 percent, Grassley got 11,
Cornyn got 11, Lee got 11, Cruz got 11, Sasse got 6, Ernst got 11, Kennedy got 17, Tillis
got 11, and Crapo got 6. There's a disparity here. I'd hope you think that I'm--because I
disagree with your scorecard rating--that I'm not a racist, and I certainly don't know how to

close this gap. I'd like to.

JOHNSON:
So I--right. So the NAACP, we're a nonpartisan organization. Our scorecard is not based on

political parties. Our scorecard is based on our agenda.

GRAHAM:

Well how do you explain the differences?

JOHNSON:
If you'll allow me, our agenda is set by the delegates from across the country. And we're very

clear that discrimination should not be a part of any agenda.

GRAHAM:

How many of them are Republicans?

JOHNSON:

Excuse me?

GRAHAM:
How many of them are Republicans?
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JOHNSON:

I don't--we don't determine how many members are Republicans. We have Republicans

among our membership on our National Board.

GRAHAM:

I don't want to--okay.

JOHNSON:

But if you allow me to explain the report card.

GRAHAM:

Please, please.

JOHNSON:

Right, and so we establish our agenda not based on political parties because we understand
the political parties are nothing more than vehicles for agendas. And as many African-
Americans were members of the Republican parties before the 1965 Voting Rights Act,
many African-Americans may decide their agenda based on the party's platform. And if
party platforms align with the needs and interests of our communities, then they will vote
for a platform that support their needs, whether it's access to quality public education,
ensure that all African-Americans and Americans can cast a fair ballot, fair housing policies,
making sure we have true tests to determine disparate impact. Those are the issues we are
concerned about. Those are not partisan issues. Those are policy issues. And individuals
who run under party labels, they decide based on the platform that they believe, which party
label they run under. We don't make partisan decisions. We make policy decisions. And it's

informed by members acro

ss the country. Some are Democrats, some are Libertarians, some are Republicans.
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GRAHAM:

You may not think that you're making--that your agenda is party neutral. All I can tell you is
somebody wants to solve problems. It's pretty odd to me that every Democrat gets 100
percent, and I do the best as a Republican getting 22. Maybe the problem's all on our side. I
don't think so. I think the agenda that you're pursuing in the eyes of conservatives is not as
good for the country as you think it is, and it's got nothing to do about Republican and
Democrat. It's more it has to do about liberal and conservative. You've got to ask yourself,

why does every conservative on this committee, the best I can do is to get 22?

MORIAL:

Mr. Chairman.

JOHNSON:
Well, I think it's a different question. I think the members of the Republican Party should

ask yourselves, are you willing to be expansive enough and inclusive--

GRAHAM:
(INAUDIBLE)

JOHNSON:

--to ensure the rights of individuals despite their racial background, their interests are met,

not based on conservative or liberal tendencies, but based on those individuals' needs and--

GRAHAM:

Fair enough.

JOHNSON:

--and the interests that they advocate for.
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GRAHAM:

Will you ask yourselves why I can't get better than 22 percent from conservatives?

JOHNSON:
Yeah, sure, we can go down each one of the policy agendas, and we can go through each one

of them, and we can make a determination.

MORIAL:

Yeah, Mr. Chairman, let me--I want to--

GRAHAM:
That's a good discussion. (INAUDIBLE)

MORIAL:

I want to sharp--sharpen--sharpen this discussion because I think it's an important
discussion, and give you what concerns me. When it comes to this entire discussion, this is
about whether the nominee is going to aggressively, faithfully enforce the civil rights laws.

And let me give you a couple facts.

GRAHAM:

Can I ask you one question? You can give me all the facts you want.

MORIAL:
Yeah.

GRAHAM:

Name one Republican that you would support.
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MORIAL:

I'm not here to talk about Republicans and Democrats. I supported him when he was a

Democrat.

GRAHAM:

Ijust can't think of a better person to pick than Mr. Barr if you're a Republican. So I don't
know who's going to do better than him in terms of experience, judgment and

temperament. So if this guy doesn't cut it, I'm at a loss of who we can pick.

MORIAL:

Well, INAUDIBLE) let me make my point because I want the committee to be extremely
clear on this, and I want to cite two examples. Attorney General Sessions--and we have to
talk about his record because the question for us is whether Mr. Barr is going to continue the
policies of Attorney General Sessions when it comes to enforcing civil rights laws. In two
instances Attorney General Sessions, in his first days and months in office, had the Justice

Department change sides in the middle of an important civil rights case.

GRAHAM:

Elections matter.

MORIAL:

Texas--but senator, the enforcement of the law does not. The enforcement of civil rights
laws is neutral when it comes to elections. So what Attorney General Sessions had the
Justice Department do is switch in a Texas voter ID law after the judge had made a finding,
preliminary finding, that the Texas voter ID law was discriminatory. You know what it would
be an example of? If Drew Brees or Tom Brady, after leading his team to a lead, went in at
halftime and came out with the jersey of the other team on. In the middle of the case.
Secondly, in the Ohio voter purge case, the same thing occurs. Why did the Justice

Department, without any discussion with the Congress, without any discussion with the
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civil rights community, switch sides miraculously and immediately? That should not have

anything to do with who wins an election.

GRAHAM:

I will say this. I could have given you 100 examples of where Eric Holder and Loretta Lynch
had a different view of a statute or a policy than I did. But if you don't expect elections to
matter, that's a mistake. The policy differences we have are real. To expect Trump to win
and everything Obama did stay the same is unrealistic. All I'm asking is that let's look at
qualifications because a Democrat will win one day, and they will nominate somebody with
a completely different policy view than I have. It will be a very simple decision. If I can find a
difference, I'll vote no. The question I'm trying to ask the country is do you expect quality
people to be chosen by the other side who has differences with you? If the answer is yes,

then Mr. Barr is as good as it will get.

MORIAL:
Well, you know senator, lots of us thought you were going to be nominated as attorney

general.

GRAHAM:

Would you have supported me?

MORIAL:
Hey, guess what, we would've had a--I know we would've had a discussion, and I wouldn't

close the door on that.

GRAHAM:
Well, I appreciate that, but I don't think I'm nearly as qualified as Mr. Barr.

MORIAL:
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So I'll say that. We thought you were gonna be nominated

GRAHAM:
I don't think I could hold a candle to him. But the fact you said that about me, I appreciate

the hell out of it. And let's see if we can find a way to get me above 22 percent.

UNKNOWN:

Let's work on it.

GRAHAM:
All right.

FEINSTEIN:

Reverend Risher, I just want to say something to you personally. I will never ever forget your
words, your motion, the truth you spoke and your feelings. And I just want you to know that
there's so many of us that now know so many victims of guns in this country that we will
continue to fight on to change this environment. So just know that and I'm so happy. You're
one of the best witnesses I--I have ever heard and your words will not be lost. I hope your

family is in a better place. Thank you.

RISHER:

Thank you so much.

FEINSTEIN:
Thank you. Mr. Kinkopf, if I may, Mr. Barr has stated that the memo that I spent all day

reading and is very complicated, has state--has stated that that memo was narrowly focused

on obstruction of justice. However, Mr. Barr's arguments outlined broad presidential
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powers. Please explain how his view of executive authority could impact the Mueller

investigation.

KINKOPF:

Okay. Well, in any number of ways. I think most fundamentally is his claim without limit or
qualification that the president is the Executive Branch and that, therefore, all executive
power is vested in the president personally. That the president can personally exercise that
power, and not leaving this to speculation or to chance, the memo specifically says that the
president can control any litigation, any prosecution or investigation, including a
prosecution or investigation of the president personally, and the president's family
members. And further, it says that the attorney general, the special counsel, anyone serving

under the president is merely the president's hands.

FEINSTEIN:

Well, it was certainly the case for the unitary executive and the all-powerful central figure.
There's no question, I think, about that. In my mind, the question is, you know, how--does
he really mean this? And it's hard if you don't know a man and he's here and he's in front of

you for the first time and you meet him, it's very hard to make those judgments.

He's obviously very smart, he was attorney general before, no one can say he isn't qualified.
The question comes--we are at a time and a place where there are a lot of other subjects that
are important. He has stated that his memo was narrowly focused. Mr. Turley, we've got a
defense counsel, I guess, how do you see this, that same question I asked Professor

Kinkopf?

TURLEY:

It's a--it's a fair question and Neil and I agree actually on a great deal because we both have
really difficulty with the expansion of executive authority. We're both critics of aspects of

the unitary executive theory but we disagree on--on the Barr memo. I--I think it was narrow.
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I mean, he says in the memo that he believes the president can be charged with obstruction

in office. He believes that a president can be charged with other crimes in office.

And where I--where I disagree with Neil is that it is true that he says in his memos that the
Constitution doesn't limit the power of the presidency, that--in--in these regards, and that's
demonstrably true. It's not in the Constitution, there are not those limitations. But he has
said repeatedly in writing and before this committee that he believes that a president can be
charged for acts in--in office. He also believes that, if the president misuses his authority, it
can be an abuse of power and it could be a violation of his--his duty to faithfully execute the

U.S. laws.

FEINSTEIN:
Well, it doesn't mean that Mr. Mueller could recommend indictment of the president and

Mr. Barr could disagree.

TURLEY:

On--on that I'm not sure where Neil is.

FEINSTEIN:

Now, that's an esoteric question. I understand, but it's along the line of your thinking.

TURLEY:

Yeah, and I agree with some of the senators on this committee. I have always said that a
sitting president could be indicted in office. I disagree with the OLC on memos in that
respect. Will--would general Barr change that position? My guess is he probably would not.
Would--would the special counsel asked for a change? My guess is probably not. It's not
really--if you look at the history of both of these individuals, they're--they're not likely to

either disagree or move for a change.

FEINSTEIN:
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In this--let me ask both of you or anyone that wants to answer this, this memo and the whole
concept of the unitary executive, all-powerful, I think has never been better expressed in a
contemporary way than I've read it in this memo. And I was thinking last night, obviously
Mr. Barr is qualified, he is bright, he is capable, but it's hard for me to understand why, with
our Constitution, our Bill of Rights, why we want somebody that is all-powerful in every way

to take these actions.

KINKOPF:

Senator, I think--

FEINSTEIN:
--My question was not well stated, but I think you got the gist of it.

KINKOPF:

Right. Senator, I think we don't. So I would agree that William Barr is amply well-qualified
by virtue of experience, by virtue of intellect, by virtue of integrity.  have no doubt that he
will stand out for his vision of the Constitution, and that's what I find so troubling because
his vision of the Constitution is so expansive and alarming with respect to the president's

ower. Right, that's why I quoted it. It's not my characterization.
P gnt, ylq y

He says directly the president alone is the Executive Branch. He speaks repeatedly through
the memo of the president's illimitable powers. And while it's true that the Constitution
doesn't specifically authorize Congress to limit the president's prosecutorial discretion by its
text, it also doesn't, by its text, give prosecutorial discretion to the president. All

investigation and prosecution is done pursuant to the laws and enacted by Congress.

And within that authority to enact those laws is the authority to establish the parameters on
that power. You do that and you do that validly and legitimately. The Supreme Court has
said that repeatedly. And what is so alarming about the Barr memo is that it reads the

Constitution in a way that frees the president from those constraints.
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TURLEY:

If I--this is where I do disagree. And I thought the question was--was presented quite well
because it does isolate where we depart. And that is, first of all, even though I don't like
unitary executive theory, there are many, many judges and lawyers who believe fervently in
it. Also, there is not one single definition of that theory. People--there's a sort of gradation of

where you fall on that.

Bill Barr actually disagrees with the position of the trumped legal team. He--he--he
expressly said that they are wrong, that it doesn't curtail a president's authority to prosecute
him in office. So he is--he's not at the extreme on this. But the other thing I want to note is
that I think where Neil and I disagree is that Neil is taking Barr's statement as to the
constitutional footprint, the mandate of the--of the Constitution, which does not have a
limit and limitations in these areas, from how they would apply where he said very clearly
the president cannot do whatever he wants. There are consequences. He could even be

prosecuted.

FEINSTEIN:
Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

GRAHAM:

Senator Hawley.

HAWLEY:
Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and thanks to all of you for being here today.

GRAHAM:

That was interesting.

FEINSTEIN:
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Yeah, it really is.

HAWLEY:

General Mukasey, can I start with you, I think? And thank you, general, for your long
service, both as attorney general of distinguished service and on the federal bench. As a
former attorney general yourself, of course, you know the office firsthand. You have done
this job. You've done it at a time of great national security peril for this country. You
referenced in your opening statement the qualifications that Bill Barr brings, would bring to
this job, and the advantages, in some ways, he would have having done the job already. Can
you just speak more to that? I mean I imagine if you were--if you were coming back to be
attorney general again there are things you would do differently, knowing the job as you do
now. So can you just elaborate for us why you think that his prior experience is a--is a major

plus?

MUKASEY:

Quite simply, he doesn't have and won't have the same steep learning curve that I had
coming out of Article III. He doesn't have to do DOJ 101 and learn how each office runs, and
he doesn't have to learn how they interact. He doesn't have to contemplate from ground
zero the powers and the authority of each of the offices under it. He's seen it and done it. But
I don't want to overstate the degree to which his experience prepares him. Obviously we're
living in a different time, and the issues are different. He's going to have to face that. But
he's going to be able to devote 100 percent of his energy to doing that rather than learning
the basics. That's what I-- that's what I meant.

If I can go back, if I may, to the conversation you were just having about-about our--about
the president's powers, I do happen to believe in the unitary executive, unlike the other two
folks, and it's just not a question of religious belief, and it's not some quirky attitude. The
Constitution says, at beginning of Article II, "The executive authority shall be vested in the
president of the United States." It doesn't say all except a little bit of it. It doesn't say most of

it. It says the executive power. That means all of it. Obviously, obviously the president can
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be removed, not only for crimes, but also for using his conferred powers in an improper way,
and the president runs the political risk of having that happen every time he does something
that--that--that comes close to the line or goes over the line. And that, I think, is the
constraint. And it's so far been a reliable constraint. Everybody says that well he could

remove Mueller. Perhaps he could, but guess what, he hasn't done it yet. And the

re is good reason why he hasn't done it yet because the earth would open up and swallow

him. We all know that. So I think that that's really what's at stake here, the political risk.

HAWLEY:

General Mukasey, just staying with that point, I think this is interesting to get someone who
has held this office, and advised presidents, and enforced the law as you have. You're
familiar with Mr. Barr's views on executive authority Article II power. Do you think that

those are out of the mainstream?

MUKASEY:
I do not.

HAWLEY:

Do you think that they're inconsistent with the Constitution?

MUKASEY:
No, they are faithful to the Constitution. That's what he is faithful to.

HAWLEY:
Go ahead. I mean, explain to us why you think it's important that the fact that Article II vests
all executive power in one person, in the president of the United States, why that's an

important concept and important for the functioning of our constitutional system?

MUKASEY:
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It's important because it assures that there is going to be political responsibility lodged
someplace. It assures that when people in the executive act in a particular way that they, and
the person at the top, can be held responsible for what they do. People spoke about
independent agencies. They are, in a sense, independent in the sense that they don't relate
to other agencies. But they are not a fourth or fifth or sixth branch of government. They are
within the Executive. And it's important that that be true because there's got to be
somebody responsible for how that functions. People who wrote the Constitution were--if
they were afraid of anything, what they were afraid of was their experience under the
Articles of Confederation where there had been a very weak Executive and no ability of the
government--of the country to defend itself. They needed a strong Executive, and that was

the Constitution they wrote. If we want to amend it, I guess we can, but--that's what's there.

HAWLEY:

Tell me this. In your view, the vesting--the fact that the vesting clause in Article II gives the
executive power to a president of the United States, a single president of the United States,
does that mean that this individual, that the president of the United States has illimitable

power, or is able to do whatever he or she may please?

MUKASEY:

No, because the one duty that it imposes on a president--and this is also imposed by the
Constitution--is to see to it that the laws are faithfully enforced. That is just as much a
constitutional duty as any other. And if he doesn't do that, he's subject to removal. That is

his obligation. That is his, really, principal obligation.

HAWLEY:

Thank you very much. Mr. Canterbury, I want to ask you--you lead the Fraternal Order of
Police. It's incredibly important to me that the top law enforcement officer in this country,
the attorney general, have the confidence in the--of the men and women of our nation's

police forces. Can you just elaborate for us what the most important issues were for your

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5 43/102

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000002 20210903-0028300


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5

3/18/2019 cQ
members that led your group to support former Attorney General Barr, hopefully future

Attorney General Barr, for this nomination?

CANTERBURY:

One is his past experiences, his job that he did in the prior administration. We've been
around a long time, and we knew him then. We saw the way he administered the
Department of Justice, the way he worked with state and local law enforcement. Regardless
of who leads the Justice Department, if there's no outreach to state and local law
enforcement, then it really doesn't transcend to the state and local level. Under former
Attorney General Barr, he did just that, and as General Sessions did, and as Eric Holder did.
You know, we--we've testified for a number of nominees over the years. Eric Holder had a
tremendous reputation as a prosecutor in the law enforcement community. So I sat at this
very table and testified for him. It's all based on the experiences that they had as either U.S.

attorney, federal judges, or even in private practice.

HAWLEY:
Why do you think it's so important to police officers that they have a capable, effective,

experienced attorney general?

CANTERBURY:

Just the administration of justice. I heard the complaints about the civil rights division, but
we know from experience that a collaborative effort, rather than consent decrees, have real
consequences in the cities. For instance, in Cincinnati when the administration entered a
collaborative agreement and all parties were at the table, we came out with a plan to help
bring that city back together. In the last election in Cincinnati the FOP endorsed a member
of the NAACP to be a city council member. That would not have happened if they had not
got to know each other sitting around a table, working together for the betterment of that
community. We'd favor the collaborative approach for consent decrees because they're real

circumstances other than just say you will do this or, you know, we won't leave. Then they
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doit, and then obviously nothing ever changes. But when it's collaborative and everybody's

at the table, we saw real change.

HAWLEY:
Thank you very much. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CANTERBURY:
Thank you.

DURBIN:

Thanks, Mr. Chairman. Reverend Risher, thank you. Thank you for your testimony, thank
you for your touching words about that telephone call. I'll remember that because so many
people receive that telephone call about people that they love who are victims of gun

violence.

I am honored to represent the City of Chicago. Sadly we have a lot of gun violence and a lot
of victims, families just like yours who will never ever forget as long as they live what
happened. I often think about what I'm going to say to them. I stopped saying let me tell you

about a new law that I've got in mind.

I've stop saying that because we don't pass laws on gun safety in this United States
Congress, we don't and it's unfortunate. We don't even pass the most basic and obvious
things about background checks, we--we just can't do it, politically can't do it. A lot of

reasons for it, I won't get into here.

But I'll just suggest to you that as fate would have it sitting to your left is a gentleman Mr.
Canterbury representing 345,000 did you say members of the police who put their lives on
the line every single day and those guns on the street are aimed at them many times. And if

there's ever a moment when victims of gun violence like you Reverend Risher and Mr.
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Canterbury and the police ever come together on agreement on a piece of legislation call me

immediately.

It will be a breakthrough moment. We can talk about gun safety with credible voices on both
sides and Mr. Canterbury while on the subject thank you for the First Step Act. The
endorsement of the Fraternal Order of Police and criminal justice reform and prison reform

was historic and meaningful and made a difference.

It was also noteworthy that we had the support of the prosecutors, the criminal prosecutors
across this country and the support of the American Civil Liberties Union. Go figure. How
many times has this bunch ever gotten together? Not very often but I think we passed
something historic as a result of that and I just want to personally thank you and publicly

thank you for the role that your organization played in it.

Mr. Johnson, we're looking back on the history of Mr. Barr, things that he said, things that
he's done and I give a speech that people have heard a few times now but they were startled
the first time I gave it. The title of my speech is let me tell you about the worst vote I ever

cast as a member of Congress.

It was over 25 years ago and all that you know what it was. It was 100-1 crack cocaine to
powder cocaine. We were determined to stop this new narcotic in its tracks. It was super
cheap, it was deadly, pregnant women who got hooked on crack cocaine would give birth to
babies with lifelong problems. And we came down as hard as we could not just with 100-1
but mandatory minimum sentences on top it, three strikes and you are out for life and we hit
them hard and we watched our prison population explode primarily with African-

Americans.

Ilook back on it as a big mistake, one of the worst I ever made is a public official and I've
tried to rectify it. We passed the Fair Sentencing Act eight years ago, we've now passed the
First Step Act. We are starting to give to these men and some women a chance to start their

lives again.
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So now we look at Mr. Barr and some of the things he said were consistent with my vote and
the votes of a lot of Democrats back in the day when we were getting tough on narcotics and
he was as tough as they get. He was writing books about building more prisons and putting
more people in these prisons. He's continued in that vein up until the last few years. So I just

want to tell you I pray for redemption both personal and political.

Do you think Mr. Barr is entitled to a chance to redeem himself when it comes to this issue?

JOHNSON:

Thank you. Thank you, Senator Durbin. I think any individual is entitled to redeem
themselves when they make a mistake. Our position on mass incarceration is just that.
We've had a lot of individuals who have made mistake who should have been exonerated or

not prosecuted to the extent they were.

I grew up in Detroit, Michigan, I lived through the crack epidemic in the 1980s. I seen the
damage it did but I also seen many individuals who's thrown away for many, many years
and for an individual who situated to acknowledge the history of what took place and as you
just done say you know I made a mistake that's a good thing. I have not heard that from the

nominee. That's my concern.

The other concern I have is goes back to the exchange earlier when we often times conflate
civil rights issues, issues of democracy with partisan considerations. And should individuals
have access to the vote it's not a partisan issue, it is an issue of democracy and any AG
should vigorously protect the right of individuals to vote especially when over the last two

years we've seen more tactics of voter suppression than we've seen in the last 25 years.

Issues of equal protection under the law is not a partisan issue. It's an issue to ensure that all
citizens of this nations are afforded equal treatment and so our objection to Mr. Barr's
nomination is not a partisan issue, it's not an issue of disagreement, it's an issue of concern
as it relates to the mass incarceration and the vigorous prosecution that took place in the

'90s and whether or not we are considering a nominee who is still thinking in the 1990s
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frame or are we looking at a nominee who's really looking at the First Chance Act and the

progress that's been made?

DURBIN:

I've only got a minute left but I want to take it to that issue you took it to and Ms.--I invite
Mayor Morial to join in on this, too. This question of election integrity has become a code

word.

When you hear a election integrity of the from the other political party it's about making
sure that people who are not qualified and not legally eligible vote, don't vote and I don't
think anybody disagrees with that premise. But there's something else going on in the name
of voter integrity and that is obstacles to voting that are totally unnecessary and really

discourage people from using this right which is fundamental to a democracy.

When I held hearings in this committee in Ohio and in Florida and asked them about ID
cards and early voting and said what is the incidence of voting abuse in your state that led
you to make it harder to vote there were none. I think it's just a policy, a political policy to
fight demographics to try to keep people away from the polls who may change the outcomes

of elections.

I don't--I didn't hear yesterday from Mr. Barr any commitment to voter integrity in terms of
that you and I would probably discuss it and that concerns me. I am not sure I can expect to

hear it under this administration but Mr. Morial if you close.

MORIAL:
Yeah, I think there is something important about what you're saying. I (INAUDIBLE) point

the committee to exit polls that took place after the '18 election wherein people were asked

do you believe that voter suppression or voter fraud was a greater issue?

Voter suppression won the poll of the American people overwhelmingly. These are exit polls
where the numbers were sort of 58 and--and voter fraud was down maybe in the 30s or 40s.

1
That's number one.
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Number two, the Shelby case has done significant damage because it was post-Shelby that
40--the shenanigans of voter suppression, of cutting back on early voting, on voter ID laws,
on restricting groups like the Legal Women Voters from Kentucky voter registration drives

really, really exploded. Some 40 states had proposals to restrict access to the ballot box.

When I think about this, I think about it that we are waging war to quote promote
democracy, Senator Graham, in Iraq, in Afghanistan. But right here on the home front how
can we countenance efforts based on no evidence to restrict access to the ballot box? The
Shelby decision I predict will be seen in history the way Dred was seen, the way Plessy was

seen, as a bad ill-advised decision.

We need because what we are left with is the power of the Justice Department under Section
2 and under Sessions, not one single Section 2 case was brought even though you've had
this explosion of voter suppression efforts. So what we need is an attorney general who says
I'm committed to the utilization of my Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act powers to enforce

the Voting Rights Act.

And I would a--certainly encourage that the nominee be asked his position on this because
this is so crucial to the protection of democracy which is really what this nation is all about.

Democracy and voting is at the foundation of our system.

GRAHAM:

Make a quick comment and then Senator Kennedy. I'm glad you mentioned Iraq and other

places where we are fighting to help people.

There was an attack today on a restaurant, I think it's the same restaurant I visited with the
Kurds and Arabs and others in Manbij, Syria to hold on to some representative government

and unfortunately, I believe some American advisers were killed there by ISIS.

So this is not the subject matter of the hearing but I want to make a quick statement. My
concern about the statements made by President Trump is that you would set in motion

enthusiasm by the enemy we are fighting. You make people we are trying to help wonder
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about us and as they get bolder, the people we are trying to help are going--going to get more

uncertain.

I saw this Iraq and I'm now seeing it in Syria. Every American wants our troops to come
home but I think all of us want to make sure that when they do come home, we are safe and I
don't know how we are ever going to be safe if people over there can't at least sit down and

talk with each other.

The only reason the Kurds and the Arabs and the Christians were in that restaurant is
because we gave them the space to be in that restaurant. You think what you want to about
those people over there, they've had enough of killing. They'd love to have the opportunity

that we have to fix their problems without the force of violence.

So I would hope the president would look long and hard of where he's headed in Syria. I
know people are frustrated but we are never going to be safe here unless we are willing to

help people over there who will stand up against this radical ideology.

And here's the good news, very few fathers and mothers over there want to turn their
daughters over to ISIS, their sons over to ISIS. They just need our help. So to those who lost
their lives today in Syria, you were defending America in my view. To those in Syria who are
trying to work together, you are providing the best and only hope for your country. I hope

the president will look long and hard about what we are doing in Syria.

GRAHAM:

Senator Kennedy.

KENNEDY:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Pastor, I'm very, very sorry for your lost. I wanted to tell you that

personally.

RISHER:

Thank you, senator.
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KENNEDY:

Before I ask my soul question, which I'll direct to each of you to address briefly, if you could,
I want to do a couple of things. I want to give a shout out to my former mayor, Mayor Morial.
Many of you know him as the president and chief executive officer of the Urban League and

I, of course, know him in that capacity as well, but I know him as our mayor in New Orleans

and the head of the league of cities and a state senator. We still claim him in Louisiana.

MORIAL:
Always (INAUDIBLE).

KENNEDY:

I also want to recognize his sidekick, Senator Cravens, former State Senator Cravens. We
miss him in Louisiana too. I listened to the discussion we had about the scorecard that--that
Chairman Graham brought up. I'm going to make one very gentle observation that it--it may
be appropriate in other areas, including, but not limited to, the challenges we face with the
shutdown. And that is that so long as all of us on--on both sides and all sides and of every
political persuasion are--are drunk on certainty and virtue, it's going to be hard to make

progress. We probably ought to listen more, talk a little less.

Here's my question and--and if you don't care to answer it, that's okay or you don't have any
thoughts, but I would like to know this, as you know, we--we have a Sixth Amendment right
to counsel in America. It's part of our Bill of Rights. But in some instances, in too many
instances it's a hollow promise. And--and I'd like to know your thoughts about our public
defender system in America and whether you think it comports with the requirements of
the--of the Sixth Amendment right to counsel. We'll start down here and just go down there,

if that's okay. I would ask you all to be brief because [ want everybody to have a chance.

CANTERBURY:
From our experience, the public defender system is in dire need of assistance. It--it leads to
plea bargains that may not should have happened and we would definitely support more

https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5 51/102

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000002 20210903-0028308


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5
https://enatorCravens.We

3/18/2019 cQ
money for right to counsel and we don't take a backseat to anybody on your right to be

represented in the system is woefully underfunded.

KENNEDY:
Okay, thanks. Pastor?

RISHER:

I believe our Public Defender Office needs resources. Most of the people that receive a
public defender are marginalized people without resources and their opportunity to have
the best counsel they have is not something they get. And I would want that office to be able

to serve everyone, regardless of whether they have money or not.

KENNEDY:

Okay. Prosecutor?

TURLEY:

Senator, I'm particularly thankful for you to raise this issue. As criminal defense attorney, I
can tell you that the public defense or system is an utter wreck. It is underfunded. Judges are
sanctioning public defenders because they have too many cases and they can't get to court.
And so public defenders are in this position where they can't handle all the cases and yet
they are held in content, but they don't want to do a case in appropriately without zealous

representation.

So they have this absolute impossible situation and it's even worse on the state system. I--I
gave a speech in Pittsburgh and I--I sat down with some public defenders there. The public
defenders in Pittsburgh that I had dinner with are all moonlighting as bartenders and
waiters to try to continue to be public defenders and feed their family. I mean, that's how

bad the system is.

KENNEDY:
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Professor?

KINKOPF:

I--T agree that public defenders are heroic public servants. They are overworked, they were
underpaid, and that the system of public defense and provision of counsel needs to expand
far beyond even the limited area it applies to now, into municipal courts, into infractions

that shouldn't but do end up leading to people serving jail time.

CARY:

Senator, I'm the daughter of a criminal defense lawyer, I'm married to a criminal defense
lawyer, and he's the son of a criminal defense lawyer, so I'm all in favor of great lawyering
available for all Americans who find themselves in front--in front of a courtroom. The thing
that I--I would suggest is I'm aware here in Washington of--of many law firms who are
partnering pro bono with criminal defense, I mean, public defender services to try and get
young people in court and get them great--great experience while also giving good
representation to people who need it. So maybe that's one of the answers that--that you can
look into, but my understanding is they need all the help they can get and--and maybe

young people can help.

KENNEDY:

Thank you, professor?

MORIAL:

A quick, couple of quick things. I had the great privilege and pleasure last year to speak in
Atlanta to the Federal Public Defender Service at its convening gathering. And I would offer
to the committee perhaps this is an example of a bipartisanship oriented initiative, which is
this committee to hold hearings do an examination of both the federal public defender
system, which may be in a little bit better shape, but underfunded and understafted, as well

as local public defender systems, and you'll get a real sense of what everyone has said, how
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stretched, how overworked, and how, in effect, damaging this is to the operation of justice

and to the constitutional guarantee of the Sixth Amendment.

And the last thing I'd say, in the late 80s, Senator Kennedy, I was part of a small group of
lawyers that actually challenged the very same issue in Louisiana. We challenged it by
asking the State Supreme Court to conduct an investigation, which they did. They filed that
the system was underfunded but then they took the position that, as the Supreme Court,
they could not, "Instruct the Executive Branch to adequately fund the public defender

system."

The bottom line here, I would offer this, and I'm glad you raised it as a important element of
this discussion around criminal justice reform. And that is to repair, to fix, to reform the
public defender systems, both at the federal, at the state, and also at the local levels across

this nation.

KENNEDY:

Thank you, mayor.

THOMPSON:

Thank you, Senator Kennedy for raising this issue. As someone who served on the board at
one time of the Atlanta Federal Defender Program, I think that the public defender program
definitely, at the federal level, needs strengthening. However, at the state level, it is a total
collapse. And I think with the Department of Justice can do, and you could pursue this with
Attorney General Nominee Barr, is through the Office of Justice Programs encourage OJP to
develop programs, to assist state public defender offices, appropriate funds for that purpose
in terms of grants because the Department of Justice is not the Department of Federal

Prosecution, it's the Department of Justice. Thank you.

JOHNSON:
I certainly agree with the--the panelist today that the public defender system is in dire need.
I served as a commissioner on the State of Mississippi Access to Justice Commission. And
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we reviewed this issue. Mississippi is one of the poorest states, similar to Louisiana, and
what we found was a system so corrupt it was one of the primary factors for prison
overcrowding. You have a large number of individuals who are sitting in jail pretrial--as pre-
trail trial detainees because they have ineffective counsel or no counsel at all. Soit's an issue
that I agree with my colleague Marc Morial that this could be a bipartisan issue we can work

on because the need is definitely there.

KENNEDY:
Judge?

MUKASEY:

My--senator, my--my experience I think is probably more limited than virtually the
experience of all of the other panelists because Mike's parents is largely confined to one
district in the United States. That said, my experience with Federal Defenders in the
Southern District of New York is that they were people of unparalleled skill. It was
competition to get those jobs and they were highly valued. Similarly, under the Criminal

Justice Act, we appoint private lawyers to represent defendants.

Again, there's competition to get on that list, so you really get the--the lawyers by and large,
in my court, who represented indigent defendants were by and large more skillful, and my
experience, than the privately retained lawyers. Some of them were simply show boats. That
said, I think the system is definitely in need of support, certainly at the state level, and I
second Larry Thompson's call for having OJP target particular areas with--with grants so

that there can be demonstration projects that would--would--would show the way.

KENNEDY:

Thanks to all of you. You honor us with your time and your testimony today.

WHITEHOUSE:
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Thank you, Chairman, and thank you very much to the panel, particularly Rev. Risher. I'd
like to join my colleagues in expressing my appreciation for your testimony here. I had the
opportunity nearly three years ago to visit Emanuel AME Methodist Church with the Faith
and Politics Institute. It was one of the most moving experiences of my life. It was
remarkable. And to meet with the survivors a few months later here in Washington was
impressive. And I'm so glad that you are keeping that tragedy alive in our hearts because it

should not be overlooked, and I appreciate it.

RISHER:
Thank you, sir, for your words. And the Emanuel Nine will be something that I will continue
to talk about their lives to let other people know that they did not die in vain. And I thank

you for your comments.

WHITEHOUSE:

Don't ever stop.

RISHER:
Thank you.

WHITEHOUSE:

Mr. Mukasey, I have some questions for you, and I want to let you know right off the bat that
this goes back about 10 years, and so you will have full--I will give you every chance to
answer more fulsomely in written answers, you know, the question for the record so that if
there's anything that you don't recall now. But the reason I wanted to ask you your questions
is that I view it, anyway, as a responsibility of the attorney general to fearlessly go where the
evidence and the rule of law lead, and to allow, particularly in investigative matters, to let

the evidence and the law be your guides.

Now, given the circumstances that surround the department, the willingness of an attorney

general to be independent where evidence leads to the White House, is of, I think, particular
http - 5 102
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moment. And that takes me back to the investigation into the removal of nine U.S. attorneys
in 2006. That report was concluded in 2008 on your watch as attorney general. As you'll
recall, it was a joint effort. Those don't happen all that often in the department, but this was
a joint effort between the Department of Justice Office of Inspector General and the
Department of Justice Office of Professional Responsibility. And the investigation led, both
into White House files and into Office of Legal Counsel files. As to the White House files, the
White House refused to cooperate and refused to provide access to your OIG/OPR
investigators to close out their investigation. The OLC refused to provide un-redacted
documents to members of their own department. The report that was issued in 2008

indicated that the investigation had

been, and I quote it here, hampered, and hindered, and left with quote gaps as a result of the
failure of the White House and OLC to provide the necessary information to the

investigators.

MUKASEY:
That was the OIG report?

WHITEHOUSE:

Yes, OIG/OPR. It was both of them together, as you may recall. So here's my concern. You
were the attorney general at the time. You could have readily instructed OLC, knock it off,
guys, provide these folks the documents. And while you can't instruct the White House in
what to do, when the White House--when the investigation leads to the White House gates
and the White House gates come down, to me it's the attorney general's responsibility at
that point to walk down to the White House and say one of two things is going to happen;
we're going to get cooperation in our investigation, or we're going to have a resignation
because the Department of Justice needs to follow the law and the facts wherever, including

into the files of the department.

As you know, there is no executive privilege issue as between the Department of Justice and

the White House. That is a separation of powers issue, and it keeps things from us, but it
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doesn't limit documents within the Executive Branch. So I would like to get now your
recollection in a more fulsome way, in a written fashion if you would like to elaborate, why it
is that you felt that when the Department of Justice had an ongoing investigative matter that
led to the gates of the White House it was okay for the White House to say no, we're not
cooperating and for the Department of Justice to stand down because I think that would be a

lousy precedent for now?

MUKASEY:

This goes to the qualifications of Mr. Barr to serve as attorney general, does it?

WHITEHOUSE:

To the extent that there is a concern about whether he would be willing to do that because--

MUKASEY:

My recollection is--

WHITEHOUSE:
We could get a replay of this, and if he's citing the Mukasey precedent, I want to know more

about the Mukasey precedent.

MUKASEY:
I doubt that he's citing the Mukasey precedent, number one. Number two, my recollection

of that, which has been over 10 years.

WHITEHOUSE:
Which is why (INAUDIBLE)

MUKASEY:
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But nonetheless, older people have a better recollection of the distant past sometimes than

they do of the recent past, so I do remember it to some extent.

WHITEHOUSE:
Yeah.

MUKASEY:
My recollection is that the investigation did not lead to the gates of the White House. It

involved the circumstances under which nine U.S. attorneys were terminated, and those
people were offered the opportunity to come back. They were also offered apologies by me,

and that's the way the matter ended. That's my recollection.

WHITEHOUSE:

Okay, well I'd ask you to take a look at the question for the record that I will propound to you
because that's different than what the OIG and OPR said at the time because they felt that
they were hampered, hindered, and left with gaps in their investigation, which is--and it was
White House files that were at issue. So my time is expired, but I hope we can settle this
question because I do think it creates a difficult precedent in a world in which the
Department of Justice may now have to ask similarly tough questions that take it into White

House files.

MUKASEY:
Yeah, I seriously doubt that one investigation and how it was handled creates a precedent in

any sense for another, but I'll answer your question.

WHITEHOUSE:
Thank you.

GRAHAM:
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Senator Grassley.

GRASSLEY:

Yeah. First of all, for the Reverend, I don't understand how people can have so much hate
that they do what they do. That's what comes to my mind all the time when I hear stories
like you, and I remember it from the day it happened. Thank you for bringing it to our

attention.

RISHER:

Thank you, sir, for listening.

GRASSLEY:
Mr. Canterbury, we've--you've talked some about the First Step Act. I want to go back to it.

The Fraternal Order of Police was very instrumental in helping get it across the finish line,
and obviously as the chairman of the committee at that time, I thank you for doing that. We
appreciate your strong leadership. The First Step Act requires that the Justice Department
and the attorney general implement a risk and needs assessment system, allow nonviolent
inmates to receive earned time credit for participating in recidivism reduction programming

and recalculate good time credit for all inmates.

Here's for you. Given Mr. Barr's past statements opposing criminal justice reform, especially
sentencing reform, do you believe that he will be able to dutifully implement the system that
the Fraternal Order of Police worked so hard to get passed? To be fair to Mr. Barr, yesterday
he testified that he'd implement the law and not undermine it. Are you comfortable with

that commitment?

CANTERBURY:
I think his past experiences in following the law speak volumes to his ability to be able to
take what Congress sent to the president and the president signed and implement the

program. We have full confidence in him.

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000002 20210903-0028317


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5
https://andobviouslyasthechairmanofthecommitteeatthattime,Ithankyoufordoingthat.We

GRASSLEY:

Now echoing what Senator Durbin said about the vast support that this legislation had from
what I'd say extreme right to extreme left and everything in between, law enforcement,
Judicial Branch, victim rights groups, civil rights groups, faith groups, in your opinion will

Mr. Barr be able to work with these stakeholders to effectively implement the First Step Act?

CANTERBURY:
Yes sir, we have full confidence that he'll be able to do that.

GRASSLEY:

Yeah. Now to General Mukasey and to Mr. Thompson, I'm not questioning Mr. Barr's
truthfulness when I ask you this question, but in the past Mr. Barr opposed our efforts at
criminal justice reform. Mr. Barr also had concerns about the constitutionality of False
Claims Act and opposed that law. Yesterday Mr. Barr testified that he'd implement the First
Step Act and had no problems with the False Claims Act. We all know that the attorney
general of the United States has the duty to enforce the laws in a fair and even manner and
of course without personal bias. General Mukasey, in your opinion, will Mr. Barr be able to
do that? Do you believe that Mr. Barr will be able to faithfully implement and enforce the

laws that he may not personally agree with?

MUKASEY:

I certainly think he will. His record shows that he's--if he adheres to one thing it is to the
requirements of the law, and I will tell you in my own case I was initially opposed to some
part of the First Step Act. I later became a supporter of it. So I'm assuming that he will have

the same open mind, at least the same open mind that I have.

GRASSLEY:

Okay. And Mr. Thompson, along the same lines, your opinion on Mr. Barr's ability to

enforce the laws fairly, evenly and without personal bias.
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THOMPSON:

Senator, as you know, I was a very strong supporter of the First Step Act. If you look at what
Attorney General Barr did when he was attorney general in the Bush administration and his
emphasis in the Weed and Seed Program on community collaboration, his admitted--his
admitted statements to Rev. Joe Lowery, as  mentioned in my opening statement, about
the failure of prison--putting more people in prison to help rid our crime infested
neighborhoods, he understands the need to do something more than just lock people up. So

I think he will faithfully implement the First Step Act, both in the spirit and literally.

GRASSLEY:

Also do you, Mr. Thompson, since you've worked with Mr. Barr so much and knowing him
as you do, would you say that he'll be independent leader of the Justice Department, that we
ought to expect and--and--well, let me finish this because I want General Mukasey also to
speak to it, and maybe these questions come from the fact that we recently had an attorney
general that referred to himself as the wingman for the president. So what's your opinion of
Mr. Barr's ability to be independent head of the Justice Department? Do you have any doubt
that he'll be able to stand up to the president? Soit's kind of the same question to both of

you.

MUKASEY:

I haven't got any doubt at all. He's done it in the past, number one. And he isn't anybody's
wingman. And I think he understands that if he ever so behaved he would come back to the
department to find a mound of resignations on his desk. So I don't think he would ever do

anything like that and is not inclined to do it.

GRASSLEY:
Mr. Thompson.

THOMPSON:
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I agree with General Mukasey. Bill Barr understands the many policies, traditions of the
Department of Justice that have stood for a separation between the department and the
White House on matters of criminal investigations, decisions to indict. I don't think that the
men and women that he has led over the past years in--in the Department of Justice, I think
he will understand their respect for these traditions, and I think he will--he understands the
nuances that lead to why we have these policies and traditions, and I think he will faithfully

follow them and support them.

GRASSLEY:
Yeah. And for Ms. Cary and Mr. Thompson, I think I'll kind of answer my first question. I

think you would say about Mr. Barr's fitness to be attorney general of the United States, but
could you tell us some observations you've had about him that lead you to believe he's the

person that you've worked with and then, in turn, to be a good attorney general?

CARY:

The year that he was attorney general, 1992, you may recall, started with President Bush

throwing up on the Japanese prime minister.
(LAUGHTER)

It was--so the beginning of a rough year. As General Mukasey pointed out, there was the
Talladega Prison Riots. There was the crack epidemic that Senator Durbin was talking
about. General Barr yesterday was pointing out that the violent crime rate had quintupled
over the previous three decades. Hurricane Andrew--you may not remember this, but
Hurricane Andrew hit South Florida particularly hard and knocked out a tremendous
amount of federal law enforcement resources down there, and there was great fear that it
was going to become sort of a lawless place where drug dealers and the Coast Guard would
not be able to control things. And then there was also the Rodney King verdict and the LA
riots. So it was a very dangerous year in a lot of ways, and I remember going to a press

conference we were going to have in Richmond, I think it was, with the late great Jack Kemp
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was secretary of HUD at the time. And as the two motorcades pulled in with the attorney

general and the secretary of HUD into this public housi

ng project that we were going to talk about how to make public housing projects more safe,
right before we got there there was some sort of gang violence, and the law enforcement
had come in and arrested a whole bunch of people, and there was gunfire. And so as we got
out of the cars they came to Secretary Kemp and General Barr, and they said it's still a little
dangerous here. There could be some stray bullets. We've got two bulletproof vests for the
two of you. Why don't you put these on and head up to the podium? And General Barr points
at me and says, well what about her? And the agents say, "Oh, I'm sorry sir, we only have
two bulletproof vests." And he says, "Okay, well Mary Kate, you take mine." And the agent
said, "No, no, no sir, that's not going to happen. You take the vest. You head to the podium
with Secretary Kemp." And he turns around to me, and he says, "Well this is unacceptable.

You get in the car, the armored limo, and just keep your head down."

And I thought at the time, boy, that tells you volumes about him that he even noticed that I
was standing there. But really what was going on--the point of the story is that it was a very
dangerous place, and there were people who lived there all their lives, and we were arriving
in limos and going to be able to leave, and they couldn't. And that, I think, made a big
impression on everybody involved of what people's lives were like in this crazy year, of how
dangerous things were, how bad the violent crime rate was, and all he wanted to do was try
and help some of these people who were in these horrible situations. And I think that tells
you volumes about him and his motivations and the kinds of things he tried to do as attorney
general. And I think I have no concerns whatsoever about his enforcement of the First Step

Act because that's the kind of person he is.

THOMPSON:
Senator, I have observed Bill Barr in problem-solving situations. Yes, he will be the leader,
but he listens to people very carefully. He has an open mind. He is respectful of different

opinions. And he--he has a problem-solving personality in the sense that everything is
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collaborative, and I think he will be a terrific leader of the Department of Justice. And I have

no doubt about that.

GRAHAM:
Thank you. It's been a terrific panel. Senator Klobuchar, then we'll take a break. You all have
been going at it for two hours. We'll take a 10-minute comfort break after Senator

Klobuchar, and we'll plow through until we get done. Thank you all for your patience.

KLOBUCHAR:
Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman. I'm going to talk, start talking here about voting
rights. I asked a few questions of Mr. Barr about this and it has been such a problem across

the country.

I come from a state as you know, Mr. Johnson, with one of the highest voter turnouts, the
highest in the last election and part of that is because we have same-day registration, a bill
that I sponsored to bring out nationally and I looked at the numbers that show states that
have that. Whether they are more red or are more blue they always are in the top group for

highest voter turnout.

It makes a huge difference to allow people to vote either with an ID or with a neighbor or
with some other forms of identification and so I'm very concerned about the Supreme
Court's ruling of course in the Shelby case. And yesterday I asked Mr. Barone about the state
election officials in North Carolina who contacted the Justice Department to express
concerns about the integrity of the elections nine months before the election and about

allegations of voter suppression.

So he wasn't there of course at the time but I just wondering how you think the Department
of Justice responded, how they should have responded when they first heard from those

state officials?
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JOHNSON:

From the NAACP perspective we are extremely concerned with the lack of responsiveness
from the Department of Justice. Ever since the Shelby v. Holder case was decided we knew
that Section 2 would be the vehicle--vehicle to protect voters. The lack of the current

administration use of Section 2 is problematic.

Mr. Barr's commending AG Sessions' tenure as AG is also concerning. His lack of clarity on
how he would use the Justice Department to ensure all Americans can cast a ballot free of

vote--suppression or intimidation leaves a huge question mark for us.

Any individual who serve as AG should have a primary consideration, the protection of the
right to vote of all citizens. It's not a partisan issue. It should not be seen as a partisan issue.

It should be something that's above partisanship.

I'm a resident of Mississippi and we've seen the--the dog whistle politics for a very long
time. In fact, if you look at the history of voting in the state of Mississippi some of the
languages that were used during the INAUDIBLE) redemption and after 1865 is being used
today. Some of the tactics that was used in 1870 and 1890 is being used today.

So we need a Justice Department that can rise above partisanship and appreciate that in
order for our democracy to truly work all citizens should be afforded free and unfettered

access to the ballot box.

KLOBUCHAR:
Very good. Couldn't have said it better. Thank you. Mr. Mukasey you and I worked together

when you were attorney general and as you know we had an issue in Minnesota and the U.S.
attorney left and you worked with me to get a replacement which I truly appreciated. And
you we put someone good in place in the interim in the office continues to be a very strong

office so thank you for that.

Could you just briefly talk about when you were attorney general did you ever say no to the

White House?

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000002 20210903-0028323


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5

MUKASEY:
Yes.

KLOBUCHAR:

Okay. Can you remember some of the instances where you maybe some of them were

public?

MUKASEY:

I remember one in particular. I can't--don't think I can discuss it here.

KLOBUCHAR:
Yeah.

MUKASEY:

But it involved position that the government would take in litigation and the White House

was of a particular view and the department was of a particular view and we prevailed.

KLOBUCHAR:

So you think that's an important--1 had a discussion with Mr. Barr yesterday just this concept
of yes, you are the president's lawyer in that you are giving advice but you are also the
people's lawyer and there's sometimes where those made conflict. Do you want to just

expand on that?

MUKASEY:

Yeah, I mean when--when it comes to a pure legal position and the White House is taking a
policy position that affects that legal position yes, it gets very delicate and it did in the one
instance that--that I mentioned. And the solicitor was of a particular view and was told

basically you do what you think the proper view is and let me take care of the politics.
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KLOBUCHAR:
Very good. All right. Thank you. Mr. Morial, there have been discussion, bipartisan

discussion up here about the First Step Act and could you just talk about some of the steps
that we are going to need to take, that the attorney general will need to take immediately to

implement it because you can put all of the laws you want on the books but if you don't--

MORIAL:
Certainly and let me just reaffirm my thanks to you and every member of the committee has
supported that it was a very, very long and difficult effort to arrive where we arrived. We

supported it early and continued to push for its improvement but it is the First Step Act.

The important I think step for the attorney general is to get this oversight committee in place
with the right people on it. And I think the most important thing that's going to be in the
attorney general's bailiwick is one, organizing the U.S. attorneys who are going to be
responsive to those who are going to go back to the court where they were sentenced and

request resentencing.

Because the resentencing for example for the crack cocaine disparity isn't automatic. It's
going to require the public defender service, it's going to require private lawyers and my
hope is that the United States attorneys' offices are not going to get in the way, not going to
slow down the process, are going to move with speed and dispatch to facilitate and work
with if you will criminal defense lawyers to identify those who might be eligible and get the

Act in implementation.

But I also think the aspect of it which involves the work of the office of Justice, the Bureau of
Prisons which is the and this was a great concern under the Act, whether the Bureau of
Prisons was going to have the enthusiasm and the resources, senator, to execute the ability
of people to earn more good time which requires them to participate and develop release

plans and take steps towards preparing themselves for release. That's an entire effort.
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I think you authorized some $350 million in order to do that. That's got to be implemented,
that's got to be executed and we don't need any foot-dragging in order to do that. So I think
if the committee continues to have oversight over the work on resentencing and the work on
the execution of the pre-release program. And then the third element of it will certainly be

and this was a great concern of ours--

I think the nominee should be asked to rescind the Sessions guidance that wherein he
directed U.S. attorneys to seek maximum sentences or the maximum prosecution. So if the
nominee is going to be true to, I will implement the First Step Act then a good faith effort by
him would be to rescind that guidance, right, to restore the discretion of the United States
attorneys when it comes to charging decisions. So there's a lot of work to be done and I
would urge the committee to maintain its oversight role in ensuring that these things are

executed.

KLOBUCHAR:

Thank you and I'm out of time but I wanted to thank you, reverend, for coming forward and
I will ask you on the record not now, some questions about our bill that we have on stalking
because I know you've been supportive of that and on the boyfriend loophole. So thank you.
And Mr. Canterbury, we want to move forward on that cops bill that we have with the
training and the money for the officers and thank you for your support and work on that.

Thank you.

GRAHAM:

Thank you. We will take a 10-minute recess to give you a comfort break. I'm going to have to
go do something else and if Senator Blackburn would be kind enough to chair the hearing
until we are finished, I would appreciate it and it's been a great panel. Thank you all for

coming very, very much. So 10-minute recess.

BLACKBURN:

The committee will return to order. Senator Cornyn, you are recognized.
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CORNYN:

Thank you, Madame Chairman. I was just complementing Senator Blackburn on her rapid

ascension to chairman of the committee.
(LAUGHTER)

I've been on the committee for 16 years and haven't quite made it there. So congratulations.
Well thank you all for--for coming and sharing your--sharing your views. I can't help but
comment on the stark differences that we are hearing from the various witnesses about this
particular nominee. He's either the most qualified person you could ever find, or he is the
least qualified person and there doesn't seem to be much room and between. But let me ask

some specific questions.

First, I want to talk a second about criminal justice reform because it strikes me that of all
the topics that we've dealt with here recently, that's one of the areas that brings us together.
And I'll just reflect, Mr. Johnson, I remember being in Dallas Texas maybe 10, 12 years ago.
[ was visiting with a number of African-American pastors and I asked them, I said, "What's
the biggest problem in your congregation?" And they said, "Well, it's formerly incarcerated
men who have a felony on their record. And it's--they can't find a job and they can't find a

place to live." And that's sort of always haunted me a little bit.

But in light of some of the great work that's been done at the state level on prison reform,
and I would have to say I'm proud of the efforts made in Texas and elsewhere to try to
provide people opportunities when they are incarcerated, those who are willing to accept
responsibility for their own rehabilitation, that we had some remarkable successes and
people who have taken advantage of the opportunity to turn their lives around. And I think

; . .
we 've--our view as a--as a government and as a people has changed significantly.

Mr. Barr talked about 1992 and the violent crime back then and that there was a different
attitude, and I think we learn from our experience. But I want to go--General Mukasey, one
of the things that you testified to, I think in a previous Congress when we were talking about

criminal justice reform, you said that's really the test, the ultimate test for the success of
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criminal justice reform is the crime rate. I think I'm quoting you correctly. Could you explain
that because there were a lot of people who want to focus on other things like incarceration
rates and other issues. But the crime rate, it strikes me public safety strikes me as the most

important one.

MUKASEY:
Yeah, I think that is--that is the ultimate test for this--the statue that's just been passed and

for future statutes. What does it do to the crime rate? The criminal justice system is there in
substantial part to protect the public. If it's doing that and the crime rate is dropping, then
bravo to the experience. And to ask certain extent, it's going to be an experiment. We'll see
how people do when they get out. We'll see how much money is saved, and what it can be

directed toward by way of prevention, and hopefully our situation will improve.

CORNYN:

Well, fortunately in the criminal justice field, we have actually used the states as laboratories
of democracy and we tried this out before we implemented it at the national level. And I
think we benefited from those state-based experiences. In my state, for example, we've
reduced not only the crime rate but the recidivism rate and we've--we've closed plans to--to

build new prisons, to incarcerate more people.

So it really strikes me as something that is one of those unusual scenarios where basically we
were able to come together, people of dramatically different ideology and orientation, and
come together and do something very positive for the country. And I'm we're going to keep

an eye on that, on the crime rate. To me it is a litmus test of the success of what we try to do.

Professor Turley, I wanted to just first of all complement you on your article that you wrote
in The Hill and just preface that. The title of course was "Witch-hunt or mole hunt? Times
bombshell blows up all theories." I've been extraordinarily troubled, frankly, by the
politicalization of the Department of Justice, including the FBI. And I think you pretty
much, in this polarized world we're living in, you talked about cognitive bias. And

depending on the lens you're looking through, you can see a narrative, you can build a
p g y g gh, y Y
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narrative that tells your story. Would you take a minute to sort of explain the--the thesis of

your article and the views you express there?

TURLEY:

Thank you, senator. What I thought was most interesting about the New York Times article
was actually not the point of the article, which was that the president may have been
investigated under the suspicion that he could be an agent of a foreign power. But what
came out to me from the article was an insight into what and how the FBI was looking at this
early in the Trump administration and we also have an insight at how the Trump

administration was viewing with the FBI was doing.

And this gets to the issue of cognitive bias, that it's a well-known concept that you can look
at a problem with a bias where you see things that reaffirm your suspicions. But in this case,
the FBI moved early on with an investigation that--that the White House was aware of. That
fulfilled their--the White House's own bias that this was a deep state conspiracy and the
White House pushed back. And when the White House pushed back, it fulfilled the
cognitive bias of the FBI that they're trying to hide something.

And if you take a look at the timeline, you see this action and reaction occurring where each
side is reaffirmed by the actions of the other side. So what the--what the column raises is a
distinct possibility that we might not have Russian collusion or a deep state conspiracy, that
we may have two sides that are fulfilling each other's narrative and we've gone so far down
this road that it's impossible now to stop and say well, what if neither of these things actually

did exist?

In economics, it's called pathway dependence that you can invest so much into a single path
that you can no longer break from it. And so what the column is suggesting is that perhaps
we can actually use the stories and take a step back and, instead of assuming the worst
motivations by both sides, look at this as--as whether both sides were trying to do what they
thought was right or reacting to what they felt was correct, but they might have both been

wrong.

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000002 20210903-0028329


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5

CORNYN:

Madame Chairman, my time is up. Could I take one more minute?

BLACKBURN:

Yes, without objection.

CORNYN:

Yesterday I was asking Mr. Barr about Rod Rosenstein's memo that's entitled "Restoring
Public Confidence In The FBL." And to me one of the most encouraging things about Mr.
Barr's appointment is I think he's exactly the type kind of person who could do that, having
done this 27 years ago and being willing to do it again for no other reason than his desire to
help restore confidence in the Department of Justice and the FBI. So if you go back even
further, back when James Comey was--and the FBI were investigating Hillary Clinton's
email server and he took the unprecedented step of having a press conference on July 7,
2016, at which he essentially exonerated Mrs. Clinton while detailing all the derogatory
information in the investigation and then later on had to come back because of that press
conference when the Weiner laptop was identified and say hey, we found some more

emails.

The idea that the FBI and the Department of Justice would come so tangled up in an election
and potentially influence an election is really unprecedented in our country and very
dangerous, from my perspective. And then of course, when Mr. Comey was fired by the
president, then--then folks on the left thought he was St. James and--after he had been the
devil, I guess, previously period when he was investigating Miss Clinton. So I think--I do
think there is some of that cognitive bias going on here and we need to identify it and maybe

step back from it and learn from it. Thank you. you, Madame Chairman.

BLACKBURN:

Senator Hirono.
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HIRONO:

Thank you, Madam Chair. Rev. Risher, I, too, have had the opportunity to meet with some
of the survivors of that tragic day, and so thank you very much for your heartfelt reminder of

the work that remains for us to do.

RISHER:
Thank you.

HIRONO:

Professor Kinkopf, you've written a lot about the unitary executive, and that's something
that Mr. Barr subscribes to, so I found it really interesting what you mentioned today
because there were a lot of questions from so many of us seeking reassurances from Mr.
Barr that he would not interfere with the Mueller investigation in any way, shape or form.
And today, though, you said those were the--those assurances are irrelevant because under
the unitary executive theory that if Mr. Barr were asked can the president fire Mr. Mueller,
then Mr. Barr would say yes. So there goes the entire investigation. I found that to be a really
interesting statement on your part. So that means that--let's say that if the president does
fire Mueller, and one would say that under a normal circumstance that kind of firing could
be part and parcel of an obstruction of justice, kind of an investigation. But if the entire
underlying investigation goes away because the investigator is fired, then where are we? So

that's

very interesting as we sought to see the kind of reassurances that would enable us to feel

that the Mueller investigation is, in fact, going to be able to proceed.

So you talked a little bit about what the impact of the unitary executive--and I do--that
theory--and I do understand that there's a range. It's not, you know--there's--there's a
continuum there. So I just want to ask under the unitary executive theory can a president

commit obstruction of justice with impunity?
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KINKOPF:

So I'll answer based on the memo that--

HIRONO:
Yes.

KINKOPF:

--Mr. Barr wrote last summer because, as you say, there's a range, and so the answer would
be different depending where you are on the range. The Barr memo allows that there may be
circumstances where a president can be understood to have committed obstruction of
justice. Now that's different from saying the president can be charged with obstruction of
justice, and in fact Mr. Barr yesterday during his testimony said he sees no reason to deviate
from the department's policy that a sitting president can't be indicted. But even within that
construct that a president can commit obstruction of justice, it's really difficult to see on his
theory how that would end up happening because he says when the president exercises a
legitimate executive power, that that cannot provide the basis for an obstruction of justice
charge, and therefore if he exercises his authority to fire someone, James Comey is the
discussion in the memo, then that cannot be the basis of an obstruction of justice charge. If

Presid

ent Trump then used his authority to fire Mueller, that, by extension, wouldn't be something
that could serve as the basis of an obstruction of justice charge on the theory set forth in the
memo. And I think he should be at least asked in follow-up questions whether or not he
would apply the logic of the memo to that situation. And he should be asked, if that were to
transpire, would he resign because I think yesterday he indicated that that would be an
abuse of power, and that's something an attorney general should resign if the attorney

general sees.

HIRONO:
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I think you have given us a further line of questions to submit to Mr. Barr. Regarding the
Voting Rights Act--so this is for Mr. Johnson and Mr. Morial--we know that after the Shelby
County decision there were many, many states that passed all kinds of legislation that would
be considered by a lot of us as voter suppression. And yesterday Mr. Barr testified that he
would vigorously enforce the Voting Rights Act, Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act for--to
the two of you. Since there has not been a single Section 2 proceeding brought by the Justice
Department, what specifically could Mr. Barr--what would you want Mr. Barr to do to

vigorously enforce the Voting Rights Act as he testified yesterday?

MORIAL:

I think number 1, that he should review the decision by the Justice Department to switch
sides in these two cases. One has been resolved. Number 2, he should ask the Voting
Section of the Civil Rights Division to present to him all instances where the Justice
Department has been asked to initiate Section 2 claims. Number 3, I believe that he should
investigate, evaluate and review those states that have passed voter suppression laws to
determine whether, in fact, they are discriminatory, and in fact, if they are discriminatory to
initiate a Section 2 claim. The issue is is for the attorney general and the many competent
lawyers in the civil rights division at Justice to do their job without political interference, to
make recommendations to him on what steps should be taken. A lot of stuff has been put
into the deep freeze in the Sessions administration because he was just not interested at all
in enforcing the Voting Rights Act because he disagreed with the Voting Rights Act and had
had along

career of disagreeing with the Voting Rights Act.

Well, the attorney general does not have an option to pick or choose which laws they want to
enforce. They must enforce all laws that are vigorous--vigorously because it's your job as the
Legislative Branch to pass those laws. So I think that there are a number of things that the
attorney general can do, and most importantly, to publicly state that he will not follow the
policy of Attorney General Sessions when it comes to the entire realm of civil rights. It's

important for him to be on the record as forceful as possible, but also to commit to take the
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necessary steps to ensure that Section 2 is vigorously enforced, and also to look at those

instances where the Justice Department has either switched sides--

HIRONO:
Yes.

MORIAL:

--or refused to take a position. The case I mentioned earlier in my testimony, the Chisholm
case, which was a judicial reapportionment case in which I was a plaintiff--the case was
brought in 1985. It was decided by the Supreme Court in 1991--was a case where the
Justice Department sided with us during the Reagan administration. And so the consistency
of the Justice Department in citing--taking an affirmative stand in voting rights cases, in
support of those who've been aggrieved, is something that until the Sessions administration
was a bipartisan matter. And I think that this nominee should be asked whether he is going

to restore that emphasis and that integrity to the enforcement of the Voting Rights Act.

HIRONO:
Madam Chair, I'd like to ask Mr. Johnson to respond.

JOHNSON:

I agree with my colleague, but I also think he should intervene in current litigation. There
are several ongoing voting right cases that's taking place across the country. Secondly, he
should work to fix the issue around Section 5, the House Special Committee on Voting
Rights Act will be doing hearings across the country, from my understanding. And if he
becomes attorney general he should seek to also support a fix in terms of Section 5. And
then thirdly, review formerly-covered jurisdictions to see if, in fact, they've made changes
in their policies, practices or procedures and if those changes were, in fact, voter
suppression methods so we can document the record to show that without a proactive
Justice Department and law, jurisdictions will revert back to past practices of discriminatory

actions.
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HIRONO:
Thank you.

BLACKBURN:

I recognize myself for questions at this time and Mr. Turley, I'd like to come to you first.

You spoke last December at the Press Club about privacy rights and security in a world with
changing technology and the rising use of artificial intelligence and facial recognition
technology and the--the challenges that that is going to pose for the Justice Dep--
Department. I think we all realize they are going to be there and we will have to be
confronted and no clear answers have emerged at this point as to who owns the virtual you,

you and your presence online.

And more and more now on a daily basis, we are hearing from consumers who are wanting
to make certain that there are privacy protections in a digital world, in--in that virtual space
and that they are for everybody and that everybody plays for the rules. So Mr. Barr is going
to have to address these issues because it is going to require greater enforcement from the
attorney general and I'd like to hear from you on the role that you see the Department of
Justice under Mr. Barr's leadership playing as we deal with companies like Twitter and

Facebook and some of these edge providers in the technology space.

TURLEY:

Thank you, senator. Of those emerging areas, facial recognition technology is probably the
fastest moving and the one that has to be addressed the soonest. I've already spoken with
people at Justice Department and to see if there's any way that the privacy community and

the government and private industry could find common ground here.

I think that for privacy advocates we could no longer just simply say that all facial
recognition technology is an evil and we're not going to work with it. Part of the reason is

that the Fourth Amendment controls the government, it doesn't control private businesses
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and this market has-- has progressed to the point that you are not going to get that cat to

walk backwards.

I mean this is an emerging market. The Chinese have put a huge of amount of investment in
it. If you just land at Shanghai you will see what facial technology is going to look like across
the--around the world. So the question is how do we then married the privacy values that we
have with the legitimate security interests of the government and the answer is there's a

couple of things that we can do.

One is that most of this technology is going to require a databank to be used effectively
including facial recognition data. We can act proactively to try to create privacy protections
for the access of that information, how long that information can be stored, for what reasons

it can be used.

We need to really get ahead of this and frankly, Bill Barr is a perfect person to do this
because not only does he have really the law enforcement chops in terms of understanding
how technology is used but he spent a lot of time in private business at the highest level. And

so I can't imagine anyone better on this issue quite frankly to tackle it.

BLACKBURN:

Mr. Thompson, let me come to you with another technology question because last fall DOJ
met with some of our states' attorneys general to talk about the frustrations with Google and
Amazon and some of these edge providers and their failure to protect consumer data and

also their anticompetitive behavior.

And one of the things that came out of this was how Google prioritizes search results, theirs
to give them a competitive advantage over Yelp. So we know that these challenges are only
going to be resolved if there is a multifaceted strategy that includes a partnership with our
states' attorneys general and if there is enforcement by the antitrust division and Consumer

Protection Branch.

So with that in mind how would you advise Mr. Barr or how do you see him moving forward

at DOJ to deal with big tech and these issues that they are really confronting consumers
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every day?

THOMPSON:

What I see with respect to your question, senator, is that this is something number one that I
really do not know a lot about this but I think the attorney general nominee if he is selected
would come in and review with career Department of Justice lawyers and other

professionals in the department on issue, review the issues, listen to them carefully.

This is what he has done on other issues of import. But more importantly to your question is
that I think he has great experience in the past of working with joint task forces, joint efforts
with state and local authorities especially the state AGs and he knows how to do this. He has
done it successfully in the past and I think he would be able to work with our state law
enforcement colleagues and get at the answers that were raised in your--your question. Very

important, very important matters.

BLACKBURN:
And the minute that I have left and before I yield Mr. Blumenthal will be next. I just want to

thank each of you for being here. And Reverend Risher, I want to thank you for your

testimony in the--

I came to the Senate from the House and we have passed some of the red flags legislation
that Senator Graham had mentioned that he is working on here in the Senate. We look
forward to some of those steps being taken and I know that is something that's important to

you. And Mr. Canterbury we always thank you for the work you do for the thin blue line.

CANTERBURY:
Thank you.

BLACKBURN:
And the good work that you all are doing there. My time has expired. Senator Harris, you are

actually next. You are recognized.
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HARRIS:

Mr. Morial, it's--we've heard--there's been a lot of discussion about this nominee and the
book that was entitled, The Case for More Incarceration, for which Mr. Barr wrote the
foreword. There has been concern about his opposition to efforts to lower mandatory
minimums. And so my question to you is based on your experience as the mayor of New
Orleans. During the time you were mayor you saw a 60 percent reduction in violent crime.
And as General Mukasey has talked about, and others, one measure of the effectiveness of

criminal justice policy is a reduction in crime.

MORIAL:
Right.

HARRIS:

So can you talk a bit about what it is that, as mayor, you did and perhaps even best practices

around the country that have led to a reduction in crime?

MORIAL:

Well, thank you very much for your question, and it was a powerful moment for our
community when we changed the landscape of public safety. And I might add we embarked
on a plan that was comprehensive in nature. There was a law enforcement component to it,
but there was also a human services and youth development component to it. And I set aside
the debate between the two and said that we needed to do both. So our law enforcement
component was a comprehensive reform of what was at that time a very broken New
Orleans Police Department. And that comprehensive reform included weeding out
corruption, dealing with a very brutal police force. It involved discipline, and firing, and
remaking of how we recruited, how we trained, how we paid, how we deployed, how we

used technology. It was broad-based. It was highly successful. We did not have the problems
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whatsoever because we also put our foot down and said we were going to have responsible

and constitutional policing.

Soitis important in the context of the Justice Department. And when I took office there was
a Justice Department investigation of the New Orleans Police Department. And instead of
fighting the investigation, instead of trying to delay the investigation, I worked with the
Justice Department and presented my own far-reaching, far-ranging plan which at that time
went farther--we were prepared to go farther on a proactive basis than any department at
that time had gone under a consent decree. That's number 1. But number 2--and this is part
of the purview because justice, in addition to its law enforcement responsibility, runs
mentoring programs, programs funded by the Office of Justice Programs, in the old days
Weed and Seed. We also deployed and made full utilization of all of those initiatives, too, to
invest in youth development, to expand recreation, to expand after school programs, to
expand youth summer jobs. It was not just law enforcement. It was not just human services.

It was a combination of the
two.

So I think it's important to understand that Justice has law enforcement responsibilities, but
also Justice has responsibilities with respect to investing in the community, investing in
youth. I would point this out, and I think this is important. At the time--and this was during
the Clinton administration--the Clinton administration worked cooperatively with us, both
to help us pursue violent crime through gun prosecutions and drug prosecutions, but also
invested through Weed and Seed and Office of Justice programs. Also at that time you had
the community-oriented policing program, which provided us with additional resources for

police technology.

So the lesson to be learned--and I would say this--the consent decrees that are out there--
and this is misunderstood by people--a consent decree is by its very definition a voluntary
agreement between a city and its police department and the Justice Department. And most
of those consent decrees that are entered into--have been entered into in lieu of litigation

that the department had the right to do. So the idea that pursuing consent decrees is, in
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effect, a voluntary collaboration, and I think General Sessions was against consent decrees,
but offered nothing in exchange, offered no other strategy in exchange. I'm just against
consent decrees because I think that they negatively affect police morale--but didn't offer
another approach. We need this nominee to indicate that he's going to be committed to
constitutional policing, committed to public safety, but understand that public safety, we've
learned, is not just crackdown law enforcement. It's something much more comprehensive.
It's something much more proactive. Yes, you've got to prosecute violent offenders, no
doubt. But you've also got to ensure that there are reentry programs so that when people
come out of jail they're not apt to repeat. And that is part of, I think, a sensible, smart on

crime initiative. Hope that helps.

HARRIS:

And as a follow-up to your point, some of the best and most innovative initiatives we've seen
in the last few--in a couple of decades on criminal justice policy, have been the result of the
U.S. Department of Justice funding innovation in a way that supports local law
enforcement, local prosecutors and local community groups to create the kind of

collaboration that you're talking about.

MORIAL:

There used to be alocal law enforcement block grant program--

HARRIS:
Right.

MORIAL:

--that provided money, which allowed you--because state government--city governments
are strapped always for resources. That created a way for you to invest in some innovation,
some collaboration, some differential sorts of things. And I think justice can play a proactive

smart on crime role in helping make our communities safer.
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HARRIS:

Thank you. Mr. Johnson, you've testified about your concern about the nominee's
statements that have been made in the past about the fact that there is no statistical
evidence of racism in the criminal justice system. He did mention during his testimony
yesterday and acknowledged the disparities between crack and powder cocaine
enforcement but did not acknowledge or mention any other of the disparities that we've
seen in the criminal justice systems, such as arrest rates that relate to a variety of crimes, but
in particular drug crimes, the disparities based on race in terms of who gets what amount of
bail in the criminal justice system, and of course incarceration rates, which there are huge
distinctions based on race in terms of the application of sentences. So if he is confirmed,
what do you believe will be the ramifications or--of his failure to acknowledge that? And
what do you--what would you recommend he do, if he is confirmed, to acknowledge and to

be informed about these disparities?

JOHNSON:

An individual to serve as attorney general of this nation must recognize the long legacy of
race disparity. As AG, I would hope that he would really look into the credible research, and
it would be obvious that in the criminal justice system there is a huge disparity. Some of that
can be accounted for based on income, but much of it is accounted for based on the rac--the
racial make-up of juries. It could be accounted for selective prosecution. It could be
accounted for as relates to a myriad of things. And as the attorney general, I would hope he
would factor in that race is a problem. We are far from a post-racial society, and we must
attack problems with a racial lens because there is very little in our criminal justice system

that is race neutral.

HARRIS:
And just one more question, Madam Chair. The--he did--I requested that if within a period
of time, if he is nomin--if he's confirmed, that he would meet with civil rights groups to

understand the ramifications of any policies. He agreed to do that within the first 120 days,
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if confirmed. I think that we will all expect that he will do that, and I look forward to hearing

about the result of those meetings. And thank you.

JOHNSON:
Thank you.

BLACKBURN:

Senator Cruz?

CRUZ:

Thank you, Madame Chairman. Let me say thank you to each of the distinguished witnesses
for being here, for being part of this hearing. I appreciate your--your testimony and wisdom
and judgment. Judge Mukasey, let me--let me start with you. You have store served as a
federal judge, you have served as U.S. Attorney General, as--as has Mr. Barr, and--and you
have built a long and distinguished career in public service. Can you share for this
committee in your judgment the importance of rule of law and the importance of having an
attorney general who is faithful to enforcing the law and Constitution, regardless of party,

regardless of partisan interest?

MUKASEY:

It's really the only guarantee that we have because this country is defined by and is
constituted by a law, the Constitution. This--it's not based on land, is not based on blood,
it's based on a law. It all started with the law. And that's what we've built this society on, the
notion that you can have a society in which--that operates fairly, in which neutral principles,
neutrally applied, allow people to reach their maximum potential. If that's ever abandoned,
if it's ever deviated from, if it's ever perceived to be deviated from, then were lost. Then we

have no--nothing to define us because we are defined by law.

CRUZ:
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Now, you've testified today that--that you know that Mr. Barr is a, "Supreme--superbly
qualified nominee, that he has good judgment and, just importantly, that he has the
wheeled to exercise that judgment, despite pressure from any source." Can--can you share
with the committee what, in your professional and personal experience, gives you
confidence that--that Mr. Barr will once again well and ably carry out the--the response

ability of attorney general of the United States?

MUKASEY:

As I mentioned, he has had a past history of doing that when he served as attorney general.
Notwithstanding, that a desired--there was a desired result for the White House and he kind
of deflected it and, as it were, laughed it off. He is somebody who has testified here that in--
in view of the fact that most of his career is the rearview mirror, he doesn't really have to
concern himself with the--the possible negative consequences of resisting pressure from an

administration. So that's an additional--that's an additional guarantee.

But I think the person himself and who he's been over the years consistently really speaks to
that and it's not just the question of his having nothing to lose. I think that is the way he's
constituted. As--as Professor Turley said, he's a--he's a law nerd, meaning he is devoted in
a--in a--in a way that very few people are to what defines this country. And that's--that's
what he enjoys, that's his occupation, and his preoccupation. And that is, I think, an

excellent guarantee for the way he's going to approach the job.

CRUZ:

Well, this committee in particular, I think, you will find no criticism for being a law nerd.
We--we tend to attract more--more than a few of them. Mr. Thompson, you--you likewise
have a long distinguished honorable career, marred only by briefly being my boss at the
Department of Justice, and I apologize for all of my errant mistakes since then--that time.
Let me ask you the same question I asked Judge Mukasey, which is in your professional and-
-and personal career and interactions with Mr. Barr, what gives you confidence that--that he

will once again ably carry out the role of attorney general?
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THOMPSON:

Thank you, senator. And I'm very proud to have you as one of my colleagues and former
alums from the Deputy Attorney General's Office. You've certainly acquitted yourself well.
Bill Barr has a long history in the Department of Justice. As I said my opening statement, he
has a great love for the department. I think that may be one of the reasons he wants to return

to public service. He has great fidelity to the department.

But in addition to some of the, sort of, sterile constitutional questions that we've been
discussing this morning, important but still sterile, in my view, he understands the
traditions of the Department of Justice. He respects the traditions of the Department of
Justice. He knows the impact that his decisions will have on the men and women who are in

the department, who were in the investigative agencies.

And there are reasons for these policies, there are good reasons for these traditions, not the
least important of which is public perception that justice in this country, investigative
decisions in this country are carried out fairly without fear or favor of--of what your status is
in society and, most importantly, without political considerations. He understands this. I
think this makes him superbly qualified to be, again, the attorney general of the United
States.

CRUZ:

Thank you. Ms. Cary, you--you have worked with Mr. Barr some two decades. One of the
things you testified about was Mr. Barr's busy schedule, long travel hours, and yet in the
midst of it all, juggling to find time to be a husband and a dad to his three daughters. As--as
the father of daughters myself, I--I know how difficult that can be with public life. Can--can
you share with the committee some of what--just what you saw firsthand about how he

managed to carry out his responsibilities and that--and still--still be there for his daughters?

CARY:
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Yeah, he was a tremendous father, as we saw yesterday, grandfather, and as I said in my
testimony, the fact that all three of his daughters went into the law 1s--is huge. My husband
is hoping that our daughters do not go into the law because he thinks it's becoming

increasingly difficult profession.

But--but to your question about his--his demeanor and--and the way he conducts himself,
which I think is an example to--to his daughters, we were in--in Houston and we were there
for some events and as he was hearing from all these victims of crime and people talking
about how high the violent crime rate had gotten, can he please do something to help, he
spontaneously turned around to me and said what do you say we stop by the Harris County
Jail? And it was not on the--on the agenda at all. For security reasons, you would never tipoff

that the attorney general was going to a prison.

And--and the FBI basically kind of rang the doorbell of the prison and said, "We're here,"
and did an unannounced visit to the prison. And the attorney general--the prisoners did not
know who he was. I was a we didn't announce it. He went around asking these guys with
their lives were like, what'd they do to get in here, what's for lunch today, where you
exercise, and--and as--as much of a law nerd as he is, it--this was a very compassionate side

of him.

He was not showboating, he--there was no press involved, and--and to me it showed the way
he could sort of shoehorn in a quick visit so that he could get back and see his family, but yet
learn about what people's lives were like, see the impact not just of the violent crime on--on
the victims, but also proposed reforms on the people who were actually on the prisons. And-
-and I would be willing to bet there are not a lot of attorneys general, present company
probably excepted, who have been inside a cellblock like that on an unannounced thing so
that he could get back to his family but also continue to learn the impact of the policies in a

very real way.

CRUZ:
Thank--thank you for sharing that wonderful story. And I will say his grandson Liam has

become a internet sensation.
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CARY:

He stole the show.

CRUZ:
Not--not seen since John Robert's son Jack did Spider-Man at his announcement and he too

had a--had--had a moment of glory.

CARY:
Right.

CRUZ:
Thank--thank you to each of you.

BLACKBURN:

Senator Blumenthal.

BLUMENTHAL:
Thank you, madame chairwoman. Thank you to every one of you and thank you for all of
your written testimony which I will review. We have only seven minutes. Since, a matter of

fact, we're in the middle of a vote right now so, I'm going to be quick with a number of you.

First of all, Reverend Risher, thank you for being here today telling your story so powerfully
and eloquently, and making sure we understand that your mother and your two cousins
would be alive today if that shooter could not get his hands on a gun. A dangerous person
with a gun and, I assume, that you would support the legislation that's been introduced to
improve the background check system as you probably--I'm sure you know that shooter was

able to take advantage of a loophole--

Document ID: 0.7.4193.7472-000002 20210903-0028346


https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5445554?5

RISHER:

--Yes--

BLUMENTHAL:

--In the current laws. But, more broadly, Senator Graham and I have proposed bipartisan
measure to take guns away from people who are deemed to be dangerous by a court after
due process. And thereby, keep guns out of the hands of criminals and other dangerous

people. I hope that you can lend your voice and your face to supporting that legislation.

RISHER:

I would support that legislation, sir, yes.

BLUMENTHAL:
Thank you very much.

RISHER:
Thank you

BLUMENTHAL:

Professor Turley, you and I are in agreement that the president can be indicted. I think we're

in agreement.

TURLEY:
Yes.

BLUMENTHAL:

While in office, even if the trial has to be postponed. I articulated that position to Mr. Barr

yesterday and asked him to agree with me, and he wouldn't. You implied this morning in
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your testimony that he did agree with it. Do you have some information that--

TURLEY:

--Oh, no, actually I have no--I've never spoken to him about it. I was saying that, if you look
at the history of both Mueller and Barr, I would not expect that they would try to change this
long-standing policy. From a constitutional standpoint, I've never really agreed with it as I
think we share this view. The Constitution doesn't say that the president's immune from
indictment. But indictment goes to the president as a person, impeachment goes to the
president as an officeholder. That doesn't mean that a president is going to stand trial during
a term, as you've noted ably. And indeed, as--as you also know as a--as a prosecutor, it's
exceptionally unlikely that--that, when you got to the point of indictment, that a president

would actually face a trials, let alone incarceration during that term.

Where Bill Barr falls on this, I really don't know. I--when we talk about him being a great
advocate of the unitary executive theory, this is not--I don't--I don't share Neil's view that,
even though I'm not a big fan of the theory, that it is so horrific, you know. He believes in
clear lines. And I share that view of what's an executive function, what's a legislative
function. And when we talk about the--the avoidance doctrine of courts and trying to
interpret statutes to avoid conflicts, it's important to remember that same avoidance conflict
protects Congress, where I--I tend to favor in terms of Article I. Courts also avoid conflicts
interpreting statutes that might impede your own authority. So, I'm not too sure where he

comes out on this specific issue.

BLUMENTHAL:

Let me ask you and I'm going to ask a couple of other members, I--I am deeply disturbed,
and understatement, by some of the present's comments about the FBI, about judges, about
our judicial system generally. And shouldn't the attorney general of the United States be
someone who stands up for, you know, it's easy to say, "I'm for the rule of the law". But,
when the rubber hits the road, he should be defending all of those institutions. Do you

agree?
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TURLEY:
I do. What I should caution is that I don't think that Bill Barr's the type that is going to take a

public stance often against the president. But he is someone who I think would be quite firm
in his support with the--with the department. I don't know what the president thought he
was getting with Bill Barr, but I know what he's getting. He's going to get someone who
identifies incredibly closely and intimately with that department. And I think he will be a

vigorous defender of it.

BLUMENTHAL:
Judge Mukasey, let me ask you-and I'm-I know that you may wish to be referred to as

general.

MUKASEY:
I don't. I've always been uncomfortable with that, even when I was in the position. I thought

1t was weird.

BLUMENTHAL:

As Att-as attorney general--
(LAUGHTER)

--as attorney general, I was referred to general for 20 years, and I never was comfortable

with it either.

MUKASEY:
In--yeah, in the U.K., they call the attorney general, attorney which seems a lot more

civilized and a lot more accurate, particularly when there are people in uniform around.

BLUMENTHAL:
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As--as Professor Turley pointed out in his testimony about the seal, the U.K. has a very
different system. And I thought, by the way, the--what your history of the seal was a--was
really very pertinent in terms of showing the differences between the attorney general as an

advocate of justice as opposed to an advocate for the queen or the president.

MUKASEY:
Thank you.

BLUMENTHAL:

But, let me ask you, aren't you deeply troubled by the president's attacks on the judiciary?

MUKASEY:

I disagree with them. I think it is extraordinarily unwise for him to do it. And in that sense--
in that sense, I'm troubled. Obviously, there is a--or there is or should be a political price to
be paid for that. And I think we're in the process of seeing it paid to a certain extent. But
there has always been a certain level of tension between, and among, the branches. How it's
expressed and how--how--how civilly it's expressed is a different thing. And I--I think we're
probably in agreement there. But there is always a certain level of pulling and hauling that's

built into the Constitutional system.

BLUMENTHAL:
And are you not also troubled by the president's attacks on the FBI and the Department of

Justice, for that matter?

MUKASEY:

The--again, the--the FBI can function on a day-to-day basis without a rooting section in the
White House or a razzing section in the White House. I think that some of the--some of his
criticisms of the FBI may very well turn out to be warranted. So far as the department, that's

a different story entirely. And I've articulated that. I think that the former attorney general
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had no choice but to recuse himself. He did, and that was not something that was--that was

not a criticism that ever held any water.

BLUMENTHAL:
Well, I want to, again, thank you all for being here. I have a lot more questions. Maybe I'll
contact some of you privately. My time has expired and I know the acting chairwoman and I

have to go vote. But thank you all for being here today.

BLACKBURN:

Thank you. Without objection, and on behalf of Senator Grassley, I would like to enter this
letter from taxpayers against fraud into the record. So, ordered. Thank you, all, for being
here today and for your insight into how Mr. Barr would lead the Department of Justice in
what it is a very challenging time--excuse me? (WHISPERING) All right, he is in. Justice, I

am getting ready to end this hearing. Mr. Coons, you are recognized.

COONS:

Thank you, Senator Blackburn--

BLACKBURN:

--You just made it in under the wire.

COONS:
Yes, ma'am. Thank you to the panel. I appreciate your patience. There have been, as you

know, votes and other issues happening in other settings.

Reverend Risher, we did have an opportunity to speak during the break, but I just wanted to
reconfirm my sense of loss at what you shared with us, and the fact that I had the
opportunity to visit and to worship and then to travel with Felicia Sanders and Polly

Sheppard. It was a blessing to get to meet you today, and I look forward to your upcoming
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writing for such a time as this and talking about reconciliation work together. It's important

and difficult work.

And I wanted to start, if I could, by asking both you and Mr. Canterbury, with whom I've
had the honor of working on other issues, about background checks in particular. We talked
previously about the ways in which the NICS system doesn't currently fully work to deny

access to weapons to those who should, under the law, be denied access to weapons.

Senator Toomey and I introduced a bipartisan bill in the last Congress, the NICS Denial
Notification Act, that would make a simple improvement to how we enforce our current
laws. If you lie and try, if you go into a gun dealership and fill out the form and say I'm
entitled to buy a gun, they run the background check and come back and say, um, we're
really sorry, but you've spent five years in a federal penitentiary for armed robbery, we're
not giving you a gun today, and you storm out, in my home state nothing more happens. In
his home state, because the state police conduct that NICS notification, they know that they
can now go have a conversation with you about for what purpose were you purchasing this

weapon.

This bill, if it were to become law, would require notification, simple notification to a state or
local law enforcement contact. And these cases--these so-called lie and try cases are rarely
prosecuted at the federal level, partly because of a lack of knowledge, partly because of a

lack of resources.

Mr. Canterbury, I'd be interested--I'm grateful for what I understand is the FOP's support
for the concept in the bill. I wondered if you'd be willing to advocate with Attorney General
Barr, should he be confirmed, for the resources to enforce lie and try laws and to make sure

that our NICS system is working as it should.

CANTERBURY:
Absolutely. We've been very critical of the lack of resources for the NICS system and the fact

that a lie and try normally goes without prosecution. So, we--you know, we've supported
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that bill in the past. We're with you and Senator Toomey on that. And obviously, with that

will come the necessary appropriations and authorization to enforce.

COONS:
That's our hope. Reverend Risher, would it have made any difference in the Dylann Roof

case if he'd been denied the opportunity to purchase a weapon?

RISHER:

Yes, it would have made a difference. I believe if he was not able to secure his gun at that
particular day, that maybe tragedy in Charleston may not have happened. One of the things
that we are up against is the three day waiting period that I know that needs to be expanded
in order to be able to have a complete background check. And I think things would have

been different if those things were in place at the time he bought the gun.

COONS:

Thank you, reverend.

As the co-chair of the Law Enforcement Caucus, I intend to work in this Congress as I did in
the last to try and find ways that both parties can support that would strengthen law
enforcement and our system of denying access to weapons to those who shouldn't have

them.

Professor Kinkopf, if I might, there was some vigorous back and forth about the unitary
executive theory. We could have a very long conversation about this, but I'm just going to
ask a focused question. Tell me specifically, the unitary executive theory is just that. It's

theory. It's not currently the law of the land. Am I right about that?

KINKOPF:
That's correct. In fact, the Supreme Court has rejected it repeatedly in every case beginning

with Humphrey's Executor.
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COONS:

Yet, you suggested that if we were to have an attorney general with a very expansive view of
executive power, it might have some negative implications and it might have some negative
implications that would have some current relevance. Could you just explain that just a little

bit more?

My superficial and ill-informed view of this is that the founders did not actually say all
executive power is given to the president, that it was the executive power, and then there are
examples of ways in which executive power is actually shared with other branches
historically. I don't want to get into a wonderful law nerd fight, but I'm interested in what are

the practical implications if we have an who has a very broad and expansive view.

My predecessor, Senator Biden, when he was Chairman Biden, although he was very
complimentary of Mr. Barr, did express real concern about how broad his executive power

theory was.

KINKOPF:

Right. So that reading of the executive vesting clause was argued by President Harry
Truman in the steel seizure case, and specifically rejected by the Supreme Court. But that
didn't kill it. It keeps coming back. Lawyers in the Justice Department earnestly believing in
it, applied it in the Torture memo, most infamously. So it's something we keep hearing. And
the Torture memo is a good example in the sense that it illustrates that much of what the
Justice Department does never gets into court, right, and so the attorney general is such an
important position because very often the attorney general is the rule of law. It is only the
attorney general's willingness to not only stand up for what the Constitution says, but to
recognize what the Constitution actually says. I have no qualms about William Barr on the

first score. It's on the latter that I have real trouble.

And so the attorney general is a crucially important figure from that standpoint for issues we
can't even begin to contemplate, and we may never know about. But as the issues we do

know about, that we can be quite certain, and even issues that may end up in court one day,
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that role is crucially important. Suppose the president decides he wants to tell the Federal
Reserve how to run monetary policy. Now that's something that might end up in court, but
the Myers' case, sort of the first case of the modern approach to the president's removal
power, is a case where Woodrow Wilson fired Frank Myers, the postmaster first class in
Portland, Oregon, right, while he was president. His presidency ended in 1921. The Myers'
case was decided by the Supreme Courtin 1927. Can you imagine six years of a cloud
hanging over the independence of the Federal Reserve? So even if ultimately the Supreme
Court vindicates the proper view of the Constitution, we have potential enormous chaos in
the markets, and that's just one example of one independent agency and the important role

it plays in our lives.

COONS:

(INAUDIBLE) And you previously cited a list of independent agencies and Humphrey's
Executor, and this is a line of questioning I pursued with our most recently confirmed
Supreme Court justice. I am very concerned about how this view, which begins with a Scalia
dissent and now has expanded significantly in terms of its adherence, what its real
consequences might be. If I might, with the deference of the chair, ask one last brief

question.

BLACKBURN:
Very brief--

COONS:
Very brief (INAUDIBLE)--

BLACKBURN:

--because I've not noted.

COONS:
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Mr. Morial, about 67,000 Americans every year are dying of overdoses. Mr. Barr once said I
don't consider it an unjust sentence to put a drug courier in prison for five years. The
punishment fits the crime. I've come to the conclusion we can't incarcerate our way out of
the opioid crisis. Do you believe Mr. Barr will advance policies to help those suffering from
addiction get the help they need without needlessly prosecuting and incarcerating large

numbers of low-level drug couriers?

MORIAL:

I don't think we heard anything from him--I wasn't here yesterday--or anything in his record
that would suggest that. I think it's going to require strong congressional oversight. It's not
the--if the--the way we treat the opioid crisis mirrors the way we treated the crack crisis.
We're just continuing the ill-advised policies of mass incarceration. And they certainly do
not work, particularly for the user class, the user class. And what we did in the crack cocaine
crackdown is it was users who were incarcerated for 18 months, two years, three years.
Sometimes they repeated, and they went back to jail a second time. And the opioid crisis is
an opportunity, now that we're losing 60,000 people a year, more than we're losing to gun
violence, to break from those policies and treat the opioid crisis for what it is. It's a public
health crisis, just like the crack and cocaine crisis. These are people with deep problems of
substance abuse. It's not to exonerate the pusher. It's not to sanction it. But it is to come up
with a more intelligent approach. So I don't know if the nominee is there if--and I think that

this Congress and this committee is going to have to force him to get there.

COONS:
Thank you, Mr. Morial. Thank you to the whole panel. Thank you to the chair for your

forbearance.

BLACKBURN:
And we thank you all for helping to give us a clearer picture of what you perceive to be the
judgment and the understanding and the commitment of Mr. Barr, and this concludes the

hearing to consider William Barr as attorney general. I will remind the senators that the
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record will be open until 5:00 p.m. on January 22 to submit questions, and we request your

timely response. This hearing is adjourned.
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	Butalittlebitaboutthenominee. He'sbeenattorneygeneralbeforefrom'91to'93 by voicevote. Thosewerethedays. Deputyattorneygeneralfrom'90to'91, unanimous consent, withoutarecordedvote. AssistantAttorneyGeneralOﬃceofLegalCounsel, voice vote. That'sprettyamaz
	ing. Ithinkyou'regoingtohaveanactualvotethistime. Academicallygifted,GeorgeWashingtonLawSchool,ColumbiaUniversityundergraduate. OutsideofDOJhewasthegeneralcounsel,legislativecounselfortheCIA. That'showhe metBush41. He'sbeenalawclerk. He'sworkedinprivatepractice. I'mnotgoingtobore thecommitteewithallthethingshe'sdone. He'sbeentheseniorvicepresidentandgeneral counselofGTE. He'slivedaconsequentiallife--generalcounselforVeriz
	on. 
	You'velivedalifethat,Ithink,hasbeenhonorable, andnoteworthyandaccomplished, and Iwanttothankyouforbeingwillingtotakethistaskon. We'vegotalotofproblemsatthe DepartmentofJustice. Ithinkmoraleislow, andweneedtochangethat. SoIlookforward 
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	tothishearing. Youwillbechallenged. Youshouldbechallenged. Thememo,therewillbea lotoftalkaboutit, asthereshouldbe. ButIjustwanttoletyouknow, Mr. Barr,thatwe appreciateyousteppingupatatimewhenthecountryneedssomebodyofyourbackground andyourtemperamenttobeinchargeoftheruleoflaw. 
	GRAHAM: 
	AndwiththatIwillturnitovertomycolleague,SenatorFeinstein. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Thanksverymuch,Mr. ChairmanandIwantyoutoknowIreallylookforwardtoworking withyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Me, too. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	AndIthinkwecanworkproductivelytogether. AndSenatorGrassleyIwanttothankyoufor thetimeweworkedtogether. ItreallywasapleasureandIhadanopportunitytogetto knowyouastheﬁnepersonthatyouare. Sothankyouverymuch. 
	Iwanttosayjustonewordortwoorthreeaboutwomen. Twentyﬁveyearsagotherewere nowomenonthiscommittee. I'llneverforgetwatchingtheAnitaHillhearingona televisionintheLondonairportwithalotofpeoplegatheredaround. 
	SoIwentovertotakealookandIsawandIsawthisall-maleJudiciaryCommitteeandit tookalloftheseyearsbuthereweareandIwanttoparticularlywelcomeSenatorErnstand SenatorBlackburn. Ithinkit'sextraordinarilyimportantthatthiscommitteebe representativeofoursocietyatlargeandwearegrowingthatway. Andsothankyouvery muchforbeinghere. 
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	I'dalsoliketowelcomeBillBarrandhisfamily. Iknowyou'reproudtobehereandyou servedasattorneygeneralbeforefrom'91to'93 andIthinkweallhavegreatrespectfor yourcommitmenttopublicservice. 
	Whenwemetyourprevioustenuremarkedaverydiﬀ--wetalkedaboutaverydiﬀerenttime forourcountryandtodayweﬁndourselvesinauniquetimewithadiﬀerentadministration anddiﬀerentchallenges. Andnowperhapsmorethaneverbeforethecountryneeds someonewhowillupholdtheruleoflaw, dependtheindependence--defendthe independenceoftheJusticeDepartmentandtrulyunderstandtheirjobistoserveasthe people'slawyer, notthepresident'slawyer. 
	TopofmindforallofusistheongoingMuellerinvestigation. Importantly,theattorney generalmustbewillingtoresistpoliticalpressureandbecommittedtoprotectingthis investigation. I'mpleasedthatinourprivatemeetingaswellasinyourwrittenstatement submittedtothecommitteeyoustatedthatit'svitallyimportantandthisisaquotethatthe specialcounselbeallowedtocompletehisinvestigationendquoteandthatquotethepublic andCongressbeinformedoftheresultsofthespecialcounsel'sworkendquote. 
	However,thereareatleasttwoaspectsofMr. Mueller'sinvestigation. First, Russian interferenceintheUnitedStateselectionandwhetheranyU.S. personswereinvolvedin thatinterferenceandsecond,possibleobstructionofjustice. It'sthesecondcomponentthat youhavewrittenonandjustﬁvemonthsbeforeyouwerenominated, Ispenttheweekend onyour19-pagelegalmemotoDeputyAttorneyGeneralRodRosensteincriticiz
	ing Mueller'sinvestigationspeciﬁcallytheinvestigationintopotentialobstructionofjustice. 
	InthememoyouconcludeIbe--thinkthatpress--SpecialCounselMuellerisquotegrossly irresponsibleforpursuinganobstructioncaseagainstthePresidentandpursuingthe obstructioninquiryisfatallymisconceived. SoIhopewecanstraightenthatoutinthis hearing. 
	Butyourmemoalsoshowsalargesweepingviewofpresidentialauthority, anda determinedeﬀortIthoughttoundermineBobMuellereventhoughyoustateyouhavebeen friendsandareinthedarkaboutmanyofthefactsoftheinvestigation. Soitdoesraise 
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	questionsaboutthewillingnesstoreachconclusionsbeforeknowingthefactsandwhether youprejudgetheMuellerinvestigationandIhopeyou'llmakethatcleartoday. 
	Italsoraisesanumberofseriousquestionsaboutyourviewsonexecutiveauthorityand whetherthepresidentisinfactabovethelaw. Forexample,youwrotethepresidentandI quotealoneistheexecutivebranch. Assuchheisthesolerepositoryofallexecutivepowers conferredbytheConstitution. Thusthefullmeasureoflawenforcementauthorityisplaced inthepresident'shandsandnolimitisplacedonthekindsofcasessubjecttohiscontroland supervision. Thisisinyourmemoonpage10andIwillaskyouaboutit. 
	ThisanalysisincludedcasesinvolvingpotentialmisconductwhereyouconcludedandI quotethepresidentmayexercisehissupervisoryauthorityovercasesdealingwithhisown interestsandthepresidenttransgressesnolegallimitationwhenhedoesso. That'sonpage 
	12. Infact,youwentsofarastoconcludethatquotetheframers' plancontemplatesthatthe president'slawenforcementpowersextendstoallmattersincludingthoseinwhichhehasa personalstake. 
	YoualsowrotetheConstitutionitselfplacesnolimitonthepresident'sauthoritytoacton matterswhichconcernhimorhisownconduct, page10. 
	LateryouconcededthatcertainsupervisoryactionssuchastheﬁringofDirectorComey maybeunlawfulobstructionhoweverthistooisqualiﬁed. Youarguethatsuchacase--in suchacaseobstructionofjusticeoccursonlyifﬁrst, aprosecutorprovesthatthepresident forhisaidescolludedwithRussia. 
	Speciﬁcally,youconcludeandIquotetheissueofobstructiononlybecomesripeafterthe allegedconclus--collusionbythepresidentorhiscampaignisestablishedﬁrstendquote. So thatsomeofthethingsIhopetoaskyouabout. 
	Andinconclusion,letmejustsaythatsomeofyourpaststatementsontheroleofattorney generalandpresidentialpowerareconcerning. Forinstance,youhavesaidinthepastthat theattorneygeneralisthepresident'slawyer. 
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	InNovember2017,youmadecommentssuggestingitwouldbepermissibleforthe presidenttodirecttheJusticeDepartmenttoopenaninvestigationintohispolitical opponents. AndthisisnotableinlightofPresidentTrump'srepeatedcallsforthe investigationofHillaryClintonandotherswhodisagreewithhim. 
	Ibelieveit'simportantthatthenextattorneygeneralbeabletostronglyresistpressure whetherfromtheadministrationorCongresstoconductinvestigationsforpolitical purposes. Youmusthavetheintegrity,thestrengthandthefortitudetotellthepresidentno regardlessoftheconsequences. Inshort,hemustbewillingtodefendtheindependenceof theJusticeDepartment. 
	Somyquestionswillbedoyouhavethatstrengthandcommitmenttobeindependentofthe WhiteHousepressuresyouwillundoubtedlyface?Willyouprotecttheintegrityofthe JusticeDepartmentaboveallelse?Thankyouverymuch,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,SenatorFeinstein. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorHatch. Welcomeback. Wetrulymissyou. youareagreatchairmanandaincredible memberofthisbodyandyou'reverywelcomedtoshareyourthoughtsaboutMr. Barrwith ustoday. 
	HAT
	CH: 
	Well,thankyousomuch,Mr. Chairman, RankingMemberFeinsteinaswell, andmembers ofthecommittee. ItismydistinctpleasuretobeheretodaytointroduceWilliamBarr,the president'snomineetobeattorneygeneraloftheUnitedStates. Ihaveknownandworked withBillcloselyovertheyearsandamgladtocallhimafriend. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	Billhashadadistinguishedcareerinpublicserviceandintheprivatesector. Hestartedhis careerattheCentralIntelligenceAgency. Whilethere, hewenttolawschoolparttimeat GeorgeWashingtonUniversity. Followinggraduation,hewasselectedforaprestigious clerkshipwiththefederaljudgeontheDCCircuitbeforeheadingtoprivatepractice. Later, heservedintheReaganWhiteHouseandtheOﬃceofPolicyDevelopment. 
	Followinganotherstentinprivatepractice,Billbeganhisdistinguishedcareeratthe DepartmentofJusticeunderPresidentGeorgeH.W. Bush. Billservedastheassistant attorneygeneralfortheOﬃceofLegalCounsel,thenasdeputyattorneygeneral, andthen ﬁnallyasattorneygeneraloftheUnitedStates. Asattorneygeneral, Billoversawanumber ofsensitivecriminalinvestigations,includingtheinvestigationintothePanAmFlight103 bombing. Heprioritiz
	edﬁghtingviolentcrimeandbecameknownasthelawandorder attorneygeneral. 
	ThroughouthistimeattheJusticeDepartment,Billearnedareputationasaﬁerceadvocate fortheruleoflaw, asaprincipledandindependentdecision-maker, andasalawyer's lawyer. HehasshownhiscommitmenttotheConstitutiontimeandtimeagainwhile servingourcountry. ThatiswhyhehasbeenconﬁrmedbytheSenateunanimouslythree times. AftercompletinghisserviceattheDOJ,Billreturnedtotheprivatesectorworkingat-atlawﬁrmsandascounselforsomeofAmerica'slargestcompanies. Icoulddo--Icouldgo onatlengthindescribingBill'sdistinguishedcareer. 
	-

	Thereisnoquestion, nonewhatsoever,thatBilliswellqualiﬁedtoserveasattorney general. Hehasheldthispositionbeforeandwonhighpraiseduringhistenureforhis fairness, histenacity, andhisworkethic. SoinsteadofdroningonaboutBill'sresume, I wanttotellyouaboutwhatBillidentiﬁesasthemostimportantachievementofhisprivate serviceasattorneygeneral, atleastIbelievethisiswhathebelieves. Ibelievehisanswer tellsyoumuchabouthowhewillapproachthejobandwhoheis. 
	Whenaskedwhathismostimportantaccomplishmentwasasattorneygeneral, Billdoesnot pointtooneofhismanypolicysuccesses,hedoesn'ttalkabouthisroleinsettingantitrust mergerguidelines,hedoesn'tsayitwashisroleleadingtheDOJ'sresponsetothesavings 
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	andloanscrisis. No, forhimitwassomethingmore,itwassomethingmoretangible, itwas Talladega. 
	ThreedaysafterBillwasnamedactingattorneygeneralbyPresidentBush, 121prisoners notedandseiz
	edcontroloftheTalladegaFederalCorrectionalInstitutioninAlabama. This wasaveryseriousmatterandtheytook10hostages. PlanningattheDOJbegan immediatelyforhowbesttoresolvethesituationandsecurethesafereleaseofthe hostages. Insuchasituation, somewouldhavesoughtpoliticalcover. NotBill. Hewasin charge. Heknewtheresponsewashisdecisiontomake, hisresponseability. Hemaintained hisfocusonthesafetyofthemenandwomenheldhostagebytheprisoners. 
	Thestandoﬀlasted10days. Then, onBill'sorder,FBIagentsstormedtheprison. Three minuteslateritwasover. Thehostagesweresafe, themissionwaswellplannedand executed, thefederalagent--thefederalagentsdidnotevenhavetoﬁreasingleshot. Bill's decision-makingandjudgmenthelpsavedlives. 
	WhenPresidentBushnominatedBilltobeattorneygeneralin1991,Inotedwhyhehad beenselected. HewasnotamemberofPresidentBush'spoliticalorpersonalinnercircle. Hewasnotapartofthepresident'sbraintrust. Hewasnotapoliticianorformerpolitician who--whobroughtpoliticalclouttothepositionfrompriorelectionsorpriorelections-electedoﬃce. BillBarrwasalawyer'slawyer. Talent, merit, andperformance. Thosewere thereasonsPresidentBushselectedhimtobetheattorneygeneralatthattime. 
	-

	Thatstatementholdstruetoday. BillBarr, inmyopinion,isanoutstandingchoicefor attorneygeneral. Hisvastexperience, renownedjudgment, andreputationasanardent defenderoftheruleoflawmakehimanomineethattheAmericanpeople,thepresident, andthisSenateshouldallbeproudof. SoIfeelveryhonoredtobeheretodaytospeakinhis favorandIhopethathisnominationwillbeapprovedexpeditiously. Thankyou, Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
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	Thanks,SenatorHatch. I'dliketonoteattheoutsetthattherulesoftheSenateprohibit outbursts, clapping, ordemonstrationofanykind. Thisincludesblockingtheviewofpeople aroundyou. Pleasebemindfuloftheserulesasweconductthishearing. Iwillaskthat capitalpleasetoremoveanyonewhoviolatestherulesofthiscommittee. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Raiseyourrighthand, please. Doyouaﬃrmthatthetestimonyyouareabouttogivetothis committeewillbethetruth,thewholetruth, andnothingbutthetruth, sohelpyouGod? 
	BARR: 
	Ido. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Theﬂoorisyours. 
	BARR: 
	BeforeIbegin, Mr. Chairman, couldIintroducemyfamily? 
	GRAHAM: 
	Absolutely. 
	BARR: 
	Mywifeof46years,Christine, aretiredlibrarian. Mydaughter,Margaret, whowecallMeg. ShewasanassistantUnitedStatesattorneyintheDistrictofColumbiabutnowhasmoved uptoCapitolHillandworksforSenatorBraun. Mymiddledaughter,Patricia, who'salsoan attorney, andshehasbeencounseltotheHouseAgricultureCommitteeforhowlongnow, 10?Elevenyears. AndmydaughterMary, whoisalong-timefederalprosecutorandis currentlythecoordinatorforopioidenforcementintheOﬃceoftheDeputyAttorney 
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	General. Mary'shusband, Mike, whoisalsoanattorneyattheDepartmentofJusticeinthe nationalsecuritydivision. Andtheirson,MaryandMike'sson, Liam, whowillsomedaybe intheDepartmentofJustice. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Patricia'shusband,Pelham, whoisafoundingpartnerofaconsultingﬁrm, andMeg's husband, Tyler, whoisalsoanAssistantUnitedStatesAttorneyintheEasternDistrictof Virginia. DidIleaveanyoneout? 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thinkaboutmedicalschool,Liam. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Somebodyneedstomakemoneyinthefamily. 
	BARR: 
	WhenMegwasstartingatNotreDame,Itoldherto--IwantedadoctorinthefamilyandI madehertakeorganicchem. Needlesstosay, she'snowalawyer. 
	So, goodmorning, Mr. Chairman,RankingMemberFeinstein, andmembersofthe committee. It'saprivilegetocomebeforeyoutoday, andI'mhonoredthatPresidentTrump hasnominatedmeforthepositionofattorneygeneral. 
	IregretthatIcomebeforethiscommitteeatatimewhenmuchofourgovernmentisshut down. AndmythoughtsarewiththededicatedmenandwomenoftheDepartmentof Justiceandotherfederalworkers, manyofwhomcontinuetoperformtheircriticaljobs. 
	Asyouknow, iftheSenateconﬁrmsme,thiswouldbemysecondtimeIwouldhavethe honorofholdingthisoﬃce. DuringthefouryearsIservedunderPresidentGeorgeH.W. Bush,henominatedmeforthreesuccessivepositionsinthedepartment, theassistant attorneygeneralfortheOﬃceofLegalCounsel,thedeputyattorneygeneral, andﬁnallythe attorneygeneral, andthiscommitteeunanimouslyapprovedmeforeachofthoseoﬃces. 
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	Twenty-sevenyearsagoatmyconﬁrmationhearing, IexplainedthattheOﬃceofAttorney Generalisnotlikeanyothercabinetpost. Itisuniqueandhasacriticalroletoplayunderour constitutionalsystem. Isaidthentheattorneygeneralhasaveryspecialobligation, unique obligations. Heholdsintrustthefairandimpartialadministrationofjustice. Itisthe attorneygeneral'sresponsibilitytoenforcethelawevenhandedlyandwithintegrity. 
	Theattorneygeneralmustensurethattheadministrationofjustice,theenforcementofthe law, isaboveandawayfrompolitics. Nothingcouldbemoredestructiveofoursystemof government, oftheruleoflaw, ortheDepartmentofJusticeasaninstitution,thanany tolerationofpoliticalinterferencewiththeenforcementofthelaw. Ibelievethisasstrongly todayasIdid27yearsago, indeedmorestrongly. 
	Weliveintimewhenthecountryisdeeplydivided. Inthecurrentenvironment,the Americanpeoplehavetoknowthatthereareplacesinthegovernmentwheretheruleof law, notpolitics,holdssway, andwheretheywillbetreatedfairlybasedsolelyonthefacts andtheeven-handedapplicationofthelaw. TheDepartmentofJusticemustbethatplace. 
	Ididnotpursuethisposition. Andwhenmynamewasﬁrstraised, Iwasreluctanttobe consideredandindeedproposedanumberofalternativecandidates. I'm68yearsold, partiallyretired, andnearingtheendofalonglegalcareer. MywifeandIwerelooking forwardtoapeacefulandcherishedtimewithourdaughtersandgrandchildren. AndI've hadthisjobbefore. 
	Butultimately,IagreedtoservebecauseIbelievestronglyinpublicservice. Ireverethe law. IlovetheDepartmentofJusticeandthededicatedprofessionalswhoservethere. AndI believethatIcandoagoodjobleadingthedepartmentinthesetimes. Ifconﬁrmed, Iwill servewiththesameindependenceIdidin1991. 
	Atthattime, whenPresidentGeorgeBushchoseme,hesoughtnopromisesandaskedonly thathisattorneygeneralactwithprofessionalismandintegrity. Likewise,PresidentTrump hassoughtnoassurances,promises, orcommitmentsfrommeofanykind, eitherexpressor implied, andIhavenotgivenhimany, otherthanthatIwouldrunthedepartmentwith professionalismandintegrity. 
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	Asattorneygeneral, myallegiancewillbetotheruleoflaw,theConstitution, andthe Americanpeople. Thatishowitshouldbe. Thatishowitmustbe. Andifyouconﬁrmme, thatishowitwillbe. 
	NowletmeaddressafewmattersIknowareonthemindsofsomeofthemembersofthis committee. First, Ibelieveitisvitallyimportantthatthespecialcounselbeallowedto completehisinvestigation. IhaveknownBobMuellerfor30years. Weworkedclosely togetherthroughoutmyprevioustenureattheDepartmentofJustice. 
	We'vebeenfriendssince, andIhavetheutmostrespectforBobandhisdistinguishedrecord ofpublicservice. Andwhenhewasnamedspecialcounsel,Isaidthathisselectionwasgood newsandthat,knowinghim, Ihadconﬁdencehewouldhandlethematterproperly. 
	AndIstillhavethatconﬁdencetoday. Givenhispublicactionstodate,Iexpectthatthe specialcounseliswellalonginhisinvestigation. Atthesametime, thepresidenthasbeen steadfastthathewasnotinvolvedinanycollusionwithRussianattemptstointerfereinthe election. 
	Ibelieveitisinthebestinterestofeveryone, thepresident,Congress, andtheAmerican people, thatthismatterberesolvedbyallowingthespecialcounseltocompletehiswork. Thecountryneedsacredibleresolutionoftheseissues. 
	Andifconﬁrmed,Iwillnotpermitpartisanpolitics, personalinterests, oranyother improperconsiderationtointerferewiththisoranyotherinvestigation. Iwillfollowthe specialcounselregulationsscrupulouslyandingoodfaith. Andonmywatch, Bobwillbe allowedtoﬁnishhiswork. 
	Second,IalsobelieveitisveryimportantthatthepublicandCongressbeinformedofthe resultsofthespecialcounsel'swork. MygoalwillbetoprovideasmuchtransparencyasI canconsistentwiththelaw. Icanassureyouthat, wherejudgmentsaretobemade, Iwill makethosejudgmentsbasedsolelyonthelawandIwillnotletpersonal,political, orother improperinterestsinﬂuencemydecision. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	Third,IwouldliketobrieﬂyaddressthememorandumthatIwrotelastJune. Iwrotethe memoasaformerattorneygeneralwhohasoftenweighedinonlegalissuesofpublic importance, andIdistributeditbroadlysothatotherlawyerswouldhavethebeneﬁtofmy views. Mymemowasnarrow, explainingmythinkingonaspeciﬁcobstructionofjustice theoryunderasinglestatutethatIthought,basedonmediareports, thespecialcounsel mightbeconsidering. 
	Thememodidnotaddressorinanyotherwayquestionthespecialcounsel'score investigationintoRussianeﬀortstointerfereintheelection, nordiditaddressother potentialobstructionofjusticetheoriesorargue, thatsomehavewronglysuggested, thata presidentcanneverobstructjustice. Iwroteitmyselfonmyowninitiative, withoutany assistance, andbasedsolelyonpublicinformation. 
	Iwouldliketocommentverybrieﬂyonmyprioritiesifconﬁrmedasattorneygeneral. First, wemustcontinuetheprogresswe'vemadeonviolentcrimewhileatthesametime recogniz
	ingthechangesthathaveoccurredsinceIlastservedasattorneygeneral. The recentlypassedFirstStepAct, whichIintendtodiligentlyimplementifconﬁrmed, recogniz
	estheprogresswehavemadeoverthepastthreedecadesinﬁghtingviolentcrime. Asattorneygeneral,Iwillensurethatwewillcontinueoureﬀortstocombatviolentcrime. 
	Inthepast,Iwasfocusedonpredatoryviolence,buttodayIamalsoconcernedabout anotherkindofviolence. Wecanonlysurviveandthriveasanationifwearemutually tolerantofeachother'sdiﬀerences, whethertheybediﬀerencesbasedonrace, ethnicity, religion, sexualorientationorpoliticalthinkingandyet, weseesomepeopleviolently attackingotherssimplybecauseoftheirdiﬀerences. Wemusthavez
	erotoleranceforsuch crimes, andIwillmakethisapriorityasattorneygeneralifconﬁrmed. 
	Next,thedepartmentwillcontinuetoprioritiz
	eenforcingandimprovingourimmigration laws. Asanation, wehavethemostliberalandexpansiveimmigrationlawsintheworld. Legalimmigrationhashistoricallybeenahugebeneﬁttothiscountry. However, asweopen ourfrontdoorandtrytoadmitpeopleinanorderlyway, wecannotallowotherstoﬂoutour legalsystembycrashinginthroughthebackdoors. Inordertoensurethatourimmigration 
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	systemworksproperly, wemustsecureournation'sbordersandwemustensurethatour lawsallowustoprocess,hold, andremovethosewhounlawfullyenter. 
	Finally,inademocracylikeours,therighttovoteisparamount. Inaperiodofgreatpolitical division, oneofthefoundationsofournationisourenduringcommitmenttothepeaceful transitionofpowerthroughelections. Ifconﬁrmed,Iwillensurethatthefullmightofour resourcesarebroughttobearagainstforeignpersonswhounlawfullyinterfereinour elections. Fosteringconﬁdenceintheoutcomeofelectionsalsomeansensuringthatthe righttovoteisfullyprotected, aswellasensuringtheintegrityofelections. 
	Letmeconcludebymakingthepointthatoverthelongrun,thecourseofjusticeinthis countryhasmoretodowiththecharacteroftheDepartmentofJusticeasanenduring institutionthanwiththetenureofanyparticularattorneygeneral. Aboveallelse, if conﬁrmedIwillworkdiligentlytoprotecttheprofessionalismandintegrityofthe departmentasaninstitution, andIwillstrivetoleaveitandthenationastrongerandbetter place. 
	Thankyouverymuchforyourtimetoday, andIlookforwardtoansweringyourquestions. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Barr. We'lltrytobreakaround11:30,Ithink,togetaquickbiteandbreak upthedayforyou. ButonethingIwanttotellyouisthatIsupporttheideathatpoliticians, nomatterwhatparty, shouldnotinterferewithcriminalinvestigations. Thatmakes imminentsensetome. Onceyougodownthatroad,thentheruleoflawcollapses. But there'sanothersidetothisequation,ifImaysay, atwo-waystreet. Whataboutthosein chargeofenforcingthelaw?Whataboutthosewiththepowertobringchargesagainst Americancitiz
	ens, includingpeopleuphere?IrememberSenatorStevens' caseinAlaska. Soweshouldalwaysbeonguardaboutthepoliticianinterferinginainvestigation, butwe shouldalsohaveoversightofhowthedepartmentworks, andthosewiththistremendous powerusethatpower. AreyoufamiliarwiththeJanuary11NewYorkTimesarticleabout FBIopeninquiryintowhetherTrumpwassecretlyworkingonbehalfofRussians? 
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	BARR: 
	Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Wouldyoupromisemeandthiscommitteetolookintothisandtelluswhetherornot,inthe appropriateway, acounterintelligenceinvestigationwasopenedupbysomebodyatthe FBI/DepartmentofJusticeagainstPresidentTrump? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Mr. Chairman,Ithinkthereareanumberofinvestigations, asIunderstandit, goingon inthedepartment. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Haveyoueverheardofsuchathinginallthetimeyou'vebeenassociatedwiththe DepartmentofJustice? 
	BARR: 
	Ihaveneverheardofthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Arethererulesabouthowyoucandocounterintelligenceinvestigations? 
	BARR: 
	Ibelievethereare,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Soifyouwanttoopenuponeagainstthepresident, arethereanychecksandbalances? 
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	BARR: 
	NotoutsidetheFBI. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay, wellweneedtolookatthat. Intermsofpeoplewhoareactuallyenforcingthelaw, don'twewanttomakesuretheydon'thaveanagenda? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright, Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	DoyouknowaLisaPageorPeterStrz
	DoyouknowaLisaPageorPeterStrz
	ok? 

	BARR: 
	I'veheardtheirnames. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Butdoyouknowthempersonally? 
	BARR: 
	No,Idon't. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thisisamessage,August8, 2016, atextmessage. Trump'snotevergoingtobecome president, right?Right. Strz okwasin 
	okresponded, no, no, he'snot. We'llstophim. Strz chargeoftheClintonemailinvestigation. Ms. PageworkedintheDepartmentofJustice. August15, 2016,IwanttobelievethepathyouthrewoutforconsiderationinAndy'soﬃce thatthereisnowayhegetselected,butI'mafraidwecan'ttakethatrisk. It'slikean 
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	insurancepolicyintheunlikelyeventyoudiebefore40. March4,2016,PagetoStrz
	ok, God, Trumpisaloathsomehumanbeing. October20, 2016, Trumpisanf-ingidiot,is unabletoprovideacoherentanswer. Toallthosewhoenforcethelawyoucanhaveany opinionofusthatyoulike, butyou'resupposedtodoyourjobwithoutanagenda. Doyou promiseme, asattorneygeneral,ifyougetthisjob,tolookintoseewhathappenedin 2016? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Howdothesestatementssitwithyou? 
	BARR: 
	IwasshockedwhenIsawthem. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. Pleasegettothebottomofit. Ipromiseyouwewillprotecttheinvestigation,but we'rerelyinguponyoutocleanthisplaceup. FISAwarrants. AreyoufamiliarwiththeFISA warrant? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. Duringtheprocessofobtainingawarrantisthereacertiﬁcationmadebythe DepartmentofJusticetothecourtthattheinformationbeingprovidedisreliable? 
	BARR: 
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	Yes, sir. 
	GRAHAM: 
	AreyoufamiliarwithBruceOhr? 
	BARR: 
	No,I'mnot. 
	GRAHAM: 
	BruceOhrwasassociatedeputyattorneygeneralfororganiz
	edcrimeanddrug enforcement. HiswifeworkedatFusionGPS. AreyoufamiliarwithFusionGPS? 
	BARR: 
	I've--yes, I'vereadaboutthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	FusionGPS,Mr. Barr, washiredbytheDemocraticNationalCommitteeandtheClinton campaigntodooppositionresearchagainstcandidateTrump, andmaybeothercandidates, butwenowknowthattheyhired,FusionGPS,MichaelSteele, whoisaformerBritishagent, todooppositionresearchandproducethefamousdossier. AreyouawarethatMr. Ohr's wifeworkedforthatorganiz
	ation? 
	BARR: 
	I'vereadthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Doesthatbotheryou, ifhehadanythingtodowiththecase? 
	BARR: 
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	Yes. 
	GRAHAM: 
	AreyouawarethatonnumerousoccasionshemetwithMr. Steelewhilehiswifeworked withFusionGPS? 
	BARR: 
	I'vereadthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. ThewarrantcertiﬁcationagainstCarterPage, onfourdiﬀerentoccasionscertiﬁes thatthedossier, whichwasthemainsourceofthewarrant, wasreliable. Wouldyoulookin toseewhetherornotthatwasanaccuratestatementandholdpeopleaccountableifitwas not? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Mueller. Yousayyou'veknownMuelleralongtime. Wouldyousayyouhaveaclose relationshipwithMr. Mueller? 
	BARR: 
	Iwouldsayweweregoodfriends. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Wouldyousaythatyouunderstandhimtobeafair-mindedperson? 
	BARR: 
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	Absolutely. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Doyoutrusthimtobefairtothepresidentandthecountryasawhole? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Whenhisreportcomestoyou, willyoushareitwithusasmuchaspossible? 
	BARR: 
	Consistentwiththeregulationsandthelaw,yes. 
	GRAHAM: 
	DoyoubelieveMr. Muellerwouldbeinvolvedinawitch-huntagainstanybody? 
	BARR: 
	Idon't--Idon'tbelieveMr. Muellerwould--wouldbeinvolvedinawitch-hunt. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Whatarethecircumstancesthatwouldallowaspecialcounseltobeappointed, generally speaking? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Iappointedthree,Mr. Chairman, asspecialcounsel. Andgenerally, whensomething comesup, anissuecomesupthatneedstobeinvestigated, andtherearegoodreasonsto haveitinvestigatedbyaspecialcounseloutsidethenormalchainatthedepartment, someoneusuallyofpublicstaturethatcanprovideadditionalassuranceofnonpartisanship. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	GRAHAM: 
	DoyoubelievethatAttorneyGeneralSessionshadaconﬂictbecauseheworkedonthe Trumpcampaign? 
	BARR: 
	I'mnotsureofallthefacts, butI--Ithinkheprobablydidtherightthingrecusinghimself. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Iagree. Ithinkhedidtherightthingtorecusehimself. DoyouknowRodRosenstein? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Ido. 
	GRAHAM: 
	What'syouropinionofhim? 
	BARR: 
	IhaveaveryhighopinionofRodRosensteinandhisserviceinthedepartment. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. Whydidyouwritethememo? 
	BARR: 
	Iwrotethememobecausestarting,Ithink,inJuneof2017,thereweremanynewsreports-andIhadnofacts, andnoneofusreallyoutsidethedepartmenthavefacts--butIreadalot ofnewsreportssuggestingthattherewereanumberofpotentialobstructiontheoriesthat werebeingcontemplated, oratleastexplored. Onetheory,inparticular,thatappearedtobe underconsiderationunderaspeciﬁcstatuteconcernedmebecauseIthoughtitwould 
	-
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	involvestretchingthestatutebeyondwhatwasintended, anditwoulddoitinawaythat wouldhaveseriousadverseconsequencesforallagenciesthatareinvolvedinthe administrationofjustice, especiallytheDepartmentofJustice. AndIthoughtitwouldhave achillingeﬀectgoingforwardovertime. Andmymemoisveryclearthatistheconcernthat wasdrivingme. Theimpact, nottheparticularcase,butitsimpactofaruleovertime. AndI wantedtomakesurethatbeforeanyonewentdownthispath,ifthatwasinfactbeing considered, thatthefullimplicationsofthetheorywerecarefull
	SoIﬁrstraisedtheseconcernsverballywithRodRosensteinwhenIhadlunchwithhim earlyin2008, andhedidnotrespondandwassphinx-likeinhisreaction, butIexpounded onmyconcerns. AndthenIlaterattemptedtoprovideawrittenanalysisasfollowup. NowI initiallythoughtofanop-ed, andbecauseofthematerialitwasn'tworkingout, andItalked tohisstaﬀ, andIsaidyouknowIwanttofollowupandsendsomethingtoRodinwriting, butisheaone-pagerkindofguy, or, youknow, howmuchwillheread?Andtheguysaid, he--he'slikeyou. Hedoesn'tmindwaitingintoadenselegal(INAU
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Don'tyouthinkPresidentTrumpisaone-pagerkindofguy? 
	BARR: 
	Excuseme? 
	GRAHAM: 
	PresidentTrumpisaone-pagerkindofguy? 
	BARR: 
	Isuspectheis. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	Okay,justrememberthat. Goahead. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	AndsoIprovidedthememotoRod, andIprovidedit,distributeditfreelyamongtheother lawyersthatIthoughtwouldbeinterestedinit. AndIthinkitwasentirelyproper. It'svery commonformeandforotherformersenioroﬃcialstoweighinonmattersthattheythink maybeill-advisedandmayhaveramiﬁcationsdowntheroad. Forexample, justafew monthsbeforethat,Ihadweighedinrepeatedlytocomplainabouttheideaofprosecuting SenatorMenendezIthinkImadethreecalls. IthinkitwastwotoSessions, toAGSessions, 
	. andonetoRosenstein. 
	Now,Ididn'tknowSenatorMenendezIdon'trepresentSenatorMenendezNoonewas 
	.. payingmetodoit. Andinfact,Idon'tsupportSenatorMenendezpolitically. ButIcarefully watchedthiscase. Myfriend,AbbeLowell, washisdefensecounsel, anditwasverymuch likealineofcasesthatIhadbeenconcernedaboutwhenIwasAG. AndsoIwaswatchingit, andIthoughttheprosecutionwasbasedonafallacioustheorythatwouldhavebadlongtermconsequences. AndsoIfreelyweighedinatthedepartment, andIdidsobecauseI careabouttheruleoflaw. 
	-

	AndIwanttosayoneﬁnalthingontheruleoflawbecauseitpicksuponsomethingyou said,Mr. Chairman. Whatistheruleoflaw?Weallusethatterm. Intheareaof enforcement,IthinktheruleoflawisthatwhenyouapplyaruletoA,ithastobethesame ruleandapproachyouapplytoB,C,D, andEandsoforth. Andthatseems,tome,to suggesttwocorollariesforanattorneygeneral. Theﬁrst,that'swhywedon'tlikepolitical interference. PoliticalinterferencemeansthattherulebeingappliedtoAisn'ttherule you'reapplyingtoevery--it'sspecialtreatmentbecausesomeoneisinthereexert
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	politicalinﬂuence. Thecorollarytothat--andthisiswhatyou'redrivingat,Mr. Chairman--is thatwhenyouapplyarule--whenaprosecutorisapplyingaruletoA, you'vegottobe carefulthatit'snottorquedspeciallyforthatcaseinawaythatcouldn'tbeapplieddownthe road, orifitisappliedwillcreateproblemsdowntheroad. AndIthinktheattorneys general'sjobisboth. 
	Itisbothtoprotectagainstinterference,butit'salsotoprovideoversighttomakesurethat ineachindividualcasethesamerulethatwouldbeappliedbroadlyisbeingappliedtothe individual. 
	GRAHAM: 
	(OFF-MIC) 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Sixquickyesornoquestions. Willyoucommittonointerference withthescopeofthespecialcounsel'sinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	I--Iwill--thescopeofthespecialcounsel'sinvestigation-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Bynotlimiting-
	-

	BARR: 
	--is--issetbyhischarterand--andbytheregulationsandIwillensurethatthoseare maintained. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	25
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	WillyoucommittoprovidingMr. Muellerwiththeresources,fundsandtimeneededto completehisinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	WillyoucommittoensuringthatSpecialCounselMuellerisnotterminatedwithoutgood causeconsistentwithdepartmentregulations? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely. IfSpecialCounselMuellermakesanyrequestforinstance--instanceaboutthe scopeofhisinvestigationorresourcesforhisinvestigationwillyoucommittonotifying Congressifyoudenythatrequest? 
	BARR: 
	Ithink--IthinktheregulationsrequirenotiﬁcationofCongressifthereisadisagreement. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Thankyou. AndIhavetwoquestionsfromthechairmanoftheHouseJudiciaryCommittee. WillyoucommittomakinginthereportMuellerproducesattheconclusionofhis investigationavailabletoCongressandtothepublic? 
	BARR: 
	AsI--asIsaidinmystatementIamgoingtomakeasmuchinformationavailableasIcan consistentwiththerulesandregulationsthatarepartofthespecialcounselregulations. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Willyoucommittomakinganyreportontheobstructionofjusticepublic? 
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	BARR: 
	I--that'sthesameanswer. Yes. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Thankyou. InyourJune2,2018, memoaboutobstructionofjusticetotheMueller investigationyourepeatedlyreferredtoMueller'squotesweepingandall-encompassing interpretationofsection1512 whichisthest--astatuteonobstruction. Howdoyouknow whatMueller'sinterpretationof1512 is? 
	BARR: 
	Well, asIsaidIwas--Iwasspeculating. IfreelysaidatthebeginningIwaswritinginthe darkandwe'reallinthedark. Everylawyer, everytalkinghead, everyonewhothinksabout ortalksaboutitdoesn'thavethefacts. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	SoIspentmySaturdayreadingthatmemorandum-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Yeah. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Soareyousayingthisisallyourspeculation?It'sabigmemo. 
	BARR: 
	Well,it--itwasinformedtotheextentthatIIthoughtthatthatwasoneofthetheoriesbeing considered. AndIdon'tknowhowseriouslywhetheritwasbeingconsideredorhow seriouslyitwasbeingconsidered. ButI, asashorthandwayinthememoofreferringto whatIwasspeculatingmightbethetheoryIreferredtoitasMueller'stheoryratherthango ineverytimeImentionitsaywell,thisisspeculative. 
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	FEINST
	EIN: 
	ButdoyouknowwhatMueller'sinterpretationof1512 is? 
	BARR: 
	No, Idon'tknowwhatMueller'sinterpretation. Butandjustonepoint, senator,Ithinkyou saidinyouropeningstatementIsaidhewasgrosslyirresponsible. IthinkIsaidifsomething happensitwouldbegrosslyirresponsible. IwasnotcallingMuellergrosslyirresponsible. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Iunderstand. Thankyou. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Iappreciatethat. HasanyonegivenyounonpublicinformationaboutMueller's investigation? 
	BARR: 
	Idon't--Idon'trecallgettingintheconﬁdentialinformationabouttheinvestigation. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Your2018 mem--inityoustatedandIquotetheframers' plancontemplatesthatthe president'slawenforcementpowersextendtoallmattersincludingthoseinwhichhehada personalstakeendquote. Pleaseexplainwhatyoubasethisconclusionon. 
	BARR: 
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	Y--yes. Here'stheDepartmentofJusticerighthereandwithintheDepartmentofJustice, enforcementdecisionsarebeingmade. ThepresidentisoverhereandIthinkofitasthere aretwocategoriesofpotentialcommunications. 
	Onewouldbeonacasethatthepresidentwantstocommunicateaboutthathehasno personalinterestin, nopoliticalinterestin. Let'ssaythepresidentisconcernedabout ChinesestealingtradesecretsandsayIwantyoutogoafterthiscompanythat'sbeing--you knowthatmaybestealingtradesecrets. That'sperfectlyappropriateforhimtodo, to communicatethat. 
	Butwhetherit'sbonaﬁdeornottheDepartmentofJustice'sobligationandtheattorney general'sobligationisnottotakeanyactionunlesswereach--we, theDepartmentofJustice andtheattorneygeneral, reachtheirownindependentconclusionthatitisjustiﬁedunder thelawandregardlessoftheinstructionandthat'smyquotethateveryoneissayingIamI'm siccing(SP)--it'sokayforthepresidenttodirectthings. AllIsaidwasit'snotperseimproper forthepresidenttocallonthedepartmentfordoingsomethingespeciallyifhehasno personalorpoliticalinterestinit. 
	Theothercategoryofcasesandlet'spickaneasybadexamplewouldbeifamemberofthe president'sfamilyorabusinessassociateorsomethingwasunderinvestigationandhetries tointervene. He--he'sthechieflawenforcementoﬃcerandyoucouldsaywell,hehasthe powerbutthatwouldbeabreachofhisobligationundertheConstitutiontofaithfully executethelaws. 
	Soinmyopinionifheattempts--ifapresidentattemptstointerveneinamatterthathehasa stakeinto--toprotecthimselfthatshouldﬁrstbelookedatasabreachofhisconstitutional dutieswhetheritalsoviolatesastatutedependingonwhatstatutecomesintoplayandwhat allofthefactsare. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	IncludingtheemolumentsclauseoftheConstitution? 
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	BARR: 
	I--well,Ithinkthere'sadisputeastowhattheemolumentsclauserelatesto. I--Ihavenot personallyresearchtheemolumentsclause. I--Ican'teventellyouwhatitsaysatthispoint. My--oﬀthetopofmyheadIwouldhavesaidwell, emolumentsareessentiallyastipend attachedtosomeoﬃcebutIdon'tknowifthat'scorrectornot. ButI'msureit's--Ithinkit's beinglitigatedrightnow. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	I'mgoingto--Idon'tknowwhythere--soI'mgoingtotryandﬁndout. We'llcomeback anotherday-
	-

	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--andmaybediscussit. YourmemostatedafatalﬂawinMueller'sinterpretationof1512(c) (2),isthatwhiletheﬁndingsobstructionsolelyasactingcorruptly. Muelleroﬀersno deﬁnitionofwhatcorruptlymeans. Myunderstandingisthatthere'snothinginthepublic recordthatshedslightonhisdeﬁnitionofobstruction. Doyouknowwhathisdeﬁnitionis? 
	BARR: 
	I--Idon'tknowwhathisdeﬁnitionis. I--Ireadabookwherepeoplewereaskingwhether someoneIthink--Idon'tknowifitwasaccuratebutwhethersomeonethepresidentwas actingwithcorruptintentand--andwhatIsayinmymemoisactuallypeopledon't understandwhatthewordcorruptlymeansinthatstatute. 
	It'sanadverbandit'snotmeanttomeanwithastateofmind. It'sactuallymeantthewayin whichtheinﬂuenceorobstructioniscommitted. That'sitsadverbialfunctioninthestatute andwhatitmeansisusingitinthe19thcenturysense. Itmeanttoinﬂuenceinawaythat 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	changessomethingthat'sgoodandﬁttosomethingthat'sbadandunﬁtnamelythe corruptionofevidenceorthecorruptionofadecisionmaker. That'swhatthewordcorruptly meansbecauseonceyoudissociateitfromthatitreallymeansveryhardtodis--discern whatitmeans. Itmeansbad. Whatdoesbadmean? 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Letmegoonbecausemytimeissolimited. Youarguethatthe--andIquotethe Constitution'splenarygrantofthosepowerstothepresidentalsoextendstotheunitary characteroftheexecutivebranchitself. Speciﬁcally,youargueandthisisaquotewhile Mueller'simmediatetargetisthepresident'sexerciseofhisdiscretionarypowers, his obstructiontheoryreachesallexercisesofprosecutorialdiscretionbythepresident's subordinatesfromtheattorneygeneraldowntothemostjuniorlineprosecutorendquote. 
	Soifthepresidentorderstheattorneygeneraltohaltacriminalinvestigationforpersonal reasonswouldthatbeprohibitedunderyourtheory? 
	BARR: 
	Prohibitedbywhat? 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	By-
	-

	BARR: 
	TheConstitution? 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	TheConstitution. 
	BARR: 
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	Ithinkitwouldbe--Ithinkitwouldbeabreachofthepresident'sdutiestofaithfullyexecute thelaw. Itwouldbeanabuseofpower. Whetheritwouldviolateastatutedependsonallof thefactsandwhatstatuteIwould--someonewouldcitemeto. ButIcertainlythinkitwould beanabuseofhispower. And--andletmejustsaythattheposition-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	WouldthatbethesamethingifanattorneygeneralﬁredU.S. attorneysforpolitical reasons? 
	BARR: 
	No,becauseU.S. attorneysarepoliticalappointments. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	AccordingtonewsreportsPresidentTrumpinterviewedyouandaskedyoutobepartofthe legalteamdefendinghimintheMuellerinvestigationtwice,ﬁrst,inthespringof'17 when theinvestigationwasjustbeginningandagainearlierthisyear. Isthatcorrect? 
	BARR: 
	No--no. He--he, Ihadoneconversationwithhimthatrelatedtothe--hisprivate representationandI--Icandescribethatforyou. Thatwas--thatwasinJune2017. That's theonlytimeImethimbeforeItalkedtohimaboutthejobofattorneygeneralwhich obviouslyisnotthesameasrepresentinghim. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	HaveyoudiscussedtheMuellerinvestigationwiththepresidentoranyoneelseintheWhite House? 
	BARR: 
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	IdiscussedtheMuellerinvestigationbutnot--notinnotinanyparticularsubstance. Icango throughmyconversationswithyouif--ifyouwant. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Well, not--notatthistimebutImaycomebacktoyou-
	-

	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--andaskyouaboutthat. Idon'twanttotakeanymoretime. Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorGrassley. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	BeforeIaskedmyﬁrstquestion, andIdon'twantyoutorespondtothis, Ijustwantyouto knowwhatmyinterestisinthetransparencyoftheMuellerreport, whenwespend$35, I don'tknowwhetherit's$25 millionor$35 million,thetaxpayers, that'sbillionsofdollars, thetaxpayersoughttoknowwhattheirmoneywasspentfor. Soifyou'vegotsome reservationsoftheofsomepartofitnotbeingpublic, Ihopethatthat'srelatedtotraditional thingsthat--ofthepublic'sbusinessthatshouldn'tbepublic,likenationalsecurity, asan example, notbeingmadepublic. Butbeyondthat,t
	Myﬁrstquestionin, asyouwouldexpectfromourconversationinmyoﬃce, '86Reagan signedtheFalseClaimsAct. Iworkedhardtogetthatpassed, especiallyprovisions empoweringwhistleblowerstohelpgovernmentidentifyfraud. Morethanadecadeago, 
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	yousaidthequitamprovisionsintheFalseClaimsActwere, yourwords, anabomination andwereunconstitutional. Yousaidyou, inyourwords, wantedtoattackthelawbutthe SupremeCourtupheldthelaw'sconstitutionality. 
	Prosecutorsfrombothsidesoftheaislehavepraisedthelawasthemosteﬀectivetool governmenthastodetectandactuallyrecoverpublicmoneylosttofraudsince1986. The lawthatwasfastin1986broughtin$56billionintothefederaltreasury. Mostofthatis becausepatrioticwhistleblowersfoundthefraudandbroughtthecasetotheattentionof thegovernment. IstheFalseClaimsActunconstitutional? 
	BARR: 
	No, senator. It'sbeenupheldbytheSupremeCourt. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	DoyouconsidertheFalseClaimsActtobeanabomination? 
	BARR: 
	No,Idon't. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	DoestheFalseClaimsActbeneﬁtthetaxpayer, speciﬁcallyitsprovisionstoempowerand protectwhistleblowers? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Ifconﬁrmed, doyoucommittonottakeanyactiontounderminetheFalseClaimsAct? Further,ifconﬁrmed, willyoucontinue(INAUDIBLE) JusticeDepartmentstaﬀandfunding levelstoproperlysupportandprosecuteFalseClaimsActcases? 
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	BARR: 
	Yes. IwilldiligentlyenforcetheFalseClaimsAct. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Now, withallthosepositiveanswers,youthinkI'dbedone, wouldn'tyou, withthat?Butlet megoon. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Now,justtoshowyouthatthereissomeforcesouttherethatI'msuspiciousaboutwithin theDepartmentofJustice, wehaveanewdepartmentofjusticeandguidancedocumentout lastyearknownastheGranstonmemo,providesalonglistofreasonsthatthedepartment canusethedismissFalseClaimsActcases. Someofthemprettydarnvague, suchas preserving, these--thesearetheirwords,preservinggovernmentresources. Justthinkofall themischiefthosethreewordscanbring. 
	Ofcourse,thegovernmentcandismiss, obviously, meritlesscases. Idon'targuewiththat. ButevenwhenthedepartmentdeclinestoparticipateinFalseClaimsActcases,the taxpayercan,inmanycases, stillrecoverﬁnancially. Soit'simportanttoallow whistleblowerstopursuecasesevenwhenthedepartmentisunabletobeinvolved. Under whatcircumstancescanorshouldtheJusticeDepartmentmovetodismissfalseclaims cases? 
	BARR: 
	Senator,Ihaven'treviewedthatmemorandum, soI'mnotfamiliarwiththethinkingofthe peopleinthis--Ithinkit'sthecivildivisionthatdidthat. ButifI'mconﬁrmed,Iwillreviewit andIam--Iwouldbegladtocomeandsitdownwithyouanddiscussitandifthereareareas you'reconcernedabout,I'dbegladtoworkwithyouonthat. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	35
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	Unlessyouﬁndthatmypresumptioniswrong,thatthere'sreasonstobesuspicious,Ihope you'lltakeintoconsiderationmyfeelingabouthow, invarioussuspiciousways, peoplethat arefacelessbureaucratscanunderminethiseﬀort. Incircumstanceswherethegovernment doesn'tinterveneinfalseclaimscases,ifconﬁrmed, willyoucommittoensuringthe departmentdoesn'tunnecessarilydismissfalseactcases? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. Iwill--Iwillenforcethelawingoodfaith. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Okay. Now, gotanactthattheJusticeDepartmentjusttalk, andIcan't, obviously, expect youtorespondspeciﬁcallytotheiract,butIuseitasanexampleoftheirun-cooperation withDepartmentofCongressionalOversight. Thisuncooperativebehaviorneedsto change. OnDecember10lastyear,thedepartmentconﬁrmedabrieﬁngforyourstaﬀ regardingAssetsForfeitureFund. Andtodothat,lastweek, January8, onJanuary7, DepartmentofJusticeoﬃceoflegal, orlegislativeaﬀairs, informedourstaﬀthattheywill nolongerprovidethebrieﬁngbecausetheyconsiderthemattercl
	Letmeexplainhowridiculousitistogetsomebodyinthisadministrationsayingthatthey don'thavetoanswerifyouarechairmanofthecommittee. WewentthroughthisinJanuary, theﬁrstmonththispresidentthiswasinoﬃcewhenhesaid, orheputoutamemo, wearen't goingtoansweranyoversightexceptforchairmanofthecommittee. Soyou'regoingto writeoﬀ500membersofCongressnotdoingoversight. 
	Sowetoldhimallaboutthisandthecoastconstitutionalcasesonthis, wegotthemup,they wroteamemoagaintwomonthslaterthatsaidthattheyweregoingtorespondtoallthe stuﬀ. Nowyou'vegotpeopleinthebowelsofthebureaucracythatare--they'restillsayingif 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	youwanttochairman,youain'tgoingtogetananswertoanything. Howridiculous. It'sour constitutionalresponseability. 
	SothenIlaidout,I'llgiveyouanexample. IsenttheJusticeDepartmentaclassiﬁedletter regardinginformationacquiredfromtheJusticeDepartmentInspectorGeneralreporton theClintoninvestigation. Thedepartmentoughttoanswerforwhattheattorneyinspector generalhasfound, butIhaven'theardtoheatpeople, notapeep, onthatyet. OnDecember 10,theJusticeDepartment, well,I'mrepeatinghere, sothequestionisdoyouunderstand thatifyouareconﬁrmed, youhaveanobligationtoensuretheJusticeDepartmentand, particularly,theFBIasaproblem, respondtocongr
	BARR: 
	Absolutely, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Doyouunderstandthatthisobligationappliesregardlessofwhetheryou'reamemberof Congressoracommitteechairman? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. Youknow,youandSenatorLeahy,Ithink, aretheonlymembersofthe committeenowwhoarewerehere27yearsagowhenIwasﬁrstconﬁrmed. ButIthinkyou willrecallthatwewereableto--wewereabletoestablishverycooperativeandproductive relationshipswithallthemembersandtrytorespondtotheirquestionsanddealwiththeir concernsandworkwiththemonprojectstheyareinterestedinandthatwillbethesame approachthatIwillbringtothejobifyouconﬁrmme. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Okay. Thenletmebespeciﬁconmylastquestiononoversight. Yourememberwhenyouare inmyoﬃce,IgaveyouasIgaveAttorneyGeneralSessions, asIgaveHolderalonglistof 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	thingsthatthedepartmenthasnotanswered. AndoneofthesewasanOctober17,2018 letter. And--andI'dliketohaveyourresponsetoansweringthatletterandrespondall outstandingandfutureoversightrequestsinatimelymanner. 
	Andthenremember, Isaidallyoucabinetpeoplecomeupheretotellusyeswhenweask youifyou'regoingtoanswerourstuﬀ. Isaidmaybeyoubettersaymaybe. Soifyouwantto savemaybenowandbereallyhonest, saymaybe. OtherwiseIhopeyou'llanswerthat October17letteroncewegetyouvotedintooﬃce. 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Throughoutyourcareer,you'veexpressedconcernswithcongressionalattemptstoenact criminaljusticereformand, attimes, advocatedforstrictermandatoryminimumsentences. And'92, underyourdirection,theDOJpublishedareportentitledTheCaseForMore Incarceration. Thisreportdeclaredthattheproblemwithourcriminaljusticesystemwas thatwewereincarceratingtoofewcriminals. 
	Morerecently,in2015,yousignedaletteropposingtheSentencingReformand CorrectionsActof2015. Thisletterstatesquiteclearlyyouroppositiontosentencing reform,particularlythelesseningofmandatoryminimumsentenceasanysortof retroactivity. TheFirstStepActwassignedbyPresidentTrump. Asattorneygeneral,itwill beyourjobtoimplementthelegislationeventhoughyou'veopposedcriminaljusticereform inthepast. WillyoucommittofullyimplementingtheFirstStepAct? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Senator. ButI--I--youknow, in1992 whenIwasattorneygeneral,theviolentcrime rateswerethehighestinAmericanhistory. Thesentenceswereexternallyshort,typically, in--inmanystatesthetimeservedfor--forrapewasthreeyears,formurder,timeservedﬁve tosevenyears. Itwas--thesystemhadbrokendownandIthink, throughaseriesof 
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	administrations, Reagan,Bush, andClinton,thelawswerechangedandwetargeted violent, chronicviolentoﬀenders, especiallythoseusingguns, andIthinkthereasonthe crimerateismuchlowertodayisbecauseofthosepolicies. 
	SoIdon'tthinkcomparingthepoliciesthatwereineﬀectin1992 tothesituationnowis--is reallyfair. AndIthink, andI'vesaid, thatrightnowwehavegreaterregularityin sentencing, there'sbroaderrecognitionthatchronicviolentoﬀendersshouldbe incarceratedforsigniﬁcantperiodsoftimetogetthemoﬀthestreets, andIthinkthetime wasrighttotakestockandmakechangestoourpenalsystembasedoncurrentexperience. SoIhavenoproblemwiththeapproachofreformingthesentencingstructure, andIwill faithfullyenforcethatlaw. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Don'ttakeitpersonallyifIraisemyvoicetoyou. I'mnotmadatyou. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	GRAHAM: 
	IfIwereyou, I'danswerhislettersjustas(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	(LAUGHTER) 
	--atipthatmayhelpyouthroughyourjob, ifyougetit. I'lltakethetimeawayfrommy secondround. I'mverycuriousabouttheconversationsyouhadaboutpersonal representationbeingattorneygeneral. YoumentionedittoSenatorFeinstein. Canyoujust kindofgiveusasummaryofwhatyouweretalkingabout? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah, soinJuneof2017, middleofJune, AmbassadorDavidFriedman, whoistheU.S. ambassadortoIsrael, whoIdidn'tknow--Iknewthathewasatop-tierlawyerinNewYork andapparentlyafriendofthepresident's. Hereachedouttome, andwetalkedoneevening, andhesaidthathe--well, myunderstandingwashewas--hewasinterestedinﬁnding 
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	lawyersthatcouldaugmentthedefenseteam. Andfailingthat, hewantedtoidentify Washingtonlawyerswhohadexper--youknow, broadexperiencethat--whoseperspective mightbeusefultothepresident's. Andheaskedmeanumberofquestionslike,youknow, whathaveyousaidaboutthepresidentpublicly,doyouhaveanyconﬂicts, andsoforth. And ItoldhimthatIdidn'tthinkIcouldtakethison, thatIhadjusttakenonabigcorporate clientthatwasveryimportanttomeandIexpectedalotofwork. AndIsaidatmypointin lifeIreallydidn'twanttotakeonthisburdenandthatIactuallypre
	AndIsaidthatI--mywifeandIweresortoflookingforwardtoabitofrespiteandIdidn't wanttostickmyheadintothatmeatgrinder. HeaskedmeifIwouldnonethelessmeet,you know,justbrieﬂygooverthenextdaytomeetwiththepresident. AndIsaidsure,I'llgoand meetwiththepresident, andhebroughtmeoverandwassqueez
	ingmein. Itlookedtome likeitwasbeforethemorningstaﬀmeetingbecausepeopleweregroupingbythedoortoget in, andIwentin. Andhewasthere,theambassadorwasthere, satthroughthemeeting. It wasaverybriefmeetingwhereessentiallythepresidentwantedtoknow--hesaidoh, you knowBobMueller. HowwelldoyouknowBobMueller?AndItoldhimhowwellIknewBob Muellerandour--andhow, youknow,theBarrsandMuellersweregoodfriendsandwould begoodfriendswhenthisisallover, andsoforth. Andhewasinterestedinthat, wantedto know,youknow, whatIthoughtaboutMuelle
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Well,Itriedthatonce. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
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	GRAHAM: 
	Youdidbetterthan(INAUDIBLE). 
	BARR: 
	Well,Ididn'thear--hearfromhimuntil,youknow,later,butaboutsomethingdiﬀerent, whichwastheattorneygeneralposition. 
	GRAHAM: 
	(OFF-MIC) 
	LEAHY: 
	Thankyou. Mr. Barr,goodtoseeyouagainw--AsyoumentionedSenatorGrassleyandI werehereatyourhearinganumberofyearsago. Letmegobackevenbeforethat. 
	46yearsagoIwasn'tontheSenate. Iwasstate'sattorneyinVermontandIwatchedwitha greatdealofinteresttheElliotRichardsonhearings;hehadbeennominatedtobeattorney generalamidstofWatergate. Hemadeseveralcommitmentstothecommitteeincluding appointingaspecialprosecutorandhepromisedtoprotecthisindependence. AndIasone whohadtotalindependenceaselectedprosecutorinVermont,Ithoughthowimportantit wastohavethatsameindependenceatthenationallevel. 
	AndMr. Richardsonsaiditwasnecessarytocreatethemaximumpossibledegreeofpublic conﬁdenceintheintegrityoftheprocess. I'veneverforgottenthat. 
	Ithinktheintegrityofourinstitutionsisjustasmuchatrisktoday. PresidentTrumphas madeitclearheviewstheJusticeDepartmentasanextensionofhispoliticalpower. He's calledonittotargethisopponents. HeobsessesovertheRussianinvestigationwhichlooms overhispresidency, maydeﬁneit. Heattacksthespecialcounselalmostdaily. Heﬁredboth thepreviousFBIdirectorandattorneygeneralfornothandlingtheinvestigationashe pleased. 
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	Thattellsmetheruleoflawcannolongerbetakenforgranted. Soifconﬁrmedthe presidentisgoingtoexpectyoutodohisbidding. Icanalmostguaranteeyouhewillcross thelineatsomepoint. That'swhythecommitmentsyoumakeheretodayjustlikethoseI watchedElliotRichardsonmakeyearsagomattergreatly. 
	Sowillyoucommitifconﬁrmedtobothseekingandfollowingtheadviceofthe Department'scareerethicsoﬃcialsonwhetheryoumustrecusefromthespecialcounsel's investigation? 
	BARR: 
	I--Iwillseektheadviceofthecareerethicspersonnelbutundertheregulations, Imakethe decisionastheheadoftheagencyastomyownrecusal. SoI--Icertainlywouldconsultwith themandattheendoftheday, Iwouldmakeadecisioningoodfaithbasedonthelawsand thefactsthatareevidentatthattime. 
	LEAHY: 
	Samethingifyouaretalkingaboutaconﬂictofinterest? 
	BARR: 
	Well, no. Someconﬂictsasyouknoware--aremandatory. 
	LEAHY: 
	I'mthinkingofwhatAttorneyGeneralSessionswhenaskedasimilarquestionhesaidhe willseekandfollowtheadvice, seekandfollowtheadviceoftheDepartmentofJustice's designatedethicsoﬃcials. Soletmeaskyoumaybeinadiﬀerentway. 
	Iknowyoupromisetonotinterferewiththespecialcounsel. Arethereanycircumstances thatwouldcauseyoutoterminatetheinvestigationoranycomponentofitorsigniﬁcantly restrictitsfunding? 
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	BARR: 
	Underthe--undertheregulations,BobMuellercouldonlybeterminatedforgoodcauseand I--franklyit'sunimaginabletomethatBobwouldeverdoanythingthatgaverisetogood cause. Butintheoryif--ifsomethinghappenedthatwasgoodcauseformeitwouldactually takemorethanthat. Itwouldhavetobeprettygraveandthepublicinterestwould essentiallyhavetocompelitbecauseIbelieverightnowtheoverarchingpublicinterestisto allowhimtoﬁnish. 
	LEAHY: 
	I--IwouldagreewiththatbutIalsothinkoverthepast18 monthsyouhaveratherharshly prejudgedtheinvestigationinsomeofyourwritings. 
	BARR: 
	WellI--I,youknow,I--Idon'tseethatatall, senator. Whenyoustripawayalotofthe rhetoricthetwothingsthathavebeenthrownupasmesortofbeingantagonistictothe investigationaretwothings. 
	One, averymildcommentImadethatgee, Iwishtheteamhadbeenmorebalanced. I wasn'tcriticiz
	ingMueller. IbelievethatprosecutorsandIthinkhewouldagree,theycan handlethecaseprofessionallywhatevertheirpoliticsare. They--youknow, agood prosecutorcanleavetheirpoliticsatthedoorandgoinanddothejobandIthinkthat'swhat JusticeDepartmentprosecutorsdoingeneral. 
	LEAHY: 
	Butyoualsoareverycritical-
	-

	BARR: 
	But-
	-
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	LEAHY: 
	--oftheRussianprobeandImeanIcan'tthinkofanythingthatwould--inyourmemofor examplethatwouldjumpaboutmoreforthispresidentbecauseofhiscommitmenttoit. I askthatbecausesomehavesaidonbothsidesoftheaislethatitlookedlikeajobapplica-applicationandsothat'swhatIwantyoutoreferto. 
	-

	BARR: 
	Well,youknowthat'sludicrous. IfIwantedthejobandwasgoingafterthejobthereare manymoredirectwaysofmebringingmyselftothepresident'sattentionthanwritingan 18-pagelegalmemorandum-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	Or--orcriticiz
	e-
	-

	BARR: 
	--sendingittotheDepartmentofJusticeandroutingittoother-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	Butalsopubliclycriticiz
	Butalsopubliclycriticiz
	ingtheRussianprobe. 

	BARR: 
	HowhaveIcriticiz
	edtheRussianpo--probe? 
	LEAHY: 
	Youdon'thaveanycriticismoftheRussianprobe? 
	BARR: 
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	Notatall. IthinkI--IbelievetheRussiansinterferedorattemptedtointerferewiththe electionandIthinkwehavetogettothebottomofit. 
	LEAHY: 
	Soyouwouldbeinfavorofreleasingtheinvestigativereportwhenit'scompleted? 
	BARR: 
	AsI'vesaidI'minfavorofasmuchtransparencyastherecanbeconsistentwiththerules andthelaw. 
	LEAHY: 
	Doyouseeacasewherethepresidentcouldclaimexecutiveprivilegeandsaythatpartsof thereportcouldnotbereleased? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Idon'thaveaclueastowhatwouldbeinthereport. Thereportcouldendupbeing youknow, notverybig. Idon'tknowwhat'sgoingtobeinthereport. Intheoryif--ifthere wasexecutiveprivilegematerialtowhichanexecutiveprivilegeclaimcouldbemadeit mightca--youknowsomeonemightraiseaclaimofexecutiveprivilege. 
	LEAHY: 
	ThatwouldbeprettydiﬃcultfollowingU.S. versusNixonwhentheSupremeCourt unanimouslyrejectedPresidentNixon'sclaimsofexecutiveprivilegeovertheWatergate tapes. ButI--Iaskbecausethepresidentsattorney, Mr. Giuliani, saidthepresidentshould beabletocorrecttheMuellerreportbeforeanypublicrelease. 
	So, inotherwords,hecouldtakehisinvestigativereport,puthisownspinonitandcorrectit beforeit'sreleased. Doyoucommitthatwouldnothappenifyouareattorneygeneral? 
	BARR: 
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	Thatwillnothappen. 
	LEAHY: 
	Thankyou. Youhad--whenyou'reAG,IrememberthiswellbecauseIwashereintheSenate atthetimeyouencouragedPresidentGeorgeH. W. Bushtopardonallsixindividualswho weretargetedIran-Contra. Theindependentprosecutorinvestigatingthematterlabeled thatacover-up. 
	NowyouandItalkedaboutthisinmyoﬃceandIappreciateyoucomingby. Ifoundthe conversationthetwoofushadtobewellworthwhile. Doyoubelieveapresidentcould lawfullyissueapardoninexchangefortherecipient'spromisetonotincriminatehim? 
	BARR: 
	No,thatwouldbeacrime. 
	LEAHY: 
	Thankyou. In1990youarguethatCongressappropriationpowerisnotanindependent sourceofcongressionalpowertocontroltheallocationofgovernmentresources. Onlythree committeesintheSenatehaveavicechairman, appropriationsoneofthem. Obviously, as vicechairmanIkindoflookedatthat. 
	Youclaimifapresidentﬁndsnoappropriatedfundswithinagivencategory, hemayuse fundsfromanothercategoryaslongasbothcategoriesareinhisconstitutionalpurview. NowthisisvicechairmanofAppropriationsCommitteedon'tbesurprisedIdisagree. 
	CongresshaspowerofthepurseArticle1Section9. IbelieveConstitutionisoneofthe fundamentalandfoundationalchecksandbalancesontheExecutiveBranch. Sodoyou believethepresidentcanignoreCongressappropriationsallocations, conditionsand restrictionsinlaw, justignorethemandtakethemoneyand-
	-

	BARR: 
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	Not--notasageneralproposition. ButIdo--that--thatwasa-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	Ageneralprop-
	-

	BARR: 
	Iactuallythoughtthatwasagoodlawreviewarticle. Igaveitasaspeechanditwasreallya thoughtpieceandwhatIwasreallysayingwasandIsayrightupfrontthatthemoreI thoughtabouttheappropriationspower,themoreconfusedIgotandIwasjustlayingouta-apotentialtemplatewhichisthis. Peoplefrequentlysayyouknowthepowertospend moneyonthisdivisionorthismissilesystemispartofthepowerofthepurseandwhatIwas actuallysayingwasyouknowactuallywhatright--whatthepowerbeingexercisethereisthe substantivepowerthattheCongresshastoraisearmiesand--andit'sn
	-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	Italsohasspeciﬁcappropriationsonagricultureoron(INAUDIBLE). Imean,forexample, couldapresidentjustbuildawallalongoursouthernborderbecausehewantedtoandjust takethemoneywhetherappropriatedornot?Whatabouteminentdomain? 
	BARR: 
	Whatabouteminentdomain? 
	LEAHY: 
	Well,ifyou'regoingtobuildawallyou'vegottotakeawholelotoflandawayfrom landowners-
	-

	BARR: 
	No. 
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	LEAHY: 
	--inTexasandelsewhere. 
	BARR: 
	Well,youknow,you'dhavetoshowmewhatstatuteisbeinginvokedandalsowhat appropriationsisbeingused. I--Ican'tanswerthatintheabstract. 
	LEAHY: 
	Soyou'resayingthepresidentthoughcanhavethepowertogointomoneyevenifthe Congresshasappropriateditforadiﬀerentpurpose? 
	BARR: 
	No,I--Ididn'tsaythat. Butsomeappro-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	Doyoumeanthat? 
	BARR: 
	No,Idon'tmeanthat. I'msayingthatyouknowtherearemoniesthatthepresidentmay havepowertoshiftbecauseofstatutoryauthority. 
	LEAHY: 
	ButthatwouldhavebeenbecauseCongressgavehimthatauthority. 
	BARR: 
	Right. 
	LEAHY: 
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	Notbecausehehasitautomatically. 
	BARR: 
	I'm--I'mnottakingthatpositionbecauseIsaidmy--mylawreview, itwaspublishedasalaw reviewarticleanditwasathoughtpieceexploringwhatlimitstheremightbetothe appropriationspowerandwhat--where--whereCongress'spowercomesfromincertain areas. 
	LEAHY: 
	Thankyou. Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Justafollowuponthat, realquick, andIwon'ttakethisagainstSenatorCornyn. Didthe Article2 powers, theinherentauthorityofthecommander-in-chief, givehimtheabilityto takeappropriateddollarsfromtheDepartmentofDefenseandbuildawall? 
	BARR: 
	Ican'tan--withoutlookingatthestatute,Ireallycouldn'tanswerthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	I'mnottalkingaboutastatute. I'mtalkingabouttheinherentauthorityofthepresidentas commander-in-chief. 
	BARR: 
	That'sthekindofquestionIwouldgoOLCtoanswer. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. Getbackwithusonthat. SenatorCornyn. 
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	CORNYN: 
	Well,Mr. Chairman, letmecongratulateyouonyourelectionaschairmanoftheJudiciary Committeeandtellyouwelookforwardtoworkingwithyouandsupportingthis committee'seﬀorts. Thankyouforconveningtoday'shearing. AndIwanttoexpressmy profoundandsincerethankstothenominee,Mr. Barr,foragreeingtoserveasecondtime asattorneygeneral. Inotedinyourstatementyousaiditwas27yearsagothatyousatinthis chairandwentthroughyourﬁrstconﬁrmationhearing. Andtome,thatsaysalotaboutyour characterandyourcommitmenttotheruleoflawthatyouwouldbewilling
	BARR: 
	Thankyou, senator. 
	CORNYN: 
	Thankyouto--thankyoutoyourfamily, aswell. Tome, theattorneygeneralisoneofthe mostchallengingcabinetoﬃcestoholdbecause, asyoupointoutinyouropening statement,youarecommittedtotheruleoflawandenforcingthelawsoftheland,butyou arealsoapoliticalappointeeofapresident. Ifyouareservinganothercabinetposition, certainlyyou'recommittedtoimplementingthepresident'sagendaortheagendaofan administration, butasattorneygeneralthatisnotanunequivocalcommitmentbecause theremaybesomethingsthattheadministrationwantsyoutodothatyouca
	BARR: 
	That'sright, senator. OneofthereasonsIultimatelydecidedthatIwouldacceptthis position, ifitwasoﬀeredtome, wasbecauseIwas--IfeelthatI'minapositiontobe independent. Youknow, overtheyearsalotofpeoplehave--somepoliticianshavecalledme upsaying,youknow,I'mthinkingofgoingfortheattorneygeneralpositioninthis 
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	administrationandsoforth, andIsayyou'recraz
	ybecauseifyouviewyourselfashavinga politicalfuturedowntheroad,don'ttakethejobbecauseifyoutakethisjob, youhavetobe ready,youknow,for--tomakedecisionsandspendallyourpoliticalcapitalandhaveno futurebecauseyouhavetodo--youhavetohavethatfreedomofaction. And--andIfeelI'm inapositioninlifewhereIcandotherightthingandnotreallycareabouttheconsequences inthesensethatIdon't--Icantrulybeindependent. 
	CORNYN: 
	Mr. Barr, thinkingbackabouttherunuptothe2016 electionwherethenomineeofboth politicalpartiesforpresidentoftheUnitedStatesendedupbeinginvestigatedbytheFBI, canyouthinkofanyprecedentinAmericanhistorywherethat'soccurredthatyouknowof? 
	BARR: 
	No,Ican't, senator. 
	CORNYN: 
	AndthinkingbacktoJamesComey'spressconferenceofJuly7,2016, wherehetookthe stepoftalkingabouttheevidenceagainstMrs. Clinton,talkingaboutthelegalstandardthat wouldapplyastowhethershemightormightnotbeindictedforcommittingacrimeunder theEspionageAct,haveyoueverseenasituationwhereanFBIdirectorwouldusurpthe authorityoftheDepartmentofJusticetomakethatchargingdecision, andholdapress conference, andtalkaboutallofthederogatoryinformationthattheinvestigationhad gleanedagainstapotentialdefendant, andthensaynowwe're--we'
	BARR: 
	No,I'veneverseenthat, andIthoughtitwasalittlebit--morethanalittlebit--itwasweird atthetime,butmyinitialreactiontoitwasIthinkAttorneyGeneralLynchhadsaid something--youknow, shewasunderpressuretorecuseherself, Ithinkbecauseoftheso
	-
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	calledtarmacmeeting, andIthinkshesaidsomethinglikeshewasgoingtodefertotheFBI. Somyinitialreactiontothatwholethingwas, well, shemusthaveagreed, oritmusthave beentheplanthathewasgoingtomakethedecisionandgooutandannouncehisdecision, but-
	-

	CORNYN: 
	Underthenormalrules, iftheattorneygeneralhasaconﬂictofinterest-
	-

	BARR: 
	Itwouldgotothedeputy. 
	CORNYN: 
	Itwouldgotothedeputy. 
	BARR: 
	Correct. 
	CORNYN: 
	NottotheFBIdirectortomakethatdecision, correct? 
	BARR: 
	Right. Sothat'swhyIthoughtitwasverystrange,butIthinklateritbecameclearer,tothe extentthereisanythingclearaboutit,thatIdon'tthinkAttorneyGeneralLynchhad essentiallydelegatedthatauthoritytothedirector. AndIthinkJimComeyisa, asI'vesaid, isanextremelygiftedmanwhohasservedthecountrywithdistinctioninmanyroles. ButI thoughtthattotheextentheactuallyannouncedadecisionwaswrong. Andtheotherthing is,ifyou'renotgoingtoindictsomeone,thenyoudon'tstandupthereandunloadnegative informationabouttheperson. That'snotthewaytheDe
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	CORNYN: 
	IwasshockedwhenMr. Comeylaterwrotealettersayingthatbasedonthediscoveryof ClintonemailsontheWeinerlaptopthattheywerereopeningtheinvestigationthatheget alreadyannouncedclosed. Andthenﬁnally,justdaysbeforethegeneralelection, November6, 2016, saidwedidn'tﬁndanythinginthe--onthelaptopthatwouldchangemy conclusionsbasedonthepressconferenceofJuly6. Didyoulikewiseﬁndthattobean extraordinary--Iwouldusethewordbiz
	arre--butcertainlyunprecedentedevent? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,thewholesequence, though, wasveryherky-jerkyandbiz ButatthattimeIwasa 
	arre. littleovercontrarianinthatIbasicallytookthepositionthatoncehedidwhathedidinJuly andsaidthethingwasoverandthenfoundoutitwasn'tover,he,youknow,hehadno choicebuttocorrecttherecord. SoIsaidthathehadnochoicebuttodowhathedid. Butit sortofshowsyouwhathappenswhenyoustartdisregardingthenormalproceduresand establishedpractice,isthatyousortofdigyourselfadeeperanddeeperhole. 
	CORNYN: 
	WhyisitthattheDepartmentofJusticerules, whichalsoapplytotheFBI, makeitclearthat ourchieflawenforcementagenciesinthiscountryshouldnotgettangledupinelection politics?Aretherepoliciesinplacethattrytoinsulatetheinvestigationsandthedecisionsof theDepartmentofJusticeandFBIfromgettinginvolvedinelections? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator,thereare. 
	CORNYN: 
	Andwhy--whyisthat? 
	BARR: 
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	Well, obviouslybecausetheincumbentpartyhastheirhandsonthele--amongother reasons,theyhavetheirhandsontheleversofthelawenforcementapparatusofthe country, andyoudon'twantitusedagainsttheopposingpoliticalparty. 
	CORNYN: 
	Andthat'swhathappenedwhenthecounterintelligenceinvestigationoftheTrump campaignbeganinlateJulyandcontinuedonthrough--well,presumablytoDirector Comey'sﬁringandbeyond. 
	BARR: 
	Well,I'mnotinapositionto,youknow, makeajudgmentaboutitbecauseIdon'tknow whatthepredicatewasforit. I--I--IthinkIsaid,youknow,it'sstrangetohavea counterintelligenceinvestigationofapresident, butI'mnot--youknow,Ijustdon'tknow whatthepredicateis, andifI'mconﬁrmed,IassumeI'llﬁndout. 
	CORNYN: 
	RodRosenstein'smemorecommendingtheterminationofJamesComeyasFBIdirector wasdatedMay9, 2017. It'sentitled, "RestoringPublicConﬁdenceintheFBI." Itakeit you'vereadthememo, anddoyouagreewithitsconclusion? 
	BARR: 
	IcompletelyagreewithRodRosenstein. AndIthoughttheimportantpointhemade,from mystandpoint, wasnottheparticularusurpationthatoccurred, butitwas, asIthinkhesays, thatDirectorComeyjustdidn'trecogniz
	ethatthatwasamistake. And--andsoitwasgoing topotentiallybeacontinuingproblemthathisappreciationofhisrole, vis-a-vistheattorney general. 
	CORNYN: 
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	AsIsaid, thetitleofthememois, "RestoringPublicConﬁdenceintheFBI." Doyouagree thatrestorationofpublicconﬁdenceintheFBIandDepartmentofJusticeasapoliticalor nonpoliticallawenforcementorganiz
	ationisimportant-
	-

	BARR: 
	It'scritical. 
	CORNYN: 
	--andneeded? 
	BARR: 
	It'scritical, andthat'soneofthereasonsI'msittinghere. I'dliketohelpwiththatprocess. 
	CORNYN: 
	Well,Mr. Barr,Ithinkyou'reuniquelyqualiﬁedtodothat, andIwishyouGodspeed. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou, senator. 
	CORNYN: 
	Itcouldn'tbemoreimportant. Thankyou. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	DURBIN: 
	Mr. Barr, we'veneverhadachancetomeet,butIwelcomeyoutothiscommittee. 
	BARR: 
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	Thankyou. 
	DURBIN: 
	Youseemlikearationalperson. I'dliketoaskyouaquestion. WhenyouconsiderwhatJeﬀ SessionswentthroughastheattorneygeneralforPresidentDonaldTrump, wherehewas subjectedtounrelentingcriticism,primarilybecause, asamatterofconscience, hedecided hehadaconﬂictofinterestandshouldremovehimselffromanydecisionsbythespecial counselconcerningtheRussiainvestigation, whenyouconsiderthatthispresidenthas lashedoutonapersonalbasisagainstfederaljudgeswhoruledagainsthisadministration, whenyouconsiderthecriticismwhichhehasleveledatt
	BARR: 
	Well,becauseIlovethedepartment, Ilove--and--andallitscomponents,includingtheFBI. Ithinktheyarecriticalinstitutionsthatareessentialtopreservingtheruleoflaw, whichis the--theheartbeatofthiscountry. AndI'dliketothinkthat--thattherewasbipartisan consensuswhenIwaslastinthispositionthatIactedwith--withindependenceand professionalismandintegrityandIhadverystrongandproductiverelationshipsacrossthe aisle, which--whichwereimportant,Ithink,totryingtogetsomethingsdone. AndIfeel thatI'minapositioninlifewhereIcanprovidet
	DURBIN: 
	Anumberofmycolleaguesonbothsideshaveasked, andIbetyouwillhearmore, questionsalongthelineofwhatwouldbeyourbreakingpoint, whenwouldyoupickupand leave?WhenisyourJimMattismomentwhenthepresidenthasaskedyoutodosomething thatyouthinkisinconsistentwithyouroath?Doesn'tthatgiveyousomepauseasyou embarkonthisjourney? 
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	BARR: 
	ItmightgivemepauseifIwas45 or50yearsold,butitdoesn'tbepauserightnowbecause I--Ihad--Ihadverygoodlife, Ihaveaverygoodlife,Iloveit,butIalsowanttohelpinthis circumstanceandIamnotgoingtodoanythingthatIthinkiswrongandIwillnotbebullied intodoinganythingIthinkiswrongbyanybody, whetheritbeeditorialboardsorCongress orthepresident. I'mgoingtodowhatIthinkisright. 
	DURBIN: 
	Youhaveaverynicefamilybehindyou. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	DURBIN: 
	I'mgladyouintroducedthem. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou, senator. 
	DURBIN: 
	AndIdon'twanttogiveyourgrandsonanycareeradvice. He'sreceivedquiteabitthis morningalready,butheoughttoconsider, atleastforsomebalance,beingapublic defender. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Oneofthethingsthatyoualludedtoasamajorissueofconcernisimmigration. I'mglad yousaidit. Ourgovernmentissetshutdownnowovertheissuesofbordersecurityand immigration, andtheattorneygeneralplaysacentralrole, whichmanypeopledon'tknowas theylookattheDepartmentofHomelandSecurityformostoftheactionontheissueof 
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	immigration. IwassurprisedattheexitinterviewbyGeneralKellywhenhesaid, andI'm paraphrasing,thatAttorneyGeneralSessionswasresponsibleforthez
	ero-tolerancepolicy thatwasannouncedinmid-2018 andthatitwasbecauseofthatpolicy,thatwasoneofthe reasonswhyhewasbeingaskedtoleave. That'stheﬁrstI'deverheard. Areyoufamiliar withthez
	ero-tolerancepolicy? 
	BARR: 
	Generally, senator,yes. 
	DURBIN: 
	Icantellyouthathewasaneﬀorttotakeescortedchildren,infants,toddlers, andchildren, andforciblyremovethemfromtheirparentsattheborder. Thispolicybyourgovernment separatedupto2,800ofthosechildrenandputthemintothesystem, thesamesystemas unaccompaniedchildren. Theresultswerehorrible. Isawthemﬁrsthand. Andyouhave alludedinyouropeningstatementtostoppingpeoplefromcrashingthroughtheborder, breakingandﬂoutingthelaws. Thoseyoungchildren,forthemostpart, werebeingbrought tothiscountrybytheirparentstoseekasylum. Youcanpres
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. Youcan. 
	DURBIN: 
	Soseparatingthosechildrenfromtheirparentsinaneﬀort, asAttorneyGeneralSessions explained,togettoughwithfamiliespresentingthemselvesattheborder, wasapolicy decisiononhispart. Doyouagreewiththatpolicydecision? 
	BARR: 
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	Well,I'mnotsureIknowallthedetailsbecauseoneofthedisadvantagesIhaveisI'mnotin thedepartmentand--and--anddon'treallyhavethesamebackingIdidintermsof informationthatIhadlasttime. ButmyunderstandingisthatDHSmakesthedecisionasto whothey'regoingtoapprehendandhold. Now, youcanclaimasylum,butthatdoesn't meanyoucanwaltzintothecountryfreely. 
	DURBIN: 
	No, ofcoursenot. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. Andyouhavetobeprocessed. Andmyunderstandingisamajorityofpeopledonot qualifyforasylum. ButDHSmakesthedecisionwhotoholdand--andchargewithacrime ofillegalentryandthentheyreferittotheDepartmentofJustice. AndIbelievethe department'spolicywhentheysay--whenthedepartmentsaysaz
	erotolerance, they're sayingwhateverDHSreferstousinthewayofillegalentryprosecutions, we'llprosecute. Now--nowwhatisbeingdone,becauseIthinktheadministrationishaschangethepolicy,is DHSisnotreferringforprosecutionfamilyunitsthatwouldleadtotheseparationof childrenfromthefamilyunit. 
	DURBIN: 
	Itistruethatthepresidentandtheadministrationabandonedthepolicyaftertherewasa publicreactiontotheseparationofthesechildren. I'mconcerned,Iwanttogobacktoyour UniversityofVirginiaMillerCenterspeech, whichis-
	-

	BARR: 
	It'sagem,isn'tit? 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	DURBIN: 
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	It'saclassic. Anditgoesbackmanyyears, butyoudescribedyourprevioustenureasthe attorneygeneralandyousaid, "Afterbeingappointed,Iquicklydevelopedsomeinitiatives ontheimmigrationissuethatwouldcreatemoreborderpatrols, changeimmigrationrules, streamlineprocessing. ItwouldfurthermoreputtheBushcampaignaheadofthe Democratsontheimmigrationissue, whichIsawasextremelyimportantin1992. Ifeltthat astrongpolicyonimmigrationwasnecessaryforthepresidenttocarryCalifornia, akey stateandtheelection." That'saprettyrevealingstatem
	BARR: 
	Yeah, andthere'snothingwrongwiththatbecauseas--asI'vesaid, youknow,theattorney-and--andI'vespokenonthisanumberoftimes, there'ssortofthreerolestheattorney generalplays. Oneistheenforcerofthelaw, andthat,theroleoftheattorneygeneral,isto keeptheenforcementprocesssacrosanctfrompoliticalinﬂuence. 
	-


	Thesecondoneisaslegaladvisor. AndthatisintheJudiciaryActof1789, legaladvisorto thepresidentandthecabinet. AndthereIsaytheattorneygeneral'sroleistoprovide,you know, unvarnished, straightfromtheshoulderlegaladviceastowhattheattorneygeneral believesistherightanswerunderthelaw. Andthenthethirdroleisthepolicyrole, whichis lawenforcementpolicy, whichincludesimmigrationpolicy, andthereyouareapolitical subordinateofthepresident. Andit'sokayto--toproposepoliciesthatarepolitically advantageous. 
	Thesecondoneisaslegaladvisor. AndthatisintheJudiciaryActof1789, legaladvisorto thepresidentandthecabinet. AndthereIsaytheattorneygeneral'sroleistoprovide,you know, unvarnished, straightfromtheshoulderlegaladviceastowhattheattorneygeneral believesistherightanswerunderthelaw. Andthenthethirdroleisthepolicyrole, whichis lawenforcementpolicy, whichincludesimmigrationpolicy, andthereyouareapolitical subordinateofthepresident. Andit'sokayto--toproposepoliciesthatarepolitically advantageous. 
	DURBIN: 
	Well-
	-

	BARR: 
	--ButIhavetosaythat, youknow,thatwascasualconversation. ThepointwasIwas pursuingastrongimmigrationpolicyevenwhenIwasdeputylongbefore,youknow, the electionwasonthehoriz Andintravelingaroundthecountry, visitingtheborder, paying 
	on. 
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	alotofvisitstoCalifornia,IsawhowimportanttheissuewasandIthoughtthe administrationhadtobemoreresponsivetoit. Andyes,therewasapoliticalbeneﬁttoit. 
	DURBIN: 
	Ijusthaveashorttimeleft. Thechairman, ournewchairman, congratulations,Graham, noted10yearsofworkbyanumberofusonthiscommitteeonabipartisanbasistodeal withcriminalsentencingandprisonreform, andtheFirstStepActsignedbythepresident aroundChristmas,Ithink,isasigniﬁcantdeparture. Ilearned, asmanyhave,thatthe approach,thegettoughapproachthatweimposedwith100to1 sentencingdisparity betweencrackandpowderdidn'twork,didnotwork. 
	Thenumberofdrugsbeingsoldonthestreetincreased. Thepriceofthedrugswentdown. Thepeoplebeingincarceratedwentupdramaticallyandwelearnedthehardwaythatwas notthewaytodealwiththeissue, andnowwe'retryingtocleanup10yearslaterormore, 25 yearslaterfromthe100to1disparity. 
	Ivotedtheonethewrongwayon100to1. NowIknow,inretrospect. You'vemadesome hardlinestatementsaboutthisissueincriminalsentencinginthepastandmanyofus believe, onabipartisanbasis, we'vegottolookatthisanewandnotrepeatthesemistakes again. SoIwouldliketohearyourassurancethatyouare--youhavelearnedasIhavethat there'sabetterway, couldbeamoreeﬀectiveway, andthat, asattorneygeneral, youwill helpusimplementtheFirstStepActanddesignthesecondstep. 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely, senator. Frommyperspective,theverydraconianpenaltiesoncrackwereput intoplaceinitiallybecausewhenthecrackepidemicﬁrsthititwaslikenuclearweapons goingoﬀintheinnercity. And--andasIthinkyou'llrecall, alotofthecommunityleadersat thattimeweresayingyou'vegotto, youknow,thisiskillingus. Youhavetodosomething. 
	Sotheinitialreactionofdraconianpenaltieswasactually, youknow, tryingto--tryingto helpthosecommunities. Andovertimeandnow, thesameleadersaresayingtousthishas 
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	beendevastating. Youknow,generationaftergenerationof--ofourpeoplearebeing incarcerated--havebeenincarceratedandlosttheirlivesbecauseofthisand--and--andyou havetochangethepolicy. And--and--andIthinkthatthatis--weshouldlistentothesame peoplewewerelisteningtobefore. 
	I--Isupportedgenerallystrongpenaltiesondrugsbecause, notjustcrack,becauseIfeltthe moneyinvolvedwassohighthat,youknow,youneededsomethingtocounteractthat. Ialso saidrepeatedlyovertheyearsofthedrugwarthatIfeltthattheheadofthesnakeisoutside thecountryandtheplacetoﬁghtthisaggressivelyisatthesourcemorethanonthestreet corner. AndIusedtosaywecould, youknow, stackofgenerationaftergenerationofpeople inprisonandit'llstillkeeponcoming. 
	AndsoIalwaysfeltthat--and--andIsupportaadjustmenttothesesentencesandthesafety valveandsoforth. Tome,thecorollaryiswehavetoreallystartthinkingandusingallour nationalformsofpowerin--inthesenseofourdiplomacyandour--andour,youknow, economicleverageandsoforthtogetbetterresultsoverseas. Soforexample, now, fentanyl issortofthenewcrack,fentanylandfentanylanaloguesaresortofthenewcrackand they'recominginfromChina. So-
	-

	DURBIN: 
	--AcrosstheMexicanborder. 
	BARR: 
	Correct. 
	DURBIN: 
	Atportsofentry,90percent. 
	BARR: 
	Mm-hmm. Sothat'salong-windedanswertoyourquestion, whichisIunderstandthat thingshavechangedsince1992. I--I, youknow,Iheldonalittlebitlongertokeepingstrong 
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	sentences, maybe,thanothers. PartofthatwasIwasn'tinvolvedinthebusinessanymore. I wasn'tatJusticeDepartmentlookingatupreportsandstudieslearningaboutdiﬀerent thingsinthecountry. Iwas,youknow, arguingwiththeFCCabouttelecommunications rules. So-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	--Mr. Barr? 
	BARR: 
	Yes? 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thatwasagreatansweranditwaslong-winded. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorLee. 
	LEE: 
	Mr. Barr-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	--Afterthis, we'llbreaktill12:15 forlunchandkindofabreak. 
	LEE: 
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	Mr. Barr, thankyouverymuchforyourwillingnesstospendtimewithustodayandyour willingnesstobeconsideredforthisimportantpositionyetagain. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	LEE: 
	Greattohaveyourfamilyhere. AndIcan'thelpbutcomment. Alotofpeoplehavetalked aboutLiamtoday, probablymorethananyofhisotherfriendsorclassmates, peopleofhis agecohort. Peoplearethinkingaboutwhathemightdoforaliving. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Unlikesomeofmycolleagueswhohavesuggestedmedicine, Iwanttojustsortofsuggest whatI'vesuggestedtomythreechildren, whichisthatI'mnotgoingtopushthemintoany careerchoice, whichinourfamilymeansthatyoucanbeanykindoflawyeryouwant. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	JustkeepthatinmindwithLiam. I'dliketotalktoyouﬁrstaboutcivilassetforfeiture. As youknow, civilforfeitureandcriminalforfeiturearetwoverydiﬀerentthings,twovery diﬀerentspeciesofgovernmenttakingsomeone'sasset. Withcriminalforfeiture, ofcourse, thegovernment'sabilitytotakesomethingawayispredicateduponaconvictionofacrime. Withcivilassetforfeiturethathappensevenintheabsenceofaconviction. Therearesome seriousquestions, ofcourse, regardingthelegalityandtheconstitutionalityofcivilasset forfeiture, andJusticeThomas, 
	edwhatyou describedasthespeedtrapmentalityofforfeiture. Yourpointwasthat,quote, agencies shouldnotfeelthatjustbecausetheyseiz
	emoneytheyaregoingtogetthemoney, close quote. 
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	Nowsince1991,I'veseenourgovernment, ourlawenforcementagencies, actuallymove moretowardthissortofspeedtrapmentalityratherthanawayfromit, asmanyofuswould havepreferred. Toooften, lawenforcementagencieshavetoostronganincentivetouse civilassetforfeitureinawaythatlinestheirowncoﬀersoutsideoftherelevant appropriationsprocess. Soletmejustaskyouthequestion,doyou--doyouthinkthatthe speedtrapmentalityisaproblem?Andifso,isthatsomethingthatyou'llworktoaddress withintheDepartmentofJusticeifyou'reconﬁrmed? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Ithinkconstantvigilanceisnecessarybecause, youknow,thereareincentivesthere thatshouldbeofconcernin--in--inadministeringthelaw. AndIunderstandthatthereare somehorr--youknow, peoplewhoareconcernedaboutit,havesomehorrorstories. The peopleattheJusticeDepartmenthavebeentryingtoclampdown. IthinkAttorneyGeneral Sessionsputoutsomeguidelinesthatweresupposedtoaddressthat. Ihaven'tgottenintoit myself. Iplantogetintoitandseeexactly,youknow, whatthehorrorstoriesare, wherethe problemsandpotentialabusesare, andalsoho
	Atthesametime,youknow,Ithinkitisavaluabletoolinlawenforcement, andthestate andlocallawenforcementoﬃcer--arepartners. It'sveryimportanttothem. SoIwantto makesurewestriketherightbalance, andonceIhaveachancetoreviewit, I'dbegladto comeupandtalktoyouaboutthat. 
	LEE: 
	Thankyou. Iappreciatethat. Iunderstandthatit'satoolthatmanyconsidervaluable, and-butatoolthatcanbeconsideredvaluableforsomeofthosesamereasons. Somethingthat's consideredvaluabletothegovernmentcan,inmanyinstances, jeopardiz
	-

	eanindividual rightthatisprotectedundertheConstitution. We'vegottobecarefulofthat. Youreferto thepartnershipthatsometimestakesplacebetweenstateandfederalauthorities. Thisis sometimeswhereweseeitabused. Inthecaseofaprocedureknownasequitablesharing, 
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	wheresometimesstatelawmightprohibittheuseofcivilassetforfeitureundercertain circumstances, andinthosecircumstancesthosestatelawenforcementagenciesmight workwithfederallawenforcementforthespeciﬁcpurposeofevadingstatelawthatwould otherwiseprohibitthat. SoIhopethat'ssomethingyou'lllookinto, aswell. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	LEE: 
	Let'stalkaboutantitrustforaminute. AlongwithSenatorKlobucharIchairtheAntitrust Subcommittee, andasI'msureyou'reaware,thereareagrowingnumberofpeoplewho taketheposition, whoembracetheviewpointthatweshoulduseantitrustlawtoaddressa wholehostofsocialandeconomicharmsto, amongotherthings,toensurethatcompany's respecttheFirstAmendment, ortopreventlargecompaniesfrombecomingtoobig, orto shapelabormarkets, ortoconformindustriestoaparticularaesthetic, orachievesome otherbroadly-deﬁnedsocialinterest. I'dliketoknowwhatyo
	BARR: 
	Yes, Imeangenerallythat'swhereIstand, whichisthepurposeoftheantitrustlaws, obviously, istoprotectcompetition. Andthecompetition--itiscompetitionthatultimately redoundstoconsumerbeneﬁts. Atthesametime,I'msortofinterestedinsteppingback andreassessing, orlearningmoreabouthowtheantitrustdivisionhasbeenfunctioningand whattheirprioritiesare. Idon'tthinkbigisnecessarilybad,butIthinkalotofpeople wonderhowsuchhugebehemothsthatnowexistinSiliconValleyhavetakenshapeunder thenoseoftheantitrustenforcers. Andthey're--youk
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	LEE: 
	Right. Yeah, andinsomecircumstancesacompanythatbecomestoobigendsupbehaving inawayandexertingmarketdominanceinawaythatimpairsconsumerwelfareanticompetitively. Inothercircumstancesconsolidationcanbringaboutlowerpricesand increasedcompetition. Iassumeyouwouldn'tdisagreewitheitherofthosestatements. 
	-

	BARR: 
	No, senator. 
	LEE: 
	Asyouknow, andasseveralofmycolleagueshavementioned, PresidentTrumpsignedinto lawtheFirstStepActaboutamonthago. ThisislegislationthatIapplaudandlegislation thatIhavebeenworkingoninonewayoranotherforeightyears, andwaspleasedtoteam upwithSenatorGrassley, SenatorDurbin,SenatorBookerandotherstoworkonthatover thecourseofmanyyears. Asyouknow,theattorneygeneralhasanimportantroleunderthe FirstStepActinappointingmemberstosomethingcalledtheIndependentReview Commission. ThatIndependentReviewCommissionwillmakerecommenda
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
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	LEE: 
	Thankyou. AreyoufamiliarwiththeAshcroft-Sessionspolicy, namelythepolicyrequiring prosecutorstochargethemostsigniﬁcant, readilyapprovableoﬀense? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	LEE: 
	Tellmehowthatshouldbestbebalancedoutwiththediscretionofaprosecutor, most frequently, ofcourse, withthediscretionofalocalU.S. attorney'soﬃce? 
	BARR: 
	Well,IwasgoingtosayIthinkthebestwayofbalancingitoutistohaveasupervisorwhois abletoapprovedeparturesfromthatpolicybasedonthespeciﬁccircumstances, andthere arecountlessdiﬀerent,youknow,permutationsoffactsthatmightjustifyadeparturefrom it. SoIthinkit'sbesthandledbysupervisorypeople. ButIalsothinkithastobelookedat centrally. I'mnotsayingthateachcasehastobeapprovedcentrally, buttherehastobe somemonitoringofwhat'sgoingonbecause, asyouknow, oneofthethingsthatledtothe sentencingguidelineswas,youknow, justdiﬀerence-
	LEE: 
	Butyouintendtocontinuethatpolicy? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	LEE: 
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	And-
	-

	BARR: 
	Unlesssomeonetellsmeagoodreasonnotto. 
	LEE: 
	IfI'munderstandingyoucorrectly, you'resayingthatifyoudofollowit, youwilldefertothe judgmentoftheoﬃceinquestioninthecaseofdeterminingwhentonotchargethemost serious, readilyapprovableoﬀense? 
	BARR: 
	No,ImeanIwon'tdefertomysubor--Imean, I'mnotgoingtosayyeah, Iwilldefertomy subordinates. Imeanusuallyyoudodefertoyoursubordinates,buttheremightbeacaseI disagreewith, andI'llassertmyselfonit. 
	LEE: 
	Okay. Iseemytimehasexpired. Thankyou, sir. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thanks,SenatorLee. We'lltakearecessto12:15 andstartwithSenatorWhitehousewhen wecomeback. 
	GRAHAM: 
	ThehearingwillcometoorderandIrecogniz
	eSenatorWhitehouse. Thankyou,Mr. Barr. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Thankyou, chairman. Thisismyﬁrstchanceatacommitteehearingtocongratulateyouon takingthegavelhere. WeworkedwelltogetherwhenyouwereChairmanoftheCrimeand 
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	TerrorismSubcommitteeandIhopethatthatwillcontinuehere. Mr. Barr, welcome. Did youmakeitaconditionoftakingthisjobthatRodRosensteinhadtogo? 
	BARR: 
	No. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Justtobeclearsowearenotbandyingwordshere, didyourequestorsignalorotherwise communicateinanywaythatyouwantedRodRosensteintogo? 
	BARR: 
	No. Thepresidentsaidthatthedecisionon--onthedeputywasmine. Any--anythingI wantedtodoonthedeputywasmine. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	SowewillﬁndnoWilliamBarrﬁngerprintsonRosenstein'sdeparture? 
	BARR: 
	No. I--RodandIhavebeentalking,youknow, abouthisplans. Hetoldmethatheviewedit asatwo-yearstentandwouldliketouse, ifI'mconﬁrmed, mycominginasanoccasionto leave. ButwetalkedabouttheneedforatransitionandIaskedhimifhewouldstayfora whileandhesaidhewould. And--and--andsoasofrightnow, Iwouldsaythere'sno--hehas noconcreteplans, Ihavenoconcreteplansintermsofhisdeparture. We'regoingtosortof play-
	-

	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	--Andyouwerenotgoingto-
	-

	BARR: 
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	--Itbyearandmakeseewhatmakessense. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Andyouhavenotundertakentorunhimoutinanyway? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutelynot. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	ThatleavesanopeningattheDAGpositionwheneveryouworkthisout. Canyoutellus, sinceattorneysgeneralareveryoftendeﬁnedbytheimmediateappointmentsaroundthem atchiefofstaﬀ,DAG, criminalchief, whatarethecharacteristicsandqualiﬁcationsthatyou willseekasyouﬁll,particularlythatposition,butallthreethatImentioned? 
	BARR: 
	I'msorry,thedeputyandwhatwastheotherone? 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Deputychiefofstaﬀandcriminalchief. 
	BARR: 
	Thereisalreadyacriminalchief. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Iknow,yeah. There'salwaysalreadyadeputyattorneygeneral,buthe'sleaving. 
	BARR: 
	Well,foradeputy,I'dlikesomeonewho'sareallygoodmanagerandwhohashadgood managementexperiencerunninggovernmentprogramsandIwantaﬁrst-ratelawyerand 
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	someoneI--whosejudgmentIfeelcomfortablein. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Experienceinthedepartment? 
	BARR: 
	Notnecessarily,but--but--butexperienceingovernmentat--atahighlevel. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Whenwemet, Igaveyoualetterthatyou'veseenjustsononeofthesequestionswouldbea surprise, soIhopeitisnosurprisetoyouthatI'mgoingthroughsomeofthem. Ifyou're conﬁrmed, whatwillbethedepartment'sruleregardingcommunicationsbetweenWhite HouseandDepartmentofJusticeoﬃcialsregardingcriminalandinvestigativematters? WhoatDOJwillbeallowedtohavethoseconversationswiththeWhiteHouseandwhoat theWhiteHousewillyouentertainthoseconversationsfromaDOJ? 
	BARR: 
	SoI,youknow,I'velookedthroughtheexistingregimeandbyinstinctistokeepit, maybe eventightenitupalittlebitmore. I--IrememberwhenGeorgeW. Bush'sadministration wascomingandmyadvicewasstarttightandthen, asyourealiz
	ewhohasjudgmentandso forth,you--youcangobacktoa-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--TheywenttheotherwayanditwasabaddayforAttorneyGeneralGonz
	alesinthe hearingroomwhenthatwasbroughttohisattention. Whatisyourunderstandingrightnow ofwhoattheDepartmentofJusticeisauthoriz
	edtohavecommunicationswiththeWhite Houseregardinginvestigations? 
	BARR: 
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	Well,itdepends--itdependswhatitis,buton--oncriminalmatters,IwouldjusthavetheAG andthedeputy. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Andwhatyouthinktheruleisnowinthedepartment? 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkthat'swhatitis. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Okay. Soifthereportsaretruethat, aschiefofstaﬀ,Mr. Whitakerwasinvolvedin conversationswiththeWhiteHouseaboutbringingcriminalinvestigationsagainstthe president'spoliticalenemies, thatwouldnotbeconsistentwithyourunderstandingofthat policy? 
	BARR: 
	Well,itwoulddependupon, youknow, what--whathisunderstandingiswiththeattorney general,Imeanthe-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--Welltheattorneygeneralwasrecused, soit'shardtostepintotheshoesofarecused attorneygeneralonthatmatter, right? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Idon'tknowwhatthecommunicationswererelatedto. I'mnotreallysurewhatyou're talkingabout. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
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	Okay, wellIhopeyou'llbecomesurewhenyougettherebecausethereisafairamountof, I think,questionablebehaviorthathavegoneonthatdoesnotreﬂectwellonthedepartment thatIhopewillgetyourattention. Ialsoaskedyouaboutthespecialcounselinvestigation andtogiveusaclearexpositionofhowthatmemocametobe, whoyoutalkto, when, who wasinvolvedinit,therewerenumberofquestionsinthatletterthatatthispointyouhave notanswered. 
	Youhave, Igathered,toldthechairmanthenamesofsomedoz
	enorsopeoplewhomyou contacted. AsIunderstandit, oncethememowaswritten, butit'snotclear, doyouhaveany objectiontoansweringthequestionsthatIwroteasquestionsfortherecordsothatthe committeecanunderstandwhoyouworkedwith, whoyoutalkedwithaboutthisidea, who youworkwithinpreparingthememo, whohelpedyouwiththingslikecitations, thepeople atyourleveldon'toftendoyourselves, andwhereitwascirculatedandvettedandwhat editsweremadeandsoforth? 
	BARR: 
	No,Ihavenoobjectiontothat. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Great. 
	BARR: 
	ButI-
	-

	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	--We'llletthatkeep-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Justto--justtobeclear, nooneelsemaywritethememoandIknowhowtodolegal citation, whichIdo. 
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	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Yeah, wellalotofpeopleknowhowbutthatdoesn'tmeantheyalwaysdoit. 
	BARR: 
	Idoit. Idid. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Okay. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Youmightwanttogetoutofthathabit. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Youmayhaveotherthingstolookat. 
	BARR: 
	I'dliketohavesomefuninlife. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	In--ifyouthinkcitationsarefun, you'regoingto-
	-

	(LAUGHTER) 
	You'renotgoingtohavetheproblemsomeothernomineeshavehad. Mylettertoyoualso askedabouttheBorkorderthatsetoutaseriesofprotectionsforthethenindependent counseloperation. Doyouhaveanyobjectiontoanyofthoserulesorprinciplesapplying andshouldseethoserulesandprinciples, whichIgavetoyouthen, asbeingmoreorless 
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	adoptedintothestatementthatyoumadeearlieraboutyourprotectionoftheMueller investigationfrompoliticalinterference? 
	BARR: 
	Youknow,Ilookedatthem. I--Ithinkthecurrentregimeis--iswhatI'mhappywith. Inother words,Iwouldn't--Iwouldn'tchangethecurrentrulethatweare--thoseruleswereputin placeattheendoftheClintonadministrationand--andsortof, Ithink, reﬂectsthebackon backexperienceoftheReagan-BushyearsandintheClintonyearsandthensortofJustice Department'sthinkingundertheClintonadministrationastohowtobalanceallthe equities. AndIthinkit'sworkingwell. Sothat's--that's-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--Wellanythingthatyouwoulddisagreewithintheso-calledworkrules,I'daskyouto explainthatina--inaQFR. 
	BARR: 
	Inafollow-up? 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Inafollow-up. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. Okay. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Alsoinmylettertoyou,IexpressedmyconcernthatMr. Whitakerwaspaid$1.2 million throughwhatIconsidertobeafrontgroupthathasverylittlerealitytoitandthatthe fundingthatcametothatfrontgrouptopayhimthemilliondollarscamethroughanother entitythatisessentiallyanidentitylaunderingoperationthathasnoindependentbusiness 
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	operation. Andresultofallofthisisthatsomebodyouttherearrangedtogetover$1 million toMr. Whitakerandwehavenoideawhothatsomebodyis. AndasImentionedtoyouin ourconversation, Idon'tseehowthedepartmentcandoaproperrecusalandconﬂict analysisforsomebodywhentheplayerwhodeliveredthemilliondollarsisstillhidden behindthecurtain. Isthatsomethingthatyouwillhelpusﬁx? 
	BARR: 
	Wellﬁrst,youknow,I--Idon'tthinktherewasanythingwrongdoneforatleast-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--Well, wedon'tknowthatyetbecausewedon'tknowwiththefactsare. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah, wellI'mjustsayingjustthefactsthatyousaid,youknow,doesn'tnecessarilymean therewasanythingwrongdone. Whatyou'resayingisthatiftheultimateﬁnancialbackers arebehindsomeentityandthecurrentethicslawsrequireonlythereportingoftheentity, you'renotreallysurewherethe--themoneyiscomingfrom. Andthat,youknowI--Ithink thatthatraisesaveryinterestingpointthatIthinkIwouldliketoreviewwiththeethics peopleandexpertsandevenOGEtotalkaboutthatbecauseI--themoreIthoughtaboutit, themoreIthoughtthatthetrickisgoingtobedecidingwhat
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Yeah. 
	BARR: 
	And--and-
	-

	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
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	--Iwouldsubmittoyouthat-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Sometimesyouhaveﬁrst-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--Ifthedepartment'smoneylaunderingfolkslookedatthisoperation,theywouldseeitas almostamateurishandsimpleandsomethingquiteeasytopenetrateanditwouldbequite easy, simply,toaskMr. Whitakerwhatheknew,toaskwhoeverisatfactifitevenhasany existencewithWhitaker'sdeparturewhattheyknew, andtoaskdonor'strusttocoughup theidentityofthedonorandthenyoucandoyourhomework. Andiftheyrefusedtodo that, nothingguaranteesanybodyajobatthehighestlevelsofgovernmentwho'snotwilling toprovidethosedisclosures. 
	BARR: 
	WellasIsaid,youknow, oneofmyﬁrstconsiderationsalwaysiswheredoyou--wheredo youdrawtheline, andalsowhataretheimplicationsforotherkindsofentitiesbecause, you know,they'remembershipgroupsandﬁrstamendmentinterestsandyoudon'twantto disclosemembershipsandwhose-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--Yeah, andmypointwasIthinkifyourmoneylaunderingfolkstookalookatthat,they'dbe abletohelpshowthatthisissomethingthatlooksalittlebitdiﬀerentthanthat. Mytimehas expired. AndI'llseeyouonthesecondround. Thankyou. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	SenatorSasse. 
	GRAHAM: 
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	IbelieveSenatorErnstisﬁllinginforSenatorCruznext. 
	UNKNOWN: 
	Thankyou, chairman. 
	UNKNOWN: 
	Okaywithme. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Thankyou. Mr. Barr,Iwanttocommendyouforsteppingforward. Thankyouverymuch. AndIwanttosaythankyoutoyourfamily, aswell, forbeingsosupportiveinthisendeavor. I'mreallypleasedtohaveallofyouhere. Sothankyoufordoingthat. Mr. Barr,laterthis monthIdoplanonreintroducingSarah'sLaw, whichisabillthatwouldrequirethe detentionofillegalalienswhohavebeenchargedwithacrimethatresultedinthedeathor seriousinjury, bodilyinjury, ofanotherperson. Nowthatsoundsprettycommonsense, but I'llgiveyoualittlebackground. Thisbillisnamedafter
	existingonthebooks. AndIknowthatAttorneyGeneralSessions,hehadarealpassionfor this. Andhehadastrongrecordoftryingtomakesurethatwe'recorrectingwrongsinthe system. Howdoyou, asattorneygeneral,planonmakingsurethatwearerestoringtherule oflawinourimmigrationsystem? 
	BARR: 
	Well,ﬁrstthatsoundslikeaverycommonsensicalbill-
	-
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	ERNST
	: 
	Thankyou. 
	BARR: 
	--andsomethingthatIwouldcertainlybeinclinedtosupport. Ithinkoneofourmajor problems, asthepresidentsays,isthattheimmigrationlawsjusthavetobechangedandto providesensibleandcommonsensewaysofprocessingimmigrationandclaimsofasylum. Rightnow--thisgoes--thisgoesalltheway--thisgoesback27years. Wewerefacingexactly thesamekindofproblem, maybeonasmallerscale. ButCongresshasto--wherepeopleare abusingtheasylumsystem, comingin, they'rebeingcoachedastowhattosay, andthen oncetheycomeinwedon'thavethefacilitiestokeepthem, an
	isrightthatuntil--untilwe'reabletodothat, we'rejustnotgoingtobeabletogetcontrol overillegalimmigration. Anditcreatesalotofunsafeconditionsformanypeople. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Absolutely. AndIappreciateyourthoughtsonthat. Thisisaveryimportantissue. Ithinkall ofusunderstandthatimmigrationissovitaltoourcountry, butithastobedoneintheright manner. AndforthosethatarecausingbodilyinjuryanddeathtothosehereintheUnited States, wewanttomakesurethattheyarebroughttojustice. Andinthiscase,thatillegal undocumentedwasnotbroughttojustice. AndIfeelalotofempathyforthatfamily. 
	I'llmoveintoanothersituationthat'sreallyimportanttoIowans. AccordingtotheU.S. DepartmentofHealthandHumanServices, afterdrugdealing, humantraﬃckingistied witharmsdealingasthesecond-largestcriminalindustryintheworld. Anditgenerates 
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	about$32 billioneachyear. TheDepartmentofJusticehassaidthat83 percentofsex traﬃckingvictimsidentiﬁedintheUnitedStatesareU.S. citiz
	enswiththeaverageageofa victimbeingbetween12 and14years, 12 and14years. Since2007therehavebeenover 300casesofhumantraﬃckinginIowaalone, andIowaisaveryruralstate. 300cases, that'sveryconcerningtomyconstituentsbackhome. Whatdoyouseeasthemain contributortohumantraﬃckinghereintheUnitedStates?AndthenhowcantheDOJ impact, andcombatandpreventthoseheinouscrimes? 
	BARR: 
	Thisisa--thisisanareathat,frankly, wasn'tverymuchontheradarscopeofthe DepartmentofJusticewhenIwaslastthere. Iknowit's--andit'sanabhorrentareaof criminality, andIknowthedepartmentandAttorneyGeneralSessionshavebeenfocused onandhaveputinplacevariousprogramsandentitieswithinthedepartmenttofocusonit andworkwithstateandlocallawenforcementonit. I'mnotsurewhatthemajorcontributor toitis. It'sanareathatI'mgoingtohavetostudywhenIgetintothedepartmentandsee whatarethefactorscontributingtoit. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Okay. Iappreciatethat. AndasImentionedinmyquestion, aswell,drugsanddrug traﬃcking,thatisalsoavery, verybigindustry. Andinﬁscalyear2017, 65 percentofdrugrelatedprisonsentencesinIowawererelatedtomethamphetamine. Wetalkalotaboutthe opioidcrisis, butinIowaitstillismeth. In2016Iowareportedover1500foundedchild abusereportsrelatingtomethamphetaminebeingfoundinthechild'sbody. Accordingto theDEA, mostofthemethavailableintheUnitedStatesisbeingproducedinMexicoand smuggledacrossoursouthernborder. Howdoyouseethesituatio
	-

	BARR: 
	Well,it'sbeenpointedoutearlier,itisthemajoravenuebywhichdrugscomeintothe country. Heroin,fentanyl, alltheseriousdrugsarecomingacrossthatborder. Andagain,I 
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	feelitisacriticalpartofbordersecuritythatweneedtohavebarriersontheborder. We needabarriersystemonthebordertogetcontrolovertheborder. AndIthinkobviously therearesomeplacesthatmoreofthetraﬃccomesoverthanothers, butunlessyouhavea systemacrosstheborder,you'renotgoingtobeabletodealwithitbecauseyou'lljust displaceit. Ifyoubuildabarrierinoneplace,you'lljustdisplaceittoanother. Soweneeda barriersystemacrosstheborderto--partofthatisillegalimmigration,butabigpartofit alsoispreventingtheinﬂuxofdrugs. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Absolutely. AndyoustatedearlierthatreallytheheadofthesnakeliesoutsideoftheUnited States. IsthereawaythatDOJcanbeworkingwithadditionalideas, methodologywith otherdepartmentsthatyoumightthinkwouldhelp? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, youknowthisisanarea, again,becauseI'moutofthegovernmentIdon'tknowhowit's functioning,howthedrugwarisbeingcoordinated,butIthinkjusticecanplayabigrolein pushingforpartnersliketheStateDepartment,DefenseDepartment,theintelligence agenciesandsoforth,to--tohelpdealwiththis. It'snot,tome, notjustalawenforcement problem;it'sanationalsecurityproblem. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Andyoumentioned, aswell,thesituationontheborderwherewedoneedbarriersinplace tocontroltheinﬂuxof, whetherit'sdrugs,humantraﬃcking, guntraﬃcking, soforth. Do youbelievethatsanctuarycitiesplayaroleinharboringsomeofthoseactivities? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Ido. Ithinkthereareanumberofsortof--youknow, offactorsthathaveahydraulic aﬀectinthattheypullpeopleintotheUnitedStates, orinducethemtomake, youknow, takethehaz
	ardsofcomingintotheUnitedStates, cominguphundredsofmilesthrough Mexicoandsoforth. Andthingslikesanctuarycitieswheretheyfeelthatthey'llbeableto 
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	comeupandhideandbeprotectedisoneofthosefactorsthatIthinkisirresponsible becauseitattractstheillegalalienscomingin. Andobviously,Ithinkthatthemainproblem withsanctuarycitiesisthatthey'renotgivingusinformationaboutcriminalsthattheyhave intheircustody. Thisisnotchasingafter,youknow,familiesoranythinglikethat. Thisis goingaftercriminalswhothestate, locallawenforcementhaveincustody, andnotallowing ustotakecustodyofthemandgetthemoutofthecountry. That'stheproblemwith sanctuarycities. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Correct, whichcouldbethesituationwithEdwinMejiawhokilledSarahRoot. Sowewould lovetoseethatyoungmanbroughttojustice. Thankyouverymuchforyourtime. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou. JustfollowuponthatwithSenatorKlobuchar. Don'tcountthisagainsthertime. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Soyouaresayingthatyouwantaccesstopeoplewhohavecommittedcrimesoraccusedof committingcrimesoutsideofastatusviolation?Isthatwhat-
	-

	BARR: 
	That--that'sright, senator. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorKlobuchar. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Thankyou. Thankyou,Mr. Barr. Itakeitasapositivethatyourgrandsonhasgottenouta pen, apenandapadofpapertotakenotesduringmyquestions. 
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	(LAUGHTER) 
	Ialsoimpressedbyyourdaughtersinthattheyallchosetogointopublicservicebutasyou knowemployeesattheJusticeDepartmentnowareeitherfurloughedortheyareworking withoutpayandI'vetalkedtoanumberofthemathomeandit'sanoutrage. Verybrieﬂy whatdoyouhavetosaytothem? 
	BARR: 
	I--Iwould--IwouldliketoseeadealreachedwherebyCongressrecogniz
	esthatit's imperativetohavebordersecurityandthatpartofthatbordersecurityasacommon-sense matterneedsbarriers. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	AndyouareawarethatinthecomprehensiveSenateimmigrationbillthatwepassedthere wasliterallybillionsofdollarsforbordersecuritybackin2013? 
	BARR: 
	I'mgenerallyawareofthat. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Andthatalsowehadanagreementearlierlastyearwhichwouldallowthedreamerstostay legallythatalsohadmoneyforbordersecurity? 
	BARR: 
	Thepointisweneedmoneyrightnowforbordersecurity-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Yes, butwehave-
	-

	BARR: 
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	--includinga--includingabarriersandwallsandslatsandotherthings. Anythingthatmakes sensein--indiﬀerentareasoftheborder. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay, indiﬀerentareas. That'sagoodpoint. SoPresidentGeorgeH.W. Bushsaidbackin 1980thathedidn'twanttoseesixandeight-year-oldkidsbeingmadetofeelthattheyare livingoutsidethelawandyouwerehisattorneygeneral. Healsosaidthatimmigrationisnot justalinktoAmerica'spastbutit'sabridgetoAmerica'sfuture. Doyouagreewiththose statements? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Ithink--IthinkasIsaidIthinklegalimmigrationhas--wehaveagreatsystempotential. IthinkitneedsreformingbutlegalimmigrationhasbeengoodfortheUnitedStates. It's beengreatforthecountry. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Andthat'swhyweweretryingtoworkonthatcomprehensivereform. Iwanttojustbrieﬂy turntoFBIleadership. 
	ThepresidenthasmadestatementsaccusingtheFBIofmakingpolitically-motivated decisions, manyofusuphereandintheSenatehaveconﬁdenceinDirectorWrayandthe leadershipattheFBIandbelievetheycandotheirjobswithoutpoliticsgettingintheway. Doyouagreewiththat? 
	BARR: 
	I'm--I'mlookingifI'mconﬁrmedI'mlookingforwardtogettingtoknowChrisWray. From whatIknowIthinkveryhighlyofhim. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
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	Okay,thankyou. InthememofrombackinJunetheonecommentthatSenatorGrassley made,hetalkedabouthowmuchtheMuellerinvestigationwascostingandactuallydida littlegooglinghereandtherewasaCNBCreportthatitactuallycouldbringinmoremoney thanitcostsbecauseofthewealthypeoplebeingprosecuted,thatManafort'sassetscould bewellover$40million. Idon'tknowifthatincludesthatostrichjacket. Butdoyouthink that'spossiblebasedonyourexperiencewithwhite-collarcrime? 
	BARR: 
	I--Idon'tknowenoughaboutit. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. The--inyourmemoyoutalkedaboutthe--theComeydecisionandyoutalkabout obstructionofjusticeandyoualreadywentoverthatwhichIappreciate. Youwroteonpage 1thatapresidentpersuadingapersontocommitperjurywouldbeobstruction. Isthatright? 
	BARR: 
	That--y--yes. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. 
	BARR: 
	Any--any, wellanypersonwhopersuadesanotheryeah. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Youalsosaidthatapresidentoranypersonconvincingawitnesstochangetestimonywould beobstruction. Isthatright? 
	BARR: 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	Yes. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. Andonpage2 yousaidthatapresidentdeliberatelyimpairingtheintegrityor availabilityofevidencewouldbeaninstruction. Isthatcorrect? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. Andsowhatifapresidenttoldawitnessnottocooperatewithaninvestigationor hintedatapardon? 
	BARR: 
	YouknowI--I'dhavetoknowthespeciﬁc--I'dhavetoknowthespeciﬁcfacts. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay, andyouwroteonpage1thatifapresidentknowinglydestroysoraltersevidencethat wouldbeobstruction. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. Sowhatifapresidentdraftedamisleadingstatementtoconcealthepurposeofa meeting. Wouldthatbeobstruction? 
	BARR: 
	Again,you,I'd--I'dhavetoknow, I'dhavetoknowthespeciﬁcs. 
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	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Allright. Youwouldseektheadviceofcareerethic--ethicsoﬃcialsintheDepartmentof JusticeforanyrecusalandIappreciatethat. Andyousaidin--inthepastthatyou commendedAttorneyGeneralSessionsforfollowingtheadviceofthoseethicslawyersbut youdidn'tcommittodaytofollowingthatadvice. Isthatright? 
	BARR: 
	No,Idid--Ididn't, Ididn'tcommendhimforfollowingtheadviceastheagencyhad--he makeshis--heistheoneresponsibleformakingtherecusaldecision. Idon'tknowwhyhe said--lockedhimselfintofollowingtheadvicethat'sanadvocationofhisownresponsibility. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	SowhatdidyouthinkaboutwhatActingAttorneyGeneralWhitakerdidwhenherejected theJusticeDepartmentethicsadvicetorecusehimselfoutofanabundanceofcaution? 
	BARR: 
	I--Ihaven'tseentheadvicehegotandIdon'tknowthespeciﬁcfactsbut--butabundanceof caus--cautionsuggeststhatitcouldhavegoneeitherway. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Youhavecommittedtorecuseyourselffrommattersinvolvingthelawﬁrmwhereyou currentlywork. Areyouawareofanyofyourﬁrm'sclientswhoareinanywayconnectedto thespecialcounsel'sinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	I--I'mnot--I'mnotaware. YouknowI--ItellyouthetruthIamofcounselthereandIhave oneclientwhichI'mrepresentingandIdon'tpayverymuchattentiontowhatelseisgoing on. 
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	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay,youcanalsosupplement(INAUDIBLE). 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,I--I'llsupplementI'llsupplementmyanswer. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Noproblem. Willyoucommittomakepublicallofthereport'sconclusions,theMueller report, evenifsomeoftheevidencesupportingthoseconclusionscan'tbemadepublic? 
	BARR: 
	Youknowthatcertainlyismygoalandintent. It'shardformetoconceiveofaconclusion thatwouldyouknowrunafouloftheregsascurrentlywrittenbutthat'scertainlymyintent. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Secureelections,youandIhaveatalkaboutthatinmyoﬃce. Doyouthinkback-uppaper ballotsareagoodidea?ThisisabillthatSenatorLankfordandIhaveintroducedandwith theSenatorGrahamandSenatorHarris? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,I--Idon'tknowwhat'sagoodidea, what'sabadidearightnowbecauseIhaven't gottenintothisarea. But-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	I'lljusttellyoubackuppaperballotsisagoodidea. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
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	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Andwecantalkaboutitlateraswell-
	-

	BARR: 
	Yeah. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--audits. AlongthelinesofvotingstateelectionoﬃcialsinNorthCarolinaasyouknow contactedtheJusticeDepartmentabouttheintegrityoftheirelections. TheJustice Departmentmayhavefailedtotakeactioninatimelymanner. Whatstepswouldyoutake tomakesurethesefailuresdon'toccuragain? 
	BARR: 
	NotspeciﬁcallywithrespecttoNorthCarolinayou'retalkinggenerally? 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Um-hmm. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. Well, asIsayIwanttomakeoneofmyprioritiestheintegrityofelectionsandsothis isnotanareaIhavebeeninvolvedwithdeeplybeforeandwhenIgettothedepartmentif I'mconﬁrmedI'mgoingtostartworkingwiththepeopleandﬁ--makingsurethatthosekind ofthingsdon't-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Andpartofthis, ofcourse, isalsohowvotingrightsandourconcernaboutsomeofthe changesindepartmentpolicyandIhopeyouwillseriouslylookatthatbecausethelast thingweshouldbedoingissuppressingvotingandthatiswhatwehavebeenseeingunder thiscurrentadministration. 
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	MydadwasareportersoIgrewupknowingtheimportanceofafreepress. Weobviously havethetragiccaseofajournalistwhoworkedrighthereattheWashingtonPost, Jamal Khashoggi, andit'saparticularconcern. SowanttoaskyousomethingIaskedAttorney GeneralSessions. IfyouareconﬁrmedwilltheJusticeDepartmentjailreportersfordoing theirjobs? 
	BARR: 
	IthinkthatyouknowIknowthereareguidelinesinplaceandI--Icanconceiveofsituations whereyouknowasa--asalastresortand--andwhereanewsorganiz
	ationhasrunthrougha redﬂagorsomethinglikethat,knowsthattheyareputtingoutstuﬀthatwillhurtthe countrytheremightbeasit--therecouldbeasituationwhere--wheresomeonewouldbe heldincontempt. But-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	AttorneyGeneralSessionshadsaidhewasgoingtolookatchan--potentiallychangingthose rulesatonepoint. SoI'dlikeyoutomayberespondinwritingtothisbecausethatwasvery concerning. 
	Andlast, whenyouandIwereinmyoﬃcewetalkedaboutyourworkwithTimeWarner, withthismajormergeronappealfromtheJusticeDepartmentandIjustwantedyouto committodaytowhatyoucommittedtomeintheoﬃcethatyouwouldrecuseyourself fromanymattersregardingthatappeal. 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. AndasyouknowyouwereontheboardofTimeWarneratthetimeandyousigneda swornaﬃdavitquestioningwhethertheJusticeDepartment'sdecisiontoblockthemerger waspoliticallymotivatedgivenandthisisfromtheaﬃdavitthepresident'spriorpublic 
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	animustowardsthemerger. AreyoutalkinghereabouthisviewonCNN?Whatdidyou meanbypriorpublicanimus? 
	BARR: 
	I'msorry. Couldyou--couldyourepeatthat? 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Sure. YouwereontheBoardofTimeWarnerandyousignedaswornaﬃdavitquestioning whethertheJusticeDepartment'sdecisiontoblockthemergerwaspoliticallymotivated giventhepresident'spriorpublicanimustowardthemerger. Andsowhatdidyoumeanby that? 
	BARR: 
	I--ImeantheaﬃdavitspeaksforitselfinthatatthatmeetingIwasconcernedthatthe antitrustdivisionwasnotengagingwithsomeofourargumentsandIgotconcernedthat theyweren'ttakingthemeritsasseriouslyasIhadhopedtheywould. ButIhave, youknowI haveno--I'mnotsurewhytheyactedthewaytheydid. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. Verygood. AndI'llaskyoumoreonantitrustpolicy-wiseinthesecondroundbutand Iappreciatedthediscussionwehadonthat. It'sveryimportant. Thankyouverymuch. 
	BARR: 
	Yep. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou. SenatorHawleydidagoodthingbyallowingSenatorErnsttogobecauseshe-nogooddeedgoesunpunishedaroundherebutyoudohaveacreditwiththe--withthe ChairmansoIappreciatethat. SenatorCruz
	-

	,youarenext. 
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	CRUZ: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Andthankyou, SenatorHawley, aswellandwelcometothe committee. Welcometoallthenewmembersofthecommitteeandcongratulations,Mr. Chairman. We'relookingforwardtotheLindseyGrahamchairmanshipjudiciaryandI'm sure,if-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	--They'llmakeamovieaboutitI'msure. 
	CRUZ: 
	Iamcertainwhateverelsehappens, itwillnotbeboring. Welcome,Mr. Barr. Congratulationsonyournominationyetagain, and--andletmesaythankyou. YouandI havevisitedbeforeaboutthisbut--butthepasttwoyearshavebeenadiﬃculttimeatthe DepartmentofJusticeand--andyouandIandmanyonthiscommitteeholdtheJustice Departmentinveryhighesteem, indeedIwouldevensayreverethedepartmentandits centurylongtraditionofenforcingthelawwithoutregardtopartyandwithoutregardto partisanship. And--andIcommendyouforyourwillingnesstogoback--gobackandserv
	Youknow,Iwouldnote27yearsagowhenyoudidthispreviously, whenyouwerelast nominatedtobeattorneygeneral, andIthinkyoumayhavebeenaboutLiam'sageatthe time, itwasadiﬀerenttime. ThenChairmanoftheJudiciaryCommittee,JoeBiden. saidat thetimethathefoundyoutobe"Honest" andthatyou, "Understandandarecommittedto thedualresponsibilityoftheoﬃceoftheattorneygeneral." ChairmanBidenalsosaidthat, "Thiscommitmenttothepublicinterestaboveallelseisacriticalattributeinanattorney general, andIwillvotetoconﬁrmMr. Barr." 
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	SenatorTedKennedylikewisenotedyourdedicationtopublicservice. SenatorFritz Hollingssaid, "Mr. Barrhasadistinguishedacademicbackgroundandimpressive experienceinprivatesectoraswellasinpublicservice. MostimportantBillBarrisaknown quantity. Hehasdoneatrulyoutstandingjobasdeputyattorneygeneralforthelastyear andahalf,duringwhichtimehehasworkedwithmanyofusinthisbodyearningour respectforhisprofessionalismandcompetence." AndSenatorColesaidthat, "Your willingnesstodiscusstheissuesisarefreshingchangeintheconﬁrmationpro
	Atthathearingyouareconﬁrmedbythiscommitteeunanimously, asyouhadbeentwice previouslyforseniorappointmentstotheDepartmentofJustice. Now, weallrecogniz
	ethat wasadiﬀerenttime. Ithink, giventheenvironmentweareinnow, fewyouexpectthis committeevotetobeunanimous,butIwouldhopethosevoicesfromdemocratswhoare respectedbymembersofthiscommitteewillbeheardtodayaswell. 
	Oneofthequestionsyouwereasked,ifImightparaphrase, waswhyonearthwouldyou takethisjob. Andyouranswer,ifIrecallcorrectly, concernedyourcommitmentbothtothe-tothedepartment, andtheruleoflaw. Wouldyoutellthiscommitteein--in--inyour judgmentwhytheruleoflawmatters?Why--whyisthatimportant? 
	-

	BARR: 
	Well,youknowthe--as--asourframerssaidintheFederalistPapers, "Theartof--ofsetting upagovernmentistohaveagovernmentthat'sstrongenoughtoperformthefunctionsthat agovernmenthastoperformwhile, atthesametime, notbeingsostrongthatitcanoppress itsownpeople. Andtheruleoflawensuresthat,precisely, thatthegovernmentdoesnot oppressitsownpeople. 
	Andwhenpeopleareaccusedofwrongdoing, oursystemessentiallygivesthemthebeneﬁt ofthedoubtand--andgivesthemrightstobringthemupessentiallytothesamelevelasa government. Andtheprocesswegothroughistheretoensurethatjusticeisnotarbitrary, butit'sdoneaccordingtoasetofrulesandthebasicprotectionthatwehaveisthattherule 
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	thatappliestooneappliestoall. That, attheendoftheday, iswhatkeepsusallfree. Thatis theprotectionofindividualfreedom." 
	Andtome,theruleoflawisexactlythat,thatwedon'tallowspecialrulestogointoeﬀect foraparticularindividual. Arulehastobeuniversaliz
	ed. AnythingwedoagainstAhastobe universaliz
	edacrosseveryonewho'ssimilarlysituated. That'sourbasicprotection. Andto me,that'swiththeruleoflawis. 
	CRUZ: 
	SoIdon'twanttoseeaRepublicanDepartmentofJusticeorDemocraticDepartmentof Justice. Idon'twanttoseeaRepublicanFBIoraDemocraticFBI. Whatweshouldsee, what theAmericanpeoplehavearighttoseeandarighttoexpectisaDepartmentofJusticethat iscommittedtoandfaithfultotheConstitutionandthelawsregardlessofpoliticalparty, and--andacorollarytothatis, adepartmentthatiswillingtoholdanyonewhocommits criminalconductaccountable, regardlessofthatindividual'spoliticalpartyorwhatever partisaninteresttheremightbe. Would--wouldyouagreew
	ation? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. Yes, senator. 
	CRUZ: 
	Iwouldnoteaswellduringthepreviousadministrationtherewasconcernbymany, includingmeonthiscommittee,thatthepreviousadministration, andinparticulartheIRS, hadtargetedindividualcitiz engroupsforexercisingtheirFirstAmendment
	ensandcitiz rightsand--andhadabuseditspowerindoingso. ThecurrentJusticeDepartment--I--I've beendissatisﬁedwiththeir--thedegreeofscrutinytheyhave--theyhavegiventothat potentialabuseof--ofpower, andI'mgoingtoaskyougoingforwardifyouareconﬁrmed,to examinethatconductandensurethatif--iflawswerebrokenthatindividualsareheld accountable. 
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	Letmeshifttoadiﬀerenttopic. Oneofthemostimportantsafeguardsofourlibertiesisthe BillofRights. AndtheAttorneyGeneralhasauniqueresponsibilitydefendingthe Constitution. Canyoushareforthiscommitteeinyourviewtheimportanceoffreespeech, oftheprotectionsthattheFirstAmendmentprovidestoAmericanstospeakandevento speakon--onunpopularorpoliticallydisfavoredtopics? 
	BARR: 
	I--Ithinkfreespeechisatthe--atthecoreofoursystembecausewebelieveinthe democraticprocessandpowershiftingthroughtheprocessesofvotingbyan--aninformed electorate. Andfreespeechisfoundationaltotheabilitytohaveademocraticprocess. The framers, Ithink,believedthatthedialectic,theclashingofideasinthepublicmarketplaceis thewaytoarriveatthetruth. Andthatisonefunction. 
	Anotherfunctionoffreespeechisthatit'sthesubstituteforothermeansofsettling diﬀerences. Insomewaysit'sasafetyvalve. Peopleareallowedtospeaktheirmindand persuadetheirneighborsoftheirposition. AndIthinkthat--thatperformsaveryimportant functioninkeepingthepeacewithinacommunity. Andifspeechesspeechissuppressed,it canleadtothebuildingupofpressureswithinsocietythatsometimescanbeexplosive. 
	CRUZ: 
	Howaboutyourviewson--onreligiouslibertyand--andwouldyoushareyourthoughtson theimportanceofthereligiouslibertyprotectionsintheFirstAmendmentintermsof protectingour--ourdiverseandpluralisticsociety? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. I--I, youknow, to--Ithink--Ithinktheframersbelievethatthe--oursystem, theysaid thatoursystemonlyworksifthepeopleareinapositiontocontrolthemselves. Our--our governmentisan--isanexperimentinhowmuchfreedomwecanallowthepeoplewithout tearingourselvesapart, andtheybelievefewerlaws, moreself-controlandtheybelievethat partofthatself-control, andIknowtherearemanypeopleherewhodisagreein--in, not 
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	here,butinoursociety, whodisagree, buttheybelievepartofthatself-controlultimately camefromreligiousvalues. AndIthinkit'simportantunderpinningofoursystemthatwe permit--Ibelieveintheseparationofchurchandstate,butI--Iamsometimesconcerned thatwenotusegovernmentalpowertosuppressthefreedomsoftraditionalreligious communitiesinourcountry. 
	CRUZ: 
	Finalquestion. TheDepartmentofJusticeischargedwithdefendingtheUnitedStates,but thatdoesn'tmeanthattheDepartmentofJusticealwaysmustargueformaximumfederal power. Thereareimportantrestraintsonfederalpower, whethercivillibertiesprotections inacriminalcontext, whetherthetakingsclause, orwhetherthe10thAmendmentin federalism. Can--canyoubrieﬂyshareyourthoughtson--ontheappropriatebalanceof respectinglimitationsonfederalpower? 
	BARR: 
	There--well, asyou--asyousay, theConstitutionhasmanydiﬀerentformsofrestrainton-onfederalpower. Partofitis,infact, theseparationofpowerswithinthefederal government,partofitisthebalancebetweenthefederal--thefederalistsystemthatwehave and--andthecentralgovernmentandrespectingtherightsofthestatesandlocal communities, andpartofitistheBillofRightsthat, oncertaintopics, constrainstherule roleofthefederalgovernment. Andthoseareallimportantchecksonfederalpower. 
	-

	Andyouknow,Iamconcernedaboutourcountrybecomingjustaunitarystatethatwetry togoverncentrally350millionpeople. Ithinkalotofourcurrenttensionsinsocietyare becauseweareturningourbackonthefederalistmodel. Therearecertainthingsthathave tobeprotectedbythefederalgovernment. There'snoifs, ands, orbutsaboutthat. Butthe morewecandecentraliz
	edecisionmaking,themorewecanallowpeoplearealdiversityin thecountryofapproachestothings,Ithinkwe'llhavelessofanexplosivesituation. 
	CRUZ: 
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	Iverymuchagree. Thankyou,Mr. Barr. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thefreedomofspeechhastobebalancedbythefreedomtoquestion. SenatorCoons. 
	COONS: 
	Congratulations,ChairmanGraham. LookforwardtoworkingwithyouinthisCongress. Andthankyou,Mr. Barr, andtoyouandyourfamilyfortheirservicetoourcountrythrough federallawenforcementandtheDepartmentofJustice. Youjustfacedsomequestioning fromSenatorCruzaboutyourownconﬁrmationhearingbackin1991, andI'dliketotake usbacktoapreviousconﬁrmationhearing, whichwasatamoresimilartimetotodaythan 1991,1973. SenatorLeahyaskedyouabouttheconﬁrmationofElliotRichardson, PresidentNixon'snomineetobeattorneygeneral. Thatconﬁrmationtookp
	andprosecutethiscaseregardlessofwhowasaﬀectedinanyway, shapeorform. Richardsonresponded, exactly. DoyouwantspecialcounselMuellertoshieldnooneand prosecutethecaseregardlessofwhoisaﬀected? 
	BARR: 
	Iwant--IwantSpecialCounselMuellertodischargehisresponsibilitiesasafederal prosecutor, andexercisethejudgmentthathe'sexpectedtoexerciseundertherulesand ﬁnishhisjob. 
	COONS: 
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	SenatorKennedyfollowedupbyaskingRichardsonifthespecialprosecutorwouldhavethe completeauthorityandresponsibilityfordeterminingwhomheprosecutedandatwhat location. Richardsonsaidsimply,yes. Wouldyougiveasimilaranswer? 
	BARR: 
	No,Iwouldgivetheanswerthat'sinthecurrentregulations, whichisthatthespecial counselhas,youknow,broaddiscretion, buttheactingattorneygeneralinthiscase,Rod Rosenstein, canaskhimaboutmajordecisions. Andiftheydisagreeonamajordecision, andifaftergivinggreatweighttothespecialcounsel'spositiontheactingattorneygeneral feltthatitwassounwarrantedunderestablishedpoliciesthatitshouldnotbefollowed,then thatwouldbereportedtothiscommittee. I--youknow,I've--I've-
	-

	COONS: 
	Pleaseforgiveme. I'veonlygot--I'vegotsevenminutesleft. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	COONS: 
	Ihaveanumberofotherquestions. LetmejustmakesureIunderstandyou. senatorsasked ElliotRichardsonwhathewoulddoifhedisagreedwiththespecialprosecutor. Richardson testiﬁedtothecommitteethespecialprosecutor'sjudgmentwouldprevail. That'snotwhat you'resaying. You'resaying-
	-

	BARR: 
	That'snot---that'snot-
	-

	COONS: 
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	--ifyouhaveadiﬀerenceofopinionwithSpecialCounselMueller, youwon'tnecessarily backhisdecision;youmightoverruleit. 
	BARR: 
	Undertheregulationsthereis--thereisthepossibilityofthat, butthiscommitteewouldnot, youknow, wouldbeawareofit. Youknow, alotofwaterhasgoneunderthedamsince-
	-

	COONS: 
	Yes. 
	BARR: 
	--sinceElliotRichardson. Andalotofdiﬀerentadministrationsonbothpartieshave experimentedwithspecialcounselarrangements. 
	COONS: 
	Well,letme(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	BARR: 
	Andtheexistingrules,Ithink, reﬂecttheexperienceofbothRepublicanandDemocratic administrationsandstriketherightbalance. TheyareputtogetherintheClinton administrationafterKenStarr'sinvestigation. 
	COONS: 
	That'sright. Sothecurrentregulationsonthebooksrightnowpreventtheattorneygeneral fromﬁringwithoutcausethespecialcounsel. Theyrequiremisconduct, derelictionofduty, incapacity, conﬂict. Willyoufollowthatstandard? 
	BARR: 
	Ofcourse. 
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	COONS: 
	Whatifthepresidentaskedyoutorescindorchangethosespecialcounselregulations? 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkthosespecialcounselregulationsshouldstayinplaceforthedurationofthis investigation, andwecandoapostmortemthen,butI--Ihavenoreasontothinkthey'renot working. 
	COONS: 
	Somostfamously, whendirectedbyPresidentNixontoﬁrethespecialcounsel, the prosecutorinvestigatingWatergate, Richardsonrefusedandresignedinstead, asweallwell know. IfthepresidentdirectedyoutochangethoseregulationsandthenﬁreMueller, or simplydirectlyﬁredMueller, wouldyoufollowRichardson'sexampleandresigninstead? 
	BARR: 
	Assumingtherewasnogoodcause? 
	COONS: 
	Assumingnogoodcause. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,Iwouldnotcarryoutthatinstruction. 
	COONS: 
	Letmebringusforwardtoyour1991hearinginfrontofthiscommittee. Youexplainedat thetimehowyouwouldhandletheBCCIcase, andironicallyRobertMueller, thesame individual, wasatthatpointtheheadofthecriminaldivision, andyoutestiﬁedthatyouhad directedMuellertosparenoresources, usewhateverresourcesarenecessaryandpursuethe 
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	investigationasaggressivelyaspossibleandfollowtheevidenceanywhereandeverywhere itleads. WouldyougivesimilardirectiontoRobertMuellertoday? 
	BARR: 
	Idon'tthinkheneedsthatdirection. Ithinkthat'swhathe'sdoing. 
	COONS: 
	YoualsosaidatthathearingthatRobertMuellerandthatinvestigationhadfullcooperation, fullsupportandcarteblanche. Couldheexpectasimilarlevelofsupportfromyouas attorneygeneral? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,hewill--asIsaid,I'mgoingtocarryoutthoseregulations, andIwanthimtoﬁnishthis investigation. 
	COONS: 
	Ithinkwealldo. AndIamencouragedbythingsyou'vesaidaboutthisandjustwantto makesurewe'vehadasclearaconversationaswecan. AttorneyGeneralRichardsonalso testiﬁedtherelationshipbetweenthepresidentandtheJusticeDepartmentshouldbearm'slength. You'vesaidsimilarthingsabouttheimportanceofshieldingthedepartmentfrom politicalinﬂuence. Canyoumakeasimilarcommitmenttoustomaintainanarm's-length relationshipbetweentheJusticeDepartmentandthepresidentregardingthespecial counselinvestigationandotherinvestigations? 
	-

	BARR: 
	Well, rememberIsaidtherearelikethreediﬀerentfunctions,generally,thattheattorney generalperforms. Ithinkontheenforcementside, especiallywheremattersareofeither personalorpoliticalinteresttopeopleattheWhiteHouse, thentherewouldbeanarm's-
	-
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	therehastobeanarm's-lengthrelationship. TheWhiteHousecounselcanplaya constructiveroleinthataswell. So-
	-

	COONS: 
	Letmeask,ifthepresidentaskedforinformationthatcouldwellbeusedtointerferewith thespecialcounselinvestigation, tomisdirectorcurtailitinsomeway, wouldyougiveitto him? 
	BARR: 
	No,Ithink--Imean,therearerulesonwhatkindofinformationcanﬂowandwhatkindof communicationscangobetweentheWhiteHouse. Andyouknow, Iwouldfollowthose. But thebasicprincipleisthattheintegrityofaninvestigationhastobeprotected. Thereare timeswhereyoucanshareinformationthatwouldn'tthreatentheintegrityofan investigationlike, youknow,forexample, whenIwasattorneygeneralandwewere investigatingsomethingthatrelatedtopresident--someonewhohadarelationshipwith PresidentBush--Icouldjustorientthemthat,youknow,there'sgoingtobeas
	COONS: 
	IfyoulearnedthattheWhiteHouse, notdirectlythroughyou, butthroughothermeans, was attemptingtointerferewiththeinvestigation, wouldyoureportthatinformationtothe specialcounselandtoCongress? 
	BARR: 
	Well,therearesomeconclusionsinthereaboutinterfering,youknow, and--and,youknow, ifIthoughtsomethingimproperwasbeingdone,thenIwoulddealwithitasattorney general. 
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	COONS: 
	Last, inthatconﬁrmationhearingbackin1973,thenSenatorBirchBayhofIndianaasked Richardson, supposetheprosecutordeterminesit'snecessarytogetthepresident'saﬃdavit ortohavehistestimonypersonally. Wouldthatbethekindofdeterminationhe,thespecial prosecutor, couldmake?Richardsonsaid,yes. Willyougiveasimilaranswertodaythatyou won'tinterferewithspecialcounselMuellerseekingtestimonyfromthepresident? 
	BARR: 
	Youknow,Ithink, asIsay,theregulationscurrentlyprovidesomeavenueifthereissome disagreement. IthinkthatinordertooverruleMuellersomeonewouldhavetode--the attorneygeneralortheactingattorneygeneralwouldhavetodetermine, aftergiving Mueller'spositiongreatweight, thatitwasunwa--sounwarrantedunderestablishedpolicies thatitshouldnotbedone. Sothat'sthestandardIwouldapply. ButI'mnotgoingto surrendertheres--theregulationsgivesomeresponsibilitytotheattorneygeneraltohave thissortofgeneralsuperv--notday-to-daysupervision, 
	COONS: 
	Whatgivesmepauseandsortofledmetothislineofquestioning, Mr. Barr, wasthatJune 2018 memoyousenttothedeputyattorneygeneral,inwhichatonepointyoustateMueller shouldnotbepermittedtodemandthepresidentsubmittointerrogationaboutalleged obstruction. Ifthespecialcounselwantstosubpoenathepresident'stestimonytoask questionsaboutobstruction, andyou'resupervisingtheinvestigation, wouldyourelyonthat theorytoblockthesubpoena? 
	BARR: 
	Well,thequestionformewouldbewhat'sthepredicate,youknow?AndIdon'tknowwhat thefactsare. Idon'tknowwhatthefactsare. Andiftherewasafactualbasisfordoingit, 
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	andIcouldn'tsaythatitwas--itviolatedestablishedpolicies, thenIwouldn'tinterfere. ButI don'tknowwhatthefactsare. 
	COONS: 
	Well,ifImightjustinclosing,Mr. Chairman, we'reinthisuniquesituationwhereyou've knownRobertMueller30years. You'vesaidyourespectandadmirehisprofessionalism, his conduct. He'sbeenentrustedbyyouwithsigniﬁcant, complexinvestigationsinthepast. There'snoreasontoimagine, sinceheisthepersonwhowouldknowthefacts, thathe wouldn'tbeactinginaninappropriateway. Soitismyhope, evenmyexpectation,thatyou wouldtrustRobertMuellertomakethatdecisionaboutwhethertocompelthepresidentto testifyinanappropriatewayandthathewouldnotfacea
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	COONS: 
	Ilookforwardtothenextround. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorSasse. 
	SASSE: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairmanandcongratulationsonyournewcalllayinghere. Liam, Ihave careeradvice. Iwon'tdoitoncamera. Wewanttoknowifyouaretakingnotesforyour cousinsaboutcareeradvicethough?We'll--we'llaskyoulater. 
	General, congratulationsonyournominationandcon--thanksforyourpastservice. Ihad plannedtoaskyouforsomepledgesrelatedtotheMuellerinvestigationinprivatetome. In 
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	publictodayIthinkyou'vealreadydonethat. HowshouldtheAmericanpeoplethinkabout whattheM--theMuellerinvestigationisabout? 
	BARR: 
	Ithink--IthinkthattherewereallegationsmadeofRussianattemptstointerfereinthe electionandtherewereallegationsmadethatsomeAmericanswereincahootswiththe Russiansandthewordisnowbeing--that'sbeingusediscollusion. AndasIunderstandit Muellerislookingintothose--thoseallegations. 
	SASSE: 
	Youknowalotofthemediasummaryoftheinvestigationstartswithpeople'sviewsand whotheyvotedforinthe2016presidentialelectionandforthoseofuswhospendalotof timereadingintelligencereports--ahandfulofusonthiscommitteeareabouttoleavetogo toanintelligencebrieﬁng--whatRussiaisdoingtotheU.S. isbigandbroadandnot constrainedtothe2016 electionandincreasinglyitfeelsliketheAmericanpeoplereduce Russiatojusthowyouthoughtaboutthe2016presidentialelection. 
	Sosinceyouwillhaveserioussupervisoryresponsibilitiesoverpartsoftheintelligence communityisPutinafriendorafoeandwhatarehislong-termobjectivestowardtheU.S.? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Idon'tholdmyselfoutasaforeignpolicyexpertbutIthinkthatheis--Ithinkthe Russiansarea--areapotentrivalofourcountryandhisforeignpolicyobjectivesareusually directlycontrarytoourgoals. IthinkhewantstoweakentheAmericanalliancesinEurope andhealsowantstobecomeaplayerintheMiddleE--moreofaplayerintheMiddleEast. A lotofhisforeignpolicyobjectivesare--areatoddswithours. 
	Atthesametime,IthinktheprimaryrivaloftheUnitedStatesisChina. IthinkRussiaishalf thesiz
	eitwaswhenwewerefacingthematthepeakoftheColdWar. Theireconomyis long-termprognosisisnowherenearChina's. IalsofeelthatpartofwhatRussiaisuptois 
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	tryingtoholdontoUkraineand(INAUDIBLE) Russiaintheirorbit. ButI'm--I'mconcerned thattheﬁxationonRussianotobscurethedangerfromChina. 
	SASSE: 
	IwanttoaskyousomeChinaquestionsaswell. Iwanttoaskyouaboutyourroleonthe president'sIntelligenceSupervisoryBoardbutstickingwithRussiaforaminutedoes Hootonhaveanylong-termideologicalalignmentwiththeU.S. ordoeshehaveother objectivestryingtosowdiscordbroadlyhere? 
	BARR: 
	YouknowI'mnot--I'mnota--anexpertonthisareabutIthinktherearepot--youknowI thinktheremaybesomepotentialareaswhereourinterestcouldbealigned. 
	SASSE: 
	Butwhenheinterferesheredoeshehavelong-terminterestinthesuccessofoneoranother politicalpartyordoeshehavespeciﬁcinterestinsowingchaosanddiscordtomake Americansdistrustoneanother? 
	AndoneofthereasonsIaskisbecauseI'dlovetohaveyousayinpublicsomeofwhatyou saidtomeaboutattheendofthisinvestigationwhathappensnext. Areyouconcernedthat whentheMuellerreportisreceivedquiteapart-
	-

	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	SASSE: 
	--thenarrowestpiecesyouknowwhereI'mheaded. 
	BARR: 
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	SoImeanI--I--IthinkthatthebasicvulnerabilityoftheUnitedStatesintheageinwhichwe livetheinternetage, youknowtheglobaliz
	ationofinformationandsoforthisthe vulnerabilityof--thatweareseeingwhichispeoplecancreatedoubt, undercutconﬁdence inourelect--ourelectionprocessandalsotorqueourpublicdiscourseinwaysthatweﬁnd hardtoperceiveandthishaslong-termdangerfortheUnitedStatesandthesurvivalofa democraticsocietylikeours. 
	AndsoIhopethatwhatevertheoutcomeoftheMuellerinvestigationthatweviewthisasa biggerproblemofinter--foreigninterferenceonourelectionswhichiswhyIsaiditwasone ofmyprioritiesandit'snotjusttheRussians,it'sothercountriesaswellandwehaveto focusonthat. WehavetoensurethatwearedoingallwecanandI'mnotsureallofthatis defensiveeither. ImeanintermsoflawenforcementIthinkwehavetolookatalloptions includingsanctionsandotheroptionstodeterorganiz
	edeﬀortstointerfereinourelections. 
	SASSE: 
	Soyouhavenoreasontodoubtanyaspectoftheintelligencecommunity'scomposite assessmentaboutRussianeﬀortsinthe2016election? 
	BARR: 
	IhavenoreasontodoubtthattheRussiansattemptedtointerfereinourelection. 
	SASSE: 
	AndDanCoats, theNationalIntelligencedirector,hastestiﬁedinpublicandhassaidin diﬀerentmediacontextthatRussiaisalreadyplottingforthe2020electionsintheU.S. You havenoreasonto--todoubtthat? 
	BARR: 
	Ihaven'ts--youknowI--Ihaven'tseenthosereports. I--Ihadn'treviewedthereportsabout the2016butIhavenoreasontodoubtit. 
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	SASSE: 
	Andcanyouexplainwhatyourroleisonthepresident'sIntelligenceAdvisoryBoard? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Iamactuallyaconsultant,Iamanadvisoron--onsortoflegalissues. Obviously, I'm steppingdownfromthatpositionifI'mconﬁrmedbutI'vebeenjustadvising. I'mnota memberoftheboard. I'montheCIA'sexternaladvisoryboardand--andyouknowIhave beenparticipatingonthataswell. 
	SASSE: 
	Whenyoutalkaboutthelong-termChineseeﬀortstoalsosowdiﬀerentkindsofdiscordin theU.S. obviouslynotcrossinganyﬁneclassiﬁedlinesherebutlong-termintereststhat othercountrieshaveinstrategicrivalrywiththeU.S. tousegrayspaceandinformationwill statusoperationswarfareagainstushowdoyouseetheroleofthenationalsecuritybranch andtheFBImorebroadlyﬁttingintothelargerICandwhatresponsibilitiesdoyousee wouldbeonyourprioritylistasyouarriveatthedepartment? 
	BARR: 
	YouknowI--I've--I'vebeenoutofthedepartmentforsolongyouknowI'mnotreallysure abouthowthatiscurrentlybeinghandled. YouknowI--Ialsothinkthatwehadour attentionfocusedonterrorismwhichwecan'tletupand--butIwanttomakesurethatand I'msureChrisWrayisontopofthisandlookingforwardtotalkingtohimaboutit, of makingsurethatthebureauisplayingacentralrolein--incombatingeﬀortsbyforeign countriestoengageinthosekindsofhostileintelligenceactivities. 
	SASSE: 
	Youhaveunpackedacoupleoftimestodaythethreediﬀerentrolesorfunctionsofthe attorneygeneral. Can--couldyoudothatonemoretimeinsummary?ThenIwanttoaskyou aparticularquestion. Whatare--whatarethosethreerolesasyouseethem? 
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	BARR: 
	Iseethethreerulesin1789theﬁrsttosetuptheoﬃce. Theﬁrstrolewasprovidingadvice tothepresidentinthecabinetandrepresentingtheUnitedStatesincasesbeforethe SupremeCourt. AndIseethethreerolesasprovidingadvice, sup--beingapolicyadvisoron legalandlawenforcementpolicyissuesandthetoplawenforcementoﬃcerenforcingthe laws. 
	SASSE: 
	Andsoinnowaywouldthejobofprotectingthepresidentbeasubsetofanyofthosethree jobs?Thelanguageofprotectingthepresidenthasbeenusedoccasionallyinthis administrationtorefertothewayitwasconceivedofhowEricHolderdidhisjob. Isthere anysenseinwhichit'stheattorneygeneral'sjobtoprotectthepresident? 
	BARR: 
	No,thatwasn'tincludedinmy--inmydescriptionoftheroleoftheattorneygeneral. Obviouslyasa--inthepolicyarenathedepart--theattorneygeneralissomeonewhoshould besympathetictotheadministrationanditspolicygoals. 
	SASSE: 
	Buttherearecircumstanceswherethosethreerolescouldcomeintosomeinternalconﬂict oryoucouldbeaskedtodothingsthatdon'talignwiththemandthere'sprobablyalistthat youhave. Iwon'tal--askyoutoenumerateitherebutthere'sprobablyalistofissueswhere youcanimagineneedingtoresignbecauseofwhatyouwereaskedtodointhespaceofsocalledprotectingthepresident? 
	-

	BARR: 
	IfI--ifIwaseveraskedtodosomethingthatIthoughtwasunlawfulanddirectedtodothatI wouldn'tdoitandIwouldresignratherthandoitbutIthinkthatshouldbetrueofevery oﬃcerwhoservesanywhereingovernment, whateverbranch. 
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	SASSE: 
	IamattimebutIhadaseriesofquestionsrelatedtosomeofwhatSenatorErnstdidabout Sarah'sLaw. SheandIhavejointlybeenactiveinthatspace,thetragiccaseoftheyoung womanthatshewastalkingaboutfromCouncilBluﬀswasactually--itoccurredinOmaha andEdwinMejia,herkiller, isstillatlargeandboththelastadministrationandthis administrationhavenotprioritiz
	edthatenoughin--inourunderstandingandIimaginethat SenatorErnstandIwillfollowupwithalettertoyouonthataswell. Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorBlumenthal. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Thanks,Mr. Chairman. Icongratulateyou, andIlookforwardtoworkingwithyouand congratulatealsothenewmembersofourcommitteethathavejoinedus. Andthankyou verymuch,Mr. Barr,forbeingheretoday,foryourpastrecordofpublicservice. AndIhope Iamperhapsthelasttomakereferencetoyourgrandson-
	-

	(LAUGHTER) 
	--bysayingthatifhemakesitthroughthishearingtodayhecanhaveanyjobhewants-
	-

	(LAUGHTER) 
	--inthisbuilding. LetmesayﬁrstthatasaformerUnitedStatesattorneyIshareyour allegianceandadmirationfortheDepartmentofJusticeand, equallyso,theFederalBureau ofInvestigation. AndIknowthatyourespectMr. Wray,thecurrentdirector,butIthinkyou wouldagreewithmethattheFBIisprobablyoneofthebest,ifnotthemostprofessional, accomplished, skilledanddedicatedlawenforcementagenciesintheworld. Wouldyou agree? 
	BARR: 
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	Yes, senator. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	AndIhopethatthepresidentagreeswithyouandperhapssharesthatviewmorepubliclyin thefuture. WhentheFBIbeginsacounterintelligenceinvestigation,ifitisofthepresident oftheUnitedStatesforworkingwithaforeignadversary, thatdecisionwouldbesubjectto multiplelevelsofreviewwithintheFBI, correct? 
	BARR: 
	Iassume. Idon'tknowwhatruleswereineﬀectatthetime. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well,inyourexperiencetherewouldbe? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, yes. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Andyouhavenoreasontothinkthatthoseruleshavechanged? 
	BARR: 
	Idon'tknowwhatthepracticewas. Therewas-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Andalmostcertainlyinthatkindofextraordinaryinvestigationyouwouldagreewithmeit wouldbeextraordinaryfortheFBItobeinvestigatingthepresidentforworkingwitha determinedforeignadversary. Thereprobablywouldbeinformationsharedwiththedeputy attorneygeneralortheattorneygeneral, agree? 
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	BARR: 
	Iwould--Iwouldhopeso. ThereasonI'mhesitatingisbecause, youknow, someofthese textsthatwe'veallreadaresoweirdandbeyondmyexperiencewiththeFBI. Idon'tknow whatwasgoingon. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well,thesereportsarestomachturningintermsoftheabsolutelystunningand unprecedentedkindofinvestigationthattheyreﬂect. You'dagree? 
	BARR: 
	Youmeanthetextsarestomachturning? 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Thereportsoftheinvestigationofthepresident. 
	BARR: 
	I'mnotsurewhatyou'retalkingaboutwhenyousaythereportsoftheinvestigation. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	ThereportsthattheFBIopenedaninvestigationofthepresidentforworkingwithaforeign adversary, Russia. 
	BARR: 
	Andwhat'sstomachturningaboutthat?Which--whatisstomachturning, theallegation againstthepresidentorthefactthat-
	-

	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
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	(INAUDIBLE) thatanallegationwouldbemadeandbeunderinvestigation. Wellletme moveon. Iwanttotalkabouttransparency. Wouldyoucommit--willyoucommittothis committeethatyouwillnotallowthepresidentorhisattorneystoeditorchangethespecial counselreportbeforeitissubmittedtoCongressorthepublic? 
	BARR: 
	IalreadysaidthatIwouldnotpermiteditingofmyreport, whateverreportI--Iorwhoeveris theattorneygeneralmakes. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	AndwillyoucommitthatyouwillcometoCongressandexplainanydeletionsorchanges thataremadetothatreportbeforeitisissued? 
	BARR: 
	Okay, soyouknowtherearediﬀerentreportsatworkhere. Whichreportareyou--thereare twodiﬀerentreports. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	I'mtalkingaboutthespecialcounselreport. 
	BARR: 
	Okay, wellunderthecurrentregulationsthespecialcounselreportisconﬁdential. (INAUDIBLE) Thereportthatgoespublicwouldbeareportbytheattorneygeneral. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Willyoucommitthatyouwillexplaintousanychangesordeletionsthatyoumaketothe specialcounselreportthat'ssubmittedtoyouinwhateveryoupresenttous? 
	BARR: 
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	IwillcommittoprovidingasmuchinformationasIcanconsistentwiththeregulations. Are yousaying,forexample,thatifinformationisdeletedthatwouldbeforlikeclassiﬁcation purposesIwouldidentifythatandthingslikethat? 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well,thatyouwillcommittoexplainingtouswhatthereasonsareforyourdeletingany informationthatthespecialcounselincludesthatyouarepreventingusorthepublicfrom seeing. 
	BARR: 
	Youknow,thatwould--thatwouldbemyintent. Ihavetosaythattherules--Idon'tknow whatkindofreportisbeingprepared. Ihavenoidea, andIhavenoideawhatActing AttorneyGeneralRosensteinhasdiscussedwithSpecialCounselMueller. IfI'mconﬁrmed I'mgoingtogoinandseewhat'sbeingcontemplated, andwhatthey'veagreedto, andwhat theirinterpretation, youknow, whatgameplantheyhaveinmind. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Willyoupermitspecialcounsel-
	-

	BARR: 
	ButI'm--butmypurposeistogetasmuchaccurateinformationoutasIcanconsistentwith theregulation. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well,theregulationsandrulesgiveyouextraordinarilybroaddiscretion, andI'mhoping, andI'maskingyoutocommit,thatyouwillexplaintousinformationthatyouhavetaken outofthatspecialcounselreport. AndIalsowanttoaskyouaboutrestrictionsonthespecial counsel. Willyoucommitthatyouwillallowthespecialcounseltoexercisehisjudgmenton subpoenasthatareissuedandindictmentsthathemaydecideshouldbebrought? 
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	BARR: 
	AsIsaid, Iwillcarryoutmyresponsibilitiesundertheregulations. Undertheregulations the, whoeverisattorneygeneral, canonlyoverrulethespecialcounselifthespecialcounsel doessomethingthatissounwarrantedunderestablishedpractice. Iamnotgoingto surrendertheresponseabilitiesIhave. Iwould--youwouldnotlikeitifImadesomepledge tothepresidentthatIwasgoingtoexercisemyresponsibilitiesinaparticularway, andI'm notgoingtomakeapledgetoanyoneonthiscommitteethatI'mgoingtoexerciseitina particularwayorsurrenderit. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Willyouallowthespecialcounseltoexercisehisjudgmentastowhatresourcesare necessary?Willyoumeetthoseneedsforresources? 
	BARR: 
	Thatwouldbemyexpectation. Ithink, youknow,Imeanifyoubelievethemediathey're sortofstartingtoreducetheirresources. SoIwouldn'texpectthatwouldbeaproblem. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Willyouallowthespecialcounseltoexercisehisjudgmentastowhatthescopeshouldbe? Thepresidenthastalkedaboutredlinesaroundﬁnances. Willyouallowthespecialcounsel toexercisehisjudgmentaboutwhatthescopeshouldbe, evenifthepresidentsaysthat thereshouldberedlines? 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkthescopeoftheinvestigationisdeterminedbyhischarterfromtheactingattorney general. Andifhewantstogobeyondthatcharter,Iassumehewouldcomebackandtalkto whoevertheattorneygeneralisaboutthat. 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
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	Willyouimposeanyrestrictionsonotherprosecutorswhoarealsoinvestigatingthe president?Asyou'rewellaware, intheSouthernDistrictofNewYorkthepresidenthasbeen named,ineﬀect, asanunindictedco-conspirator. TheEasternDistrictofVirginiahasan investigationthat'srelevanttothepresident. Willyouimposeanyrestrictionsonthose prosecutors? 
	BARR: 
	Theoﬃceofattorneygeneralisinchargeofthepros--withtheexceptionofthespecial counselwhohasspecialrulesapplicabletohim--isinchargeoftheworkoftheDepartment ofJustice. I'm(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	--butyouhavearesponsibilitytoallowprosecutorstoenforcethelaw. 
	BARR: 
	Ihavetheresponsibilitytousemyjudgmentanddiscretionthatareinherentintheoﬃceof attorneygeneraltosupervise, andI'mnotgoingtogoaroundsayingwellthisU.S. attorney orthatU.S. attorneyI'mgoingtodeferto. And--and--and(INAUDIBLE) I'mnot-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Youreferredearliertothepossibilityofﬁring-
	-

	BARR: 
	Excuseme? 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	--aUnitedStatesattorney. WouldyouallowthepresidenttoﬁreaUnitedStatesattorney andtherebystopaninvestigation? 
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	BARR: 
	IwouldnotstandbyandallowaU.S. attorneytobeﬁredforthepurposeofstoppingan investigation. ButthepresidentcanﬁreaU.S. attorney. They'reapresidentialappointment. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Butthepresidentshouldhaveacausebeyondsimplystoppinganinvestigationforﬁringa UnitedStatesattorney, evenifheorsheis(INAUDIBLE). 
	BARR: 
	Well, asIsaid,Iwouldnotstandbyandallow, youknow, aninvestigationtobestoppedifI thoughtitwasalawfulinvestigation. Iwouldn'tstandbyforthat. Butthepresidentisfreeto ﬁrehis, youknow, oﬃcialsthathe'sappointed, and-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Iwanttoaskadiﬀerent--aquestion, aquestiononadiﬀerenttopic. Yousaidthat--andI'm quotingyou--IbelieveRoev. Wadeshouldbeoverruled. Yousaidthatin1991. Doyoustill believeit? 
	BARR: 
	Isaidin1991thatIthoughtasanoriginalmatterithadbeenwronglydecided, andthat was, what, within18yearsofitsdecision?Nowit'sbeen46years, andthedepartmenthas stopped, underRepublicanadministration, stoppedasaroutinematteraskingthatitbe overruled, andIdon'tseethatbeingturned--youknow, Idon'tseethatbeingresumed. 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	WouldyoudefendRoev. Wadeifitwerechallenged? 
	WouldyoudefendRoev. Wadeifitwerechallenged? 
	BARR: 
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	WhatIdefendRoev. Wade?Imean, usuallythewaythese--thiswouldcomeupwouldbea stateregulationofsomesortandwhetherit'spermissibleunderRoev. Wade, andIwould hopethattheAGwouldmakewhateverargumentsarenecessarytoaddressthat. Ithinkthe justiceshave--therecentoneshavemadeclearthattheyconsiderRoev. Wadean establishedprecedent. It'sbeenonthebooks46years. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	AndyouwouldenforcetheClinicAccessProtectionAct? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, congratulationsonyournomination. Thankyoufor beinghere. Youwereeminentlyqualiﬁedforthispositionwhenyouwereconﬁrmed unanimouslybythiscommittee27yearsagoandyouareeminentlyqualiﬁedtoday. It'sa pleasuretohaveyouhere. IwantedtostartwhereSenatorBlumenthalstartedaswellwith thereportsabouttheFBIcounterintelligenceinvestigationlaunchedagainstthepresident, whichIalsoﬁndtobestomachturning,thoughperhaps,fordiﬀerentreasons. 
	TheNewYorkTimesreportindicatesthattheFBIbegantheprobeinpartbecausetheywere concernedaboutthepresident'sforeignpolicystances, commentshemadeduringthe2016 campaignaboutforeignpolicy, andtheRepublicanParty'soﬃcialpositionontheUkraine. InyourexpensewiththeFBI,isitstrangetohaveacounterintelligenceinvestigationbegun becausemembersofthatbureaudisagreewiththeforeignpolicystancesofacandidatefor presidentorapresidentoftheUnitedStates? 
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	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Yet, theSupremeCourthasbeenunequivocalthatthepresidentandoursystemof government,thepresidentpossesses, andI'mgoingtoquotenow, "Theplenaryand exclusivepowerasthesoleorganofthefederalgovernmentintheﬁeldofinternational relations, apowerwhichdoesnotrequire, asitsbasis--asabasisforitsexercise, anactof Congress." That'stheveryfamousCurtiss-Wrightcase. Toyourknowledge, isthatstillgood law? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Andyouthinkthatwasrightlydecided? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Letmeaskyouthis, woulditconcernyou, asattorneygeneral, ifFBIagentsweremaking decisionsaboutwhenandhowtolaunchaninvestigationofanelectedoﬃcialifitwasin ordertoavoidbeingsupervisedordirectedbytheiragencyleadership?Wouldthatbe concerningtoyou? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
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	HAWLEY: 
	As--asis,Imightjustadd, reportedbytheNewYorkTimes. Letme--letmeswitchgearsand askyouaboutanothertopicthatyoumentionedalittlebitearlierintheﬁeldwhenwewere talkinggenerallyaboutantitrusts. Thisissomethingyoutalkaboutthingsthathavechanged inthe27yearssinceyouwerelasthere. Oneofthethingsthathaschangedisthe extraordinaryconcentrationofpowerinoureconomyinthehandsofafewcorporations, no moresothaninSiliconValley, whichyoureferencedearliertoday. AndIjustwanttoaskyou alittlebitaboutthat. 
	Bigtechcompanieslike,forinstance,GoogleandFacebook, whohavedrawnmuch attentionoflate, posesigniﬁcantchallenges, notjustforcompetition,butalsoforthelarger issuesofprivacyandthefreeﬂowofideas. TheJusticeDepartmenthasrecentlydeferredto theFTCacrossthisrangeofissues. AndwhileI'mhopefulthatChairmanSimonswillright thecoursehere, theFTChasperhapstoooftenallowedthesecompaniesinmyviewto violateprivacyandmaybeantitrustlawswithoutmeaningfulconsequences. Here'smy question, whatroledoyouthinktheJusticeDepartmenthasworki
	BARR: 
	Well, obviouslycompetitionisofcentralconcerntotheantitrustdivisionand--andyou know,thereare, Iguess, concourse(SP) dotsthathadbeenreachedbetweentheFTCand-andtheantitrustdivisionastowhohasprimaryjurisdictionindiﬀerentareas. ButIwould liketoweighintosomeoftheseissues. I'dliketohavetheantitrustsupportthateﬀorttoget moreinvolvedinreviewingthesituationfromacompetitionstandpoint. Ialsoaminterested intheissueofprivacyandthequestionofwhoownsthisdataand, youknow,it'snotanarea thatI'vestudiedcloselyorbecomeanexpertin
	-

	HAWLEY: 
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	Justonthesubjectofownershipofdata, asyouknow,Facebookiscurrentlysubjecttoa 2011 consentdecreeaspartofwhichitdidagreednottoreleaseorshareorsellpersonal userinformationwithouttheknowledgeandconsentofitsusers. Facebook'sCEO,Mark Zuckerberg,hasadamantlyinsistedunderoath, asrecentlyofasApril10of2018,thaton Facebook, "Usershavecompletecontrol," thosearehiswords, "Overeverythingthatthey share." 
	However, asI'msureyou'reaware, recentmediareportshaveindicatedthatFacebook,in fact, routinelyhasshareduserinformationwithoutuser'sconsentorevenknowledge. Now, theJusticeDepartmenthastheandforwardauthoritytoenforcethetermsofthe2011 consentdecreeandpotentiallytoprosecuteanyviolation. Willyouconsiderdoingso? 
	BARR: 
	Well,becausethatissomethingthatImighthavetogetinvolvedwithandsuperviseifI'm conﬁrmed, I'drathernot, youknow, makeanycommentsaboutitrightnow. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Letmeaskyouthis,thesesametechnologycompaniesalsocontroltheﬂowofinformation, oratleastinﬂuenceit,theﬂowofinformationtoconsumerstoanunprecedenteddegree. I mean,youhavetogowaybackinAmericanhistorytoﬁndanyanalog,backtothepaper trust,to--toﬁndananalogofagroup, asmallgroupofcompaniesthatcontrolthe informationandinﬂuencethenewsanditsﬂowtoAmericanstoanextent--totheextent thatthesecompaniesdo. 
	Andthereisgrowingevidencethatthesecompanieshaveleveragedtheirconsiderable marketpower, ifnotmonopolystatus,todisfavorcertainideologicalviewpoints, particularlyconservativeandlibertarianviewpoints. DoyouthinktheDepartmentof Justicehasauthorityundertheantitrustlawswereconsumerprotectionlawsorotherlawsto addressbiasbydominantonlineplatforms? 
	BARR: 
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	Iwouldjustsaygenerally,youknow,Iwouldn'tthinkitwould,youknow, I'dhavetothink longandhardbeforeIsaidthatitwasreallythestuﬀofanantitrustmatter. Ontheother hand,itcouldinvolveissuesofdisclosureand--andother--andother--implicateotherlaws likethat. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Isthereanypoint,doyouthink, atwhichpoliticalbiascouldrequirearesponse?AndI'm thinking,forexample, HarvardLawProfessorJonathanZittrainhaswrittenhowGoogleor Facebook,forexample, couldmanipulatetheiralgorithmstosigniﬁcantlyswingvoter turnouttofavoracandidateoftheirchoice. Wouldthatsortofconductrequirearesponse fromthedepartment? 
	BARR: 
	Ihavetothinkaboutthat. I--II'mnotsure. Youknow,I'dliketoknowmoreaboutthe--the phenomenaandwhatlawscouldbeindicatedbyit. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Letmeaskyouthis, theJusticeDepartment'scaseagainstAT&T-TimeWarner,focusedon howthemergedcompanywouldcontrolorcouldcontrolthedistributionofinformationto discriminateagainstrivalcontent. AndIunderstandthatyou, ofcourse, arerecusing yourselffrom--fromthatmatter,butgenerallyspeaking,generallyspeaking,doyousee similarconcernsregardinghowdominantSiliconValleyﬁrmscouldusetheirmarketpower andsocialmediaorsearchtodiscriminateagainstrivalproductsorservicesorviewpoints? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. And--andmakingclearthatwhatI'msayingnowhasnoapplicationto,youknow, the transactionthatwejusttalkedaboutandtalkingabouttheothercompanies,yes. 
	HAWLEY: 
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	Letmeaskyouamorebroadlyaboutthequestionoftheantitrustandmergersandyou--you gesturedtowardsthisearlierinyourtestimony,I'mincreasinglyworriedthatthe departmentis--isnotenforcingvisitvigorouslytheantitruststatutesinmanyofthesectors oftheeconomy, notjusttechnology. Wesee, again, asyoualludedto, weseegrowing concentrationofpowerin--invarioussectorsheldbyjustafewﬁrms. Andifyoulookat recenttrendsinthedepartmentscrutinyofproposedmergers,it'satrecordlows. 
	Lastyear, forinstance,theDepartmentofJusticeantitrustdivisionscrutiniz
	edmergers throughsecondrequestforinformationinlessthanonepercentofalleligiblecases. Thatis, Ibelieve,thelowestlevelofmergerscrutinyrecordedsincetheFTCstartedtrackingthose statisticsbackin1981. Andjustforcomparisonpurposes, in1981thatreviewwasﬁve timeshigherthanitwasin2018. Myquestionisdoyouthinkthatthisrecordlowlevelof mergerscrutinyisappropriateand, ifyou'reconﬁrmedasattorneygeneral, whatmightyou dotoensurethattheantitrustdivisionfaithfullyandvigorouslyenforcesthelaw? 
	BARR: 
	Well,I--I--Iamforvigorousenforcementoftheantitrustlawstopreservecompetitionand, asIsaid, thisisgoingtobeanareaI'mgoingtowanttogetintoand--and--andworkwith MakanDelrahimonifI'mconﬁrmed. Iwouldn'tnecessarilyuse,youknow,theincidenceof mergerreviewasaproxyforfailureofcompetition. Attheendoftheday,it'scompetition we'reworriedaboutindiﬀerentmarkets. ButI--Iaminterestedinexploringthose, you know,thosestatisticswewerejustusing. 
	HAWLEY: 
	And--anddoyouthinkit'sfairtosay, wouldyouagreethatthehistoriclevelsof concentrationthatweareseeingandmanypartsoftheeconomy,technologyinparticular, is--ispotentiallydetrimentaltocompetition?Imeanitis,potentiallyandingeneral, butit-itissomethingthatisworthscrutiniz
	-

	ingandbeingconcernedaboutifoneisconcerned aboutfree,fair, andopencompetition. 
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	BARR: 
	Yousaidthesiz
	e? 
	HAWLEY: 
	Yes. Thehistoriclevelsofconcentration. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,Ithinkwhat's--thethingI'mconcernedaboutarethatthenetworkeﬀectsthathave now--thatarenowaworkwheretheresopowerfulthatparticularsectorscouldessentially besubsumed--youknow, subsumedintothese--intothesenetworks. They'rejustvery powerfulnetworkeﬀectsbecauseofthesiz
	e. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Yes. Iseemytimehasalmostexpired. Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	HIRONO: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Mr. Chairman, IwelcomethearrivaloftheimmigrationLindsey Grahamof2013. TheotherLindseyGraham, weshallsee, asyouyourselfhave acknowledged. Mr. Barr,Iaskthesequestions, thesetwoquestionsofeverynomineewho comesbeforeanyofthecommitteesonwhichIsit, andthesearethequestions. Sinceyou becamealegaladulthaveyouevermadeunwantedrequestsforsexualfavorsorcommitted anyverbalorphysicalharassmentorassaultofasexualnature? 
	BARR: 
	No. 
	HIRONO: 
	Haveyoueverfaceddisciplineorenteredintoasettlementrelatedtothiskindofconduct? 
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	BARR: 
	No. 
	HIRONO: 
	Ihaveaquestionrelatingtorecusal. You'vebeenaskedanumberoftimes. Itisveryclear thatthepresidentdoesnotwantanattorneygeneralwhowillrecusehimselffromthe Muellerinvestigation. SowhenhecamebeforeusforconﬁrmationinJanuary2017, Jeﬀ Sessionswroteonhiscommitteequestionnairethathewould,quote, seekandfollowthe adviceoftheDepartmentofJustice'sdesignatedagencyethicsoﬃcialifconfrontedwitha conﬂictofinterest, endquote. Andinfact,hediddothat. Andhewasbasicallypummeled bythepresidenteversince. SoMatthewWhitakerhasnotcomebef
	SoyouranswertoSenatorKlobucharmakesitclearthatyouaregoingtobasicallyfollowthe Whitakermodel. Canyouunderstandwhythatisnotterriblyreassuringtous?Thesearenot normaltimes. Thisisnot27yearsago. TodaythepresidentisDonaldTrump, whowilldo anythingtoprotecthimself. Hewantsyou, whohaswrittenamanifestoaboutwhythe presidentshouldn'tbeprosecuted, atleastforobstructionofjustice, whohasmetwithand consultedwiththepresident'sdefenseattorneys, whohaswrittenop-edsdefendinghis ﬁringsofSallyYatesandJamesComeytobehisattorneygen
	BARR: 
	Becausetheregulationsandtheresponsibilitiesoftheattorneygeneralastheheadofthe agencyveststhatresponsibilityintheattorneygeneralAndIamnotgoingtosurrenderthe 
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	responsibilitiesoftheattorneygeneraltogetthetitle. Idon'tneedthetitle. Ifyoudon't--if youdon'ttrustmeto-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Well,youhave--excuseme. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HIRONO: 
	Youhaverepeatedthatanswermany, manytimes. However,Ithinkweallacknowledgethat JeﬀSessionspossiblydidn'twanttorecusehimself,buthedid. Andsoyouhaveitwithin yourpowertofollowtheethicsadviceofyourowndepartment, andyou'retellingusyou're notgoingto, sothatisthebottomline. 
	BARR: 
	No, senator, IthinkJeﬀSessionsrecusedhimselfbecauseofadiﬀerentprovision, which wasthepoliticalconﬂictprovision. 
	HIRONO: 
	Ithinkinthecontext-
	-

	BARR: 
	Heplayedarolein--heplayedaroleinthecampaign. 
	HIRONO: 
	--ofallofthethingsthat--inthecontextofallofthethingsthatyouhavedone,basicallyto gettheattentionofPresidentTrumptonominateyou,Iwouldsaythatthereisapolitical contexttowhatyourdecisionshouldbealso. Letmemoveon. Youhavesaidthatyouwill 
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	allowMuellertocompletehiswork, although,youknow, Idowanttoaskyouveryspecif-veryspeciﬁcallybecauseyoudidwritethat19-pagememorelatingtotheobstructionof justiceissue. WouldyouallowtheMuellerinvestigationwithregardtoobstructionofjustice toalsogoforwardunimpededbyyou? 
	-

	BARR: 
	Idon'tknowwhetherthere'saninvestigationofobstructionofjustice. 
	HIRONO: 
	Well,deﬁnitelyobstructionofjustice. Youreadthepapersaswellaswedo,thatthatisan elementoftheMuellerinvestigation. Idon'tthinkyoucansithereandtellusthatyoudonot thinkthatthatisapartoftheinvestigation,butlet'ssaythatitis. Havingwrittenwhatyou did, wouldyouseekto--tostopthatportionoftheMuellerinvestigation, thatbeingthe obstructionofjusticeportion, assumingthatthatis,infact,partoftheinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	Okay,butyouhavetoremembermymemowasonaveryspeciﬁcstatuteandaspeciﬁc theorythatIwasconcernedabout. 
	HIRONO: 
	Iunderstandthat. 
	BARR: 
	Ihavenobasisforsuspectingatthispointthatthatisinplayatall. 
	HIRONO: 
	Youmeanthatparticularprovision?SoMueller-
	-

	BARR: 
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	Thatprovisionortheory, ortheory. 
	HIRONO: 
	Well,Ididsaylet'sassumethat, infact, obstructionofjusticeispartoftheMueller investigation. 
	BARR: 
	No, whenIsaytheoryImean--whatIwasaddressingwas,youknow, whethertheremoval ofComey,inandofitself, wouldbeobstruction. 
	HIRONO: 
	Ofcourseit'snotinandofitself. 
	BARR: 
	Underaparticular--underaparticular(INAUDIBLE). 
	HIRONO: 
	Ihatetobeinterruptive,butyouknow, Ionlyhavefourminutes, sothankyouverymuch. We--youwereaskedabouttheinvestigationsthataregoingonintheSouthernDistrictof NewYork, theEasternDistrictofVirginia,theDistrictofColumbia, andtherearevarious investigationsbroughtbyvariousU.S. attorneys' oﬃcesrelatingtotheactivitiesofDonald Trump, hiscampaign, hisinauguration,hisfoundation, hisbusinesses, hisfamilies, his associates. DoyouconsiderthesetobelawfulinvestigationsbecauseIbelievethatyou respondedtoSenatorBlumenthalthatifthe
	BARR: 
	Ihavenoreasontothinkthey'renotlawfulinvestigations, whatevertheyare. I--I'm--you knowmore--seemtoknowmorethanIdoaboutwhat'sunderinvestigation. 
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	HIRONO: 
	You're--that'sreassuringthatyourwantingtohavetheMuellerinvestigationgoforward extendstoalltheseotherU.S. attorneys' investigations. Ibelieveyoualsosaidthatthe Muellerreportwillbeconﬁdential. Itisconﬁdentialunderthespecialcounsel's, whatever thecriteriaare. SowhatI'mhearingyousaythatinspiteofthefactthatyouwanttobe transparent, neitherCongressnorpublicwillgettheMuellerreportbecausethat's conﬁdential. SowhatwewillbegettingisyourreportoftheMuellerreport, subjectto applicablelawslimitingdisclosure. Soisthatwhaty
	BARR: 
	Idon'tknowwhat--what--attheendofthedaywhatwillbereleasable. Idon'tknowwhat BobMuelleriswriting. 
	HIRONO: 
	Well,yousaidthattheMuellerreportisconﬁdentialpursuanttowhatevertheregulations arethatappliestohim, soI'mjusttryingtogetastowhatyou'regoingtobetransparent about. 
	BARR: 
	The--astherulesstandnow,peopleshouldbeawarethattherules, Ithink, saythatthe independent,thespecialcounselwillprepareasummaryreportonanyprosecutiveor declinationdecisionsandthatthatshallbeconﬁdentialandshallbetreatedasanyother declinationorprosecutivematerialwithinthedepartment. Inaddition,theattorneygeneral isresponsiblefornotifyingandreportingcertaininformationupontheconclusionofthe investigation. Nowhowthesearegoingtoﬁttogetherandwhatcanbegottenoutthere, I havetowaitand--Iwouldhavetowait. I'dwanttotalktoR
	HIRONO: 
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	Butyouhavetestiﬁedthatyou'dliketomakeasmuchoftheoriginalreport-
	-

	BARR: 
	Right. Andsowhat--allIcansayrightnowis-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	--openaspossible. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. AllIcansayrightnowismygoalandintentistogetasmuchinformationoutasIcan-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Thankyou. 
	BARR: 
	--consistentwiththeregulations. 
	HIRONO: 
	SointheminutethatIhave, I'djustliketogooversomeofthepoliciesthatJeﬀSessionshas followed. Oneisaz
	ero-tolerancepolicy, whichledtotheseparationofchildrenfromtheir parents. HerefusedtodefendtheAﬀordableCareActandarguedintheTexaslawsuitthat keypartsoftheACAwasunconstitutional. Hefailedtobringasinglelawsuittoenforcea votingrightsacttostopvotersuppressioneﬀorts, andheissuedamemomakingitharder forthecivilrightsdivisiontoenterintoconsentdecreestoaddresssystemicpolice misconduct. Doyouagreewiththesepolicies?Doyouintendtocontinuethem? 
	BARR: 
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	Thelastone,yes,Iagreewiththatpolicy. Theotherones,I'mnot--I'dhavetoseewhatthe basiswasforthosedecisions. 
	HIRONO: 
	Sodoyouthinkthatastothelastone, whichhastodowithconsentdecreesthatthereisa rolefortheDepartmentofJusticeinaddressingsystemicpolicemisconduct? 
	BARR: 
	No,there-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Youdon'tseemuchofaroleinthat? 
	BARR: 
	No,that'syourcharacter-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Oryouseeamorelimitedrole? 
	BARR: 
	That'syourcharacteriz
	ationofit. That'snotwhatIunderstandthepolicytobe. Ofcourse thedepartmenthasaroleinpatternandpracticeviolations. 
	HIRONO: 
	SotheAttorneyGeneralSessionshasissuedarulethatmakesitalottoughertoenterinto thesekindsofdecrees. 
	BARR: 
	Whydoyousayit'salottougher? 
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	HIRONO: 
	Becauseit'snotjustrelyingonthecareerattorneys,thatnowitgoestothedeputyAGor whoever--therearemorepoliticalappointeeswhoaregoingtogetinvolvedinthatprocess, andthatmakesitmuchmorelimited, Iwouldsay, inutiliz
	ation. Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	(INAUDIBLE) Hirono. We'lltakea10-minutecomfortbreakandstartwithSenatorTillis. If mymathisright, we'vegotaboutanhourleftonroundone, so10minutesbeokay, Mr. Barr? 
	BARR: 
	Mm-hm. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay,thankyou. Adjournedfor10minutes. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Barr. IthinkwhatwehaveleftonoursideisKennedy, SenatorKennedy, Blackburn, andTillis, andSenatorBooker,SenatorHarris. Anybodyelse?Ithinkthat'sitin roundone. So,SenatorKennedy? 
	KENNEDY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr,doyou--doyouknowofanyinstanceinwhichanybody hastriedtointerfereinMr. Mueller'sinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	No. Imean, I'mnot--I'mnotintheDepartmentofJusticeandIhaveno--youknow,I'mnot privytothatinformation. ButIdon'tknowofany. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	IunderstandyouknowMr. Mueller. Doyou? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Ido. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Ishebigenoughtotakecareofhimself? 
	BARR: 
	He'saMarine. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Yeah. Ifsomeonehadtriedtointerferewithhisinvestigation, basedonyourknowledgeof Mr. Mueller, wouldhehavesomethingtosayaboutit, includingbutnotlimitedtoinacourt oflaw? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	KENNEDY: 
	I--Iwanttotrytocutthroughsomeoftheinnuendohere. Did--didPresidentTrumpinstruct oraskyou, onceyoubecomeattorneygeneral,toﬁreMr. Mueller? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutelynot. 
	KENNEDY: 
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	DidheaskyoutointerfereinMr. Mueller'sinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutelynot. 
	KENNEDY: 
	HasanybodyintheWhiteHousemadethatsuggestiontoyou? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutelynot. 
	KENNEDY: 
	HasanybodyintheWesternHemispheremadethatsuggestiontoyou? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutelynot. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. 
	Iwanttoassociatemyself--myselfwiththeremarksofMr. BlumenthalabouttheFBIbeing thepremierlawenforcementagencyinthehistoryoftheworld,inmyopinion, andthehigh esteem--esteeminwhichweallholdtheDepartmentofJustice. ButIhaveaquestionfor you. ThiscounterintelligenceinvestigationthatwasstartedbyFBIandJusticeabout-allegedlyaboutPresidentTrump,howdidtheNewYorkTimesgetthatinformation? 
	-

	BARR: 
	Idon'tknow, senator. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	Well,didn'tithavetocomefromtheFBIortheDepartmentofJustice? 
	BARR: 
	I--I--Ijustcan'tsay. Idon'tknowhowtheygotitandIdon'tknowwhetherthat'sanaccurate report. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Right. WhatdoyouintendtodoabouttheleakscomingoutoftheFBIandtheDepartment ofJustice? 
	BARR: 
	Theproblemofleaksisadiﬃcult--adiﬃcultonetoaddress. Ithinktheﬁrstthingisto--isto makeitclearthatthere'sanexpectationthattherearenoleaksandpunishpeoplethrough discipline--internaldisciplineifthereareleaks, alsokeep--youknow, exercisemore compartmentaliz
	ationanddisciplineand--andmakethe--theinstitutionsthatare responsible--ifyou'retalkingabouttheFBI,thattheirleadershipistakingaggressiveaction tostoptheleaks. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. 
	You'vehadsomeexperiencewiththeenforcementofourimmigrationlaws,isthatcorrect? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright, senator. 
	KENNEDY: 
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	Doyoubelieveitispossibletosecurea1,900mileborderwithout,inpartatleast, using barriers? 
	BARR: 
	No,Idon'tthinkit'spossible. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. 
	BARR: 
	WhenIwas--whenIwasattorneygeneral, we--wehadtheINSaspartofthedepartment. AndIrememberanotherpartofmykibitz
	ingwastryingtopersuadeGeorgeW. Bush's administrationnottobreakthatout. 
	Butinthosedays, IhadsomestudiesdoneandIwastrying, withinthebudget,toputas--as muchaswecouldon-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--Um-hmm-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Barriersaswecould. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. DoyoubelievethatICEshouldbeabolished, assomeofmycolleaguesdo? 
	BARR: 
	Certainlynot. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. 
	You'reRomanCatholic, areyounot? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, Iam. 
	KENNEDY: 
	DoyouthinkthatdisqualiﬁesyoufromservingintheUnitedStatesgovernment? 
	BARR: 
	Idon'tthinkso, no. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. Whyisthat? 
	BARR: 
	Whydoesn'titdisqualifyme? 
	KENNEDY: 
	Um-hmm. Someofmycolleaguesthinkitmight. 
	BARR: 
	BecauseyourenderunderCaesarthatwhichisCaesar'sandunderGodthatwhichisGod. AndIbelieveintheseparationofchurchandstate. AndI--iftherewassomethingthatwas againstmyconscience, Iwouldn't--Iwouldn'timposeitonothers. Iwouldresignmyoﬃce. 
	KENNEDY: 
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	Yeah. Ithinkit'scalledfreedomofreligion-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Yes-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--AsIrecall. 
	BARR: 
	That'sright. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Ifthe--ifthefederalgovernmentthreatenstowithholdfederalmoneyfromauniversityif thatuniversitydoesn'tinvestigate,prosecute,punishsexualassaultinawayprescribedby thefederalgovernment, doesthatmakethestateuniversityastateactor--orthe--the universityastateactor? 
	BARR: 
	It--itmay. I--youknow,Iwouldhavetolookatthecase--orthecases. I'mnotuptospeedon those. ButIwouldthinkso. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Well,ifthe--ifthefederalgovernmentsaystoauniversity,look,ifyoudonotprosecute, investigate, punishallegationsofsexualassaultinawaythat--thatthefederalgovernment saysyoumust, otherwisewe'regoingtotakeawayyourfederalmoney,does--doesthe accusedinoneofthosesexualassaultallegationsstillhavetheprotectionoftheBillof Rights? 
	BARR: 
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	I--Iwouldhopeso. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Shouldheorher? 
	BARR: 
	I--youknow,I'dhavetolookandseeexactlythestateactorlawrightnow. But--butwhat you'regettingatis, youknow,the--the--therulesthatwereforcedonuniversitiesin handlingsexualharassmentcases-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--Right-
	-

	BARR: 
	--That,youknow, Ifeltdid--essentiallydidawaywithdueprocess. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Yes. 
	BARR: 
	And, youknow,Ithinkthe--the--youknow, asa--asafatherofthreedaughters,youknow,I takeveryseriouslyanyquestionofsexualharassment. It'saseriousproblem. Andthe--the wordofa--ofavictimhastobetakenveryseriouslyandithastobepursued, butwecan'tdo itattheexpenseoftheBillofRightsor--orbasicfairnessanddueprocess. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Boththeaccusedandtheaccuserdeservedueprocess,dotheynot? 
	BARR: 
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	That'sright. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. 
	Tellmewhatthelegalbasisisforauniversalinjunction. 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkuniversalinjunctionsare--haveno--well,letmesaythat--thattheyarea--arecent vintage. Theyreallystartedarisinginthe'60s. AndI--Ithinkthattheyhavelostsightofa limitationonthe--onthejudicialpoweroftheUnitedStates, whichiscaseorcontroversy. Andit-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--It'sall--it'sallbasedonaDCCircuit-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Right-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--case. It--theWirtzcase. Isthatright? 
	BARR: 
	Iforgotthenameofthecase, butIthinktheDCCircuitcasewastheﬁrst--theﬁrstone. I thinkthatwasinthe'60s. Andpeoplehavelostsightofthefactthatit'sreallyaquestionof whogetsthereliefinacase. Andunderthecaseorcontroversy,itshouldbelimitedtothe parties. 
	And, youknow, when--earlieryoucouldhavea--youcouldhaveacourtinonejurisdiction decideit, andthatwouldbetheruleinthatjurisdiction. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	Um-hmm. 
	BARR: 
	Butthatdidn'tdebarthegovernmentfromcontinuingitspolicieselsewhere. Andeventually you'dgetdiﬀerencesandtheywouldworktheirwayuptotheSupremeCourt. So,Ithink thatI'dliketoseetheseuniversalinjunctionschallenged. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Well,it'snot--it'snot--Idon'tknowhowmanyfederaldistrictcourtjudgeswehave. Let'ssay 650, sixhundredandﬁfty. AsIunderstandit, onecanenjoinaCongressionalstatute nationwideeveniftheother624judgesdisagree. 
	BARR: 
	That'sright. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Right. 
	BARR: 
	Andnotjustastatute, senator. Ithinkwhat'sdiﬀerent,the--whatwe'reseeingisthe willingnessofcourtstosetaside, youknow, eventhekindsofexercisesofnationalsecurity powerthat,youknow,20yearsagowouldhavebeenunimaginableforacourttochallenge. Andyet, adistrictcourtjudgesomewherecanenjoin-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--Yeah-
	-
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	BARR: 
	--Someactionthathasabearingonthesafetyofthenation, andthenthejudicialprocess cantakeyearsandyearstogetthatuptotheSupremeCourt. 
	KENNEDY: 
	I'vejustgotafewsecondsleft. AsI--asIunderstandyourtestimony,general, Mr. Mueller willwriteareport, submitittoyouasattorneygeneral, andyou--thenyouwillwriteareport basedonthatreportandreleaseyourreport. Isthatright? 
	BARR: 
	That'sessentiallyit, butIwouldn't--youknow,itcouldeasilybethatthereportis communicatedtothedepartment--assumingIwasconﬁrmed. Thatcouldbeamonthaway. Idon't-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--Well--well,letmetellyouwhatI'mgettingat. I'vegotsixseconds; nowfour. The AmericanpeopledeservetoknowwhattheDepartmentofJusticehasconcluded, and they'resmartenoughtoﬁgureitout. 
	I'vesaidthisbefore. TheAmericanpeopledon'treadAristotleeveryday. They--they'retoo busyearningaliving. Butifyougivethemthefacts, they'llﬁgureitoutandthey'lldraw theirownconclusions. Itdoesn'tmatterwhospins'em. They'llﬁgureitoutforthemselves. 
	AndIwouldstronglyencourageyoutoputthisalltorest,to--to--tomakeareport--aﬁnal reportpublicandleteverybodydrawtheirownconclusionssowecanmoveon. Ifsomebody didsomethingwrong,theyshouldbepunished. Butiftheydidn't,let'sstoptheinnuendo andtherumorsandtheleakingandlet'smoveon. 
	BARR: 
	Iagree, senator. 
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	Andletmesay,youknow, earlierImisspoke,becausetheactingattorneygeneralisMatt Whitaker, andI--andIreferredtoRodastheactingattorneygeneral. Butinfact, thereport wouldgotoMattWhitaker. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	BOOKER: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman, andIwouldliketoremarkMr. Barrthatyourfamilyisshowinga prestigiouslevelofpatienceandindefatigableendurancethatshouldbemarkedforthe record. Youareaveryluckyman. 
	Youknowthatabout30+ stateshavelegaliz
	edmedicalmarijuanaoradultuse. Youare awareofthat, correct? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, yes. In2018AttorneyGeneralJeﬀSessionsrescindedtheColeMemorandumwhich providedguidancetoU.S. attorneysthatthefederalmarijuanaprohibitionshouldnotbe enforcedinstatesthathavelegaliz
	edmarijuanainonewayortheother. Doyoubelieveit wastherightdecisiontorescindthecoalmemorandum? 
	BARR: 
	Myapproachtothiswouldbenottoupsetsettledexpectationsandtherelianceinterestthat havearisenasaresultoftheColeMemorandumand--andinvestmentshavebeenmadeand sotherehavebeenrelianceonitsoIdon'tthinkit'sappropriatetoupsetthoseinterests. However, Ithinkthecurrentsituationisuntenableandreallyhastobeaddressed. It's almostlikeabackdoornulliﬁcationoffederallaw. Tome, it'sabinarychoice, eitherwehave afederallawthatappliestoeverybody-
	-

	BOOKER: 
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	And--andI'msorrytointerruptyousir, buthow--howwouldyouaddressthat? 
	BARR: 
	Well-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Doyouthinkit'sappropriatetousefederalresourcestotargetmarijuanabusinessesthatare incompliancewithstatelaws? 
	BARR: 
	No,I--Isaidthat'swhatIsaidI'mnotgoingtogoaftercompaniesthathavereliedonthe ColeMemoranda. Weeithershouldhaveon--afederallawthatprohibitsmarijuana everywherewhichIwouldsupportmyselfbecauseIthinkit'samistaketobackoﬀon marijuana. However,ifwewantafederalapproachifwewantstatestohavetheirownlaws thenlet'sgetthereandlet'sgettheretherightway. 
	BOOKER: 
	Andifyoudon'tmind,I'mgoingtojustmoveonit'sgoodtohearatleasttheﬁrstpartof what--whatyousaid. Duringyourprevioustenureasattorneygeneral,youliterallywrote thebookonmassincarcerationoratleastwrotethis-this--thisreportthecaseformore incarceration. Youarguethatweasanationwerequoteincarceratingtoofewcriminals. 
	BARR: 
	Inthosedays. 
	BOOKER: 
	And--andthatthesolutionwasmoreincarcerationformorepeople. 
	BARR: 
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	Excuseme. 
	BOOKER: 
	Please, sir. 
	BARR: 
	Forchronicviolentoﬀendersandgunoﬀenders. 
	BOOKER: 
	Well,Imean--Imeanthat'sthechallenge, sir, andyouarguedagainstthebipartisan legislationin2015 quitestrenuously. 
	BARR: 
	Idid. 
	BOOKER: 
	And--andbutthat'snotthe--that'snotthenatureofincarcerationinthiscountry. Inﬁscal year2016, only7.7percentofthefederalprisonpopulationwasconvictedofviolent crimes. Overwhelminglywhatwasinitiatedinthosetimesthatledtoan800percent increaseinthefederalprisonpopulationoverwhelminglythatwasnonviolentdrug oﬀendersset--rightnowourfederalprisonpopulationisoverwhelminglynonviolent. 
	47.5 percentofthefederalprisonpopulationareinincarceratedfor--fordrugoﬀensesandI guesshearingyourargumentsthenandhearingyourargumentsagainstthebipartisan legislationthatwebroughtoutofthecommitteein2016-
	-

	BARR: 
	Senator,Ithinkthat'swrongwhat--whatyoujustsaid. Okay?Ithinkwhenyouhaveviolent gangsinthecitykillingpeople, murderandsoforthandsoonsometimesthemostreadily 
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	provablechargeistheirdrugtraﬃckingoﬀensesratherthanprovingculpabilityofthewhole gangformurder. 
	Soyoucantakeout--youcantakeoutagangondrugoﬀensesandit--youcouldbetaking outalotofviolentoﬀenders. DoyouthinkthatthemurdersinChicagoare--theyarerelated togangs-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Andagain-
	-

	BARR: 
	--includinggangsinvolvedin(INAUDIBLE). 
	BOOKER: 
	Sir, andagainwecan--wecangetintothedataifyou'dlikeandI'dliketogetsomemore pointedquestioningbutthisisthesortof--thesearesortofthetropesthatmakepeople believethatininnercitiesweshouldhavesuchaprofoundincarcerationrates. AndI'dlike toaskyouspeciﬁcallyaboutthatdatabecauseIthinkit'slanguagelikethatthatmakesme kindofconcernedandworried. 
	Yousaidyouhadn'treviewed,yousaidearlierinyourtestimonyyouhadn'treviewed criminaljusticedataaboutthisactualissueofincarcerationversusnon-incarceration. Ijust wanttoknowwillyoucommittocommissioningastudyonjustthecon--concernsthatwe aretalkingaboutrightnow, abouttheeﬃcacyofreducingmassincarcerationandpublish thoseresults?Wouldyoubewillingtodosuchastudyyourself? 
	BARR: 
	Well, asIunderstandit, I'vebeentoldthatthere'salotofdatatosupporttheFirstStepAct. 
	BOOKER: 
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	And--andthatFirstStepActgoesdirectlytowardsaddressingalotoftheproblemswe've hadinmassincarcerationand--and--andsoifyouaresayingthatitisnecessarytodealwith violenceincommunitiesbyover-incarceratinghere'sabipartisangroupofsenatorsthat's workingtowardsreducingmassincarcerationandthat'swhyIthinkit'sveryimportant whichIappreciateyousayingyoudidn'tknowbecauseyouhadn'treviewedthedata. 
	Ithinkit'sveryimportantthatyoureviewthedataandunderstandtheimplicationsforthe languagethatyouareusingwhichbringsupthislanguageofracewhichisoftennotsaid explicitly. ButwhenyoutalkaboutChicagointhewayyoujustdiditbringsupracialfearsor racialconcerns. Andyoustatedthatifablackandawhitethisisquotingyoudirectlyare changedwiththesameoﬀensegenerally, theywillgetthesametreatmentinthesystemand ultimatelythesamepenalty. YoupreviouslyquotedandIquoteyouagainthere'sno statisticalevidencethat--ofracisminthecriminaljustices
	BARR: 
	No, whatIsaidwasthatIthinkthat'stakenoutofabroaderquotewhichisthewhole criminaljust--thatwholecriminalicesysteminvolvesbothfederalbutalsostatelocaljustice systemsandIsaidthere'snodoubtthatthereareplaceswherethere'sracismstillinthis system. ButIsaidoverall,Ithoughtthatasasystemit'sworking. Itdoesnot--it'snot predicatedon-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	SocanIpressyouonthat?Overallthesystemtreatsblacksandwhitesfairlyfrommyown experienceI'velivedinaﬄuentcommunities,I'vegonetothecollegecampuses (INAUDIBLE). Therearecertaindruglawsappliedtherethat'sverydiﬀerentthantheinnercitycommunityinwhichIlivebutlet'stalkstats, let'snottalkourpersonalexperiences. 
	-

	AndsoI'vesatwithmanyofmycolleaguesandmanyconservativeswhoreadilyadmitwhat thedatashowsandsoIhaveawholebunchofreportswhichI'llenterintotherecordfrom nonpartisan,bipartisangroups, evenconservativeleaderstalkingabouttherifenatureof racialbiaswithinthesystem. Forexample, thefederalgovernment'sowndata, theU.S. 
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	SentencingCommission'sresearchshowsthatfederalprosecutorsaremorelikelytocharge blackswithoﬀensesthatcarryharshmand--mandatoryminimumsentencesthansimilarly situatedforwhites. Thefederalgovernment'sowndatashowsthatblackdefendantswere subjecttothree-strikesentencingenhancementsandastatisticallysigniﬁcantlyhigherrate whichaddedonaverageover10yearstotheirsentences. 
	Andsowithnumerousresearchershavingfoundfundingracialdisparitiesrightthroughout oursystemandinthefederalsystemwhichyouwillbethechieflawenforcementoﬃcerof andprimarilyfordrug--overwhelminglyfordruglaws. ForexampleIdon'tknowifyouare awareornotoftheBrookingsstudythatfoundthatblacksare3.6timesmorelikelytobe arrestedforsellingdrugsdespitethefactthatwhitesareactuallymorelikelytoselldrugsin theUnitedStatesofAmericaandblacksare2.5 timesmorelikelytobearrestedfor possessionofdrugswhenthereisnodiﬀerenceraciallyinAmeric
	BARR: 
	No,I'mnot. 
	BOOKER: 
	Okay, sojustafollow-up. Willyoucommittocommissioningastudyexaminingracial disparitiesanddisparateimpactsofthepoliciesthatyoutalkedaboutandthat--thatledto massincarceration,thepoliciesthatyoudefendedwhenyoucriticiz
	edthebipartisan2015 sentencingreformlegislation?Willyoucommittoatleastasthe--asthemostimportantlaw enforcementoﬃcerinthelandtostudyingthosewell-documentedracialdisparitiesandthe impactsithas? 
	BARR: 
	Ofcourse--ofcourseI'llcommittostudyingthatandI'llhavetheBureauofJusticeStatistics pulltogethereverythingtheyhaveandifthere'ssomethinglacking, I'll--I'llgetthatandI'm 
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	interestedinthestateexperience. ButwhenIlookedat--Ithink1992 wasadiﬀerenttime, senator. Thecrimeratehadquintupledoverthepreceding30yearsanditpeakedin1992 andit'sbeencomingdownsince1992. 
	BOOKER: 
	And--andsirIjustwanttosayIwasayoungblackguyin1990s. Iwasa20something-yearoldandexperiencedadramaticallydiﬀerentjusticesystemandthetreatmentthatI received-
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	BOOKER: 
	Andthedataofracialdisparitiesandwhatit'sdonetoblack--becauseyouliterallysaidthis aboutblackcommunitiesandIknowthatyourheart,Iknowthatyourheartwasintheright place. Yousaidthathey, Iwanttohelpblackcommunities. Thisiswhatyou'resayingthe beneﬁtsofincarcerationwouldbeenjoyeddisproportionatelybyblackAmericanslivingin innercities. YoualsosaidthatquoteafailuretoincarceratehurtsblackAmericansmost-
	-

	BARR: 
	AndI'lltellyouwhat's-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	AndIjustwanttoaskyouayesornoquestionbecauseIhavesecondsleft. Doyoubelieve now30, 40yearsofmassincarcerationtargeteddisproportionatelytowardsAfricanAmericans,harshersentences,disproportionatelyrepresentedinthecriminaljusticesystem withAmericanBarAssociationtalkingaboutonceyou'vebeenincarceratedforevenalowleveldrugcrimethereare40,000collateralconsequencesthatimpactyourlifejobs,Pell 
	-
	-
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	Grants, loansfrombanks. Doyouthinkjustyesornothatthissystemofmassincarceration hasdisproportionatelybeneﬁtedAfrican-Americancommunities?Yesorno, sir? 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkthereductionincrimehasover--since1992 butIthinkthatthe--thattheheavydrug penalties, especiallyoncrackandotherthings,have--haveharmedtheblackcommunity, theincarcerationratesupontheblackcommunity. 
	BOOKER: 
	AndIwouldjustconcludeto--tomychairmanandpartnerthankyou, sir, onthisbecause I'mreallygratefulforthisbipartisangroupfortheHeritageFoundation. I'vespokenatthe AEIConference,justfoundsuchgreatpartnership. ButIworryaboutthehighestlaw enforcementoﬃcerinthelandandsomeofthelanguageIstillhearyouusingthatgoes againstthedataandthatyou'regoingtobeexpectedtooverseeajusticesystemthatyouand Ibothknowneedsthefaithandconﬁdenceofcommunitiesthathasdramaticallylostthat conﬁdencebecauseofimplicitracialbias. 
	AndtheDOJandI'llgiveyouachancetorespond,theDOJitselfhassaidmandatedimplicit racialbiastrainingandIhopethat'ssomethingthatyouwillagreetodobutthisisthething I'llconcludeonisthatwelivein--inonaplanetEarthwhereyoucantellthemostabouta nationbikewhotheyincarcerate. 
	InTurkeytheyincarceratejournalists. ThankGodwedon'tdothathereeventhough they'vebeencalledtheenemyofthepeople. InRussia,theyincarceratepoliticalopponents. I'mgladwedon'tdothateventhoughwithchantsoflockherup. Butyougointothe Americancriminalprisons, sir, andyouseethemostvulnerablepeople. 
	Youseeoverstigmatiz ed 
	edmentallyillpeoplecloggingoursystem. Youseeoverstigmatiz addictedpeoplecloggingoursystem. YouseeasystemwhereasBryanStevensonsaysit treatyoubetterifyouarerichandguiltythanifyouarepoorandinnocent. Andyousee 
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	disproportionatelyoverwhelminglyfordrugcrimesAfrican-AmericansandLatinosbeing incarcerated. 
	TheimportanceofyourjobandI'llaskyouthislastquestionbecauseyouhaven'tmetwith meyet,you'vegiventhatcourtesytoothers, wouldyoupleasemeetwithmeinmyoﬃceso youandIcanhaveahearttoheartontheurgency, thecanceronthesoulofourcountry's criminaljusticesystemisadisproportionateimpactofthatsystemonthosevulnerable communitiesincludingwomen, over80percentofwhom--thewomenweincarcerateare survivorsofsexualtrauma?CanyouandIsitdownandhavealongerconversationthan these10minuteswillallowonthisissue? 
	BARR: 
	I'd--I'dIverymuchwelcomethat, senator. YouknowI--myexperiencebackin1992 when I--whensortofbloodwasrunningonthestreetsallovertheUnitedStatesmyideaswere actuallyﬁrstformedwhenIwenttoTrentonandtheAfrican-Americancommunitythere essentiallysurroundedmeandwassayinglook, weareinourgoldenyears. Wearetryingto enjoyourgoldenyearsandwecan'tevengooutsideourhouse. Wehavebarsonourhouse andsoforth. Please, willyou--?Thesegangsarerunningroughshod. 
	SoIdevelopedthisideacalledweedandseedandmyattitudewaslook,let'sstoparguing pasteachotheron--let'sattackrootcausesandlet'sgettoughoncrime. AndI--andIfeltthat for--forprogramstoworklikeafterschoolprogramsandsoforthforhousingprojectstobe safeweneededstrongenforcementinthosecommunitiesandweneededthoseother programstobebroughttobearcommunitybycommunityandithadtobedonewiththe leadershipofthecommunityandthatwasthisideaofthepartnershipanditcaughton. 
	Itwasverypopularandinfact,itwascontinuedbyalotoftheU.S. attorneysintheClinton administrationaftertheBushadministrationwasout. Anditisactuallyanumberof diﬀerentnameshascontinued. SoI'mveryconsciousoftheissuesyouraisebutmygoalis toprovidesafe, wasandmymotivationwastoprovidesafetyintheseneighborhoodsforthe peopletryingtoraisetheirchildrenandfortheolderpeopleandsoforth. 
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	BOOKER: 
	And-
	-

	BARR: 
	Ithinktheneighborhoodsare--youknow, thecrimeratehasgonedown. Imakea distinctionbetweenthewaywetreatthesechronicviolentoﬀendersandthedrugpenalties. ThedrugpenaltiesasIsaidveryhighanddraconianandinsomecasesthatmighthavebeen necessarybutIsupportedrevisitingthepenaltystructure. 
	BOOKER: 
	And, sir,I--I'mtheonlyUnitedStatessenatorthatlivesinaninner-citylow-income community. I'vehadshootingsinmyneighborhood, ayoungmankilledlastyearonmy blockwithanassaultweapon. IknowthisurgentneedforsafetyandsecurityandIactually I'mnotsayingI'mnecessarilygoingtovoteforyouonewayortheotherbutIbelieveyour intentionsarewell. ButIthinkthatsomeofthethingsyousaidinthepastleadmetobelieve thatyourpoliciesmightbemisguided. 
	InthewaythatMikeLeeandCornynandGrahamandGrassleyhavebeenincredible partnersinchangingtheAmericanrealityIhopethatyoucanbethatkindofpartner,too, andIhopethatyouandIcanhaveagoodhearttoheartconversationtrustingthatweboth wantthesameendforallcommunities, safety, andsecuritybutajusticesystemthatisfair toallAmericancitiz
	ens. 
	BARR: 
	I'dwelcomethat, senator. 
	BOOKER: 
	Thankyou, sir. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorBlackburn. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Andweappreciateyourtimetoday,Mr. Barr, andthatofyour family. ItoldLiamthatGrandpaoughttogivehimwhateverhewantstoeatfordinner tonight. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Hehasbehavedverywellanddoneagreatjob. GoingbacktosomethingthatSenator Kennedymentionedonleaks, andyousaidyouwouldaddressthatby compartmentaliz
	ation. TalkforjustalittlebitaboutyourvisionfortheDepartmentof Justiceasyoulookatimplementingﬁrststeps, addressingviolentcrime,dealingwith opioids, dealingwithonlinesextraﬃcking,theantitrustissues,theMuellerinvestigation, allthethingswe'vetalkedabout,howdoyouintendtoleadthatdepartmentthatisvery diﬀerentfromtheDOJthatyouledpreviously? 
	BARR: 
	Insomewaysit'sdiﬀerent. Insomewaysit'snotsodiﬀerent. Butmybasicapproachto thingsistogetgoodlieutenants,goodsubordinateswho--runningdiﬀerentpartsofthe agendaandgivethem,youknow, theirmarchingordersandwatchthemperformandget involvedtotheextentIcantomakesurethatwe'repushingtheprioritiesthings--things ahead. OneoftheinterestingthingsabouttheDepartmentofJustice--it'salittlediﬀerent thanmanyagencies--isoneofour--ourﬁrstpriorityhastobetoenforceallthelaw. It'snot likewecanjustcomeintoworkandsaywell, we'rejustgoingt
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	thingsacrosstheboard, wehaveanunderstoodsetofpriorities, andweputtheeﬀort behindthosepri 
	orities, andwedeﬁneclearlywhatwe'retryingto--whatwe'retryingtoachieve. 
	Soforexample, intheareaofcivilrights, whenIwasattorneygenerallasttime, andIhad discussedthiswithSenatorKennedy, Isaidyouknow, we'renotdoingenoughonhousing discrimination. Housingisveryimportant. Itdetermineswhereyougotoschoolandall-youknow,thesafetyandsoforth. AndIsetupaprogram. Wehiredtestersandstuﬀlike that, andwehadaverycleargoalandpriorityforthat. Andwelaunchedit. Andthat'swhat, youknow,that'swhatIplantobringinareaafterarea,deﬁningwhatwe'retryingto accomplishandgivethepeoplethetoolstogetitdone, andgivet
	-

	BLACKBURN: 
	You'vementionedtheMuellerinvestigationandyourrelationshipwithMr. Muellerhaving himﬁnishtheinvestigation. Ifweweretoaskhimaboutyou,doyouthinkhe, his assessmentwouldbethatyouareafairandimpartialleader,thathecantrust--thatwecan trusttoleadtheDOJ? 
	BARR: 
	I--I--Ihopehewouldsaythat,butI'mnotgoingtoput--I'mnotgoingtoputwordsinhis mouth. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	Wordsinhismouth. Yeah. Wetalkedabouttechnologyandmyinterestinthatarea, and you'vehad--Mr. LeeandMr. Hawleyhavealsotalkedaboutantitrustandsomeofthe enforcementthere. BigTech, andSiliconValley, andthepowerthatisharboredthere, they aregobblingupalotoftheircompetitors. You'vegotFacebookandGooglethatareclaiming toonlybeplatformsfortheirusers. Buttheyarealsogettingintothecontentbusiness, and thatiswhyFacebookboughtInstagramandWhatsAppandGoogleboughtYouTubeand 
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	DeepMindforAItechnology. Sotheirtentaclesarespreading, andtheyaremovingaway fromaplatformintothatcontent,intoartiﬁcialintelligence. Andtheirmarketdominanceis causingsomeproblems. Andaswediscussed,thesecompaniesareviolatingusers' privacy. Theyarerecklesslysharingtheirusers' personaldatawiththirdparties. Thisisdonewithout explicitpermission. Wecan'tletthesecompaniescolludetodriveoutcompetitorsorto ignorevitaldata 
	privacyprotections. 
	AndbigTechoperatedreallywithoutregardtothelaw. AndyouandItalkedalittlebit aboutoneoftheedgeproviderCEOswholastspring, whenhecamebeforeaHouse committee--hewasalsoherebeforethiscommittee--therewasevenreferencetohow--I discussedhowhesubjectivelymanipulatedoraskedifhesubjectivelymanipulated algorithms, andhowtherewasconcernthatsomeoftheseplatformsreferencinga statementhehadmadefunctionedmorelikeagovernmentthanaplatformoran informationservice. Sohowdoyouintendtobeginthisconversationandbeginthiswork addressingthe
	BARR: 
	Yes, youknow, asImentioned, I'minterestedintheseissuesandwouldliketohavethem fullyventilatedatthedepartmentwiththeantitrustdivisionandalsowith, youknow, outsideexpertssoIcanhaveabetterunderstanding. Idowanttosay,however,thatI'm goingtoberecusingmyselffromAT&Tbecause-
	-

	BLACKBURN: 
	TimeWarner,yeah. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,becausenowTimeWarnerispartofAT&T. 
	BLACKBURN: 
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	Right. 
	BARR: 
	AndIwastoldthatundertherulesthatwillcarryovertoAT&T. SountilItalktotheethics advisorsofthedepartment, Idon'twanttogettoofaraheadofmyskisandsortoftalking aboutthetecharea. Butasageneralpolicymatter,IwanttogetintothisareabecauseI thinkit'sonalotofpeople'smindsand-
	-

	BLACKBURN: 
	Absolutely. 
	BARR: 
	--andhowthelawrelatestothese, youknow,tothesedevelopmentsthatweseewiththese largecompanies. AndIdon'tmeantocastaspersionsonanyparticularcompanyor executive. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	Well, andIthinkformanyofus,ifyou'relookingatamergerandtheycannotprovethe eﬃciencies, andtheycannotprovethattherewillbeincreasedcompetition, thenitdoes raisesomequestionsastohowthosewouldbeevaluated. Andletmegotooneotherissue thatisdevelopingonthisprivacyfront. ItisadataprivacyproblemthatIdon'tthinkalotof peoplerealiz
	e, anditistheembeddingofhardwareandthenthegeolocation, and sometimesthatinformationissold. Nowitfoldsintotheencryptionissuebecauselaw enforcementhasaverydiﬃculttimegettingtheinformationfromdevicesandfromthe servicesonencryption. Butwearenowawarethatmanytimesbountyhunterswillbepaida fewhundreddollars, andthentheycangoinandﬁndthelocationofthatphone. Andsome oftheseAndroidoperatingsystemsarespeciﬁcenoughthattheydothebarometricpressure readings, andtheycantellyouexactlywhereinabuildingthatthisphoneislocated. So
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	atyouaregoingtolookatthelegalproceduresthatsurroundthiskindofdataandthiskind oftracking, andtheprivacyprovisionsthataregoingtopertaintoconsumersastheyuse thesedevices. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	That--good. Thankyou. Letmemoveon. SenatorErnsttalkedalittlebitabouttheonline sextraﬃcking. InTennesseewehavefollowedthisissuesocloselybecauseourTBIcarried outa--anoperationwheretheyapprehended22 traﬃckers. 22 menwerearrestedforsex traﬃcking. AndmuchofthatworkandtheworkI'vedoneintheHouseontheonlinesex traﬃcking, workingtoshutdownBackpage.comandtokeepourchildrenandkeepwomen safefromtheseonlinetraﬃckers, andyouknow, weweresopleasedthatlastAprilthe JusticeDepartmentseiz
	edBackpageandchargedsevendefendantsforfacilitating prostitutionandsextraﬃckingcrimes. Andwhatweknowisthatwhenyoushutdownasite likeBackpage, thebigone,thenyouhavealotofsmallsitesthatproliferate. Andweknow thatitisgoingtoreallytakealotofeﬀorttoarrestthissituationsothatyou'renotconstantly playingwhack-a-molewiththese. SoIwouldhopethatyouwillbecommittedtoputtingan endtothis 
	kindofviolenceandonlinetraﬃcking. 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. Youknow, andIknowhowfocusedyouareonitandtheleadershipyou've providedovertheyearsonit. Idon'tknowthatmuchabouttheproblemandalsoaboutwhat resourcesarecurrentlybeingdevotedtoitinthedepartment,butIwouldliketocomeby and-
	-

	BLACKBURN: 
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	Great. 
	BARR: 
	--talktoyoufurtheraboutitonceIgetexposedtoit,ifI'mconﬁrmed. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	Thankyou. Mytimehasexpired. Mr. Chairman,Iyieldback. Thankyou, Mr. Barr. 
	HARRIS: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman, andcongratulations. Andtoyou, congratulationsonyour nominationsand--andthankyouforyouarenotyourlifetimeofdedicationofpublic service. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	HARRIS: 
	InresponsetoaquestionthatSenatorErnstasked, youmentionedthatweneedbarriers acrossthebordertodealwithdrugtraﬃcking. Areyouadvocatingawall? 
	BARR: 
	Well,I--IthinkI'madvocatinga--a--asystem, abarriersystem. Insomeplacesand--and-andI'dhavetoﬁndoutmoreaboutthesituationsince--sinceIlastvisitedtheborder. 
	-

	HARRIS: 
	Fromwhatyouknow,doyoubelievethatawallwouldaddresstheconcernthatyouhave aboutdrugtraﬃcking? 
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	BARR: 
	Wellawallcertainlywould,butI--insomequickplacesitmaynotbenecessarytohave,you know, whatmostpeopleimagineasawall. 
	HARRIS: 
	AreyouawarethatmostofthedrugscomingintoUnitedStatesis,inparticularthrough Mexico, areenteringthroughportsofentry? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, buttheyalsocomeelsewhereandsodoillegalimmigrantscrossingtheborderand basically-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--Butparticularlyonthesubjectofdrugtraﬃcking, areyouawarethatmostofthedrugsthat aretraﬃckedintotheUnitedStatesenterthroughpointsofentry? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Haveyourecentlyorevervisitedapointofentry--aportofentryfortheUnitedStates? 
	BARR: 
	Notrecently. Notrecently. Iusedtospendalotoftime-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--Whenwasthelasttime? 
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	BARR: 
	Well, whenIwasattorneygeneral. 
	HARRIS: 
	Soacoupleofdecadesago? 
	BARR: 
	Almost30years. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay,I'd--I'durgeyoutovisitagainifandwhenyouareconﬁrmed. You'll--Ithinkyou'llsee thatalothaschangedovertheyears. Givenstatusquoonmarijuanaandthefactthat10 states,includingtheDistrictofColumbia,havelegaliz
	edmarijuana, and--andgiventhatthe statusquoiswhatitisand, asyourightlydescribed, wehavefederallawsandthenthereare variousstatesthathavediﬀerentlaws,ifconﬁrmed, areyouintendingtousethelimited federalresourcesatyourdisposaltoenforcefederalmarijuanalawsinthestatesthathave legaliz
	edmarijuana? 
	BARR: 
	No,I--I--IthoughtIansweredthatbysayingthat--that, youknow,totheextentthatpeople arecomplyingwith--withthestatelaws,youknow,indistributionand--andproductionand soforth, we'renotgoingtogoafterthat. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay. 
	BARR: 
	But,I--Idofeelwecan'tstayinthecurrentsituationbecauseImean,if--youcanimagine anykindofsituation. Cananexistingadministrationandanattorneygeneralstartcutting 
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	dealswithstatestosaywell, we'renotgoingtoapplythefederallaw,youknow, sosomegun laworsomeotherthingandsaywell, we'renotgoingtoapplyitinyourstate. 
	HARRIS: 
	Iappreciateyourpoint, but--butspeciﬁcally, andIappreciateyouansweringthequestion, youdonotintendtousethelimitedfederalresourcesatyourdisposaltoenforcefederal marijuanalawsinthosestatesorintheDistrictofColumbiathathavelegaliz
	edmarijuana? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright, butIthink-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--Thankyou-
	-

	BARR: 
	--TheCongressoftheUnitedStates, it'sincumbentontheCongressto--toregulariz
	e--you know, makeadecisionastowhetherwe'regoingtohaveafederalsystemorwhetherit's goingtobe,youknow, acentralfederallawbecause-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--I--Iagreewithyou,(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Thisisbreedingdisrespectforthefederallaw. 
	HARRIS: 
	Iagreewithyou. I--IbelieveCongressshouldact. Iagree. Earliertoday,SenatorLeahy askedwhetheryouwouldfollowtherecommendationofcareerDepartmentofJustice ethicsoﬃcialsonwhetheryoushouldrecuseyourselffromtheMuellerinvestigation. You 
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	said, "Iwillseektheadviceofthecareerethicspersonnel,butundertheregulations,Imake thedecisionsastheheadoftheagencyastomyownrecusal." 
	YoualsosaidtoSenatorKlobucharthatyoudonotwantto, "Abdicateyourdutysince recusaldecisionwouldbeyours." Somyquestionis, woulditbeappropriatetogoagainst theadviceofcareerethicsoﬃcialsthathaverecommendedrecusal, andcanyougivean exampleofunderwhatsituationorscenarioyouwouldgoagainsttheirrecommendation thatyourecuseyourself? 
	BARR: 
	Wellthere--there--therearediﬀerentkindsofrecusal. Somearemandated, forexample, if youhaveaﬁnancialinterest,butthereareothersthatarejudgmentcalls. 
	HARRIS: 
	Let'simagineit'sajudgmentcallandthejudgmentbythecareerethicsoﬃcialsinthe agencyarethatyourecuseyourself. 
	BARR: 
	Then--thenin-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--Underwhatscenariowouldyounotfollowtheirrecommendation? 
	BARR: 
	IfIdisagreedwithit. 
	HARRIS: 
	Andwhatwiththebasisofthatdisagreementbe? 
	BARR: 
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	Icametoadiﬀerentjudgment. 
	HARRIS: 
	Onwhatbasis? 
	BARR: 
	Thefacts. 
	HARRIS: 
	Suchas? 
	BARR: 
	Suchaswhateverfactsarerelevanttotherecusal. 
	HARRIS: 
	Whatyouimaginethefactswouldbethatarerelevanttotherecusal? 
	BARR: 
	Theycouldbeinnumerable. Imean, therearealotof, youknow,forexample,there'sarule ofnecessity, likewhoelsewouldbehandlingit,itcouldbe-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--Doyoubelievethatwouldbeaconcerninthissituationifyouare--iftherecommendation isthatyourecuseyourselffromtheMuellerinvestigation,doyoubelievethatwouldbea concern,thattherewouldbenoonelefttodothejob? 
	BARR: 
	No,I'mjustsaying--well,insomecontexts,thereverywellmightbebecauseof,youknow, who--who'sconﬁrmedforwhatand--andwho'sinwhatposition. Butapartfromthat,it'sa 
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	judgmentcallandtheattorneygeneralisthepersonwhomakesthejudgment. Andthat's whatthejobentails. 
	HARRIS: 
	Asageneralmatter,that'strue, butspeciﬁcallyonthisissue, what--underwhatscenario wouldyouimaginethatyouwouldnotfollowtherecommendationofthecareerethics oﬃcialsandtheDepartmentofJusticetorecuseyourselffromtheMuellerinvestigation? 
	BARR: 
	IfIdisagreedwiththem. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay, willmoveon. SenatorFeinsteinpreviouslyaskedyouwhetheryou'dputyourJune 2018 memo--whetheryouputtogetherthatmemobasedonnonpublicinformation. Your responsewasthatyou, "Didnotrelyonconﬁdentialinformation." Areyoucreatinga distinctionbetweennonpublicinformationandconﬁdentialinformation? 
	BARR: 
	No. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay. InresponsetoaquestionfromSenatorDurbinaboutharshsentencinglaws, you statedinresponsetothecrackepidemicthatcommunityleaders,backwhenyouwere attorneygeneralpreviously, askedforthesetypesofsentencinglaws. Now, my understandingisthatmanyofthesecommunityleadersatthattime, andIwasayoung prosecutorduringthosedays,knewandsaideventhenthatthecrackepidemicwasapublic healthcrisisandthat--thatwasreallythechoruscomingfromcommunityleaders, notthat theywanteddrugaddictedpeopletobelockedup. 
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	Andsimilarlynow, wecanﬁndthat,inmostofthecommunitiesaﬄictedbytheopioid crisis,theyaresimilarly, thesecommunityleaders, askingthatitbeaddressedforthepublic healthcrisisthatis. Somyquestionisifandwhenyouareconﬁrmedinthisposition, would youagreethat, whenwetalkabouttheopioidcrisis, thecrisisintermsofmethamphetamine addictionoranyothercontrolledsubstance,thatweshouldalsoacknowledgethepublic healthramiﬁcationsandcausesandthatthereisaroleforthechieflawenforcementoﬃcer oftheUnitedStatestoplayinadvocatingforpublich
	BARR: 
	Well,I--IthinkthecommissionthatwaschairedbyGovernorChrisChristiecameupwitha three-prongedstrategyandIthinkthatrecogniz an 
	edthatpartofitwasatreatment, education, recovery, andprevention. Butthethirdprongofitwasenforcementand interdiction, andthat'sthejoboftheDepartmentofJustice. TheDepartmentofJusticecan't beallthingstoallpeopleand-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	--sir,butIwouldsuggesttoyouthatintheinterveningalmost30yearssinceyouwerelast attorneygeneral,that--that--thatthereisconsensusintheUnitedStatesthatwhenwelook atthedrugepidemic, whateverthenarcoticmaybe,thatthereisnowanunderstandingthat thewarondrugswasanabjectfailure,thatAmerica,frankly,hasacrisisofaddiction, and thatputtingthelimitedresourcesofourfederalgovernmentintolockinguppeoplewho-whosuﬀerfromapublichealthcrisisisprobablynotthesmartestuseoftaxpayerdollars. So ifconﬁrmed,I'daskthatyoutakealookatthemorer
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	--well, excuseme, canIjustsaysomethinginresponsetothat? 
	HARRIS: 
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	Sure. 
	BARR: 
	WhichisIwasjustmakingtheobservationthatthejoboftheDepartmentofJusticeis enforcement. Irecogniz
	etherearealotofdimensionstotheproblem, andthat'swhatwe haveplaceslikeHHS. Thedepartmentcan't, youknow, can'tdothejobofeverybody. 
	HARRIS: 
	Sir,butIwouldremindyouwhatyousaidbecauseIagreewithit,yousaidearliertheroleof theattorneygeneral, one,istoenforcetheruleoflaw,twoisalegaladvisortothepresident andthecabinet, andthreeispolicy. Thisisapolicyissue, soIurgeyoutoemphasiz
	ethat roleandpowerthatyouwillhaveifyou'reconﬁrmed, andthinkofitthatway. 
	BARR: 
	Isee, yeah. 
	HARRIS: 
	I'dliketotalktoyouwithyouaboutprivateprisons. Thereisabillion-dollarprivateprison industrythatproﬁtsoﬀofincarceratingpeopleand, frankly, asmanyaspossible. Byone estimate,thetwolargestprivateprisoncompaniesintheUnitedStatesmakeatotal combinedproﬁtof$3.3 billion,that'swithaB, dollarsayear. InAugust2016,theJustice DepartmentissuedareportontheBureauofPrisons, useofprivateprisonsthatconcluded, "Contractprisonsincurredmoresafetyandsecurityincidentspercapitathancomparable BureauofPrisonsinstitutions." Giventhiscon
	BARR: 
	Whosereportwasthis?BOP? 
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	HARRIS: 
	Thiswas--yes. FromtheJusticeDepartment. 
	BARR: 
	BOP?Yeah,I'dliketo, youknow, Iwouldobviouslylookatthatreport. Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay, andthen-
	-

	BARR: 
	--ButI'mnotcommitting--Imean,I'dwanttoseewhatthe--thereportsays. 
	HARRIS: 
	Sure. AndthenI'dappreciateafollow-upwhenyouhaveachancetoreadit. 
	BARR: 
	Sure. 
	HARRIS: 
	Thankyou. Mytimeisup. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chair. Mr. Barr,thankyouforbeinghere. AndLiam,yourgranddaddy's doinggood. 
	Mr. Barr, Iwanttogobackbecauseit'salongtime--IthinkI'mthelastpersonintheﬁrst round. So,Ithinkwehavetogobackandmaybehaveyourestatesomethingsthatyousaid earlierbeforeIgettoafewotherthingsthatIhopeIhavetimetocoveronintellectual property,AmericanswithDisabilityAct, andaGAOreportbackfrom2014. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	I'm--IdohavetoaskaquestionwhileSenatorKennedyishere'causeIdon'tthinkhe coveredthefulllandscape. Heaskedaboutanybodyingovernment, anyoneinWestern Hemisphere,butdidyouinfacttalktoanybodyintheEasternHemispherewithrespectto theMuellerprobe? 
	BARR: 
	No,Ididn't. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Okay. Thankyou. Wegotthat--wegotthat-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	--AskhimabouttheMilkyWay. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Wegotthatclosedout. 
	Youknow,the--wouldyougobackagainandpleasedescribeformethe--ﬁrstoﬀ,Ithink we'veall--you'vemadeitveryclear,inspiteofthefactsomepeoplethoughtthatyouhad coachingandsomeofthecitationsinthememothatyouwrote,thatthiswasamemoyou wroteonyourown. Canyouexplaintomeagainthe--themotivationbehindthememo, whatpreciselyyouweretryingtocommunicate,justfortherecord? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. So,thepubliccommentaryandmediacommentarywassortofdominatedby discussionofobstructionofjustice, andeveryonewasthrowingoutobstructiontheoriesand soforth. Andthestatutethatrelatestoobstructingaproceedingthat'snotyetinbeing, that issomefutureproceeding,is1512. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	Andmyviewwas--oftheparticularprovision,1512(c), wasthatitrequires--whatitcoversis obstructionbymeansofimpairingevidence, thatyouknowsomeevidenceisgoingtobe neededinafutureproceedingandyouimpairiteitherbymakingitnotavailableorby corruptingitinsomeway, alteringit, destroyingit. That'swhatIthoughtthescopeofthat statutedealtwith. 
	Andtomyknowledge, theonlycaseseverbroughtunderitinvolvedthedestructionof evidence. Basedonpublicreports, whichmaybecompletelywrong,Ithoughtthatthe--it wasbeing--that--thatthespecialcounselmaybetryingtointerpretthestatutetosaythat anyact, notdestructionofevidenceoranythinglike--butanyactthatinﬂuencesa proceedingisacrimeifit'sdonewithabadintent. 
	Myconcernthereisthat, unlikesomethinglikebriberystatuteordocumentdestruction whereyouprohibitit, that'sabadact. Youdon'tneedtobeperformingthatbadactifyou're agovernmentoﬃcial. Butifyousaythatanyactthatinﬂuencesaproceedingisacrimeif youhaveabadstateofmind, that'swhatthepeopleatJusticeDepartmentdoeverydayof theweekisinﬂuenceproceedings. That'swhatthey'retherefor. 
	AndwhatIwasworriedaboutistheimpactonthedepartmentandotheragenciesifyousay tosomeoneifyou,in--insupervisingacaseorhandlingacase, makeadecisionwitha--fora badintent,itcanbeacrime. AndIthoughtthatthatwouldessentiallyparalyz
	ethe government. 
	So, justtogiveanexample,youknow,EricHoldermadesomepardonrecommendations duringtheClintonadministrationwhichwerecontroversial. Incidentally,IsupportedEric Holderforhisposition. Butcouldsomeonecomealongthenlaterandsay, well,ifyoudid thatforapoliticalreasontohelpHillaryClintonruninNewYork, that'sacrime, andwhen he's--whenhe'sexercisinghisprerogatives,youknow,inthatsituation?Andyoucanjustsee howthatcouldparalyz
	egovernment. Andthatwas-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Couldyou-
	-

	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	BARR: 
	--Myconcern. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	YoualsoreferredtoyourconcernswiththeprosecutionofSenatorMenendez 
	BARR: 
	--Um-hmm-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Thatweaveintothatsamethoughtprocess. 
	BARR: 
	Yes, becauseinthatcasemyconcernwasthattheywerebasicallytakingactivitiesthatwere not,youknow, wrongfulactsinthemselves. Youknow,thepoliticalcontributionswere lawfulpoliticalcontributions. Andthe--thethingswith,youknow,thetravelonhisfriend's-thatwashisfriendfor25 years. Theyweretakingatriptogether. 
	-

	Andyoutakethosekindsofthingsandthenyoucoupleitwithoﬃcialaction, andthenthe prosecutorcomesalongandsays, well, we'regoingtolookintoyourmindandseewhatyour subjectiveintentwasforperformingthesetwosetsoflawfulacts, andwe'regoingtosay, youknow,thatyou'recorrupt. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Right. 
	BARR: 
	So,Ijustthinkthatgivestoomuchpowertotheprosecutor. AndIthinkifthatkindof--and bytheway, youknow, they'vehadcaseslikethisfor--youknow, Imean,they'vebeen 
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	pursuingthingslikethis, andthey'vehadtobeslappeddownafewtimesbytheSupreme Courtonthesekindsofaggressivethingsinvolving, youknow, quidproquosontheHill. So, I-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Letme-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Yeah-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--IfIcan-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Yeah-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Thankyou. Ijustthoughtitwashelpfulbecausethinkyoutriedtoexplainalotofthatand youwerecutoﬀ. So,IthoughtI'dusesomeofmytimeintheﬁrstroundtoaskyouthat. 
	Also,Ithinksomebodytriedtocharacteriz
	eyouashavingsomehowbeenopposedtoany sortofRussiaprobeorRussiainvestigations. Haveyouevergoneonrecordasopposingany ofthethingsthatwe'retryingtodotoﬁgureoutwhereRussiamayhavebeeninvolvedin electiontampering? 
	BARR: 
	No. Andinfact,intheop-edpiecewhereIsaidIthoughtthepresidentwasrightinﬁring Comey, IsaidthattheinvestigationwasgoingforwardunderthesupervisionofRod Rosenstein. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	T
	ILLIS: 
	Yeah. Didyoualsosaymorethanonetimethatyoufeltlikethespecialcounselinvestigation shouldreachaconclusion, that--thatSpecialCounselMuellershouldn'tbe--thatheshould beallowedtodrawthistoa--aconclusion, thathewillsubmithisreportandyou'regoingto doeverythingthatyoucantopresentasmuchofthatinformationasyoucan--asyoucan-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Um-hmm-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Totheextentthatconﬁdentialinformationisnotbeingcompromised? 
	BARR: 
	Well,tothe--yeah,totheextenttheregulationspermitit. Yeah. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Didyoualsosaythatthereis--evenascenariowhere--youcan'timagineascenariofor cause,butevenascenarioforcausewhereyou'dhaveto--you'dhavetotakeunderserious considerationbeforeyouwouldremovespecialcounsel? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Yeah. Okay. 
	BARR: 
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	Therehasn'tbeenaspecialcounselremovedsinceArchibaldCox, andthatdidn'tworkout verywell. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Didn'tworkouttoowell, right. 
	Andso--andagain,didyoualsosaythatunder--innocircumstanceshaveyouhada discussionwiththepresidentwithrespectto--Ithinkyousaidyouhadadiscussionabout youhadarelationshipwithMr. Mueller,butnodiscussionaboutthespecialcounsel investigationandyouropinionsonitwithrespecttoanydiscussionsyou'vehadwiththe president? 
	BARR: 

	Right. ThatwastheﬁrstmeetingIhadwiththepresident, andtheninNovemberImetwith himabouttheattorneygeneraljob. Andtherewasnodiscussionofthesubstanceofan--of theinvestigation. Thepresidentdidn'taskmemyviewsaboutanyaspectofthe investigationandhedidn'taskmeaboutwhatIwoulddoaboutanythinginthe investigation. 
	Right. ThatwastheﬁrstmeetingIhadwiththepresident, andtheninNovemberImetwith himabouttheattorneygeneraljob. Andtherewasnodiscussionofthesubstanceofan--of theinvestigation. Thepresidentdidn'taskmemyviewsaboutanyaspectofthe investigationandhedidn'taskmeaboutwhatIwoulddoaboutanythinginthe investigation. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Yeah. 
	Withrespecttothelineofquestioningaboutthestatesthathavelegaliz
	edmarijuana, either formedicinalpurposesorrecreationalpurposes, Ithinkwhatyouweretryingtosayina very, veryrespectfulwayisit'snotyourjobtodoourjob. Isthatright? 
	Thatifweultimatelywanttoprovidecertaintyforthesebusiness--you'vedoneagoodjobin sayingthatyoudisagreewiththepolicyofthestatesbutwearewhereweare, andyouwould notwanttounderminethatgiventhatinvestmentshavebeenmade, stateshavemoved forward. Butattheendoftheday, weshouldstoptalkingaboutithereandmakingityour job. Andthosemembers--Idon'thappentobeoneofthem--whothinkthatweshouldtake 
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	thesefederallawsoﬀthebooksshouldprobablyﬁleabillandtryandgetitdone. Isthata fairassessmentofyouropinion? 
	BARR: 
	That's--that'sgenerallyfair, yes. I-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Yeah. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Justafewminorthingssothatwecangettothenextround. Therewasareportbythe inspectorgeneralin2014thathadtodowithaccountabilityintheDepartmentofJustice. I'm--Idon'texpectyoutobefamiliarwiththisreport. Butthereweresomeveryinteresting observationsthereaboutalackoffollowthroughondisciplinaryactionforanumberof--I thinkthesubtitleofthereportwasthatDOJcouldstrengthenproceduresfordisciplining attorneys. 
	It'ssomethingIwouldcommendtoyou, andmaybedustoﬀandseeiftherehavebeenany actionssincethisreport. Ididn'tgetasatisfactoryanswerwhenitwascontemporarywitha nomineefromtheObamaadministrationforthepositionyou'reseeking, whichisoneofthe reasonswhyIopposedthenomination. 
	BARR: 
	Actually, I--IthinkveryhighlyofInspectorGeneralHorowitzAndIhaven'tseenthat 
	. report, butthatissueisonethatIplantotakeup-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
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	--Yeah-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Withhim. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	AndthenjustsothatIdoﬁnishontimeversuspretendI'mgoingtoandgotwominutes early--over, one, Iwanttogetyourrecommendationonintellectualproperty. Ithinkwe havemoreworktodotogivetheDepartmentofJusticetoolstogoafterbadactors, which areChina, Russia, India, anumberofothercountries,Braz
	il,thatarestealingour intellectualproperty. 
	IalsowanttotalkaboutwhatIthinkistheexploitationoftheAmericanswithDisabilities Act,particularlyaroundwebsiteaccess. Thewebdidn'texist, andnowwehaveattorneys ﬁlinganumberoffrivolouslawsuits; wouldliketogetsomefeedbackonthatafteryouget conﬁrmed. 
	Andﬁnally, Iwanttomakesurethatyourecogniz
	eintheFirstStepActthatfaith-based organiz
	ationsthathaveproventohelpreducerecidivismareabsolutelyinplayfortheFirst StepAct. AndhopefullywecanmakesuretheDepartmentofJusticemovesforwardwith that. 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chair. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou, senator. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Ibelievethat'stheendofthe--theﬁrstround. Mr. Barr, you'reabletogoforalittlebit longer? 
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	BARR: 
	Sure. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. So, we'llstart. We'lldoﬁveminutes. Asyoucantell, I'vebeenprettyliberalwiththe time, butlet'strytohonoritthebestwecan. SenatorGrassley? 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Whereheleftoﬀonusing--workingwithfaith-basedinstitutionsyouwereverypositive aboutthat? 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Thattakescareofmyﬁrstquestion. Enforcementoftheantitrustlawsisextremely importanttoensurethatmarketsarefairandparticipantsdon'tengageinabusiveactivity harmingconsumers. If'vebeenparticularlyactiveinmakingsurethattheJustice DepartmentofFederalTradeCommissioncarefullyscrutiniz
	edmergersaswellaslooking outforanti-competitivebehaviorsandpredatorypracticesincertainsectorsoftheeconomy andparticularlyinmystateofIowa,theagriculturalindustry. ButI'malsopursuingthings inhealthcare. 
	InparticularisbecauseIwillbechairmanoftheSenateFinanceCommittee,Iaminterested inmakingsurebackcompaniesindrugandhealthcareindustriesareplayingbytherules. Everyone'sconcernedaboutthehighcostofhealthcareandespeciallytheskyrocketing priceofprescriptiondrugs. DoyouagreethattheJusticeDepartmenthasaveryimportant roleinthisarea? 
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	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Andwouldyoucommittomakingantitrustenforcementapriority? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, ithastobeapriority. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Okay,thankyou. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Nowtoafavoriteissueofmine, whistleblowerprotection. Whistleblowers, asItoldyouin myoﬃce, areverycriticaltoexposingwaste,fraud, andabuse. They'reoureyesandearson theground. Theircouragewhentheyhaveitandthey--mostofthemdohavegreatcourage ortheywouldn'tcomeforwardtoexposegovernmentmalfeasance, that'showimportant theyare. SoIhopeIcanhaveyouhaveafavorableviewtowardstheopportunitytolistento whistleblowers, protectthemfromretaliationandpromoteaculturethatvaluesimportant contributionfromthosepatrioticpeople. 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	NowtotheForeignAgentsRegistrationAct. Ihopeyouunderstandtherehavebeenvery fewprosecutionsundertheForeignAgentsRegistrationActsince1938 andsothatlaw enforcementIthinkisgoodthingobviouslyevensincetheMuellerinvestigationgettinga lotmoreattentionnow. Butwe--wehadahearingonitbeforethecommitteeandIthinkit 
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	provesthatweshouldseemoretransparencyandmoreenforcementagainstbadactors, not less. 
	DoyouagreethattheForeignAgentsRegistrationActisacriticalnationalsecurityand publicaccountabilitytoolandifconﬁrmedwillyoucommittomakesurethatthatactisa toppriority? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Okay. SothengettingbacktolegislationthatIthinkwillimprovethat1938ActIintroduced theDisclosingForeignInﬂuenceActtoimprovetransparency, accountability, and enforcement. Youhaven'tprobablyreadthatactbutIwouldliketoworkwithyoueven thoughit'snotinthiscommittee, it'sinForeignRelationsCommittee. Iwouldliketohave youworkwithussoit'ssomethingthatwecanpassandmakesurethatthislawismore usefulthanithasbeenoverthelast80years. 
	IsupporttheFreedomofInformationActandthepublicdisclosureofgovernment (INAUDIBLE). Transparencyyieldsaccountability. Youhearmesaythatallofthetimeand that'strue, nomatterwho'sintheWhiteHouse. 
	WhenIwaschairmanofthecommittee,IhelpedsteerFOIAImprovementActintolaw whichcreatesapresumptionofopennessandthatpresumptionofopennessisavery importantstandard. TheJusticeDepartmentoverseesthefederalgovernment'scompliance withFOIA. SoIhopeyouwouldagreethatFOIAisanimportanttoolforholding governmentaccountableandifconﬁrmedthenwouldyoumakesureit'satoppriorityto makeFOIAandthefaithfulandtimelyimplementationofthe2016 amendmentsatop priority? 
	BARR: 
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	Yes, wewillworkhardonthat. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Becauseyouknowwhatreallyhappensinthebowelsofthebureaucracy,itjusttakesthem foreverbecausemaybesomething'sgoingtoembarrassonthemsotheydon'twantitoutin thepublicsoyougetallsortsofexcuses. We'vegottodoawaywiththoseexcuses. 
	OnewaytomakeFOIAworkbetterisbyreducingthenumberofrequests. Thiswillbemy lastquestion. By--onewaytomakeFOIAworkbetterisbyreducingthenumberofrequests thathavetobemadeintheﬁrstplace. That'swhyI'mastrongadvocateforimproved proactivedisclosure. 
	Ifconﬁrmedwillyoucommittohelpadvocateformoreproactivedisclosureofgover-rectors(SP)?Nowthat'snotjustbytheJusticeDepartmentbutbecauseyourgovernmentor yourdepartment'stopdoginthisparticularareainthefederalgovernmentoverall? 
	-

	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	GRASSLEY: 
	Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorFeinstein? 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Mr. Barr, Iseeyouhavestayingpower, butIseeitrunsinthebackfamily, andparticularly yourgrandson. I'dliketosendalittlecarepackagedowntohim. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	Hedeservesamedal. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou, senator. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	You'rewelcome. 
	BARR: 
	Hedoesn'thavetoshareitwiththerestofthefamily. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	In1994, yousaidthatguncontrolisadeadend. Itwon'treducethelevelofviolentcrimein oursociety. Theyearyoumadethiscomment, Iintroducedafederalassaultweaponsban andtheweaponpresidentsigneditintolaw. A2016 studyshowsthat, comparedwiththe 10-yearperiodbeforethebanwasenacted,thenumberofgunmassacresbetween'94and '04fellby37percentandthenumberofpeopledyingfromgunmassacresfellby43 percent. 
	Inaddition,between2004and2014,therehasbeen183 percentincreaseinmassacres anda239percentincreaseinmassacredeaths. Doyoustillbelievethatprudentcontrolson weaponswon'treduceviolentcrime?Andifso, whatisyourbasisfromthisconclusion? 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkthe--theproblemofourtimeistogetaneﬀectivesysteminplacethatcankeep dangerousﬁrearmsoutofthehandsofmentallyillpeople. Thatis--shouldbepriority numberoneandit'sgoingtotakesomehardworkandweneedtogetontopoftheproblem, weneedtocomeupwith, agreetostandardsthatareprohibitorsofpeoplewhoarementally ill, wehavetoputtheresourcesintogetthesystembuiltupthewaywedidmanyyearsago onthe--onthefelonrecordsandsoforth. We--wehavetogetthesystemworking. 
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	AndasIsay,it's--it'ssortofpiecemealalittlebitrightnow. Weneedtoreallygetsome energybehinditandgetitdone. AndIthinkwealsoneedtopushalongthe--theERPOsso thatwehavetheseredﬂaglawsto--tosupplementtheuseofthebackgroundchecktoﬁnd outifsomeonehassomementaldisturbance. ThisisthesinglemostimportantthingIthink wecandoin--inthegun-controlareatostopthesemassacresfromhappeningintheﬁrst place. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Well,thankyou. I'dliketoworkwithyouinthatregard. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	InAugust2002,theJusticeDepartment'sOﬃceofLegalCounselissuedopinions authoriz
	ingenhancedinterrogationmethodsthatincludedwaterboardingandextended sleepdeprivation. TheseopinionswerelaterwithdrawnandtheJusticeDepartment'sOﬃce ofProfessionalResponsibilityfoundthattheyreﬂectedalackof, thisisaquote, "Alackof thoroughness, objectivity, andcandor." In2015,IworkedwithSenatorMcCaintopass legislationmakingclearthatenhancedinterrogationtechniquesareunlawfulandlimit--and limitingauthoriz
	edinterrogationtechniquestothoselistedintheArmyFieldManual. And thatisthelawtoday. Ifconﬁrmed, willyouensurethattheJusticeDepartmentupholdsthe law? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. I--IthinkthatthatwasanimportantchangebecauseIthinkitgaveclarityto thelawandIsupport--Iwillsupportthat. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
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	Thankyou. I'mdelightedtohearthat. Now, alotofushaveaskedabouttheMuellerreport andwhetheryouwouldprobepermittoprovidingittoCongress. Whenasked, Ithoughtyou saidyes,butwhenItriedtoclarifyit, Imeantthefullreportincludingobstructionofjustice. Youagainsaidyes. Then, whenSenatorBlumenthalaskedyouabouttheMuellerreportyou seemedtomakeadistinctionandsaidyouweregoingtoprovideyourownreportbasedon Muller'sreportbutnotthereport,thisisthewayweunderstoodit, notthereporthesubmits attheendoftheinvestigation. 
	Thisisconcerningasthereisnothingintheregulationsthatpreventyoufromproviding Mueller'sreporttoCongress. Whiletheregsrefertoaconﬁdentialreporttobeprovidedto theattorneygeneral,theregsdonotstatethatconﬁdentialitymeansthereportcannotbe providedtoCongress. Sohere'sthequestion, willyouprovideMueller's, excuseme, Mueller'sreporttoCongress, notyourrewriteorasummary? 
	BARR: 
	Well,theregsdosaythatMuellerissupposedtodoasummaryreportofhisprosecutiveand hisdeclinationdecisionsandthattheywillbehandledasaconﬁdentialdocument, asour internaldocumentsrelatingtoanyfederalcriminalinvestigation. Now, I'mnotsure--and-andthen,theAGhassomeﬂexibilityanddiscretionintermsoftheAG'sreport. 
	-

	WhatIamsayingismyobjectiveandgoalinthegoalistogetasmuchasIcanofthe informationtoCongressandthepublic. Andyouknow,thesearedepartmentalregulations andI'mgoingtobetalkingtoRodRosensteinandBobMueller. I'msuretheyhad discussionsaboutthis. There'sprobablyexistingthinkingandthedepartmentastohowto handlethis,butallIcansayatthisstage, becauseIhavenoclueastowhat'sbeingplanned, isthatIamgoingtotrytogettheinformationoutthereconsistentwiththeseregulations. AndtotheextentIhavediscretion, I--Iwillexercisethatdiscretiontod
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Well,Icanonlyspeakforthisside, andmaybenotalltheside, butwereallyappreciatethat. Inthedegreetowhichyoucangetusapromptreportinthefullestpossibleformwouldbe 
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	reallyappreciatedandIthinktherehastobearealiz
	ationtoamongtheadministrationthat thisisanissueofrealconcerntopeopleandtotheCongressandweshouldbeabletosee theinformedinformationthatcomesout. So-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Iunderstand-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--I'mveryhopeful. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Thankyou. Letmeaskthisquestiononenhanced--didmytimerunout? 
	GRAHAM: 
	Yeah,butgoahead. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Onenhancedinterrogation. Duringa2005 paneldiscussion,yousaidthefollowing,Ithink, aboutinterrogatingsuspectedterrorists. AndIquote, "Underthelawsofwar, absenta treaty,thereisnothingwrongwithcoerciveinterrogationapplyingpain, discomfort, and otherthingstomakepeopletalksolongasitdoesn'tcrossthelineandinvolvethegratuitous barbarityinvolvedintorture." 
	ThisisapaneldiscussioncivillibertiesandsecurityJuly18, 2005. Doyoubelievethat tortureiseverlawful? 
	BARR: 
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	No. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Iswaterboardingtorture? 
	BARR: 
	Youknow,I--I'dhavetolookatthelegaldeﬁnition. You'retalkingaboutunderthe--right nowisprohibited. Soyouknow,thelawhas-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--Thetechnique,yes-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Hasdeﬁnitivelydealtwiththat. Ican'tevenrememberwhattheoldlawwasthatdeﬁned torture. I'dhavetolookatthatandthen,youknow,ﬁgureoutwhat'sinvolvedinthat. Butit-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--What-
	-

	BARR: 
	Sorry. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Keepgoing. Ididn'tmeantointerrupt. 
	BARR: 
	No,it'sokay, senator. 
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	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Atwhatpointdoesinterrogationcrossthelinetothe, "Gratuitousbarbarityinvolvedin torture?" That'syourquote. 
	BARR: 
	Well,Iwasn'tusing--usingthatasalegal--thegratuitousbarbarity, that's--that'swhatIwas-Iwas--Iwassayingtortureisgratuitousbarbarity. SoIwasn'tsayingthatgratuitous-
	-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--Oh, wellthat'shelpfulthen. That'shelpful. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Andyoudeﬁnewaterboarding,youknow, onewouldthinkthesequestionswouldneverbe necessary. IthoughtthatallmylifeandthenIfoundIwaswrong, andtheyreallyare. AndI waschairmanofintelligencewhenwedidthebigtorturereportandwhatIfoundandwhatI sawwasreallyindicativeofreform. SoIthinkfortheattorneygeneral,knowingtheposition isreallyveryimportant. Somaybeyoucouldconciselystateyourpositionontorture. 
	BARR: 
	I--Idon'tthinkweshouldeverusetortureandIthinkthattheclariﬁcationthatyour--wasit yourlegislationoftheputtingintheArmy-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--ItwasMcCain'sbill-
	-
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	BARR: 
	--Theﬁeld--theFieldManual-
	-

	FEINST
	EIN: 
	--That'sright-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Wasan--wasimportanttoclarifyingwherethelineis. 
	FEINST
	EIN: 
	Thankyou. Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorCornyn. 
	CORNYN: 
	Mr. Barr, IwanttotalkaboutgunsandIwanttotalkaboutChinaintheﬁveminuteswe havetogether. 
	Backin1992,therewassomediscussionaboutyourpositiononCongress'srolewhenit talkstobanningcertaintypesofsemi-automaticweapons, sometimespeoplecallthose assaultweapons. Butintheinterveningyears,theSupremeCourthasnowspokeninboth theHellerandMcDonaldcaseandrecogniz
	edthattheSecondAmendmentconfersan individualfundamentalrighttobeararms. 
	Couldyousortofbringusuptodatefromyourviewsin1992 andhowtheywereaﬀectedby HellerandMcDonaldandwhatyourviewsnowareontheSecondAmendment? 
	BARR: 
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	Sure. I--IthinkIopposedanassaultweaponbanbecauseIfeltthatthatwasreallysortofthe aestheticsofthegunandbut, youknow, sincethattimeHellerhasbeendecided. Actually, beforeHeller,IdidworkatOLCon--onthisissueandIpersonallyconcludedthatthe SecondAmendmentcreatesapersonalamendmentrightundertheConstitution. It'sbased ontheLockeannotionoftherightofself-preservation. It'stiedtothat. 
	AndIwasgladthat--toseeHellercomeoutand--andvindicatethatinitialviewthatIhad andsothere'snoquestionunderHellerthattherighttohaveweaponsis--ﬁrearmsis protectedundertheSecondAmendmentandisapersonalright. Atthesametime,thereis roomforreasonableregulation. 
	AndyouknowfrommystandpointwhatIwouldlookforis--inassessingaregulationis what'stheburdenoflaw-abidingpeopleandisitproportionatetowhateverbeneﬁtinterms ofsafetyandeﬀectivenesswillbeconferred?AsIsaidjustamomentagolet'sgetdownto therealproblem, weareconfrontingwhichiskeepingtheseweaponsoutofthehandsof peoplewhoarementallyill. And--andIthinkalloftherestofthisstuﬀisreallyasensually rhetoricuntilwereallygetthatproblemdealtwithintermsof--ofregulatoryapproaches. 
	CORNYN: 
	Well, asourcolleaguethesenatorfromLouisiana,SenatorKennedy,likestosaytheBillof RightsisnotanalacartemenuandI--IagreewiththatandIalsoagreethatthisis--thereare manyfacetstothesemassviolenceincidents. AftertheshootingatSutherlandSpringswe foundoutthatthebackgroundchecksystem,thenationalinstantcriminalbackground checksystem, wasnotbeingusedappropriatelybytheU.S. government,inthatcase, theAir Forceandifithadbeenthisindividualwhokilled20people, injured26 moreataBaptist churchrightoutsideofSanAntoniowouldnothavebe
	Butcertainlythementalhealthissuethatyoumentionedwe'vedoneworktherewith-
	-

	BARR: 
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	FixNICS. 
	CORNYN: 
	IntheFixNICSarea. We'vealsodone--doneexpandedpilotprogramsonassisted outpatienttreatmentforpeoplesuﬀeringfrommentalillnessrecogniz
	ingthatitisdiﬃcult foranyfamilymembertocontrolparticularlyanadultbutthatprovidinganopportunityto gotocourtandgetbasicallyacivilorderthatwouldrequirethemtocomplywiththeir doctor'sorders,taketheirmedicationandthelike. IamthinkingofAdamLanz
	aatthe SandyHookshootingwhosemotherdidnotknowhowtocontrolhimashewasgetting moreandmoreillandonlytohavehimtakethevery--herveryweaponandthenkillherand thengomurdertheinnocentchildren. So-
	-

	OnChinadoyouagreewithmethatChinarepresentsprobablyoneofthepreeminent economicchallengestoAmericabecauseparticularlybecauseoftheirtheftofintellectual propertyandtheirexploitationofgapsinforeigninvestmentthatwe'vetriedtoaddress throughimprovementoftheCFIUSprocessthecommitteeonforeigninvestmentinthe UnitedStates?ButtalktomealittlebitaboutwhatyouseethechallengeofChinaboth economicallyandfromanationalsecuritystandpoint. 
	BARR: 
	Well,the--theChi--IthinkIthinktheyaretheparamounteconomicandmilitaryrivalinthe world. Ithinkthattheyare--theyareveryformidablebecausetheytakethelongview. They havebeenstealingourtechnologyandtheyhavebeengraduallybuildinguptheirmilitary powerandinvestinginnewtechnologies. 
	I--Ithinkfromamilitarystandpointit'sverydisturbinghowmuchprogresstheyaremaking largelybasedonU.S. technology. AndIwasveryplease--IreallythoughtthatAttorney GeneralSessionswasrightontargetinsettinguphisChinaInitiativeinthedepartmentto startgoingafterthepiratingofAmericantechnologyandotherkindsofillegalactivitiesthat ChinesenationalsareinvolvedinhereintheUnitedStatesandevenabroad. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	CORNYN: 
	Wouldyou--doyousharemyskepticismthatChinesetelecommunicationscompanieslike HuaweiandZTEintermsofhowthatonceinthehandsorinthenetworksofunsuspecting countriesthatthatcouldbeusedforespionagepurposesandtheftofintellectualproperty? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, infacteveninmyoldVeriz
	ondaysweunderstoodthedangerandwouldnotusethat kindoftheequipmenteventhoughit'seconomicallyitwouldbeeconomicallyattractive. Yeah. 
	GRAHAM: 
	BeforeSenatorLeahyIwouldliketoonbehalfofSenatorFeinsteinintroduceintothe recordlettersthatexpressoppositionorconcernfromgroupsliketheLeadership ConferenceonCivilandHumanRights,PlannedParenthood, PeoplefortheAmerican Way,NationalEducationAssociation, AllianceforJustice,NARAL, NationalUrbanLeague, theNationalCouncilofJewishWomen,CenterforAmericanProgressandtheHuman RightsCampaignandaletterfromRepresentativeRaulGrijalva. IhopeIdidn't--IhopeIgot hisnamerightfromAriz
	ona. 
	InsupportwehavelettersfromtheInternationalAssociationofChiefsofPolice;letterfrom theNationalFraternalOrderofPolice; numerousletterssignedfrom100formerfederal lawenforcementnationalsecurityoﬃcialsincludingthreeformerattorneygenerals; anda lotofU.S. attorneysandheadsoftheCIA,FBIandDepartmentofHomelandSecurity;a letterfromtheNationalNarcoticsOﬃcersAssociation; aletterfromtheInternationalUnion ofPublicPoliceAssociations; aletterfromMajorCitiesChiefsAssociation; aletterfromthe AssociationofStateCriminalInvestiga
	SenatorLeahy. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-5

	LEAHY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	Justwhenyou--youjustmentionedbeingatVeriz
	Justwhenyou--youjustmentionedbeingatVeriz
	onduringtheNSA'smetadataprogram 

	relativetothePRISM--PRISMupstream. Itrequiredtelecominternetproviders,youknow, 
	tohandoverhugeamountsofdatatothegovernment. Andyoutestiﬁedin2003 thatthe 
	lawisclearthatapersonhasnofourthamendmentrightsintheserecordsleftinthehands 
	ofthirdparties,thethirdpartydoctrine. 
	Iactuallydisagreedwithyouatthattime. AndIhopeyouwouldnow, especiallyasthe Carpenterdecisionjustcamedown, andwrittenbyChiefJusticeRoberts,thatthisis generallyrequiringthegovernmenttogetawarranttoobtaingeolocationinformation throughcellsitelocationinformation. Doesthatchangetheopinionyouhadbackthen? 
	BARR: 
	Well,itsoundslikeit--Ihaven'treadthatdecision, senator. It--itmaymodifymyviews. I'd havetoreadthedecision. IwasgoingontheMillerdecisionrelatingto-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Itactually-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Bankrecords. Butalsoyoumentionedthe--youweretyingthistotheNSAcollection, because--andthentyingittomytestimony,because,youknow-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Well,youhadsaidthatno--apersonhasnotfourthamendmentrightsintheserecordsleft inthehandsofthirdparties, thethirdpartydoctrine. 
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	BARR: 
	Yeah, thatwasthe-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Itseemstobeundercutby--byCarpenter. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. I'm--I'll--I'lltakealookatthat. But-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Well,thenwouldyourespond-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Idon'twantpeopletohavetheimpressionthatVeriz
	onwasinvolvedin-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Wouldyourespond-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Spying-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Fortherecordonthatquestion? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. Sure. Certainly. 
	LEAHY: 
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	AndyousaidbackinNovemberof2017yousawmorebasisforinvestigatingtheUranium OnedealthananysupposedcollusionbetweenPresidentTrumpandRussiaand,bynot pursuingthesematters,thedepartmentisabdicatingitsresponsibility. Justabout everybody'sdebunkedtheUraniumOnecontroversy. Ithinkprobablythenailinthecoﬃn wasPresidentTrump'sbiggestsupporter, FoxNews, debunkedit. DidImisssomethingin here? 
	BARR: 
	No. Actually, that--youknow, I--you'llnoticethattherewerenoquotesaroundthat, and thenthenextsentenceisplural, matters. Andmyrecollectionofthatiswhat--Ithinkitwas relatingtotheletterandtheappointmentofHuberinUtahtolookintoanumberofthings. 
	AndthepointIwastryingtomaketherewasthat, whateverthestandardisforlaunchingan investigation,itshouldbedealtwithevenhandedly,thatwhateverthattriggerisshouldbe appliedtoall. Ihavenoknowledgeofthe--UraniumOne. Ididn'tparticularlythinkthatwas necessarilysomethingthatshouldbepursuedaggressively. Iwastryingtomakethepoint thattherewasalotoutthere. AndIthinkallthatstuﬀatthetimewasbeinglookedatby--by Huber. That'smyrecollection. Imaybewrongonthat. 
	LEAHY: 
	Well,Ithinkthefactthattheinvestigationhasbeenprettywelldebunked, wedon'thaveto worryaboutinthefuture. Butwedohaveonethingthat'shappeningrightnow. TheTrump shutdownisinits25thday. 
	TheJusticeDepartmenthasahundredand--orhas13,000FBIagents,16,000prison guards,3,600U.S. Marshals,4,300DrugEnforcementAgents. They'reallworkingwithout pay. TheFBIAgentsAssociation,Irealiz
	eit'snotpartofthegovernment,butthe associationdescribedtheeﬀectoftheshutdownasapotentialnationalsecurityissue. 
	So, letmejustaskyou. Inyouryearsofexperienceatthedepartment, whatimpactdoyou believealongtermshutdownhasonlawenforcement? 
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	BARR: 
	Well,Ithinkmost--mostpeopleinvolvedinlawenforcementare--Idon'tknowifthe--the-thelingoisstillthesame. Theyusedtobecalledessential. Ithinkit'sbeenchangedto somethingelse. ButIthinkthey'reonthejob,butobviouslywe'dliketo--peoplewouldlike toseetheshutdownended, andthat'swhypeoplewanttoseesomekindofcompromise. 
	-

	And, youknow,youcallittheTrumpshutdown, but,Imean,ittakestwototango. AndI sortofwonder-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Well,Iwould-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Whycan't-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Onlybecausehecalleditthat-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Oh-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Inhismeeting-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Okay-
	-

	LEAHY: 
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	--IntheWhiteHouse. AndIsaidﬁnallyI'vegotsomethingIcouldagreewithhimon, and-becausesenator-
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Well-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--SenatorShelbyandIhadputtogetherappropriationsbillsthatpassedalmostunanimously intheSenateatatimewhenit--thatwouldhavekeptthegovernmentopen. That'satatime whenit'shardtogetsomethingunanimoussayingthesunwouldriseintheeast, andI--so, I wasjustagreeingwiththepresident. 
	Butnomatterwhatyoucallit, isn'titafactthatthisdoeshaveaneﬀectonlawenforcement? 
	BARR: 
	Well, nothavingawallalsohasaneﬀectonlawenforcement. 
	LEAHY: 
	Yeah. Yeah, andnotpayingourlawenforcementpeople. 
	We'vebothhadexperienceinlawenforcement, youatthenationallevel, meatthestate level. Youdon'tpayourlawenforcementpeople, Ithinkthere'saneﬀect. Youhavesome verydedicatedpeople,butyouhavesomeverydistractedpeople. 
	DoyoubelievethevoterIDlawsandsimilarrestrictionsonvotingactuallypromote democracybydiscouragingvoterswhoarenotreallypayingattentiontowhat'sgoingon, goingbacktoapaneldiscussionyouhadafewyearsago? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. Yeah, whatIsaidtherewasthat, inthatpaneldiscusson,therewasalotofpeople complainingaboutthelackof--that--thatmanyAmericansaren'teducatingthemselves 
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	abouttheissuesandthey'repassive, andthatitwasimportantto--and--and--andthe--and alsothatthevotingparticipationwasdropping. 
	AndI--mypositionwasthattheunderlyingproblemisthecitiz
	en--youknow, the--the--the citiz
	enwhoisnotpayingattentiontopublicevents, noteducatingthemselvesaboutthe issuesandsoforth, andthatthenonvotingisasymptom, andIdidn'tseedrivingup participationasaddressingtheprimaryunderlyingproblem. 
	Thatwasmypoint. AndIpointedoutthatwhentheConstitutionwasadopted,theturnout wasabout33 percent, myunderstanding. So--andthenIsaid, youknow, lowparticipation hasbeenaproblemfromtheverybeginning. 
	Butmyviewisthat--thatvoterturnoutshouldn'tbeartiﬁciallydrivenupwithoutalso addressingtheissueofaninformedcitiz
	enrate, whichIthinkisaproblem. 
	LEAHY: 
	We--wedohavevotinglawsthatguardagainstdiscrimination,thearbitraryclosingof votingboothsinapredominantlyAfricanAmericanarea, forexample. 
	BARR: 
	Um-hmm. 
	LEAHY: 
	Wouldyouhaveanyprobleminvigorouslyenforcingourvotingrightslawsthatareonthe books? 
	BARR: 
	Ofwhat, vigorously?No, notatall. I--I--Isaidoneofmyprioritieswould--wouldbethat. I thinkwehavetoenforcethevotingrights. AndIwasn'tsuggestingthatvotingshouldbe suppressed. 
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	Iwasjustsayingthatthelowturnoutisultimatelyattributabletosortofthe--I--Idon'tknow whatthewordtouseis, but,youknow,thatthecitiz
	enrydoesn'tseemtobethatengaged, youknow,in--inthepublicaﬀairsofthecountry. 
	LEAHY: 
	Well,theyareinVermont. 
	BARR: 
	Hmm? 
	LEAHY: 
	IsaytheyareinVermont. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. Andwhat-
	-

	LEAHY: 
	--Wehaveoneofthehighestturnoutsinthecountry. 
	BARR: 
	That'sgood. Yeah, excellent. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou. 
	LEAHY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
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	Thankyou. We'regoingtohavetwovotesat4:10. Canyougoforabitlonger? 
	BARR: 
	Um-hmm. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorSasse. 
	SASSE: 
	Thankyou, chairman. General,I'dliketoreturntothisdisturbingtopicsofhuman traﬃckingandsextraﬃcking. You'veansweredafewquestionsheretoday. I'dliketolookat theNovember28MiamiHeraldinvestigativeseriesthatIknowthatyoufollowedintothe crimesofJeﬀreyEpsteinandIwanttoquotefromthat. Epstein, awealthyhedgefund manager, "Assembledthelargecult-likenetworkofunderagegirlswiththehelpofyoung femalerecruiterstocoerceintohavingsexactsbehindthewallsofhisopulentwaterfront mansionasoftenasthreetimesaday." 
	Thereportcontinues, "Hewasalsosuspectedoftraﬃckingminorgirls, oftenfromoverseas, forsexpartiesathisotherhomesinManhattan,NewMexico, andtheCaribbean." The Heraldseriescontinues, "In2007,despiteamplephysicalevidenceandmultiplewitnesses corroboratingthegirl'sstories,federalprosecutorsandEpstein'slawyersquietlyput togetheraremarkabledealforEpstein,thenage54. Heagreedtopleadguiltytotwofelony prostitutionchargesinstatecourtandinexchange,heandhisaccomplicesreceived immunityfromfederalsextraﬃckingchargesthatcouldha
	"Heserved13 monthsinaprivatewingofthePalmBeachCountystockade. Hisallegedcoconspirators, whohelpedschedulehissexsessions, wereneverprosecutedinthedeal, called, againthisistheMiamiHerald, afederalnon-prosecutionagreementwassealedso thatnoone, notevenhisvictims, couldknowthefullscopeofEpstein'scrimesandwhoelse wasinvolved." Thefactthatfederalprosecutorsappeartohavecraftedthissecret 
	-
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	sweetheartdealforachildrapistobviouslyenragesmomsanddadseverywhere. Onthis particularcase, willyoucommittomakingsurethatthereisafullandthorough investigationintothewayDOJhandledtheEpsteincase? 
	BARR: 
	Senator,IhavetorecusemyselffromKirkland&EllismattersIamtold, andIthink Kirkland&Elliswasmaybeinvolvedinthatcase. SoIneedtosortoutexactlywhat--what myrolecanbe,but,youknow, Iwillsaythatif--ifonconﬁrmed, I'llmakesureyour questionsareansweredonthiscase. 
	SASSE: 
	Thankyou. Thedeputyattorneygeneralobviouslytherehavebeenimmediatereportsabout thetimingofhispotentialdeparturepostyourconﬁrmationandtheDAG, asyouallknow fromyourpriorhistory,hasakeyresponsibilityindeconﬂictingdiﬀerentpartsofthe department. Thoseofuswho'vebeenpressingonthismatterhavefound,indiﬀerentparts ofthedepartment, alotofanxietyaboutthewaythiswashandledandyetkindofahot potatoofabunchofpeoplethinkingthey'renotresponsible. 
	Rightnow, rightRodRosensteinhasbeenhelpingtryingtode-conﬂictsomeofthat,butI'm worriedif--withyourpotentialrecusaliftheDAGalsodepartsit'snotclearwho'sgoingto actuallydoconﬂictthis. SoI'mgratefulforyourpledgethatthedepartmentwillbe responsiveevenifnotyou,personally. 
	BARR: 
	That'sright, sir. 
	SASSE: 
	MorebroadlythanthemiscarriageofjusticeinthisparticularFloridacase, wouldyouagree thatjusticehasnothingtodowiththesiz
	eofyourbankaccountorthenumberofattorneys youcanhire? 
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	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	SASSE: 
	IagreeandIthinkthatawholebunchofAmericanswonderabouttheDepartmentofJustice andhowwearetryingtoprioritiz ingourresponsibilitytothe
	eorhowweshouldbeprioritiz victimsofsextraﬃckingwhoareleftafraidandvoiceless. Inthisparticularcase, manyof thewomenwhowereclearlyvictims, traﬃcked, rapevictims, hadnoawarenessofthefact, andIthinkinviolationoffederalstatutestatutesofvictimnotiﬁcationthatthisnonprosecutionagreementhadbeenagreedto, andnotjustthatEpsteinandhisco-conspirators werenotindicted,buttherestoftheinvestigatorymattersofthedepartmentwerealso suspended. Itseemstrulybiz
	-

	arre. 
	Ithinkmomsanddadswatchingthishearingwouldliketoknowthatyouwillpledge broadlytoattacksextraﬃckingasascourgeandoursocietyonboththesupplysideandthe demandsideasthesedirtbagsdemandthis, butonthesupplysideasorganiz
	ationsclearly perpetratethesecrimes. Canyoupledgetousthatthiswillbeoneofyourprioritiesatthe department? 
	BARR: 
	Theycancountonit. 
	SASSE: 
	Thankyou, sir. 
	GRAHAM: 
	IwanttoassociatemyselfwithwhatSenatorSassesaidabouttheEpsteincaseandthe problemingeneral. Andtotheextentyoucanhelpusﬁgurethisout,please. 
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	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorDurbin. 
	DURBIN: 
	Thanks, Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, thankyouforbeingwithus. Mr. Barr, mycolleague, SenatorErnst, ask--askaquestionearlierwhichI'msurewouldbeaskedinvirtuallyevery statewerepresent, whatwearedoingtostoptheﬂowofnarcoticsintotheUnitedStates. SheaskedaboutmethIbelieveinparticularbutaboutnarcoticscominginfromMexicoand yourreplywasandIquoteitisthemajoravenueofhowdrugscomeintothecountry. 
	Theycomecrossthatorder. Ifeelitisacriticalpartofbordersecurityandweneedbarriers ontheborder. Thatwasyourquote. 
	I'mtroubledbythatanswerandI--I'dliketoclarifyitbecauseifwe'reevergoingtohavea rationalconversationaboutbordersecuritythereoughttobesomebasicsthatweagreeon. TheDEAwhichyouwillsuperviseifconﬁrmed, inits2018 reportsaidquotethemost commonmethodemployedbytheMexicandrugcartelsinvolvestransportingillicitdrugs throughU.S. portsofentryandpassengervehicleswhichconcealedcompartmentsarecomingledwithlegitimategoodsontractor-trailers. Thecustomsandborderprotection'sown datashowsthatcustomsoﬃcersatlegalportsofentryseiz
	-

	ethevastmajorityoflethal narcoticscomingintothiscountry. 
	Inﬁscalyear2017, lastyearwehavedata, 87percentofthefentanylwhichhasbeen identiﬁedasCDCasthemostdeadlynarcoticinAmerica,87percentseiz
	edinourcountry cominginthroughportsofentry, 13 percentceasedoutsideofportsofentry. 
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	Sooverwhelminglywhenwetalkaboutbuildingnewwallsandbarrierstostopnarcotics, we areignoringtheobvious,80percentto90percentofthedrugsarecominginthroughports ofentry. Imit--Imetwiththeheadofcustomsandborderprotection. Hesaidthenumber onethingwecandoistoputtechnologyintheportsofentrytoscanthevehiclescoming through. 
	Currently, only17percentoftrucksandcarscomingthroughthoseportsofentryarebeing scanned,17percent. Thatmeans83 percentofthemarejustﬂowingrightonthrough. They arebringingnarcoticstoIowaandtoIllinois. Buildinganewconcretewallfromseato shiningseadoesn'tevenaddressthisissue. Technologydoes. 
	Iwanttoreachthepointwhereweopenthegovernmentandhavethishonestconversation. Wouldyoureconsideryourearlieranswerastothefactthatweneedtobuildmorebarriers tostopnarcoticsfromcomingintotheUnitedStates? 
	BARR: 
	Well,itwasn'ttiedjusttonarcotics. Itwastiedtooverallbordersecuritywhich-
	-

	DURBIN: 
	Yousaidamajoravenueforhowdrugscomeintothiscountry. It'snot. 
	BARR: 
	Isaidwas--wasacrosstheb-
	-

	DURBIN: 
	Acrosstheborder. 
	BARR: 
	Waitaminute. I--I--goahead. 
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	DURBIN: 
	Theborderisthemajoravenuebutyouranswerwasweneedbarriersontheborder. 
	BARR: 
	Right,becausedrugyouknowweneedbarriersontheorderforbordersecuritypartofwhat wearetryingtodoiscutdownondrugs,it'salsoillegalaliens,it'salsopeoplefromother countrieswhomaywishtodoharmintheUnitedStatesthatarecomingin. Andbarriersare partoftheanswerandfrommyexperience,thethreatisalwaysdynamic. 
	Youputtechnologyattheportsofentrytheywillshiftsomewhereelse. It'samovingtarget, alwayshasbeenandIthinkweneedasystemthatcoversallofthebases. 
	DURBIN: 
	IthinkthereasonwecannotreachanagreementwiththeTrumpadministrationis fundamentaltoourexchangeandit'sthis. Idon'tdisagreewithyou, withthe--withthe notionthatbarriersfromseatoshiningseawellatleastslowpeopledown. Butwhenit comestothenextmarginaldollartoprotectkidsinIllinoisandchildreninyourhomestate it'sportsofentry,it'stechnologytokeepthesenarcoticsoutoftheUnitedStates. 
	Andifwecan'treallystartatthesamepremisebasedonreportsfromthepresident'sown administration, wearenevergoingtoreachapointofbipartisanagreementonborder security. SoIhope, Ithinkweareclosetoagreeingandmaybeit'ssemantics,Ihopenot. But Ihopethatwecanagreethatifwearegoingtostopnarcotics,technology, andpersonnelthe expertstellusthat,it'snotawallandIhopethatwecanmovefromthere. 
	ThelastquestionI'llaskyouinlimitedtime;theyaskedmeaboutyourstatementsthis morning,yourtestimonyandIthoughttheyweregoodresponsiveinmostpart. Theone thingI'mstuckonandmanyareisthisreportyougavetothisadministrationinJuneoflast yearabouttheinvestigationofthePresident. 
	BARR: 
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	Youmeanmymemo? 
	DURBIN: 
	Yes. 
	BARR: 
	Memo, yeah. 
	DURBIN: 
	AndyousaidinthereMuellershouldnotbepermittedtodemandthatthepresidentsubmit tointerrogationaboutallegedobstruction. Youvolunteeredthat. I'mtryingtogetaround this. 
	Itsoundslikeitwasaneﬀortonyourparttoingratiateyourselfwithanadministration whichisnownominatingyouforattorneygeneral. I'llgiveyouonelastchance. Mytimeis up. Pleaserespond. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. Well, ﬁrst, whatIwassayingtherewasagain, basedonspeculationonmypartwas thattherehastobeanadequatepredicateandifhewasrelyingonjusttheﬁringofMueller orthestatementaboutFlynninthisspeciﬁcstatute,thosetwothings,Ididn'tthinkitwasan adequatepredicate. Iwasn'tsayinghe--hemayhaveotherfacts,hemayhaveothertheories thatwouldsupportit. Iwasjustpinpointingthat. 
	Numbertwo,Ican-
	-

	DURBIN: 
	IthinkyoumeanttheﬁringofComey. 
	BARR: 
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	IcanassureyouIwasnottryingtoingratiatemyselfwithanybody,thefurthestthingfrom mymindwascomingbackintogovernmentIcanassureyouthat. AndifIwantedto ingratiatemyselforsignalthingsalotmoredirectwaysofdoingitthanthat. 
	DURBIN: 
	IjustfortherecordIthinkyoumeanttheﬁringofMr. Comey, IthinkyousaidMueller earlier. 
	BARR: 
	Okay,yeahwhatdidIsay?Oh,yeah,theﬁringofComey,yeah,yeah. 
	DURBIN: 
	Thankyouverymuch. 
	UNKNOWN: 
	Justtryingtohelp. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou. I'lljusttakeacoupleofsecondsandseeifIcanhelpclarifythisbecauseIthink it'sbeenaveryinterestinghearing. Soiftherewassomereasontobelievethatthepresident triedtocoachsomebodynottotestifyortestifyfalselythatcouldbeobstructionofjustice? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, underthat--underanobstructionstatute,yes. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Soiftherearesomeevidencethatthepresidenttriedtoconcealevidencethatwouldbe obstructionofjusticepotentially, right? 
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	BARR: 
	Right. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Your--yourpointisjustsimplyﬁringsomebodywhichisapersonneldecisionisproblematic forthesystem. 
	BARR: 
	Right, especiallyifyou--whatI'msayingisthatdoesn'tﬁtunderthatstatute. 
	GRAHAM: 
	No,Igotyou. 
	BARR: 
	Showmesomeotherstatutebutthatstatute, no. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Yeah, okay. Who'snext? 
	UNKNOWN: 
	SenatorHawley. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorHawley. Thankyou. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. Mr. Barr, switchinggearsalittlebit, yesterday, adistrict--federal districtcourtjudgeinPennsylvaniastruckdowntheTrumpadministration'sreligiousand 
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	moralexemptionstothecontraceptivemandateundertheAﬀordableCareAct. Aspartof thisruling, thedistrictcourtissuedanationwideinjunctiontoanyenforcementor applicationoftheserules. 
	Thisisagrowingtrend. We'veseenalotofthisinthelasttwoyears. We'veseenlotsandlots ofdistrictcourtsallacrossthecountryinvariouscontexts,intheimmigrationcontext, and other,issuenationwideinjunctions. Andnow, ofcourse,forthoselisteningathome, the-thecourt--theentirenationisnotwithinthejurisdictionofthesecourts. 
	-

	Thesecourtsaredistrictcourts. Theyreachaspeciﬁcgeographicareadelineatedbylaw, andyet,they'reissuing,increasinglycommonly, theseinjunctionsthatreachtheentire country. Thisisafairlyunusualandfairlyrecentpractice. 
	Indistinctionofthis,thedistrictcourtjudgeinTexaswhorecentlyheardachallengetothe AﬀordableCareActcasedidnotissueanationwideinjunction,thereforeallowingthe appealsprocesstotakeitsnormalcourse. And, ofcourse, theACAremainsinfulleﬀect throughoutthatappealsprocessbecausehedidnotissueanationwideinjunction. 
	So, myquestiontoyouisareyouconcernedaboutthisgrowingpracticeofnationwide injunctionsbyfederaldistrictcourts, andwhatdoyouthinkoughttobedoneaboutit? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, I'mveryconcernedbyit. EarlierIwastalkingaboutthisandsayingthatIthinkit mistakesthelimitationonjudicialpower, whichisacaseorcontroversylimitation, andtries tograntrelieftopeoplewhoarenotpartofthecaseorcontroversythat'sbeingdecided. 
	And, asyousaid,itreallystartedinthesixties, andit'sbeenpickingupsteam. Andthefact ofthematteristherearealotofdistrictcourtjudges--andyoucanusuallyﬁndonewho-somewhereinthecountrywhowillagreewithyou. Andso, majordemocraticdecisionscan beheldupbyonejudgenationwide. 
	-

	I'malsoconcernedthatthere'sanothertrend, whichisthewillingnessofsomedistrictcourt judgestowadeintomattersofnationalsecurity, where,inthepast, courtswouldnotbe 
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	presumedtobe--injoiningthosekindsofthings. 
	Andthen, theappealsprocesstakesalotoftime. Andso, alotofdamagecanbedonebefore itgetstotheSupremeCourtandyougetadeﬁnitivedecision. Andmeanwhile, everythingis stuck. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Canyoujustsaymore?You'reconcernedaboutcourtsthatwadeintonationalsecurity issueswheretraditionallytheyhavehesitatedtodoso. Canyoujustsaymoreaboutthat? Whatdoyouhaveinmind? 
	BARR: 
	Likethetravelban. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Andtheconcernthereis? 
	BARR: 
	Imean, ifthepresidenttakessomethingbasedonnationalsecurity, andone--and--and-andtheConstitutionveststhatkindofjudgementforthatkindofemergencyactoractthat hehastheauthoritytoperformtoprotectthecountry. He'spoliticallyaccountableforthat. 
	-

	Andyet, ajudgewithalifetimeappointment, sittingsomewhereinthecountry, whodoesn't havetheaccesstotheinformationhasnopoliticalaccountabilitycanstopanational securitymeasure, globally, essentially. Andittakesalongtogetthatsortedout. That's reallytroublesometome. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Yeah. I--Icompletelyagreewithyou. Letmeaskyouaboutanotherrecentcase,thisone fromtheSouthernDistrictofNewYorktoday,inwhichthedistrictcourtsruledthatthe 
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	attempttoinclude--theattemptbytheCommerceDepartmenttoincludeacitiz
	enship questiononthecensusisnotpermissibleandhasstoppedtheCommerceDepartmentfrom includingthatonthe2020census. 
	Thedepartmenthasargued, ofcourse--andtheDepartmentofJusticeisdefendingthis decision--thatincludingacitiz on 
	enshipquestion, aswasdoneforapproximately100years, thecensusactuallyhelpsidentify, withgreateraccuracy,theresidentsofthecountry--who isandwhoisnotacitiz
	en, and, ofcourse, helpsmoreaccuratelyapportionanddraw CongressionaldistrictsandmakesurethatrepresentationisfairandtheVotingRightsActis fairlyenforced. Doyouagreewiththatposition? 
	BARR: 
	Well,it'sbeinglitigatednow. So, Ireallywouldprefernottocommentonit. 
	HAWLEY: 
	DoyouanticipatethattheDepartmentofJusticewillcontinueitsvigorousdefenseofthe positiontheadministrationhastaken? 
	BARR: 
	Ithink,generally--Ihavenoreasontochangethatposition. 
	HAWLEY: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorWhitehouse. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Thankyou. Mr. Barr,inordertoperformitscounterintelligencefunctioneﬀectively, what shouldtheDepartmentofJusticeandtheFBIknowaboutthebusinessrelationshipsand 
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	entanglementsofsenioroﬃcialswithforeigninterestsandgovernments? 
	BARR: 
	Well, usually--youknow,Iguess, usuallyinvestigationsarestartedbecausethereissome actthatcomestotheattentionofthelawenforcementagencythatsuggestssomeoneis beingdisloyaltotheUnitedStates-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Exceptfor(INAUDIBLE) 
	BARR: 
	--andworkingforaforeign--excuseme? 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Exceptwherewerequiredisclosuresinordertogivethelawenforcementfolksthat advantageofknowinginadvancewhenasenioroﬃcialhasabusinessentanglementwitha foreigninterestorpower. 
	BARR: 
	Mm-hm. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Sowhatshouldweknow? 
	BARR: 
	Whatoﬃcialarewetalkingabout? 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Well,let'sstartwiththepresident. 
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	BARR: 
	AreyousuggestingthepresidentgothroughabackgroundinvestigationbytheFBI? 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	No,I'msuggestingthatwhenthere'sevidencethathehasbusinessrelationshipswith foreigninterests,thenthatmaybeafactualdeterminationthatwouldbeofsomenoteto ourcounterintelligencefolks. 
	BARR: 
	Well,theﬁnancialdisclosuresthatIthinkareﬁledbyother--Idon'tevenknowifmembers ofCongressﬁleﬁnancialdisclosures, dothey? 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Yeah. 
	BARR: 
	Theydo? 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Sodomanyoﬃcialsintheexecutivebranch. (INAUDIBLE) 
	BARR: 
	Youknow,that'sfor--that'sforﬁnancialconﬂict. Idon'tthinkthat'sforcounterintelligence purposes. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Probablybecauseveryfewpeoplehavebusinessrelationshipswithforeigninterests, soit turnsupmuchmoreofteninaconﬂict(INAUDIBLE). 
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	BARR: 
	Well,businessrelationshipwithaforeigninterestisnotordinarilyacounterintelligence concern. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Unless, ofcourse,youare-
	-

	BARR: 
	Unlessthepersonisatraitor. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Orinapositiontomakedecisionsthatarebiasedorinﬂuencedbythosebusiness relationships. 
	BARR: 
	Well,that-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Counterintelligenceandtreasonarenotthesamething, arethey? 
	BARR: 
	Counterintelligence, you'reusuallytryingtocountertheintelligenceactivitiesofanother country. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Correct. Andyoumaywanttoheadoﬀthings. Youmaywanttobeawareofthings. Youmay wantto--thereareawholelotofthingsshortoftreasonthatarethecounterintelligence function. 
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	BARR: 
	Right,including,youknow--counterintelligencefocuses, usually, onforeignintelligence servicesandtheiractivities. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Tryingto(INAUDIBLE)Americanoﬃcialsoften. 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkwhatwe'rekindof--Ithinkwe'remixing, youknow, applesandgrapesorwhatever herebecauseﬁnancialdisclosure(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Maybe, ormaybeyou'rejusthavingahardtimeansweringwhatoughttobeareallyeasy question, whichisthatwhenaseniorgovernmentoﬃcialhasbusinessrelationshipswith foreigninterestsandpowers, weoughttoknowaboutit. Thatoughttobeaneasy proposition, andinanyotheradministrationitwouldbe. 
	BARR: 
	Well,docongressmengothroughbackgroundinvestigationstogetaccesstoclassiﬁed information? 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	We--that'sawholeseparatequestion,butyes-
	-

	BARR: 
	No,it'sexactlythesamequestion. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
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	--wedoalotof--wedoalotmorereportingthanwedo(INAUDIBLE). 
	BARR: 
	Well,yourﬁnancialreporting, withallduerespect,isnotthesameasabackground investigation. You'reelectedbythepeopletoholdanoﬃce, andyouknow,youdon'tgeta backgroundinvestigationtogetontheIntelligenceCommittee. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Butwedohavetodoalotofreporting. Okay,youdon'twanttoanswerit. I'llmoveon. Let's talkaboutcorruptlyinobstructioncases. I'mnotsureIheardyoucorrectly, soIwantto makesureyouhavethechancetoexplain,butitsoundedlikeyouweresayingthattheword corruptly, usedasyousaid, adverbially, wasarequirementthattherebesomeformof destructionorinterferencewithevidence. Ihavealwaysreadthatterm, corruptly,in obstructionofjustice,toimposeanintentrequirement, whichisalsowhatthecriminal resourcesmanualoftheDepartmentofJusticesaysandwhat
	-

	BARR: 
	IthinkIcanallayyourconcerns,yeah. 
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Couldyoudothat,becauseobviously(INAUDIBLE)? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,becauseifyouread--ifyoulookatthememo,you'llseethatmydiscussionof corruptlyisnotupintheplainmeaningsection. We'retalkingabouthowyouinterpretthe 
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	statute, andmybasicargumentastowhythestatutecoversdestructionofevidence, and hidingevidenceandstuﬀlikethat,isbasedonthewordotherwise,theSupremeCourt decisionsinYatesandBegay, alsothefactthatifyouactuallyreadit, otherwise,itswallows upall--itbecomesaoneclause--itwipesouteverythingelse. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	SoifIcanjustcuttothe(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	BARR: 
	No, sothenlateronIpointout, inmymemo,Ilaterpointoutthatthatreadingisalso supportedbytheunderstandingofthewordcorruptly, whichthePoindextercase, DC Circuitcase, Ithinkhadthemostintelligentdiscussionofthewordcorruptly, whichisit doesrefertothekindofactivitythat'snecessary, whichispervertingaproceedingby corruptingit. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	SointheeventthattheMuellerinvestigationhasturnedupevidenceofobstructionof justicebythepresident, orpeopleclosetohim,youwouldfollowtheDepartmentof Justice'sexistinglegalguidancewithrespecttowhatthatword, corruptly, means? 
	BARR: 
	My--myinterpretationofthestatutewasnotpredicatedentirelyonthewordcorruptly. Iwas justpointingout-
	-

	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 
	Anditisnotyourintentiontochange-
	-

	BARR: 
	No,it'snotmyintention. 
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	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	--departmentpolicy, ordepartmentstandards, ordepartmentdeﬁnitions, particularlyas theymaybearonobstructionbythepresidentorpeoplearoundhim? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright. 
	WHIT
	WHIT
	EHOUSE: 

	Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	We'reabouttovote. Let'sdoonemore. Youdeserveabreak. You'vedonegreat. When-SenatorErnst,thenwe'lltakeabreak, govote. I'mgoingtovoteandcomeback,giveyou about15 minutes, thenwe'lljustplowthroughuntilwe'redone. SenatorTillis. 
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	I'llbebrief. Onequestion,becausepeoplehaveasked--they'vegrowngonetothewall. It almostsoundslikethey'retryingtosuggestthatyoubelievethattheﬁxforbordersecurityis a2,300-milephysicalbarrierfromthePaciﬁctotheGulf. Doyoubelievethat'sthebestway tosecuretheborder? 
	BARR: 
	I'mnotsurewhatthecurrentthinkingisonthis,butwhenIwaslooking-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Haveyoueveradvocatedforawallorsomesortofmonolithicstructureastheplanfor securingtheborder? 
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	BARR: 
	No,butIdobelieveweneedtohaveasystemallthewayacross. WhenIwaslookingatthis, youknow,therewerecertainareaswhere,youknow, awalldidn'tmakeanysense. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	You'veusedthewordbarrier. Idon'tthinka430-footwallmakessenseona, forexample, 1,000-footcliﬀoronethat'soutinthemiddleofnowhere. Would--wouldyouagreethat, youknow, whenwegetawayfromthischildisheverybodysayingit'sawallornot, thatwe areprobably,thepresident'srepeatedlysaidthatweneedwallstructures, wemadesteelslat structures, wemayneedtoreinforcechain-linkfenceswithall-weatherroads, weneed aerostatsothatwecanidentifypeoplecrossingtheborderthatareotherwisedesolateand notveryfrequentlycrossed, weneedBorderPatrolag
	eyourpositiononbarriers-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Yes-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Theneitherourphysical,technological, orotherwise? 
	BARR: 
	--Yes. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Thankyou. Also,the--I--Ican'tleavewithoutgoingbacktoyouweretalkingabouta--atime whenIwasinmyearly30s,Iremembervividlyjusthowdangerousthingsweregettingback 
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	intheearly90s. Iwas30yearsoldin1990. Iremembervividlythenewsreportsand everythingthatweweretryingtodotogetaheadofthemurderousenvironmentthatwe werein. IthinksomepeoplearetryingtoprojectoratleastmaybeI'veinferred, maybe incorrectly,butprojectwhatyouweretryingtodoorwhatyouareadvocatingforinthe midstofacrisis, whichwasnotmassincarcerationoflow-levelandnonviolentcriminals-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Right-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	--Ontoyourviewof,let'ssay, theFirstStepActandwhatwearetryingtodotoday. Ifyou, hypothetical, maybeyoucan'tanswerit,butlet'ssayyouwereattorneygeneralwhenwe weremovingFirstStep, whichIsupported,IsupportedcriminaljusticereformsinNorth CarolinawhenIwasspeakerthehouse. Areyoufundamentallyopposedtowhatwe're tryingtodowiththisFirstStepAct? 
	BARR: 
	No,I--Ithinksomeofthosethingsmakesense. IfIwas--ifIhadbeenatthetable, Iprobably wouldhaveurgedafewchangestoit. Butyouknow, overall, Idon'thaveaproblemwithit. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Andyou'refullyawarethepresidentandfolksintheWhiteHousearesupportiveoftheact and-
	-

	BARR: 
	Yes, senator. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
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	Soyouwilldoeverythingyoucantohelpustakethatintent,thestatutoryintent,thethings you'llneedtodoisimplementinyour--inyourroleasattorneygeneral, Idobelieveyou're goingtobeconﬁrmed,tomakesurethatwegetthefullpositiveeﬀectthatwe'llgetoutof theFirstStepAct? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright, senator. And,youknow,therewereanumberofthingsbeinglumpedtogether. My--whatIespousedinthe90swhenwehadthehighestcrimeratesinourhistorywere-wastakingtheviolent--thechronicviolentoﬀenderswithlongcriminalhistoryrecordsof predatoryviolence, andespeciallytheonesthatusegunsinmultipleoﬀenses, andgetting themoﬀthestreetsandintoprisons. 
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
	AndIthinkyoumadethepointthatinsomecasesthere--there--youwereabletomore clearlypresentevidencewheretheywereinvolvedindrugtraﬃcking,butyouknewdamn wellthattheywereapartofwhatwasmurderingthesecommunitiesandmakingthemvery dangerous. 
	BARR: 
	Right. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Andthepointtherewasyouwereusingeverydevicepossibletogetthembehindbarsand oﬀthestreetsothatyoucouldmakethosecommunitiessafer. 
	BARR: 
	Right,but-
	-

	T
	ILLIS: 
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	--IncludingthecommunitiesinTrenton, NewJersey. 
	BARR: 
	Right. So--sotheotherthingwere,thentherearedrugpenaltiesandsomeofthedrug penalties, yes, weredraconianandtheywererationalreasonsfordoingthatatthetime. And--andsometimespeoplegotdrug--and--andweweren'tgoingafterpeoplewhoneeded treatmentwhowere,youknow,justbecausetheywereaddicts, weweregoingafterthe peoplewhoweredistributingthedrugs. 
	Andyouknow,inthe--inthecurrentcircumstance,if--Iunderstandthereisdatatosupport whatwasdoneinFirstStep,Iunderstandthosechangeson--onthedrugfront. ButI--I wouldnotletuponchronicviolentoﬀendersbecausetheycommitteddisproportionate amountsofthepredationinsociety. 
	T
	ILLIS: 
	Ihopeyoudon'tbecausetheyneedtogobehindbarsforavery, verylongtime. Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Allright,thankyou,Mr. Barr. Whatwe'lldo, we'llcomebackwithSenatorKlobuchar. We'regoingtotakea15-minutebreakandhopefullybythenbothofuscanvoteandcome backandcontinueandwe'rejustgoingtoplowthroughtillwegetdonetoday. Sowe'llbein recessfor15 minutes. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Wewillgoaheadandreconvenethehearing. I'llrecogniz
	eSenatorKlobuchar. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Thankyouverymuch. Thankyou, Mr. Barr. Thanksforyourgrandsonforthemint. That wasprettynice. 
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	(LAUGHTER) 
	Inyourpreviousconﬁrmationhearingforattorneygeneral, youstatedthattheattorney generalisthepresident'slawyer. Youhavealsosaidthattheattorneygeneral'sultimate allegiancemustbetotheruleoflaw, soI'mgoingtocharacteriz
	ethatasthepeople'slawyer. 
	Andtherehavebeentimesthroughoutourhistory, includingduringWatergate, whenthe personalinterestsofthepresidentdonotalignwiththeinterestsofthecountry. Inthose criticalmoments,istheattorneygeneralthepeople'slawyerorthepresident'slawyer? 
	BARR: 
	Well,it--it--as--thereasonhe'sthe--Ireferredtotheattorneygeneralasthepresident's lawyerisbecausein1789theysaidthattheattorneygeneralistoprovidelegaladviceto the--tothe-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--Um-hmm-
	-

	BARR: 
	--President-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--Yes-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Andthecabinet, andthat'sintheiroﬃcialcapacity. 
	Andmyviewonthatisthat, likeanylawyer,yougivethebestadviceastoyourviewofthe law. Butifthepresidentdeterminedthathewantedtodosomethingthatyouthoughtwas stillareasonableconstructionofthelaw, eventhoughyoumightnothavedecidedthatway asanArticleIIIjudge,justasyousupportcongressionalenactmentsthatare-
	-
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	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--Okay-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Reasonable, youdothesameforthepresident. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Um-hmm. ButhowaboutinasituationlikeWatergate? 
	BARR: 
	So,youknow, I--ifthepresidentdirectsanattorneygeneraltodosomethingthatiscontrary tolaw, thenIthinktheattorneygeneralhastostepdown. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. 
	BARR: 
	It'sthatsimple. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Thankyou. 
	Underthespecialcounselregs,thespecialcounselmustsendasecondreporttoCongress documentinganyinstanceswheretheAGprohibitedthespecialcounselfromtakingan action. WillyoufollowthoseregulationsandsendthereporttoCongress? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
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	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Thankyou. 
	AndthenafewjustthingsthatIcarealotabout. YouhadagreatdiscussionwithSenator BookerabouttheFirstStepActandnonviolentdrugcrimes. Willyousupporttheuseofdrug courts?Something--mycounty, whenIwasprosecutor, wasoneoftheﬁrsttodothatinabig way, andnowwehavefederaldrugcourts. Willyousupportthemfornonviolentoﬀenders? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,Ithink--Ithinkthey'regenerallyagoodidea. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. 
	Andthere'sabillthatIhavethatwe'rereintroducingongunsandstalking. Andit'sapretty narrowbill. Itﬁllsaloopholethat'scalledsometimestheboyfriendloophole. Idon'tknowif youknowwhatthatis,butit'swhensomeoneisnotmarriedbutthey'relivingtogether, and thenthequestioniswouldthegunlawsapply. 
	AndweactuallyhadahearingandanumberoftheRepublicanwitnessesagreedthey should. So,that'spartofit, andthentheotherinvolvesstalking-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Um-hmm-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--Andwhetherornotthatcouldalsofallundertheprohibitionsonguns. So, wehadthe meetingongunsattheWhiteHouse, andthepresidentsaidhethoughtthebillwasterriﬁc. I justkindofgive--leadyouintothat. 
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	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	But-
	-

	BARR: 
	--It--it's-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--Andithasn'tpassedyet,butI'mjustaskingyoutoreviewit. 
	BARR: 
	Absolutely. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. AndIhopewewouldhaveyoursupport. Itwouldbenicetogetthatdone. 
	AndthenIalsohaveasecondbillwithSenatorCornyn, theAbbyHonoldAct. Andthebill wouldexpandtheuseofevidence-basedpracticesinrespondingtosexassaultcrimes, andI hopeyouwouldlookatthataswell. Andit'spartrightnowoftheSenatepackageonthe ViolenceAgainstWomenAct. AndI--mybillaside,Ihopethatyouwouldsupportthe reauthoriz
	ationofthatbill. 
	BARR: 
	Um-hmm. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Youwould, oftheViolenceAgainstWomenAct? 
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	BARR: 
	Well,Ihaven'tseenit,butI--I--ifit'sreauthoriz
	Well,Ihaven'tseenit,butI--I--ifit'sreauthoriz
	ingwhat'sineﬀectnow,yes. 

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. 
	AndthenIjustwanttoendherewitha--asecondchance, secondgoroundonaquestion. I--Idecidedtoleavemyantitrustquestionsfortherecord-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Okay-
	-

	KLOBUCHAR: 
	--SoIcanaskthis. IaskedearliertodaythisquestionbecauseIreallymeantitasan opportunityforyoutokindofaddressyourtroopsandnotagotchaquestion. So, immigrationdebatesaside,puttingasidethediﬀerencesinthisHouseandintheWhite House, andwehavenowthousandsandthousandsofextraordinarypeopledevoting themselvestoagoodcause, andthatisjusticeattheDepartmentofJusticeandtheFBI, includingafewofthemrightbehindyouinthefrontrow. 
	Andthey--manyofthemrightnowareeitherfurloughedorthey'redoingtheirjobsevery singledaywithoutpay. Andifyougetconﬁrmed,youwillbetheirleader. Anddoyouwant tosayanythingtothemoraboutthem?AndI'dappreciateitifyouwould. 
	BARR: 
	Well,thankyou, senator,forgivingmetheopportunity, becauseoneofthereasonsIwant todothis, serveasattorneygeneral, isbecauseoftheopportunitytoworkwiththe outstandingpeopleattheDepartmentofJustice. AndIthinkthecountrycanbeveryproud ofthemasthey're--oftheirdedicationastheystandtheirpostandcontinuetoperformtheir mission. 
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	It'sagreatsacriﬁceformanyofthemwiththepaychecksnotcomingin. So,Ihopethisends soon. Butoneofthereasonsthedepartmentissuchaimportantinstitutiontomeandabig partofmylifeisthequalityofthepeoplethere. AndI'mlookingforward,hopefullyifI'm conﬁrmed, tojoiningthemagain. 
	It'sagreatsacriﬁceformanyofthemwiththepaychecksnotcomingin. So,Ihopethisends soon. Butoneofthereasonsthedepartmentissuchaimportantinstitutiontomeandabig partofmylifeisthequalityofthepeoplethere. AndI'mlookingforward,hopefullyifI'm conﬁrmed, tojoiningthemagain. 
	KLOBUCHAR: 
	Okay. Thankyouverymuch. 
	BARR: 
	Thankyou. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Thankyou,SenatorKlobuchar. 
	Ilovetheupwardmobilityonthiscommittee. Thisismyﬁrstcommitteehearing, andIget tochair. So, thankyou. Iappreciateitverymuch. 
	ERNST
	: 
	I'llgoaheadwithmysecond--secondroundofquestioning. Andtherehasbeenalotof discussionsofarabouttheMuellerinvestigation, whichIdothinkis--isveryappropriate. AndasIunderstandit,theunderlyingpremiseofthatinvestigationwastodetermineif therewascollusionbyanAmericanentityorpersonwiththeRussiansduringthe2016 electioncycle. Is--isthataccurate? 
	BARR: 
	That'smyunderstanding. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Okay. AndwedoknowthattherewasRussianmeddlinginour2016electioncycle. Wedo knowthat. AndwhatcantheDOJdointhefuturetoprevent, whetherit'sRussiaorother 
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	foreignentities,frominterferingwithourelectionsprocess? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, wellIadvertedittoinmyopeningstatementisobviouslythedepartmentisalaw enforcementagency, andsowecanuseourlawenforcementtools. Andthespecialcounsel hasalreadybroughtcasesagainstRussiannationalsfor--fortheiractivitiesandthecurrent leadershipofthedepartmentisfollowingsuitandI'dliketobuildonthatexperienceto sharpenourlegaltoolstogoafterRussiannationals,butnationalsofanycountrythatare interferinginourelections. 
	Ialsothinkthatthe--theFBI, aspartoftheintelligencecommunity, can--canperform, you know, can--canusealloftheirintelligencetoolsto--tocounteractthe--thethreat. AndasI saidinmyopeningstatement, Ithinkwehavetolookatallournationalresources, suchas diplomacy, economicsanctions, otherkindsofcountermeasures, todeterandpunish foreigncountriesthatseektomeddleinourelections. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Absolutely. Soawholeofgovernmentapproach-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Yes-
	-

	ERNST
	: 
	--Aswelookatthoseentities. Thankyouverymuch. IwasreallypleasedtohearSenator KlobucharmentiontheViolenceAgainstWomenAct. Wehadadiscussionaboutthatinmy oﬃce. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
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	ERNST
	: 
	Sothankyou. IdidserveasavolunteeratanassaultcarecenterwhileIwasatIowaState Universityjust--justafewyearsago. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	ButtheViolenceAgainstWomenActisindesperateneedofreauthoriz
	ation, asSenator Klobucharsaid. In2016 alone, over1 millionserviceswereprovidedtovictimsandtheir familiesthroughVAWAprograms. IntheoﬃceonViolenceAgainstWomenisactually housedwithintheDOJ, asyouareaware. Inﬁscalyear2017, myhomestateofIowawas awarded$8.7 millionfrom13 diﬀerentOVWgrantprograms. 
	Andthesedollarsdogotowardsprogramsthatareindireneed, especiallyinruralareaslike mine. SowhatIwouldliketoknowfromyou, sir,ishowyouwillworktofurtherthis engagementandtoaddressviolenceagainstwomenandfamiliesthroughVAWAorthrough the--throughtheoﬃcethatislocatedwithinDOJ. 
	BARR: 
	And--andthatoﬃceisnotfamiliartomebecauseitdidn'texist, obviously, when--whenI wastherebefore. Soﬁrst, I'mgoingtofamiliariz
	emyselfwiththeoﬃce, itswork,its programs, and, youknow, stronglysupportthat. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Thankyouverymuch. Domesticviolenceis--islargelyastatecrime. Howcanwebetter assistbetweentheDOJandstateoﬃcialsinthisarea? 
	BARR: 
	Again,thisisnotanareaofexpertisethatIhaverightnow,butIwouldimaginethat technicalsupportandgrantsare--areprobablythemosteﬀectivemeansforthefederal governmenttoassist. 
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	ERNST
	: 
	Okay, verygood. WellIappreciatethatsomuch. I'vejustgotalittlebitoftimeleft. Ido wanttogobacktotheissuethat'sbeenbroughtupmanytimesoveraboutourborder security. Iaswellagreethattherearemanywaysthatwecanusetosecureourborder, whetherit'sthroughtechnology, whetherit'sthroughaphysicalbarrier, understanding, as hasbeenrightlypointedout,thatanumberoftheinterdictionsofdrugscrossingtheborder areactuallydoneatthoseportsofentry. However, Ithinktherearealotoffamiliesthatare veryconcernedaboutthefentanylthatmightbecoming
	BARR: 
	Right. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Sofamiliesthathavelosttheirlovedones, Ithinkitdoesn'tmatterwhatpercentageis comingthroughportofentryorelsewhere, wewanttostopit. Soyourcomments? 
	BARR: 
	That'sright. That'sright, senator. And--andtheotherthingisthatthestatisticsontheport ofentryarewheretheinterdictions,that'sthestuﬀwecatch. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Correct. 
	BARR: 
	Itdoesn'tnecessarilyreﬂectthestuﬀthat'sgettingacrosselsewherethatwe'renotcatching. 
	ERNST
	: 
	Absolutely. Thankyouverymuch, Mr. Barr. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorHirono. 
	HIRONO: 
	Thankyouverymuch. Mr. Barr,you'vewrittenandspokenaboutmoralityandyou're worriedaboutthedestructionof--andI'mquotingyou--"anykindofmoralconsensusin society." AndyouwrotequiteextensivelyonthiswhenyouwereAttorneyGeneral. And you'vebeendescribedasaninstitutionalist, someonewhocaresabouttheDepartmentof Justiceandthegovernment. That'sagoodthing. 
	But,you'veagreedtoworkforsomeonewhorelentlesslyattacksthepress, callingthemfake newsandanenemyofthepeople. ThePresidentcriticiz
	estheFBInonstop. Hebelittles generals. HecallstheMuellerinvestigationawitchhunt. HebelievestheclaimsofPutin overthejudgementofourintelligencecommunity, andit'sbeenobjectivelyveriﬁedthathe lieseverysingledayandchangeshismindonaregularbasis. 
	So, areyouconcerned,havingwrittenaboutmoralityandconsensusinoursociety?Areyou concernedaboutthewayDonaldTrumpunderminestheinstitutionsinoursocietythathelp ustomaintainamoralconsensus? 
	BARR: 
	No,Senator. AndI'dliketomakeapointaboutthewitchhunt, whichiswehaveto rememberthatthePresidentistheonethat,youknow,has--hasdeniedthattherewasany collusionandhasbeensteadfastinthat. So, presumably, heknowsfacts, andIdon'tknow facts. Idon'tthinkanyonehereknowsfacts. 
	But,Ithinkit'sunderstandablethat, ifsomeonefelttheywerefalselyaccusedtheywould feelaninvestigationissomethinglikeawitchhunt, wheresomeonelikeyouormewho doesn'tknowthefacts,youknow, mightnotusethatterm. 
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	HIRONO: 
	Well,you--you'recertainlycomingtohisdefense. AsIsaid,it'sbeenobjectivelyveriﬁedthat heliesonaregularbasis. 
	Ihaveaquestionaboutimmigration. Inyourwrittenstatement,youwrotethat, "Wemust secureournation'sborders, andwemustensurethatourlawsallowustoprocess,hold, and removethosewhounlawfullyenter." AndthiskindofsoundslikeJessSessions's"Zero Tolerance" policy. Ididaskyouthatbefore, whetheryouwouldcontinuetogoafterpeople whoarenotcomingthroughourregularcheckpoints. Wouldyougoafterthemfor deportation? 
	BARR: 
	IthoughtIsaidthatour"ZeroTolerance" policyistoprosecutepeoplewhoarereferredto theDepartmentbyDHSforillegalentry. 
	HIRONO: 
	Well, undera"NoTolerance" policy, everyonewhocomesinnotthroughthecheckpoints wouldbedeemed, Iwouldsay, subjecttoprosecution. So--. 
	BARR: 
	--No. Anyonewhocomesin--. 
	HIRONO: 
	--No--? 
	BARR: 
	--Illegallyandisgoingtobereferredtousforaviolationofthelegalentrystatutewillbe prosecuted. But, DHSisnotreferring, asIunderstandit--isnotreferringfamiliessothat thereisnomoreseparation. 
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	HIRONO: 
	Yes. Insteadwehavealotoftheminfamilydetentionfacilities. Ivisitedthem. 
	Whataboutthe11 millionorsoundocumentedimmigrantsinourcountry?Becauseyousay wehavetoprocess, hold, andremovethosewhounlawfullyentered. Now, the11 millionor soundocumentedpeoplehaveunlawfullyentered, anumberofthembecausethey'rejust visaoverstaysthere. So, whatdoyouproposetodowiththesepeoplewhohavebeenherein ourcountryforalongtime, manyofwhomworkandpaytaxes? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Ithinkitjusthighlightstheneedforsome--soCongresstoaddressthewholeissueof ourimmigrationlaws. 
	HIRONO: 
	So, doyousupportcomprehensiveimmigrationreform, aneﬀortthatweundertookinthe Senatein2013? 
	BARR: 
	I--Isupport--Isupportaddressingsomeoftheproblemsthatarecreatingtheinﬂuxofillegal aliensatthispointandalsoaddressingthequestionofbordersecurity. 
	HIRONO: 
	Well, whataboutthe11 millionundocumentedpeoplewhoarealreadyhere? 
	BARR: 
	Well,youknow,Congressisthe--isabletodeterminethatpolicyaspartof--aspartof immigrationlegislation. 
	HIRONO: 
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	So, thatisthelargestgroupofundocumentedpeople. Theyarethelargestgroupofpeople whoarehereillegally. Asyousay,youwouldliketo--. 
	BARR: 
	--Zero--"ZeroTolerancePolicy," asIunderstandit,hastodowithpeoplewhoarecomingin illegally--. 
	HIRONO: 
	--Yes,Iknowthat. But,youknowthat, whenItalkaboutthe11 millionpeople, thattheyare undocumented. Theyliveintheshadows. Manyofthemdopaytaxes. Andso,thatisthe largestgroupthat--that'shere. Thisiswhyweworkedreallyhardforcomprehensive immigrationreform. Ihopethatyousupportthatkindofeﬀort. 
	Doyoubelievebirthrightcitiz
	Doyoubelievebirthrightcitiz
	enshipisguaranteedbythe14thamendment? 

	BARR: 
	Ihaven'tlookedatthatissue. 
	HIRONO: 
	Itsaysrightthereinthe14thamendmentthatanyoneborn,basically--borninthiscountry isaUScitiz Andtherearethosewhothinkthatthatshouldbedoneawaywith. Areyou 
	en. oneofthem? 
	KENNEDY: 
	CouldyougiveusabriefanswerMister--? 
	BARR: 
	--Yeah, I--asIsay,Ihaven'tlookedatthatissuelegally. That'sthekindofissueIwouldask (INAUDIBLE) toadvisemeonastowhetherit'ssomethingthat'sappropriateforlegislation. Idon't--Idon'tevenknowtheanswertothat--. 
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	HIRONO: 
	--It'scertainlybeeninterpretedforalongtimeassayingthatpeoplewhoareborninthis countryarecitiz
	ens. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Ithinkthechairmanwouldliketoﬁnishtoday, andIthinkyourtime'sexpired. 
	HIRONO: 
	ShallIcontinue, orshouldIaskforathirdround? 
	KENNEDY: 
	I'mﬁne. Youcanhaveathird, fourthﬁfthround. ButI'mnotchairman. 
	HIRONO: 
	Ijusthaveafewmore. ButIcanwait. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Ok, whydon'twedothat. Thankyou, senator. IthinkI'mnext,Mr. Barr. 
	KENNEDY: 
	This--wetalkedaboutthisearlier. Ithinkwecanagree, canwenot, thathundredsof thousands, millionsofwordshavebeenwrittenspeculatingaboutwhathappenedatthe DepartmentofJusticeandtheFBIinthe2016 electionwithrespecttothetwoparty nominees. Canweagreeonthat? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	CanweagreethattheAmericanpeoplehavearighttoknowwhathappenedatJusticeand theFBI? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay. Whydon'twejustdeclassifyallthedocumentsandshowthemtotheAmerican people, andlettheAmericanpeopledrawtheirownconclusions? 
	BARR: 
	I'mnotinapositiontosaybecauseIdon'thaveaccesstothedocuments, andIdon'tknow whatitentails. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Well,itentailsthetruth,doesitnot? 
	BARR: 
	Yes, butpresumablyifthey'reclassiﬁedit--youknow, therecouldbecollateral consequences, andI'mnotinapositiontomakethatjudgment. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Well,Imean,isyourmindopenonthat, Mr. Barr, or-
	-

	BARR: 
	Ithinkgenerally-
	-
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	KENNEDY: 
	Idon'tunderstandwhy,properlyredacted,thosedocumentshavenotbeenshowntothe Americanpeople. They'resmartenoughtoﬁgureitout. 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkultimatelythebestpolicyistoletthelightshine. Iftherehavebeenmistakesmade, thebestpolicyistoallowlighttoshineinandforpeopletounderstandwhathappened. But sometimes,youknow,youhavetodeterminewhentherighttimetodothatis. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Iunderstand. I'maskingthatyouseriouslyconsiderthat, andI'mtalkingaboutthe investigationswithrespecttoSecretaryClintonandPresidentTrump. ClearlytheFBIand theDepartmentofJustice--I'mnotsayingthatthey--eitherwasimprudenttodoso,but we'veseenbitsandpieces, andthere'sbeenalotofspeculationandinnuendo, andpeople havedrawnconclusionsbasedonincompletefacts. Anditwouldseemtomethatifforno otherreasonbuttheintegrityoftheFBIandtheJusticeDepartment,bothofwhichIholdin greatesteem, weshouldredacttheportionsthatwouldendanger
	BARR: 
	Iwill,Senator. 
	KENNEDY: 
	AndI,havingwatchedyouheretoday,Ithinkyou'll--Ithinkyouwill. Ithinkyou'llgiveit seriousconsideration. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	Letmeaskyouropiniononsomethingelse. About10yearsagowehadaproblemwithour bankingsysteminAmerica, andwehadalotofbankerswhomadeloanstoborrowerswhen thebankersandtheborrowersknewthemoneywasnotgoingtobepaidback. That'scalled fraud, andit'sillegal. Andthensomeofthosesamebankers, andotherbankers,tookthose garbageloans, andtheypackagedthemtogether,packagedthemtogetherintosecurity, and theysoldthemtoinvestorswithouttellingtheinvestorsthattheunderlyingloanswere-weretoxic. That'scalledsecuritiesfraud. AndIdon'tknowhow
	-

	etheymadethebankspaysomemoney,butIsaw bankingfraud, andIsawsecuritiesfraud. Andnobodywasprosecuted. 
	BARR: 
	Ican'tanswerthat, Senator,butIcansaythatIwasinchargeoftheS&Lcleanupafteritwas over. Itwasputundermeinthedeputy'soﬃce, and-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	Youfolksprosecutedpeople. 
	BARR: 
	Weprosecutedalotofpeopleandveryquickly, andwecleaneditupveryquickly. My--how manydidweget? 
	UNKNOWN: 
	Over900. 
	BARR: 
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	Over900convictions,inveryshortorder. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Idon'tthinkwehadninethistime. Imean, whatmessagedoesthatsendtotheAmerican people?Imean, I'lltellyouwhatIthinkthemessageitsendsisthatthepeopleatthetopcan cutcornersandgetawaywithit. 
	BARR: 
	WhatIcansay, Senator,isIthinkmyexperiencewiththeS&LshowsthatI'mnotafraidof goingafterfraud-
	-

	KENNEDY: 
	Iknowthat. 
	BARR: 
	--atthecorporatelevel. Anditwasoneofthemostsuccessful, Ithink,government responsestothatkindofwholesectormeltdownthatthere'sbeen. SoI'mveryproudofthe jobthatwasdonebythedepartmentonthat. 
	KENNEDY: 
	As--youknow, aswesayinLouisiana,youweremeanasamamawasp. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Andyoudidtherightthing. ButIdon'tthinkwedidtherightthingwiththebanking meltdown. SenatorCoons. 
	COONS: 
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	Thankyou,SenatorKennedy. Thankyou,Mr. Barr. Youhavedeclined, orI'dsayrefused, to committofollowingtheadviceofthecareerethicsoﬃcialsatDOJwithregardstorecusal fromtheongoingspecialcounselinvestigation. Willyouatleastcommittonotifythis committeeonceyoureceivetheethicsoﬃcials' guidance, telluswhatitwasandexplain whetheryouagreedordisagreedwithit? 
	BARR: 
	Totellyouthetruth, Senator,Idon'tknowwhattherulesareandwhatthepracticeis,but youknow, oﬀthetopofmyheadIdon'tthinkIwouldhaveanobjectiontothat. 
	COONS: 
	Soyou'dbecomfortablelettingusknowthatyou'dreceivedanethicsopinionandeither declinedtofollow-
	-

	BARR: 
	Yeah,butI'mnotsurewhatthepracticeandtherulesare. Igenerallytrytofollowtherules. 
	COONS: 
	Yousaidearlierinthishearingyouhaveaninterestintransparencywithregardstotheﬁnal reportoftheMuellerinvestigation. ButIdidn'thearaconcretecommitmentaboutrelease, andIthinkthisisaverysigniﬁcantinvestigation, andyou'vebeenveryforthcomingabout wantingtoprotectit. TheDOJhasreleasedinformationaboutdeclinationmemos, about descriptionsofdecisionsnottoprosecuteinthepast. I'llcitetheMichaelBrowncase,for example. WouldyouallowSpecialCounselMuellertoreleaseinformationabout declamationmemosintheRussiainvestigationashesees
	BARR: 
	Iactuallydon'tthinkMuellerwoulddothatbecauseitwouldbecontrarytotheregulations, butthat'soneofthereasonsIwanttotalktoMuellerandRosensteinandﬁgureout,you 
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	know, whatthelayofthelandis. I'mtryingto-
	-

	COONS: 
	Butifappropriateundercurrentregulations,youwouldn'thaveanyhesitationaboutsaying prosecutorialdecisionsshouldbepartofthatﬁnalreport? 
	BARR: 
	AsIsaid, IwanttogetoutasmuchasIcanundertheregulations. 
	COONS: 
	Youalso-
	-

	BARR: 
	Ithinkit--that'sthereasonIsayit'svitallyimportant. It'srelatedtomyfeelingthatit'sreally importantto, youknow,letthechipsfallwheretheymayandgettheinformationout. 
	COONS: 
	Youalsosaid, inresponsetomyﬁrstroundofquestions, thatthespecialcounselregulations shouldn'tberescindedduringthisinvestigation. Justtobeclear, youwouldrefusetorescind themifthepresidentasked, evenifthatmeantyou'dhavetoresign? 
	BARR: 
	Well,thatcameupinthecontextofwantingtochangetherulessoMuellercouldbeﬁred. 
	COONS: 
	Right. 
	BARR: 
	That--wheretherewasnogoodcause. 
	-
	-

	COONS: 
	Nogoodcause, correct. 
	BARR: 
	AndIsaidthere,yeah,Iwouldnotagreetothat. 
	COONS: 
	ThereisanotherongoinginvestigationintheSouthernDistrictofNewYorkinwhichI wouldarguethepresident'simplicatedasindividualnumberone. Ifthepresidentordered youtostoptheSDNYinvestigationinwhichsomeoneidentiﬁedasindividualoneis implicated, wouldyoudothat? 
	BARR: 
	Well,thatgoesbacktoanearlieranswer, explanationIgave, whichiseverydecisionwithin thedepartmenthastobemadebasedontheattorneygeneral'sindependentconclusionand assessmentthatit'sinaccordancewiththelaw. AndsoIwouldnotstopabonaﬁdelawful investigation. 
	COONS: 
	SoifthepresidentsoughttoﬁreprosecutorsintheSouthernDistrictofNewYorktotryand endtheinvestigationintohiscampaign, wouldthatbeacrime?Wouldthatbeanunlawful act? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Imeanthatone--usuallyﬁringapersondoesn'tstoptheinvestigation. That'soneof thethingsIhavealittlebitoftroubleaccepting. The--youknow,buttoansw--thebasicpoint is,ifsomeonetriedtostopabonaﬁdelawfulinvestigationtocoverupwrongdoing,Iwould resign. 
	-
	-

	COONS: 
	DeputyAttorneyGeneralRosensteinhassaidpubliclyyourmemohadnoimpactonthe specialcounselinvestigation. Ifyou'reconﬁrmedandyou'resupervisingthespecialcounsel investigation, wouldyouorderthespecialcounsel'soﬃcetoacceptandfollowthereasoning inyourmemo? 
	BARR: 
	IwouldprobablytalktoBob,BobMueller, aboutit. Youknow,ifIfelttherewasadiﬀerence ofopinion,Iwouldtryto--IwouldtrytoworkitoutwithBobMueller. Attheendoftheday, unlesssomethingviolatestheestablishedpracticeofthedepartment,Iwouldhaveno abilitytooverrulethat. 
	COONS: 
	YouwereattorneygeneralwhenPresidentBushpardonedsixadministrationoﬃcials chargedwithcrimesarisingfromtheIran-Contrascandal, andyouencouragedthe presidenttoissuethosepardons. Isitpermissibleforapresidenttopardonamemberofhis administrationinordertopreventtestimonyaboutillegalacts? 
	BARR: 
	Isitpermissibleunderwhat? 
	COONS: 
	Woulditstrikeyou--woulditstrikeyouasobstructionofjusticeforhimtoexercisehis presidentialpardonpowerforthepurposeofpreventingtestimony? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,Ithinkthatif--ifapardonwasaquidproquotoalteringtestimony, thenthatwould deﬁnitelyimplicateanobstructionstatute. 
	-
	-

	COONS: 
	Andwoulditbepermissibleforthepresidenttopardonfamilymemberssimplybecause they'refamilymembers? 
	BARR: 
	Letmesaythat--no,I'msorry. Goahead. 
	COONS: 
	Twolastquestions, andthenwe'llbedone. Doyouthinkitwouldbepermissibleforthe presidenttopardonafamilymembersimplybecausetheyareafamilymember, andwhere thepurpose,themotiveisunclear?Anddoyouthinkitwouldbepermissibleforapresident topardonhimself? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah, sohere--theproblemisundertheConstitutiontherearepowers, butyoucanabusea power. Sotheanswertoyourquestion,inmyopinion, wouldbeyes, hedoeshavethepower topardonafamilymember,buthewouldthenhavetofacethefactthathecouldbeheld accountableforabusinghispower. Orifitwasconnectedtosomeactthatviolatesan obstructionstatute,itcouldbeobstruction. 
	COONS: 
	Howwouldhebeheldaccountable? 
	BARR: 
	Well,intheabsenceofaviolationofastatute, whichis--asyouknow,inordertoprosecute someonetheyhavetoviolateastatute--intheabsenceofthat,youknow,thenhe'dbe accountablepolitically. 
	COONS: 
	-
	-

	Thankyouforyouranswerstoday. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorBlackburn. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. AndMr. Barr,thankyouforyourpatienceandforstayingwith ustoday. Acoupleofquestions. We'vetalkedaboutbordersecurityandimmigrationlaw andthatissomethingthatIwanttoreturnto. 
	IappreciatedyourcommentsaboutgoingaftertheproblematthesourceandIthinkthatis sovitallyimportantwhenwetalkabouttheimmigrationissuesandwelookatwhathas happenedwhenyouaretalkingaboutdrugtraﬃckersandhumantraﬃckers,thegangsthat arecomingacrossthatsouthernborderandIdothinkthatabarrieristhere. Butoneofthe symptomsifyouwillofanopenborderpolicyhasbeenthesanctuarycitypolicyandthat pertainstothosethatareillegallyinthecountry. 
	AndItellyouwhat,itisjustabsolutelyheartbreakingtomeeverytimeImeetwithanangel momandIhearthesestoriesandthenafterOﬃcerSing(SP) wasmurdered, hearingthatlaw enforcement,locallawenforcementoﬃcer,talkaboutandtalkwithspeciﬁcityabouthow sanctuarypoliciesemboldenedthosethatwereillegallyinthecountry. Andwhenyoulook atthispracticeofsanctuarycityyouknowifwedon'tdosomethingconsistentinthisrealm thenwhatistosayyoudon'tdevelopsanctuarycitiesforother--otherviolationsofthelaw whetherit'staxlaworenvironmentalprotectionlawor
	Sotalktomeforjustaminuteaboutwhatyourconnectionwillbebetweendealingwiththe sanctuarycitiesandthendealingwithsomeoftheseproblemsatthesource. Howdoyou-you'vetalkedaboutcompartmentaliz
	-

	ingandputtinglieutenantsincharge. Andthisisan issuethataﬀectseverysinglecommunitybecauseuntilwestopsomeofthis, wearegoingto haveeverystateaborderstateandeverytownabordertown. 
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	SoyouknowIjustthinkofitimmigration. Youhavepullfactorsandpushfactors. There's-therearefactorsdowninLatinAmericathatarepushingpeopleupandthereareattractions totheUnitedStatesthatarepullingthemup. 
	-

	Andoneofthe--Ithinka--apullfactoristhingslikesanctuarycities,theideathatyoucan comeinandnotbe--and--andgetawaywithﬂoutingourlawsandcominginandsoIthink that'soneoftheconcernsIhaveaboutsanctuarycities. ThesecondconcernIhaveisthat thesanctuarycityproblemisacriminalalienproblem. 
	Ithinkalotofpeopleareundertheimpressionthatsanctuarycitiesaretheretoprotectyou knowtheillegalalienswhoarequietlylivingasproductivemembersofsocietyandpaying theirtaxesasSenatorHironosaid. Itisn't. 
	Theproblemwithsanctuarycitiesisthatitispreventingthefederalgovernmentfromtaking custodyofcriminalaliensandit'sadeliberatepolicytofrustratetheapprehensionof criminalaliensbythefederalgovernment. SoIdon'tthinkthosecitiesshouldbegetting federal--. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	Doyouthinkitwouldbev--woulditbeabidedwithanyotherviolationofU.S. law? 
	BARR: 
	No,Idon'tandthere'salegalissuewhichisthequestionof--of, what'stheword? Commandeering. Thestatesarguethatfortheirlawenforcementoﬃcerstohavecustodyof acriminalalientonotifythefederalgovernmentonatimelybasissothattheycanturnthat fugitiveessentiallyovertothefederalgovernmentthatthat'scommandeeringstate apparatusunderthePrintzcaseandthereforeit's--youknowthefederalgovernment shouldn'thavethatpower. That's--that'stheissueandIpersonallyamveryskepticalofthe commandeeringargument. 
	-
	-

	Thatwasadoptedwherethefederalgovernmentpassedgun-controllegislationand basically, weareorderingthestatestosetupthewholebackgroundcheckandeverything else. Theideahereissimplyonelawenforcementagencynotifyinganotherandholdingthe personuntiltheycanbepick--pickedup. SoI'mskepticalthatthat'scommandeering. But that'sthelegalissue. 
	BLACKBURN: 
	MytimeisexpiringandIknowweneedtoﬁnishthisupbutIdolookforwardtotalkingwith youagainaboutChinaandtheintellectualpropertyviolations;thewaytheygoinandreengineer, stealfromourinnovatorsandofcoursethewaytheyareforcingfentanyland illicitdrugsthroughourportsandthroughthatopenporoussouthernborderthatwehaveto secure. Thankyou. Yieldback. 
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorBlumenthal. 
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	Thanks,Mr. Chairman. Iwanttojoinandthankingyouforyourpatience. I'mhopingthatI cangetthroughallmyquestionsonthisround. Idon'tknowwhetherthechairmanwill exceedtoashortthirdroundbutletmejusttryasbestIcan. Onthepardonissueand accountability,youwouldagreethatthepresidentpardoningsomeoneinreturnfor changinghisorhertestimonywouldbeanabuseofthepardonpowerandthepresident shouldbeheldaccountable? 
	BARR: 
	And--well, aquidproquotochangetestimonycouldpotentiallybeobstruction. 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	-
	-

	Orfornottestifyingatallwouldbeobstructionofjustice. Ifthespecialprosecutororthe prosecutoranywhereelsecametoyouwithproofbeyondareasonabledoubtofthatkindof obstructionoranyothercrime, we'retalkingproofbeyondareasonabledoubt, wouldyou approveanindictmentofthepresident? 
	BARR: 
	I--that'sthekindofthingI'mnotgoingto--I'mnotgoingtoansweroﬀthetopofmyhead. Butifwetakeitoutofthiscontextandsayifsomeone--ifsomeonewere--ifaprosecutor cameand--andshowedthattherewasaquidproquobywhichsomebodygivessomething ofvaluetoinduceafalsetestimonyor-
	-
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	(INAUDIBLE) 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	BLUMENT
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	Andthequestioniswhetherthepresidentcouldbeprosecutedwhileinoﬃce. Ihappento believethathecouldbe, evenifthetrialwerepostponeduntilheisoutofoﬃce,butbecause thestatuteoflimitationsmightrunforanyothernumberofreasons, aprosecutionwouldbe appropriate. Wouldyouagree? 
	BARR: 
	Well--but--youknow, for40years,thepositionoftheexecutivebranchhasbeenyoucan't indictasittingpresident. 
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	-
	-

	Well,it'sthetraditionbasedonacoupleofOLCopinions, butnowitispotentiallyan eminent,indeedimmediatepossibility, andI'maskingyouforyouropinionnow,ifpossible, butifnotnow,perhapsatsomepoint. 
	BARR: 
	AreyouaskingmeifI--ifIwouldchangethat--thatpolicy? 
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	I'maskingyouwhatyourviewisrightnow. 
	BARR: 
	I, youknow,I--Iactuallyhaven'treadthoseopinionsinalongtime. ButIseenoreasonto-tochangethem. 
	-
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	WellI'mhappytocontinuethisconversationwithmoretimeandanotheropportunity. 
	BARR: 
	Sure. 
	BLUMENT
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	IwanttoaskyouabouttheSouthernDistrictofNewYork, whichIbelieveisasimportantas thespecialprosecutor. AsImentionedearlierinmyquestionbefore,thepresidenthasbeen namedtheirindividualnumberoneasanunindictedco-conspirator. Ifthepresidentﬁred theUnitedStatesattorney, wouldyousupportcontinuingthatinvestigationevenunderthe civilservants, thecareerprosecutorswhowouldremain, assumingitisalegitimate prosecution? 
	BARR: 
	-
	-

	Yeah, andI've--I'vetriedtosayitinanumberofdiﬀerentways,Ibelieve, regardlessofwho orwhatoutsidethedepartmentistryingtoinﬂuencewhat'sgoingon, everydecisionwithin thedepartmentrelatingtoenforcement,theattorneygeneralhastodetermine independentlythat--thatit'salawfulaction. And--andiftherewasalawful,bonaﬁde investigationthatsomeonewastryingtosquelch, Iwouldn'ttoleratethat. 
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	Puttingitverysimply, youwouldprotectthatinvestigationagainstpoliticalinterferenceas hopefullyyouwoulddotothe-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Withanyinvestigationinthedepartment. 
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	Exactly. Letmemoveontosomethingunrelated,ifImay. Intheearly1990s,thousandsof HaitianstriedtoﬂeepersecutionintheirowncountrybycomingtotheUnitedStatesby boat. Asyouremember, youoversaw, Ibelieve, aprogramthatsentthousandsofthem, someofthemwereHIV-positive, toGuantanamoBay. Theseasylum-seekerswerekeptat GuantanamoBayfor18 monthsareaafederaljudgeintheEasternDistrictofNewYork describedthelivingconditionsinGuantanamoBaybysayingthatasylum-seekerswere forcedtoleaveandliveincamps, "Surroundedbyraz
	orbarbedwire," andcompelledto, "Tieplasticgarbagebagstothesidesofthebuildingtokeeptherainout." 
	Inaninterviewin2001 attheMillerCenter, youdefendedthisprogram. Doyouhave regretsaboutitnowandImadecorrectinsayingthattheseasylum-seekersﬁrststarted comingtotheUnitedStates,itwasyourpositionthattheyshouldbekeptthereindeﬁnitely? 
	BARR: 
	Ireallyappreciatetheopportunitytoaddressthis. Soin--in1991,Aristidewasoverthrown inHaitiandtherewasasortofamassexodusfromHaiti. Andupuntilthen,thepolicyof 
	-
	-

	theUnitedStateshasbeenforce, untilthattime, administrationshadforciblyreturned Haitianasylum-seekersandsoforthwithoutanykindofprocess. 
	We--itwasahumanitarianproblembecausealotoftheseboatsweresinking,itwasa600 milejourney, sotheCoastGuard--therearetwodiﬀerentissues. Oneissueistheprocessing ofthosewhowerehealthy, andthesecondissuewastheHIV. Inanutshell,the--the processingwestartedactuallygivingthemabbreviatedasylumhearingson--ontheships. Eventually, wemovedsomeofthattoGuantanamoandwewereadmittingtotheUnited States30percent, whichisthehighestit'severbeen. Imean,Ithinkbeforethatitwasjust minuscule. 
	Later, whentheClintonadministrationadoptedourpolicies,itwentdownto5 percentIam told. Butinanyevent,thenitbecamesooverwhelmingthatweforciblyrepatriatedthe Haitiansbecausewefeltthatmostofthem,theconditionswerechanging, wedidn'tthink thattherewasathreatinHaiti, and--andweforcibly--wewerejustoverwhelmed, andwe forciblysentthembacktoHaiti. Meanwhile, HIVwas--wasanexclusion. Youcouldnot admitanyonewithHIV, andthiswasadoptedbytheSenateandthenintheﬁrstyearofthe ClintonadministrationandtheClintonadministrationsigned
	SowhatwedidwiththeHIVpeopleisweﬁrstscreenedthemforasylumbecauseifthey couldn'tclaimasylum,thentheywouldn'tbeadmitted, andthenwestartedacasebycase review. Istartedadmittingthemonacase-by-casebasiswhere--wherecasescouldbemade thattherewasaparticularreasonfordoingit, likepregnantwomenandpeoplewhohadnot yetdevelopedfull-blown. 
	SoIthinktherewasaslowingdownoftheprocessingbecausepeoplefeltthattheClinton administration, whichatthetimewasattackingthesepolicies, wasgoingto--wasgoingto bemoreliberal. Andso,peoplethoughtwillwhyshouldwegothroughthisprocesswith BushwhenClintonisrightaroundthecorner?Clintoncamein, adoptedourpolicies, and 
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	defendedthemincourt, continuedforcedrepatriation, continuedtheexclusionofHIV. As partofsettlingthecasehebroughtinthree300--260-
	-
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	--Whichdidn'tnecessarilymakeitright. 
	BARR: 
	Well,itwasrightunderthelaw. 
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	DidyoufavorkeepingthoseHaitiansinGuantanamoindeﬁnitely? 
	BARR: 
	No. 
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	andcanIaskyou-
	-

	BARR: 
	--Wewere--IthinkmostofthearticlesatthetimesaidwerecordedsortofinaCatch-22. WeweretryingtoprocesstheHIVpeopleonacase-by-casebasisand--andinfactthe lawyerswho--we,bytheway, agreetohavelawyerscomedownandrepresentthesepeople intheasylumhearingsatGuantanamo. Andinthebook, writtenbythem, theysayrightout weweremakingprogress. ItstoppedontheClintonadministrationwaselected. 
	SowewereinthisCatch-22 ontheHIVandIhadstaﬀmembersgodownthereto Guantanamoandthedidnotreport,youknow,inhumaneconditionsoranythinglikethat and--andthatisnotmentioned, Idon'tthinkinthe--inthebookwrittenbythelawyerswho representedthem. Soitwasamax--massexodussituationandwedidthebestwecould. 
	-
	-
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	Wouldyoudoitagaininexactlythesamewayifyouhadtodoagain? 
	BARR: 
	Idon't--Imean, Idon'tknowdependingonthecircumstancesandalsodependingon--on whetherwethoughtthiswasreallyacaseofpersecution. 
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	Letmeaskyouthis, wouldyou, again,houseasylum-seekersinGuantanamo? 
	BARR: 
	WelltheClintonadministrationdid. 
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	I'maskingyou. 
	BARR: 
	Infact, theydoubled--theydoubledandtheystartedputtingothernationalitiesintheretoo. ProbablynotbecauseoftheassociationsofGuantanamonow. 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	Wouldyousegregateasylum-seekersinsomeotherway,then? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Ithinkit'salwaysadvantageous--giventheabusesoftheasylumssystemrightnow, I wouldalwaysprocureprefertoprocessasylum-seekersoutsidetheUnitedStates. 
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	HAL: 
	-
	-

	Anddon'tyouthinkweshoulddoabetterjobwithasylum-seekersinthiscountry?Interms ofthekindsoffacilitiesthatweprovide,particularlyforwomenandchildrenandfamilies? 
	BARR: 
	Ohabsolutely, yes. I--Ithinkwe--ifwe'regoingtodetainfamilies,I--Ithinkthosehavetobe facilitiesthataresafeandappropriateforyoungchildren. 
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	Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	SenatorLee? 
	LEE: 
	Thankyouverymuchverymuch,Mr. Chairman. Thanksagaintoyou,Mr. Barr,forbeing willingtoanswerallthesequestionstoday. Iwanttocontinueonsomeofthesametheme thatMr. Blumenthalraisedamomentago. Heraisedacoupleofquestionsregarding immigration, regardingourasylumprocess. 
	Ithinkit'ssigniﬁcanttonoteherethatwehavesomeinourpoliticaldiscoursetodaywhoare suggestingthattheenforcementofourimmigrationlawsandtheenforcementofourborder issomehowimmoral,thatit'ssomehowwrong. We'vehadpeoplewho--inoneofthemajor politicalparties, multiplecandidatesbeelectedcampaigning, amongotherthings, oneither evisceratingICE'spowerorabolishingtheagencyalltogether. 
	As--asyounotedearliertoday,yougaveaspeechbackin1992 inwhichyouwereoneofthe ﬁrstpeopleIrememberusingthemetaphorof, youknow, wantingtomakesurethatour immigrantscometothiscountrythroughthefrontdoorandnotthroughthebackdoor, or notthroughasidewindoworsomethingtothateﬀect. 
	-
	-

	Canyoujustsortofdescribetouswhyyouthinkit'simportantthatwedrawaclearmoral distinctionbetweentheenforcementofimmigrationlaws, betweenlegalimmigrationand illegalimmigration?Isthisthefunctionalequivalent,inotherwords, ofthepremature removalofadonotremovetagonamattress, orisitsomethingmorethanthat? 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkit'ssomethingmore. Imean,youknow, we--wehavebuiltagreatsocietyhereinthe UnitedStates. Andavast--andIforgotwhatthestatisticis,butaverylargemajorityofthe worldlivesunderourpovertylevel. Andforthem, even,youknow, beingpoorintheUnited Stateswouldbeastepup. Andwehavealottobegratefulandthankfulforhere. 
	Andifitwasunrestricted, alotofpeoplewouldcomehere, morethanwecouldpossibly accommodate. Andpeople--. 
	LEE: 
	--Andwhowouldthat--whowouldthatharm, ﬁrstandforemost,ifweallowedthatto happen?Woulditbethewealthywhowouldmostimmediatelybeharmedbythat? 
	BARR: 
	No,itwouldn't. Yeah. 
	Andso,itjustseemsobviousthatyouhavetohaveasystemofrationing. Youhavetohavea systemthatmakesdeterminationswhocancomeinwhen. Andit's--Congressisinchargeof that. Theycanmakethelawsanddetermineit. Andwe--weIthinkhaveaveryexpansive system. 
	Therearepeoplewaitinginlinefor10,15--atleasttherewerewhenIlastlookedatit,you know,inthePhilippines, forexample,foroveradecade, waitingpatiently,law-abiding peoplewhowanttocomehereandhavefamilyhereandotherthingslikethat. Andjustto allowpeopletocomecrashingin,betoldthatifyousayifthis,you'llbetreatedasanasylum 
	-
	-

	andthenyoudon'thaveto--youdon'thavetoreappearforyourEEAhearingorwhatever, it'sjustanabuseofthesystemandit'sunfair. 
	Imean, allofushavebeenstandinginlines,long,longlines, andsomeonejustwalksupto thefront. That'sunjust. That'sunjust. Ialsothinkthat, withoutcontrol, youhaveunsafe conditionsanduncontrolledconditionsontheborderwhichcreate,youknow, serious safetyproblemsforeverybodyonbothsidesoftheborder. 
	So, itcreates--uncontrolledaccesstothecountryisanationalsecuritythreat. Youknow, therearepeoplearoundtheworldthatarecomingintoLatinAmericaforthepurposeof comingupthroughtheborder. So, theseare--youknow,thesearethereasonswhyIthink it'simportantthatweenforce--wehaveanenforceablesystemoflawswhichrightnowthe lawsaresorelylacking. 
	LEE: 
	Ourdesiretoenforceourborderisnotuniquetous. Infact, ourneighborsonthesouthern sideofourborderinMexicothemselveshaveprettystrictlawswhichtheyenforce. Andour-ourneighborsinMexico, includingtheoﬃcialsinthe--inthenewLopezObrador administration, withwhomIvisitedrecently, arethemselvesquiteconcernedaboutthese uncontrolledwavesofmigrationfromGuatemala, fromHonduras, fromElSalvador. 
	-

	Itoccurstome, andithasoccurredtothem, thatit'simportantforustoﬁgureoutwaysto turnoﬀthe--themagnetsthatarebringingtheseuncontrolledwavesin. Ifyoucouldwavea magicwand,isthereanything--anychangeyouwouldmaketocurrentasylumlaworpolicy thatyouthinkweoughttoconsider? 
	BARR: 
	Ireallycouldn'tsayoﬀthetopofmyhead. I--Ithink--Ihadsomeideasawhilebackabout-youknow,I'mtalkingdecadesagoabouthowwecouldchangeit, 'causethishasalways beentheproblem. ButI'd--youknow,I'dhavetoseeexactlywheretheabusesarecomingin andhowwecoulddealwithit. 
	-

	-
	-

	LEE: 
	Yeah. Mr. Chairman,I'vegotonemorequestion. CouldI? 
	GRAHAM: 
	Sure. Absolutely. 
	LEE: 
	WithleaveoftheChairman, Iwanttogetbackverybrieﬂytocivilassetforfeiture. Ireferred brieﬂyattheendofourpreviousexchangetoaprocesswherebysomestatelaw enforcementagencies, seeingthattheyareprohibitedfromdoingthatwhichtheywould liketodounderstatelaw, willgotoafederallawenforcementagencyandagreetomakethe civilassetforfeiturethattheywantfederalsuchthatit'snolongergovernedbystatelaw. 
	SometimesthathappensandtheDepartmentofJusticewillenterintoanequitablesharing arrangementwiththatstatewherethemoneyissortof--Idon'tliketousetheword laundered, butit's--it'sﬁlteredthroughthefederalsystemdeliberatelyinaneﬀortto circumventstatelaw. Wouldbanningthistypeofequitablesharingincivilassetforfeiture besomethingthatyouwouldbewillingtodoasattorneygeneral? 
	BARR: 
	No,Icouldn'tsayI'mwillingtodoitnow'causeIdon'tknowenoughaboutit. Youknow,I comeatthis, numberone, thatassetforfeitureisanimportanttool; numbertwo, thatit's important, youknow,how--howweworkwithourstateandlocalpartners. Butnumber three, asyoucouldtellfrommyearlystatementonthismatter, Iamsensitivetocreatinga speedtrapproblemandalsodueprocessissueswhereamountsarestolenthat,forall intentsandpurposes,itwouldbetoocostlyforsomeindividualstogoandtryto, youknow, getback. So, I'mopentolookingatwhetherthereareabuses, 
	-
	-

	LEE: 
	Okay. Thankyou. And--andit's--it'smyviewthat, atleastinthatcircumstancewhereit's prohibitedbystatelaw, statelawenforcementagenciesshouldn'tbeabletomake themselveswhole. Theyshouldn'tbeabletoseektheblessingofgovernmentsimplyby makingitfederal. 
	So, Ihopeyou'llconsiderthat, andappreciateyourremarksondueprocess. Thisreallydoes touchonthat, andit'srightatthesurfaceofawholelotofconstitutionalrights. Thankyou verymuch, sir. Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Senator--SenatorHarris. I'msorry, Booker. Iapologiz
	Senator--SenatorHarris. I'msorry, Booker. Iapologiz
	e. 

	BOOKER: 
	Gosh,giveaguyalittlepowerasthechairmanandhestartstopushyouaround. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Itellyouwhat. He'sdoingbetterthanIam. I'mgettingtired. 
	BOOKER: 
	Ithoughtwewerefriends. 
	GRAHAM: 
	(INAUDIBLE) Wearefriends. 
	BOOKER: 
	Grateful, sir. Letmejumprightinandyouwroteanarticlewhereyoudescribedhowthelaw wasbeingusedandthiswasyour--youropinionandmaybeit'schangedbecausethiswas overadecadeagowhereyousaidthebreakdown--thebreakdowntraditionalmoralityby 
	-
	-

	puttingonanequalplaneconductthatwaspre--previouslyconsideredimmoral. Andyou mentionedthehomosexualmovementiswhatyoudescribeditasoneofthemovements causinganerosionofmoralityinAmerica. 
	I--IcanonlygatherfromthisthearticleI'mquotingunlessyouropinionshavechangedthat youbelievethatgaybisexualtrends--beinggayorbisexual,lesbianortransgenderis immoral. Do--haveyourviewschangedfromthat? 
	BARR: 
	No,butIdon'tthinkIsaid--Ithinkyouwereparaphrasingthere. WhatdidIsayaboutthe homosexualmove-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Iwillputitintherecordthe-
	-

	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	BOOKER: 
	The--thearticlethatyouandagainI'mquotingyouractuallanguage. 
	BARR: 
	I'll--I'lltellyoumyviews. If--if--ifIhadbeenvotingonitatthetimemyviewisthatunder thelaw, undertheConstitutionasIoriginallyconceiveditbeforeitwasdecidedbythe SupremeCourt, marriagewastoberegulatedbythestatesandifIwereandifitwasbrought tome,Iwouldhavefavoredmaritalunionsb--single-sex 
	BOOKER: 
	IguessI'mmoreaskingdoyoustillbelievethathomosexualityisamovementorthat--that somehowthat'simmoralbehavior? 
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	WhatIwasgettingatisIthinktherehastobealiveandle--inapluralisticsocietylikeours therehastobealiveandletliveattitudeandmutualtolerancewhichhastobeatwo-way street. AndmyconcernandtherestofthearticleaddressesthisisIamperfectlyﬁnewith thelawasitisforexamplewithgaymarriage. It'sperfectlyﬁne. ButIwantaccommodation toreligionandwhatIwasconcernedabout-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	ButIguessthat'snotmyconcern, sir. Weliveinacountryrightnowwhereespecially LGBTQyoutharedisproportionatelybulliedatschool. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. Hatecrimes. 
	BOOKER: 
	Hatecrimes, serioushatecrimes. Manyreportmissingschoolbecauseoffear, disproportionatelyhomeless. AndIguesswhatI'mmoreconcernedaboutisdoyoubelieve thatlawsdesignedtoprotectLGBTQindividualsfromdiscriminationcontributetowhat youdescribedasabreakdownintraditionalmorality,thelaws-
	-

	BARR: 
	No. 
	BOOKER: 
	Youdonot? 
	BARR: 
	No. 
	-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Okay. Since-
	-

	BARR: 
	ButI'dliketosaywhatI--Ialsobelievetherehastobeaccommodationto--toreligious communities. 
	BOOKER: 
	YouandIbothbelieveinfreedomofreligion. IguesswhatI'mtalkingaboutagainis discriminationandIknowyoubelieveIknowyoubelieve,Iknowyoubelieve--youdon't needtosayformethatyoubelievethatﬁringsomebodysimplybecausethey'regayis wrong. 
	BARR: 
	Totallywrong. 
	BOOKER: 
	I--Iunderstandthatyoubelievethatbutdoyoubelievetherighttonotbeﬁredjustbecause ofyoursexualorientationshouldbesomethingthatshouldbeprotectedundercivilrights law? 
	BARR: 
	I'msorry. Yourrightnottobeﬁred? 
	BOOKER: 
	Sir-
	-

	BARR: 
	-
	-

	InotherwordsareyousayingthatitshouldbepartofTitleVII? 
	BOOKER: 
	I'msayingthatrightnowintheUnitedStatesofAmericaandthemajorityofourstate someonecanbeﬁred,theycanposttheirweddingpicturesontheirFacebookpageandbe ﬁredthenextdayjustbecausetheyaregay. 
	BARR: 
	Ithinkthat'swrong. 
	BOOKER: 
	Youthinkthat'swrong? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	BOOKER: 
	And--and--andsoyouwouldbelievethateﬀortsbytheDepartmentofJusticetoprotect LGBTkids--kidsor--orindividualsfromharassmentfromhatecrimesineﬀortstoprotect thecivilrightsofLGBTQAmericans? 
	BARR: 
	Isupportthat. 
	BOOKER: 
	Yousupportthat, okay. 
	BARR: 
	That'swhatIsaidinthebeginning. I--Iamveryconcernedabouttheincreaseinhatecrime. 
	-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Iwasreallyhappyaboutthatandsaidyourecogniz
	ethatviolencebasedonsexual orientationisnotacceptableandthatyouwillworktocombatthat. Iwasreallyhappyto readthatinyourwrittentestimonyandhearitagain. 
	Willyourecogniz
	ethatthenthatthere'saplacefortheDepartmentofJusticewhichis supposedtoprotectthecivilrightsofAmericans, vulnerablecommunities,thatthere'sa placefortheDepartmentofJusticetoprotectthecivilrightsofLGBTAmericansbybanning discriminationbasedonsexualorientationorgenderidentity? 
	BARR: 
	IfCongresspassessuchalaw. I--IthinkthelitigationgoingonnowinTitleVIIiswhatthe 1964Actactuallycontemplatedbutpersonally, Ithink-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Please, soI'msorryyoudobelievethe1964Actcontemplatedprotectingindividualsfrom havingbeingdiscriminateduponby-
	-

	BARR: 
	No, no. Ithinkitwasmale-femalethattheyweretalkingaboutwhentheysaidsexinthe'64 Act. 
	BOOKER: 
	Soprotectingsomeone'sbasicrightstobefreefromdiscriminationbecauseofsexual harassmentisnotsomethingthattheDepartmentofJusticeshouldbeprotecting? 
	BARR: 
	No. I'msayingCongresspassesthelaw, theJusticeDepartmentenforcesthelaw. Ithinkthe '64Actonitsfaceandthisiswhat'sbeinglitigated, whatdoesitcover?Ithinkforlikethree 
	-
	-

	orfourdecadestheLGBTcommunitywastryingtoamendthelaw. 
	BOOKER: 
	ButtheObamaadministrationasyouknowtheJusticeDepartmentundertheObama administrationwasworkingtoprotectLGBTQkidsfromdiscrimination. Arethosepractices thatyouwouldbe--bepursuingaswell? 
	BARR: 
	I--Idon'tknowwhatyouarereferringto. Idon't--I'magainstdiscriminationagainstanyone becauseofsomestatus,youknow,theirgenderortheir-
	-

	BOOKER: 
	Iunderstandreallybrieﬂy-
	-

	BARR: 
	--sexualorientationor--orwhatever. 
	BOOKER: 
	Thankyou. WiththeindulgenceofthechairjustverybrieﬂytheDepartmentofJustice reversedthefederalgovernment'spositioninBCversusPerryafterarguingthatalmost6 yearsthattheTexasvoterIDlawintentionallydiscriminatedagainstminorities. Eventhe FifthCircuitofAppeal, oneofthemoreconservativecircuits, ruledthattheTexaslaw discriminatedagainstminorityvoters. 
	Yousaidverystronglythatvoting, therighttovoteisparamountandI'mwonderingif conﬁrmedwillyoubringtheDepartmentofJusticebackintoa--tothemodeofdefending therighttovotebecausethey'venowpulledoutofalotofcasesthatwere--thatwere aﬃrmingpeople'saccessfortherighttovote? 
	BARR: 
	-
	-

	IwillvigorouslyenforcetheVotingRightsAct. 
	BOOKER: 
	Okay. AndthenI'll--I'lljustsayMr. Chairman,IjustwanttosaytoyoupleaseIhopeweget achancetotalkmore. Iimaginethisisour--oursecondroundandI'mgratefulforyoutoday answeringmyquestions. Thankyou, sir. 
	GRAHAM: 
	NowSenatorHarris. 
	HARRIS: 
	Thankyou. Sir,youweretheAttorneyGeneralobviouslyunderPresidentGeorgeHWBush andintheReaganWhiteHouseaseniorpolicyadvisorsoI'mgoingtoassumethatyouare familiarwiththePresidentialRecordsActandmyquestionisinthecontextofaWashington PostreportthatthePresidenttookpossessionofaninterpreter'snotesdocumentingthe President'smeetingwiththeRussianPresidentPutinin2017 andthequestionisthenis doesthatviolatethePresidentialRecordsAct? 
	BARR: 
	Your--yourinitialassumptionI'mafraidwaswrong. I--Idon't,I'mnotfamiliarwiththatact. 
	HARRIS: 
	Youarenotfamiliaratall--? 
	BARR: 
	At--atsometimeI-it's, youknow,I--Ireallydon'tknowwhatitsays. 
	HARRIS: 
	-
	-

	Youdon'tknowwhatitsays? 
	BARR: 
	No. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay. 
	BARR: 
	AtsometimeatsomepointIwas--. 
	HARRIS: 
	Itrequiresthepresidenttokeepdocumentsandnotdestroythemessentially. 
	BARR: 
	AtonepointIknewwhatitsaidbutI'mnotfamiliarwithitrightnow. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay. InDecemberaTexasjug--judgestruckdowntheAﬀordableCareAct. Ifthedecision isupheldtheresultscouldincludeanestimated17 millionAmericanslosingtheirhealth insuranceintheﬁrstyearalone,protectionsfrompre-existingconditionswouldbe eliminatedandseniorswouldpaymoreforprescriptiondrugsandsomeadultswouldno longerbeabletostayontheirparent'sinsuranceplansuntiltheageof26. 
	AttorneyGeneralSessionsrefusedtodefendtheAﬀordableCareActincourt. Asyouknow whenthereisachangeoftheAttorneyGeneralintheJusticeDepartmentthereisoftena changeofprioritiesfromthepreviousAG. 
	Sointhecontextofalsounderstandingthatmanylawyersincludingconservativelegal scholarshavecriticiz
	edtheTexasdecisionincludingPhilipKleinoftheWashington 
	-
	-

	Examiner. WouldyoureversetheJusticeDepartment'spositionanddefendtheAﬀordable CareActincourt? 
	BARR: 
	ThatisacasethatI--ifI'mconﬁrmedwouldwant--. 
	HARRIS: 
	Ifconﬁrmed. 
	BARR: 
	IfI'mconﬁrmedIwouldliketoreviewthedepartment'spositiononthatcase. 
	HARRIS: 
	Areyouopentoreconsideringthe--theposition? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	TheAttorneyGeneralSessionsalsoissuedamemolimitingtheuseofconsentdecrees. This cameupearlierinyourhearingandthelimitationwasontheuseofconsentdecrees betweentheJusticeDepartmentandlocalgovernments. 
	I'maskingthenwithinyourﬁrst90dayswillyoucommittoprovide--ifconﬁrmed, providing thiscommitteewithalistofallconsentdecreesthathavebeenwithdrawnsinceAttorney GeneralSessionissuedthatpolicy?We'dlikesometransparencyandinformationabout whatconsentdecreeshavebeenwithdrawnduringtheSessionsadministrationofthe JusticeDepartment. Wouldyoucommittodoingthat? 
	BARR: 
	-
	-

	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Andifconﬁrmedwillyoucommittoprovidingthiscommitteewithalistofanyconsent decreesthatyouwithdrawduringyourtenure? 
	BARR: 
	Throughoutthein--tenure? 
	HARRIS: 
	Yes. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Andifconﬁrmed, within90daysofyourconﬁrmationwillyoucommittoconveningcivil rightsgroupstolistentotheirconcernsaboutthispolicyandtheDepartmentofJustice? 
	BARR: 
	I--Iwill, I'm--I'mveryhappytoconvenethatgroup. 
	HARRIS: 
	I'mgoingtointerpretthatasacommitmentthatyouwill. 
	BARR: 
	I'm--I'mnotsureofabout90days. Giveme120. 
	HARRIS: 
	-
	-

	Okay. That'sﬁne. That's--that'stheagreementthenwithin120days. That'sterriﬁc. And thentheVotingRightsActyouarefamiliarofcoursewiththatI'mgoingtoassume,yes? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Okay. Andundertheact,therecordofdiscriminatoryvotingpractices,thosestatesthat havearecordofsuchpracticeshadtoobtainfederalapprovalinordertochangetheirvoting lawsasyouknow. 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Andthencamethe2013 Shelbydecisionwherethecourtbya5-4voteprettymuchgutted theactendingthefederalpreapprovalrequirement. Sowithinweeksofthatruling,youare probablyawarethatlegislatorsinNorthCarolinarushedthroughalaundrylistofvoting requirements. AfederalappealscourtlaterheldthoseNorthCarolinalawstobe intentionallydiscriminatoryagainstAfrican-Americanvoterstargetingthemquotewith almostsurgicalprecision. 
	DoyoubelievetherearecurrentlylawsonthebooksthattargetAfrican-Americansorhave theeﬀectofdiscouragingAfrican-Americansfromvotinginourcountry? 
	BARR: 
	Well,itsoundslikethoselawsdo. 
	HARRIS: 
	Sure. 
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	SoI'm-
	HARRIS: 
	Doyouhaveanyconcernaboutthattheremaybeotherlawsthathavethesameeﬀect? 
	BARR: 
	Iwouldbeconcernedifthereareotherlawsandthat'swhyIwouldvigorouslyenforce Section2 oftheVotingRightsAct. 
	HARRIS: 
	AndwouldyoumakeitthenpartofyourmissiontoalsoinspiteofthefactthattheVoting RightsActhasbeenguttedtomakeityourmissiontoalsobecomeawareofany discriminatorylawsinanyofthestatesincludingthosethatwerecoveredbytheVoting RightsActbecauseoftheirhistoryofdiscriminationandusetheresourcesofthe DepartmentofJusticetoensurethatthereisnotvotersuppressionhappeninginour country? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	HARRIS: 
	Thankyou. Mytimeisup. Iappreciateit. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Itwasveryeﬃcient. Ithinkthat'stheendofthetworoundsthatIpromisedthecommittee wewoulddo. Thanks. SenatorHirono,youhaveafewmorequestions. 
	-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Yes, thankyouverymuch. AndIthankSenatorKennedy, ashewassittinginthechair,to givemepermissiontogoalittlebitfurther. So,I'llbeasbriefasIcan. 
	Lastyear, theJusticeDepartmentinZardav. AltitudeExpress--itwasthesecondcircuit case--arguedthatTitleVIIoftheﬁlingamicusbrief--itarguedthatTitleVIIoftheCivil RightsActof'64didnotprohibitdiscriminationonemploymentonthebasisofsexual orientation. 
	So, boththesecondandtheseventhcircuitshavetheDepartment'sargument. So, if conﬁrmed, wouldyouappealthe--thisdecisiontotheSupremeCourt? 
	BARR: 
	Ithought--Ithink--IthinkitisgoinguptotheSupremeCourt. 
	HIRONO: 
	So, isthe--istheDOJgoingtocontinuetoarguethatTitleVIIdoesnotprotect--? 
	BARR: 
	--Well--. 
	HIRONO: 
	--Discrimination--employmentdiscrimination? 
	BARR: 
	Youknow,it'spendinglitigation, andIhaven't--youknow,Ihaven'tgottenintoreviewthe-theDepartment'slitigationposition. But,thematterwillbedecidedbytheSupremeCourt. 
	-

	HIRONO: 
	-
	-

	Well,Itakeitthat--thatsoundslikeayestomethattheDepartmentwillcontinuetopush theargumentstatusthenof--. 
	BARR: 
	--Well,it'snotjusttheDepartment'sargument. It'sbeensortofcommonunderstandingfor almost40years--. 
	HIRONO: 
	--So, employmentdiscriminationonthebasisofsexissomethingthat--that--itwouldbe okaybyyouifthat'ssomething(INAUDIBLE)--. 
	BARR: 
	--No,that'snotatallwhatI'msaying. I'msayingthequestionistheinterpretationofa statutebackin1964. I--asI'vealreadysaid, Ipersonally, asamatterof, youknow, myown personalfeelings,thinkthatthereshouldbelawsthatprohibitdiscriminationagainstgay people--. 
	HIRONO: 
	So, perhapsthough, shouldyoubeconﬁrmed, thatyouwouldreviewtheDepartment's positiononmakingtheargument, continuingtoputfortheargumentthatTitleVIIdoesnot prohibitemploymentdiscrimination. Wouldyoureview? 
	BARR: 
	No,becausethere'sadiﬀerencebetweenlawandpolicy. Thequestioninlawiswhatwas-what--IwillenforcethelawsaspassedbyCongress. I'mnotgoingtoamendthem. I'mnot goingtoundercutthem. I'mnotgoingtotryandworkmywayaroundthemandevade them. 
	-

	HIRONO: 
	-
	-

	Well,theDOJalsodoesn'thavetoﬁleanamicusbriefeither. 
	Letmemoveonthen. Recently, TheNewYorkTimesreportedthattheDepartmentof HealthandHumanServiceswantedtoredeﬁnegenderforfederalanti-discriminationlaw, suchasTitleIX--sonow, we'retalkingaboutTitleIX--asbeingdeterminedbythebiological featuresonehasatbirth. 
	So, doyoubelievethattransgenderpeopleareprotectedfromdiscriminationbyTitleIX? 
	BARR: 
	IthinkthatmatterisbeinglitigatedintheSupremeCourttoo. 
	HIRONO: 
	DoyouknowwhattheJusticeDepartment'spositionisonwhether--well,ifthey'regoingto goalongwithwhattheDepartmentofHealthandHumanServiceswants, thenthere's--the JusticeDepartment'spositionisthatTitleIXdoesnotprotectdiscriminationonthebasisof transgender. 
	BARR: 
	Idonotknowwhatthepositionis. 
	HIRONO: 
	ThisisprobablyanotheronethatIwouldaskyoutoreview. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	HIRONO: 
	Lastquestions. You'vebeenaskedthisalready. But, aftertheShelbyCountyv. Holder decision,therewassome13 statesthatpassedvariouskindsoflawsthatonecould--the 
	-
	-

	argumentcouldbemadethattheywereintendedtosuppressvoters. Infact, someofthem wereintentionallyintended--notjusttheeﬀectofdiscriminatingagainst,basically, minority voters. 
	So, youdidsaythatyouwouldvigorouslyenforcetheVotingRightsAct. So,that'sgood. The WashingtonPostreportedlastweekthatoﬃcialsinNorthCarolinareportedstrong allegationsofelectionfraudrelatedtoabsenteeballottamperingtotheUSDOJ. This--we're talkingaboutelectionfraud, notvoterfraud. 
	But,theJusticeDepartmentdidnotappeartotakeanyaction, andnowthatCongressional raceisstillbeingdecided. But, onethingtheDepartmentofJusticedidmanagetodoin NorthCarolinawastorequestthatNorthCarolinaturnovermillionsofvotingrecordsto ImmigrationsandCustomsEnforcement,ICE, apparentlyaspartofaneedleinahaystack eﬀorttoprosecutevotingbynon-citiz
	ens. 
	Ifconﬁrmed, willyoucontinuetoputresourcesintothiskindofeﬀorttoprosecutevotingby non-citiz
	ens--whichtheevidenceisveryclearthatthereisnotthiskindofvoterfraudgoing, inspiteofthefactthatthePresidentsaidtherewassome--Idon'tknow--threemillion peoplewhowerenotsupposedtovotevoting. So, wouldyoucontinuetoexpendresources onrequiringturningovermillionsofvoterrecordstobeturnedovertoICE? 
	BARR: 
	Well,Idon'tknowwhatthepredicate--Idon'tknowwhatthepredicateforlookingintothat is. 
	HIRONO: 
	Well,itwastogetatvoterfraud, which, accordingtothePresident, isgoingoninamassive way, whichitisnot. 
	BARR: 
	-
	-

	Well,yeah. But,thepredicate--Idon'tknowwhatinformationtriggeredthatreview. But, youknow, whenIgointotheDepartment,I'llbeabletodiscernwhetherornotthat'sabona ﬁdeinvestigation. And, ifitis, I'mnotgoingtostopit. 
	HIRONO: 
	Whatis--whatifthetriggerwasthatthere'smassivevoterfraudgoingon--whichisnotthe factual--it'snotafactualbasis. Iwouldhopethat, as--asAttorneyGeneral,youwouldmake decisionsbasedonfacts, notonsomekindofideologicalneedtogoafterpeople. So, that's allI'masking. Iwouldjustaskyoutomakesurethat--. 
	BARR: 
	--You'reright--. 
	HIRONO: 
	--Thepredicatesarebasedon--. 
	BARR: 
	--Facts--. 
	HIRONO: 
	--Somefactualbasissothatwe'renotwastingshortresourcestogoafterfraudthat'snot even--thereareplentyofotherthingsthatyoucouldbedoingtomakesurethatthepeople areabletovote. 
	BARR: 
	Right. 
	HIRONO: 
	Thankyou. 
	-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Okay, canyoumakeitafewmoreminutes? 
	BARR: 
	Sure. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. Iknowcomfortbreaksarenecessary. SowhatI'dliketodo--SenatorKennedyhasone question, right?SenatorBlumenthalhasacouple. Thenwe'regoingtowrapitup. Ifyouhad 10minutestoliveyouwouldwanttoliveinthiscommittee. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Because10minutesisalongtime. SenatorKennedy. 
	KENNEDY: 
	IngeneralI'mstillconfusedaboutonepoint. Let'sassumethatMr. Mueller, atsomepoint, hopefullysoon, writesthereport, andthatreportwillbegiventoyou. Whathappensnext undertheprotocol, rulesandregulationsatJustice? 
	BARR: 
	Well, underthecurrentrulesthatreportissupposedtobeconﬁdentialandtreatedas,you know,theprosecutionanddeclinationdocumentsinanordinarycrim--anyothercriminal case. Andthentheattorneygeneral, asIunderstandtherules, wouldreporttoCongress abouttheconclusionoftheinvestigation. AndIbelievetheremaybediscretionthereabout whattheattorneygeneralcanputinthatreport. 
	KENNEDY: 
	SoyouwouldmakeareporttoCongress-
	-

	-
	-

	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	KENNEDY: 
	--basedonthereportyou'vereceived? 
	BARR: 
	Yes. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay,thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Allright. AcouplequestionsbySenatorBlumenthal, andwe'regoingtowrapitup. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Thankyouforyourpatienceand-
	-

	BARR: 
	(INAUDIBLE) 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	--yourperseverance. AndIappreciate,letmesay, yourwillingnesstocomemeetwithme, andsoI'mgoingtocutshortsomeofmyquestions. AndalsoIhopethatyouwillcomeback regularlytothecommittee. Obviouslythechairmanistheonewhodetermineswhenand whetherwehavewitnesses,butthefrequency-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	-
	-

	Hecomesevery30years. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	BARR: 
	27. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	27. YouwereaskedbySenatorLeahyaboutyourstatementthattheUraniumOnedealwas moredeservingofinvestigationthancollusionwithRussia. Youansweredthatyouwerenot speciﬁcallyreferringtothe--referencingtheUraniumOnedeal, butjustgenerallyreferring tomatterstheU.S. Attorneymightbeinvestigating. 
	BARR: 
	I--Ican'tremembertheexactcontextofthat. Therewasaseriesofquestionsareporterwas asking, andthenthearticlesortofputtheminasequencethat, youknow,didn'tnecessarily showmythoughts. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well,theNewYorkTimesjustpublishedinatweettheemailthatyousentthem, andyou didreferenceUraniumOnespeciﬁcally. 
	BARR: 
	Okay. 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	I'llaskthatitbemadepartoftherecord,if-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Withoutobjection. 
	-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	And-
	-

	BARR: 
	SowhatdidIsay? 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	ThetweetfromPeterBakeroftheNewYorkTimessaysquestionshavebeenraisedabout whatBillBarrtoldusforastoryin2017. Hereishisfullemailfromthenrespondingtoour requestforcomment. We'regratefulherepliedandhopethisclariﬁesanyconfusion. And theemailfromyousays, andIwilltaketherelevant-
	BARR: 
	Yeah. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	--partofthesentence. Quote,Ihavelongbelievedthatthepredicateforinvestigatedthe Uraniumdeal, aswellasthefoundation,isfarstrongerthananybasisforinvestigatingsocalledcollusion. 
	-

	BARR: 
	What--andcamebeforethat? 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	I'llreadthefullemail, withthepermissionofthechairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Yes, please. 
	-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Peter,gotyourtext. Thereisnothinginherentlywrongaboutapresidentcallingforan investigation, althoughaninvestigationshouldn'tbelaunchedjustbecauseapresident wantsit. Theultimatequestioniswhetherthematterwarrantsinvestigation, andIhave longbelievedthatthepredicateforinvestigatingtheUraniumdeal, aswellasthe foundation,isfarstrongerthananybasisforinvestigatingso-calledcollusion. Likewise,the basisforinvestigatingvariousnationalsecurityactivitiescarriedoutduringtheelection, as SenatorGrassleyhasbeenattemptingtodo
	BARR: 
	Right. Sotheabdicatingresponsibility,Iwasactuallytalkingaboutthenationalsecurity stuﬀ, andthatwasmyprimaryconcern. I--youknow,theUraniumOnedeal,thesortofpayfor-plaything,Ithinkatthatpoint--Imaybewrongonthis,butIthinkitwasincludedin Huber'sportfoliotoreview, suggestingthattherewassomethingtolookatthere. Butthe pointIwasreallytryingtogetatwasthattherewasafeeling,Ithinkastrongfeelingamong manypeople,thatitappeared, atleastontheoutside, thatthereweredoublestandards beingapplied. AndIthoughtitwasimportantthatthe
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well, that'sreallymyquestion. WhatwasthefactualbasisforyoursayingthattheUranium OnedealwasmoredeservingofinvestigationthanRussiancollusion,givenwhatyouhave-
	-

	BARR: 
	Ithinkthat-
	-

	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	-
	-

	--veryarticulatelydescribedasthepotentialthreattothenationalsecurityoftheUnited StatesfromRussianinterferenceinourelection. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,Ithinkatthattimetherewasalotofarticlesappearingaboutit. Ithinkmaybe CongressmanGoodlattehadwrittenaletteraboutit. Sotherewassmokearoundtheissue, astherehasbeensmokearoundanumberofissuesthathavebeeninvestigated. ButIwas usingitreallyasanexampleofthekindsofthingsthatwereﬂoatingaroundthatsome peoplefelthadtobelookedinaswell--lookedataswell. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Sothefactualbasiswaswhateverthatsmokewas? 
	BARR: 
	Well,thepublicinformationthatalotofopinionsarebeingformed. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Andhowaboutastothefoundation?Whatwasthebasisofyourclaimthatthefoundation wasmoredeservingofinvestigationthanRussiancollusion? 
	BARR: 
	Well,thefounda--youknow,Ididn'tnecessarilythinkthefoundationwas--shouldbe criminallyinvestigated,butI-
	-

	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	Well,youdidsaythatintheemail. 
	BARR: 
	Idid, criminally? 
	-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Well,letmereadthatpartofthesentenceagain. Ihavelongbelievedthatthepredicatefor investigatingtheUraniumdeal, aswellasthefoundation,isfarstrongerthananybasisfor investigatingso-calledcollusion. Youwerereferringtothecriminalinvestigation, asIread it. 
	BARR: 
	Yeah. Well,thefoundation,Ialwayswonderedabout--itwasthekindofthingthatIthink shouldhavebeenlookedatfromataxstandpointandwhetheritwascomplyingwiththe foundationrulesthewayacorporatefoundationis. AndIthoughtthereweresomethings therethat,youknow, meritedsomeattention. ButIwasn'tthinkingofitintermsofa criminalinvestigationofthefoundation. I'dliketo--youknow, AttorneyGeneralMukasey saidsomethingthatIagreewith. Hesaid,itwouldbelikeaBananaRepublicputting politicalopponentsinjailforoﬀensescommittedinapoliticalsetti
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Butapoliticalorpublicoﬃcial, eventhePresidentoftheUnitedStates,hastobeheld accountable. Nooneisabovethelaw. Wouldn'tyouagree? 
	BARR: 
	Oh, yes, absolutely. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Andjustonemorequestion. YoureferredearlierinresponsetoaquestionfromSenator Feinsteinabouttheemolumentsissue, andIaskthisquestion--intheinterestoffull 
	-
	-

	disclosureIwilltellyouthatIamtheleadplaintiﬀinalitigationcalledBlumenthal,Nadler vs. Trumpthatraisestheissueofemolumentsandthepaymentsandbeneﬁtsthathave beengoingtothePresidentoftheUnitedStateswithouttheconsentofCongress, in violationofthechiefanticorruptionclauseinUnitedStateslaw,theemolumentsclauseof theUnitedStatesConstitution, soweclaim. Yousaidthatyourunderstandingof emolumentswasthatitwas--thatitpertainedonlytostipends. 
	BARR: 
	No. Well,ﬁrst, I-
	-

	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Maybe-
	-

	BARR: 
	Ihaven'tlookedatthatclause. I'venot--youknow,Ihaven'tresearchedit, andIhaven't evenlookedupthewordemolument. ButallIsaidisjustcolloquially, oﬀthetopofmyhead, that'swhatIalwaysthoughtthewordmeant. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Soyou'renotnecessarilydisputingtheconclusionofatleastonedistrictcourt,perhaps others,thatemolumentsrelatestopaymentsandbeneﬁtsmuchbroaderthanjustastipend? Youwerespeakingonlyofyourcolloquialunderstanding? 
	BARR: 
	Yeah,Imeanmycolloquialunderstandingisthatemolumentsdoesn'trefertoexchangeof servicesandstuﬀlikethat, commercialtransactions. 
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 
	WhichisnotnecessarilytheunderstandingofthefoundersandframersoftheConstitution. 
	-
	-

	BARR: 
	We'llsee. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Well,that'sagoodwaytoend. We'llsee. Thankyou,SenatorBlumenthal. 
	BLUMENT
	BLUMENT
	HAL: 

	Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,Mr. Barr. Toyourfamily, thankyou. Youshouldbeproud. Thiswasavery thoroughexaminationofaveryimportantpositioninourgovernment. Ifconﬁrmed,you willbethechiefprotectoroftheruleoflaw, andIreallyappreciateyourtime, attentionand yourpatience. AnyfurtherquestionscanbesubmittedfortherecordbyJanuary21. This hearingisadjournedtore--tobereconvenedtomorrowat9:30. Thankyou. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	Goodmorning,everyone.Toourwitnesses,thankyouverymuchforsharingyourtestimony withthecommittee.Wehavenineverydistinguishedpeople.Ifyoucouldkeepittoﬁve minutes,we'dappreciateit.Wehaveyourwrittentestimonyandwillcertainlylookatallof it.S
	enatorFeinstein,thankyou.Yesterday,Ithoughtitwasaverygoodhearing,askedalot ofgood,toughquestionsthatwereappropriate. 
	NominatinganattorneygeneralisnosmallmatterandIthoughtthecommitteeacquitted itselfwellandMr.Barr,Ithink,isauniqueindividualandI'mgladthepresidentnominated him.Today,thepurposeistohearfrompeoplethathaveconcernsandsupportandweare honoredthatyoushowedup.Ifyoudon'tmind,I'llmentionwho'shere,thenturnitoverto you.Isthatokay? 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	That'sexcellent.Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou.OurﬁrstwitnesswillbetheHonorableMichaelMukasey,formerUnitedS
	tates attorney,formerU.Sdistrictjudge,andformerattorney--formereverything.Yeah,so--Mr.
	. DerrickJohnson,President,ChiefExecutiveOﬃceroftheNationalAssociationforthe AdvancementofColoredPeoplefromBaltimore.Welcome.TheHonorableLarry 
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	Thompson,formerUnitedS
	tatesdeputyattorneygeneral.Welcome,Larry.Goodtosee you.TheHonorableMarkMorel.Isthatright,sir? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Morial. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Morial.S
	orry.President,chiefexecutiveoﬃceroftheNationalUrbanLeague.Mrs.Mary KateCary,formerspeechwriterforPresidentGeorgeH.W.Bushandaseniorfellowatthe MillerCenterattheUniversityofVirginia.ProfessorNeilKemp? 
	KINKOPF: 
	Kinkopf. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Kinkopf.ProfessorofLaw,GeorgiaS
	tateUniversityCollegeofLaw,Atlanta,Georgia. ProfessorJonathanTurley,TVstar,smartguy.That'senough.ReverendS
	haron WashingtonRisherfromCharleston,S
	outhCarolina,MotherEmanuel.Godblessyou. Thankyouforcoming.Mr.ChuckCanterbury,theNationalPresidentforFraternalOrderof thePolice.IwillnowturnitovertoS
	enatorFeinstein. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	Thanksverymuch,Mr.Chairman.AndIverymuchenjoyedyourleadershipyesterdayand lookforwardtoitinthefuture.S
	othankyou.I'djustliketotakethanktakeamomentto thankourpaneliststodayandthatjustafewcomments,ifImay,onthediscussionthatwe hadyesterday. 
	Yesterday,manyofusfrom,Ithink,bothsidesoftheaisle,askedMr.Barrabouthislegal memoandthatwasallowingthespecialcounseltocompletehisworkunimpededand makingthereportattheendoftheinvestigationpublic.Hisanswersweregood,heclearly 
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	understandstheneedforindependenceandtheimportanceofprotectingthedepartmentas wellasMr.Muellerfrompoliticalinterference.Iwasconcernedbyhisequivocation regardingthereportattheendofthespecialcounsel'sinvestigation. 
	Mr.BarrwasclearthathewouldnotifyCongressifhedisagreeswithMr.Mueller,whichis-I'mgratefulfor,buthisanswersonprovidingareporttoCongressattheendofthespecial counsel'sinvestigationwereconfusing.WhenIﬁrstaskedhimaboutthereport,hesaidhe wouldmakeitavailable.However,itseemstomethatasthedayprogressed,hereferenced writinghisownreportandtreatingtheMuellerReportasconﬁdential.Iintend--I'mgoingto followupwithhiminwritingonthis. 
	-

	Ithinkit'sessentialthatCongressandtheAmericanpeopleknowwhatisintheMueller Report.IﬁrstmetBobMuellerwhenhewasU.S.attorneyandIwasmayorinS
	anFrancisco. 
	AndIknowhisreputation,Iknowhisintegrity,andthisisabigreportandthepublicneeds 
	toseeitand,withexception,averyrealnationalsecurityconcerns,Idon'tevenbelieve 
	thereshouldbeverymuchredaction.S
	oIamhopefulthatthatreportwillbemadepublic, 
	andmyvotedependsonthat,Mr.Chairmanbecauseandattorneygeneralmustunderstand 
	theimportanceofthistothenationasawhole,tousasaCongress,aswellastoevery 
	American. 
	IalsoplantofollowuponquestionsthatS
	IalsoplantofollowuponquestionsthatS
	enatorBlumenthalaskedaboutRoeandwhether 

	hewoulddefendRoeifitwerechallenged.Thisisalwaysbeenacriticallyimportantissue 
	formeand,Ibelieve,themajorityofAmericanwomen.AndIverymuchregretthatIdidn't 
	gettoaskfollow--follow-upquestions. 
	Mr.Barr'snominationcomesatatimewhenweareverydividedonmanyissuesranging fromimmigrationandcivilrightsenforcementtotheveryindependenceoftheJustice Departmentandthewitnessestodayaregoingtospeaktothosekeyissues.Forexample, ProfessorKinkopffromGeorgiaUniversityservedintheJusticeDepartment'sOﬃceof LegalCounselandhecanspeaktodayaboutissueshe'sfocusedon,primarilypresidential authority,asIunderstandit,andseparationofpowers. 
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	S
	haronRisherisanordainedpastorwholosthermotherandcousinstogunviolenceinthe horriﬁchatecrimethattookplaceatEmmanuelAMEChurchinCharleston,S
	outh 
	Carolina,andcanspeaktotheimportanceofenforcingcommonsensegunlaws.Wewill 
	alsohearfromtwoprominentleadersofthecivilrightscommunitywhocanspeaktothe 
	impactoftheJusticeDepartment'spoliciesunderPresidentTrump.Mr.MarcMorial,where 
	youMarc?Whosesisterhasbeenacolleagueofoursandit'sgreattoseeyou,thepresident 
	andchiefexecutiveoﬃceroftheNationalUrbanLeaguenow.AndMr.DerrickJohnson,the 
	presidentoftheNAACP.S
	oIwelcome,onbehalfoftheside,Iwelcomeeveryonehere. Thankyou,Mr.Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,S
	Thankyou,S
	enatorFeinstein.Ifit'sokay,leadusoﬀ,Mukasey.Oh,sorry.I'vegottoswear 

	youinﬁrst.Couldyoupleasestand,allofyou?Raiseyourrighthand.Doyousolemnly 
	aﬃrmthatthetestimonyyou'reabouttogivethiscommitteeisthetruth,thewholetruth, 
	andnothingbutthetruth,sohelpyouGod? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Ido. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou. 
	Allright.GeneralMukasey. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Goodmorning.Mr.Chairman,RankingMemberFeinstein,membersofthecommittee,itis atremendoushonor,aswellasagreatpleasure,tobeheretotestifyonbehalfofBillBarrto serveasattorneygeneral.Idon'tknowofanynomineewhohashadhisbackgroundandhis credentialsforthisjob.Obviouslythejobisalot--aboutalotmorethancredentials,buthe hasdoneliterallyeverythingthatyoucouldpossiblydo,includingservingasattorney 
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	general,topreparehim.NowobviouslytheDepartmentofJusticeisadiﬀerentplacetoday fromthetimethatheserved.It'sdiﬀerentfromthetimethatIserved.Buthe'sobviously well-equippedtodealwithwhateverproblemshefaces.HewaswiththeCIA.Heheaded theOﬃceofLegalCounsel,whichis,Ithink,theoﬃcethatattracts,alongwiththesolicitor general'soﬃce,thebestlegalmindsinthedepartment.Heheadedthatoﬃce.Hewas deputyattorneygeneral,soheknowshowthedepartmentruns.Andofcoursehewas attorneyge 
	neral.It'simpossibletoimproveonthat,notonlywhathedid,butthewayhedidit.When hewasactingattorneygeneralhesuperviseda--theliberationofhostagesatafederalprison inawaythatpreventedanycasualties.Andthenfollowthatupbynottakinganypublic creditforit.That'sthekindofpersonheis,andthat'sthekindofjudgmenthehas. 
	AndasfaraspressurefromtheWhiteHouse,Imean,hewasaskedatonepointwhetherhe couldcomeupwithatheorytojustifythelineitemveto,andhedidalotofresearchand foundthatwhiletherewasnoprecedentinourlaw,therewassomethingthatmightbe calledcommonlawgoingbacktoaboutthe15thcentury.HesaidtherewasaS
	cottishking whohaddonesomethingthatlookedlikealineitemveto,butofcoursethatS
	cottishking, asitturnedout,wassuﬀeringfromsyphilisandwasquiteoutofhismind.Andsohewould havetocallthatthesyphiliticprerogativeifyoudidit,Mr.President,andsothepresident decidednottoassertthepower.That'sthekindofjudgmenthehas.That'sthekindof human-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Youlearnalotonthiscommittee.(INAUDIBLE) 
	MUKASEY: 
	Yeah,it's--itwasarevelationtome,too.It'saterriﬁcstory,butitillustrateswhathe'slike. Hedoesn't--he'snotintimidatedbyquestionsorbythesourceofthem.WhenI--acoupleof monthsago,whenI--whenGeneralS
	essionswasleaving,Ithoughttowriteanarticle pointingoutallthegoodthingsthathehaddone,andIcalledupBillBarrtoaskwhetherhe 
	5
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	wouldjoininthatarticle.Hedidn'thesitateforananosecond.Hesaidhewould.Hesaidit wastherightthingtodo,itwasthecorrectthingtodo,andhewasgladhehaddoneit.And that,Ithink,tellsyouin--in--insubstancewhatitisthispersonisabout.He'sanhonorable, decent,smartman,andIthinkhewouldmakeasuperbattorneygeneralThankyouvery much. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Goodmorning,ChairmanGrahamand(OFF-MIC).Isthatbetter?Great--gr--.Thankyou forallowingmetotestifyonthenominationofWilliamBarrtobeattorneygeneralofthe UnitedS
	tates.MynameisDerrickJohnsonandsinceOctoberof2--2017Ihavehadthe honorofservingasthepresident,CEOoftheNAACP. 
	Foundedin1909theNAACPisournation'soldest,largestandmostwidelyrecognizedcivil rightsorganization.TheNAACPopposesMr.Barr'snominationandIurgeeverymemberof thiscommitteetovoteagainsthisconﬁrmation. 
	TheS
	TheS
	enateconsidersthisnominationinextraordinarytimes.UndertheTrump 

	administration,wehaveexperiencedtheworsterosionincivilrightsinmodernhistory.We 
	administration,wehaveexperiencedtheworsterosionincivilrightsinmodernhistory.We 

	haveseenreversalsandrollbacksoflong-standingpoliciesand--andpositionsthathave 
	enjoyedbipartisansupportfromtheircreation.Wehaveseenanunderminingofboth 
	substantiveprotectionsandthetoolsnecessaryforcivilrightsenforcementssuchasthe 
	desp--desperateimpact--thedesperateimpactmethodforprovingdiscriminationandthe 
	useofconsentdecreestoaddressabusebypoliceagencies. 
	ThenextattorneygeneralofourUnitedS
	ThenextattorneygeneralofourUnitedS
	tateshastheopportunitytoreversecourseand 

	placetheJusticeDepartmentbackonthetracktofulﬁllthishistoricroleofsafeguard-
	-

	safeguardingourcivilandconstitutionalrights.TheS
	enatemustseizethissecondchance 
	forjusticeandinsistuponattorneygeneral--anattorneygeneralcapableofindependence 
	andwillingtoenforceournation'scivilrightslawswithvigorandresolve. 
	Afterathoroughin--evaluationandreviewoftherecordWilliamBarrisnotthatcandidate. Mr.Barr'srecorddemonstratesalackofstrongcommitmenttoprotectingtheciviland 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5

	humanrightsofallAmericans.ThecommunitiesservedandrepresentedbytheNAACP willhaveadiﬃculttimeplacingourtrustintheJusticeDepartmentandbyextension,the Americancriminaljusticesystemoverallevenwiththeimprovementsjustsignedintolaw withtheFirstS
	tepAct. 
	TheJusticeDepartment'senforcementofourvotingrightslawsisaparamount--of paramountimportancebutthecurrentdepartmenthasjettisonedprotectionsfortheright tovote.Ithasreversedpositionsinlawsuitstosupportvotersuppressionmeasuresandto purgevotersfromtherolls. 
	BecauseS ection5 oftheVoting
	helbyCountyversusHoldereliminatedsafeguardsunderS RightsActlitigationunderS
	ection2 oftheActisallveryimportant.ButtheJustice DepartmenthasﬁlednoS
	ection2 claimssincethisadministrationhasbeeninplace. 
	Asthenationexperiencedrapidvotersuppressionsthroughoutthe2018midtermelections theJusticeDepartmentstoodsilentlyascommunitiesofcolorsacrossthenationswere deniedaccesstothepolls.AtatimewhentheJusticeDepartmenthasabandonedvoting rightprotections,theneedforfederalenforcementhasneverbeengreater.TheU.S
	. 
	CommissiononCivilRightsrecentlysupportedthatvotersuppressionisataall-timehigh 
	andunanimouslycalledonthedepartmenttopursuemorevotingrightsenforcementin 
	ordertoaddressaggressiveeﬀortsbystateandlocaloﬃcialstosuppressthevote. 
	Mr.Barr'srecordoncriminaljusticeisabysmal.Asattorneygeneral,hechampionedmass incarcerationanddeprivedcountlesspersonsofcoloroftheirlibertyanddramatically limitedtheirfuturepotential.HisJusticeDepartmenttenurewasmarkedbyextraordinary aggressivepoliciesthatharmpeopleofcolor. 
	literallywroteabookonthecaseformoreincarcerationwhichstandsincontradict--in contradictionoftheFirstChanceAct.ButWilliamBarrdidnotanddoesnotrecognize raciallydiscriminatoryimpactofourcriminaljusticesystempolicies. 
	Hewasageneralinthewaronthecrimeondrugsthatrooted--thatwasrootedinracism.He 
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	In1992,hesaidIthinkoursystemisfairanddoesnottreatpeoplediﬀerently.Andjust yesterdayhetoldS
	enatorBookeroverallandIquotethesystemtreatsblackandwhites 
	fairly.That--thisstatementissinglydisqualifying.Weneedanattorneygeneralwho 
	understandsboththehistoryandpersistenceofracisminourcriminaljusticesystem. 
	The--the--thegovernment-sponsoredinhumanityisinconsistentasitrelatestothis administration'senforcementofimmigrationrights.TheNAACPweﬁledalawsuitasit relatestoDACA.Weneedanattorneygeneralwhorespecttherightsofindividuals. 
	Finally,andI'mtryingtorushthroughthisquicklynow.Mr.Barrrecentactionmakehis impartialityontheongoinginvestigationintoRussiainterferenceinthe2006election suspectandfortheNAACPweareveryclear. 
	Mattersofinternationalquestionsisnotunderourpurviewbutanytimeaforeignnation usedtheworstcommondenominationinthisnation'shistoryofracismtosuppressAfricanAmericanvotesto--andinaneﬀorttosubvertdemocracyitisaquestionofnationalsec-securityandweneedanindividualwhohastheindependencetostandupandbefairand makesureweprotectthedemocracy.Thankyou,membersofthecommittee. 
	-
	-

	THOMPSON: 
	Goodmorning,ChairmanGraham,RankingMemberFeinstein,membersofthe committee.ItismygreathonortoappearbeforeyouthismorninginsupportofBillBarr's nominationtoserveourcountryonceagainasattorneygeneraloftheUnitedS
	tates. 
	IhaveknownBillsince1992.IcanattesttothefactthatBillhasadeep,deeprespectfor andﬁdelitytotheDepartmentofJustice.Billwillgowherethelawleadshim.Infact,as attorneygeneral,hedidnothesitatewhenrequiredbylawtoappointorseektoappoint variousspecialorindependentcounselinhighproﬁlematters.Heservedwithgreat distinctionasattorneygeneralandishighlyrespectedandadmiredonabipartisanbasisby thecareerprosecutorsandinvestigatorsheoversawinthedepartment. 
	Importantly,Billknowshowtodevelopmuchneededpartnershipswithstateandlocallaw enforcement.Hewasverysuccessfulatthisduringhistenureatattorneygeneraland 
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	createdstrongandeﬀectivejointtaskforcesacrossthecountrytocombatwhitecollarand violentcrime. 
	Billbelievesthateverycitizen,nomatterwhereheorshelives,deservesthefullprotection ofthelaw.Billalsounderstandsthatfederallawenforcementcannotdothejobalone. 
	In1992,BillvisitedmyhometownofAtlanta,Georgiaandspokewithmembersofthe S
	outhernChristianLeadershipConference.Hesaidthat,whencleaningupcrimeinfested 
	neighborhoods,andIquote,"ItcannotbeaWashingtonbureaucraticproject.Itmustbea 
	projectwherethesolutionsarefoundinthecommunityitself."Heacknowledgedtothe 
	ReverendJosephLowerythatinthepastdecadesthefederalgovernment'santicrimeeﬀorts 
	havereliedtooheavilyonprisonconstructionandnotenoughoncrimeprevention. 
	Now,asaformergeneralcounselofalargepubliccompanymyself,Ialsoappreciateand admireBill'sapproachtohisworkintheprivatesector.Billwasverysupportiveofthe lawyerswhoworkedwithhim.Hewascollaborativewithhiscolleagues.Hewelcomed input,dialogue,anddiscussions.Hecreatedopportunitiesforeveryoneheoversawto developandgrowintheircareers,includingmanyfemalelawyersandlawyersofcolor. 
	Hewasalsosupportiveofdiversityinthelegalprofession.In2002,thecompanyBillserved asgeneralcounselreceivedtheNorth--Northeastregionemployerofchoiceawardfromthe MinorityCorporateCounselAssociationforsuccessfullycreatingamoreinclusivework environment. 
	Finally,membersofthecommittee,IthinkthemostimportantpointIcansharewithyouis thatBillBarrisapersonofveryhighintegrity.HeledtheDepartmentofJusticeasattorney generalwithanunbendingrespectfortheruleoflaw.Asgeneralcounselofalargepublic company,heemphasizedtheimportanceofcomplyingwithalllaws,rules,andregulations, andhestoodupforhiscorporateclientaworld-classcomplianceprogram. 
	BillBarr'sintegrityisrocksolid.Hewillnot,andIrepeat,willnotsimplygoalongtoget along.LastJanuaryheresignedfromhispositionasthedirectorofanimportantpublic companyboard.Billlethisconscienceandhisintegrityguidehisdecision. 
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	Asacitizen,IthankBillforhiswillingnesstoreturntopublicservice.Heisneeded,andI lookforwardtohistenureagaininservicetoourgreatcountryasattorneygeneral.Thank you. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,Mr.Thompson.Mr.Morial? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Thankyou.ChairmanGraham,S
	enatorFeinsteinandmembersofthiscommittee,Iwantto thankyoufortheopportunitytotestifyonthenominationofWilliamBarrtobeattorney generaloftheUnitedS
	tates.I'mMarcMorialandhavethepleasureofservingaspresident andCEOoftheNationalUrbanLeague.Beforedoingso,Iservedeightyearsasthemayor ofmybelovedhometown,NewOrleans,presidentofthenational--theUnitedS
	tates ConferenceofMayors,aLouisianastatesenator,acollegeprofessorandapracticinglawyer involvedinoneofthemostimportantcivilrightsandvotingrightscasestocomebeforethe S
	upremeCourtinthe1990s. 
	TheNationalUrbanLeaguewasfoundedin1910.It'sahistoriccivilrightsandurban advocacyorganizationwithanetworkof90community-basedaﬃliates,andwehave aﬃliatesineverytownrepresentedbythemembersofthiscommittee.Wehavehard-workedhardandfoughtforcivilrights,justiceandequalopportunity,alongwithfairness, forourentireexistence.Myillustriouspredecessor,thelateWhitneyYoung,wasoneofthe bigsixofcivilrightsleaderswhoworkedforthe1964CivilRightsAct,the1965Voting RightsActandthe1968FairHousingAct.Oneofourprimemissionsistoensuretha
	-

	Mr.Chairman,onbehalfofourentireUrbanLeaguemovementacrossthecountry,Iurge thiscommitteeandtheentireS
	enate,basedonacarefulexaminationofthisnominee's record,tosoundlyrejectthenominationofWilliamBarrasthenextattorneygeneralofthe UnitedS
	tates.Letmetellyouwhy.ForthepasttwoyearstheJusticeDepartmenthasbeen 
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	ledbyanattorneygeneralintentonrestrictingcivilandhumanrightsateveryturn.This nationneedsanattorneygeneralwhowilldramaticallychangecourseandenforcecivil rightslawswithvigorandindependence.Basedonhisalarmingrecord,weareconvinced thatWilliamBarrwillnotdoso.Indeed,inarecentop-edMr.BarrcalledJeﬀS
	essions,the architectoftheserestrictivecivilandhumanrightspolicies,anoutstandingattorney general,andoﬀeredpraiseforhisanti-civilrightspolicies.It'sclear,basedontherecord, thatMr.BarrintendstofollowMr.S
	essionsdownthesameregressive,anti-civilrights roadmap. 
	TheconﬁrmationofWilliamBarrwhoespousesformerAttorneyGeneralS
	essions'policies, wouldenormouslyexacerbateournation'scurrentcivilrightscrisis.Whenwesubmitted commentstotheUnitedS
	tatesCommissiononCivilRights,raisingconcernsrelativeto S
	essions'actionsonvariouscivilrightsissues,theywereasfollows;overturningamemo fromformerAttorneyGeneralEricHolder,aimedatreducingmassincarcerationby avoidingmandatorysentencing,disproportionatelysubjectingAfrican-Americansandother minoritiestolong-termincarceration,abandoningtheJusticeDepartment'sS
	martonCrime Initiative,endingthecommunity-orientedpolicingservicescollaborativereformproject,a JusticeDepartmentprogramthathelpedbuildtrustbetweenpoliceoﬃcersandthe communitiesthatserve,announcingtheJusticeDepartment'sS afetyPlanthat
	choolS militarizingschools,oﬀeringasweepingreviewofconsentdecreeswithlawenforcement agenciesrelatedtopoliceconduct,nothingbutasubterfugetoundermineacrucialtoolin theJusticeDepartment'seﬀortstoensureconstitutionalandaccountablepolicing.Mr.Barr hasatroublingrecordthattellsusthattherewillbenoredressofS
	essions'blunders. 
	Lastyear,afterarduousworkdonebymanymembersofthiscommittee,wepassedtheFirst S
	tepandtheJuvenileJusticeReformActof2018,andIwanttothankthecommitteeforits supportofthat.Mr.Barr'srecordoncriminaljusticeplacestheseachievementsatserious riskandgivesusnoconﬁdencethatthesehard(INAUDIBLE) reformsaregoingtobe carefullyexecuted.Why?Asattorneygeneral,Barrpushedthroughharshcriminaljustice policies,orratherhepursuedthem,thatescalatedmassincarcerationandthe(INAUDIBLE) 
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	warondrugs.His1992book,TheCaseforMoreIncarceration,arguedthatthecountrywas incarceratingtoofewindividuals. 
	BarrledaneﬀortinVirginiatoabolishparole,buildmoreprisonsandincreaseprison sentencesbyasmuchas700percent.Yesterday,Mr.Barrtestiﬁedtothiscommitteeofhis intenttoimplementtheFirstS
	tepAct.Ifthatisthecase,thiscommitteeshouldaskhimfor acommitmenttorescindtheguidancethatMr.S
	essionsissuedonMay10,2017, instructingallUnitedS
	tatesattorneystoseekthemaximumpenaltyinfederalcriminal prosecutions.Theattorneygeneralhasadutytovigorouslyenforceournation'smost criticallaws,toprotecttherightsandlibertiesofallAmericans,toserveasanessential independentcheckontheexcessesofanadministration.Andwefeeltheevidenceisclear thatMr.Barrisill-suitedtoserveaschiefenforcerofourcivilrightslaws.Andthereforewe urgethiscommittee,asapartofitsdeliberations,itsdutyanditsresponsibility,torejectMr. Barr'snominationasournextattorneygeneral.AndIwanttothankyoufory
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou,sir. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Mr.Cary.Ms.Cary. 
	CARY: 
	Mr.Chairman,excuseme,ChairmanGraham,S
	enatorFeinstein,andmembersof committee,thankyoufortheinvitationtotestifytodayandI'mheretogivemyenthusiastic supportforthenominationofWilliamP.Barrasournextattorneygeneral.Mynameis MaryKateCaryandIwasaWhiteHousespeechwriterforPresidentGeorgeHWBushfrom 1989to1992. 
	InJanuary1992,ImovedtotheJusticeDepartmentfromtheWhiteHousefortheﬁnalyear oftheBush41administrationtoserveasdeputydirectorofpolicyandcommunications, 
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	overseeingthespeechwritersandthepolicyshopandservingasoneoftwospokesmenfor thethennewAttorneyGeneral,BillBarr.WhenIﬁrststartedworkingforgeneralbar,Iwas 28yearsold.Igottoknowhimverywell,asspeechwritersdo,andquicklylearnsthewayhe thinks. 
	IfoundthatBillBarrhasabrilliantlegalmind.HeknowsMandarin,Chinese,andheplays thebagpipes.He'sgotagreatsenseofhumorandaneasylaugh.Heisakindanddecent man,adedicatedpublicservant,andoneofthebestbossesI'veeverhad.Heisalwaysa gentleman. 
	BillandIﬂewthousandsofmilesthatyearandafour-seaterpropplanetotownsandcities alloverAmericawherehemetwithlocallawenforcementleaders,small-townmayors,city councilmembers,thevictims'rightsadvocates,criminaljusticereformleaders,residentsof publichousing,prisonwardens,federalprosecutors,religiousleaders,really,allkindsof peoplefromeverywalkoflife. 
	WewereoftentravelinginsupportofBill'svisionaryinitiative,OperationWeedandS
	WewereoftentravelinginsupportofBill'svisionaryinitiative,OperationWeedandS
	eed, 

	whichsoughttoremoveviolentcriminalsanddruggangsfromunderservedneighborhoods 
	andthenallowgrassrootsorganizationsandprogramstoﬂourish,bringinghopeofabetter 
	lifetoresidentsthrougheducation,opportunity,andstrongercivilrights.Aswemetwith 
	peopleincommunitiesalloverAmerica,IsawthatBillwasagoodlistener.Hewas 
	masterfulatdrawingoutpeople'sconcernsandhehadaknackforﬁndingthebestsolutions 
	ontheground,ﬁguringoutwhatworkedintheneighborhood,andthenputtingtheright 
	policiesinplace.Hemadesurepoliticsneverenteredintoit. 
	BillBarrtreatedeveryonewiththesamerespect,whethertheywereanupandcomingchief ofpolice,areceptionistoftheattheDepartmentofJustice,oran80-year-oldresidentof publichousing.IbelievethisiswhyBillBarrcontinuestobeheldinhighesteembythe career,staﬀ,andthecivilservantsattheDepartmentofJusticeandwhyhewassucha successfulattorneygeneral.Ialsobelievethat,inadditiontobeinggoodpolicy,BillBarr's leadershipstyleiswhyOperationWeedandS
	eedcontinuedonformanyyearsafterheleft oﬃce. 
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	Everywherewewentthatyear,wewereaccompaniedbyrankandﬁleFBIagentsandhewas admiredbyeveryoneofthemthatImet.MorethanonceIcanrememberbeinginvery dangeroussituationswheretheagentswereconcernedforhisphysicalsecurity.Everytime, hewasmoreconcernedaboutmysecurity.ThefactthattheattorneygeneraloftheUnited S
	tateswasmoreconcernedaboutthesafetyofa28-year-oldstaﬀerthanhisownsafetytells youvolumesabouthim. 
	Despitehistop-notcheducationandhisstunningintellect,BillBarrisnotanivorytower kindofguy.Hewentoutofhiswaytobuildfriendshipsatthedepartmentandacrossthe UnitedS
	tates,checkinginwhensomeonewassick,helpingpeoplegetjobs,juststayingin touch.HeandhiswifeChristinecametomyweddingandwehavestayedfriendsforthe27 yearssincewehaveworkedtogether. 
	LikePresidentBush41did,BillBarrhasadevotedandwidecollectionoffriends,eachof whomthinkofhimasareallygoodfriend.Irememberwhenhewasattorneygeneralatthe ageof42 andhisthreedaughterswereyounggirls.Despitethelonghourshekept,the tremendousamountoftravel,andthetimespentawayfromhisfamily,hisdaughters admiredhisdevotiontothelawsomuchthateachofthemlaterwenttolawschoolinorder tofollowinhisfootsteps.Asamothermyself,thattootellsmevolumesaboutthewayhe haslivedhislifeintheexamplehehasgiventoyoungpeople,especiallywomen. 
	Itisnosurprisetomethathe'soneofthefewpeopleinAmericanhistorytobeaskedtobe attorneygeneraloftheUnitedS
	tatestwice.It'sanhonorformetohighlyrecommend WilliamP.Barrtoyouforconﬁrmation.Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou.Prof.Kinkopf. 
	KINKOPF: 
	Mythankstothecommitteeforthehonorandprivilegetoappearheretodayandtestifyon thenominationofWilliamBarrtobeattorneygeneral.Inhistestimonyyesterday,William 
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	Barrminimizedhis2018memorandumonobstructionofjustice.Hecharacterizeditasa narrowanalysisofaparticularinterpretationofaspeciﬁcstatute. 
	That'strueinasense,buttoanswerthatverynarrowquestion,heelaborateda declaredwithoutlimitorqualiﬁcation,andIquote,"Constitutionally,itiswrongto conceiveofthepresidentasissimplythehighestoﬃcerintheExecutiveBranch.Healoneis theExecutiveBranch.Assuch,heisthesolerepositoryofallexecutivepowersconferredby theConstitution.Thus,thefullmeasureoflawenforcementauthorityisplacedinthe president'shandandnolimitisplacedonthekindsofcasessubjecttohiscontrol." 
	comprehensiveandfullytheorizedvisionofthepresident'sconstitutionalpower.He 

	ThatmanifestoofanimperialexecutivehasalarmingimplicationsfortheMueller investigationandforthewholeoftheExecutiveBranch.First,Iwishtohighlighttwo implicationsfortheMuellerinvestigation.WilliamBarrgavereassuranceslateyesterday regardingwhathewouldorwouldnotdo.Theseassurancesarebesidethepoint.Because onBarr'stheory,thepowerrestswiththepresident.Therefore,thepresidentdoesnothave toaskbartodoanything.In--inhisview,theattorneygeneralandthespecialcounselare "Merelythepresident'shand."Again,aquote. 
	ThepresidentneedsonlyasktheattorneygeneralcanIterminatethespecialcounsel's investigationandBarr'sanswertothatquestionwillbeyes.Thisisnotspeculationor inferencedrawnfromtheBarrmemo.TheBarrmemotakesthisonverydirectly.Again, quotingthememo,"S .
	ayanincumbentU.Sattorneylaunchesaninvestigationofan incomingpresident.Thenewpresidentknowsitisbogus,isbeingconductedbypolitical opponents,andisdamaginghisabilitytoestablishhisnewadministrationandtoaddress urgentmattersonbehalfofthenation.Itwouldbeneithercorruptnoracrimeforthenew presidenttoterminatethematter." 
	Well,PresidentTrumphastoldusthatthatisexactlyhowheregardstheMueller investigation.Next,therewasagreatdealofdiscussionaroundthereleaseofMueller's report.First,itisclearthatBarrdoesnotmean--thatBarrtakestheDOJregulationstomean thatheshouldreleasenottheMuellerreport,butratherhisownreport.S
	econd,hereads 
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	DOJregulationsandpolicyandpracticetoforbidanydiscussionofdecisionsdecliningto indict,declinationdecisions. 
	IncombinationwiththeDOJviewthatasittingpresidentmaynotbeindicted,thissuggests thatBarrwilltakethepositionthatanydiscussionorreleaseoftheMuellerreportrelatingto thepresident,whoagaincannotbeindicted,wouldbeimproperandprohibitedbyDOJ policyandregulations. 
	IwishtoclosebynotingoneconsequenceoftheBarrmemo'stheoryofexecutivepowerthat extendsoutsidetheMuellerprobe.Thememoassertsthatthepresidenthas,andI'm quotingagain,"Illimitablediscretiontoremoveprincipaloﬃcerscarryingouthisexecutive functions." Thiswouldmean,forexample,thatthepresidentmayorderthechairmanofthe FederalReservenottoraiseinterestratesandtoﬁrethechairmanoftheFederalReserveif thechairmanrefusestofollowthatorder.TheindependenceoftheFederalReserve,the S
	EC,theFEC,theFTC,theFCC,thedozensofadministrative,ofindependent administrativeagenciesareunconstitutionalunderBarr'stheoryofexecutivepower. 
	This,inspiteofthefactthatforover30yearstheS
	upremeCourthasconsistentlyupheld theconstitutionalvalidityoftheindependenceofthoseentities.Mr.Barr'stheoryof presidentialpowerisfundamentallyinconsistentwithourConstitutionanddeeply dangerousforournation. 
	CORNYN: 
	ProfessorTurley. 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Thankyou,S
	enatorCornyn.AlsoallowmetothankChairmanGraham,RankingMember Feinstein,allofthemembersofthecommitteeforthehonorofspeakingtoyoutoday. 
	I'veknownGeneralBarrformanyyearsinmycapacityasbothanacademicandalitigator.I actuallyrepresentedhimwithotherformerattorneysgeneralduringthelitigationleading 
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	uptotheClintonimpeachment.Icanthinkofnobetterpersontoserveat--inthisposition andleadtheJusticeDepartmentatthiscriticaltime. 
	IcometothisassomeonethatholdsdiﬀerentviewsoftheConstitutionfromGeneralBarr.I amunabashedlyaMadisonianscholarandIadmitIhavealwaysadmittedintestimonythat IfavortheLegislativeBranchinﬁghtswiththeExecutiveBranch.Ialsohavebeenacrit-criticoftheexpansionofexecutivepower. 
	-

	MydefaultisinArticle1.GeneralBarr'sdefaultisArticle2.Hetendstotakearobustview ofexecutiveauthority.Despiteourdiﬀerentdefaultshowever,I'vealwaysadmiredhim.I havealwaysfoundhimtobeoneofthemostknowledgeableandcircumspectleadersinthe UnitedS
	tateswhenitcomestoconstitutionalhistoryandtheory. 
	NowIhavealreadysubmittedwrittentestimonyaddressingthe1989and2018memos.I respectfullydisagreewithmyfriendNeileventhoughIfoundmanyofthethingshesaid verycompelling.WedisagreeonbothwhatGeneralBarrhassaidandalsotheimplicationof hisviews.Butultimatelythiscommitteehasadiﬃculttaskregardlessoftheresumeofa nominee. 
	Youmusttrytodeterminewhatistheperson'scoreidentityandvalues.Forme,that questionhasalwayscomedowntoarathercuriousandlittle-knownfactaboutthesealof theattorneygeneralthatsitsunderneaththeattorneygeneralwheneverhespeaks.Ithas thefamiliarimageofarisingeaglewiththeolivebranchandthe13 arrowsandtalonsbut underitisactuallyaLatinlegendthatwecontinuetoﬁghtabouthowthatlegendwasputon theseal. 
	Whatweknowisthatitappearstobederivedfromhowtheattorneygeneralwasintroduced totheQueen.TheBritishattorneygeneralwasintroducedasonewhoprosecutesforour LadytheQueen.Thatphrasewasclearlyadoptedbysomeone.There'sahugedebateabout whoorwhenorevenwhybuttheymadeonechange. 
	ItwouldnotdotousethatlanguagesotheychangedthelastwordstoDominaJustitia,our LadyJustice.Itwouldn'tdofortheattorneygeneraltolitigateorappearonbehalfofany 
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	leader.TheattorneygeneralappearsonbehalfoftheConstitution,notthepresident. 
	IknowthatBillBarrunderstandsthatdistinction.Hehassaidsoyesterday.Hehas maintainedthatpositionthroughhiswholecareer.Hehasarecordofspeciﬁcleadership, notjustattheDepartmentofJusticebutinthisveryposition.He'sonlythesecondperson evertobenominatedtoﬁt--ﬁllthatpositiontwice.Therearefewnomineesinhistoryas GeneralMukaseysaidwhohastheresumethatBillBarrhas. 
	Iwon'tgointodepthaboutthediscussionofthememothatNeilwastalkingaboutother thantosaythis,I--Idogointoitinmywrittentestimony.As--asDeputyAttorneyGeneral RonRosensteinsaiditisnotuncommonforformerjusticeoﬃcialstosharetheirviews aboutissuesthattheybelieveconcernthedepartment. 
	IndeedGeneralBarrwrotetootherjusticeoﬃcialsabouttheprosecutionofS
	enator Menendez.HehadnoconnectionwithS
	enatorMenendez,nointerestinthatcase.His interestwasthetheoryofprosecutionbeingusedagainstS
	enatorMenendez,thathewas concernedswepttoobroadlyunderthecriminalcode. 
	Theeight--the2018memoisvintageBillBarr.Itisdetailed,itisdispassionate.It'sthework ofalawnerdandthat'swhatheis.He'salawnerd,IshouldknowbecauseI'malawnerd andIteachwith80otherlawnerds. 
	Whenpeoplearesuspiciouswhywouldanyonewriteamemothislongspontaneouslyand sendittoanyonethat'sbecauseyoudon'tknowlawnerds.Okay?Wewritethesememosso thatwedon'tfollowstrangersonthestreettryingtotalkabouttheunitaryexecutivetheory. IndeedIthinkthebestthingwecoulddoforChristineandthefamilyistore-incarcerateBill ontheﬁfthﬂoorofMainJusticewherehecantalkaboutthisalldaylong. 
	Nowthedisputeaboutthatobstructionprovisionisarealone.I'malittletakenabackbythe criticism.Fromacivillibertiesstandpoint,Ihavebeencriticaloftheexpansionof--ofthe obstructiontheory.Itsweepstoobroadlyformeandasacriminaldefenseattorney,I've beencriticalofitforaverylongtime. 
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	Theissuethathewasraisingisarealone.HeraisesitfromtheArticle2 standpoint,someof ushaveraiseditfromthecivillibertiesstandpoint.Whathereallyisarguingisnotthatthe presidentcan'tbeprosecuted.Hesaysexactlytheopposite.Hesaysthepresidentcanbe chargedwithfederalcrimesinoﬃce.Hebelievesthepresidentcanbechargedwith obstructioninoﬃce.S
	ohesaysthediametricallyopposedthingtowhatmanypeopleare sayingabouthim. 
	WhathebelievesisjustasConfuciussaidthat,"the--thestartofwisdomistocallthingsby theirpropernames."Hewantstocallthisbyitspropername.Ifthepresidentcommitsa crime,hewantsthatcrimetobedeﬁned.Hedoesnotsaybythewaythatthatsameconduct cannotbeanothertypeofcrime.HewasonlytalkingabouttheResidualClauseof12-1512.Thosewerefairquestionsaboutstatutoryinterpretation. 
	-

	Idon'tagreewitheverythinginhismemo,I'vesaidthatpublicly.Idisagreeinsomeofhis conclusionsbutIwholeheartedlyagreewithhimthatthisisaseriousproblemandithasto bedeﬁned. 
	Nowultimately,Ibelieveifyoureadhistestimonyyouwillﬁndthatheismoremeasured thansomeofmyfriendshavesuggested.EvenClinton'sownformerappointeeslikeJames Clappersaidthatyesterdayhewentasfarashecouldgoasattorneygeneralgiving assurances.ButthisishistoricmomentfortheJusticeDepartment.Ihopeitdoesn'tpass. 
	Theyneedthismanandtheyneeditnow.IbroughtmychildrentodayAidanand Maddie(S
	P)becauseIthinkthattheyreallyshouldbehere.Isuspecttheyareherebecause theyheardthatS
	enatorFeinsteinwasgivingoutjunkfoodtokids.ButIhopethattheywill 
	alsounderstandthehistoricmomentforwhatitisandIthankyouforthehonorofbeing 
	partofthis. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou.Rev.Risher. 
	RISHER: 
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	Goodmorning,ChairmanGraham,RankingMemberFeinsteinandmembersoftheS
	enate JudiciaryCommittee.Itismyhonortoappearbeforeyoutodaytotestifyonthenomination ofWilliamBarrtobeattorneygeneraloftheUnitedS haronRisher,
	tates.MynameisRev.S andIliveinCharlotte,NorthCarolina. 
	Mylife,likesomanyotherpeople'sthroughoutthisnation,hasbeenforeverchangedbygun violence,gunviolencethatispreventablewitheﬀectiveenforcementandcommonsense safetylaws.OnWednesday,June17,2015isthedaythatmylifechanged.Asahospital traumachaplainIhaveworkedandexperiencedgrief,andtragedy,andpainandlossasI workedwithpatientsandfamiliestocomfortthem.ButthatnightIwastheoneinneedof comfortingwhenIreceivedatelephonecallthatnoAmericandeservestoget.Mybeloved motherandtwoofmycousinshadbeenshotandkilledinthechurchalongwiths
	outh Carolina. 
	IntheCharlestoncommunitywhichIwasraised,whenthedoorsofthechurchwasopen, myfamilywasinthepews.ThatWednesdaywasnodiﬀerent.Ayoungwhitemanentered thechurchatthebeginningoftheBiblestudy.Inthespiritofourfaith,hewaswelcomedin bythecongregationandsatnearthepastor.AfterstudyingtheGospelofMark,theyheld hands,andbowedtheirheads,andclosedtheireyesandheldhandsinprayer.Thatwasthe ﬁnalmomentformanyinthatchurch.Thatdaythatyoungmanpulledouthisgunand startedﬁring.S
	omeran,somehidundertables,buttheyweregunneddown. 
	Ahouseofworshipissupposedtobearefugefromthestormsofeverydaylife,butthat youngmanrobbedmyfamilyandeightotherfamiliesoftheirlovedones.Fivepeople survived.Fivepeoplehavetoliveeverydaywiththattragedyintheirhearts. 
	AfterthemassacreinCharlestonIstruggledtoanswerwhymylovedonesandsomany othershadbeenkilled.Iwasdisturbedtolearnthattheshootingwaspremeditatedand drivenbyhate.TheshootertargetedparishionersatEmanuelsimplybecauseofthecolorof theirskins.AlongwithsomanyAmericans,Iwasbaﬄedathowsuchahatefulmanwasable togethishandsonagun.Welaterdiscoveredthataloopholeinourgunlawsallowedthe 
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	shootertoobtainthegunusedtomurdermymotherandmycousinsandthesixothersin thatchurch.Thatloopholeallowedhatredtobearmedtokill.Thepersonthatkilledmy familymembersshouldhavenotbeenabletobuythatgun.TheNationalInstantCriminal BackgroundCheckS
	ystemwasdesignedtokeepgunsoutofthewronghands,including 
	criminals,domesticabusersandunlawfulusersofcontrolledsubstances.TheCharleston 
	shooterhadpreviouslybeenarrestedfordrugpossession,somethingthatshouldhave 
	blockedhimfromobtainingagununderourexisti 
	nglaws.Yethewasabletolegallypurchaseonebecauseofaloopholeinthefederallaw. 
	Yousee,iftheFBIdoesnotﬁnishabackgroundcheckwithinthreedays,thesalecan proceedregardlessofwhetherthecheckhadbeencompleted,andthat'sexactlyhowthe manwhokilledmyfamilyexploitedaloopholeandgothisgun.Andheisnottheonlyone. TheFBIreportedthatin2017alonegundealerssoldatleast4864gunstoprohibited peoplebeforethebackgroundcheckshadbeencompleted.Thosenearly5000saleswere primarilymadetofelons,domesticabusersor,likethemanwhokilledmyfamily,unlawful usersofcontrolledsubstances.Astrongbackgroundchecksystemisthefoundationfor
	EachdayIwakeupmotivatedtoensurethathatewillnotwin.Asamemberofthe EverytownS
	urvivorNetwork,Isharemystorytoputahumanfaceonournation'sgun 
	violencecrisis.Ourcommunityofsurvivoradvocatesforchangetohelpensurethatnoother 
	familyfacesthetypeoftragedywehaveexperienced. 
	Ifheisconﬁrmedasournation'snextattorneygeneral,Mr.Barrwillserveasournation's toplawenforcementoﬃcerinapositionofgreatpowerandinﬂuence.Ihopehewillmakeit aprioritytopreventgunviolenceandworkwithCongresstoupdateourlawsandclose loopholesthatenablegunstogetinthewronghand,justlikethatyoungman,ﬁlledwith hate,murderedmyfamily. 
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	NineliveswerecutshortinCharleston.TodayIsaythenamesofmymother, andmy cousins,andthesixotherpeopletohonortheminthismostsacredplace.Mymother,Mrs. EthelLance,mytwocousins,Mrs.S anders,mychildhood
	usieJacksonandTywandaS 
	friend,MyraThompson,thepastorofthechurch,Rev.ClementaPinckney,Rev.Daniel 
	S harondaColeman-S
	immons,Rev.S ingleton,Mrs.CynthiaHurd,Rev.Depayne 
	Middleton-Doctor.Ipraythatwheneveryouheartheirnamesyoufeelempoweredtohelp 
	bringaboutchange. 
	Thankyouforlistening,andIwillansweranyquestionsthatyouhave. 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Goodmorning,Mr.Chairman,RankingMemberFeinstein,anddistinguishedmembersof theoftheCommitteeontheJudiciary.Iamtheelectedspokespersonofmorethan345,000 rankandﬁlepoliceoﬃcers,thelargestlawenforcementorganizationintheUnitedS
	tates. 
	I'mverypleasedtohavetheopportunitytooﬀerthestrongandunequivocalsupportofthe 
	FOPforthenominationofWilliamP.BarrtobethenextattorneygeneraloftheUnited 
	S
	tates. 
	Inmypreviousappearancesbeforethiscommittee,I'vebeenproudtooﬀertheFOPsupport foranumberofnomineeswiththeexpectationthattheywouldbegoodleaders,thatthey wouldserveourcountryhonorablyandeﬀectively.Inthiscasehowever,thereisnoneedto speculatewhetherornotMr.Barrwouldmakeagoodattorneygeneralbecausehe'salready beenagoodAttorneyGeneralintheadministrationofPresidentGeorgeHWBush.Hehad theexperiencetheknowledgeandtheabilitytoleadthedepartmentthenandhecertainly doesnow. 
	Mr.Barr'scareerofpublicservicebeganasaclerkforajudgeontheU.SCourtofAppeals
	. 
	fortheDistrictofColumbiaandheservedashorttenureintheReaganWhiteHouse.He 
	fortheDistrictofColumbiaandheservedashorttenureintheReaganWhiteHouse.He 

	thenjoinedtheBushadministrationasassistantattorneygeneralfortheOﬃceofLegal 
	Counselin1989.PresidentBushtooknoteofhisleadership,integrity,andcommitmentto 
	lawenforcementandpromotedhimtodeputyAGin1990. 
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	In1991,hewasnamedactingattorneygeneralandwasimmediatelyfacedwithapublic safetycrisis.AttheTalladegaFederalPrison,morethan100Cubaninmatesawaiting transportationbacktotheircountrystagedariotandtook7correctionsoﬃcersand3 immigrationandnaturalizationemployees'hostage.Intheﬁrsthoursofthestandoﬀ, GeneralBarrorderedtheFBItoplanahostagerescueeﬀort.TheCubaninmatesdemanded thattheybeallowedtostayinthiscountryandreleasedoneofthehostages. 
	Overthecourseofthenine-daysiege,itwasclearthenthatnegotiationswere--werefailing. GeneralBarrorderedtheFBItobreachprisonandrescuethehostages.Theywerefreed withoutanylossoflifeandtheincidentwasendedbecauseofGeneralBarr'sdecisive action.Followingthesuccessfulresolutionofthisincident,PresidentBushnominatedhim tobeU.Sattorneygeneral.TheCommitteeontheJudiciaryreportedhisnomination
	. unanimouslyintheS
	enateconﬁrmedhimasthe77thattorneygeneral. 
	Throughhisserviceandhisaction,hedemonstratedhewastherightmanforthejob.The FO--FOPbelievesheistherightmanforthejobagaintoday.Twoyearsago,justafterhis inauguration,PresidentBushissuedthree,excuseme,PresidentTrumpissuedthree executiveordersonlawenforcementandpublicsafety.Theﬁrstdirectedtothefederal governmenttodevelopstrategiestoenhancetheprotectionandsafetyofouroﬃcersonthe beat. 
	Theotherscreatedthetaskforceoncrimereductionandpublicsafetyandforthe developmentoftheNationalS
	trategytocombattransnationalcriminalorganizations 
	traﬃckinginhumanbeings,weapons,andillicitdrugs.Mr.Chairman,duringhistenureas 
	attorneygeneral,Mr.BarrdirectedandoversawasimilartransformationattheJustice 
	Departmentbyre-focusingitsresources,bymakingcrimesofviolence,particularlygang-
	-

	gangviolence,atoppriorityforlawenforcement. 
	IsubmittothiscommitteethatMr.Barristheperfectpersontocompletetheworkbegunby GeneralS
	essions,withrespecttofocusingfederalresourcestoﬁghtviolentcrimebecause he'snotonlydoneitbefore,he'sdoneitastheattorneygeneral.PresidentTrumphas 
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	clearlymadelawenforcementandpublicsafetyatoppriority.HisnominationofWilliam Barrtobethenextattorneygeneraldemonstratesthattheseprioritieshavenotchanged. 
	WeknowMr.Barr'srecordandabilitiesaswellashispriorexperienceinthatoﬃce.The FOPshareshisviewsandweareconﬁdentthatMr.Barrwillonceagainbeastellartopcop. WebelievethepresidentmadeanoutstandingchoiceandforMr.Barrtoreturntopublic serviceastheattorneygeneraloftheUnitedS
	tateswillservethiscountrywell.TheFOP proudlyoﬀersarefullandvigoroussupportforthisnomineeandweurgethiscommitteeto favorably--favorablysupportthisnominationjustasyoudidin1991.Thankyouforthe opportunitytotestify.I'dbegladtoansweranyquestions. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyouallverymuch.IappreciateyourtestimonyandI'llgetitstartedherequickly. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Rev.Risher,thankyouforyourcominguphereandsharingyourloss,andyourstoryand yourhurt.S
	omecomfort,Ihope,isthatMr.Barrsaidifheistheattorneygeneralhewill pursueredﬂaglegislationthatI'mworkingonwithMr.Blumenthalandothers,thatwould allowlawenforcement,iftheyhaveappropriateinformation,togoanddenysomebodya gunwhoisshowingdangerousbehavior.Ithinkthat'sarealgapinourlaw.Mostofthese casespeoplearescreamingbeforetheyact,andwe'rejustnotlistening.Theguydownin would'vebeenniceifthepolicewould'vehadachancetogoinandstopitbeforeit happened. 
	Floridadideverythingbuttakeanadoutinthepaper,I'mgoingtokillsomebody.It 

	AstoDylannRoof,whoisfacingthedeathpenaltyinS
	outhCarolina,heappliedforagunin WestColumbia,S
	outhCarolina.Thesystemsaidhehadjustbeenarrested.Duringthe threedaysoflookingintothearrest--hehadnotbeenconvicted--theFBIagentcalledthe wrongsolicitor'soﬃce.There'stwocountiesinColumbia,andtheydidnotﬁndoutthefact thathehadadmittedtobeing--possessingandusingasubstancethatwouldhavekepthim 
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	fromowningagun.S
	oweneedtoreformthelaws,butthatwassortofamistakemorethan itwasaloophole. 
	Mr.Turley,thankyouverymuchforwhatyouhadtosay.Thespecialcounselregulationis 28CFR600.8.Itsaysatthecollusionofthe--conclusionofthespecialcounsel'sworkhere sheshallprovidetheattorneygeneralwithaconﬁdentialreportexplainingtheprosecution ordeclinationdecisionsreachedbythespecialcounsel.S
	oyouthinkBarrwilltakethis reportseriouslyifgiventohim? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Absolutely. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay.Italsosaystheattorneygeneralwillhavenotiﬁedtherankingmemberandchairman oftheJudiciaryCommitteeinbothbodies.Doyouthinkhe'lldothat? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Absolutely. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay.Italsosaystoextent--totheextentconsistentwithapplicablelaw,adescriptionand anexplanationofinstances,ifany,inwhichtheattorneygeneralconcludedthataproposed actionbythespecialcounselwassoinappropriateorunwarrantedunderestablished departmentalpracticesthatitshouldnotbepursued.S
	ounderthisregulationifMr.Mueller 
	recommendsacourseofactionandMr.BarrsaysIdon'tthinkweshoulddothat,hehasto 
	tellusaboutthatevent.Doyouagreethat'swhattheregulationrequires? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Absolutely. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	Doyoubelievehewilldothat? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Absolutely. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay.Italsosaystheattorneygeneralmaydeterminethatpublicreleaseofthesereports wouldbeinthepublicinteresttotheextentthatthereleasewouldcomplywithapplicable legalrestrictions.Doyouthinkhewillbeastransparentaspossible? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Yes,andhesaidthat.AndIcouldaddonethingtothis,Mr.Chairman. Thecommittee pressedhimonwhathemeantbythat.IknowthatRankingMemberFeinsteinalsoraised thisinhercomments.ButasJamesClapperandotherpeoplenotedyesterday,there'sonly somuchthat--asfarthatanomineecango.Youcan'taskthathesatisfyethicalstandards whenaskinghimtocommit,inadvance-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Right. 
	TURL
	EY: 
	--toreleaseofinformationthathehasn'tseenyetbecausepartofhisdutyistoprotectthings likeRule6(c)information,grandjuryinformationandthederivativeinformation, privilegedinformation.Heisduty-boundtoreviewthat.S
	otheonlythinganomineecan sayisthatheisgoingtoerronthesideoftransparencyandtrytogetasmuchofthereport toCongressaspossible. 
	GRAHAM: 
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	BasedonwhatyouknowaboutMr.Barr,shouldwetakehimathisword? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Absolutely.IhaveneverknownBillBarr, inalltheyearsthatwehaveknowneachother,I haveneverknownhimtobeanythingbuthonestandstraightforward.Thelasttimehe cameinfrontofthiscommitteethechairmanofthatcommittee,oneofyourpredecessors, expre--praisedBarr.Hesaidthatthisisasortofathrowbacktowhatcommitteehearings usetobelikewherethenomineeactuallyansweredquestions.He'saveryhonestperson. Andifhesaidthatheisgoingtoerronthesideoftransparency,youcantakeittothebank. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay.S
	oMr.Johnson,thankyouforcomingtoday.I--IlistenedtoyourconcernsaboutMr. Barr.IvotedforHolderandLynch.DoyouthinkImadeagooddecisionvotingforthemto beattorneygeneral? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Ido. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Why? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Ithinktheirpresentationbeforethiscommitteewashonest,direct,butmoreimportantly, theycommittedtoprotectourdemocracy.ForAfrican-Americansprotectingdemocracyis toalso(INAUDIBLE) enforceeﬀortstoensurethatallcitizenscancasttheirballot. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Right. 
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	JOHNSON: 
	Theycommittedtothat,andtheydemonstratedthatwhiletheywereinoﬃce. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay,andyoubelieveMr.Barrwillnotbecommittedtothat? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Well,Ihaveseriousreservationsandconcern. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Okay. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Thoseconcernsﬁrststartwiththisadministration,theirlackofenforcingS
	ection2 ofthe VotingRightsAct. 
	GRAHAM: 
	HowmuchofitisaboutthisadministrationversusMr.Barr? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Inmanywaysit'sdiﬃculttoseparatethetwo. 
	GRAHAM: 
	S
	oIjustwanttosuggestsomethingtoyou.TherewasalotofconcernsIhadaboutthe Obamaadministration.Iwillnotboreyouwithmyconcerns.ButIthoughthechosewisely withMr.HolderandMs.LynchbecausetheyhavediﬀerencesonpolicythanIbecauseI'ma Republican,butIthoughttheywouldbegoodstewardsofthelawandtheywouldbefair arbitersofthe--beingattorneygeneral.ItnevercrossedmymindthatIwouldvoteagainst 
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	thembecauseIhavepolicydisagreements.Ifthat'sgoingtobethenewstandard,noneofus aregoingtovoteforanybodyontheotherside.S
	othankyouforyourinput. 
	JOHNSON: 
	ButifImay,Mr.Chair. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Please. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Goingbeyondpolicydisagreement,thisnationhashadalonghistoryofdiscriminatory practices,particularlyinthecriminaljusticesystem.Andanytimewehaveanomineeto comebeforethiscommitteewhotrulydon'tappreciatethedisparitiesinthecriminaljustice systems,ashestatedyesterday,thatgoesbeyondpolicydisagreement. 
	GRAHAM: 
	(INAUDIBLE) 
	JOHNSON: 
	Thatgoestowardwhetherornotweunderstandtheequalprotectionofthelawshouldbe aﬀordedtoallcitizens. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Well,IwanttomakesureyouunderstandwhathesaidbecauseIrememberS
	enatorBooker askedhim,andhesaysyes,thecrackcocainesentencesweredisproportionatetothe African-Americanindividual,andthat'swhywechangedthedisparitybetweenpowder cocaineandcrackcocaine.Heacknowledgedthat,butin1992hethoughtthebiggest victimoframpantviolentcrimewere,youknow,low-income,mostlyminority communities.S
	oIdon'tbuywhatyou'resayingabouthimnotunderstandingtheir 
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	diﬀerencesandhowonegroupisaﬀected,particularlyinthedrugarena.S
	oIthinkwhathe wastryingtodoistalkaboutcrime. 
	Buthere'swhat'sperplexingtome.TheNAACPhasbeenintheﬁghtforsocialandracial justiceforaverylongtime,andIdon'tknowhowwegothere,butyoudoascorecardevery year.Andin2017everyDemocratgot100percent.Igot22percent,Grassleygot11, Cornyngot11,Leegot11,Cruzgot11,S
	assegot6,Ernstgot11,Kennedygot17,Tillis got11,andCrapogot6.There'sadisparityhere.I'dhopeyouthinkthatI'm--becauseI disagreewithyourscorecardrating--thatI'mnotaracist,andIcertainlydon'tknowhowto closethisgap.I'dliketo. 
	JOHNSON: 
	S otheNAACP,we'reanonpartisanorganization.Ourscorecardisnotbasedon
	oI--right.S politicalparties.Ourscorecardisbasedonouragenda. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Wellhowdoyouexplainthediﬀerences? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Ifyou'llallowme,ouragendaissetbythedelegatesfromacrossthecountry.Andwe'revery clearthatdiscriminationshouldnotbeapartofanyagenda. 
	GRAHAM: 
	HowmanyofthemareRepublicans? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Excuseme? 
	GRAHAM: 
	HowmanyofthemareRepublicans? 
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	JOHNSON: 
	Idon't--wedon'tdeterminehowmanymembersareRepublicans.WehaveRepublicans amongourmembershiponourNationalBoard. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Idon'twantto--okay. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Butifyouallowmetoexplainthereportcard. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Please,please. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Right,andsoweestablishouragendanotbasedonpoliticalpartiesbecauseweunderstand thepoliticalpartiesarenothingmorethanvehiclesforagendas.AndasmanyAfricanAmericansweremembersoftheRepublicanpartiesbeforethe1965VotingRightsAct, manyAfrican-Americansmaydecidetheiragendabasedontheparty'splatform.Andif partyplatformsalignwiththeneedsandinterestsofourcommunities,thentheywillvote foraplatformthatsupporttheirneeds,whetherit'saccesstoqualitypubliceducation, ensurethatallAfrican-AmericansandAmericanscancastafairballot,fai
	-

	ssthecountry. S
	omeareDemocrats,someareLibertarians,someareRepublicans. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	Youmaynotthinkthatyou'remaking--thatyouragendaispartyneutral.AllIcantellyouis somebodywantstosolveproblems.It'sprettyoddtomethateveryDemocratgets100 percent,andIdothebestasaRepublicangetting22.Maybetheproblem'sallonourside.I don'tthinkso.Ithinktheagendathatyou'repursuingintheeyesofconservativesisnotas goodforthecountryasyouthinkitis,andit'sgotnothingtodoaboutRepublicanand Democrat.It'smoreithastodoaboutliberalandconservative.You'vegottoaskyourself, whydoeseveryconservativeonthiscommittee,thebestIcandoistoge
	MORIAL
	: 
	Mr.Chairman. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Well,Ithinkit'sadiﬀerentquestion.IthinkthemembersoftheRepublicanPartyshould askyourselves,areyouwillingtobeexpansiveenoughandinclusive-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	(INAUDIBLE) 
	JOHNSON: 
	--toensuretherightsofindividualsdespitetheirracialbackground,theirinterestsaremet, notbasedonconservativeorliberaltendencies,butbasedonthoseindividuals'needsand-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	Fairenough. 
	JOHNSON: 
	--andtheintereststhattheyadvocatefor. 
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	GRAHAM: 
	WillyouaskyourselveswhyIcan'tgetbetterthan22percentfromconservatives? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Yeah,sure,wecangodowneachoneofthepolicyagendas,andwecangothrougheachone ofthem,andwecanmakeadetermination. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Yeah,Mr.Chairman,letme--Iwantto-
	-

	GRAHAM: 
	That'sagooddiscussion.(INAUDIBLE) 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Iwanttosharp--sharpen--sharpenthisdiscussionbecauseIthinkit'sanimportant discussion,andgiveyouwhatconcernsme.Whenitcomestothisentirediscussion,thisis aboutwhetherthenomineeisgoingtoaggressively,faithfullyenforcethecivilrightslaws. Andletmegiveyouacouplefacts. 
	GRAHAM: 
	CanIaskyouonequestion?Youcangivemeallthefactsyouwant. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Yeah. 
	GRAHAM: 
	NameoneRepublicanthatyouwouldsupport. 
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	MORIAL
	: 
	I'mnotheretotalkaboutRepublicansandDemocrats.Isupportedhimwhenhewasa Democrat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Ijustcan'tthinkofabetterpersontopickthanMr.Barrifyou'reaRepublican.S
	oIdon't knowwho'sgoingtodobetterthanhimintermsofexperience,judgmentand temperament.S
	oifthisguydoesn'tcutit,I'matalossofwhowecanpick. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Well,(INAUDIBLE)letmemakemypointbecauseIwantthecommitteetobeextremely clearonthis,andIwanttocitetwoexamples.AttorneyGeneralS
	essions--andwehaveto talkabouthisrecordbecausethequestionforusiswhetherMr.Barrisgoingtocontinuethe policiesofAttorneyGeneralS
	essionswhenitcomestoenforcingcivilrightslaws.Intwo instancesAttorneyGeneralS
	essions,inhisﬁrstdaysandmonthsinoﬃce,hadtheJustice Departmentchangesidesinthemiddleofanimportantcivilrightscase. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Electionsmatter. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Texas--butsenator,theenforcementofthelawdoesnot.Theenforcementofcivilrights lawsisneutralwhenitcomestoelections.S essionshadthe
	owhatAttorneyGeneralS JusticeDepartmentdoisswitchinaTexasvoterIDlawafterthejudgehadmadeaﬁnding, preliminaryﬁnding,thattheTexasvoterIDlawwasdiscriminatory.Youknowwhatitwould beanexampleof?IfDrewBreesorTomBrady,afterleadinghisteamtoalead,wentinat halftimeandcameoutwiththejerseyoftheotherteamon.Inthemiddleofthecase. S
	econdly,intheOhiovoterpurgecase,thesamethingoccurs.WhydidtheJustice Department,withoutanydiscussionwiththeCongress,withoutanydiscussionwiththe 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5

	civilrightscommunity,switchsidesmiraculouslyandimmediately?Thatshouldnothave anythingtodowithwhowinsanelection. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Iwillsaythis.Icouldhavegivenyou100examplesofwhereEricHolderandLorettaLynch hadadiﬀerentviewofastatuteorapolicythanIdid.Butifyoudon'texpectelectionsto matter,that'samistake.Thepolicydiﬀerenceswehavearereal.ToexpectTrumptowin andeverythingObamadidstaythesameisunrealistic.AllI'maskingisthatlet'slookat qualiﬁcationsbecauseaDemocratwillwinoneday,andtheywillnominatesomebodywith acompletelydiﬀerentpolicyviewthanIhave.Itwillbeaverysimpledecision.IfIcanﬁnda diﬀerence,I'llvoteno.ThequestionI'mtryingtoaskthecountryisd
	MORIAL
	: 
	Well,youknowsenator,lotsofusthoughtyouweregoingtobenominatedasattorney general. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Wouldyouhavesupportedme? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Hey,guesswhat,wewould'vehada--Iknowwewould'vehadadiscussion,andIwouldn't closethedooronthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Well,Iappreciatethat,butIdon'tthinkI'mnearlyasqualiﬁedasMr.Barr. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	35
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5 

	S
	oI'llsaythat.Wethoughtyouweregonnabenominated 
	GRAHAM: 
	Idon'tthinkIcouldholdacandletohim.Butthefactyousaidthataboutme,Iappreciate thehelloutofit.Andlet'sseeifwecanﬁndawaytogetmeabove22percent. 
	UNKNOWN: 
	Let'sworkonit. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Allright. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	ReverendRisher,Ijustwanttosaysomethingtoyoupersonally.Iwillnevereverforgetyour words,yourmotion,thetruthyouspokeandyourfeelings.AndIjustwantyoutoknowthat there'ssomanyofusthatnowknowsomanyvictimsofgunsinthiscountrythatwewill continuetoﬁghtontochangethisenvironment.S
	ojustknowthatandI'msohappy.You're 
	oneofthebestwitnessesI--Ihaveeverheardandyourwordswillnotbelost.Ihopeyour 
	familyisinabetterplace.Thankyou. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyousomuch. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	Thankyou.Mr.Kinkopf,ifImay, Mr.BarrhasstatedthatthememothatIspentallday readingandisverycomplicated,hasstate--hasstatedthatthatmemowasnarrowlyfocused onobstructionofjustice.However,Mr.Barr'sargumentsoutlinedbroadpresidential 
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	powers.PleaseexplainhowhisviewofexecutiveauthoritycouldimpacttheMueller investigation. 
	KINKOPF: 
	Okay.Well,inanynumberofways.Ithinkmostfundamentallyishisclaimwithoutlimitor qualiﬁcationthatthepresidentistheExecutiveBranchandthat,therefore,allexecutive powerisvestedinthepresidentpersonally.Thatthepresidentcanpersonallyexercisethat power,andnotleavingthistospeculationortochance,thememospeciﬁcallysaysthatthe presidentcancontrolanylitigation,anyprosecutionorinvestigation,includinga prosecutionorinvestigationofthepresidentpersonally,andthepresident'sfamily members.Andfurther,itsaysthattheattorneygeneral,the
	FEINSTEIN: 
	Well,itwascertainlythecasefortheunitaryexecutiveandtheall-powerfulcentralﬁgure. There'snoquestion,Ithink,aboutthat.Inmymind,thequestionis,youknow,how--does hereallymeanthis?Andit'shardifyoudon'tknowamanandhe'shereandhe'sinfrontof youfortheﬁrsttimeandyoumeethim,it'sveryhardtomakethosejudgments. 
	He'sobviouslyverysmart,hewasattorneygeneralbefore,noonecansayheisn'tqualiﬁed. Thequestioncomes--weareatatimeandaplacewheretherearealotofothersubjectsthat areimportant.Hehasstatedthathismemowasnarrowlyfocused.Mr.Turley,we'vegota defensecounsel,Iguess,howdoyouseethis,thatsamequestionIaskedProfessor Kinkopf? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	It'sa--it'safairquestionandNeilandIagreeactuallyonagreatdealbecausewebothhave reallydiﬃcultywiththeexpansionofexecutiveauthority.We'rebothcriticsofaspectsof theunitaryexecutivetheorybutwedisagreeon--ontheBarrmemo.I--Ithinkitwasnarrow. 
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	Imean,hesaysinthememothathebelievesthepresidentcanbechargedwithobstruction inoﬃce.Hebelievesthatapresidentcanbechargedwithothercrimesinoﬃce. 
	AndwhereI--whereIdisagreewithNeilisthatitistruethathesaysinhismemosthatthe Constitutiondoesn'tlimitthepowerofthepresidency,that--in--intheseregards,andthat's demonstrablytrue.It'snotintheConstitution,therearenotthoselimitations.Buthehas saidrepeatedlyinwritingandbeforethiscommitteethathebelievesthatapresidentcanbe chargedforactsin--inoﬃce.Healsobelievesthat,ifthepresidentmisuseshisauthority,it canbeanabuseofpoweranditcouldbeaviolationofhis--hisdutytofaithfullyexecutethe U.Slaws.
	. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	Well,itdoesn'tmeanthatMr.Muellercouldrecommendindictmentofthepresidentand Mr.Barrcoulddisagree. 
	TURL
	EY: 
	On--onthatI'mnotsurewhereNeilis. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	Now,that'sanesotericquestion.Iunderstand,butit'salongthelineofyourthinking. 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Yeah,andIagreewithsomeofthesenatorsonthiscommittee.Ihavealwayssaidthata sittingpresidentcouldbeindictedinoﬃce.IdisagreewiththeOLConmemosinthat respect.Will--wouldgeneralBarrchangethatposition?Myguessisheprobablywouldnot. Would--wouldthespecialcounselaskedforachange?Myguessisprobablynot.It'snot really--ifyoulookatthehistoryofbothoftheseindividuals,they're--they'renotlikelyto eitherdisagreeormoveforachange. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
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	Inthis--letmeaskbothofyouoranyonethatwantstoanswerthis,thismemoandthewhole conceptoftheunitaryexecutive,all-powerful,Ithinkhasneverbeenbetterexpressedina contemporarywaythanI'vereaditinthismemo.AndIwasthinkinglastnight,obviously Mr.Barrisqualiﬁed,heisbright,heiscapable,butit'shardformetounderstandwhy,with ourConstitution,ourBillofRights,whywewantsomebodythatisall-powerfulineveryway totaketheseactions. 
	KINKOPF: 
	S --
	enator,Ithink 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	--Myquestionwasnotwellstated,butIthinkyougotthegistofit. 
	KINKOPF: 
	Right.S oIwouldagreethatWilliamBarrisamplywell-qualiﬁed
	Right.S oIwouldagreethatWilliamBarrisamplywell-qualiﬁed
	enator,Ithinkwedon't.S 

	byvirtueofexperience,byvirtueofintellect,byvirtueofintegrity.Ihavenodoubtthathe 
	willstandoutforhisvisionoftheConstitution,andthat'swhatIﬁndsotroublingbecause 
	hisvisionoftheConstitutionissoexpansiveandalarmingwithrespecttothepresident's 
	power.Right,that'swhyIquotedit.It'snotmycharacterization. 
	HesaysdirectlythepresidentaloneistheExecutiveBranch.Hespeaksrepeatedlythrough thememoofthepresident'sillimitablepowers.Andwhileit'struethattheConstitution doesn'tspeciﬁcallyauthorizeCongresstolimitthepresident'sprosecutorialdiscretionbyits text,italsodoesn't,byitstext,giveprosecutorialdiscretiontothepresident.All investigationandprosecutionisdonepursuanttothelawsandenactedbyCongress. 
	Andwithinthatauthoritytoenactthoselawsistheauthoritytoestablishtheparameterson thatpower.Youdothatandyoudothatvalidlyandlegitimately.TheS
	upremeCourthas 
	saidthatrepeatedly.AndwhatissoalarmingabouttheBarrmemoisthatitreadsthe 
	Constitutioninawaythatfreesthepresidentfromthoseconstraints. 
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	TURL
	EY: 
	IfI--thisiswhereIdodisagree.AndIthoughtthequestionwas--waspresentedquitewell becauseitdoesisolatewherewedepart.Andthatis,ﬁrstofall,eventhoughIdon'tlike unitaryexecutivetheory,therearemany,manyjudgesandlawyerswhobelieveferventlyin it.Also,thereisnotonesingledeﬁnitionofthattheory.People--there'sasortofgradationof whereyoufallonthat. 
	BillBarractuallydisagreeswiththepositionofthetrumpedlegalteam.He--he--he expresslysaidthattheyarewrong,thatitdoesn'tcurtailapresident'sauthoritytoprosecute himinoﬃce.S
	oheis--he'snotattheextremeonthis.ButtheotherthingIwanttonoteis thatIthinkwhereNeilandIdisagreeisthatNeilistakingBarr'sstatementastothe constitutionalfootprint,themandateofthe--oftheConstitution,whichdoesnothavea limitandlimitationsintheseareas,fromhowtheywouldapplywherehesaidveryclearly thepresidentcannotdowhateverhewants.Thereareconsequences.Hecouldevenbe prosecuted. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
	Thankyou.Thankyou,Mr.Chairman. 
	GRAHAM: 
	S
	enatorHawley. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Thankyou,Mr.Chairman,andthankstoallofyouforbeingheretoday. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thatwasinteresting. 
	FEINSTEIN: 
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	Yeah,itreallyis. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	GeneralMukasey,canIstartwithyou,Ithink?Andthankyou,general,foryourlong service,bothasattorneygeneralofdistinguishedserviceandonthefederalbench.Asa formerattorneygeneralyourself,ofcourse,youknowtheoﬃceﬁrsthand.Youhavedone thisjob.You'vedoneitatatimeofgreatnationalsecurityperilforthiscountry.You referencedinyouropeningstatementthequaliﬁcationsthatBillBarrbrings,wouldbringto thisjob,andtheadvantages,insomeways,hewouldhavehavingdonethejobalready.Can youjustspeakmoretothat?ImeanIimagineifyouwere--ifyouwerecoming
	ocanyoujustelaborateforuswhyyouthinkthathispriorexperienceisa--isamajor plus? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Quitesimply,hedoesn'thaveandwon'thavethesamesteeplearningcurvethatIhad comingoutofArticleIII.Hedoesn'thavetodoDOJ101andlearnhoweachoﬃceruns,and hedoesn'thavetolearnhowtheyinteract.Hedoesn'thavetocontemplatefromground zerothepowersandtheauthorityofeachoftheoﬃcesunderit.He'sseenitanddoneit.But Idon'twanttooverstatethedegreetowhichhisexperienceprepareshim.Obviouslywe're livinginadiﬀerenttime,andtheissuesarediﬀerent.He'sgoingtohavetofacethat.But he'sgoingtobeabletodevote100percentofhisenergytodoingthatrathertha
	IfIcangoback,ifImay,totheconversationyouwerejusthavingabout-aboutour--about thepresident'spowers,Idohappentobelieveintheunitaryexecutive,unliketheothertwo folks,andit'sjustnotaquestionofreligiousbelief,andit'snotsomequirkyattitude.The Constitutionsays,atbeginningofArticleII,"Theexecutiveauthorityshallbevestedinthe presidentoftheUnitedS
	tates."Itdoesn'tsayallexceptalittlebitofit.Itdoesn'tsaymostof it.Itsaystheexecutivepower.Thatmeansallofit.Obviously,obviouslythepresidentcan 
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	beremoved,notonlyforcrimes,butalsoforusinghisconferredpowersinanimproperway, andthepresidentrunsthepoliticalriskofhavingthathappeneverytimehedoessomething that--that--thatcomesclosetothelineorgoesovertheline.Andthat,Ithink,isthe constraint.Andit'ssofarbeenareliableconstraint.Everybodysaysthatwellhecould removeMueller.Perhapshecould,butguesswhat,hehasn'tdoneityet.Andthe 
	reisgoodreasonwhyhehasn'tdoneityetbecausetheearthwouldopenupandswallow him.Weallknowthat.S
	oIthinkthatthat'sreallywhat'satstakehere,thepoliticalrisk. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	GeneralMukasey,juststayingwiththatpoint,Ithinkthisisinterestingtogetsomeonewho hasheldthisoﬃce,andadvisedpresidents,andenforcedthelawasyouhave.You're familiarwithMr.Barr'sviewsonexecutiveauthorityArticleIIpower.Doyouthinkthat thoseareoutofthemainstream? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Idonot. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Doyouthinkthatthey'reinconsistentwiththeConstitution? 
	MUKASEY: 
	No,theyarefaithfultotheConstitution.That'swhatheisfaithfulto. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Goahead.Imean,explaintouswhyyouthinkit'simportantthatthefactthatArticleIIvests allexecutivepowerinoneperson,inthepresidentoftheUnitedS
	tates,whythat'san importantconceptandimportantforthefunctioningofourconstitutionalsystem? 
	MUKASEY: 
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	It'simportantbecauseitassuresthatthereisgoingtobepoliticalresponsibilitylodged someplace.Itassuresthatwhenpeopleintheexecutiveactinaparticularwaythatthey,and thepersonatthetop,canbeheldresponsibleforwhattheydo.Peoplespokeabout independentagencies.Theyare,inasense,independentinthesensethattheydon'trelate tootheragencies.Buttheyarenotafourthorﬁfthorsixthbranchofgovernment.Theyare withintheExecutive.Andit'simportantthatthatbetruebecausethere'sgottobe somebodyresponsibleforhowthatfunctions.PeoplewhowrotetheCons
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Tellmethis.Inyourview,thevesting--thefactthatthevestingclauseinArticleIIgivesthe executivepowertoapresidentoftheUnitedS tates,
	tates,asinglepresidentoftheUnitedS doesthatmeanthatthisindividual,thatthepresidentoftheUnitedS
	tateshasillimitable power,orisabletodowhateverheorshemayplease? 
	MUKASEY: 
	No,becausetheonedutythatitimposesonapresident--andthisisalsoimposedbythe Constitution--istoseetoitthatthelawsarefaithfullyenforced.Thatisjustasmucha constitutionaldutyasanyother.Andifhedoesn'tdothat,he'ssubjecttoremoval.Thatis hisobligation.Thatishis,really,principalobligation. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Thankyouverymuch.Mr.Canterbury,Iwanttoaskyou--youleadtheFraternalOrderof Police.It'sincrediblyimportanttomethatthetoplawenforcementoﬃcerinthiscountry, theattorneygeneral,havetheconﬁdenceinthe--ofthemenandwomenofournation's policeforces.Canyoujustelaborateforuswhatthemostimportantissueswereforyour 
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	membersthatledyourgrouptosupportformerAttorneyGeneralBarr,hopefullyfuture AttorneyGeneralBarr,forthisnomination? 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Oneishispastexperiences,hisjobthathedidintheprioradministration.We'vebeen aroundalongtime,andweknewhimthen.Wesawthewayheadministeredthe DepartmentofJustice,thewayheworkedwithstateandlocallawenforcement.Regardless ofwholeadstheJusticeDepartment,ifthere'snooutreachtostateandlocallaw enforcement,thenitreallydoesn'ttranscendtothestateandlocallevel.Underformer AttorneyGeneralBarr,hedidjustthat,andasGeneralS
	essionsdid,andasEricHolderdid. Youknow,we--we'vetestiﬁedforanumberofnomineesovertheyears.EricHolderhada tremendousreputationasaprosecutorinthelawenforcementcommunity.S
	oIsatatthis verytableandtestiﬁedforhim.It'sallbasedontheexperiencesthattheyhadaseitherU.S
	. attorney,federaljudges,oreveninprivatepractice. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Whydoyouthinkit'ssoimportanttopoliceoﬃcersthattheyhaveacapable,eﬀective, experiencedattorneygeneral? 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Justtheadministrationofjustice.Iheardthecomplaintsaboutthecivilrightsdivision,but weknowfromexperiencethatacollaborativeeﬀort,ratherthanconsentdecrees,havereal consequencesinthecities.Forinstance,inCincinnatiwhentheadministrationentereda collaborativeagreementandallpartieswereatthetable,wecameoutwithaplantohelp bringthatcitybacktogether.InthelastelectioninCincinnatitheFOPendorsedamember oftheNAACPtobeacitycouncilmember.Thatwouldnothavehappenediftheyhadnot gottoknoweachothersittingaroundatable,workingtogethe
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	doit,andthenobviouslynothingeverchanges.Butwhenit'scollaborativeandeverybody's atthetable,wesawrealchange. 
	HAWL
	EY: 
	Thankyouverymuch.Thankyou,Mr. Chairman. 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Thankyou. 
	DURBIN: 
	Thanks,Mr.Chairman.ReverendRisher,thankyou.Thankyouforyourtestimony,thank youforyourtouchingwordsaboutthattelephonecall.I'llrememberthatbecausesomany peoplereceivethattelephonecallaboutpeoplethattheylovewhoarevictimsofgun violence. 
	IamhonoredtorepresenttheCityofChicago.S
	adlywehavealotofgunviolenceandalot 
	ofvictims,familiesjustlikeyourswhowillnevereverforgetaslongastheylivewhat 
	happened.IoftenthinkaboutwhatI'mgoingtosaytothem.Istoppedsayingletmetellyou 
	aboutanewlawthatI'vegotinmind. 
	I'vestopsayingthatbecausewedon'tpasslawsongunsafetyinthisUnitedS
	I'vestopsayingthatbecausewedon'tpasslawsongunsafetyinthisUnitedS
	tates 

	Congress,wedon'tandit'sunfortunate.Wedon'tevenpassthemostbasicandobvious 
	thingsaboutbackgroundchecks,we--wejustcan'tdoit,politicallycan'tdoit.Alotof 
	reasonsforit,Iwon'tgetintohere. 
	ButI'lljustsuggesttoyouthatasfatewouldhaveitsittingtoyourleftisagentlemanMr. Canterburyrepresenting345,000didyousaymembersofthepolicewhoputtheirliveson thelineeverysingledayandthosegunsonthestreetareaimedatthemmanytimes.Andif there'severamomentwhenvictimsofgunviolencelikeyouReverendRisherandMr. 
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	Canterburyandthepoliceevercometogetheronagreementonapieceoflegislationcallme immediately. 
	Itwillbeabreakthroughmoment.Wecantalkaboutgunsafetywithcrediblevoicesonboth sidesandMr.CanterburywhileonthesubjectthankyoufortheFirstS
	tepAct.The 
	endorsementoftheFraternalOrderofPoliceandcriminaljusticereformandprisonreform 
	washistoricandmeaningfulandmadeadiﬀerence. 
	Itwasalsonoteworthythatwehadthesupportoftheprosecutors,thecriminalprosecutors acrossthiscountryandthesupportoftheAmericanCivilLibertiesUnion.Goﬁgure.How manytimeshasthisbunchevergottentogether?NotveryoftenbutIthinkwepassed somethinghistoricasaresultofthatandIjustwanttopersonallythankyouandpublicly thankyoufortherolethatyourorganizationplayedinit. 
	Mr.Johnson,we'relookingbackonthehistoryofMr.Barr,thingsthathesaid,thingsthat he'sdoneandIgiveaspeechthatpeoplehaveheardafewtimesnowbuttheywerestartled theﬁrsttimeIgaveit.ThetitleofmyspeechisletmetellyouabouttheworstvoteIever castasamemberofCongress. 
	Itwasover25yearsagoandallthatyouknowwhatitwas.Itwas100-1crackcocaineto powdercocaine.Weweredeterminedtostopthisnewnarcoticinitstracks.Itwassuper cheap,itwasdeadly,pregnantwomenwhogothookedoncrackcocainewouldgivebirthto babieswithlifelongproblems.Andwecamedownashardaswecouldnotjustwith100-1 butmandatoryminimumsentencesontopit,threestrikesandyouareoutforlifeandwehit themhardandwewatchedourprisonpopulationexplodeprimarilywithAfricanAmericans. 
	-

	Ilookbackonitasabigmistake,oneoftheworstIevermadeisapublicoﬃcialandI've triedtorectifyit.WepassedtheFairS
	entencingActeightyearsago,we'venowpassedthe FirstS
	tepAct.Wearestartingtogivetothesemenandsomewomenachancetostarttheir livesagain. 
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5
	https://plus.cq.com/doc/congressionaltranscripts-544 5

	S
	onowwelookatMr.Barrandsomeofthethingshesaidwereconsistentwithmyvoteand thevotesofalotofDemocratsbackinthedaywhenweweregettingtoughonnarcoticsand hewasastoughastheyget.Hewaswritingbooksaboutbuildingmoreprisonsandputting morepeopleintheseprisons.He'scontinuedinthatveinupuntilthelastfewyears.S
	oIjust wanttotellyouIprayforredemptionbothpersonalandpolitical. 
	DoyouthinkMr.Barrisentitledtoachancetoredeemhimselfwhenitcomestothisissue? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Thankyou.Thankyou,S
	enatorDurbin.Ithinkanyindividualisentitledtoredeem themselveswhentheymakeamistake.Ourpositiononmassincarcerationisjustthat. We'vehadalotofindividualswhohavemademistakewhoshouldhavebeenexoneratedor notprosecutedtotheextenttheywere. 
	IgrewupinDetroit,Michigan,Ilivedthroughthecrackepidemicinthe1980s.Iseenthe damageitdidbutIalsoseenmanyindividualswho'sthrownawayformany,manyyears andforanindividualwhosituatedtoacknowledgethehistoryofwhattookplaceandasyou justdonesayyouknowImadeamistakethat'sagoodthing.Ihavenotheardthatfromthe nominee.That'smyconcern. 
	TheotherconcernIhaveisgoesbacktotheexchangeearlierwhenweoftentimesconﬂate civilrightsissues,issuesofdemocracywithpartisanconsiderations.Andshouldindividuals haveaccesstothevoteit'snotapartisanissue,itisanissueofdemocracyandanyAG shouldvigorouslyprotecttherightofindividualstovoteespeciallywhenoverthelasttwo yearswe'veseenmoretacticsofvotersuppressionthanwe'veseeninthelast25years. 
	Issuesofequalprotectionunderthelawisnotapartisanissue.It'sanissuetoensurethatall citizensofthisnationsareaﬀordedequaltreatmentandsoourobjectiontoMr.Barr's nominationisnotapartisanissue,it'snotanissueofdisagreement,it'sanissueofconcern asitrelatestothemassincarcerationandthevigorousprosecutionthattookplaceinthe '90sandwhetherornotweareconsideringanomineewhoisstillthinkinginthe1990s 
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	frameorarewelookingatanomineewho'sreallylookingattheFirstChanceActandthe progressthat'sbeenmade? 
	DURBIN: 
	I'veonlygotaminuteleftbutIwanttotakeittothatissueyoutookittoandMs.--Iinvite MayorMorialtojoininonthis,too.Thisquestionofelectionintegrityhasbecomeacode word. 
	Whenyouhearaelectionintegrityofthefromtheotherpoliticalpartyit'saboutmaking surethatpeoplewhoarenotqualiﬁedandnotlegallyeligiblevote,don'tvoteandIdon't thinkanybodydisagreeswiththatpremise.Butthere'ssomethingelsegoingoninthename ofvoterintegrityandthatisobstaclestovotingthataretotallyunnecessaryandreally discouragepeoplefromusingthisrightwhichisfundamentaltoademocracy. 
	WhenIheldhearingsinthiscommitteeinOhioandinFloridaandaskedthemaboutID cardsandearlyvotingandsaidwhatistheincidenceofvotingabuseinyourstatethatled youtomakeithardertovotetherewerenone.Ithinkit'sjustapolicy,apoliticalpolicyto ﬁghtdemographicstotrytokeeppeopleawayfromthepollswhomaychangetheoutcomes ofelections. 
	Idon't--Ididn'thearyesterdayfromMr.Barranycommitmenttovoterintegrityintermsof thatyouandIwouldprobablydiscussitandthatconcernsme.IamnotsureIcanexpectto hearitunderthisadministrationbutMr.Morialifyouclose. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Yeah,Ithinkthereissomethingimportantaboutwhatyou'resaying.I(INAUDIBLE)point thecommitteetoexitpollsthattookplaceafterthe'18electionwhereinpeoplewereasked doyoubelievethatvotersuppressionorvoterfraudwasagreaterissue? 
	VotersuppressionwonthepolloftheAmericanpeopleoverwhelmingly.Theseareexitpolls wherethenumbersweresortof58and--andvoterfraudwasdownmaybeinthe30sor40s. That'snumberone. 
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	Numbertwo,theS helbythat
	Numbertwo,theS helbythat
	helbycasehasdonesigniﬁcantdamagebecauseitwaspost-S 40--theshenanigansofvotersuppression,ofcuttingbackonearlyvoting,onvoterIDlaws, onrestrictinggroupsliketheLegalWomenVotersfromKentuckyvoterregistrationdrives really,reallyexploded.S
	ome40stateshadproposalstorestrictaccesstotheballotbox. 
	WhenIthinkaboutthis,Ithinkaboutitthatwearewagingwartoquotepromote democracy,S
	enatorGraham,inIraq,inAfghanistan.Butrighthereonthehomefronthow canwecountenanceeﬀortsbasedonnoevidencetorestrictaccesstotheballotbox?The S
	helbydecisionIpredictwillbeseeninhistorythewayDredwasseen,thewayPlessywas seen,asabadill-adviseddecision. 
	WeneedbecausewhatweareleftwithisthepoweroftheJusticeDepartmentunderS
	ection 2andunderS ection2 casewasbroughteventhoughyou'vehad
	essions,notonesingleS thisexplosionofvotersuppressioneﬀorts.S
	owhatweneedisanattorneygeneralwhosays I'mcommittedtotheutilizationofmyS
	ection2 oftheVotingRightsActpowerstoenforce theVotingRightsAct. 
	AndIwoulda--certainlyencouragethatthenomineebeaskedhispositiononthisbecause thisissocrucialtotheprotectionofdemocracywhichisreallywhatthisnationisallabout. Democracyandvotingisatthefoundationofoursystem. 
	GRAHAM: 
	MakeaquickcommentandthenS
	enatorKennedy.I'mgladyoumentionedIraqandother placeswhereweareﬁghtingtohelppeople. 
	Therewasanattacktodayonarestaurant,Ithinkit'sthesamerestaurantIvisitedwiththe KurdsandArabsandothersinManbij,S
	yriatoholdontosomerepresentativegovernment andunfortunately,IbelievesomeAmericanadviserswerekilledtherebyIS.
	IS 
	S
	concernaboutthestatementsmadebyPresidentTrumpisthatyouwouldsetinmotion enthusiasmbytheenemyweareﬁghting.Youmakepeoplewearetryingtohelpwonder 
	othisisnotthesubjectmatterofthehearingbutIwanttomakeaquickstatement.My 
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	aboutusandastheygetbolder,thepeoplewearetryingtohelparegoing--goingtogetmore uncertain. 
	IsawthisIraqandI'mnowseeingitinS
	IsawthisIraqandI'mnowseeingitinS
	yria.EveryAmericanwantsourtroopstocome 

	homebutIthinkallofuswanttomakesurethatwhentheydocomehome,wearesafeandI 
	don'tknowhowweareevergoingtobesafeifpeopleovertherecan'tatleastsitdownand 
	talkwitheachother. 
	TheonlyreasontheKurdsandtheArabsandtheChristianswereinthatrestaurantis becausewegavethemthespacetobeinthatrestaurant.Youthinkwhatyouwanttoabout thosepeopleoverthere,they'vehadenoughofkilling.They'dlovetohavetheopportunity thatwehavetoﬁxtheirproblemswithouttheforceofviolence. 
	S yria.I
	oIwouldhopethepresidentwouldlooklongandhardofwherehe'sheadedinS 
	knowpeoplearefrustratedbutwearenevergoingtobesafehereunlesswearewillingto 
	helppeopleovertherewhowillstandupagainstthisradicalideology. 
	Andhere'sthegoodnews,veryfewfathersandmothersovertherewanttoturntheir daughtersovertoIS,theirsonsovertoIS.Theyjustneedourhelp.Sotothosewholost
	IS IS theirlivestodayinS yriawhoare
	yria,youweredefendingAmericainmyview.TothoseinS 
	tryingtoworktogether,youareprovidingthebestandonlyhopeforyourcountry.Ihope 
	thepresidentwilllooklongandhardaboutwhatwearedoinginS
	yria. 
	GRAHAM: 
	S
	enatorKennedy. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Thankyou,Mr.Chairman.Pastor,I'mvery,verysorryforyourlost.Iwantedtotellyouthat personally. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyou,senator. 
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	KENNEDY: 
	BeforeIaskmysoulquestion,whichI'lldirecttoeachofyoutoaddressbrieﬂy,ifyoucould, Iwanttodoacoupleofthings.Iwanttogiveashoutouttomyformermayor,MayorMorial. ManyofyouknowhimasthepresidentandchiefexecutiveoﬃceroftheUrbanLeagueand I,ofcourse,knowhiminthatcapacityaswell,butIknowhimasourmayorinNewOrleans andtheheadoftheleagueofcitiesandastatesenator.WestillclaimhiminLouisiana. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Always(INAUDIBLE). 
	KENNEDY: 
	Ialsowanttorecognizehissidekick,S tateS
	enatorCravens,formerS misshiminLouisianatoo.Ilistenedtothediscussionwehadaboutthescorecardthat--that ChairmanGrahambroughtup.I'mgoingtomakeoneverygentleobservationthatit--itmay beappropriateinotherareas,including,butnotlimitedto,thechallengeswefacewiththe shutdown.Andthatisthatsolongasallofuson--onbothsidesandallsidesandofevery politicalpersuasionare--aredrunkoncertaintyandvirtue,it'sgoingtobehardtomake progress.Weprobablyoughttolistenmore,talkalittleless. 
	enatorCravens.We 

	Here'smyquestionand--andifyoudon'tcaretoanswerit,that'sokayoryoudon'thaveany thoughts,butIwouldliketoknowthis,asyouknow,we--wehaveaS
	ixthAmendmentright tocounselinAmerica.It'spartofourBillofRights.Butinsomeinstances,intoomany instancesit'sahollowpromise.And--andI'dliketoknowyourthoughtsaboutourpublic defendersysteminAmericaandwhetheryouthinkitcomportswiththerequirementsof the--oftheS
	ixthAmendmentrighttocounsel.We'llstartdownhereandjustgodownthere, ifthat'sokay.IwouldaskyoualltobebriefbecauseIwanteverybodytohaveachance. 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Fromourexperience,thepublicdefendersystemisindireneedofassistance.It--itleadsto pleabargainsthatmaynotshouldhavehappenedandwewoulddeﬁnitelysupportmore 
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	moneyforrighttocounselandwedon'ttakeabackseattoanybodyonyourrighttobe representedinthesystemiswoefullyunderfunded. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay,thanks.Pastor? 
	RISHER: 
	IbelieveourPublicDefenderOﬃceneedsresources.Mostofthepeoplethatreceivea publicdefenderaremarginalizedpeoplewithoutresourcesandtheiropportunitytohave thebestcounseltheyhaveisnotsomethingtheyget.AndIwouldwantthatoﬃcetobeable toserveeveryone,regardlessofwhethertheyhavemoneyornot. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Okay.Prosecutor? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	S
	enator,I'mparticularlythankfulforyoutoraisethisissue.Ascriminaldefenseattorney,I 
	cantellyouthatthepublicdefenseorsystemisanutterwreck.Itisunderfunded.Judgesare 
	sanctioningpublicdefendersbecausetheyhavetoomanycasesandtheycan'tgettocourt. 
	Andsopublicdefendersareinthispositionwheretheycan'thandleallthecasesandyet 
	theyareheldincontent,buttheydon'twanttodoacaseinappropriatelywithoutzealous 
	representation. 
	S
	otheyhavethisabsoluteimpossiblesituationandit'sevenworseonthestatesystem.I--I 
	gaveaspeechinPittsburghandI--Isatdownwithsomepublicdefendersthere.Thepublic 
	defendersinPittsburghthatIhaddinnerwithareallmoonlightingasbartendersand 
	waiterstotrytocontinuetobepublicdefendersandfeedtheirfamily.Imean,that'show 
	badthesystemis. 
	KENNEDY: 
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	Professor? 
	KINKOPF: 
	I--Iagreethatpublicdefendersareheroicpublicservants.Theyareoverworked,theywere underpaid,andthatthesystemofpublicdefenseandprovisionofcounselneedstoexpand farbeyondeventhelimitedareaitappliestonow,intomunicipalcourts,intoinfractions thatshouldn'tbutdoendupleadingtopeopleservingjailtime. 
	CARY: 
	S
	enator,I'mthedaughterofacriminaldefenselawyer,I'mmarriedtoacriminaldefense lawyer,andhe'sthesonofacriminaldefenselawyer,soI'mallinfavorofgreatlawyering availableforallAmericanswhoﬁndthemselvesinfront--infrontofacourtroom.Thething thatI--IwouldsuggestisI'mawarehereinWashingtonof--ofmanylawﬁrmswhoare partneringprobonowithcriminaldefense,Imean,publicdefenderservicestotryandget youngpeopleincourtandgetthemgreat--greatexperiencewhilealsogivinggood representationtopeoplewhoneedit.S
	omaybethat'soneoftheanswersthat--thatyoucan lookinto,butmyunderstandingistheyneedallthehelptheycangetand--andmaybe youngpeoplecanhelp. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Thankyou,professor? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Aquick,coupleofquickthings.Ihadthegreatprivilegeandpleasurelastyeartospeakin AtlantatotheFederalPublicDefenderS
	erviceatitsconveninggathering.AndIwouldoﬀer tothecommitteeperhapsthisisanexampleofabipartisanshiporientedinitiative,whichis thiscommitteetoholdhearingsdoanexaminationofboththefederalpublicdefender system,whichmaybeinalittlebitbettershape,butunderfundedandunderstaﬀed,aswell aslocalpublicdefendersystems,andyou'llgetarealsenseofwhateveryonehassaid,how 
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	stretched,howoverworked,andhow,ineﬀect,damagingthisistotheoperationofjustice andtotheconstitutionalguaranteeoftheS
	ixthAmendment. 
	AndthelastthingI'dsay,inthelate80s,S
	enatorKennedy,Iwaspartofasmallgroupof lawyersthatactuallychallengedtheverysameissueinLouisiana.Wechallengeditby askingtheS upremeCourttoconductaninvestigation,whichtheydid.Theyﬁledthat
	tateS thesystemwasunderfundedbutthentheytookthepositionthat,astheS
	upremeCourt, theycouldnot,"InstructtheExecutiveBranchtoadequatelyfundthepublicdefender system." 
	Thebottomlinehere,Iwouldoﬀerthis,andI'mgladyouraiseditasaimportantelementof thisdiscussionaroundcriminaljusticereform.Andthatistorepair,toﬁx,toreformthe publicdefendersystems,bothatthefederal,atthestate,andalsoatthelocallevelsacross thisnation. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Thankyou,mayor. 
	THOMPSON: 
	Thankyou,S
	enatorKennedyforraisingthisissue.Assomeonewhoservedontheboardat onetimeoftheAtlantaFederalDefenderProgram,Ithinkthatthepublicdefenderprogram deﬁnitely,atthefederallevel,needsstrengthening.However,atthestatelevel,itisatotal collapse.AndIthinkwiththeDepartmentofJusticecando,andyoucouldpursuethiswith AttorneyGeneralNomineeBarr,isthroughtheOﬃceofJusticeProgramsencourageOJPto developprograms,toassiststatepublicdefenderoﬃces,appropriatefundsforthatpurpose intermsofgrantsbecausetheDepartmentofJusticeisnottheDepart
	JOHNSON: 
	Icertainlyagreewiththe--thepanelisttodaythatthepublicdefendersystemisindireneed. IservedasacommissionerontheS
	tateofMississippiAccesstoJusticeCommission.And 
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	wereviewedthisissue.Mississippiisoneofthepooreststates,similartoLouisiana,and whatwefoundwasasystemsocorruptitwasoneoftheprimaryfactorsforprison overcrowding.Youhavealargenumberofindividualswhoaresittinginjailpretrial--aspretrailtrialdetaineesbecausetheyhaveineﬀectivecounselornocounselatall.S
	-

	oit'sanissue 
	thatIagreewithmycolleagueMarcMorialthatthiscouldbeabipartisanissuewecanwork 
	onbecausetheneedisdeﬁnitelythere. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Judge? 
	MUKASEY: 
	My--senator,my--myexperienceIthinkisprobablymorelimitedthanvirtuallythe experienceofalloftheotherpanelistsbecauseMike'sparentsislargelyconﬁnedtoone districtintheUnitedS
	tates.Thatsaid,myexperiencewithFederalDefendersinthe S
	outhernDistrictofNewYorkisthattheywerepeopleofunparalleledskill.Itwas competitiontogetthosejobsandtheywerehighlyvalued.S
	imilarly,undertheCriminal JusticeAct,weappointprivatelawyerstorepresentdefendants. 
	Again,there'scompetitiontogetonthatlist,soyoureallygetthe--thelawyersbyandlarge, inmycourt,whorepresentedindigentdefendantswerebyandlargemoreskillful,andmy experience,thantheprivatelyretainedlawyers.S
	omeofthemweresimplyshowboats.That 
	said,Ithinkthesystemisdeﬁnitelyinneedofsupport,certainlyatthestatelevel,andI 
	secondLarryThompson'scallforhavingOJPtargetparticularareaswith--withgrantsso 
	thattherecanbedemonstrationprojectsthatwould--would--wouldshowtheway. 
	KENNEDY: 
	Thankstoallofyou.Youhonoruswithyourtimeandyourtestimonytoday. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
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	Thankyou,Chairman,andthankyouverymuchtothepanel,particularlyRev.Risher.I'd liketojoinmycolleaguesinexpressingmyappreciationforyourtestimonyhere.Ihadthe opportunitynearlythreeyearsagotovisitEmanuelAMEMethodistChurchwiththeFaith andPoliticsInstitute.Itwasoneofthemostmovingexperiencesofmylife.Itwas remarkable.AndtomeetwiththesurvivorsafewmonthslaterhereinWashingtonwas impressive.AndI'msogladthatyouarekeepingthattragedyaliveinourheartsbecauseit shouldnotbeoverlooked,andIappreciateit. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyou,sir,foryourwords.AndtheEmanuelNinewillbesomethingthatIwillcontinue totalkabouttheirlivestoletotherpeopleknowthattheydidnotdieinvain.AndIthank youforyourcomments. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Don'teverstop. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyou. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Mr.Mukasey,Ihavesomequestionsforyou,andIwanttoletyouknowrightoﬀthebatthat thisgoesbackabout10years,andsoyouwillhavefull--Iwillgiveyoueverychanceto answermorefulsomelyinwrittenanswers,youknow,thequestionfortherecordsothatif there'sanythingthatyoudon'trecallnow.ButthereasonIwantedtoaskyouyourquestions isthatIviewit,anyway,asaresponsibilityoftheattorneygeneraltofearlesslygowherethe evidenceandtheruleoflawlead,andtoallow,particularlyininvestigativematters,tolet theevidenceandthelawbeyourguides. 
	Now,giventhecircumstancesthatsurroundthedepartment,thewillingnessofanattorney generaltobeindependentwhereevidenceleadstotheWhiteHouse,isof,Ithink,particular 
	5102 
	http -

	moment.AndthattakesmebacktotheinvestigationintotheremovalofnineU.Sattorneys 
	. in2006.Thatreportwasconcludedin2008onyourwatchasattorneygeneral.Asyou'll recall,itwasajointeﬀort.Thosedon'thappenallthatofteninthedepartment,butthiswas ajointeﬀortbetweentheDepartmentofJusticeOﬃceofInspectorGeneralandthe DepartmentofJusticeOﬃceofProfessionalResponsibility.Andtheinvestigationled,both intoWhiteHouseﬁlesandintoOﬃceofLegalCounselﬁles.AstotheWhiteHouseﬁles,the WhiteHouserefusedtocooperateandrefusedtoprovideaccesstoyourOIG/OPR investigatorstocloseouttheirinvestigation.TheOLCrefusedtoprovideun-r
	been,andIquoteithere,hampered,andhindered,andleftwithquotegapsasaresultofthe failureoftheWhiteHouseandOLCtoprovidethenecessaryinformationtothe investigators. 
	MUKASEY: 
	ThatwastheOIGreport? 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Yes,OIG/OPR.Itwasbothofthemtogether,asyoumayrecall.S
	ohere'smyconcern.You weretheattorneygeneralatthetime.YoucouldhavereadilyinstructedOLC,knockitoﬀ, guys,providethesefolksthedocuments.Andwhileyoucan'tinstructtheWhiteHousein whattodo,whentheWhiteHouse--whentheinvestigationleadstotheWhiteHousegates andtheWhiteHousegatescomedown,tomeit'stheattorneygeneral'sresponsibilityat thatpointtowalkdowntotheWhiteHouseandsayoneoftwothingsisgoingtohappen; we'regoingtogetcooperationinourinvestigation,orwe'regoingtohavearesignation becausetheDepartmentofJusticeneedstofollowth
	Asyouknow,thereisnoexecutiveprivilegeissueasbetweentheDepartmentofJusticeand theWhiteHouse.Thatisaseparationofpowersissue,anditkeepsthingsfromus,butit 
	-
	-

	doesn'tlimitdocumentswithintheExecutiveBranch.S
	oIwouldliketogetnowyour recollectioninamorefulsomeway,inawrittenfashionifyouwouldliketoelaborate,whyit isthatyoufeltthatwhentheDepartmentofJusticehadanongoinginvestigativematterthat ledtothegatesoftheWhiteHouseitwasokayfortheWhiteHousetosayno,we'renot cooperatingandfortheDepartmentofJusticetostanddownbecauseIthinkthatwouldbea lousyprecedentfornow? 
	MUKASEY: 
	ThisgoestothequaliﬁcationsofMr.Barrtoserveasattorneygeneral,doesit? 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Totheextentthatthereisaconcernaboutwhetherhewouldbewillingtodothatbecause-
	-

	MUKASEY: 
	Myrecollectionis-
	-

	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Wecouldgetareplayofthis,andifhe'scitingtheMukaseyprecedent,Iwanttoknowmore abouttheMukaseyprecedent. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Idoubtthathe'scitingtheMukaseyprecedent,numberone.Numbertwo,myrecollection ofthat,whichhasbeenover10years. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Whichiswhy(INAUDIBLE) 
	MUKASEY: 
	-
	-

	Butnonetheless,olderpeoplehaveabetterrecollectionofthedistantpastsometimesthan theydooftherecentpast,soIdorememberittosomeextent. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Yeah. 
	MUKASEY: 
	involvedthecircumstancesunderwhichnineU.Sattorneyswereterminated,andthose 
	MyrecollectionisthattheinvestigationdidnotleadtothegatesoftheWhiteHouse.It 

	. peoplewereoﬀeredtheopportunitytocomeback.Theywerealsooﬀeredapologiesbyme, andthat'sthewaythematterended.That'smyrecollection. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Okay,wellI'daskyoutotakealookatthequestionfortherecordthatIwillpropoundtoyou becausethat'sdiﬀerentthanwhattheOIGandOPRsaidatthetimebecausetheyfeltthat theywerehampered,hindered,andleftwithgapsintheirinvestigation,whichis--anditwas WhiteHouseﬁlesthatwereatissue.S
	omytimeisexpired,butIhopewecansettlethis questionbecauseIdothinkitcreatesadiﬃcultprecedentinaworldinwhichthe DepartmentofJusticemaynowhavetoasksimilarlytoughquestionsthattakeitintoWhite Houseﬁles. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Yeah,Iseriouslydoubtthatoneinvestigationandhowitwashandledcreatesaprecedentin anysenseforanother,butI'llansweryourquestion. 
	WHITEHOUSE: 
	Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	-
	-

	S
	enatorGrassley. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Yeah.Firstofall,fortheReverend,Idon'tunderstandhowpeoplecanhavesomuchhate thattheydowhattheydo.That'swhatcomestomymindallthetimewhenIhearstories likeyou,andIrememberitfromthedayithappened.Thankyouforbringingittoour attention. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyou,sir,forlistening. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Mr.Canterbury,we've--you'vetalkedsomeabouttheFirstS
	tepAct.Iwanttogobacktoit. TheFraternalOrderofPolicewasveryinstrumentalinhelpinggetitacrosstheﬁnishline, appreciateyourstrongleadership.TheFirstS
	andobviouslyasthechairmanofthecommitteeatthattime,Ithankyoufordoingthat.We 

	tepActrequiresthattheJusticeDepartment andtheattorneygeneralimplementariskandneedsassessmentsystem,allownonviolent inmatestoreceiveearnedtimecreditforparticipatinginrecidivismreductionprogramming andrecalculategoodtimecreditforallinmates. 
	Here'sforyou.GivenMr.Barr'spaststatementsopposingcriminaljusticereform,especially sentencingreform,doyoubelievethathewillbeabletodutifullyimplementthesystemthat theFraternalOrderofPoliceworkedsohardtogetpassed?TobefairtoMr.Barr,yesterday hetestiﬁedthathe'dimplementthelawandnotundermineit.Areyoucomfortablewith thatcommitment? 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Ithinkhispastexperiencesinfollowingthelawspeakvolumestohisabilitytobeableto takewhatCongresssenttothepresidentandthepresidentsignedandimplementthe program.Wehavefullconﬁdenceinhim. 
	-
	-

	GRASSL
	EY: 
	NowechoingwhatS
	enatorDurbinsaidaboutthevastsupportthatthislegislationhadfrom whatI'dsayextremerighttoextremeleftandeverythinginbetween, lawenforcement, JudicialBranch,victimrightsgroups,civilrightsgroups,faithgroups,inyouropinionwill Mr.BarrbeabletoworkwiththesestakeholderstoeﬀectivelyimplementtheFirstS
	tepAct? 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Yessir,wehavefullconﬁdencethathe'llbeabletodothat. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Yeah.NowtoGeneralMukaseyandtoMr.Thompson,I'mnotquestioningMr.Barr's truthfulnesswhenIaskyouthisquestion,butinthepastMr.Barropposedoureﬀortsat criminaljusticereform.Mr.BarralsohadconcernsabouttheconstitutionalityofFalse ClaimsActandopposedthatlaw.YesterdayMr.Barrtestiﬁedthathe'dimplementtheFirst S
	tepActandhadnoproblemswiththeFalseClaimsAct.Weallknowthattheattorney generaloftheUnitedS
	tateshasthedutytoenforcethelawsinafairandevenmannerand ofcoursewithoutpersonalbias.GeneralMukasey,inyouropinion,willMr.Barrbeableto dothat?DoyoubelievethatMr.Barrwillbeabletofaithfullyimplementandenforcethe lawsthathemaynotpersonallyagreewith? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Icertainlythinkhewill.Hisrecordshowsthathe's--ifheadherestoonethingitistothe requirementsofthelaw,andIwilltellyouinmyowncaseIwasinitiallyopposedtosome partoftheFirstS oI'massumingthathewillhave 
	tepAct.Ilaterbecameasupporterofit.S thesameopenmind,atleastthesameopenmindthatIhave. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Okay.AndMr.Thompson,alongthesamelines,youropiniononMr.Barr'sabilityto enforcethelawsfairly,evenlyandwithoutpersonalbias. 
	-
	-

	THOMPSON: 
	S tepAct.Ifyoulookatwhat 
	enator,asyouknow,IwasaverystrongsupporteroftheFirstS AttorneyGeneralBarrdidwhenhewasattorneygeneralintheBushadministrationandhis emphasisintheWeedandS
	eedProgramoncommunitycollaboration,hisadmitted--his admittedstatementstoRev.JoeLowery,asImentionedinmyopeningstatement,about thefailureofprison--puttingmorepeopleinprisontohelpridourcrimeinfested neighborhoods,heunderstandstheneedtodosomethingmorethanjustlockpeopleup.S
	o IthinkhewillfaithfullyimplementtheFirstS
	tepAct,bothinthespiritandliterally. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Alsodoyou,Mr.Thompson,sinceyou'veworkedwithMr.Barrsomuchandknowinghim asyoudo,wouldyousaythathe'llbeindependentleaderoftheJusticeDepartment,thatwe oughttoexpectand--and--well,letmeﬁnishthisbecauseIwantGeneralMukaseyalsoto speaktoit,andmaybethesequestionscomefromthefactthatwerecentlyhadanattorney generalthatreferredtohimselfasthewingmanforthepresident.S
	owhat'syouropinionof Mr.Barr'sabilitytobeindependentheadoftheJusticeDepartment?Doyouhaveanydoubt thathe'llbeabletostanduptothepresident?S
	oit'skindofthesamequestiontobothof you. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Ihaven'tgotanydoubtatall.He'sdoneitinthepast,numberone.Andheisn'tanybody's wingman.AndIthinkheunderstandsthatifheeversobehavedhewouldcomebacktothe departmenttoﬁndamoundofresignationsonhisdesk.S
	oIdon'tthinkhewouldeverdo anythinglikethatandisnotinclinedtodoit. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Mr.Thompson. 
	THOMPSON: 
	-
	-

	IagreewithGeneralMukasey.BillBarrunderstandsthemanypolicies,traditionsofthe DepartmentofJusticethathavestoodforaseparationbetweenthedepartmentandthe WhiteHouseonmattersofcriminalinvestigations,decisionstoindict.Idon'tthinkthatthe menandwomenthathehasledoverthepastyearsin--intheDepartmentofJustice,Ithink hewillunderstandtheirrespectforthesetraditions,andIthinkhewill--heunderstandsthe nuancesthatleadtowhywehavethesepoliciesandtraditions,andIthinkhewillfaithfully followthemandsupportthem. 
	GRASSL
	EY: 
	Yeah.AndforMs.CaryandMr.Thompson,IthinkI'llkindofanswermyﬁrstquestion.I thinkyouwouldsayaboutMr.Barr'sﬁtnesstobeattorneygeneraloftheUnitedS
	tates,but couldyoutellussomeobservationsyou'vehadabouthimthatleadyoutobelievehe'sthe personthatyou'veworkedwithandthen,inturn,tobeagoodattorneygeneral? 
	CARY: 
	Theyearthathewasattorneygeneral,1992,youmayrecall,startedwithPresidentBush throwingupontheJapaneseprimeminister. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	Itwas--sothebeginningofaroughyear.AsGeneralMukaseypointedout,therewasthe TalladegaPrisonRiots.TherewasthecrackepidemicthatS
	enatorDurbinwastalking about.GeneralBarryesterdaywaspointingoutthattheviolentcrimeratehadquintupled overthepreviousthreedecades.HurricaneAndrew--youmaynotrememberthis,but HurricaneAndrewhitS
	outhFloridaparticularlyhardandknockedoutatremendous amountoffederallawenforcementresourcesdownthere,andtherewasgreatfearthatit wasgoingtobecomesortofalawlessplacewheredrugdealersandtheCoastGuardwould notbeabletocontrolthings.AndthentherewasalsotheRodneyKingverdictandtheLA riots.S
	oitwasaverydangerousyearinalotofways,andIremembergoingtoapress conferenceweweregoingtohaveinRichmond,Ithinkitwas,withthelategreatJackKemp 
	-
	-

	wassecretaryofHUDatthetime.Andasthetwomotorcadespulledinwiththeattorney generalandthesecretaryofHUDintothispublichousi 
	ngprojectthatweweregoingtotalkabouthowtomakepublichousingprojectsmoresafe, rightbeforewegottheretherewassomesortofgangviolence,andthelawenforcement hadcomeinandarrestedawholebunchofpeople,andtherewasgunﬁre.Andsoaswegot outofthecarstheycametoS
	ecretaryKempandGeneralBarr,andtheysaidit'sstillalittle dangeroushere.Therecouldbesomestraybullets.We'vegottwobulletproofvestsforthe twoofyou.Whydon'tyouputtheseonandheaduptothepodium?AndGeneralBarrpoints atmeandsays,wellwhatabouther?Andtheagentssay,"Oh,I'msorrysir,weonlyhave twobulletproofvests." Andhesays,"Okay,wellMaryKate,youtakemine."Andtheagent said,"No,no,nosir,that'snotgoingtohappen.Youtakethevest.Youheadtothepodium withS
	ecretaryKemp."Andheturnsaroundtome,andhesays,"Wellthisisunacceptable. Yougetinthecar,thearmoredlimo,andjustkeepyourheaddown." 
	AndIthoughtatthetime,boy,thattellsyouvolumesabouthimthatheevennoticedthatI wasstandingthere.Butreallywhatwasgoingon--thepointofthestoryisthatitwasavery dangerousplace,andtherewerepeoplewholivedtherealltheirlives,andwewerearriving inlimosandgoingtobeabletoleave,andtheycouldn't.Andthat,Ithink,madeabig impressiononeverybodyinvolvedofwhatpeople'sliveswerelikeinthiscrazyyear,ofhow dangerousthingswere,howbadtheviolentcrimeratewas,andallhewantedtodowastry andhelpsomeofthesepeoplewhowereinthesehorriblesituations.An
	tep Actbecausethat'sthekindofpersonheis. 
	THOMPSON: 
	S
	enator,IhaveobservedBillBarrinproblem-solvingsituations.Yes,hewillbetheleader, buthelistenstopeopleverycarefully.Hehasanopenmind.Heisrespectfulofdiﬀerent opinions.Andhe--hehasaproblem-solvingpersonalityinthesensethateverythingis 
	-
	-

	collaborative,andIthinkhewillbeaterriﬁcleaderoftheDepartmentofJustice.AndIhave nodoubtaboutthat. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou.It'sbeenaterriﬁcpanel.S
	enatorKlobuchar,thenwe'lltakeabreak.Youallhave beengoingatitfortwohours.We'lltakea10-minutecomfortbreakafterS
	enator Klobuchar,andwe'llplowthroughuntilwegetdone.Thankyouallforyourpatience. 
	KL
	OBUCHAR: 
	Thankyouverymuch,Mr.Chairman.I'mgoingtotalk,starttalkinghereaboutvoting rights.IaskedafewquestionsofMr.Barraboutthisandithasbeensuchaproblemacross thecountry. 
	Icomefromastateasyouknow,Mr.Johnson,withoneofthehighestvoterturnouts,the highestinthelastelectionandpartofthatisbecausewehavesame-dayregistration,abill thatIsponsoredtobringoutnationallyandIlookedatthenumbersthatshowstatesthat havethat.Whethertheyaremoreredoraremorebluetheyalwaysareinthetopgroupfor highestvoterturnout. 
	ItmakesahugediﬀerencetoallowpeopletovoteeitherwithanIDorwithaneighboror withsomeotherformsofidentiﬁcationandsoI'mveryconcernedabouttheS
	upreme Court'srulingofcourseintheS
	helbycase.AndyesterdayIaskedMr.Baroneaboutthestate electionoﬃcialsinNorthCarolinawhocontactedtheJusticeDepartmenttoexpress concernsabouttheintegrityoftheelectionsninemonthsbeforetheelectionandabout allegationsofvotersuppression. 
	S
	ohewasn'tthereofcourseatthetimebutIjustwonderinghowyouthinktheDepartment ofJusticeresponded,howtheyshouldhaverespondedwhentheyﬁrstheardfromthose stateoﬃcials? 
	-
	-

	JOHNSON: 
	FromtheNAACPperspectiveweareextremelyconcernedwiththelackofresponsiveness fromtheDepartmentofJustice.EversincetheS
	helbyv.Holdercasewasdecidedweknew thatS
	ection2 wouldbethevehicle--vehicletoprotectvoters.Thelackofthecurrent administrationuseofS
	ection2isproblematic. 
	Mr.Barr'scommendingAGS
	essions'tenureasAGisalsoconcerning.Hislackofclarityon howhewouldusetheJusticeDepartmenttoensureallAmericanscancastaballotfreeof vote--suppressionorintimidationleavesahugequestionmarkforus. 
	AnyindividualwhoserveasAGshouldhaveaprimaryconsideration,theprotectionofthe righttovoteofallcitizens.It'snotapartisanissue.Itshouldnotbeseenasapartisanissue. Itshouldbesomethingthat'sabovepartisanship. 
	I'maresidentofMississippiandwe'veseenthe--thedogwhistlepoliticsforaverylong time.Infact,ifyoulookatthehistoryofvotinginthestateofMississippisomeofthe languagesthatwereusedduringthe(INAUDIBLE) redemptionandafter1865isbeingused today.S
	omeofthetacticsthatwasusedin1870and1890isbeingusedtoday. 
	S
	oweneedaJusticeDepartmentthatcanriseabovepartisanshipandappreciatethatin orderforourdemocracytotrulyworkallcitizensshouldbeaﬀordedfreeandunfettered accesstotheballotbox. 
	KL
	OBUCHAR: 
	Verygood.Couldn'thavesaiditbetter.Thankyou.Mr.MukaseyyouandIworkedtogether whenyouwereattorneygeneralandasyouknowwehadanissueinMinnesotaandtheU.S
	. attorneyleftandyouworkedwithmetogetareplacementwhichItrulyappreciated.And youweputsomeonegoodinplaceintheinterimintheoﬃcecontinuestobeaverystrong oﬃcesothankyouforthat. 
	Couldyoujustbrieﬂytalkaboutwhenyouwereattorneygeneraldidyoueversaynotothe WhiteHouse? 
	-
	-

	MUKASEY: 
	Yes. 
	KL
	KL
	OBUCHAR: 

	Okay.Canyouremembersomeoftheinstanceswhereyoumaybesomeofthemwere public? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Irememberoneinparticular.Ican't--don'tthinkIcandiscussithere. 
	KL
	KL
	OBUCHAR: 

	Yeah. 
	MUKASEY: 
	ButitinvolvedpositionthatthegovernmentwouldtakeinlitigationandtheWhiteHouse wasofaparticularviewandthedepartmentwasofaparticularviewandweprevailed. 
	KL
	KL
	OBUCHAR: 

	S
	oyouthinkthat'sanimportant--IhadadiscussionwithMr.Barryesterdayjustthisconcept ofyes,youarethepresident'slawyerinthatyouaregivingadvicebutyouarealsothe people'slawyerandthere'ssometimeswherethosemadeconﬂict.Doyouwanttojust expandonthat? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Yeah,Imeanwhen--whenitcomestoapurelegalpositionandtheWhiteHouseistakinga policypositionthataﬀectsthatlegalpositionyes,itgetsverydelicateanditdidintheone instancethat--thatImentioned.Andthesolicitorwasofaparticularviewandwastold basicallyyoudowhatyouthinktheproperviewisandletmetakecareofthepolitics. 
	-
	-

	KL
	OBUCHAR: 
	Verygood.Allright.Thankyou.Mr.Morial,therehavebeendiscussion,bipartisan discussionuphereabouttheFirstS
	tepActandcouldyoujusttalkaboutsomeofthesteps thatwearegoingtoneedtotake,thattheattorneygeneralwillneedtotakeimmediatelyto implementitbecauseyoucanputallofthelawsyouwantonthebooksbutifyoudon't-
	-

	MORIAL
	: 
	Certainlyandletmejustreaﬃrmmythankstoyouandeverymemberofthecommitteehas supporteditearlyandcontinuedtopushforitsimprovementbutitistheFirstS
	supportedthatitwasavery,verylonganddiﬃculteﬀorttoarrivewherewearrived.We 

	tepAct. 
	TheimportantIthinkstepfortheattorneygeneralistogetthisoversightcommitteeinplace withtherightpeopleonit.AndIthinkthemostimportantthingthat'sgoingtobeinthe attorneygeneral'sbailiwickisone,organizingtheU.Sattorneyswhoaregoingtobe 
	. responsivetothosewhoaregoingtogobacktothecourtwheretheyweresentencedand requestresentencing. 
	Becausetheresentencingforexampleforthecrackcocainedisparityisn'tautomatic.It's goingtorequirethepublicdefenderservice,it'sgoingtorequireprivatelawyersandmy hopeisthattheUnitedS
	tatesattorneys'oﬃcesarenotgoingtogetintheway,notgoingto slowdowntheprocess,aregoingtomovewithspeedanddispatchtofacilitateandwork withifyouwillcriminaldefenselawyerstoidentifythosewhomightbeeligibleandgetthe Actinimplementation. 
	ButIalsothinktheaspectofitwhichinvolvestheworkoftheoﬃceofJustice,theBureauof PrisonswhichistheandthiswasagreatconcernundertheAct,whethertheBureauof Prisonswasgoingtohavetheenthusiasmandtheresources,senator,toexecutetheability ofpeopletoearnmoregoodtimewhichrequiresthemtoparticipateanddeveloprelease plansandtakestepstowardspreparingthemselvesforrelease.That'sanentireeﬀort. 
	-
	-

	Ithinkyouauthorizedsome$350millioninordertodothat.That'sgottobeimplemented, that'sgottobeexecutedandwedon'tneedanyfoot-dragginginordertodothat.S
	oIthink ifthecommitteecontinuestohaveoversightovertheworkonresentencingandtheworkon theexecutionofthepre-releaseprogram.Andthenthethirdelementofitwillcertainlybe andthiswasagreatconcernofours--
	IthinkthenomineeshouldbeaskedtorescindtheS
	essionsguidancethatwhereinhe directedU.S.attorneystoseekmaximumsentencesorthemaximumprosecution.S
	oifthe nomineeisgoingtobetrueto,IwillimplementtheFirstS
	tepActthenagoodfaitheﬀortby himwouldbetorescindthatguidance,right,torestorethediscretionoftheUnitedS
	tates attorneyswhenitcomestochargingdecisions.S
	othere'salotofworktobedoneandI wouldurgethecommitteetomaintainitsoversightroleinensuringthatthesethingsare executed. 
	KL
	OBUCHAR: 
	ThankyouandI'moutoftimebutIwantedtothankyou,reverend,forcomingforwardand Iwillaskyouontherecordnotnow,somequestionsaboutourbillthatwehaveonstalking becauseIknowyou'vebeensupportiveofthatandontheboyfriendloophole.S
	othankyou. AndMr.Canterbury,wewanttomoveforwardonthatcopsbillthatwehavewiththe trainingandthemoneyfortheoﬃcersandthankyouforyoursupportandworkonthat. Thankyou. 
	GRAHAM: 
	Thankyou.Wewilltakea10-minuterecesstogiveyouacomfortbreak.I'mgoingtohaveto godosomethingelseandifS
	enatorBlackburnwouldbekindenoughtochairthehearing untilweareﬁnished,Iwouldappreciateitandit'sbeenagreatpanel.Thankyouallfor comingvery,verymuch.S
	o10-minuterecess. 
	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	Thecommitteewillreturntoorder.S
	enatorCornyn,youarerecognized. 
	-
	-

	CORNYN: 
	Thankyou,MadameChairman.IwasjustcomplementingS
	enatorBlackburnonherrapid ascensiontochairmanofthecommittee. 
	(LAUGHTER) 
	I'vebeenonthecommitteefor16yearsandhaven'tquitemadeitthere.S
	ocongratulations. Wellthankyouallfor--forcomingandsharingyour--sharingyourviews.Ican'thelpbut commentonthestarkdiﬀerencesthatwearehearingfromthevariouswitnessesaboutthis particularnominee.He'seitherthemostqualiﬁedpersonyoucouldeverﬁnd,orheisthe leastqualiﬁedpersonandtheredoesn'tseemtobemuchroomandbetween.Butletmeask somespeciﬁcquestions. 
	First,Iwanttotalkasecondaboutcriminaljusticereformbecauseitstrikesmethatofall thetopicsthatwe'vedealtwithhererecently,that'soneoftheareasthatbringsustogether. AndI'lljustreﬂect,Mr.Johnson,IrememberbeinginDallasTexasmaybe10,12yearsago. IwasvisitingwithanumberofAfrican-AmericanpastorsandIaskedthem,Isaid,"What's thebiggestprobleminyourcongregation?" Andtheysaid,"Well,it'sformerlyincarcerated menwhohaveafelonyontheirrecord.Andit's--theycan'tﬁndajobandtheycan'tﬁnda placetolive." Andthat'ssortofalwayshauntedmeali
	Butinlightofsomeofthegreatworkthat'sbeendoneatthestatelevelonprisonreform, andIwouldhavetosayI'mproudoftheeﬀortsmadeinTexasandelsewheretotryto providepeopleopportunitieswhentheyareincarcerated,thosewhoarewillingtoaccept responsibilityfortheirownrehabilitation,thatwehadsomeremarkablesuccessesand peoplewhohavetakenadvantageoftheopportunitytoturntheirlivesaround.AndIthink we've--ourviewasa--asagovernmentandasapeoplehaschangedsigniﬁcantly. 
	Mr.Barrtalkedabout1992 andtheviolentcrimebackthenandthattherewasadiﬀerent attitude,andIthinkwelearnfromourexperience.ButIwanttogo--GeneralMukasey,one ofthethingsthatyoutestiﬁedto,IthinkinapreviousCongresswhenweweretalkingabout criminaljusticereform,yousaidthat'sreallythetest,theultimatetestforthesuccessof 
	-
	-

	criminaljusticereformisthecrimerate.IthinkI'mquotingyoucorrectly.Couldyouexplain thatbecausetherewerealotofpeoplewhowanttofocusonotherthingslikeincarceration ratesandotherissues.Butthecrimerate,itstrikesmepublicsafetystrikesmeasthemost importantone. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Yeah,Ithinkthatis--thatistheultimatetestforthis--thestatuethat'sjustbeenpassedand forfuturestatutes.Whatdoesitdotothecrimerate?Thecriminaljusticesystemistherein substantialparttoprotectthepublic.Ifit'sdoingthatandthecrimerateisdropping,then bravototheexperience.Andtoaskcertainextent,it'sgoingtobeanexperiment.We'llsee howpeopledowhentheygetout.We'llseehowmuchmoneyissaved,andwhatitcanbe directedtowardbywayofprevention,andhopefullyoursituationwillimprove. 
	CORNYN: 
	Well,fortunatelyinthecriminaljusticeﬁeld,wehaveactuallyusedthestatesaslaboratories ofdemocracyandwetriedthisoutbeforeweimplementeditatthenationallevel.AndI thinkwebeneﬁtedfromthosestate-basedexperiences.Inmystate,forexample,we've reducednotonlythecrimeratebuttherecidivismrateandwe've--we'veclosedplansto--to buildnewprisons,toincarceratemorepeople. 
	S
	oitreallystrikesmeassomethingthatisoneofthoseunusualscenarioswherebasicallywe wereabletocometogether,peopleofdramaticallydiﬀerentideologyandorientation,and cometogetheranddosomethingverypositiveforthecountry.AndI'mwe'regoingtokeep aneyeonthat,onthecrimerate.Tomeitisalitmustestofthesuccessofwhatwetrytodo. 
	ProfessorTurley,Iwantedtojustﬁrstofallcomplementyouonyourarticlethatyouwrote inTheHillandjustprefacethat.Thetitleofcoursewas"Witch-huntormolehunt?Times bombshellblowsupalltheories."I'vebeenextraordinarilytroubled,frankly,bythe politicalizationoftheDepartmentofJustice,includingtheFBI.AndIthinkyoupretty much,inthispolarizedworldwe'relivingin,youtalkedaboutcognitivebias.And dependingonthelensyou'relookingthrough,youcanseeanarrative,youcanbuilda 
	-
	-

	narrativethattellsyourstory.Wouldyoutakeaminutetosortofexplainthe--thethesisof yourarticleandtheviewsyouexpressthere? 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Thankyou,senator.WhatIthoughtwasmostinterestingabouttheNewYorkTimesarticle wasactuallynotthepointofthearticle,whichwasthatthepresidentmayhavebeen investigatedunderthesuspicionthathecouldbeanagentofaforeignpower.Butwhat cameouttomefromthearticlewasaninsightintowhatandhowtheFBIwaslookingatthis earlyintheTrumpadministrationandwealsohaveaninsightathowtheTrump administrationwasviewingwiththeFBIwasdoing. 
	Andthisgetstotheissueofcognitivebias,thatit'sawell-knownconceptthatyoucanlook ataproblemwithabiaswhereyouseethingsthatreaﬃrmyoursuspicions.Butinthiscase, theFBImovedearlyonwithaninvestigationthat--thattheWhiteHousewasawareof.That fulﬁlledtheir--theWhiteHouse'sownbiasthatthiswasadeepstateconspiracyandthe WhiteHousepushedback.AndwhentheWhiteHousepushedback,itfulﬁlledthe cognitivebiasoftheFBIthatthey'retryingtohidesomething. 
	Andifyoutakealookatthetimeline,youseethisactionandreactionoccurringwhereeach sideisreaﬃrmedbytheactionsoftheotherside.S
	owhatthe--whatthecolumnraisesisa distinctpossibilitythatwemightnothaveRussiancollusionoradeepstateconspiracy,that wemayhavetwosidesthatarefulﬁllingeachother'snarrativeandwe'vegonesofardown thisroadthatit'simpossiblenowtostopandsaywell,whatifneitherofthesethingsactually didexist? 
	Ineconomics,it'scalledpathwaydependencethatyoucaninvestsomuchintoasinglepath thatyoucannolongerbreakfromit.Andsowhatthecolumnissuggestingisthatperhaps wecanactuallyusethestoriesandtakeastepbackand,insteadofassumingtheworst motivationsbybothsides,lookatthisas--aswhetherbothsidesweretryingtodowhatthey thoughtwasrightorreactingtowhattheyfeltwascorrect,buttheymighthavebothbeen wrong. 
	-
	-

	CORNYN: 
	MadameChairman,mytimeisup.CouldItakeonemoreminute? 
	BL
	BL
	ACKBURN: 

	Yes,withoutobjection. 
	CORNYN: 
	YesterdayIwasaskingMr.BarraboutRodRosenstein'smemothat'sentitled"Restoring PublicConﬁdenceInTheFBI." AndtomeoneofthemostencouragingthingsaboutMr. Barr'sappointmentisIthinkhe'sexactlythetypekindofpersonwhocoulddothat,having donethis27yearsagoandbeingwillingtodoitagainfornootherreasonthanhisdesireto helprestoreconﬁdenceintheDepartmentofJusticeandtheFBI.S
	oifyougobackeven further,backwhenJamesComeywas--andtheFBIwereinvestigatingHillaryClinton's emailserverandhetooktheunprecedentedstepofhavingapressconferenceonJuly7, 2016,atwhichheessentiallyexoneratedMrs.Clintonwhiledetailingallthederogatory informationintheinvestigationandthenlateronhadtocomebackbecauseofthatpress conferencewhentheWeinerlaptopwasidentiﬁedandsayhey,wefoundsomemore emails. 
	TheideathattheFBIandtheDepartmentofJusticewouldcomesotangledupinanelection andpotentiallyinﬂuenceanelectionisreallyunprecedentedinourcountryandvery dangerous,frommyperspective.Andthenofcourse,whenMr.Comeywasﬁredbythe president,then--thenfolksontheleftthoughthewasS
	t.Jamesand--afterhehadbeenthe devil,Iguess,previouslyperiodwhenhewasinvestigatingMissClinton.S
	oIthink--Ido thinkthereissomeofthatcognitivebiasgoingonhereandweneedtoidentifyitandmaybe stepbackfromitandlearnfromit.Thankyou.you,MadameChairman. 
	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	S
	enatorHirono. 
	-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Thankyou,MadamChair.Rev.Risher,I,too,havehadtheopportunitytomeetwithsome ofthesurvivorsofthattragicday,andsothankyouverymuchforyourheartfeltreminderof theworkthatremainsforustodo. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyou. 
	HIRONO: 
	ProfessorKinkopf,you'vewrittenalotabouttheunitaryexecutive,andthat'ssomething thatMr.Barrsubscribesto,soIfounditreallyinterestingwhatyoumentionedtoday becausetherewerealotofquestionsfromsomanyofusseekingreassurancesfromMr. BarrthathewouldnotinterferewiththeMuellerinvestigationinanyway,shapeorform. Andtoday,though,yousaidthosewerethe--thoseassurancesareirrelevantbecauseunder theunitaryexecutivetheorythatifMr.BarrwereaskedcanthepresidentﬁreMr.Mueller, thenMr.Barrwouldsayyes.S
	otheregoestheentireinvestigation.Ifoundthattobeareally interestingstatementonyourpart.S
	othatmeansthat--let'ssaythatifthepresidentdoes ﬁreMueller,andonewouldsaythatunderanormalcircumstancethatkindofﬁringcould bepartandparcelofanobstructionofjustice,kindofaninvestigation.Butiftheentire underlyinginvestigationgoesawaybecausetheinvestigatorisﬁred,thenwherearewe?S
	o that's 
	veryinterestingaswesoughttoseethekindofreassurancesthatwouldenableustofeel thattheMuellerinvestigationis,infact,goingtobeabletoproceed. 
	S
	oyoutalkedalittlebitaboutwhattheimpactoftheunitaryexecutive--andIdo--that theory--andIdounderstandthatthere'sarange.It'snot,youknow--there's--there'sa continuumthere.S
	oIjustwanttoaskundertheunitaryexecutivetheorycanapresident commitobstructionofjusticewithimpunity? 
	-
	-

	KINKOPF: 
	S
	oI'llanswerbasedonthememothat-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Yes. 
	KINKOPF: 
	--Mr.Barrwrotelastsummerbecause,asyousay,there'sarange,andsotheanswerwould bediﬀerentdependingwhereyouareontherange.TheBarrmemoallowsthattheremaybe circumstanceswhereapresidentcanbeunderstoodtohavecommittedobstructionof justice.Nowthat'sdiﬀerentfromsayingthepresidentcanbechargedwithobstructionof justice,andinfactMr.Barryesterdayduringhistestimonysaidheseesnoreasontodeviate fromthedepartment'spolicythatasittingpresidentcan'tbeindicted.Butevenwithinthat constructthatapresidentcancommitobstructionofjustice,it'
	discussioninthememo,thenthatcannotbethebasisofanobstructionofjusticecharge.If 

	entTrumpthenusedhisauthoritytoﬁreMueller,that,byextension,wouldn'tbesomething thatcouldserveasthebasisofanobstructionofjusticechargeonthetheorysetforthinthe memo.AndIthinkheshouldbeatleastaskedinfollow-upquestionswhetherornothe wouldapplythelogicofthememotothatsituation.Andheshouldbeasked,ifthatwereto transpire,wouldheresignbecauseIthinkyesterdayheindicatedthatthatwouldbean abuseofpower,andthat'ssomethinganattorneygeneralshouldresigniftheattorney generalsees. 
	HIRONO: 
	-
	-

	IthinkyouhavegivenusafurtherlineofquestionstosubmittoMr.Barr.Regardingthe VotingRightsAct--sothisisforMr.JohnsonandMr.Morial--weknowthataftertheS
	helby Countydecisionthereweremany,manystatesthatpassedallkindsoflegislationthatwould beconsideredbyalotofusasvotersuppression.AndyesterdayMr.Barrtestiﬁedthathe wouldvigorouslyenforcetheVotingRightsAct,S
	ection2 oftheVotingRightsActfor--to thetwoofyou.S ection2proceedingbroughtbytheJustice
	incetherehasnotbeenasingleS Department,whatspeciﬁcallycouldMr.Barr--whatwouldyouwantMr.Barrtodoto vigorouslyenforcetheVotingRightsActashetestiﬁedyesterday? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Ithinknumber1,thatheshouldreviewthedecisionbytheJusticeDepartmenttoswitch sidesinthesetwocases.Onehasbeenresolved.Number2,heshouldasktheVoting S
	ectionoftheCivilRightsDivisiontopresenttohimallinstanceswheretheJustice DepartmenthasbeenaskedtoinitiateS
	ection2 claims.Number3,Ibelievethatheshould investigate,evaluateandreviewthosestatesthathavepassedvotersuppressionlawsto determinewhether,infact,theyarediscriminatory,andinfact,iftheyarediscriminatoryto initiateaS
	ection2 claim.Theissueisisfortheattorneygeneralandthemanycompetent lawyersinthecivilrightsdivisionatJusticetodotheirjobwithoutpoliticalinterference,to makerecommendationstohimonwhatstepsshouldbetaken.Alotofstuﬀhasbeenput intothedeepfreezeintheS
	essionsadministrationbecausehewasjustnotinterestedatall inenforcingtheVotingRightsActbecausehedisagreedwiththeVotingRightsActandhad hadalong 
	careerofdisagreeingwiththeVotingRightsAct. 
	Well,theattorneygeneraldoesnothaveanoptiontopickorchoosewhichlawstheywantto enforce.Theymustenforcealllawsthatarevigorous--vigorouslybecauseit'syourjobasthe LegislativeBranchtopassthoselaws.S
	oIthinkthatthereareanumberofthingsthatthe attorneygeneralcando,andmostimportantly,topubliclystatethathewillnotfollowthe policyofAttorneyGeneralS
	essionswhenitcomestotheentirerealmofcivilrights.It's importantforhimtobeontherecordasforcefulaspossible,butalsotocommittotakethe 
	-
	-

	necessarystepstoensurethatS
	ection2isvigorouslyenforced,andalsotolookatthose instanceswheretheJusticeDepartmenthaseitherswitchedsides-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Yes. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	--orrefusedtotakeaposition.ThecaseImentionedearlierinmytestimony,theChisholm case,whichwasajudicialreapportionmentcaseinwhichIwasaplaintiﬀ--thecasewas broughtin1985.ItwasdecidedbytheS
	upremeCourtin1991--wasacasewherethe JusticeDepartmentsidedwithusduringtheReaganadministration.Andsotheconsistency oftheJusticeDepartmentinciting--takinganaﬃrmativestandinvotingrightscases,in supportofthosewho'vebeenaggrieved,issomethingthatuntiltheS
	essionsadministration wasabipartisanmatter.AndIthinkthatthisnomineeshouldbeaskedwhetherheisgoing torestorethatemphasisandthatintegritytotheenforcementoftheVotingRightsAct. 
	HIRONO: 
	MadamChair,I'dliketoaskMr.Johnsontorespond. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Iagreewithmycolleague,butIalsothinkheshouldinterveneincurrentlitigation.There areseveralongoingvotingrightcasesthat'stakingplaceacrossthecountry.S
	econdly,he shouldworktoﬁxtheissuearoundS pecialCommitteeonVoting
	ection5,theHouseS RightsActwillbedoinghearingsacrossthecountry,frommyunderstanding.Andifhe becomesattorneygeneralheshouldseektoalsosupportaﬁxintermsofS
	ection5.And thenthirdly,reviewformerly-coveredjurisdictionstoseeif,infact,they'vemadechanges intheirpolicies,practicesorproceduresandifthosechangeswere,infact,voter suppressionmethodssowecandocumenttherecordtoshowthatwithoutaproactive JusticeDepartmentandlaw,jurisdictionswillrevertbacktopastpracticesofdiscriminatory actions. 
	-
	-

	HIRONO: 
	Thankyou. 
	BL
	BL
	ACKBURN: 

	IrecognizemyselfforquestionsatthistimeandMr.Turley,I'dliketocometoyouﬁrst. 
	YouspokelastDecemberatthePressClubaboutprivacyrightsandsecurityinaworldwith changingtechnologyandtherisinguseofartiﬁcialintelligenceandfacialrecognition technologyandthe--thechallengesthatthatisgoingtoposefortheJusticeDep-Department.Ithinkweallrealizetheyaregoingtobethereandwewillhavetobe confrontedandnoclearanswershaveemergedatthispointastowhoownsthevirtualyou, youandyourpresenceonline. 
	-

	Andmoreandmorenowonadailybasis,wearehearingfromconsumerswhoarewanting tomakecertainthatthereareprivacyprotectionsinadigitalworld,in--inthatvirtualspace andthattheyareforeverybodyandthateverybodyplaysfortherules.S
	oMr.Barrisgoing tohavetoaddresstheseissuesbecauseitisgoingtorequiregreaterenforcementfromthe attorneygeneralandI'dliketohearfromyouontherolethatyouseetheDepartmentof JusticeunderMr.Barr'sleadershipplayingaswedealwithcompanieslikeTwitterand Facebookandsomeoftheseedgeprovidersinthetechnologyspace. 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Thankyou,senator.Ofthoseemergingareas,facialrecognitiontechnologyisprobablythe fastestmovingandtheonethathastobeaddressedthesoonest.I'vealreadyspokenwith peopleatJusticeDepartmentandtoseeifthere'sanywaythattheprivacycommunityand thegovernmentandprivateindustrycouldﬁndcommongroundhere. 
	Ithinkthatforprivacyadvocateswecouldnolongerjustsimplysaythatallfacial recognitiontechnologyisanevilandwe'renotgoingtoworkwithit.Partofthereasonis thattheFourthAmendmentcontrolsthegovernment,itdoesn'tcontrolprivatebusinesses 
	-
	-

	andthismarkethas--hasprogressedtothepointthatyouarenotgoingtogetthatcatto walkbackwards. 
	Imeanthisisanemergingmarket.TheChinesehaveputahugeofamountofinvestmentin it.IfyoujustlandatS
	hanghaiyouwillseewhatfacialtechnologyisgoingtolooklikeacross the--aroundtheworld.S
	othequestionishowdowethenmarriedtheprivacyvaluesthatwe havewiththelegitimatesecurityinterestsofthegovernmentandtheansweristhere'sa coupleofthingsthatwecando. 
	Oneisthatmostofthistechnologyisgoingtorequireadatabanktobeusedeﬀectively includingfacialrecognitiondata.Wecanactproactivelytotrytocreateprivacyprotections fortheaccessofthatinformation,howlongthatinformationcanbestored,forwhatreasons itcanbeused. 
	Weneedtoreallygetaheadofthisandfrankly,BillBarrisaperfectpersontodothis becausenotonlydoeshehavereallythelawenforcementchopsintermsofunderstanding howtechnologyisusedbuthespentalotoftimeinprivatebusinessatthehighestlevel.And soIcan'timagineanyonebetteronthisissuequitefranklytotackleit. 
	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	Mr.Thompson,letmecometoyouwithanothertechnologyquestionbecauselastfallDOJ metwithsomeofourstates'attorneysgeneraltotalkaboutthefrustrationswithGoogleand Amazonandsomeoftheseedgeprovidersandtheirfailuretoprotectconsumerdataand alsotheiranticompetitivebehavior. 
	AndoneofthethingsthatcameoutofthiswashowGoogleprioritizessearchresults,theirs togivethemacompetitiveadvantageoverYelp.S
	oweknowthatthesechallengesareonly goingtoberesolvedifthereisamultifacetedstrategythatincludesapartnershipwithour states'attorneysgeneralandifthereisenforcementbytheantitrustdivisionandConsumer ProtectionBranch. 
	S
	owiththatinmindhowwouldyouadviseMr.Barrorhowdoyouseehimmovingforward atDOJtodealwithbigtechandtheseissuesthattheyarereallyconfrontingconsumers 
	-
	-

	everyday? 
	THOMPSON: 
	WhatIseewithrespecttoyourquestion,senator,isthatthisissomethingnumberonethatI reallydonotknowalotaboutthisbutIthinktheattorneygeneralnomineeifheisselected wouldcomeinandreviewwithcareerDepartmentofJusticelawyersandother professionalsinthedepartmentonissue,reviewtheissues, listentothemcarefully. 
	Thisiswhathehasdoneonotherissuesofimport.Butmoreimportantlytoyourquestionis thatIthinkhehasgreatexperienceinthepastofworkingwithjointtaskforces,jointeﬀorts withstateandlocalauthoritiesespeciallythestateAGsandheknowshowtodothis.Hehas doneitsuccessfullyinthepastandIthinkhewouldbeabletoworkwithourstatelaw enforcementcolleaguesandgetattheanswersthatwereraisedinyour--yourquestion.Very important,veryimportantmatters. 
	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	AndtheminutethatIhaveleftandbeforeIyieldMr.Blumenthalwillbenext.Ijustwantto thankeachofyouforbeinghere.AndReverendRisher,Iwanttothankyouforyour testimonyinthe--
	IcametotheS
	enatefromtheHouseandwehavepassedsomeoftheredﬂagslegislation thatS enate.Welook 
	enatorGrahamhadmentionedthatheisworkingonhereintheS forwardtosomeofthosestepsbeingtakenandIknowthatissomethingthat'simportantto you.AndMr.Canterburywealwaysthankyoufortheworkyoudoforthethinblueline. 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Thankyou. 
	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	Andthegoodworkthatyouallaredoingthere.Mytimehasexpired.S
	enatorHarris,youare actuallynext.Youarerecognized. 
	-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	Mr.Morial,it's--we'veheard--there'sbeenalotofdiscussionaboutthisnomineeandthe bookthatwasentitled,TheCaseforMoreIncarceration,forwhichMr.Barrwrotethe foreword.Therehasbeenconcernabouthisoppositiontoeﬀortstolowermandatory minimums.AndsomyquestiontoyouisbasedonyourexperienceasthemayorofNew Orleans.Duringthetimeyouweremayoryousawa60percentreductioninviolentcrime. AndasGeneralMukaseyhastalkedabout,andothers,onemeasureoftheeﬀectivenessof criminaljusticepolicyisareductionincrime. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Right. 
	HARRIS: 
	S
	ocanyoutalkabitaboutwhatitisthat,asmayor,youdidandperhapsevenbestpractices aroundthecountrythathaveledtoareductionincrime? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Well,thankyouverymuchforyourquestion,anditwasapowerfulmomentforour communitywhenwechangedthelandscapeofpublicsafety.AndImightaddweembarked onaplanthatwascomprehensiveinnature.Therewasalawenforcementcomponenttoit, buttherewasalsoahumanservicesandyouthdevelopmentcomponenttoit.AndIsetaside thedebatebetweenthetwoandsaidthatweneededtodoboth.S
	oourlawenforcement componentwasacomprehensivereformofwhatwasatthattimeaverybrokenNew OrleansPoliceDepartment.Andthatcomprehensivereformincludedweedingout corruption,dealingwithaverybrutalpoliceforce.Itinvolveddiscipline,andﬁring,and remakingofhowwerecruited,howwetrained,howwepaid,howwedeployed,howwe usedtechnology.Itwasbroad-based.Itwashighlysuccessful.Wedidnothavetheproblems 
	-
	-

	whatsoeverbecausewealsoputourfootdownandsaidweweregoingtohaveresponsible andconstitutionalpolicing. 
	S
	oitisimportantinthecontextoftheJusticeDepartment.AndwhenItookoﬃcetherewas aJusticeDepartmentinvestigationoftheNewOrleansPoliceDepartment.Andinsteadof ﬁghtingtheinvestigation,insteadoftryingtodelaytheinvestigation,Iworkedwiththe JusticeDepartmentandpresentedmyownfar-reaching,far-rangingplanwhichatthattime wentfarther--wewerepreparedtogofartheronaproactivebasisthananydepartmentat thattimehadgoneunderaconsentdecree.That'snumber1.Butnumber2--andthisispart ofthepurviewbecausejustice,inadditiontoitslawenforcement
	eed.Wealsodeployedandmadefullutilizationofallofthoseinitiatives,too,to investinyouthdevelopment,toexpandrecreation,toexpandafterschoolprograms,to expandyouthsummerjobs.Itwasnotjustlawenforcement.Itwasnotjusthumanservices. Itwasacombinationofthe 
	two. 
	S
	oIthinkit'simportanttounderstandthatJusticehaslawenforcementresponsibilities,but alsoJusticehasresponsibilitieswithrespecttoinvestinginthecommunity,investingin youth.Iwouldpointthisout,andIthinkthisisimportant.Atthetime--andthiswasduring theClintonadministration--theClintonadministrationworkedcooperativelywithus,both tohelpuspursueviolentcrimethroughgunprosecutionsanddrugprosecutions,butalso investedthroughWeedandS
	eedandOﬃceofJusticeprograms.Alsoatthattimeyouhad thecommunity-orientedpolicingprogram,whichprovideduswithadditionalresourcesfor policetechnology. 
	S
	othelessontobelearned--andIwouldsaythis--theconsentdecreesthatareoutthere-andthisismisunderstoodbypeople--aconsentdecreeisbyitsverydeﬁnitionavoluntary agreementbetweenacityanditspolicedepartmentandtheJusticeDepartment. Andmost ofthoseconsentdecreesthatareenteredinto--havebeenenteredintoinlieuoflitigation thatthedepartmenthadtherighttodo.S
	-

	otheideathatpursuingconsentdecreesis,in 
	-
	-

	eﬀect,avoluntarycollaboration,andIthinkGeneralS
	essionswasagainstconsentdecrees, butoﬀerednothinginexchange,oﬀerednootherstrategyinexchange.I'mjustagainst consentdecreesbecauseIthinkthattheynegativelyaﬀectpolicemorale--butdidn'toﬀer anotherapproach.Weneedthisnomineetoindicatethathe'sgoingtobecommittedto constitutionalpolicing,committedtopublicsafety,butunderstandthatpublicsafety,we've learned,isnotjustcrackdownlawenforcement.It'ssomethingmuchmorecomprehensive. It'ssomethingmuchmoreproactive.Yes,you'vegottoprosecuteviolentoﬀenders,no doubt.Butyou'vealsogo
	HARRIS: 
	Andasafollow-uptoyourpoint,someofthebestandmostinnovativeinitiativeswe'veseen inthelastfew--inacoupleofdecadesoncriminaljusticepolicy,havebeentheresultofthe U.SDepartmentofJusticefundinginnovationinawaythatsupportslocallaw 
	. enforcement,localprosecutorsandlocalcommunitygroupstocreatethekindof collaborationthatyou'retalkingabout. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Thereusedtobealocallawenforcementblockgrantprogram-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	Right. 
	MORIAL
	: 
	--thatprovidedmoney,whichallowedyou--becausestategovernment--citygovernments arestrappedalwaysforresources.Thatcreatedawayforyoutoinvestinsomeinnovation, somecollaboration,somediﬀerentialsortsofthings.AndIthinkjusticecanplayaproactive smartoncrimeroleinhelpingmakeourcommunitiessafer. 
	-
	-

	HARRIS: 
	Thankyou.Mr.Johnson,you'vetestiﬁedaboutyourconcernaboutthenominee's statementsthathavebeenmadeinthepastaboutthefactthatthereisnostatistical evidenceofracisminthecriminaljusticesystem.Hedidmentionduringhistestimony yesterdayandacknowledgedthedisparitiesbetweencrackandpowdercocaine enforcementbutdidnotacknowledgeormentionanyotherofthedisparitiesthatwe've seeninthecriminaljusticesystems,suchasarrestratesthatrelatetoavarietyofcrimes,but inparticulardrugcrimes,thedisparitiesbasedonraceintermsofwhogetswhatamounto
	oifheisconﬁrmed, whatdoyoubelievewillbetheramiﬁcationsor--ofhisfailuretoacknowledgethat?And whatdoyou--whatwouldyourecommendhedo,ifheisconﬁrmed,toacknowledgeandto beinformedaboutthesedisparities? 
	JOHNSON: 
	Anindividualtoserveasattorneygeneralofthisnationmustrecognizethelonglegacyof racedisparity.AsAG,Iwouldhopethathewouldreallylookintothecredibleresearch,and itwouldbeobviousthatinthecriminaljusticesystemthereisahugedisparity.S
	omeofthat canbeaccountedforbasedonincome,butmuchofitisaccountedforbasedontherac--the racialmake-upofjuries.Itcouldbeaccountedforselectiveprosecution.Itcouldbe accountedforasrelatestoamyriadofthings.Andastheattorneygeneral,Iwouldhopehe wouldfactorinthatraceisaproblem.Wearefarfromapost-racialsociety,andwemust attackproblemswitharaciallensbecausethereisverylittleinourcriminaljusticesystem thatisraceneutral. 
	HARRIS: 
	Andjustonemorequestion,MadamChair.The--hedid--Irequestedthatifwithinaperiod oftime,ifheisnomin--ifhe'sconﬁrmed,thathewouldmeetwithcivilrightsgroupsto understandtheramiﬁcationsofanypolicies.Heagreedtodothatwithintheﬁrst120days, 
	-
	-

	ifconﬁrmed.Ithinkthatwewillallexpectthathewilldothat,andIlookforwardtohearing abouttheresultofthosemeetings.Andthankyou. 
	JOHNSON: 
	Thankyou. 
	BL
	BL
	ACKBURN: 

	S
	enatorCruz? 
	CRUZ: 
	Thankyou,MadameChairman.Letmesaythankyoutoeachofthedistinguishedwitnesses forbeinghere,forbeingpartofthishearing.Iappreciateyour--yourtestimonyandwisdom andjudgment.JudgeMukasey,letme--letmestartwithyou.Youhavestoreservedasa federaljudge,youhaveservedasU.SAttorneyGeneral,as--ashasMr.Barr,and--andyou 
	. havebuiltalonganddistinguishedcareerinpublicservice.Canyoushareforthis committeeinyourjudgmenttheimportanceofruleoflawandtheimportanceofhavingan attorneygeneralwhoisfaithfultoenforcingthelawandConstitution, regardlessofparty, regardlessofpartisaninterest? 
	MUKASEY: 
	It'sreallytheonlyguaranteethatwehavebecausethiscountryisdeﬁnedbyandis constitutedbyalaw,theConstitution.This--it'snotbasedonland,isnotbasedonblood, it'sbasedonalaw.Itallstartedwiththelaw.Andthat'swhatwe'vebuiltthissocietyon,the notionthatyoucanhaveasocietyinwhich--thatoperatesfairly,inwhichneutralprinciples, neutrallyapplied,allowpeopletoreachtheirmaximumpotential.Ifthat'severabandoned, ifit'severdeviatedfrom,ifit'severperceivedtobedeviatedfrom,thenwerelost.Thenwe haveno--nothingtodeﬁneusbecausewearedeﬁnedb
	CRUZ: 
	-
	-

	Now,you'vetestiﬁedtodaythat--thatyouknowthatMr.Barrisa,"S
	upreme--superbly qualiﬁednominee,thathehasgoodjudgmentand,justimportantly,thathehasthe wheeledtoexercisethatjudgment,despitepressurefromanysource." Can--canyoushare withthecommitteewhat,inyourprofessionalandpersonalexperience,givesyou conﬁdencethat--thatMr.Barrwillonceagainwellandablycarryoutthe--theresponse abilityofattorneygeneraloftheUnitedS
	tates? 
	MUKASEY: 
	AsImentioned,hehashadapasthistoryofdoingthatwhenheservedasattorneygeneral. Notwithstanding,thatadesired--therewasadesiredresultfortheWhiteHouseandhekind ofdeﬂecteditand,asitwere,laugheditoﬀ.Heissomebodywhohastestiﬁedherethatin-inviewofthefactthatmostofhiscareeristherearviewmirror,hedoesn'treallyhaveto concernhimselfwiththe--thepossiblenegativeconsequencesofresistingpressurefroman administration.S
	-

	othat'sanadditional--that'sanadditionalguarantee. 
	ButIthinkthepersonhimselfandwhohe'sbeenovertheyearsconsistentlyreallyspeaksto thatandit'snotjustthequestionofhishavingnothingtolose.Ithinkthatisthewayhe's constituted.As--asProfessorTurleysaid,he'sa--he'salawnerd,meaningheisdevotedin a--ina--inawaythatveryfewpeoplearetowhatdeﬁnesthiscountry.Andthat's--that's whatheenjoys,that'shisoccupation,andhispreoccupation.Andthatis,Ithink,an excellentguaranteeforthewayhe'sgoingtoapproachthejob. 
	CRUZ: 
	Well,thiscommitteeinparticular,Ithink,youwillﬁndnocriticismforbeingalawnerd. We--wetendtoattractmore--morethanafewofthem.Mr.Thompson,you--youlikewise havealongdistinguishedhonorablecareer,marredonlybybrieﬂybeingmybossatthe DepartmentofJustice,andIapologizeforallofmyerrantmistakessincethen--thattime. LetmeaskyouthesamequestionIaskedJudgeMukasey,whichisinyourprofessionaland-andpersonalcareerandinteractionswithMr.Barr,whatgivesyouconﬁdencethat--thathe willonceagainablycarryouttheroleofattorneygeneral? 
	-

	-
	-

	THOMPSON: 
	Thankyou,senator.AndI'mveryproudtohaveyouasoneofmycolleaguesandformer alumsfromtheDeputyAttorneyGeneral'sOﬃce.You'vecertainlyacquittedyourselfwell. BillBarrhasalonghistoryintheDepartmentofJustice.AsIsaidmyopeningstatement,he hasagreatloveforthedepartment.Ithinkthatmaybeoneofthereasonshewantstoreturn topublicservice.Hehasgreatﬁdelitytothedepartment. 
	Butinadditiontosomeofthe,sortof,sterileconstitutionalquestionsthatwe'vebeen discussingthismorning,importantbutstillsterile,inmyview,heunderstandsthe traditionsoftheDepartmentofJustice.HerespectsthetraditionsoftheDepartmentof Justice.Heknowstheimpactthathisdecisionswillhaveonthemenandwomenwhoarein thedepartment,whowereintheinvestigativeagencies. 
	Andtherearereasonsforthesepolicies,therearegoodreasonsforthesetraditions,notthe leastimportantofwhichispublicperceptionthatjusticeinthiscountry,investigative decisionsinthiscountryarecarriedoutfairlywithoutfearorfavorof--ofwhatyourstatusis insocietyand,mostimportantly,withoutpoliticalconsiderations.Heunderstandsthis.I thinkthismakeshimsuperblyqualiﬁedtobe,again,theattorneygeneraloftheUnited S
	tates. 
	CRUZ: 
	Thankyou.Ms.Cary,you--youhaveworkedwithMr.Barrsometwodecades.Oneofthe thingsyoutestiﬁedaboutwasMr.Barr'sbusyschedule,longtravelhours, andyetinthe midstofitall,jugglingtoﬁndtimetobeahusbandandadadtohisthreedaughters.As--as thefatherofdaughtersmyself,I--Iknowhowdiﬃcultthatcanbewithpubliclife.Can--can yousharewiththecommitteesomeofwhat--justwhatyousawﬁrsthandabouthowhe managedtocarryouthisresponsibilitiesandthat--andstill--stillbethereforhisdaughters? 
	CARY: 
	-
	-

	Yeah,hewasatremendousfather,aswesawyesterday,grandfather,andasIsaidinmy testimony,thefactthatallthreeofhisdaughterswentintothelawis--ishuge.Myhusband ishopingthatourdaughtersdonotgointothelawbecausehethinksit'sbecoming increasinglydiﬃcultprofession. 
	But--buttoyourquestionabouthis--hisdemeanorand--andthewayheconductshimself, whichIthinkisanexampleto--tohisdaughters,wewerein--inHoustonandwewerethere forsomeeventsandashewashearingfromallthesevictimsofcrimeandpeopletalking abouthowhightheviolentcrimeratehadgotten,canhepleasedosomethingtohelp,he spontaneouslyturnedaroundtomeandsaidwhatdoyousaywestopbytheHarrisCounty Jail?Anditwasnotonthe--ontheagendaatall.Forsecurityreasons,youwouldnevertipoﬀ thattheattorneygeneralwasgoingtoaprison. 
	And--andtheFBIbasicallykindofrangthedoorbelloftheprisonandsaid,"We'rehere," anddidanunannouncedvisittotheprison.Andtheattorneygeneral--theprisonersdidnot knowwhohewas.Iwasawedidn'tannounceit.Hewentaroundaskingtheseguyswith theirliveswerelike,what'dtheydotogetinhere,what'sforlunchtoday,whereyou exercise,and--andas--asmuchofalawnerdasheis,it--thiswasaverycompassionateside ofhim. 
	Hewasnotshowboating,he--therewasnopressinvolved,and--andtomeitshowedtheway hecouldsortofshoehorninaquickvisitsothathecouldgetbackandseehisfamily,butyet learnaboutwhatpeople'sliveswerelike,seetheimpactnotjustoftheviolentcrimeon--on thevictims,butalsoproposedreformsonthepeoplewhowereactuallyontheprisons.And-andIwouldbewillingtobettherearenotalotofattorneysgeneral,presentcompany probablyexcepted,whohavebeeninsideacellblocklikethatonanunannouncedthingso thathecouldgetbacktohisfamilybutalsocontinuetolearntheimpa
	-

	CRUZ: 
	Thank--thankyouforsharingthatwonderfulstory.AndIwillsayhisgrandsonLiamhas becomeainternetsensation. 
	-
	-

	CARY: 
	Hestoletheshow. 
	CRUZ: 
	Not--notseensinceJohnRobert'ssonJackdidS
	pider-Manathisannouncementandhetoo hada--had--hadamomentofglory. 
	CARY: 
	Right. 
	CRUZ: 
	Thank--thankyoutoeachofyou. 
	BL
	BL
	ACKBURN: 

	S
	enatorBlumenthal. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	Thankyou,madamechairwoman.Thankyoutoeveryoneofyouandthankyouforallof yourwrittentestimonywhichIwillreview.Wehaveonlysevenminutes.S
	ince,amatterof fact,we'reinthemiddleofavoterightnowso,I'mgoingtobequickwithanumberofyou. 
	Firstofall,ReverendRisher,thankyouforbeingheretodaytellingyourstorysopowerfully andeloquently,andmakingsureweunderstandthatyourmotherandyourtwocousins wouldbealivetodayifthatshootercouldnotgethishandsonagun.Adangerousperson withagunand,Iassume, thatyouwouldsupportthelegislationthat'sbeenintroducedto improvethebackgroundchecksystemasyouprobably--I'msureyouknowthatshooterwas abletotakeadvantageofaloophole-
	-

	-
	-

	RISHER: 
	--Yes-
	-

	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	--Inthecurrentlaws.But,morebroadly,S
	enatorGrahamandIhaveproposedbipartisan measuretotakegunsawayfrompeoplewhoaredeemedtobedangerousbyacourtafter dueprocess.Andthereby,keepgunsoutofthehandsofcriminalsandotherdangerous people.Ihopethatyoucanlendyourvoiceandyourfacetosupportingthatlegislation. 
	RISHER: 
	Iwouldsupportthatlegislation,sir,yes. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	Thankyouverymuch. 
	RISHER: 
	Thankyou 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	ProfessorTurley,youandIareinagreementthatthepresidentcanbeindicted.Ithinkwe're inagreement. 
	TURL
	EY: 
	Yes. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	Whileinoﬃce,evenifthetrialhastobepostponed.IarticulatedthatpositiontoMr.Barr yesterdayandaskedhimtoagreewithme,andhewouldn't.Youimpliedthismorningin 
	-
	-

	yourtestimonythathedidagreewithit.Doyouhavesomeinformationthat-
	-

	TURL
	EY: 
	--Oh,no,actuallyIhaveno--I'veneverspokentohimaboutit.Iwassayingthat,ifyoulook atthehistoryofbothMuellerandBarr,Iwouldnotexpectthattheywouldtrytochangethis long-standingpolicy.Fromaconstitutionalstandpoint,I'veneverreallyagreedwithitasI thinkwesharethisview.TheConstitutiondoesn'tsaythatthepresident'simmunefrom indictment.Butindictmentgoestothepresidentasaperson,impeachmentgoestothe presidentasanoﬃceholder.Thatdoesn'tmeanthatapresidentisgoingtostandtrialduring aterm,asyou'venotedably.Andindeed,as--asyoualsokn
	WhereBillBarrfallsonthis,Ireallydon'tknow.I--whenwetalkabouthimbeingagreat advocateoftheunitaryexecutivetheory,thisisnot--Idon't--Idon'tshareNeil'sviewthat, eventhoughI'mnotabigfanofthetheory,thatitissohorriﬁc,youknow.Hebelievesin clearlines.AndIsharethatviewofwhat'sanexecutivefunction,what'salegislative function.Andwhenwetalkaboutthe--theavoidancedoctrineofcourtsandtryingto interpretstatutestoavoidconﬂicts,it'simportanttorememberthatsameavoidanceconﬂict protectsCongress,whereI--ItendtofavorintermsofArticle
	o,I'mnottoosurewherehe comesoutonthisspeciﬁcissue. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	LetmeaskyouandI'mgoingtoaskacoupleofothermembers,I--Iamdeeplydisturbed, andunderstatement,bysomeofthepresent'scommentsabouttheFBI,aboutjudges,about ourjudicialsystemgenerally.Andshouldn'ttheattorneygeneraloftheUnitedS
	tatesbe someonewhostandsupfor,youknow,it'seasytosay,"I'mfortheruleofthelaw".But, whentherubberhitstheroad,heshouldbedefendingallofthoseinstitutions.Doyou agree? 
	-
	-

	TURL
	EY: 
	Ido.WhatIshouldcautionisthatIdon'tthinkthatBillBarr'sthetypethatisgoingtotakea publicstanceoftenagainstthepresident.ButheissomeonewhoIthinkwouldbequiteﬁrm inhissupportwiththe--withthedepartment.Idon'tknowwhatthepresidentthoughthe wasgettingwithBillBarr,butIknowwhathe'sgetting.He'sgoingtogetsomeonewho identiﬁesincrediblycloselyandintimatelywiththatdepartment.AndIthinkhewillbea vigorousdefenderofit. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	JudgeMukasey,letmeaskyou-andI'm-Iknowthatyoumaywishtobereferredtoas general. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Idon't.I'vealwaysbeenuncomfortablewiththat,evenwhenIwasintheposition.Ithought itwasweird. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	AsAtt-asattorneygeneral-
	-

	(LAUGHTER) 
	--asattorneygeneral,Iwasreferredtogeneralfor20years,andIneverwascomfortable withiteither. 
	MUKASEY: 
	In--yeah,intheU.K.,theycalltheattorneygeneral,attorneywhichseemsalotmore civilizedandalotmoreaccurate,particularlywhentherearepeopleinuniformaround. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	-
	-

	As--asProfessorTurleypointedoutinhistestimonyabouttheseal,theU.K.hasavery diﬀerentsystem.AndIthought,bytheway,the--whatyourhistoryofthesealwasa--was reallyverypertinentintermsofshowingthediﬀerencesbetweentheattorneygeneralasan advocateofjusticeasopposedtoanadvocateforthequeenorthepresident. 
	MUKASEY: 
	Thankyou. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	But,letmeaskyou,aren'tyoudeeplytroubledbythepresident'sattacksonthejudiciary? 
	MUKASEY: 
	Idisagreewiththem.Ithinkitisextraordinarilyunwiseforhimtodoit.Andinthatsense-inthatsense,I'mtroubled.Obviously,thereisa--orthereisorshouldbeapoliticalpriceto bepaidforthat.AndIthinkwe'reintheprocessofseeingitpaidtoacertainextent.But therehasalwaysbeenacertainleveloftensionbetween,andamong,thebranches.Howit's expressedandhow--how--howcivillyit'sexpressedisadiﬀerentthing.AndI--Ithinkwe're probablyinagreementthere.Butthereisalwaysacertainlevelofpullingandhaulingthat's builtintotheConstitutionalsystem. 
	-

	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	Andareyounotalsotroubledbythepresident'sattacksontheFBIandtheDepartmentof Justice,forthatmatter? 
	MUKASEY: 
	The--again,the--theFBIcanfunctiononaday-to-daybasiswithoutarootingsectioninthe WhiteHouseorarazzingsectionintheWhiteHouse.Ithinkthatsomeofthe--someofhis criticismsoftheFBImayverywellturnouttobewarranted.S
	ofarasthedepartment,that's adiﬀerentstoryentirely.AndI'vearticulatedthat.Ithinkthattheformerattorneygeneral 
	-
	-

	hadnochoicebuttorecusehimself.Hedid,andthatwasnotsomethingthatwas--thatwas notacriticismthateverheldanywater. 
	BL :
	UMENTHAL 
	Well,Iwantto,again,thankyouallforbeinghere.Ihavealotmorequestions.MaybeI'll contactsomeofyouprivately.MytimehasexpiredandIknowtheactingchairwomanandI havetogovote.Butthankyouallforbeingheretoday. 
	BL
	BL
	ACKBURN: 

	Thankyou.Withoutobjection,andonbehalfofS
	enatorGrassley,Iwouldliketoenterthis letterfromtaxpayersagainstfraudintotherecord.S
	o,ordered.Thankyou,all,forbeing heretodayandforyourinsightintohowMr.BarrwouldleadtheDepartmentofJusticein whatitisaverychallengingtime--excuseme?(WHIS
	PERING)Allright,heisin.Justice,I amgettingreadytoendthishearing.Mr.Coons,youarerecognized. 
	COONS: 
	Thankyou,S
	Thankyou,S
	enatorBlackburn-
	-


	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	--Youjustmadeitinunderthewire. 
	COONS: 
	Yes,ma'am.Thankyoutothepanel.Iappreciateyourpatience.Therehavebeen,asyou know,votesandotherissueshappeninginothersettings. 
	ReverendRisher,wedidhaveanopportunitytospeakduringthebreak,butIjustwantedto reconﬁrmmysenseoflossatwhatyousharedwithus,andthefactthatIhadthe opportunitytovisitandtoworshipandthentotravelwithFeliciaS
	andersandPolly S
	heppard.Itwasablessingtogettomeetyoutoday,andIlookforwardtoyourupcoming 
	-
	-

	writingforsuchatimeasthisandtalkingaboutreconciliationworktogether.It'simportant anddiﬃcultwork. 
	AndIwantedtostart,ifIcould,byaskingbothyouandMr.Canterbury,withwhomI've hadthehonorofworkingonotherissues,aboutbackgroundchecksinparticular.Wetalked previouslyaboutthewaysinwhichtheNICSsystemdoesn'tcurrentlyfullyworktodeny accesstoweaponstothosewhoshould,underthelaw,bedeniedaccesstoweapons. 
	S Denial
	enatorToomeyandIintroducedabipartisanbillinthelastCongress,theNICS NotiﬁcationAct,thatwouldmakeasimpleimprovementtohowweenforceourcurrent laws.Ifyoulieandtry,ifyougointoagundealershipandﬁllouttheformandsayI'm entitledtobuyagun,theyrunthebackgroundcheckandcomebackandsay,um,we're reallysorry,butyou'vespentﬁveyearsinafederalpenitentiaryforarmedrobbery,we're hishomestate,becausethestatepoliceconductthatNICSnotiﬁcation,theyknowthatthey cannowgohaveaconversationwithyouaboutforwhatpurposewereyoupurchasingthis weap
	notgivingyouaguntoday,andyoustormout,inmyhomestatenothingmorehappens.In 

	Thisbill,ifitweretobecomelaw,wouldrequirenotiﬁcation,simplenotiﬁcationtoastateor locallawenforcementcontact.Andthesecases--theseso-calledlieandtrycasesarerarely prosecutedatthefederallevel,partlybecauseofalackofknowledge,partlybecauseofa lackofresources. 
	Mr.Canterbury,I'dbeinterested--I'mgratefulforwhatIunderstandistheFOP'ssupport fortheconceptinthebill.Iwonderedifyou'dbewillingtoadvocatewithAttorneyGeneral Barr,shouldhebeconﬁrmed,fortheresourcestoenforcelieandtrylawsandtomakesure thatourNICSsystemisworkingasitshould. 
	CANTERBURY: 
	Absolutely.We'vebeenverycriticalofthelackofresourcesfortheNICSsystemandthefact thatalieandtrynormallygoeswithoutprosecution.S
	o,we--youknow,we'vesupported 
	-
	-

	thatbillinthepast.We'rewithyouandS
	enatorToomeyonthat.Andobviously,withthat willcomethenecessaryappropriationsandauthorizationtoenforce. 
	COONS: 
	That'sourhope.ReverendRisher,wouldithavemadeanydiﬀerenceintheDylannRoof caseifhe'dbeendeniedtheopportunitytopurchaseaweapon? 
	RISHER: 
	Yes,itwouldhavemadeadiﬀerence.Ibelieveifhewasnotabletosecurehisgunatthat particularday,thatmaybetragedyinCharlestonmaynothavehappened.Oneofthethings thatweareupagainstisthethreedaywaitingperiodthatIknowthatneedstobeexpanded inordertobeabletohaveacompletebackgroundcheck.AndIthinkthingswouldhave beendiﬀerentifthosethingswereinplaceatthetimeheboughtthegun. 
	COONS: 
	Thankyou,reverend. 
	Astheco-chairoftheLawEnforcementCaucus,IintendtoworkinthisCongressasIdidin thelasttotryandﬁndwaysthatbothpartiescansupportthatwouldstrengthenlaw enforcementandoursystemofdenyingaccesstoweaponstothosewhoshouldn'thave them. 
	ProfessorKinkopf,ifImight,therewassomevigorousbackandforthabouttheunitary executivetheory.Wecouldhaveaverylongconversationaboutthis,butI'mjustgoingto askafocusedquestion.Tellmespeciﬁcally,theunitaryexecutivetheoryisjustthat.It's theory.It'snotcurrentlythelawoftheland.AmIrightaboutthat? 
	KINKOPF: 
	That'scorrect.Infact,theS
	upremeCourthasrejecteditrepeatedlyineverycasebeginning withHumphrey'sExecutor. 
	-
	-

	COONS: 
	Yet,yousuggestedthatifweweretohaveanattorneygeneralwithaveryexpansiveviewof executivepower,itmighthavesomenegativeimplicationsanditmighthavesomenegative implicationsthatwouldhavesomecurrentrelevance.Couldyoujustexplainthatjustalittle bitmore? 
	Mysuperﬁcialandill-informedviewofthisisthatthefoundersdidnotactuallysayall executivepowerisgiventothepresident,thatitwastheexecutivepower,andthenthereare examplesofwaysinwhichexecutivepowerisactuallysharedwithotherbranches historically.Idon'twanttogetintoawonderfullawnerdﬁght,butI'minterestedinwhatare thepracticalimplicationsifwehaveanwhohasaverybroadandexpansiveview. 
	Mypredecessor,S
	enatorBiden,whenhewasChairmanBiden,althoughhewasvery complimentaryofMr.Barr,didexpressrealconcernabouthowbroadhisexecutivepower theorywas. 
	KINKOPF: 
	Right.S
	othatreadingoftheexecutivevestingclausewasarguedbyPresidentHarry Trumaninthesteelseizurecase,andspeciﬁcallyrejectedbytheS
	upremeCourt.Butthat didn'tkillit.Itkeepscomingback.LawyersintheJusticeDepartmentearnestlybelievingin it,applieditintheTorturememo,mostinfamously.S
	oit'ssomethingwekeephearing.And theTorturememoisagoodexampleinthesensethatitillustratesthatmuchofwhatthe JusticeDepartmentdoesnevergetsintocourt,right,andsotheattorneygeneralissuchan importantpositionbecauseveryoftentheattorneygeneralistheruleoflaw.Itisonlythe attorneygeneral'swillingnesstonotonlystandupforwhattheConstitutionsays,butto recognizewhattheConstitutionactuallysays.IhavenoqualmsaboutWilliamBarronthe ﬁrstscore.It'sonthelatterthatIhaverealtrouble. 
	Andsotheattorneygeneralisacruciallyimportantﬁgurefromthatstandpointforissueswe can'tevenbegintocontemplate,andwemayneverknowabout.Butastheissueswedo knowabout,thatwecanbequitecertain,andevenissuesthatmayendupincourtoneday, 
	-
	-

	thatroleiscruciallyimportant.S
	upposethepresidentdecideshewantstotelltheFederal Reservehowtorunmonetarypolicy.Nowthat'ssomethingthatmightendupincourt,but theMyers' case,sortoftheﬁrstcaseofthemodernapproachtothepresident'sremoval power,isacasewhereWoodrowWilsonﬁredFrankMyers,thepostmasterﬁrstclassin Portland,Oregon,right,whilehewaspresident.Hispresidencyendedin1921.TheMyers' casewasdecidedbytheS
	upremeCourtin1927.Canyouimaginesixyearsofacloud hangingovertheindependenceoftheFederalReserve?S upreme
	oevenifultimatelytheS CourtvindicatestheproperviewoftheConstitution,wehavepotentialenormouschaosin themarkets,andthat'sjustoneexampleofoneindependentagencyandtheimportantrole itplaysinourlives. 
	COONS: 
	(INAUDIBLE)AndyoupreviouslycitedalistofindependentagenciesandHumphrey's Executor,andthisisalineofquestioningIpursuedwithourmostrecentlyconﬁrmed S calia 
	upremeCourtjustice.Iamveryconcernedabouthowthisview,whichbeginswithaS dissentandnowhasexpandedsigniﬁcantlyintermsofitsadherence,whatitsreal consequencesmightbe.IfImight,withthedeferenceofthechair,askonelastbrief question. 
	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	Verybrief-
	-

	COONS: 
	Verybrief(INAUDIBLE)-
	-

	BL
	ACKBURN: 
	--becauseI'venotnoted. 
	COONS: 
	-
	-

	Mr.Morial,about67,000Americanseveryyeararedyingofoverdoses.Mr.BarroncesaidI don'tconsideritanunjustsentencetoputadrugcourierinprisonforﬁveyears.The punishmentﬁtsthecrime.I'vecometotheconclusionwecan'tincarcerateourwayoutof theopioidcrisis.DoyoubelieveMr.Barrwilladvancepoliciestohelpthosesuﬀeringfrom addictiongetthehelptheyneedwithoutneedlesslyprosecutingandincarceratinglarge numbersoflow-leveldrugcouriers? 
	MORIAL
	: 
	Idon'tthinkweheardanythingfromhim--Iwasn'thereyesterday--oranythinginhisrecord thatwouldsuggestthat.Ithinkit'sgoingtorequirestrongcongressionaloversight.It'snot the--ifthe--thewaywetreattheopioidcrisismirrorsthewaywetreatedthecrackcrisis. We'rejustcontinuingtheill-advisedpoliciesofmassincarceration.Andtheycertainlydo notwork,particularlyfortheuserclass,theuserclass.Andwhatwedidinthecrackcocaine crackdownisitwasuserswhowereincarceratedfor18months,twoyears,threeyears. S
	ometimestheyrepeated,andtheywentbacktojailasecondtime.Andtheopioidcrisisis anopportunity,nowthatwe'relosing60,000peopleayear,morethanwe'relosingtogun violence,tobreakfromthosepoliciesandtreattheopioidcrisisforwhatitis.It'sapublic healthcrisis,justlikethecrackandcocainecrisis.Thesearepeoplewithdeepproblemsof substanceabuse.It'snottoexoneratethepusher.It'snottosanctionit.Butitistocomeup withamoreintelligentapproach.S
	oIdon'tknowifthenomineeisthereif--andIthinkthat thisCongressandthiscommitteeisgoingtohavetoforcehimtogetthere. 
	COONS: 
	Thankyou,Mr.Morial.Thankyoutothewholepanel.Thankyoutothechairforyour forbearance. 
	BL
	BL
	ACKBURN: 

	Andwethankyouallforhelpingtogiveusaclearerpictureofwhatyouperceivetobethe judgmentandtheunderstandingandthecommitmentofMr.Barr,andthisconcludesthe hearingtoconsiderWilliamBarrasattorneygeneral.Iwillremindthesenatorsthatthe 
	-
	-

	recordwillbeopenuntil5:00p.m.onJanuary22tosubmitquestions,andwerequestyour timelyresponse.Thishearingisadjourned. 
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